



8th International Scientific Conference "Telecommunications, Informatics, Energy and Management" – TIEM 2023

PROCEEDINGS BOOK December 1-3, 2023 Bandirma/Balikesir, Turkey

ISBN: 978-625-94286-0-4

8th International Scientific Conference

"Telecommunications, Informatics, Energy

and Management"

TIEM 2023

Onsite – Online (Hybrid) Conference

December 1-3, 2023 | Bandirma/Balikesir, Turkey

Editor-in-Chief

Yunus Kaya

Editors

Adem Korkmaz Grigor Yordanov Mihaylov Intan Helina Hasan Selahattin Kosunalp Umit Yildirim

ISBN: 978-625-94286-0-4

December 2023

Papers reviewed by at least two reviewers presented at the 8th International Scientific Conference "Telecommunications, Informatics, Energy and Management" – TIEM 2023 are included in this proceedings book. Responsibility for all papers presented at TIEM 2023 and published in this proceedings book belongs to the respective authors of the papers.

All rights reserved. This publication is free of charge and cannot be sold for money. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored, retrieved or transmitted, or distributed in any other binding or cover form, without the written permission of the publisher. It can be used by citing the source.

ISBN: 978-625-94286-0-4 Publication Date: 28.12.2023

Dear Participants,

We would like to thank all of you for your participation and interest in the 8th International Scientific Conference "Telecommunications, Informatics, Energy and Management" – TIEM 2023, which was held as Onsite/Online (Hybrid) in Bandirma/Balikesir, Turkey on 1-3 December 2023.

The "Telecommunication, Informatics, Energy and Management" conference, which has been organized since 2016 under the leadership of University of Telecommunications and Post (Sofia, Bulgaria) with the participation of researchers, academicians, sector workers and students from many countries in Bulgaria and Greece, this year, was organized at Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University (Bandirma, Turkey) under the name TIEM 2023 in partnership with Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University University (Bandirma, Turkey), Bayburt University (Bayburt, Turkey), University of Telecommunications and Post (Sofia, Bulgaria), and Universiti Putra Malaysia (Selangor, Malaysia).

The purpose of the TIEM 2023 conference is to provide an international forum for researchers, academics, people in industry and students to discuss the latest research results and present and discuss their ideas, theories, technologies, systems, tools, applications, work in progress. In this direction, the participants will experience all the theoretical and practical issues that arise in the fields of global education, other engineering sciences and basic sciences, especially in the fields of telecommunications, informatics, energy and management.

Onsite and online presentations were made by invited speakers and other participants within the scope of TIEM 2023. TIEM 2023, where 125 oral presentations prepared by 192 participants from 12 different countries, took place and opened a direction to new cooperation opportunities.

For this reason, we would like to thank honorary presidents, who provided their support in organizing the conference, Prof. Dr. Suleyman Ozdemir (Rector of Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Turkey), Prof. Dr. Mutlu Turkmen (Rector of Bayburt University, Turkey), Prof. Dr. Miglena Temelkova (Rector of University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria) and Dato' Prof. Dr. Ahmad Farhan Mohd Sadullah (Vice-Chancellor of Universiti Putra Malaysia, Malaysia), the invited speakers and all other participants, scientific committee members, session chairs and everyone who contributed to making this conference a great success.

Hope to see you at the next TIEM conference.

Best Regards,

On behalf of the TIEM 2023 Organizing Committe Organizing Committee Chairmans Prof. Dr. Grigor Yordanov Mihaylov Assoc. Prof. Dr. Selahattin Kosunalp Assoc. Prof. Dr. Yunus Kaya

COMMITTEES

Guarantor Universities

Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Turkey University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria

Partner Universities

Bayburt University, Turkey Universiti Putra Malaysia, Malaysia

Honorary Committee

Prof. Dr. Suleyman Ozdemir, Rector of Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Turkey Prof. Dr. Mutlu Turkmen, Rector of Bayburt University, Turkey Prof. Dr. Miglena Temelkova, Rector of University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria Dato' Prof. Dr. Ahmad Farhan Mohd Sadullah, Vice-Chancellor of Universiti Putra Malaysia, Malaysia

Organizing Committee

Conference Chairmans

Prof. Dr. Grigor Yordanov Mihaylov, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria Assoc. Prof. Dr. Selahattin Kosunalp, Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Yunus Kaya, Bayburt University, Turkey Members Prof. Dr. Paul Daniel Mitchell, University of York, United Kingdom Prof. Dr. Serkan Cicek, Mugla Sitki Kocman University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Abdulkarim Ayopo Oloyede, University of Ilorin, Nigeria Assoc. Prof. Dr. Abdullah Basci, Atatürk University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Balbaev Gani Kudaibergenovich, Academy of Logistics and Transport, Kazakhstan Assoc. Prof. Dr. Gokhan Ozturk, Ataturk University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Marian Janek, University of Žilina, Slovakia Assoc. Prof. Dr. Mehmet Baris Tabakcioglu, Bursa Technical University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Umit Yildirim, Bayburt University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Adem Korkmaz, Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Hilal Kubra Saglam, Ataturk University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Selma Bulut, Kırklareli University, Turkey Dr. Intan Helina Hasan, Universiti Putra Malaysia, Malaysia Dr. Salahedin Rehan, University of Zawiya, Libya Lect. Enes Ozgenc, Trakya University, Turkey Maria Anastasova, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria Nina Naydenova, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria **Scientific Committee**

Prof. Dr. Ahmet Cansiz, Istanbul Technical University, Turkey Prof. Dr. Ali Emre Pusane, Bogazici University, Turkey Prof. Dr. Alyani Ismail, Universiti Putra Malaysia, Malaysia Prof. Dr. Dimitar Radev, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria Prof. Dr. Grigor Yordanov Mihaylov, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria

Prof. Dr. Ivaylo Stoyanov, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria Prof. Dr. Mehmet Ertugrul, Karadeniz Technical University, Turkey Prof. Dr. Mohd Nizar Hamidon, Universiti Putra Malaysia, Malaysia Prof. Dr. Paul Daniel Mitchell, University of York, United Kingdom Prof. Dr. Plamen Pavlov, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria Prof. Dr. Serkan Cicek, Mugla Sitki Kocman University, Turkey Prof. Dr. Ugur Cem Hasar, Gaziantep University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Abdulkadir Atalan, Canakkale Onsekiz Mart University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Abdulkarim Ayopo Oloyede, University of Ilorin, Nigeria Assoc. Prof. Dr. Abdullah Basci, Atatürk University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Balbaev Gani Kudaibergenovich, Academy of Logistics and Transport, Kazakhstan Assoc. Prof. Dr. Bora Goktas, Bayburt University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Dzhihan Menseidov, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria Assoc. Prof. Dr. Esmeray Alacadağlı, Bayburt University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Gokhan Ozturk, Atatürk University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Halim Kovaci, Atatürk University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Ivaylo Chenchev, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria Assoc. Prof. Dr. Marian Janek, University of Žilina, Slovakia Assoc. Prof. Dr. Mehmet Baris Tabakcioglu, Bursa Technical University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Mustafa Tolga Yurtcan, Atatürk University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Oguzhan Bilgin, Ankara Haci Bayram Veli University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Ozgur Culfa, Karamanoglu Mehmetbey University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Pavlinka Radoyska, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria Assoc. Prof. Dr. Petya Georgieva, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria Assoc. Prof. Dr. Radi Dimitrov, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria Assoc. Prof. Dr. Selahattin Kosunalp, Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Sinan Kul, Bayburt University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Tarık Talan, Gaziantep Islam Science and Technology University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Teodor Iliev, University of Ruse "Angel Kanchev", Bulgaria Assoc. Prof. Dr. Umit Yildirim, Bayburt University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Vihra Dimitrova, University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Yunus Kaya, Bayburt University, Turkey Assoc. Prof. Dr. Yusuf Esmer, Bayburt University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Adem Korkmaz, Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Erdal İgman, Bayburt University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Erman Kadir Oztekin, Bayburt University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Fatih Yilmaz, Bayburt University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Hilal Kubra Saglam, Atatürk University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Ibrahim Cengiz, Bayburt University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Meltem Kizilca Coruh, Atatürk University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Mustafa Alptekin Engin, Bayburt University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Mustafa Ozdemir, Bayburt University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Selma Bulut, Kırklareli University, Turkey Assist. Prof. Dr. Yahya Yasin Yilmaz, Bayburt University, Turkey

Dr. Dimitar Totev, Technical University of Sofia, Bulgaria Dr. Egnar Ozdikililer, İstanbul Technical University, Turkey Dr. Emine Keles, Trakya University, Turkey Dr. Hamdullah Ozturk, Gaziantep University, Turkey Dr. Intan Helina Hasan, Universiti Putra Malaysia, Malaysia Dr. Latif Akcay, Bayburt University, Turkey Dr. Lawal Mohammed Bello, Bayero University Kano, Nigeria Dr. Omowunmi Mary Longe, University of Johannesburg, South Africa Dr. Ramazan Simşek, Bayburt University, Turkey Dr. Salahedin Rehan, University of Zawiya, Libya

TOPICS

Telecommunications & Informatics Software Engineering Smart Grid, Power Electronics, and Converters Renewable Energy and Applied Thermodynamics Management, Economic, Leadership, and Entrepreneurship Challenges in Global Education Management Information Systems Other Engineering Sciences Basic Sciences

SCOPE

The scope of the conference includes, but is not limited to:

- Integration of Information and Telecommunication Systems
- Information Technology in Research and Development of Telecom Systems
 - Next Generation Networks
- Wireless and Wireline Communications
- Optical Communications and Networks
 - Multimedia Communications
- Internet and New IP Services and Applications
- Communication Interfaces (M2M, B2M, H2H)
 - Enterprise Infrastructure and Applications
 - E-Systems; Mobile e-Health/Telemedicine
 - Mobile Terminal/Handsets and Operating Systems/Platforms
 - Telecommunication Network Management
 - Telecommunication Protocols
 - Information Processing and Security
- Network Performances and Quality of Service
 - Software Development and Maintenance
 - Testing and Measurements
 - Improvements Methods and Models
 - Power Electronic Converters and Control Systems
 - Smart Grid Technology
 - Renewable Energy Resources
- Distributed generation and Grid Interconnection

• Electric Vehicles

- Energy Storage & Battery Charging Techniques
- FACTS (Flexible AC Transmission Systems) & Custom Power

- Power Quality & EMI (Electromagnetic
 - Interference)
 - Microgrid & Smartgrid
 - Energy Policies & Standards
 - Wide Band Gap Devices
 - Lighting Technology
 - Power Electronic Education
 - Environment, Sustainability & Risk Management
- Renewable Energy/Alternative Energy Resources & Storage
 - Thermal Design and Optimization
 - Thermodynamic Instrumentation
 - Financial and Business Performance
- Business Scenarios & Strategic Planning
 Consumer Dynamics
 - Economic Indicators & Forecasting
 - Innovation
 - Labor Markets
 - Marketing & Brand Strategy
 - Urban, Rural & Regional Economics
- Developing Strategic Leadership Capabilities
 - Leadership and Management Styles
 - Leadership for Sustainability
 - Leader's Role in Innovation
 - Leading Change and Managing Conflict
- Leadership Challenges Barriers to Effective Communications
 - Entrepreneurship and Sustainability
 - New Prospects in Entrepreneurship

- Entrepreneurial Marketing • Entrepreneurship and Economic Development • Entrepreneurship and Competitiveness • Educational Technologies • Distance Learning and E-Learning • Mobile Learning, Cognitive Support for Learning • Impact of ICT (Information and Communication Technologies) on Education and Society • Contextual and Cultural Challenges in User Mobility • Learning Process of Digital Nationality • E-Learning and M-Learning Function in Higher Education Management Information Systems
- Chemical Engineering
 - Civil Engineering
- Electrical and Electronic Engineering
 - Environmental Engineering
 - Food Engineering
 - Geological Engineering
 - Industrial Engineering
 - Mechanical Engineering
 - Mining Engineering
 - Nanoscience and Nanoengineering
 - Nanotechnology
 - Natural Sciences
 - Mathematics
 - Chemistry
 - Physics

INVITED SPEAKERS

Prof. Dr. Mohd Nizar Hamidon

Universiti Putra Malaysia (Selangor, Malaysia)

Mohd Nizar Hamidon is a Professor at the Electrical and Electronic Engineering Department, Faculty of Engineering and Director of the Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology at Universiti Putra Malaysia (UPM). He received a B.Sc in Physics and M.Sc in Microelectronics from Universiti Malaya (Malaysia) and Universiti Kebangsaan (Malaysia) in 1995 and 2001 respectively. He then obtained Ph.D. degrees in Electronic and Electrical Engineering from the University of Southampton (U.K.) in 2005. He joined UPM after his BSc at the Matriculation Center for 5 years before



becoming a UPM engineering faculty member in 2000 until now, where he oversees a research program at the department and faculty. Due to his outstanding research activities, UPM appointed him as the Head of the Functional Devices Laboratory at the Institute of Advanced Technology (ITMA) in early 2012 but later appointed as Deputy Director in the same year. He is now the Director of the institute, currently known as the Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology (ION2) starting in July 2017.

His research is primarily concerned with the study of electronic and microelectronic devices including the materials (such as oxide and carbon-based) and the systems. Specifically, he has contributed significantly to the development of sensor systems such as gas and pressure sensors, and wireless applications. His research has been primarily funded by the international bodies, government, and university internal funding. He has published over 250 technical papers and a few book chapters related to his research area. He also had graduated in total of 10 PhD and 15 M.Sc students under his supervision. At the same time, he had registered a Start-up Company known as Serdang Paste Tech Sdn Bhd.

Mohd Nizar had good international networking, especially with the researchers from Turkey, Japan, Indonesia, and Thailand with whom they were working together on several different research projects. He was also involved in consultancy work for the Ministry of Information, Communication and Culture Malaysia for the Implementation of WSN – Based Structure and Infrastructure Monitoring System and e-halal monitoring system. He has given many lectures, seminars and invited talks at universities, research institutions and international conferences, and has served as a reviewer for several international conferences and journals. He has been the organizing chair and technical member for several IEEE conferences and The Past Chapter Chair for the IEEE Electron Device Malaysia Chapter.

Prof. Dr. Paul Daniel Mitchell University of York (York, United Kingdom)

Paul D. Mitchell received the M. Eng. and Ph.D. degrees from the University of York, in 1999 and 2003, respectively. His Ph.D. research was on medium access control for satellite systems, which was supported by British Telecom. He has over 20 years research experience in wireless communications, and industrial experience gained at BT and DERA (now QinetiQ). He has been a member of academic staff with the Department of Electronic Engineering, University of York, since 2005, and is currently a Full Professor. lie in underwater Primary research interests acoustic communication networks, terrestrial wireless sensor networks, and communication protocols; including the development of novel



medium access control and routing strategies. Other related interests include machine learning, traffic modeling, queuing theory, satellite, and mobile communication systems. He is an author of over 140 refereed journal and conference papers, and he has served on numerous international conference programme committees including ICC and VTC. He was a General Chair of the International Symposium on Wireless Communications Systems, in 2010. He currently serves as an Associate Editor of IET Wireless Sensor Systems journal, International Journal of Distributed Sensor Networks and MDPI Electronics, and has experience as a Guest Editor and as a reviewer for a number of IEEE, ACM and IET journals. He has secured more than >£2.3M + e4.7M funding as principal and coinvestigator. Current projects include Research Council grants on smart dust for large scale underwater wireless sensing, full-duplex underwater acoustic communications, as well as industrial projects. He is a member of the IET.

Prof. Dr. Ali Emre Pusane Bogazici University (Istanbul, Turkey)

Ali Emre Pusane received the B.Sc. and M.Sc. degrees in electronics and communications engineering from Istanbul Technical University, Istanbul, Turkey, in 1999 and 2002, respectively, the second M.Sc. degree in electrical engineering, the third M.Sc. degree in applied mathematics, and the Ph.D. degree in electrical engineering from the University of Notre Dame, Notre Dame, IN, USA, in 2004, 2006, and 2008, respectively. During 2008–2009, he was a Visiting Assistant Professor with the Department of Electrical Engineering, University of Notre Dame. He then joined the Department of Electrical and Electronics



Engineering, Bogazici University, Istanbul, Turkey. His research interests include wireless communications, molecular communications, signal analysis, and coding theory.

Prof. Dr. Genka Petrova

Medical University-Sofia (Sofia, Bulgaria) Deputy Minister of Education and Science in Bulgaria

Prof. Petrova is a pharmacist and pharmacoeconomist, professor at the Medical University in Sofia and Head Secretary of the MU. She graduated in pharmacy at the Medical Academy - Sofia in 1984 and economics and labor organization at the University of National and World Economy in 1991. Doctor of Pharmacy with a thesis on "Drug needs and use - analysis and forecasting" (1994).

Prof. Petrova majored in health economics at Canterbury Business School. Doctor of Pharmaceutical Sciences with a thesis on "A model of the reform of the pharmaceutical sector in countries in transition from the Balkan region - an analysis of the application of theoretical concepts."

Prof. Petrova is a former vice-rector for Research Activities of the Medical University - Sofia (from 2008 to 2016), and former head of the department "Organization and Economics of Pharmacy" at the Faculty of Pharmacy of the Medical University.

Prof. Petrova is an external expert with the International Society for Pharmacoeconomics and Outcomes Research. She is a guest lecturer at the University of Nantes (France), the University of Belgrade (Serbia), the University of Sarajevo and the University of Banja Luka (Bosnia and Herzegovina), and Carol Davila University of Bucharest (Romania).

In 2010, Prof. Petrova was among the founders of the Bulgarian Association for Drug Information.

Prof. Petrova has authored more than 400 publications in refereed and indexed journals and 15 monographs and textbooks.

Assoc. Prof. Dr. Oguzhan Bilgin

Ankara Haci Bayram Veli University (Ankara, Turkey)

Oguzhan Bilgin received the BSc. and M.Sc. degrees in Social Science from Middle East Technical University, Ankara, Türkiye, in 2007 and 2010. He obtained his Ph.D. degree in Political Science from the University of York, York, U.K., in 2015. He is currently with the Department of Sociology, Ankara Hacı Bayram Veli University, Türkiye. He is an author of several refereed journal and conference papers. Dr. Oğuzhan Bilgin works on subjects such as Political Sociology, Cultural Sociology, Modernization, Social



Change, Turkish Political Life, Cultural Policies. He participated in many television programs; His articles and interviews have been published in newspapers and magazines. He is currently working as a full-time Associate Professor.



TIEM 2023 PROGRAMME

Friday, December 1, 2023

Conference Opening

Prof. Dr. Fuat Sezgin Conference Hall (Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Central Campus)

09:00 - 10:00	Registration and Tea/Coffee Service		
		Assoc. Prof. Dr. Selahattin Kosunalp – Conference Chairman	
10:00 - 11:00	Opening Ceremony	Prof. Dr. Grigor Yordanov Mihaylov – Conference Chairman	
		Prof. Dr. Suleyman Ozdemir – Rector of Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University	
		Prof. Dr. Miglena Temelkova – Rector of University of Telecommunications and Post	
		Prof. Dr. Ali Savas Bulbul – Vice Rector of Bayburt University	
		Prof. Dr. Mohd Nizar Hamidon – Director of Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology of Universiti Putra Malaysia	
11:00 - 12:30	Opening Session	Magnetodielectric Materials for Flexible Patch Antenna in IoT Invited Speaker – Prof. Dr. Mohd Nizar Hamidon (Onsite)	
		Achieving Line-of-Sight Communications Through Reconfigurable Intelligent Surfaces	
		Invited Speaker – Prof. Dr. Ali Emre Pusane (Online)	
		Management and Self-Confidence: Overcoming Barriers in Turkish Energy and IT Sectors	
		Invited Speaker – Assoc. Prof. Dr. Oguzhan Bilgin (Online)	
		Recent Trends in Underwater Acoustic Communication and Networking	
		Invited Speaker – Prof. Dr. Paul Daniel Mitchell (Online)	
12:30 - 14:00		Lunch (Bandırma Onyedi Eylül University Dining Hall)	

Onsite Session

Prof. Dr.	Fuat Sezgin	Conference I	Hall (Band	lirma Onyedi	i Eylul U	University,	Central Campus)
	-0	9	· ·	~	2		1 /

	Onsite Session – 1 Head of Session: Prof. Dr. Grigor Yordanov Mihaylov
	Wideband Local Antennas Alignment for 890-960 MHz Band Stanimir Sadinov [*] , Miroslav Tomov, Boyan Karapenev
14:00 - 15:00	Limb Tremor Measurement through Wearable Units Mehmet Akif Alper [*] , Turgut Ozturk
	Performance Analyses of a Two-Stage Quadrature RC Generator with Three Integrators Boyan Karapenev [*] , Stanimir Sadinov

	Development of the Microwave Planar Sensor to Characterize Materials with Respect to Material Energy Level <i>Turgut Ozturk, Mehmet Akif Alper</i> *
	The Effect of the Environment on Performances of Precast Concrete by Solar Energy of the Taksebt Dam <i>Ben Khadda Ben Ammar</i> [*]
	THz Metamaterial Absorber Design with Dual-Band and High Absorption Rate <i>Yunus Kaya</i> *
15:00 - 15:15	Tea/Coffee Break

Online Sessions

Virtual Hall

Online Session – 1		
Head of Session: Prof. Dr. Mohd Nizar Hamidon		
15:15 – 16:15	Fabrication of Patch Antenna Utilizing CNT-Ferrite Nanocomposite as Magnetic- Conductive Material Intan Helina Hasan [*] , Mohd Nizar Hamidon, Ismayadi Ismail, Yunus Kaya	
	Design of Vivaldi Antenna for Wideband Applications Ali Turgut Kizilcik [*] , Ugur Cem Hasar, Hamdullah Ozturk	
	Investigation of River Flow Characteristics Using Internet of Things towards Prediction of River Surge (Kepala Air) Irdina Ridwana Roszaimi, Nursarafina Nadhia Abd Malek, Alyani Ismail [*]	
	Evaluation of Blowfish Encyrption Algorithm on Transport-Triggered Architecture	
	Critical Requirements of Wireless Technologies for Real-time Voice Transmission in Above-Water Environments: A Comparative Study of NB-IoT, LTE, and 5G <i>Amirun Fahim Faizul Haiza, Alyani Ismail</i> *	
	Comparative Analysis of Differential Privacy over Multiple Data Sets Refik Can Oztas [*] , Bulent Tugrul	
16:15 - 16:30	Tea/Coffee Break	
Online Session – 2 Head of Session: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Selahattin Kosunalp		
16:30 – 17:30	A Descriptive Survey of Metaverse-Related Studies in the Literature Nazmiye Eliguzel [*]	
	Scalogram Based Spoken Digit Classification via Deep Learning Mustafa Alptekin Engin [*] , Latif Akcay	
	Imperials vs. Rebellions: An Analogical Comparison of Fear of Missing Out and	

	Joy of Missing Out Fatih Sahin [*]
	An Intelligent Support System for Online Learners in Difficulty Ali Seridi [*] , Yamina Bordjiba, Riad Bourbia
	Data Augmentation Effect on Facial Expression Recognition Using Deep Learning Models Yamina Bordjiba [*] , Ali Seridi, Nabiha Azizi, Hayat Farida Merouani, Saber Mehammedia
	Simple Structured and Easily Realizable Triple-Band Metamaterial Absorber Design Yunus Kaya [*] , Ugur Cem Hasar
17:30 - 19:00	Free Time
19:00	Dinner (Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University Erdek Practice Hotel Restaurant)

Saturday, December 2, 2023

Online Sessions

Virtual Hall

Online Session – 3		
	Head of Session: Assist. Prof. Dr. Mustafa Alptekin Engin	
08:45 - 09:45	Comparison of Coverage Map of Different Terrain Type Ugur Erbas, Md Abdullah Al Imran, Mehmet Baris Tabakcioglu [*]	
	Electromagnetic Shielding Performance of Some Bayburt Stone Based Materials Ugur Erbas, Ilker Tekin, Mehmet Baris Tabakcioglu [*] , Enes Yigit	
	Digital Twin Application in Laser Cutting Machines Ugur Karanfil, Esra Yalcin [*]	
	A RCS Reduction Method Using the Air-Based Anisotropic Metasurface Polarization Converter <i>Fatih Tutar[*]</i> , <i>Gokhan Ozturk, Rıdvan Tokyurek</i>	
	The Effects of Electromagnetic Fields on Human Health and Occupational Safety <i>Mustafa Ozdemir</i> *	
	CSI Signals and Motion Analysis	
	Veysel Tilegi, Emir Enes Tas [*] , Soner Can Erhan	
09:45 - 10:00	Break	
Online Session – 4		
	Head of Session: Vladimir Bronfenbrenner	
10:00 - 10:20	Policies in the Field of Interdisciplinarity and Resource Sharing in Higher Education in Bulgaria	

	Invited Speaker – Prof. Dr. Genka Petrova
	An Extension of the Ignite UI for Angular Library for Accelerating the Design of Web-Based Applications Pavlinka Radoyska [*] , Riva Ivanova
	Main Features of the Digital Transformation of Higher Education Vihra Dimitrova [*]
	Basic Systematization of Nuances (Aspects) for Understanding Human Factors Pressure in Workplace Differences Ivaylo Stoyanov [*]
10:20 - 12:45	Impact of Cyberbullying on the Behavior and Performance of Employees: An Empirical Study in Telecommunication Services Companies in Republic of Bulgaria <i>Ivaylo Stoyanov</i> [*] , <i>Gergana Dimcheva</i>
	Improving the Email Software Security by Identifying the Attacker Tools and Techniques Falak Hasan [*] , Mariana Petrova
	Brief Analysis of Key Aspects of the Digital Workplace Vihra Dimitrova [*]
	Navigating the Legal Landscape of Rapid AI Development in European Union Dragan Stankovski [*]
	Agile Automation: Enhancing Telecommunication Management through AI- Driven Strategies
	Dragan Stankovski , Dimitar Kadev, Ognyan Feljov, Boyko Ganchev
12:45 - 13:00	вгеак

Onsite Session

Prof. Dr. Fuat Sezgin Conference Hall (Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Central Campus)

Onsite Session – 2			
Head of Session: Vladimir Bronfenbrenner			
	Ensuring and Improving Communications During Crises Caused by Natural Disasters or Mass Events <i>Todor Gospodinov</i> [*]		
13:00 - 14:30	Challenges and Solutions for Resilient Transport in the Era of New Environmental Requirements Antoaneta Kirova [*]		
	Individual Time in the Context of Artificial Intelligence Liubov Ilieva*		
	Evaluating the Machine Learning Techniques for Classification of Rice Variety		

	Fatime Nur Khalili [*]
	Image Segmentation of Satellite Imagery with U-Net Convolutional Neural Network for Floods Detection Denis Byalev [*] , Egnar Ozdikililer
	Short Overview of Software Architectural Models Chavdar Marinov [*] , Egnar Ozdikililer, Pavlinka Radoyska
	Vulnerabilities Testing in Real-Time Wi-Fi Network Ivan Ivanov, Maya Atanasova [*]
	Classification of Fire-Affected Areas with Satellite Data and a Multi-Layered Neural Network <i>Irina Topalova</i> [*] , <i>Lyubena Nacheva</i>
	The Harms and Benefits of Uncensored AI Used for Data Breach and Data Security Mariyana Dimitrova [*] , Ivan Ivanov
14:30 - 14:45	Break

Online Sessions

Virtual Hall

Online Session – 5		
	Head of Session: Assist. Prof. Dr. Erman Kadir Oztekin	
	Calculation of the Thickness of Pressure Hydraulic Pipes Volkan Nuri Yilmaz [*]	
	Tire Pressure Monitoring System for Semi-Trailers Mehmet Vurgun [*]	
	Effect of Roof Rail Geometry Variation on Trailer Aerodynamic Drag Coefficient Onur Can Kirit [*] , Mehmet Vurgun	
14:45 – 15:45	Usage of Axle Stoppers and Design Modification in Semi-Trailer Vehicles Gokay Gurbuz [*] , Onur Can Kirit	
	Effect of Changing the g/b Ratio on the Aerodynamic Drag Coefficient in Simplified Truck-Trailer Geometry Onur Can Kirit [*]	
	A THz Metamaterial Based Linear and Circular Polarization Converter <i>Fatih Kadiroglu, Gokhan Ozturk</i> [*]	
15:45 - 16:00	Break	
Online Session – 6		
	Head of Session: Assist. Prof. Dr. Erman Kadir Oztekin	
16:00 - 17:00	EN 12642 Load Securing (Code XL) Annex-A Static Test with Aluminum and	

	Composite Side Profile Gokay Gurbuz [*] , Yusuf Can Bulut
	Improvement of Arms of the Side Protection, Weight Reduction, and Minimization of Welding Operations <i>Omer Coskun*, Onur Can Kirit, Mehmet Vurgun</i>
	Reverse Maneuver Technology and Vehicle Safety for Secure Transportation with Semi-Trailers <i>Gokay Gurbuz</i> *
	Aluminum Tanker Design and Improvement of ECR 111 Regulation Akin Zengin, Mustafa Yilmaz, Resul Akcali [*]
	Effect of Iron Diffusion on Fluidity in Casting of A356 Aluminum Alloy Melek Durmus, Murat Colak, Emin Uslu [*] , Mehmet Gavgali
	Investigation of the Effect of Using Scrap at Different Ratios on Liquid Metal Quality in Casting of A356 Aluminium Alloys <i>Mehmet Tokatli, Emin Uslu</i> [*] , <i>Murat Colak</i>
17:00 - 17:15	Break
	Online Session – 7 Head of Session: Dr. Ismayadi Ismail
	EMI/EMC Tests for Shelters: Safeguarding Against Electromagnetic Interference Okan Dinc [*] , Ramazan Furkan Koca
17:15 – 18:15	Malaysian Public Perception on Health Effects of 5G Electromagnetic Field (EMF) Emissions Alyani Ismail [*] , Akmar Hayati Ahmad Ghazali, Aduwati Sali, Nadiah Husseini Zainol Abidin, Nurul Adilah Abdul Latiff
	Sign-Ambiguity-Free Extraction of Permittivity of Materials from Reference- Invariant Expressions Ugur Cem Hasar [*] , Yunus Kaya
	Synergistic Use of Optical and Synthetic Aperture Radar Data for Improving Land Cover Classification: A Case Study for Munich <i>Mustafa Ustuner</i> *
	mTTTbot: Multiple Style Table Tennis Trainer & Ball Launcher Robot Mustafa Tasci [*]
	Dual-Band and Wide-Angle Metamaterial Absorber Design for C- and X-Band Microwave Applications <i>Yunus Kaya[*]</i> , Ugur Cem Hasar
18:15 - 18:30	Break
	Online Session – 8
	Head of Session: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Yunus Kaya

	Design and Implementation of 2.5 GHz Microstrip Patch Antenna
	Suresh Dixit [*] , Karan Revankar
	Development of Flexible and Ferrite Film Microstrip Patch Antenna
	Suresh Dixit [*] , Karan Revankar
	Recommendations on the Biological Effects of Electromagnetic Waves
18.20 10.20	Bishal Gurung [*] , Indra Mani
18.30 - 19.30	Modeling and Simulation of a DC-CD Converter with PID Controller
	Sangeeta Kumari, Anita Choudhary, Bishal Gurung [*] , Indra Mani
	PWM Wave Generator Design with a Simple Approach
	Bishal Gurung [*] , Sangeeta Kumari, Anita Choudhary
	Design of a 20 kW Wind Turbine
	Abderrezak Cherana [*]
19:30 - 19:45	Break
	Online Session – 9
	Head of Session: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Selahattin Kosunalp
	Basic Components of Internet of Things (IoT) Architecture and a New
	Architectural Design
	Mohamed Laouer [*] , Mohammed Amroune
	Internet of Things (IoT) Current Studies and Today's Applications
	Mohammed Amroune [*]
	Forward-Looking Recommendations in Global Education: Equality, Technology and Human-Centered Approaches
19:45 - 20:45	Hamide Basha [*]
	Obstacles to Effective Communication and Recommendations
	Hamide Basha [*]
	Leadership Challenges and Rules for Overcoming Obstacles: Tips for Strong Leadership
	Nurul Alias [*] , Talhi Khodja
	The Leader's Role in Innovation: Encouraging and Moving Creativity Forward
	Nurul Alias [*] , Talhi Khodja

Sunday, December 3, 2023

Online Sessions

Virtual Hall

	Online Session – 10
	Head of Session: Dr. Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani
09:00 - 10:00	Enhancing Microwave Absorbing Materials Efficiency: Carbon Nanofiber-Mill

	Scale Hybrid for Broadband Electromagnetic Absorption	
	Ismayadi Ismail [*] , Intan Helina Hasan, Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani, Mohd Nizar	
	Hamidon, Mehmet Ertugrul	
	Carbon Black Electrospun Nanofiber Produced via Electrospinning Method	
	Mohd Ali hin Mat Nong [*] Che Azurahanim Che Abdullah Juraina Md Yusof	
	Ismayadi Ismail. Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani. Intan Helina Hasan	
	Optimizing Environmentally Friendly Drilling Fluid Performance under High-	
	Pressure High-Temperature Conditions through Carbon Nanomaterials	
	Sili Zulaika Kazali , Koolan Tunus, Juraina Ma Tusoj, Ismayaal Ismail, G.	
	Ghani	
	Methylene Blue Adsorption on Composites of Activated Carbon and Sodium	
	Alginale Fatima Ezzabra Vaacoubi [*] Chaima Sakkouri Imad Rabichi Zaina Izabri	
	Abdelaziz Bacaoui Abdelrani Yaacoubi	
	Enhancing Phosphorus Removal Efficiency through Lanthanum Modified Biochar	
	Nali Amara	
	Analysis of Inaccurate Information of Sample Holder Thickness in Determining	
	Electromagnetic Properties of Soil Samples	
	Hafize Hasar', Ugur Cem Hasar, Yunus Kaya	
10:00 - 10:15	Break	
Online Session – 11		
	Online Session – 11	
	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan	
	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates	
	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches	
	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili</i> [*] , <i>Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i>	
	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili</i> [*] , <i>Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i> Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to	
	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili</i> [*] , <i>Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i> Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat	
	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili</i> [*] , <i>Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i> Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat <i>Suriya Kumari Ramiah</i> [*]	
	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili</i> [*] , <i>Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i> Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat <i>Suriya Kumari Ramiah</i> [*]	
	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili*, Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i> Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat <i>Suriya Kumari Ramiah*</i> Development of a Simple, Cheap, and High-Sensitivity Metamaterial Sensor Concept	
10:15 - 11:15	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili</i> *, <i>Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i> Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat <i>Suriya Kumari Ramiah</i> * Development of a Simple, Cheap, and High-Sensitivity Metamaterial Sensor Concept <i>Yunus Kaya</i> *, <i>Ugur Cem Hasar</i>	
10:15 – 11:15	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili[*], Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i> Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat <i>Suriya Kumari Ramiah[*]</i> Development of a Simple, Cheap, and High-Sensitivity Metamaterial Sensor Concept <i>Yunus Kaya[*], Ugur Cem Hasar</i>	
10:15 – 11:15	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili</i> *, <i>Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i> Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat <i>Suriya Kumari Ramiah</i> * Development of a Simple, Cheap, and High-Sensitivity Metamaterial Sensor Concept <i>Yunus Kaya</i> *, <i>Ugur Cem Hasar</i> Current Challenges and Potential of High-Performance Supercapacitors Derived- Metal-Organic Frameworks	
10:15 – 11:15	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili</i> *, <i>Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i> Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat <i>Suriya Kumari Ramiah</i> * Development of a Simple, Cheap, and High-Sensitivity Metamaterial Sensor Concept <i>Yunus Kaya</i> *, <i>Ugur Cem Hasar</i> Current Challenges and Potential of High-Performance Supercapacitors Derived- Metal-Organic Frameworks <i>Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani</i> *. <i>Ismayadi Ismail Josenhine Ying Chvi Liew Umer</i>	
10:15 – 11:15	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili*, Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i> Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat <i>Suriya Kumari Ramiah*</i> Development of a Simple, Cheap, and High-Sensitivity Metamaterial Sensor Concept <i>Yunus Kaya*, Ugur Cem Hasar</i> Current Challenges and Potential of High-Performance Supercapacitors Derived- Metal-Organic Frameworks <i>Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani*, Ismayadi Ismail, Josephine Ying Chyi Liew, Umer</i> <i>Rashid, Balkis Hazmi, Ruey Shan Chen, Kyle E. Cordova</i>	
10:15 – 11:15	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches Faycal Mili*, Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat Suriya Kumari Ramiah* Development of a Simple, Cheap, and High-Sensitivity Metamaterial Sensor Concept Yunus Kaya*, Ugur Cem Hasar Current Challenges and Potential of High-Performance Supercapacitors Derived- Metal-Organic Frameworks Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani*, Ismayadi Ismail, Josephine Ying Chyi Liew, Umer Rashid, Balkis Hazmi, Ruey Shan Chen, Kyle E. Cordova Synthesis and Luminescent Properties of Eu ³⁺ doped LusWQc Red Phosphore	
10:15 – 11:15	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili*, Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i> Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat <i>Suriya Kumari Ramiah*</i> Development of a Simple, Cheap, and High-Sensitivity Metamaterial Sensor Concept <i>Yunus Kaya*, Ugur Cem Hasar</i> Current Challenges and Potential of High-Performance Supercapacitors Derived- Metal-Organic Frameworks <i>Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani*, Ismayadi Ismail, Josephine Ying Chyi Liew, Umer Rashid, Balkis Hazmi, Ruey Shan Chen, Kyle E. Cordova</i> Synthesis and Luminescent Properties of Eu ³⁺ doped Lu ₂ WO ₆ Red Phosphors <i>Amar Khelfane*, Rafik Aba, Abdelmounaim Chetoui Mourad Derbal Metab</i>	
10:15 – 11:15	Online Session – 11 Head of Session: Dr. Intan Helina Hasan Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili</i> *, <i>Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i> Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat <i>Suriya Kumari Ramiah</i> * Development of a Simple, Cheap, and High-Sensitivity Metamaterial Sensor Concept <i>Yunus Kaya</i> *, <i>Ugur Cem Hasar</i> Current Challenges and Potential of High-Performance Supercapacitors Derived- Metal-Organic Frameworks <i>Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani</i> *, <i>Ismayadi Ismail, Josephine Ying Chyi Liew, Umer Rashid, Balkis Hazmi, Ruey Shan Chen, Kyle E. Cordova</i> Synthesis and Luminescent Properties of Eu ³⁺ doped Lu ₂ WO ₆ Red Phosphors <i>Amar Khelfane</i> *, <i>Rafik Aba, Abdelmounaim Chetoui, Mourad Derbal, Meftah</i> <i>Tablaoui, Lakhdar Guerbous, Mohamed Issam Ziane</i>	

	Analysing Malaysian Technology Sector Using Minimum Spanning Tree: A Case of COVID 19
	Zurita Ismail [*] , Masnida Hussin, Hafizah Bahaluddin
11:15 - 11:30	Break
	Online Session – 12
	Head of Session: Assist. Prof. Dr. Galip Yilmaz
11:30 - 12:30	Evaluation of ZnO Nanostructures Growth on Carbon Nanotubes Cotton Juraina Md Yusof [*] , Ismayadi Ismail, Rahimi M Yusop, Mohd Ali Mat Nong, Siti Zulaika Razali
	Efficient Wastewater Disinfection through Hydroxide Sludge/Hydrochar Composite-Mediated Photo-Fenton Reaction Zaina Izghri [*] , Chaima Sekkouri, Fatima Ezzahra Yaacoubi, Imad Rabichi, Layla El Gaini, Abdelaziz Bacaoui, Abdelrani Yaacoubi
	Repurposing Elastomeric Tubular Membranes and Nanostructured Adhesive Films for Triboelectric Nanogenerators <i>Galip Yilmaz</i> *
	Size Separation and Bulk Densification Analysis of UHMWPE Powder Under Vibration Galip Yilmaz*
	Stochastic Optimization in Renewable Energy Systems: A Comprehensive Literature Review <i>Gurkan Guven Guner</i> *
	New Permittivity-Moisture Curve for Moisture Evaluation within Soil Samples Hafize Hasar [*] , Ugur Cem Hasar, Yunus Kaya
12:30 - 12:45	Break
	Online Session – 13 Head of Session: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Selahattin Kosunalp
12:45 – 13:45	Evaluation of Passive Radiator Structures in Low-Frequency Radio Astronomy Arrays from the Perspective of Active Antenna Design Methods <i>Mertcan Altikardesler</i> [*] , <i>Salih Mehmed Bostan</i>
	Analysing Eastern Anatolian Region Food Recipes with Graph Database Selin Irmak Akpinar [*] , Yunus Emre Sepetci, Bulent Tugrul
	Motion Prediction Classification for Wall-Following Robot Navigation Nazlican Cavli [*] , Nisa Koban, Emrah Benli, Ayten Atasoy
	Fixed Point Results of Generalized (ϕ, ψ) -Contractive Mappings in Ordered Non-Newtonian Metric Spaces Demet Binbasioglu [*]
	Activated Carbon-Based Adsorbent for Hydrogen Purification

	Seda Tiras [*] , Bilge Coskuner Filiz, Aysel Kanturk Figen
	Finding the Density of a Closed or Open System at Time <i>t</i> with Eigenvalues and Eigenvectors <i>Ramazan Simsek</i> [*]
13:45 - 14:00	Break
	Online Session – 14 Head of Session: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Selahattin Kosunalp
	The Use of Eye-Tracking Technology in Education Mehmet Donmez [*]
	Linguistic Summarization for Higher Education Institutions in the Context of Sustainable Development Goals: Analysis of THE Impact Ranking Results Fatma Sener Fidan [*] , Sena Aydogan
	Play to Earn Web 3.0: The Future of Gaming and Marketing <i>Fatih Sahin</i> *
14:00 - 15:00	Artificial Intelligence in Marketing: Content Analysis of Web of Science Indexed Papers Mahmut Selami Akın*
	Entrepreneurship and Management Roles in Wealth Creation Chief Irukwu Onwuka [*] , Chinenyenwa Marycynthia Obieze, Veena Chiamaka Ezenagu, Tracy Christopher, Marvelous Oluchi Onwuka, Great Irukwu Onwuka
	Analysis of Occupational Accidents in the Electricity Generation, Transmission, and Distribution Sector in Turkey
	Mustafa Ozdemir [*]
15:00 - 15:15	Break
	Online Session – 15 Head of Session: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Bora Goktas
15:15 – 16:15	The Mediating Role of Trust in Social Media in the Effect of Influencers on Consumers' Purchasing Actions <i>Bora Goktas</i> *
	The Effect of Advergame (Game Advertising) Applications on Social Networks on Hedonic Consumption <i>Meysure Evren Celik Suticer</i> *
	The Relationship Between Personal Branding and Leadership Metaphor in Digital Innovation <i>Yusuf Esmer</i> [*] , <i>Adnan Kara</i>
	Transition to the Circular Economy in the European Union: Is It Really Ready? <i>Fatma Unlu</i> *

	Notes Concerning 2x2 Type Quaternion Matrices Ramazan Simsek*
16:15 - 16:30	Break
	Online Session – 16
	Head of Session: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Yusuf Esmer
	Digital Entrepreneurship Training: E-Learning Platforms and Training Programs for University Students <i>Adnan Kara, Yusuf Esmer</i> *
	The Effect of the Freudian Subconscious on Purchasing Behavior towards Materialistic Values Bora Goktas [*] , Seyran Cinar
16:30 - 17:20	Postmodern Language and Discourse: The Example of Ekşi Sözlük Nihal Kocaaga, Ensar Lokmanoglu [*]
	Measuring the Industry 4.0 Awareness Level of Students in the Field of Engineering and Information Systems
	Sumeyye Selvi, Cagatay Teke [*]
	Cyprus Issue and Its Effect on Turkey–European Relations
	Ergin Kosunalp*
17:20 - 17:30	Break
	Online Session – 17
	Head of Session: Assist. Prof. Dr. Erman Kadir Öztekin
	Temperature Analysis with MATLAB PDE Toolbox
	Abderrezak Cherana [*]
	Researching the Appropriate Connection Type in the Tower Crane System with Finite Element Analysis
	Abderrezak Cherana [*]
	World Energy Efficiency: Current Status and Strategic Approaches for the Future
	Jamel Titouhi, Saber Bouhdjeur [*]
17.20 10.00	Wind Energy, Research on Wind Potential in the World and Tunisia
17.30 - 19.00	Saber Bouhdjeur [*] , Mohamed Nadir, Abderrahim Amrane
	Energy Solutions for a Sustainable Future: Geothermal Energy
	Mohamed Nadir [*] , Saber Bouhdjeur, Abderrahim Amrane
	Renewable Energy Sources: Global Situation and Future Potentials
	Abderrahim Amrane [*] , Mohamed Nadir, Saber Bouhdjeur
	Development of Management Strategy in Universities
	Chief Irukwu Onwuka [*]
	Urban, Rural, and Regional Economy: Recommendations for Integration and

Sustainable Development
Nazean Ghazali [*]
Managing the Conflicts in International Joint Ventures: Prevent or Resolve Them
Tchetin Kazak [*]

CONTENTS

Invited Speaker	
Magnetodielectric Materials for Flexible Patch Antenna in IoT Mohd Nizar Hamidon	1
Achieving Line-of-Sight Communications Through Reconfigurable Intelligent Surfaces Ali Emre Pusane	2
Management and Self-Confidence: Overcoming Barriers in Turkish Energy and IT Sectors Oguzhan Bilgin	3
Recent Trends in Underwater Acoustic Communication and Networking Paul Daniel Mitchell	4
Policies in the Field of Interdisciplinarity and Resource Sharing in Higher Education in Bulgaria Genka Petrova	5
Oral Presentations	
Wideband Local Antennas Alignment for 890-960 MHz Band Stanimir Sadinov, Miroslav Tomov, Boyan Karapenev	6
Limb Tremor Measurement through Wearable Units Mehmet Akif Alper, Turgut Ozturk	12
Performance Analyses of a Two-Stage Quadrature RC Generator with Three Integrators Boyan Karapenev, Stanimir Sadinov	13
Development of the Microwave Planar Sensor to Characterize Materials with Respect to Material Energy Level <i>Turgut Ozturk, Mehmet Akif Alper</i>	20
The Effect of the Environment on Performances of Precast Concrete by Solar Energy of the Taksebt Dam Ben Khadda Ben Ammar	21
THz Metamaterial Absorber Design with Dual-Band and High Absorption Rate <i>Yunus Kaya</i>	22
Fabrication of Patch Antenna Utilizing CNT-Ferrite Nanocomposite as Magnetic-Conductive Material <i>Intan Helina Hasan, Mohd Nizar Hamidon, Ismayadi Ismail, Yunus Kaya</i>	26
Design of Vivaldi Antenna for Wideband Applications Ali Turgut Kizilcik, Ugur Cem Hasar, Hamdullah Ozturk	27
Investigation of River Flow Characteristics Using Internet of Things towards Prediction of River Surge (Kepala Air) Irdina Ridwana Roszaimi, Nursarafina Nadhia Abd Malek, Alvani Ismail	28
Evaluation of Blowfish Encyrption Algorithm on Transport-Triggered Architecture Latif Akcay, Mustafa Alptekin Engin	29

Critical Requirements of Wireless Technologies for Real-time Voice Transmission in Above- Water Environments: A Comparative Study of NB-IoT, LTE, and 5G <i>Amirun Fahim Faizul Haiza, Alyani Ismail</i>	34
Comparative Analysis of Differential Privacy over Multiple Data Sets Refik Can Oztas, Bulent Tugrul	35
A Descriptive Survey of Metaverse-Related Studies in the Literature Nazmiye Eliguzel	40
Scalogram Based Spoken Digit Classification via Deep Learning Mustafa Alptekin Engin, Latif Akcay	58
Imperials vs. Rebellions: An Analogical Comparison of Fear of Missing Out and Joy of Missing Out Out Fatih Sahin	63
An Intelligent Support System for Online Learners in Difficulty Ali Seridi, Yamina Bordjiba, Riad Bourbia	72
Data Augmentation Effect on Facial Expression Recognition Using Deep Learning Models Yamina Bordjiba, Ali Seridi, Nabiha Azizi, Hayat Farida Merouani, Saber Mehammedia	73
Simple Structured and Easily Realizable Triple-Band Metamaterial Absorber Design Yunus Kaya, Ugur Cem Hasar	74
Comparison of Coverage Map of Different Terrain Type Ugur Erbas, Md Abdullah Al Imran, Mehmet Baris Tabakcioglu	78
Electromagnetic Shielding Performance of Some Bayburt Stone Based Materials Ugur Erbas, Ilker Tekin, Mehmet Baris Tabakcioglu, Enes Yigit	84
Digital Twin Application in Laser Cutting Machines Ugur Karanfil, Esra Yalcin	89
A RCS Reduction Method Using the Air-Based Anisotropic Metasurface Polarization Converter Fatih Tutar, Gokhan Ozturk, Rıdvan Tokyurek	90
The Effects of Electromagnetic Fields on Human Health and Occupational Safety Mustafa Ozdemir	97
CSI Signals and Motion Analysis Veysel Tilegi, Emir Enes Tas, Soner Can Erhan	102
An Extension of the Ignite UI for Angular Library for Accelerating the Design of Web-Based Applications Pavlinka Radoyska, Riva Ivanova	103
Main Features of the Digital Transformation of Higher Education Vihra Dimitrova	110
Basic Systematization of Nuances (Aspects) for Understanding Human Factors Pressure in Workplace Differences	118

Ivaylo Stoyanov

Impact of Cyberbullying on the Behavior and Performance of Employees: An Empirical Study in Telecommunication Services Companies in Republic of Bulgaria <i>Ivaylo Stoyanov, Gergana Dimcheva</i>	124
Improving the Email Software Security by Identifying the Attacker Tools and Techniques Falak Hasan, Mariana Petrova	131
Brief Analysis of Key Aspects of the Digital Workplace Vihra Dimitrova	136
Navigating the Legal Landscape of Rapid AI Development in European Union Dragan Stankovski	143
Agile Automation: Enhancing Telecommunication Management through AI-Driven Strategies Dragan Stankovski, Dimitar Radev, Ognyan Fetfov, Boyko Ganchev	150
Ensuring and Improving Communications During Crises Caused by Natural Disasters or Mass Events <i>Todor Gospodinov</i>	156
Challenges and Solutions for Resilient Transport in the Era of New Environmental Requirements Antoaneta Kirova	168
Individual Time in the Context of Artificial Intelligence Liubov Ilieva	169
Evaluating the Machine Learning Techniques for Classification of Rice Variety <i>Fatime Nur Khalili</i>	173
Image Segmentation of Satellite Imagery with U-Net Convolutional Neural Network for Floods Detection Denis Byalev, Egnar Ozdikililer	174
Short Overview of Software Architectural Models Chavdar Marinov, Egnar Ozdikililer, Pavlinka Radoyska	179
Vulnerabilities Testing in Real-Time Wi-Fi Network Ivan Ivanov, Maya Atanasova	185
Classification of Fire-Affected Areas with Satellite Data and a Multi-Layered Neural Network Irina Topalova, Lyubena Nacheva	191
The Harms and Benefits of Uncensored AI Used for Data Breach and Data Security <i>Mariyana Dimitrova, Ivan Ivanov</i>	196
Calculation of the Thickness of Pressure Hydraulic Pipes Volkan Nuri Yilmaz	204
Tire Pressure Monitoring System for Semi-Trailers Mehmet Vurgun	208

8 th International Scientific Conference "Telecommunications, Informatics, Energy and Management" TIEM December December	2023 er 1-3
Effect of Roof Rail Geometry Variation on Trailer Aerodynamic Drag Coefficient Onur Can Kirit, Mehmet Vurgun	214
Usage of Axle Stoppers and Design Modification in Semi-Trailer Vehicles Gokay Gurbuz, Onur Can Kirit	219
Effect of Changing the g/b Ratio on the Aerodynamic Drag Coefficient in Simplified Truck- Trailer Geometry <i>Onur Can Kirit</i>	224
A THz Metamaterial Based Linear and Circular Polarization Converter Fatih Kadiroglu, Gokhan Ozturk	228
EN 12642 Load Securing (Code XL) Annex-A Static Test with Aluminum and Composite Side Profile Gokay Gurbuz, Yusuf Can Bulut	232
Improvement of Arms of the Side Protection, Weight Reduction, and Minimization of Welding Operations <i>Omer Coskun, Onur Can Kirit, Mehmet Vurgun</i>	237
Reverse Maneuver Technology and Vehicle Safety for Secure Transportation with Semi-Trailers Gokay Gurbuz	241
Aluminum Tanker Design and Improvement of ECR 111 Regulation Akin Zengin, Mustafa Yilmaz, Resul Akcali	245
Effect of Iron Diffusion on Fluidity in Casting of A356 Aluminum Alloy Melek Durmus, Murat Colak, Emin Uslu, Mehmet Gavgali	251
Investigation of the Effect of Using Scrap at Different Ratios on Liquid Metal Quality in Casting of A356 Aluminium Alloys <i>Mehmet Tokatli, Emin Uslu, Murat Colak</i>	258
EMI/EMC Tests for Shelters: Safeguarding Against Electromagnetic Interference Okan Dinc, Ramazan Furkan Koca	265
Malaysian Public Perception on Health Effects of 5G Electromagnetic Field (EMF) Emissions Alyani Ismail, Akmar Hayati Ahmad Ghazali, Aduwati Sali, Nadiah Husseini Zainol Abidin, Nurul Adilah Abdul Latiff	270
Sign-Ambiguity-Free Extraction of Permittivity of Materials from Reference-Invariant Expressions <i>Ugur Cem Hasar, Yunus Kaya</i>	271
Synergistic Use of Optical and Synthetic Aperture Radar Data for Improving Land Cover Classification: A Case Study for Munich <i>Mustafa Ustuner</i>	275
mTTTbot: Multiple Style Table Tennis Trainer & Ball Launcher Robot Mustafa Tasci	276
Dual-Band and Wide-Angle Metamaterial Absorber Design for C- and X-Band Microwave	285

Applications Yunus Kaya, Ugur Cem Hasar	
Design and Implementation of 2.5 GHz Microstrip Patch Antenna Suresh Dixit, Karan Revankar	290
Development of Flexible and Ferrite Film Microstrip Patch Antenna Suresh Dixit, Karan Revankar	291
Recommendations on the Biological Effects of Electromagnetic Waves Bishal Gurung, Indra Mani	292
Modeling and Simulation of a DC-CD Converter with PID Controller Sangeeta Kumari, Anita Choudhary, Bishal Gurung, Indra Mani	293
PWM Wave Generator Design with a Simple Approach Bishal Gurung, Sangeeta Kumari, Anita Choudhary	294
Design of a 20 kW Wind Turbine Abderrezak Cherana	295
Basic Components of Internet of Things (IoT) Architecture and a New Architectural Design Mohamed Laouer, Mohammed Amroune	296
Internet of Things (IoT) Current Studies and Today's Applications Mohammed Amroune	297
Forward-Looking Recommendations in Global Education: Equality, Technology and Human- Centered Approaches Hamide Basha	298
Obstacles to Effective Communication and Recommendations Hamide Basha	299
Leadership Challenges and Rules for Overcoming Obstacles: Tips for Strong Leadership Nurul Alias, Talhi Khodja	300
The Leader's Role in Innovation: Encouraging and Moving Creativity Forward <i>Nurul Alias, Talhi Khodja</i>	301
Enhancing Microwave Absorbing Materials Efficiency: Carbon Nanofiber-Mill Scale Hybrid for Broadband Electromagnetic Absorption Ismayadi Ismail, Intan Helina Hasan, Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani, Mohd Nizar Hamidon, Mehmet Ertugrul	302
Carbon Black Electrospun Nanofiber Produced via Electrospinning Method Mohd Ali bin Mat Nong, Che Azurahanim Che Abdullah, Juraina Md Yusof, Ismayadi Ismail, Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani, Intan Helina Hasan	303
Optimizing Environmentally Friendly Drilling Fluid Performance under High-Pressure High- Temperature Conditions through Carbon Nanomaterials <i>Siti Zulaika Razali, Robiah Yunus, Juraina Md Yusof, Ismayadi Ismail, G. Abdulkareem-</i> <i>Alsultan, Umer Rashid, Norizah Abdul Rahman, Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani</i>	306

Methylene Blue Adsorption on Composites of Activated Carbon and Sodium Alginate Fatima Ezzahra Yaacoubi, Chaima Sekkouri, Imad Rabichi, Zaina Izghri, Abdelaziz Bacaoui, Abdelrani Yaacoubi	307
Enhancing Phosphorus Removal Efficiency through Lanthanum Modified Biochar Nail Amara	308
Analysis of Inaccurate Information of Sample Holder Thickness in Determining Electromagnetic Properties of Soil Samples <i>Hafize Hasar, Ugur Cem Hasar, Yunus Kaya</i>	309
Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches <i>Faycal Mili, Sarah Guenifa, Toufik Achour</i>	313
Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf- Life of Broiler Chicken Meat Suriya Kumari Ramiah	321
Development of a Simple, Cheap, and High-Sensitivity Metamaterial Sensor Concept Yunus Kaya, Ugur Cem Hasar	322
Current Challenges and Potential of High-Performance Supercapacitors Derived-Metal-Organic Frameworks Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani, Ismayadi Ismail, Josephine Ying Chyi Liew, Umer Rashid, Balkis Hazmi, Ruey Shan Chen, Kyle E. Cordova	326
Synthesis and Luminescent Properties of Eu3+ doped Lu2WO6 Red Phosphors Amar Khelfane, Rafik Aba, Abdelmounaim Chetoui, Mourad Derbal, Meftah Tablaoui, Lakhdar Guerbous, Mohamed Issam Ziane	327
Analysing Malaysian Technology Sector Using Minimum Spanning Tree: A Case of COVID 19 Zurita Ismail, Masnida Hussin, Hafizah Bahaluddin	328
Evaluation of ZnO Nanostructures Growth on Carbon Nanotubes Cotton Juraina Md Yusof, Ismayadi Ismail, Rahimi M Yusop, Mohd Ali Mat Nong, Siti Zulaika Razali	329
Efficient Wastewater Disinfection through Hydroxide Sludge/Hydrochar Composite-Mediated Photo-Fenton Reaction Zaina Izghri, Chaima Sekkouri, Fatima Ezzahra Yaacoubi, Imad Rabichi, Layla El Gaini, Abdelaziz Bacaoui, Abdelrani Yaacoubi	330
Repurposing Elastomeric Tubular Membranes and Nanostructured Adhesive Films for Triboelectric Nanogenerators <i>Galip Yilmaz</i>	331
Size Separation and Bulk Densification Analysis of UHMWPE Powder Under Vibration <i>Galip Yilmaz</i>	336
Stochastic Optimization in Renewable Energy Systems: A Comprehensive Literature Review <i>Gurkan Guven Guner</i>	342

8 th International Scientific Conference "Telecommunications, Informatics, Energy and Management" TIEN December December	/1 2023 per 1-3
New Permittivity-Moisture Curve for Moisture Evaluation within Soil Samples Hafize Hasar, Ugur Cem Hasar, Yunus Kaya	343
Evaluation of Passive Radiator Structures in Low-Frequency Radio Astronomy Arrays from the Perspective of Active Antenna Design Methods <i>Mertcan Altikardesler, Salih Mehmed Bostan</i>	344
Analysing Eastern Anatolian Region Food Recipes with Graph Database Selin Irmak Akpinar, Yunus Emre Sepetci, Bulent Tugrul	352
Motion Prediction Classification for Wall-Following Robot Navigation Nazlican Cavli, Nisa Koban, Emrah Benli, Ayten Atasoy	360
Fixed Point Results of Generalized (ϕ, ψ) -Contractive Mappings in Ordered Non-Newtonian Metric Spaces Demet Binbasioglu	365
Activated Carbon-Based Adsorbent for Hydrogen Purification Seda Tiras, Bilge Coskuner Filiz, Aysel Kanturk Figen	375
Finding the Density of a Closed or Open System at Time t with Eigenvalues and Eigenvectors <i>Ramazan Simsek</i>	376
The Use of Eye-Tracking Technology in Education Mehmet Donmez	384
Linguistic Summarization for Higher Education Institutions in the Context of Sustainable Development Goals: Analysis of THE Impact Ranking Results <i>Fatma Sener Fidan, Sena Aydogan</i>	388
Play to Earn Web 3.0: The Future of Gaming and Marketing <i>Fatih Sahin</i>	398
Artificial Intelligence in Marketing: Content Analysis of Web of Science Indexed Papers Mahmut Selami Akan	404
Entrepreneurship and Management Roles in Wealth Creation Chief Irukwu Onwuka, Chinenyenwa Marycynthia Obieze, Veena Chiamaka Ezenagu, Tracy Christopher, Marvelous Oluchi Onwuka, Great Irukwu Onwuka	416
Analysis of Occupational Accidents in the Electricity Generation, Transmission, and Distribution Sector in Turkey Mustafa Ozdemir	417
The Mediating Role of Trust in Social Media in the Effect of Influencers on Consumers' Purchasing Actions <i>Bora Goktas</i>	422
The Effect of Advergame (Game Advertising) Applications on Social Networks on Hedonic Consumption Meysure Evren Celik Suticer	427
The Relationship Between Personal Branding and Leadership Metaphor in Digital Innovation	428

Yusuf Esmer, Adnan Kara	
Transition to the Circular Economy in the European Union: Is It Really Ready? <i>Fatma Unlu</i>	433
Notes Concerning 2x2 Type Quaternion Matrices Ramazan Simsek	434
Digital Entrepreneurship Training: E-Learning Platforms and Training Programs for University Students Adnan Kara, Yusuf Esmer	435
The Effect of the Freudian Subconscious on Purchasing Behavior towards Materialistic Values Bora Goktas, Seyran Cinar	440
Postmodern Language and Discourse: The Example of Ekşi Sözlük Nihal Kocaaga, Ensar Lokmanoglu	444
Measuring the Industry 4.0 Awareness Level of Students in the Field of Engineering and Information Systems Sumeyye Selvi, Cagatay Teke	448
Cyprus Issue and Its Effect on Turkey–European Relations Ergin Kosunalp	455
Temperature Analysis with MATLAB PDE Toolbox Abderrezak Cherana	456
Researching the Appropriate Connection Type in the Tower Crane System with Finite Element Analysis <i>Abderrezak Cherana</i>	457
World Energy Efficiency: Current Status and Strategic Approaches for the Future Jamel Titouhi, Saber Bouhdjeur	458
Wind Energy, Research on Wind Potential in the World and Tunisia Saber Bouhdjeur, Mohamed Nadir, Abderrahim Amrane	459
Energy Solutions for a Sustainable Future: Geothermal Energy Mohamed Nadir, Saber Bouhdjeur, Abderrahim Amrane	460
Renewable Energy Sources: Global Situation and Future Potentials Abderrahim Amrane, Mohamed Nadir, Saber Bouhdjeur	461
Development of Management Strategy in Universities Chief Irukwu Onwuka	462
Urban, Rural, and Regional Economy: Recommendations for Integration and Sustainable Development Nazean Ghazali	463
Managing the Conflicts in International Joint Ventures: Prevent or Resolve Them <i>Tchetin Kazak</i>	464



Magnetodielectric Materials for Flexible Patch Antenna in IoT

Mohd Nizar Hamidon^{*1,2}

¹Universiti Putra Malaysia, Department of Electrical and Electronic Engineering, Selangor, Malaysia ²Universiti Putra Malaysia, Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology, Selangor, Malaysia

Abstract

Development of 5G and Internet of Things (IoT) is growing at an increasing rate depending on each other. As the Internet of Things, which is already a new technology revolution, becomes more available, there will be a huge increase in 5G technology. The combined use of antennas for 5G and sensors for IoT will increase further in the next century. Perhaps the next century will be the age of sensors and antennas. Many antennas and sensors used in daily life must be wearable in order to perform more effectively.

Antenna plays a very important role in telecommunication technology; without antenna integrated in a communication device, the device cannot send or receive information in the form of signals. There are several types of antennas including dipole antenna, horn antenna, wire antenna and others. Here a microstrip patch antenna (MPA) will be introduced due to its flat or planar profile, easy to fabricate, small size and low manufacturing cost. Patch antenna is typically constructed by fabricating a conductive patch onto a dielectric substrate. The permittivity and thickness of the substrate give influences to the parameters of the antenna, including the resonant frequency, bandwidth and return loss of the antenna. There are few types of materials that are being studied and used as the substrate, such as ceramic, semiconductor, ferrimagnetic, synthetic and composite materials.

Ferrimagnetic materials or ferrites are one type of magnetic materials, having a certain degree of susceptibility to magnetization. Ferrites are divided to two categories, which are hard and soft ferrites. Hard ferrites have high coercivity and high remanence after being magnetized, which makes them perfect as permanent magnets. Soft ferrites on the other hand, have low coercivity that makes the magnetic direction can be easily reversed to normal state with low loss energy. These types of ferrites also have high electrical resistivity and low magnetic losses at higher frequency range, which makes them suitable for microwave applications.

The common fabrication processes for MPA are by printed circuit board (PCB) etching technology, or thick film technology, which utilizes screen-printing method. The latter is preferred however due to its ease of fabrication, with less chemical handling. Thick film technology has been widely used in semiconductor production, either in surface mounted devices (SMT) fabrication or in printed film circuit (PFC) production. On the other hand, flexible antenna also can be developed by using the thick film technology, screen printed onto flexible substrate in which the fabrication method and materials is inexpensive and lack of chemical process. The thick film used in this case is the conductive paste that acts as the radiating patch of the antenna, in which the design itself along with the materials used in the fabrication process can be optimized to improve the antenna performance.

Keywords: Magnetodielectric, Microstrip patch antenna, Thick film technology



Achieving Line-of-Sight Communications Through Reconfigurable Intelligent Surfaces

Ali Emre Pusane*1

¹Bogazici University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, 34342 Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Reconfigurable Intelligent Surfaces (RISs) have emerged as pivotal components in the evolution of nextgeneration wireless communication systems, offering virtual line-of-sight channels with significantly enhanced capacity. Optimizing the phase configuration of RIS elements is a critical challenge, particularly as their numbers increase. Traditional iterative algorithms, though effective, suffer from high delay and signaling overhead due to the need for receiver performance feedback in each configuration attempt. This talk introduces a novel approach to address this challenge by leveraging Convolutional Neural Networks (CNNs) for efficient RIS phase configuration optimization. After presenting the fundamental model and scenarios for RIS application, the focus shifts to the proposed CNN-based solution. Simulation results for a 40×40 element RIS reveal a remarkable reduction in the number of optimization steps from 3200 to 160, demonstrating the algorithm's efficiency. In the proposed approach, only a subset of the available configurations are optimized and this solution is used to efficiently estimate the global configuration. Moreover, this complexity improvement is achieved with only a marginal degradation in performance. The talk further explores the practical implications of RIS deployment, particularly in scenarios requiring enhanced security at the physical layer.

Keywords: Wireless communication, CNNs, Physical layer



Management and Self-Confidence: Overcoming Barriers in Turkish Energy and IT Sectors

Oguzhan Bilgin^{*1}

¹Ankara Haci Bayram Veli University, Faculty of Letters, Department of Sociology, Ankara, Turkey



Recent Trends in Underwater Acoustic Communication and Networking

Paul Daniel Mitchell^{*1}

¹University of York, School of Physics, Engineering and Technology, York, United Kingdom

Abstract

Recently, Underwater Acoustic Networking (UWA) has been a popular research topic. There have been a lot of studies to solve the issues in UWA with a key focus on medium access protocol (MAC) design. This invited talk will deliver a speech on an outline of underwater networks, applications, research challenges. A specific part of the talk will be dedicated to the development of intelligent MAC schemes in the light of time division multiple Access (TDMA) theme. To solve a particular problem in UWA, TDMA-based MAC approaches will be presented in connection to practical observation conducted on seaside.

Keywords: Underwater networking, Medium access control, TDMA


Policies in the Field of Interdisciplinarity and Resource Sharing in Higher Education in Bulgaria

Genka Petrova^{1,2}

¹Deputy Minister of Education and Science, Republic of Bulgaria ²Medical University-Sofia, Sofia, Bulgaria



Wideband Local Antennas Alignment for 890-960 MHz Band

Stanimir Sadinov^{*1}, Miroslav Tomov¹, Boyan Karapenev¹

¹Technical University, Gabrovo, Bulgaria

Abstract

The GSM signal quality is unevenly distributed across the provider's network. In fact the power level of LTE signal coverage in particular is usually not constantly stable and not reliable enough in the areas of small villages where people's population is small, although those people also need a high quality mobile service with parameters according to the requirements of the mobile telecommunication standards as it is typically delivered in the territory of the cities. From the perspective of the providers it is not a profitable investment to develop the GSM network infrastructure in low population areas and this is very unpleasant problem for that minority of the people, who prefer to live in small towns, villages or much closer to the wild nature. In those areas, the base stations are rare situated, which means largest possible coverage of the cells and less signal power capacity to provide high quality service if many customers access the network at the same time [1].

This paper presents a design and optimization of a local RF amplifying system for GSM signal entire band (890MHz-960MHz), which is able to improve significantly the quality parameters of the service coverage at the home yard area. The optimization is achieved by impedance match and antennas' alignment to the rest of components of the designed amplifying system.

Keywords: Amplifying, S-parameters, GSM signal, Antenna alignment

1 INTRODUCTION

At the present days of the mobile communications, the main coverage share is supported by third-generation systems. Although they succeed to provide only 2 Mbps indoors and 150 kbps in vehicular environments, they still cover practically 100% of all providers' networks. 3G is still the primary technology for voice services, carrying over 60% of this traffic. Next coverage share belongs to LTE and pure 4th generation and the last volume share belongs to 5G and to the 2nd generation systems (which development is stopped, but they are still usable in service in many countries when it is necessary or when there is no other option). The 4G technology supports a maximum data exchange rate of up to 100 Mbps at a bandwidth of 20 MHz. 4G data access is several times faster than 3G, as its architecture is specially adapted for a fast data transfer, which for users means higher speeds and interactive services. The 5G systems are actual nowadays and its development is being designed to provide transfer data rates of 5–250 Mbit/s [2]. Low-band cell towers have a coverage area similar to 4G base stations. Middle band 5G uses 1.7-4.7 GHz microwaves, allowing traffic speed of 100-900 Mbit/s, with each cell tower providing service up to several kilometers in radius. This level of service is the most widely deployed in many metropolitan areas in 2020. Some regions are not implementing the low band, making Mid-band the minimum service level. High-band 5G uses frequencies of 24-47 GHz, near the bottom of the millimeter wave band, although higher frequencies may be used in the future. It provides download traffic speed in Gbit/s range, comparable to coax cable Internet service. But the millimeter waves have a more limited range, requiring a large number of small cells [3]. They can be impeded or blocked by materials in walls or windows or pedestrians [3, 4]. Due to their higher cost, plans are to deploy these cells only in dense urban environments and areas where crowds of people congregate such as sports stadiums and convention centers. The above speeds are those achieved in actual tests in 2020, and speeds are expected to increase during rollout [5]. The spectrum ranging from 24.25 to 29.5 GHz has been the most licensed and deployed 5G mm wave spectrum range in the world [5].

The main quality parameters of the RF signal in the GSM network to be discussed in this exploration are: the maximum and the average power value of the distributed signal and real data traffic speed.

The present paper displays some practical results and analyses of design and exploration of a local RF amplifying system, developed to receive, amplify, transmit and spread the LTE and 4G GSM signals across a small area of a village home yard [2] where 4G service signal is very weak.

2 DESIGN OF RF SIGNAL AMPLIFYING SYSTEM FOR THE BAND 890-960 MHZ

The major requirements to be supported by the mobile communication systems are high data rate, high mobility, and reliable coverage. Normally it is not easy to realize a system satisfying the requirements. Some systems can support high mobility and coverage, but others could provide high rates of data traffic. In fact, the future integrated system solutions could satisfy all complicated user demands.

In the present days large areas are covered reliably by 3G network only, and LTE or pure 4G infrastructure is far away from the users in the small villages to ensure high quality, or at least enough signal quality. The efforts of this exploration is to produce an effective but simplified solution to improve the LTE (4G) RF signal of GSM service at small local area of home yard of about 1000 square meters. The main elements of such amplifying system (receiving antenna, distribution antenna and wideband RF amplifier) could be easy purchased by the customer who generally is not able to make these elements by himself. Those elements are not expensive at all and there is enough quantity of them on the market. The aim of this exploration is to set an algorithm for proper alignment of antennas, coax-feeders and amplifier by applying impedance match input and output circuits, designed by discreet lumped and / or microstrip components with appropriate parameter values, calculated in the way of the optimized scattering coefficients. This ensures the best possible quality of the amplified signal supplied. The design of the local amplifying system starts with precise measurements of the actual local conditions as parameters of the mobile service signal distributed at the place of the system settlement. After those measurements is evident what value of amplification is necessary to start the project design. In the presented system design are used two different antenna types, factory produced for frequency band from 850 MHz to 990 MHz and wide band RF Amplifier (500 MHz to 2000 MHz) [4].

2.1 Measurements of RF Power Level of the GSM Signal Coverage

The power level of the GSM signal, measured by Protek 3200 RF Field Strength Analyser is depicted on Figure 2. Both graphs displays the maximum and average RF power level across the band 890-960 MHz delivered in both cases by the same mobile service provider – A1 Bulgaria but in different areas. The first graph shows the power level of the signal in the area of a small village, at least 12 km away from the base station, which provides LTE / 4G signal. The second graph show the measured the maximum and average RF power level across the frequency band inside the city area, where the Technical University is situated. The difference in dBm is more than significant: -89.09 dBm in the village versus -54.98 dBm in the city. These measurements practically consider the RF background power level across the explored band, but the level of the signal after the antenna in the receiver of the mobile device is even weaker. This actual level is measured by Android application installed into the mobile device and shows values respectively -113 dBm and -78 dBm.



Figure 1. Measured RF Power level of the GSM signal in: a) village; b) city

Power levels of the signal, lower than -90 dBm is not reliable enough for data transfer and even for 3G telephony and this seriously compromises the distributed mobile service. These results emphatically confirm the needs of installing a local RF amplifying system for the entire GSM Band (890-960 MHz). It is possible to focus on narrower and /or separate bands inside the entire range, but this approach requires more exploration concerning the parameters of the broadcast signal from the particular base station, and even more, to keep monitoring of that broadcasting for longer time to be sure witch transmitting/receiving frequencies are mostly used. The aim of this exploration is to find the most flexible and easiest way to amplify the signal locally in order to improve the quality of the mobile service.

2.2 Initial Schematic of the RF Amplifying System Design

The initial block schematic of the designed RF signal amplifying system is shown on Figure 2. The components are presented from the perspective of S-matrix data boxes. The S-parameters data is collected by portable vector network analyzer NanoVNA-F V2.

The used receiving antenna is a standard 9-element Yagi type is constructed with appropriate dimensions of its elements for the optimal performance in the range of frequencies 890 to 960 MHz, with vertical polarization and its direction is pointed towards the closest base station of the available GSM provider network. The distance from the receiving antenna to the base station is about 12 km.



Figure 2. Initial schematic of a local RF signal amplifying system

The receiving antenna is mounted on the roof top of the house and direction is established after some precalculations based on the available GPS data concerning the latitude and longitude of the nearest 4G supporting base station of the GSM service provider. The position and direction of the antenna are precised by RF signal power level measurement with the help of Protek spectrum analyser and Network Cell Info Android Application. The antenna is equipped with 50 Ω coax feeder cable RG-58, N-type female connector [3].

A convertor N-type male to SMA female is coupling the antenna feeder to the coax cable RG-58. Both outputs of the cable are equipped with SMA male connectors – the first one is connected to the female SMA side of the convertor N to SMA and the second one is connected to the input terminal of the RF power amplifier [6, 7].

Second coax cable links the output of the amplifier and the distribution antenna connector (also N-type female). That cable is also equipped with SMA male connectors at its both ends, which needs one more convertor SMA male to N-type male.

The above mentioned coupling configuration is subject to changes, as it is necessary to design input and output impedance transforming circuits as well as their connecting terminals to be considered in the final version of the system schematic.

2.3 Design of Input and Output Impedance Transforming Circuits

A proper antennas' alignment is achieved by impedance match calculations and design of the impedance transforming input and output circuits. Those schematics could be realised by lumped discreet elements (passive elements only or configuration of passive and active elements) or by transmission line micro strip structures. Both are appropriate for the explored frequency band [7].



Figure 3. Basic schematic of resistances and reactances conversion for correct impedance match

Wideband local antennas alignment for 890-960 MHz band

In accordance with the schematic diagram on Figure 3, the correct values of lumped elements in the input and output impedance match circuits are calculated automatically by Matlab module, integrated in the simulation platform Keysight Genesys by applying the following equations:

$$r_a = r_b = \frac{R_a}{I + q_a^2} = \frac{R_L}{I + q_a^2} \tag{1}$$

$$x_a = \frac{X_a}{1 + \frac{1}{q_a^2}} \tag{2}$$

$$x_a = x_{ab} - x_a = \left(\frac{X_{ab}}{r_a} - q_a\right) r_a \tag{3}$$

$$q_b = \frac{x_b(l + q_a^2)}{R_L} = \frac{R}{X_{bc}} = \frac{R}{X_b}$$
(4)

$$R_b = R = r_b \left(l + q_b^2 \right) \tag{5}$$

$$X_b = x_b \left(I + \frac{X_{bc}^2}{R^2} \right) \tag{6}$$

The resistances in the above equations match the 50Ω load of the respective impedance transforming circuit. The basic schematic on Figure 3 can be applied for impedance transformations in any specific equivalent schematic, designed by lumped discret elements [8, 9].

3 RESULTS

The calculated values of the lumped elements and the synthesized topology of the impedance matching circuit are shown in the schematic diagram on Figure 4.



Figure 4. Synthesized schematic for impedance match between the receiving antenna and the amplifier

That schematic aligns the impedance between the receiving antenna and the amplifier. It consist of two LC Pi topology sections, one capacitive, one inductive. The scattering simulation response after optimization and reaching the values depicted, is presented on Figure 5. The biggest reflection coefficient S_{11} (S_{22}) is reaching the value of -14.86 dB across the band.

This is optimal achievement from the perspective of easiest possible realization of the schematic design as the rest of the components of the amplifying system, the receiving antenna and distribution antenna have practically fixed values of S-parameters as they are factory designed for the range 890-960 MHz. The parameters of the wide band amplifier are optimized and fixed for the range 500-2000 MHz [9-11].



Figure 5. S₁₁ (S₂₂) parameters response of the impedance match schematic between receiving antenna and amplifier after optimization

The calculated values of the lumped discreet elements and the synthesized topology of the impedance matching circuit between the amplifier and the distribution antenna are shown in the schematic diagram on Figure 6. That schematic is synthesized as LC bandpass filter topology. The scattering simulation response after optimization and reaching the values depicted, is presented on Figure 7. The biggest reflection coefficient S_{11} (S_{22}) is limited effectively under -20 dB [12].



Figure 6. Synthesized schematic for impedance match between the amplifier and the distribution antenna



Figure 7. S_{11} (S_{22}) parameters response of the impedance match schematic between the amplifier and distribution antenna after optimization

4 CONCLUSION

The results and analysis of the measurements confirm the significant effect of the impedance matching input and output networks of the amplifying system on the level of amplification, especially between the RF amplifier output port and the distribution antenna.

As the receiving and distribution antennas has fixed construction, the system components which can be improved are the RF amplifier, the length of the feeder coax cables to their optimal values concerning the impedance and the parameters of the discreet elements of impedance matching transformation circuits.

The exploration of the problem could be expanded towards more demanding goals of reaching high effectiveness and quality of RF power distribution of the GSM signal at the particular place concerning the achievement of higher data traffic speed in the aria of weak network coverage, supplied by the GSM service provider.

Obviously the local installed and optimized RF amplifying systems are very effective, easy to apply and not expensive solutions for many customers, who lives in the areas of low GSM signal coverage.

Acknowledgments

The presented work is supported under project 2205E/2023 "Planning, design and optimization of wireless communication platforms, services and solutions for 5G and IoT applications" by the University Centre for Research and Technology at the Technical University of Gabrovo.

Thanks to all staff of the Department of Communications Equipment and Technologies in Technical University of Gabrovo.

References

- [1] I. Iliev, "Mobile communications," TU-Sofia, 2014.
- [2] J. Vilches, "Everything you need to know about 4G wireless technology," TechSpot. Retrieved January 11, 2016.
- [3] T. B. Iliev, G. Y. Mihaylov, T. D. Bikov, E. P. Ivanova, I. S. Stoyanov, and D. I. Radev, "LTE eNB traffic analysis and key techniques towards 5G mobile networks," 40th International Convention on Information and Communication Technology, Electronics and Microelectronics, 2017.
- [4] N. Blaunstein and C. G. Christodoulou, Radio Propagation and Adaptive Antennas for Wireless Communication Networks. 2nd Edition, Wiley, 2014.
- [5] Gr. Y. Mihaylov, T. B. Iliev, T. D. Bikov, E. P. Ivanova, I. S. Stoyanov, V. P. Keseev, and A. R. Dinov, "Test cases and challenges for mobile network evolution from LTE to 5G," 41st International Convention on Information and Communication Technology, Electronics and Microelectronics, 2018.
- [6] R. Hamam, A. Karalis, J. Joannopoulos, and M. Soljacic, "Coupled-mode theory for general free-space resonant scattering of waves," Physical Review A, vol. 75, no. 5, art. no. 053801, 2007.
- [7] M. Kazimierczuk, "RF power amplifiers," TK7871.58.P6K39, 2008.
- [8] F. H. Raab, P. Asbeck, S. Cripps, P. B. Kenington, and N. O. Sokal. "RF and microwave power amplifier and transmitter technologies," High Frequency Electronics, vol. 2, no 3, pp. 22–36, May 2003.
- [9] A. Grebennikov, RF and Microwave Power Amplifier Design. New York: McGraw-Hill, 2004.
- [10] I. Nedelchev and M. Tomov, "Optimization Of High Efficient RF Power Amplifying Schematics by Automated S-matrix Analysis," Scientific Conference of Angel Kanchev University of Rousse 2016, Scientific Papers of Rousse University - 2016, vol.55, series 3.2, pp. 8–12, 2016.
- [11] I. Nedelchev and M. Tomov, "Optimized gain achievement at efficiency over 90% and minimized noise of RF power amplifiers by S-parametric correction," UNITECH'2016 - Gabrovo, Proc. of Papers, Vol. II, pp. 168–172, 2016.
- [12] R.J. Weber, Introduction to Microwave Circuits. Piscataway, NJ: IEEE Press, 2001.



Limb Tremor Measurement through Wearable Units

Mehmet Akif Alper*1, Turgut Ozturk²

¹Eastern Michigan University, Cybersecurity, Ypsilanti, Mi, USA ²Karabuk University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Karabuk, Turkey

Abstract

Tremor in human bodies is a well known symptom of diseases such as Parkinson's disease (PD). PD decreases the quality of human life, so it needs to be diagnosed early and treated correctly. Detection and quantification of human tremors is important and challenging. Therefore, detection and quantification of human tremors help doctors to diagnose and adjust dosage levels of medicine. There are many different techniques to detect and quantify human tremors. On the one hand, Direct methods generally wearable sensors to measure human tremors. On the other hand, indirect methods cover camera, radar systems that enable remote measurement of tremor symptoms. Here, we detect and quantify human tremors with a direct measurement method. We used inertial measurement unit (IMU) to detect human arm tremors. Then, amplitude and dominant frequency of tremor has been computed for doctor evaluations.

Keywords: Tremor, Parkinson's disease (PD), Wearable units, Dominant frequency



Performance Analyses of a Two-Stage Quadrature RC Generator with Three Integrators

Boyan Karapenev^{*1}, Stanimir Sadinov¹

¹Technical University of Gabrovo, Department of the Communication Equipment and Technologies, Gabrovo, Bulgaria

Abstract

This paper presents the special features of RC harmonic oscillation generators and their widespread use and in particular the quadrature generators which provide two output signals dephased at 90° or 270°. Quadrature generators can be classified as those with an aperiodic frequency-determining circuit or with a phase inverter group which are used to generate oscillations of one or more fixed frequencies. Studies of a two-stage quadrature RC generator circuit with three integrators implemented with operational amplifiers have been performed. The results obtained from the simulation and experimental studies performed are presented for the selected circuit. It can be assumed that the experimental and simulation results completely coincide to an accuracy of up to 25% for the amplitude of the generated signals and to the total accuracy for the generated frequency. Quadrature generators are very widely used in communication technology and, most importantly, in the structure of digital frequency, phase and quadrature-amplitude modulators and demodulators, in vector RLC meters and many other electronic circuits and devices in practice.

Keywords: Quadrature generator, Studies, Results, Analyses, Applications

1 INTRODUCTION

Generators have an extremely wide and important application in practice. They are used in radio transmitters during the implementation of modulations, in radio receivers during selection of a certain radio station and formation of intermediate frequency signals, in computational equipment for generating clock signals, in measurement equipment during formation of test signals, in automated means of controlling production and others processes and many others. The amplitude and frequency of the generated oscillations are determined by the mode of operation of the active element, the parameters of the selection chain, the feedback and the load.

RC generators are used to generate oscillations with frequencies from several Hz to several MHz. Their selective system is made up of only R and C elements. This determines their main advantages: small overall dimensions, suitable for integrated implementation and incorporation into hybrid ICs, they are not affected by external fields, etc. Because RC selective circuits do not have good selectivity, obtaining oscillations with small nonlinear distortions is related to the introduction of additional nonlinear negative feedback. The negative feedback also stabilizes the amplitude of the oscillations. RC generators are also characterized by relative instability of the generated frequency $\Delta f / f_0$ in the range from 10^{-2} to 10^{-3} .

Very often, in practice, it is necessary for a generator to provide two output signals dephased at a certain angle. The generator is quadrature when the angle is 90° or 270° (-90°). Quadrature generators are widely used in communications technology for the implementation of digital angular modulations [1], and in particular quadrature-amplitude modulation (QAM). Quadrature generators are included in the structure of digital modulators and demodulators as well.

In scientific publications of recent years, e.g. [2-21], no in-depth design, studies, analyses and conclusions of the RC harmonic oscillation generator circuits as well as their selective chains are available.

2 REPRESENTATION

2.1 Quadrature RC Generators of Harmonic Oscillations

RC generators are divided into two main groups according to the nature of the selective circuit [1]:

- With aperiodic frequency-determining circuit or phase-rotating RC generators;
- With selective frequency-determining circuit with maximum or minimum feedback transmission coefficient β for the frequency generated and zero dephasing between output and input signals.

Quadrature generators can be classified as those with a phase group which are used to generate oscillations at one or more fixed frequencies. As one RC unit can dephase at an angle less than 90°, a minimum of three units is required to meet the condition of phase-angle balance.

2.2 A Two-Stage Quadrature RC Generator with Three Integrators with Operational Amplifiers Circuit of Harmonic Oscillations

Fig. 1 [22] shows a two-stage quadrature RC generator with three integrators with operational amplifiers circuit. The circuit is built from two series-connected integrators and an integrator connected in the positive feedback.

The quadrature generator is based on third-order characteristic equation. The oscillation condition and oscillation frequency can be obtained as [22]:

$$R_3 R_4 R_5 = \frac{C_1 C_2 R_1^2 R_2^2}{C_3 (C_1 R_1 + C_2 R_2)},\tag{1}$$



Figure 1. Circuit [22] of chosen two-stage quadrature RC generator with three integrators

$$\omega_0 = \frac{1}{\sqrt{C_1 C_2 R_1 R_2}} \,. \tag{2}$$

From (1) and (2), the oscillation condition and oscillation frequency are orthogonal. The voltage transfer function from Uo2 to Uo1 is

$$\frac{Uo2}{Uo1} = -\frac{1}{sC_3R_4} \,. \tag{3}$$

The phase difference φ between Uo2 and Uo1 is 90° and voltage Uo2 and Uo1 to be in quadrature.

2.3 Composed Integrators (Integrating Amplifiers) with Operational Amplifiers from the Structure of the Two-Stage Quadrature RC Generator - Main Dependencies

The output voltage in integrators is an integral of the input signal and is obtained for it

$$\dot{\boldsymbol{U}}_{0} = -\frac{\dot{\boldsymbol{Z}}_{2}}{\dot{\boldsymbol{Z}}_{1}}\dot{\boldsymbol{U}}_{i} = -\frac{1}{j\omega RC}\dot{\boldsymbol{U}}_{i}$$
(4)

The transition function in real form is obtained

$$u_0(t) = -\frac{1}{RC} \int u_i(t) dt \tag{5}$$

or the output voltage is proportional to the integral of the input voltage. The amplitude-frequency response (AFR) of the ideal integrator is determined from (4) by finding the complex transmission coefficient

$$\dot{A}_F = -\frac{1}{j\omega RC} \tag{6}$$

whence for AFR follows

$$A_F = \frac{1}{\omega RC} \,. \tag{7}$$

The bandwidth of the integrator is determined by the first pole frequency and predetermines the use of the integrator as a low-pass filter when working with a wide frequency spectrum of signals.

The main qualitative parameters of OA μ A741 which was used to implement the integrators are presented in Table 1.

Table 1. The main qualitative parameters of OA uA741

			it the main g	adiitati ve parameter	o or orrari	14	
UA	U_{DD}, V	$U_{IO},\mu V$	BW, MHz	Slew/Rate, V/µs	$I_{DD}, \mu A$	Output drive	CMRR, dB
μA741	<±18	1000	1	0,5	1700	$\pm 25 \text{ mA}$	90

3 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

3.1 Simulation Studies of the Two-Stage Quadrature RC Generator with Three Integrators

The circuit of the quadrature generator from Fig. 1 with values of the constituent elements [22], which is the subject of research, has been introduced in the working environment of the MultiSIM module of Circuit Design Suite package. The created connection diagram of the experimental setup is shown in Fig. 2.



Figure 2. Connection diagram of the experimental setup for simulation study of the two-stage quadrature RC generator with three integrators

The obtained oscillogram from the performed simulation study for the output voltages U_{01} and U_{02} is shown in Fig. 3. It is found that for both output signals the frequencies are the same $f_0 = 9.22$ kHz and their amplitudes are also the same - $U_{olsin} = U_{o2cos} = 7$ V. The operating frequency of both outputs is also measured with Frequency counter (XFC1 and XFC2) and has the value of 9.22 kHz.

The DC components at both outputs are determined by the performed Fourier analysis and $U_{DCsine} = U_{DCcosine} \approx 1.72 \text{ mV}.$

3.2 Experimental Studies of the Two-Stage Quadrature RC Generator with Three Integrators

The quadrature RC generator of Fig. 1 is implemented practically using an experimental set for analog circuits Analog experimenter Type 3205.



Figure 3. Oscillogram of the output signals of the simulation studied two-stage quadrature RC generator with three integrators

Table 2 presents the measured DC voltages in the specified nodes of the circuit of the implemented quadrature generator.

 Table 2. DC voltages in the specified nodes of the quadrature RC generator

Node No	1	2	3	4	5	6
U ₌ , V (exper.)	-0.231	-0.317	0.039	0.394	-0.066	-0.067

Figures 4 - 7 show oscillograms and the main parameters of the output signals obtained from the experimental study of an implemented laboratory model of a quadrature RC generator with bipolar power supply \pm 15 V (Figure 1), respectively for both outputs o1 (Sine) and o2 (Cosine): frequency $f_0 = 9.22$ kHz, phase-shift $\Delta \phi \approx 90^\circ$ and output voltages $U_{o1} = 9.41$ V and $U_{o2} = 9.27$ V. It is found that there is always a minimal difference in the amplitudes of the two orthogonal output signals.



Figure 4. Oscillogram of the output signals of the quadrature RC generator U_{o1} and U_{o2} - $f_0 = 9.22$ kHz



Figure 5. Oscillogram of the dephasing of the output signals U_{o1} and U_{o2} of the quadrature RC generator - $\Delta \varphi$ $\approx 90^{\circ} (\Delta t \approx 26 \ \mu s)$

Freq	9.22kHz	Average	0.00mV	Freq	9.22kHz	Áverage	-1.00V
Period	108.50us	Peak	26.80%	Period	108.50us	Peak	26.40V
Rise	38.00us	RMS	8507	Rise F-11	34.00us	RMS	8.31V
Fall	34.00us	High	12.407	rall +Wid+b	34.00us	High	11.80V
-Width	56.00us	Low	-12.20V	-Width	54.00us	Low	-12.407
Overshoot	50.0005	Middle	0.00mV	Overshoot	t 5.8%	Middle	-400.00mV
Preshoot	3.3%	Max	13.80V	Preshoot	3.3%	Max	13.20V
+Duty	50.0%	Min	-13.00V	TUUty	50.9% 49.1%	Min	-13.20V
-Duty	50.0%	Amplitude	26.53V			Amplitude	26.147

quadrature RC generator

Figure 6. Parameters of the output signal U_{o1sin} of the **Figure 7.** Parameters of the output signal U_{o2cos} of the quadrature RC generator

The THD measured at both outputs using the device Automatic Distortion Meter PMZ-11 is 6.25%.

The experimental studies were carried out with a resistance of the resistor $R_3 = 5 \ k\Omega$. The amplitude balance condition is not satisfied at lower values of potentiometer resistance and for higher ones the gain is significant and the output signals are accompanied by nonlinear distortions. By setting the values of the R₃ amplitudes of the two outputs and the operating frequency are fixed. The undamped oscillations are lost for significantly larger deviations from the value $5k\Omega$.

A comparative assessment of the obtained parameters of the quadrature generator circuit is presented in Table 3. It can be assumed that the experimental and simulation results coincide with an accuracy of up to 25% for the amplitude of the generated signals and with total accuracy for the generated frequency. The parameters of the transient characteristic of the two output signals differ by up to 2%.

Table 3. A comparative assessment of the obtained parameters of the quadrature generator circuit

	O	utput o1 (Sine)		Output o2 (Cosine)			
Parameter	Simulation	Experimental	C 0/	Simulation	Experimental	C 0/	
	results	results	с, %	results	results	ζ, %	
u ₀₁ , V	7	9.41	25.6	7	9.27	24.5	
f ₀ , kHz	9.22	9.22	0	9.22	9.22	0	

4 CONCLUSION

RC generators with operational amplifiers are limited in operating frequency since they do not have the necessary bandwidth to obtain low dephasing at high frequencies. Modern operational amplifiers with current feedback have a significantly wider bandwidth, but they are very sensitive to the capacities in the feedback circuit. Operational amplifiers with voltage-controlled feedback (with frequency correction) have a limited operating range with frequencies of up to about 100 kHz. The frequency bandwidth is further reduced by cascade connection of the operational amplifiers in order to multiply/add dephasing.

From the performed simulation and experimental studies and the obtained results it is established, that they coincide with an accuracy up to 25% for the amplitude of the generated signals and with total accuracy for the generated frequency f_0 . The parameters of the transient characteristic of the two output signals differ by up to 2%. A problem in bringing the implemented quadrature RC generators to operation is determining and setting the necessary gain factor of the operational amplifiers themselves.

Quadrature generators are widely used in communication technology and especially in the structure of digital frequency, phase and quadrature-amplitude modulators and demodulators, in vector RLC meters and many other electronic circuits and devices in practice.

References

- [1] I. Nemigenchev, Analog devices. University publishing house "V. Aprilov", Gabrovo, ISBN 954-683-334-7, 2006.
- [2] Z. Li, H. Zhao, J. Liu, S. Qiao, and Y. Zhou, "A current-capacitor-based voltage average feedback RC oscillator with no comparators," AEU International Journal of Electronics and Communications, vol. 167, 2023.
- [3] S. Borah, A. Singh, and A. Ranjan, "Electronically tunable higher-order quadrature oscillator employing CDBA," Microelectronics Journal, January 2021.
- [4] R. Sotner, J. Jerabek, and L. Langhammer, "Special analog multipliers in voltage-controlled oscillator and phase-locked loop-based FM demodulator for measurement and processing of sensed low-frequency signals," Measurement, August 2022.
- [5] O. Elwy, S. H. Rashad, and A. G. Radwan, "Comparison between three approximation methods on oscillator circuits," Microelectronics Journal, November 2018.
- [6] M. Hadjmohammadi, H. M. Naimi, and H. Ghonoodi, "On the quadrature accuracy of in-phase coupled quadrature LC oscillator," Integration, July 2020.
- [7] J. Jin and C. Wang, "Single CDTA-based current-mode quadrature oscillator," AEU International Journal of Electronics and Communications, November 2012.
- [8] A. Kaci, C. Giraud-Audine, and B. Lemaire-Semail, "LQR based MIMO-PID controller for the vector control of an underdamped harmonic oscillator," Mechanical Systems and Signal Processing, August 2019.
- [9] G. Komanapalli, N. Pandey, and R. Pandey, "New realization of third order sinusoidal oscillator using single OTRA," AEU International Journal of Electronics and Communications, September 2018.
- [10] E. M. Drozdova and T. I. Boldyreva, "Harmonic RC-oscillators with automatic amplitude control system," Systems of Signal Synchronization, Generating and Processing in Telecommunications, 2017.
- [11] T. Sakon, S. Noissiki, and J. Yamazaki, "Constructing a capacitive rotating angle sensing system using a hand-made oscillator and testers," Physics Education, vol. 56, no. 3, 2021.
- [12] B. Shen and M. L. Johnston, "A digitally-reconfigurable RC frequency generator using impedance IQbalanced frequency-locked-loop with selectable phase mixing," IEEE Custom Integrated Circuits Conference (CICC), 2021.
- [13] H. Hua, F. Yang, J. Yang, Y. Cao, C. Li, and F. Peng, "Reanalysis of discharge voltage of RC-type generator in micro-EDM", Procedia CIRP, vol. 68, pp. 625–630, 2018.
- [14] N. St. John, "Op amp and transistor based analog square wave generator design," Technical Article, 2022.
- [15] D. Prasad, "Current conveyor based RC oscillators-A Review & Bibliography," International Journal of Electronics Engineering, vol. 0, no. 1 pp. 31–37, 2018.
- [16] Ji et al., "A second-order temperature-compensated on-chip R-RC oscillator achieving 7.93ppm/°C and 3.3pJ/Hz in -40°C to 125°C temperature range", ISSCC, pp. 64–65, Feb. 2022.
- [17] T. Tian, P. Li, H.-Q. Huang, and B. Wu, "A quadrature LO-generator using an external single-ended clock receiver for dual-band WLAN applications," IEICE Electronics Express, vol. 18, no. 10, 2021.
- [18] S. P. Me, M. H. Ravanji, B. Leonardi, D. Ramasubramanian, J. Ma, S. Zabihi, and B. Bahrani, "Transient stability analysis of virtual synchronous generator equipped with quadrature-prioritized current limiter", IEEE Transactions on Power Electronics, vol. 38, no. 9, 2023.

- [19] G. Komanapalli, R. Pandey, and N. Pandey, "Operational transresistance amplifier based wienbridge oscillator and its harmonic analysis," Wireless Personal Communications, 2019.
- [20] R. Senani, D. R. Bhaskar, V. K. Singh, and R. K. Sharma, "Sinusoidal oscillators and waveform generators using modern electronic circuit building blocks," 2016.
- [21] M. Abuelma'atti and Z. Khalifa. "A memristor based wien-bridge sinusoidal/ chaotic oscillator", 2016.
- [22] J.-W. Horng, "Quadrature oscillators using operational amplifiers," Active and Passive Electronic Components, vol. 2011, art. no. 320367, 2011, doi:10.1155/2011/320367.



Development of the Microwave Planar Sensor to Characterize Materials with Respect to Material Energy Level

Turgut Ozturk¹, Mehmet Akif Alper^{*2}

¹Karabuk University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Karabuk, Turkey ²Eastern Michigan University, Cybersecurity, Ypsilanti, Mi, USA

Abstract

Designing a planar sensor for material characterization that considers energy level change, return loss, and loss tangent as critical performance parameters can be a complex process. Begin by choosing the sensing technique that best suits your material characterization needs. Common techniques include transmission, reflection, and resonance-based methods. A reflection-based approach is often more convenient according to the performance parameters mentioned above. To assess energy level change, it should be considered to design the sensor to operate in a way that the interaction with the material causes changes in the reflected or transmitted energy. This can be achieved through impedance mismatches, resonance changes, or other methods. Return loss measures the ratio of incident to reflected power and is a critical parameter in material characterization. Ensure that the sensor design minimizes return loss, typically by matching the impedance of the sensor to that of the material under test. To measure the loss tangent accurately, which is another parameter of the planar sensor, it's crucial to design the sensor for precise phase measurements. This might involve incorporating phase-sensitive detection techniques. Thus, the successful design of a planar sensor for material characterization involving energy level change, return loss, and loss tangent measurements will require careful consideration of the specific requirements of the proposed application, thorough testing, and iterative optimization of the design.

Keywords: Material characterization, Impedance, Return loss



The Effect of the Environment on Performances of Precast Concrete by Solar Energy of the Taksebt Dam

Ben Khadda Ben Ammar^{*1}

¹University of Biskra, Civil and Hydraulic Engineering Department, Algeria

Abstract

The study presented deals with the mechanical consequences and the degradations caused by the external attack of sulphates from the marine environment on the prefabricated concretes of the spillway and the dyke of the Taksebt dam in Tizi-ouzo (Algeria). Three different external sulphate attack protocols were applied for three types of concrete based on crushed aggregates (dry concrete, ordinary concrete and water-hardened concrete), the samples are immersed in a 5% H_2SO_4 solution.

The results show that the impact of the age of the material on its degradation in contact with the sulfuric acid solution was highlighted, visual observations then a rapid and brutal degradation on the surface then in depth towards the core then a loss of mass and cracking and finally the ruin of the material.

Keywords: Taksebt dam, Precast concrete, External sulphate attack, Marine environment, Degradation



THz Metamaterial Absorber Design with Dual-Band and High Absorption Rate

Yunus Kaya^{*1}

¹Bayburt University, Department of Electricity and Energy, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

Radars operating at THz frequency are preferred for automatic detection and detecting hidden objects because they offer wider bandwidth and obtain higher resolution images than other radars. Due to the increasing use of THz radar due to its advantages, research on materials that will provide invisibility against these radars attracts great interest from researchers. Under normal circumstances, it is a very difficult task to find natural materials and absorber materials that can provide invisibility against THz frequency signals. For this purpose, metamaterial-based absorber structures, which are artificial electromagnetic materials, have been developed. This paper focuses on THz metamaterial absorber design, and high absorption rate in two bands at THz frequencies (99.91% at 10.5 THz and 98.21% at 18.1 THz) is achieved.

Keywords: Metamaterial, Absorber, Dual-band, THz frequencies, High absorption

1 INTRODUCTION

The ability to move without being caught by radar systems has gained great importance, especially in military technologies and defense industry. Since obtaining a clearer image is possible with THz level radars, researching the structures that provide radar invisibility, that is, the absorption of the incoming signal, has become an important subject of study [1]. Since natural materials are very weak against THz waves and absorption at THz levels cannot be achieved with natural materials, artificially designed metamaterial-based absorbers that do not exist in nature have been turned to [2].

Perfect metamaterial absorbers, first introduced to the scientific world by Landy et al., were designed from a grounded metal base, dielectric layer and electrical resonator structure [3]. After Landy et al.'s study in microwave frequency regions, studies operating in different microwave [4], terahertz [5], and optical frequency [6] regions and offering different absorption rates were carried out. In this suggested study, a high absorption rate (99.91% at 10.5 THz and 98.21% at 18.1 THz) was obtained in two bands at THz frequencies. In addition, it is thought that the designed THz metamaterial absorber structure will have an important place in THz applications by providing a high absorption rate at desired frequencies with its scalability feature.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The absorption (A) of the metamaterial absorber device can be given by A = 1 - T - R; where T and R are the transmission and reflection of the metamaterial absorber, respectively [2-6]. T and R are $|S_{21}|^2$ and $|S_{11}|^2$, respectively, in terms of scattering (S-) parameters. Again, where S_{21} and S_{11} are the transmission and reflection S-parameters, respectively. In the design, there is an electrical resonator at the front of the metamaterial absorbers, a dielectric layer in the middle and a grounded metal ground at the bottom, and since the thickness of the metallic film at the bottom is greater than the surface depth of the incoming light, the transmission T of the metamaterial absorber is equal to zero (0) [7]. As a result, absorption A can be simplified to $A = 1 - R = 1 - |S_{11}|^2$. In the suggested metamaterial absorber device, 100% absorption can be achieved when the reflection R is completely suppressed.

Considering the simple absorption equation and basic metamaterial absorber design principles, the 3D representation of the THz metamaterial absorber consisting of a metal electrical resonator-dielectric layer-grounded metal ground adaptation is given in Figure 1(a). Additionally, the front and side views of the suggested absorber are shown in Figures 1(b) and 1(c), respectively. Copper with an electrical conductivity of 5.8×10^7 S/m was used as the metal and Arlon AD 250C with a relative dielectric constant of 2.5 and a loss tangent of 0.0013

was used as the dielectric layer. Information about the geometric shape and thickness of the suggested THz metamaterial absorber is summarized in Table 1.



Figure 1. (a) 3D view of the suggested THz metamaterial absorber with dual-band and high absorption rate designed in CST Microwave Studio and dimensioning of the suggested absorber geometry in (b) front and (c) side views

Table 1. The dimensions of the suggested THz metamaterial absorber with dual-band and high absorption rate according to the designations shown in Figures 1(b) and 1(c) are

arrang	e me arengi	iadione ene	in mir igm	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	1(1) 411				
a_1	a ₂	a ₃	\mathbf{b}_1	b ₂	b ₃	W	g	с	d
16 µm	14.4 μm	11.2 μm	10 µm	8.4 µm	5.2 µm	0.8 µm	0.5 µm	0.1 µm	1.2 µm

3 RESULTS

For the absorber geometry designed and simulated in the electromagnetic simulation program CST Microwave Studio, the dB and amplitude values of the S_{11} and S_{21} parameters in the 5–22 THz frequency range are given in Figures 2(a)–2(d). As mentioned in Section 2, the transmission scatter parameter is zero (0) in the 5–22 THz frequency range (as seen in Figure 2(d)). It can also be said that for the high absorption rate, the reflection scattering parameter approaches zero (0) in two bands at 10.5 THz and 18.1 THz (as seen in Figure 2(b)).



Figure 2. (a) S_{11} , (b) $|S_{11}|$, (c) S_{21} , and (d) $|S_{21}|$ simulation results for the suggested THz metamaterial absorber with dual-band and high absorption rate

If the scattering parameters in Figure 2 are used in the simple absorption equation in Section 2, the A% rate is found as in Figure 3. Accordingly, when Figure 3 is examined, it can be said that the suggested THz metamaterial absorber structure shows a high absorption rate of 99.91% and 98.21%, respectively in two bands, 10.5 THz and 18.1 THz. In addition, these high absorption rates are not only valid for the specified frequencies, but with the scalability feature of the THz metamaterial absorber structure, the high absorption rate may be achieved at the desired frequencies.



Figure 3. A% simulation results for the suggested THz metamaterial absorber with dual-band and high absorption rate

4 CONCLUSION

In this study, a THz metamaterial absorber design was carried out in a simple configuration for THz frequency applications. Designs and simulations for the suggested absorber consisting of copper electrical resonator–Arlon AD 250C dielectric layer–grounded copper ground layer were made in CST Microwave Studio. According to the simulation results, a high absorption rate of 99.91% and 98.21% was obtained in two bands, 10.5 THz and 18.1 THz, respectively. In addition, these high absorption rates are not only valid for these frequencies, but the high absorption rate can also be achieved at any desired frequency in THz frequencies with its scalability feature.

References

- [1] K. Iwaszczuk, H. Heiselberg, and P. U. Jepsen, "Terahertz radar cross section measurements," Opt. Express, vol. 18, no. 25, pp. 26399–26408, Dec. 2010.
- [2] Y. Z. Wen, W. Ma, J. Bailey, G. Matmon, and X. M. Yu, "Broadband terahertz metamaterial absorber based on asymmetric resonators with perfect absorption," IEEE Trans. Terahertz Sci. Technol., vol. 5, no. 3, pp. 406–411, May 2015.
- [3] N. I. Landy, S. Sajuyigbe, J. J. Mock, D. R. Smith, and W. J. Padilla, "Perfect metamaterial absorber," Phys. Rev. Lett., vol. 100, no. 20, art. no. 207402, May 2008.
- [4] F. Ding, Y. X. Cui, X. C. Ge, Y. Jin, and S. L. He, "Ultra-broadband microwave metamaterial absorber," Appl. Phys. Lett., vol. 100, no. 10, art. no. 103506, Mar. 2012.
- [5] Y. Q. Ye, Y. Jin, and S. L. He, "Omnidirectional, polarization-insensitive and broadband thin absorber in the terahertz regime," J. Opt. Soc. Am. B: Opt. Phys., vol. 27, no. 3, pp. 498–504, Mar. 2010.
- [6] J. Q. Wang, C. Z. Fan, P. Ding, J. N. He, Y. G. Cheng, W. Q. Hu, G. W. Cai, E. J. Liang, and Q. Z. Xue, "Tunable broad-band perfect absorber by exciting of multiple plasmon resonances at optical frequency," Opt. Express, vol. 20, no. 14, pp. 14871–14878, Jul. 2012.
- [7] Q. G. Zhou, W. L. Ma, T. T. Wu, Y. Z. Li, Q. X. Qiu, J. X. Duan, J. B. Li, L. Jiang, W. Zhou, Y. Q. Gao, J. G. Huang, and Z. M. Huang, "Metasurface terahertz perfect absorber with strong multi-frequency selectivity," ACS Omega, vol. 7, no. 41, pp. 36712–36727, Oct. 2022.



Fabrication of Patch Antenna Utilizing CNT-Ferrite Nanocomposite as Magnetic-Conductive Material

Intan Helina Hasan^{*1}, Mohd Nizar Hamidon^{1,2}, Ismayadi Ismail¹, Yunus Kaya³

¹Universiti Putra Malaysia, Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology, Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia ²Universiti Putra Malaysia, Faculty of Engineering, Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia ³Bayburt University, Department of Electricity and Energy, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

In this work, CNT-ferrite nanocomposite has been successfully synthesized using chemical vapour deposition (CVD) with yttrium iron garnet nanopowders as a catalyst, ethanol as carbon stock and Argon as carrier gas. Carbon nanotubes (CNT) were observed to have grown from ferrite nanopowders with bamboo-like structures. CVD synthesis temperatures of 700°C and 900°C were set as varying parameters to study the effect of temperature on the CNT growth. Field emission scanning electron microscopy (FESEM) and Raman spectroscopy characterization indicated that CNT-ferrite nanocomposite with a synthesis temperature of 900°C exhibited growth of bamboo-like CNT with high graphitization compared to CNT-ferrite at 700°C. Further investigation using High-resolution transmission electron microscopy (HRTEM) proved that the CNT were grown from the ferrite catalyst via tip growth mechanism. The electrical, dielectric and magnetic properties of the samples concluded that CNT-ferrite nanocomposite grown at 900°C has significant properties resulted in improved performance of patch antenna which was fabricated using the synthesized nanocomposite as the active material in the thick film paste for the radiating patch.

Keywords: Carbon nanotubes, Ferrites, Nanocomposite, Patch antenna

*i_helina@upm.edu.my



Design of Vivaldi Antenna for Wideband Applications

Ali Turgut Kizilcik^{*1}, Ugur Cem Hasar¹, Hamdullah Ozturk¹

¹Gaziantep University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Gaziantep, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we have designed a Vivaldi antenna for wideband applications. This antenna design is commonly employed in radio and microwave communications, radar, medical imaging devices, wireless communication systems, and various other RF applications. The primary objective of this study is to propose a new Vivaldi antenna design and assess its performance characteristics. The analysis is performed using a commercial full 3D electromagnetic simulation program (CST Microwave Studio) – a powerful tool specifically designed for antenna design simulation and evaluation. Thanks to its broadband nature, the antenna exhibits the capability to operate across a wide frequency range. This feature, along with its lower return loss, enhances the efficiency of signal transmission and reception, particularly in challenging RF environments. The research methodology includes the use of rigorous simulation techniques to examine the behaviour of the antenna under various operating conditions. Antenna performance is optimized by making changes to feed-point location, slot dimensions, and other parameters.

Keywords: Antenna, Vivaldi antenna, Radar, Microwave, CST Microwave Studio



Investigation of River Flow Characteristics Using Internet of Things towards Prediction of River Surge (Kepala Air)

Irdina Ridwana Roszaimi¹, Nursarafina Nadhia Abd Malek¹, Alyani Ismail^{*2}

¹Universiti Putra Malaysia, Faculty of Engineering, Department of Computer and Communication Systems Engineering, Selangor, Malaysia ²Universiti Putra Malaysia, Faculty of Engineering, Wireless and Photonics Network Research Centre, Department of Computer and Communication Systems Engineering, Selangor, Malaysia

Abstract

The study presents an investigation into river flow characteristics utilizing Internet of Things (IoT) technologies with a primary focus on predicting river surges (kepala air) phenomenon. The research emphasizes the significance of understanding river flow rates as a crucial parameter for accurate surge predictions. The current method for monitoring rivers often lacks real-time data, hindering the precision of surge predictions. The integration of IoT in river flow monitoring offers an approach to overcome these limitations. This research employs a multidisciplinary approach, combining sensors and data collection and analysis to enhance the understanding of river flow dynamics. The objective is to implement real-time monitoring that can provide early warning alerts for potential river surges. IoT devices, such as water level sensors and water flow rate sensors, are deployed on-site to collect real-time data. These sensors provide continuous measurement, allowing for an accurate representation of the river flow characteristics. The collected data are transmitted to cloud computing software, where data analytics techniques are employed to analyze and interpret the patterns in river flow characteristics preceding or indicating the onset of river surges. The study also delves into developing a warning system to notify authorities of dangerous water speeds, generating alert messages when hazardous conditions arise. By detecting surges in the river early on, authorities can execute evacuation plans, safeguard infrastructure, and implement flood control strategies on time. This will help reduce the impact of such events on both communities and ecosystems This is an innovative effort that aims to mitigate the risks associated with river surges, and enhance disaster management. The research findings have the potential to save lives and protect the environment, leading to the sustainable development of riverine regions.

Keywords: River surge, IoT, River flow, Warning system, Real-time monitoring, Sensor



Evaluation of Blowfish Encryption Algorithm on Transport-Triggered Architecture

Latif Akcay^{*1}, Mustafa Alptekin Engin¹

¹Bayburt University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

Cryptography plays a vital role in protecting sensitive information in today's interconnected digital systems. This study delves into the importance of processor design in low-power embedded systems using for security applications. The primary objective is to state the advantages conferred by the Transport-Triggered Architecture over traditional processors. In this context, we propose the design and implementation of application-specific instruction set processors for Blowfish symmetric-key encryption algorithms in a fully open-source and free development environment. Performance, maximum clock frequency, resource utilization, and power consumption are analysed under various scenarios. In addition, suggestions are included to guide future research on how these metrics can be further improved. Preliminary findings indicate that the proposed core architecture may be a suitable alternative for energy-efficient Internet-of-Things systems. Besides, this study can be considered an exemplary design from the perspective that highly flexible, scalable, and customizable core architectures will replace custom accelerators in future advanced system-on-chip designs.

Keywords: Symmetric key cryptography, Application-specific processor, Information security, RISC-V, TTA

1 INTRODUCTION

Cryptography has a historical importance in ensuring information security since ancient times. In recent years, the rapid increase in digital data production and developments in the field of information technologies have made the security of sensitive data even more critical. In this context, the application of encryption algorithms on efficient processor platforms has become an important research topic.

Nowadays, the requirements in embedded system designs are becoming more and more stringent. Devices that are expected to provide high performance within a limited energy budget are also expected to be implemented in a small chip area [1]. In addition, data security in these systems also emerges as a separate design challenge [2]. It is difficult to use strong encryption algorithms at the required level in such resource-constrained systems. This is because running these algorithms consumes more resources than running the actual applications of the system. However, security is not a negligible requirement. Therefore, the only solution seems to be to use encryption algorithms as efficiently as possible. This is only possible with an application-specific computing hardware. At this point, the importance of processor design comes to the fore. However, general purpose processors [3]. However, application-specific processors are particularly well suited to embedded systems that are designed to run only a specific set of applications. However, a flexible architecture that can be customized for each application is required to develop such processors. This requires a large number of tools such as compilers, simulators, modellers and code generators with compatible interfaces. Transport-Triggered Architecture (TTA) provides a highly adaptable structure for the development of Application-Specific Instruction Set Processors (ASIPs) [4]. OpenASIP [5] is a complete toolset for designing, testing, customizing and generating TTA-based ASIPs.

Blowfish is a fast and lightweight symmetric encryption algorithm designed in 1993 [6]. It operates on 64-bit data blocks with a variable key length from 32-bit to 448-bit. Although algorithms such as Advanced Encryption Standard (AES) [7] are known to be more secure, Blowfish's advantages of speed and low resource requirements make it a more suitable solution for most embedded system applications. Therefore, the algorithm is still widely used in many software and hardware applications.

In this study, custom TTA processors are proposed for the Blowfish algorithm. To demonstrate the effectiveness of the operations, a simple ASIP design was made using OpenASIP. The rest of the paper is organized as follows:

Literature review is given in this section. We summarize Blowfish, TTA, and OpenASIP in Section 2. Custom core design is explained in Section 3. The work is concluded and future studies are shared in Section 4.

1.1 Literature Review

There are many studies in the literature on hardware implementations of the Blowfish algorithm [8-10]. In [8], an efficient design was introduced for secure data transmission in Internet of Things (IoT) applications. A similar work is proposed in [9]. The performance of the algorithm was evaluated on a reconfigurable platform in terms of both power consumption and throughput in [10]. Instruction set extension techniques were applied in [11] to increase efficiency and performance. On the other hand, an optimized software implementation was developed in [12]. To the best of our knowledge, there has not yet been any study on the design of a TTA processor for the Blowfish algorithm. However, there are a lot of work for some Post-quantum cryptography algorithms [13-15].

2 ARCHITECTURE AND APPLICATION

In this section, we briefly explain the Blowfish algorithm. We also explain the general computational philosophy of TTA and the foundations from which the architecture is inspired. Moreover, the complete TTA processor design environment is introduced.

2.1 Blowfish Encryption Algorithm

Blowfish is a symmetric-key block cipher designed as an alternative to existing encryption algorithms by Bruce Schneier [6]. The algorithm operates on fixed-size data blocks with variable key lengths. The Blowfish encryption structure uses a Feistel network [16], which means that the data is processed iteratively through multiple rounds. The secret key is expanded into subkeys which are then used in the rounds. In each round, the left half of the input data is XORed with the subkey and entered into a function block called **F**. This portion is also recorded as the right half of the input data for the next round. The **F** function is a combination of addition, XOR and S-boxes. The result is then XORed with the right half of the input data and stored as the left half of the input data for the next round. The decryption process of the algorithm is similar to the encryption structure, which is a common state like other algorithms using the Fiestel networks.

2.2 Transport-Triggered Architecture

TTA's computational approach is based on the Very Long Instruction Word (VLIW) principles [4]. TTA is basically a processor design method that aims to take advantage of instruction-level parallelization (ILP). Data is moved between functional units (FUs) where arithmetic, logic and control operations are performed. Instead of being written to the register file (RF), the processed data is transported via multiple parallel transport buses to the FU where the next operation is performed. This usually reduces power consumption by increasing the register file bypass rate. The FUs are not triggered until a relevant data reaches the input ports. One of the most important differences that distinguishes TTA from the classical VLIW architecture is that RF is treated as an ordinary FU. In the TTA method, programme scheduling is done statically at compile time. The entire computation process is managed by the Global Control Unit (GCU). General structure of a TTA core is given in Figure 1. TTA is a highly modular, flexible and customizable processor template, making it an ideal method for ASIP development.



Figure 1. General structure of a typical TTA processor

2.3 OpenASIP

OpenASIP, formerly known as TTA-Based Co-Design Environment (TCE), is a free and open-source toolset developed in Tampere University, Finland [5]. It contains several tools for modelling, simulating, customizing, profiling, and generating TTA processors. LLVM-based retargetable compiler produces executable code for an application compatible for the target machine. If the designer changes the core, then the compiler needs to be regenerated. A typical design process is shown in Figure 2. The designer generally starts a design process with a high-level application code and an architecture definition file (ADF) which states a TTA processor template. The ADF file is compiled together with the application. Then, the designer tests the application and processor in a cycle accurate simulator called Proxim. It provides all the profiling statistics about the machine. After that, the designer can revise the processor model using the Processor Designer (ProDe) tool. Custom operations can be defined and managed in the Operational Set Editor (OSEd). OpenASIP can also generate Verilog and VHDL implementation of the developed core. Designers can add their own HDL implementations using the Hardware Database Editor.



Figure 2. TTA processor design process with OpenASIP tools

3 PROCESSOR DESIGN AND TESTS

In this section, TTA-based ASIP design and custom operations developed for Blowfish algorithm are introduced. In addition, performance evaluation of the design is explained using the results of performed tests.

3.1 Base TTA Processor

We started the design process with an elementary TTA processor template, which we call the BaseTTA. It contains the basic arithmetic and logic operations (add, subtract, and, or, xor, shift right-left) inside its FUs. The ProDe model of the BaseTTA core can be seen in Figure 3. Firstly, we prepared a test code implements the encryption and decryption phases of the Blowfish algorithm. The code is then compiled for the BaseTTA core. We obtained profiling data using the Proxim simulator. To determine the ideal transport bus count for the best performance, we repeated the test for more buses. We also increased the number of registers from 5 to 32 in the RF unit to decrease the number of memory load-store operations. The Blowfish test results for various configuration of the BaseTTA processor is given in Table 1.

3.2 Design of Custom TTA Operations

We identified computational bottlenecks by analysing profiling data from the BaseTTA processor's cycle-accurate simulation and the structure of the Blowfish algorithm. It is possible to define and integrate many new operations into the processor to overcome these bottlenecks. However, such a strategy could significantly reduce maximum clock frequency and increase required the chip area to implement the processor. For this reason, we designed two simple operations that will substantially improve performance:

- SHFOR4: Shift the 4 inputs with constants and OR the results each other.
- SWAP: Swap the left, right and temporary values in Blowfish rounds.



Figure 3. The structural model of the BaseTTA processor



Figure 4. The structural model of the CustTTA processor

We introduced the custom operations to the OpenASIP environment using the OSEd tool. Then, we added a new FU to the BaseTTA design to integrate the custom operations into the processor. The revised processor model, which we call the CustTTA is presented in Figure 4. After the final design process, Blowfish tests were repeated on the CustTTA. The required cycle count results are shared in Table 1. The Blowfish test code was also run on a 64-bit RISC-V processor, CVA6 (RV64GC) [17], for a more meaningful comparison. The results show that the developed operations increase the performance at a reasonable level compared to the BaseTTA processor.

Finally, we implemented the custom operations and FU in VHDL. The rest of the core was generated using ProGe tool. HDL codes were synthesised for the xc-7a100t coded FPGA part using Xilinx Vivado [18]. The Blowfish test was then run in the Vivado environment using the post-synthesis simulation tool. Table 1 shows the FPGA resources, maximum clock frequency and estimated power consumption for the processors used in the study. These values can be easily improved using OpenASIP IC optimization techniques given in [5].

	Table 1. Total number of clock cycles required for running the blownshitest									
Processor	Bus Count	Register File	Cycle Count	LUT, FF	Frequency	Estimated Power				
BaseTTA-1	1	5x32-bit	3.045.964	1069, 726	125 MHz	102 mW				
BaseTTA-2	2	5x32-bit	1.814.358	1478, 764	120 MHz	104 mW				
BaseTTA-3	3	10x32-bit	802.136	1745, 904	120 MHz	108 mW				
CVA6	-	32x64-bit	1.334.781	9567, 4729	40 MHz	122 mW				
CustTTA	3	12x32-bit	621.230	2068, 1047	120 MHz	110 mW				

Table 1. Total number of clock cycles required for running the Blowfish test

4 CONCLUSION

With the increasing use of embedded systems in areas such as IoT, the issue of securing sensitive data is becoming increasingly important. Embedded system designers face serious challenges to achieve both performance and low power consumption in restricted chip areas. This makes ASIPs the most appropriate solution for embedded systems. TTA is an ideal processor template for ASIP development due to its flexible and customizable structure. In this work, we designed a few custom TTA operations for a lightweight symmetric encryption algorithm. We proved the effects of the developed operations by integrating them on a simple TTA processor. Tests on a cycle-accurate simulator showed that the number of clock cycles required is significantly reduced. We also implemented our design in HDL to measure required hardware resources. In light of the obtained results, it can be said that TTA-based ASIPs can be used to overcome the design challenges in embedded systems. In future studies, we plan to develop custom TTA operations for similar encryption algorithms. We will also investigate the applicability of TTA in other areas where ILP may provide superior advantage.

References

- [1] P. Koopman, "Embedded system design issues (the rest of the story)," Proceedings International Conference on Computer Design. VLSI in Computers and Processors, doi: 10.1109/iccd.1996.563572.
- [2] S. Ravi, A. Raghunathan, P. Kocher, and S. Hattangady, "Security in embedded systems," ACM Transactions on Embedded Computing Systems, vol. 3, no. 3, pp. 461–491, Aug. 2004, doi: 10.1145/1015047.1015049.
- [3] M. F. Jacome and G. De Veciana, "Design challenges for new application specific processors," IEEE Design & amp; Test of Computers, vol. 17, no. 2, pp. 40–50, 2000, doi: 10.1109/54.844333.
- [4] H. Corporaal, "Design of transport triggered architectures," Proceedings of 4th Great Lakes Symposium on VLSI, doi: 10.1109/glsv.1994.289981.
- [5] K. Hepola, J. Multanen, and P. Jaaskelainen, "OpenASIP 2.0: Co-Design Toolset for RISC-V Application-Specific Instruction-Set Processors," 2022 IEEE 33rd International Conference on Application-specific Systems, Architectures and Processors (ASAP), Jul. 2022, doi: 10.1109/asap54787.2022.00034.
- [6] B. Schneier, "Description of a new variable-length key, 64-bit block cipher (Blowfish)," Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pp. 191–204, 1994, doi: 10.1007/3-540-58108-1 24.
- J. Daemen and V. Rijmen, "The Advanced Encryption Standard Process," The Design of Rijndael, pp. 1– 8, 2020, doi: 10.1007/978-3-662-60769-5 1.
- [8] M. Suresh and M. Neema, "Hardware Implementation of Blowfish Algorithm for the Secure Data Transmission in Internet of Things," Proceedia Technology, vol. 25, pp. 248–255, 2016, doi: 10.1016/j.protcy.2016.08.104.
- [9] K. N. Prasetyo, Y. Purwanto, and D. Darlis, "An implementation of data encryption for Internet of Things using blowfish algorithm on FPGA," 2014 2nd International Conference on Information and Communication Technology (ICoICT), May 2014, doi: 10.1109/icoict.2014.6914043.
- [10] S. B. Nalawade and D. H. Gawali, "Design and implementation of blowfish algorithm using reconfigurable platform," 2017 International Conference on Recent Innovations in Signal processing and Embedded Systems (RISE), Oct. 2017, doi: 10.1109/rise.2017.8378204.
- [11] S. Bartolini, R. Giorgi, and E. Martinelli, "Instruction Set Extensions for Cryptographic Applications," Cryptographic Engineering, pp. 191–233, 2009, doi: 10.1007/978-0-387-71817-0_9.
- [12] L. Christina and J. Irudayaraj V S, "Optimized Blowfish encryption technique" International Journal of Innovative Research in Computer and Communication Engineering, 2(7), 5009-5015.
- [13] L. Akcay and B. Ö. Yalcin, "Analysing the potential of transport triggered architecture for lattice-based cryptography algorithms," International Journal of Embedded Systems, vol. 15, no. 5, p. 404, 2022, doi: 10.1504/ijes.2022.10052028.
- [14] L. AKÇAY and B. ÖRS, "Comparison of RISC-V and transport triggered architectures for a postquantum cryptography application," TURKISH JOURNAL OF ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING & amp; COMPUTER SCIENCES, vol. 29, no. 1, pp. 321–333, Jan. 2021, doi: 10.3906/elk-2003-27.
- [15] L. Akcay and B. Ors, "Custom TTA Operations for Accelerating Kyber Algorithm," 2021 13th International Conference on Electrical and Electronics Engineering (ELECO), Nov. 2021, doi: 10.23919/eleco54474.2021.9677863.
- [16] B. Schneier and J. Kelsey, "Unbalanced Feistel networks and block cipher design," Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pp. 121–144, 1996, doi: 10.1007/3-540-60865-6_49.
- [17] F. Zaruba and L. Benini, "The Cost of Application-Class Processing: Energy and Performance Analysis of a Linux-Ready 1.7-GHz 64-Bit RISC-V Core in 22-nm FDSOI Technology," IEEE Transactions on Very Large Scale Integration (VLSI) Systems, vol. 27, no. 11, pp. 2629–2640, Nov. 2019, doi: 10.1109/tvlsi.2019.2926114.
- [18] S. Chakraborty, "Vivado Design Tools," Designing with Xilinx® FPGAs, pp. 17–21, Oct. 2016, doi: 10.1007/978-3-319-42438-5_2.



Critical Requirements of Wireless Technologies for Real-time Voice Transmission in Above-Water Environments: A Comparative Study of NB-IoT, LTE, and 5G

Amirun Fahim Faizul Haiza¹, Alyani Ismail^{*1}

¹Universiti Putra Malaysia, Wireless and Photonic Networks Research Centre (WiPNeT), Department of Computer and Communication Systems Engineering, Serdang, Malaysia

Abstract

This research investigates the critical requirements of real-time voice transmission in above-water environments, with a specific focus on the key parameters of bandwidth, latency, and data rate. In this study, Narrowband Internet of Things (NB-IoT), Long-Term Evolution (LTE), and 5th Generation (5G) wireless technologies are subjected to a comparative analysis, centred on their performance in terms of these crucial parameters. The unique challenges posed by above-water environments necessitate a nuanced understanding of how each technology addresses the demands of bandwidth-intensive voice transmission, minimizes latency, and achieves optimal data rates. Through a systematic evaluation of these parameters, this work aims to provide valuable insights into the comparative strengths and weaknesses of NB-IoT, LTE, and 5G. Decision-makers and engineers involved in applications such as maritime operations, security surveillance, environmental monitoring, and emergency response systems will benefit from the findings, guiding the selection and implementation of wireless communication solutions tailored to the specific demands of above-water scenarios.

Keywords: Real-time voice transmission, Above-water environments, Narrowband Internet of Things (NB-IoT), Long-Term Evolution (LTE), 5th Generation (5G)



Comparative Analysis of Differential Privacy over Multiple Data Sets

Refik Can Oztas^{*1}, Bulent Tugrul¹

¹Ankara University, Department of Computer Engineering, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, we investigate Differential Privacy as an alternative to secure data processing and how it impacts machine learning performance. Differential Privacy, in its simplest definition, involves adding noise to a dataset based on mathematical distributions like Laplacian or Gaussian, providing "plausible deniability" for each individual's data. The accuracy values obtained from machine learning algorithms on noisy datasets are compared with those obtained from algorithms applied to the original datasets. Additionally, the effects of the privacy budget ϵ associated with Differential Privacy are also discussed in the final section.

Keywords: Data privacy, Differential privacy, Machine learning

1 INTRODUCTION

With the growth of current applications, the likelihood of cyber-attacks exposing stored data has increased, thus expanding the attack surface and leading to increasing demand for data processing operations. As a result, data security has become one of the top concerns over the past few years. Although data security is commonly understood as ensuring the safety of stored data, it equally concerns the security of data that data scientists, artificial intelligence engineers, and other individuals need to process. Anonymizing data, particularly in fields such as the medical sector, is of significant importance from security and ethical perspectives [1].

Data security involves protecting digital data from unauthorized access, usage, disclosure, interference, modification, or destruction. To ensure the privacy, accuracy, and accessibility of data, it is necessary to implement diverse measures and safeguards. It is crucial to ensure data security to protect sensitive and valuable data from malevolent individuals, hackers, or cybercriminals who may retrieve, steal, or manipulate the data [2]. Data privacy is a concept related to maintaining the confidentiality of data. Its aim is to anonymize the data without affecting its mathematical, statistical, or other similar values. The anonymized data can be publicly shared. It involves de-identifying personal or sensitive information in the dataset.

One common data privacy method is to delete identifying data, such as names and ID numbers, from a medical data set to make it anonymous. However, it is known that this approach is not always effective. The Netflix-IMDB data set incident that occurred in the 2010s serves as a prime example of its limitations [3]. Netflix published a dataset of about 10 million ratings by 500,000 users, with all user information fully anonymized. Despite the anonymization, a group of people was able to de-anonymize about 60% of this data set after cross-referencing the user ratings on IMDB, thus demonstrating the limitations of this approach. Anonymizing data through a simple method may seem effective at first, but it may not work due to several other factors in the current world of big data.

2 RELATED WORKS

Differential privacy significantly impacts machine learning models. Differential privacy provides provable privacy guarantees, making it a popular approach for addressing privacy concerns in sensitive domains. Nonetheless, there exists a trade-off between privacy and utility as differential privacy may reduce learning accuracy. Wang et al. investigate the learnability of problems under differential privacy constraints [4]. They uncover complex associations between privacy, stability, and learnability. The study indicates that a problem can be privately learnable if and only if there exists a private algorithm that asymptotically minimizes the empirical risk. This finding suggests that the pursuit of private learning algorithms can be limited to those that satisfy this condition.

According to McMahan et al., achieving differential privacy on large-scale datasets entails increased computation costs instead of decreased utility [5]. The study indicates that private LSTM language models trained on a large dataset are qualitatively and quantitatively similar to un-noised models. This indicates that the impact on utility can be reduced by using differential privacy techniques. Differential privacy can be employed in federated learning to ensure that user-level privacy is protected. The addition of user-level privacy protection to the federated averaging algorithm enables the training of large recurrent language models while guaranteeing user-level differential privacy without compromising predictive accuracy significantly. This illustrates the possibility of integrating differential privacy into federated learning systems.

The use of differential privacy techniques in machine learning systems can introduce additional computational and communication overhead. According to Hong et al., encrypting and decrypting gradient parameters in the communication process can increase computing and communication costs in scenarios involving a large number of participants, which may be intolerable [6]. Thus, achieving a balance between privacy protection and model performance is crucial in practical implementations.

The impact of differential privacy on machine learning models presents a complex trade-off between privacy guarantees and utility. As indicated in recent studies, while differential privacy can introduce computational and communication overhead, it is possible to achieve it without significantly sacrificing predictive accuracy. Further research is necessary to devise more efficient and effective techniques for incorporating differential privacy into machine learning models while minimizing their impact on utility.

3 MOTIVATION AND METHOD

This research investigates the impact of adding noise within the concept of Differential Privacy on machine learning datasets. The objective of this study is to analyze the effects of Differential Privacy on simpler machine learning methods.

3.1 Differential Privacy

It was proposed by a Microsoft research team [7]. The goal is to add plausible deniability to each row of a data set by introducing noise data that does not distort its mathematical or statistical properties. For example, in a health test, it may be necessary to maintain the privacy of individuals with Virus A. If the data column consists solely of binary values and we assign the value 1 to everyone with Virus A and 0 to those who do not have it with a probability of 50% for each, it is impossible to know with certainty if John Doe has Virus A. Nevertheless, the added noise to the dataset is mathematically and proportionally known, enabling us to determine the overall characteristics of the data.

This idea is being rapidly adopted by many large companies and appears in two simple ways. The first way is achieved by adding noise to the database during data entry, whereas the second implementation, which was employed in this report, involves adding noise to a pre-existing database as chosen by the data scientist. The first method is referred to by the terms 'randomized response' or 'local differential private,' while the second method is known as the 'additive noise mechanism,' which incorporates Laplacian and Gaussian mechanisms. As previously mentioned, this study concentrated on the additive noise mechanism.

3.2 IBM Differential Privacy Framework

Several differential privacy frameworks are available, each with its unique strengths and weaknesses. The IBM differential privacy framework is among the most prevalent frameworks and offers several features that make it a great option for a variety of applications [8]. The followings are some of the main features of the IBM differential privacy framework.

- Support for a variety of data types: It can handle a wide range of data types, encompassing integers, floats, strings, and categorical data. As a result, it is a suitable option for a wide variety of applications, including machine learning, data analysis, and statistical testing.
- Robustness to noise: This feature is valuable for applications where accuracy is paramount because it has been engineered to withstand noise.
- Ease of use: It is quite user-friendly, even for those without prior knowledge in this area. As a result, it's a great option for organizations that want to implement differential privacy without significant initial investment.

• Open-Source: It has an open-source format, which al-lows it to be freely used and modified. This makes it a preferable option for organizations seeking to tailor the framework according to their specific requirements.

4 ALGORITHMS, MECHANISMS AND DATA SETS

4.1 Machine Learning Algorithms

Since the used library is based on scikit-learn [9], it offers a wide range of machine learning-based functionalities and, being open-source provides everyone with the opportunity for implementation. Although many of them were tried during this study, only classification algorithms were used to see meaningful, comparable, and unbiased results in this report.

Gaussian Naive Bayes (GNB): Naive Bayes is a classification algorithm that utilizes probability and is based on Bayes' theorem. Gaussian Naive Bayes is a particular version of Naive Bayes that assumes the features in the dataset conform to a normal (Gaussian) distribution. This algorithm generally performs well on datasets containing continuous numerical features. The algorithm calculates the mean and standard deviation of each feature for each class within the training data to determine the probabilities of the Gaussian distribution.

Random Forest (RF): A decision tree is a model for predicting outcomes in data mining and machine learning for both regression and classification tasks. Each internal node of the tree represents a feature or attribute, each branch corresponds to a decision based on that feature, and each leaf node indicates the predicted outcome or classification. The structure bears similarity to that of a tree. Random Forest extends the concept of a single decision tree, by building a set of multiple decision trees and then aggregating their predictions to arrive at a conclusion.

Logistic Regression (LG): Logistic regression is a statistical method utilized for binary classification to assess the probability of an outcome. Logistic regression, despite its name, is not a regression technique but rather a classification tool deployed for evaluating categorical data.

4.2 Mechanisms

Laplace Mechanism: It adds random noise from a Laplace distribution to the output of a query to protect individual privacy. The sensitivity of the query and the privacy parameter (ϵ) determine the amount of noise added. Increasing ϵ provides stronger privacy protection but may result in less accurate results.

4.3 Data Sets

Table 1 provides comprehensive information on the data sets used in this study.

Data sets	Size	Explanation
Wine Quality (Red) [10]	1.6k	This is a dataset where the quality of red wines is classified. It consists of numeric and binary values. As a preprocessing step, only normalization has been applied.
Wine Quality (White) [10]	5k	This is a dataset where the quality of white wines is classified. It consists of numeric and binary values. As a pre-processing step, only normalization has been applied.
California Housing Prices	20k	This is a dataset used for the regression of California house values. It consists of numeric and binary values. As a pre-processing step, the average house prices were taken, and the problem was converted into a binary classification problem based on whether the house prices are higher or lower than the average house price. Normalization was also applied.
Iris [11]	150	This is a dataset used for the classification of the Iris flower. It consists of numeric values. Only normalization has been applied as a pre-processing step.

 Table 1. Overview of the datasets

ANALYSIS AND RESULTS 5

Two methods were chosen for the comparative analysis. The first method entails comparing the Differential Privacy algorithm with the regular algorithm using the same dataset with constant parameters. The second method is to examine the effect of ϵ in the implementation of Differential Privacy. Table II shows that $\epsilon = 1$, which is the default privacy budget value, was used for all three algorithms. We applied the described preprocessing technique and used the entire dataset with a training ratio of 0.66 and a test ratio of 0.34. The algorithms were executed for the batch size values indicated on the side, and the average accuracy values resulting from them were computed. In Differential Private algorithms, Laplacian noise is included as the noise data.

_						
	GNB			RF	LG	
_	Original	With DF	Original	With DF	Original	With DF
Wine Quality (White)	54.44	46.10	66.99	52.61	61.36	36.51
Wine Quality (Red)	45.26	41.33	65.85	44.37	51.70	35.21
California Housing	75.33	70.51	87.90	61.52	82.77	82.12
Iris	69.00	58.84	96.08	79.98	92.00	38.53

Table 2. Accuracy values

The following results were obtained by varying three parameters and utilizing different algorithms, as shown in detail in the graphs below. Throughout the procedure, a training set ratio of 0.66 and a test set ratio of 0.34 were deliberately chosen, with the algorithms being executed ten times and the average result being calculated. Simultaneously, the variable epsilon (ϵ) was analyzed in two separate graphs ranging from 0 to 1 and from 1 to 8. The epsilon values utilized in all algorithms are listed below: $\epsilon = [0.05, 0.1, 0.2, 0.3, 0.5, 1.0, 2.0, 3.0, 4.0, 8.0]$.



Figure 4. Winequality-white dataset (a) GNB (b) RF (c) LR



The results indicate an expected direct relationship between the training size and accuracy. When we use larger training sizes with the same ϵ values, our machine learning algorithm using Differential Privacy approaches the accuracy achieved in its non-private state. The curve slopes exhibit similar patterns between the intervals 0-1 and 1-8. In addition, contrary to expectations, a continuous increase in accuracy is not observed as ϵ increases. An" elbow" point is observed in all the graphs, and the elbow method can be used for selecting the optimal value in a real-world application of Differential Privacy.

6 CONCLUSION

Maintaining data security is crucial to safeguard sensitive and valuable information from malicious individuals, hackers, or cybercriminals who may view, steal, or manipulate data. However, despite implementing several security measures and products, incidents of hacking still occur. Differential privacy is a popular technique used in sensitive domains because it has a significant impact on machine learning models, and it offers provable privacy guarantees. A trade-off between privacy and utility exists when using differential privacy, which can reduce learning accuracy. This study investigates whether Differential Privacy is a viable option for secure data processing and its effect on machine learning performance. We compare the performance of machine learning techniques applied to noisy data with the performance of the same techniques applied to original data. Finally, we discuss the impact of the privacy budget associated with Differential Privacy.

References

- [1] A. El Ouadrhiri and A. Abdelhadi, "Differential privacy for deep and federated learning: A survey," IEEE Access, vol. 10, pp. 22359–22380, 2022.
- [2] T. Carvalho, N. Moniz, P. Faria, and L. Antunes, "Survey on privacy-preserving techniques for microdata publication," ACM Computing Surveys, 2023.
- [3] T. Basso, R. Matsunaga, R. Moraes, and N. Antunes, "Challenges on anonymity, privacy, and big data," In 2016 Seventh Latin-American Symposium on Dependable Computing (LADC), pp. 164–171, 2016.
- [4] Y.-X. Wang, J. Lei, and S. E Fienberg, "Learning with differential privacy: Stability, learnability and the sufficiency and necessity of erm principle," The Journal of Machine Learning Research, vol. 17, no. 1, pp. 6353–6392, 2016.
- [5] H. Brendan McMahan, D. Ramage, K. Talwar, and Li Zhang, "Learning differentially private recurrent language models," *arXiv preprint arXiv:1710.06963*, 2017.
- [6] Y. Hong, Z. Huang, and C. Zhang, "A privacy-enhanced federated learning model training method," In *3rd International Conference on Artificial Intelligence, Automation, and High-Performance Computing* (AIAHPC 2023), vol. 12717, pp. 718–724, 2023.
- [7] C. Dwork, "Differential privacy," In International Colloquium on Automata, Languages, and Programming, pp. 1–12, Springer, 2006.
- [8] N. Holohan, S. Braghin, P. Mac Aonghusa, and K. Levacher, "Diffprivlib: The ibm differential privacy library," *arXiv preprint arXiv:1907.02444*, 2019.
- [9] F. Pedregosa, G. Varoquaux, A. Gramfort, V. Michel, B. Thirion, O. Grisel, M. Blondel, P. Pretten-hofer, R. Weiss, V. Dubourg, et al., "Scikit-learn: Machine learning in python," The Journal of Machine Learning Research, vol. 12, pp. 2825–2830, 2011.
- [10] P. Cortez, A. Cerdeira, F. Almeida, T. Matos, and J. Reis, "Modeling wine preferences by data mining from physicochemical properties," Decision Support Systems, vol. 47, no. 4, pp. 547–553, 1998.
- [11] R. A. Fisher. Iris. UCI Machine Learning Repository, 1988. DOI: https://doi.org/10.24432/C56C76.



A Descriptive Survey of Metaverse-related Studies in the Literature

Nazmiye Eliguzel^{*1}

¹Gaziantep Islam Science and Technology University, Industrial Engineering, 27010 Gaziantep, Turkey

Abstract

With the improvement of technology along with increased access to the internet, there has been a growing interest in the concept of the metaverse. Over the years, academic research on the topic of metaverse has been conducted in a variety of fields, including literature, art, entertainment, and education. In the proposed study, papers including the "metaverse" keyword in all fields in the Scopus database are analyzed. The aim of the study is to provide a comprehensive descriptive analysis related to the metaverse field. The proposed study is different from the other descriptive studies as follows: Firstly, a general overview is provided with bibliometric and social network analysis of all documents that include the metaverse keyword. Secondly, all documents are divided into clusters by using clustering algorithms such as particle swarm optimization (PSO) and genetic algorithm (GA) in order to obtain the center papers of each document. In order to conduct a cluster process, latent semantic analysis (LSA) is used as topic modeling. Lastly, all clusters are evaluated separately with co-word and n-gram analysis, and center papers are given in detail. As a result, a comprehensive descriptive analysis is provided in order to offer a general perspective on metaverse-related studies.

Keywords: Clustering, Descriptive analysis, Latent semantic analysis, Metaverse, Social network analysis

1 INTRODUCTION

The term "metaverse" means "beyond the universe". The term "metaverse" was first used in 1992 by Neil Stevenson in his science fiction novel Snow Crash to describe a future where virtual and real worlds collide and generate value through diverse social activities [1]. The definition of the metaverse can be divided into two parts: the early metaverse and the current metaverse [2]. Early metaverse includes second life based content. However, with the improvement of technology, the metaverse has evolved to cover novel concepts. According to the authors [2], the current metaverse can differ from the early metaverse in three aspects. The first one is related to the development of deep learning. This development enhances visual and language recognition accuracy substantially, while the creation of generative models allows for a more immersive environment and natural movement. Multimodal models were used as E2E (end-to-end) solutions using a multimodal pre-trained model to minimize processing time and complexity. Second, the metaverse was formerly reliant on PC access and had poor consistency due to time and space limits, but thanks to mobile devices that can connect to the Internet at any time, it is now able to effortlessly access the metaverse anytime, anywhere. Finally, the current metaverse varies from the previous one in that program coding can be done in the metaverse environment, and it is more connected to real life through virtual currency.

The metaverse concept needs to be understood well. In order to answer "What exactly is a metaverse" question, the elements of the metaverse (according to the Gartner report 1) is given in Figure 1 and clearly defined.

¹https://www.gartner.com/en/articles/what-is-a-metaverse


Figure 1. Elements of a metaverse (gartner.com)

"Digital Currency" is one of the elements of the metaverse. Although "digital currencies" often have some, but not all, of the features of a currency, they can also have those of a commodity or other asset. Their legal status varies from one country to the next. The subgroup has determined three key factors relating to the development of digital currencies. The first is the assets used in many digital currency schemes (such as bitcoins). The second important factor is how these digital currencies are transmitted, which is usually done through a built-in distributed ledger. The third factor is the number of third-party institutions, especially non-banks, that have been involved in the development and operation of digital currency and distributed ledger systems [3].

Customers may purchase goods and services through an interactive and self-service experience with "digital commerce". It encompasses the people, processes, and technology required to implement development content, analytics, promotion, pricing, customer acquisition, retention, and customer experience at all stages of the consumer purchasing cycle². A "marketplace" is a platform that allows customers to purchase products and services from a variety of sellers [4]. Customers buy products from online shops as well as marketplaces. The word "marketplace" is sometimes misused to refer to "online shops" having a large selection of items. Services can also be provided on marketplaces [4]. An "online shop" is different from a marketplace. In an "online shop", you have complete control over everything. However, in a "marketplace", you sell your items on a third-party platform, pay fees, and have certain things outside of your control, such as customer service and return policies³.

The other element of the metaverse is "non-fungible tokens" (NFTs). "NFTs" are rights to any digital asset, including images, videos, music, and even parts of virtual worlds, that can be traded on the block chain [5]. Some see "NFTs" as a craze, while others see them as the future of digital art. An "NFT" is a digital information (token) unit that is kept on a block chain and is not convertible with other digital assets [6].

Computation, communication, block chain, and storage are all part of the "infrastructure" layer, which is responsible for enabling the functioning of a virtual world [7]. One of the components of the metaverse to focus on is the technical and physical infrastructure.

"Device independence" refers to the ability of an end-user application's functionality to be accessed on any suitable end-device without requiring the application to be modified. Device independence is usually achieved by isolating the application from the device's lower layers [8]. A metaverse is a collaborative virtual shared area generated by the merging of virtual reality and digital reality. It is permanent, delivering more immersive experiences, and it is "device independent", making it available from tablets to head-mounted displays⁴.

"Gaming" is a highly popular element in the metaverse. Many new advancements and paradigms began with the turn of the millennium, ranging from massively multiplayer online role-playing games to serious networked gaming to just living in virtual reality [9]. According to Reis et al. [10], video game technology and culture are the entry points to the metaverse. Virtual reality has long been a strong contender in the gaming industry. Early immersive 2D games, such as Minecraft and Second Life, had components of the now-unfinished metaverse, such

²https://www.gartner.com/en/information-technology/glossary/digital-commerce

³https://blog.saleslayer.com/differences-between-ecommerce-and-marketplace

⁴https://www.gartner.com/en/newsroom/press-releases/2022-02-07-gartner-predicts-25-percent-of-people-will-spend-at-least-one-hour-per-day-in-the-metaverse-by-2026

as 3D avatars, world-building, and observation as gameplay. "Gaming" has some characteristics such as gamesas-platforms, social gaming, play to earn, the possibility of portable game assets, and mixed reality experience [11].

The introduction of a new term "digital asset" and the rapid growth of associated processes have resulted from the development of the digital economy in general and digital technology in particular [12]. Financial innovation in capital markets has created a whole new asset class—"digital assets"—as well as new fundraising and trading methods in recent years. "Digital assets" are digital representations of value that include cryptocurrencies, crypto-assets, and digital tokens, among others. Depending on their features, some "digital assets" are subject to security laws and regulations, regardless of the terms utilized to define them. "Digital assets" are assets that are created and transferred using block chain or distributed ledger technology [13].

"Concerts, social, and entertainment events" in the metaverse are one of the important issues. Many VR platforms, such as VRChat and AltspaceVR, now allow artists to create and construct their own virtual worlds, and some of these platforms have millions of users worldwide as a potential audience. The virtual world has emerged as an appropriate arena for music performances and festivals, given the terrible impact of the coronavirus epidemic on the live-music performance sector [14]. The COVID-19 pandemic, which caused the whole globe to shift to the internet for entertainment, has demonstrated to the music business that ticketed, well-produced, and compelling live streaming is here to stay. The most important live events and festivals will almost certainly have a dedicated, sleek, and transactional online component in the future. The metaverse is here to stay in music for that reason alone [15].

With metaverse, the concept of "virtual workplace" comes to the fore more. The "virtual workplace" is a place where a group of people, whether from the same country or from all over the world, collaborate using various communication technologies regardless of where they are, when they start or finish their tasks, or how they complete their daily tasks, and regardless of their culture, nationality, race, gender, disability, or age" [16]. Virtual workplaces, in which people work away from their coworkers and bosses, are now a reality and will become more so in the future [17].

The metaverse began to attract the attention of the general public when social media titans and major technological corporations declared it to be the internet's future. Given the importance of "social media", particularly for the Z generation, investments in the metaverse are influencing future technology [18].

"Digital humans" are 3D virtual objects that resemble humans and can mimic human qualities such as physical motions, facial expressions, conversational back-and-forth, and so on⁵. Virtual simulation, which is related to virtual reality and "digital human modeling" technologies, employs computer modeling and simulation technology, which has been widely used in education, health, entertainment, culture, sports, engineering, the military forces, and other fields for more than a half-century. "Digital human modeling" is a quick, virtual portrayal of humans that uses a computer to imitate a real-world situation but does not include interactivity [19].

The last element of the metaverse is "natural language processing (NLP)". "NLP" is a technique that enables spoken human-computer communication. NLP parses the inputs and extracts application-specific, grammatically accurate content, which it then matches with a specific domain knowledge base, utilizing speech recognition as the input modality [20]. When it comes to intelligent virtual assistants, "NLP" plays a critical role in the metaverse (a.k.a., chat bots). "NLP" is primarily responsible for allowing chat bots to comprehend complex human communication in the context of many dialects and tones [21].

One of the contributions of this research is to find the most focused papers in the area of metaverse by comparing the various meta-heuristic techniques such as genetic algorithm (GA) and particle swarm optimization (PSO). The aim of applying different clustering techniques is to provide optimum results in order to find the most accurate centers. In addition, latent semantic analysis (LSA) is used to obtain a document-to-topic matrix before the clustering process. The other contribution is to provide an analysis related to each cluster obtained by meta-heuristic techniques. Each cluster is examined with n-gram and co-word analysis techniques. Another contribution is to implement a bibliographic analysis tool for all documents related to the metaverse in order to demonstrate social networks. Thanks to all these contributions, the current status of the metaverse concept can be realized. The research questions for the proposed paper are listed as follows:

⁵https://www.xrtoday.com/virtual-reality/what-are-digital-humans-conversational-bots-like-youve-never-seen-before/

- Q1. What are the papers' years, types, and subject areas?
- Q2. In which research areas are metaverse concepts studied?
- Q3. What are the results of clusters after applying GA and PSO?
- Q4. What are the center papers of each cluster?
- Q5. Which words are mostly seen in each cluster together?
- Q6. What are the possible gaps in the literature about the metaverse concept?

The aim of the proposed study is answer these questions and provide a descriptive analysis about metaverse concept. Therefore, some useful insights on metaverse can be provided.

The rest of the paper is organized as follows: section 2 represents the methodology including initial assessment of the literature, pre-processing stage, application of LSA, and GA and PSO applications. Section 3 presents the results and discussions. Finally, conclusion part is provided.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

This section represents the methods used in the proposed study. Different from the traditional bibliometric and social network analysis, papers related to the metaverse are divided into clusters and each cluster is evaluated separately. The proposed study represents the center papers among the all other papers that include "metaverse" keyword. A descriptive analysis is applied to provide a comprehensive analysis about the metaverse related academic papers. In Figure 2 flowchart of the proposed methodology is given.



Figure 2. Flowchart of the methodology

In the first part that is 'initial assessment of the literature' is presented. In this part, papers including "metaverse" keyword in all fields in the Scopus database are analyzed on October 26, 2023. The total of 1866 documents were found, and 1843 papers were accessed among them. Documents are demonstrated according to the subject area, year, and document type. VOSviewer is chosen as analytical tool to demonstrate abstract and title keywords of all papers together with co-authors authorships, organizations, and countries. After the general analysis of all the papers, pre-processing stage is applied in order to remove stop words, URLs ((Uniform Resource Locator), papers doi numbers, and other unnecessary words. After the pre-processing stage, LSA is used to obtain semantic structure of the documents. By applying LSA method, the relationship between documents are handled. LSA gives the good performance when the corpus size is decreased and it is a stable method [22, 23]. For that reasons, LSA is considered as topic modeling. Then, GA and PSO algorithms era utilized for clustering. The reason behind applying both PSO and GA algorithms are to evaluate results of both applications. Lastly, all clusters are evaluated by using VOSviewer and n-gram analysis. The center papers of each cluster are given in detailed.

2.1 Initial Assessment of the Literature

In the proposed study, the number of 1843 documents that contains metaverse keyword is analyzed from general perspective. By using Scopus database on October 26, 2023, types, years, and subject areas of the documents are demonstrated in Figures 5, 6, and 7. After that, VOSviewer ⁶ (Visualizing scientific landscapes) that is a software tool to create and visualize bibliometric networks is used to provide a general overview of the abstracts of the documents (see Figure 8).

2.2 Pre-Processing Stage

Before applying the LSA, this stage is important to make accurate analysis. In this stage, stop words, punctuation, dates, URLs, doi numbers of papers, publishers, and other unnecessary parts are removed for all abstract of the 1843 documents.

2.3 Latent Semantic Analysis (LSA)

LSA is used to find the relationships between the text documents. It considers the semantic structure of text documents to enhance the identification of topical documents based on terms within queries [24]. That is, LSA is

⁶ https://www.vosviewer.com/

interested in similarity of words meanings. Human-created dictionaries are not used by LSA. It only accepts raw text that has been broken down into words, pieces, or samples like paragraphs and phrases. To begin, the text is represented as a matrix, with each row representing a unique word and each column representing a document. Each cell includes the frequency with which the word in its row appears in the document denoted by its column. Following that, a preliminary transformation is applied to the cell entries [25]. For dimension reduction, LSA employs singular value decomposition (SVD). It is depicted as an information retrieval technique based on spectral analysis of the term-document matrix [26]. Let the corpus be represented as a term-by-document matrix R (m x k), with m distinct words in a collection of k documents. In Figure 3, a representational SVD is used for the dimension reduction of the term-by-document matrix.



Figure 3. Schematic representation of SVD

The formulation of SVD is given by Eq. 1.

$$R = USV^T \tag{1}$$

where R refers an arbitrary real matrix with the dimension m x k, U: m x n rectangular matrix, S: n x n diagonal matrix, S=diag(S_1, \ldots, S_n), V: n x k transpose eigenvector matrix. R can be decomposed into a rectangular matrix, diagonal matrix, and transpose eigenvector matrix [27].

The n greatest singular values and their associated singular vectors, as given in Eq. 2, are used to approximate the initial term by document matrix [24].

$$R_n = U_n S_n V_n^T \tag{2}$$

where U_n is called as the first n columns of the matrix U, and V_n^T is covered of the first n rows of matrix V^T. S_n is the first n factors [28]. The LSA process is implemented in the proposed study using the MATLAB R2021a software ⁷. It is used on pre-processed text. According to the "validation perplexity" and "number of topics (components)", and "time elapsed" graph (see Figure 4), the number of components, which is specified as a positive integer, namely data-object (features), is determined to be five.



Figure 4. Relationship between validation perplexity and time elapsed

⁷MathWorks, http://www.mathworks.com/help/textanalytics/ref/ fitlsa.html

A lower validation perplexity is associated with greater fit in text analytics. Lower perplexity in a language model leads to less recognition confusion and improved speech-recognition accuracy [29]. In addition, choosing a larger number of topics can result in a better fit, but convergence takes time [30]. By considering all these criteria, the number of components are taken as five. After obtaining a document x component matrix (1843 x 5), GA and PSO algorithms are utilized in order to obtain important clusters.

2.4 Application of GA and PSO

The term GA was first used by John Holland (1992). A GA is an optimization technique that has been inspired by biological progression [32]. General formulation of GA is given as follows [33]:

```
Choose an initial population of chromosomes

while termination condition not satisfied do

repeat

if crossover condition satisfied then

{select parent chromosomes;

choose crossover parameters;

perform crossover};

if mutation condition satisfied then

{choose mutation points;

perform mutation};

evaluate fitness offspring

until sufficient offspring created;

select new population;

end while
```

It assumes user-specified conditions for crossover and mutation, the creation of a new population, and the termination of the entire process.

In the proposed study, the GA code which is written by Mostapha Kalami Heris [34] is used in order to obtain clusters. The objective function of the algorithm is based on minimization of sum of within-cluster distances. According to the component x document matrix obtained by LSA process, and the distance matrix is calculated by using Euclidean distance. After that, clusters are assigned and closest distances are founded. The last operation of objective function is to minimize sum of within cluster distances. It is assumed that increasing the number of topics can lead to a deviance from the points that should be focused [35]. Therefore, the cluster number is chosen as five by taking literature.

PSO is well known meta-heuristic method and it is utilized to solve optimization problems. PSO was first developed by Kennedy and Mendes (2002). It is based on the some animals' intelligent collective behaviors, such as fish schooling and bird flocking [37]. The formulation of PSO is given as follows [38]:

```
for each particle
Initialize particle
end
do
for each particle
calculate fitness value
if the fitness value is better than the best fitness value in history
set current value as the new best fitness value
end
choose the particle with the best fitness value of all the particles
for each particle
calculate particle velocity
update particle position
end
```

while maximum iterations or minimum error criteria is not attained

In the proposed study, the PSO code which is written by Mostapha Kalami Heris [34] is used in order to make comparison with GA. The reason behind making comparison is to find most accurate clusters among all documents. Objective value (fitness value), and number of clusters are same with objective value of GA.

2.5 N-gram analysis

An "n-gram" is a sequence of n words [39]: a 2-gram (called a bigram) is a two-word sequence of words such as "virtual reality", "second life", or "augmented reality", and a 3-gram (called a trigram) is a three-word sequence of phrases such as "green consumption value", "virtual world platform". In the proposed study, after the GA and PSO applications, abstracts of papers in each cluster are evaluated by using bigram analysis.

3 RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS

In the prosed study, 1843 papers are analysed to obtain a general perspective for metaverse concept. The first research question intends to reveal types, years, and subject areas of the documents (see Figures 5, 6, and 7).





Figure 5 illustrates that articles outnumber other types of papers. Conference papers closely follow in number, while there is a notable scarcity of reviews, editorial papers, and notes discussing the concept of the metaverse. In addition, there are not many book chapters.



Figure 6. Years of the documents

Figure 6 represents an interesting piece of information. The documents, according to the years, demonstrate random trends. In particular, in the year 2019, there are very few documents that include metaverse keyword a decrease seems to have occurred after 2018. The reason behind that could be the COVID-19 pandemic effect. After 2019, there is an increasing trend in the number of documents. In the year 2023, a considerable number of research papers have been published relating to the metaverse concept.



Figure 7. Subject area of the documents

Metaverse is a concern in a variety of fields. Elements of the metaverse affect people in different ways. Therefore, studies related to the metaverse are expected to cover a wide area. As seen from Figure 7, the computer science area focuses on metaverse concepts much more. The other much-focused areas are engineering, social sciences, business, management, and account, decision sciences, mathematics, medicine, arts and humanities, economics, physics and astronomy, energy, respectively.



Figure 8. Social network analysis of all abstracts

In the second research question, co-occurrences of the words are analyzed through social network analysis. The number of four cluster is seen in Figure 8. The yellow cluster encompasses various data science topics, including machine learning, deep learning, neural networks, and other data-related concepts. The green cluster focuses on education. The red cluster demonstrates technology concepts such as blockchain, internet, applications, security, and digital twin. The blue cluster is related to society, business, and management. The words in the cluster are marketing, consumer, brand, society, and virtual world.

The third research question intends to find the clusters of all papers by applying GA and PSO. By considering different population sizes and iteration numbers, the GA and PSO methods are applied. The cluster number is taken as 5. Each algorithm has been run five times for different population sizes and iteration numbers. Figure 9 demonstrates various graphs, including 100 population numbers with 200 iteration numbers, 100 population numbers with 500 iteration numbers, and 200 population numbers with 200 iteration numbers, respectively for all runs. Each point over the lines demonstrates a run. In that way, the consistencies of both methods are obtained by considering the results of each run.



Figure 9. Results of GA and PSO for five runs

As seen from Figure 9, PSO provided the best results with a population of 100 and 200 iterations. When compared to elapsed times for GA and PSO, GA reaches the result faster than the PSO algorithm. The best objective value of PSO is found to be 161.08. The positions of clusters for the best objective value in PSO are given as follows:

Table 4. Positions of 5 clusters for PSO						
[0.107910624	0.0514891074	0.0386562793	0.0176728462	0.0209881841]		
[0.0694349740	-0.019046033	-0.00252348331	-0.100840444	0.00326834183]		
[0.0799025022	-0.293969864	0.167685190	0.0826490254	0.0607482688]		
[0.0766635942	-0.0267414348	-0.0763808781	0.0124554141	0.0352062339]		
[0.0568804944	-0.00569966686	-0.0100194584	0.00434621555	-0.0264811991]		

Figure 10a represents a visualization of the positions for the best objective value in PSO. In addition, changes in objective value according to the iteration number are given in Figure 10b.



Figure 10. a. Positions of each cluster b. Objective value based on iteration number

As seen from Figure 10a, four clusters are closer to each other. However, one cluster is far from these four clusters. Both results of PSO and GA with various population sizes and iteration numbers, that cluster is found as in Figure 10a. Figure 10b indicates that the objective value is stabilized after iteration 150.

Research question 4 seeks to identify the central papers within each cluster. The present study involves the analysis of a total of 1843 papers. Following the use of clustering algorithms, the resultant outcome consists of central papers representing the entirety of the documents. Sequentially, the records present the papers in the center of attention as 1186 (cluster 1), 1649 (cluster 2), 832 (cluster 3), 968 (cluster 4), and 1204 (cluster 5).

We explain the center papers of each cluster in detail. In addition, after the explanation of each center paper, the answers to research questions 5 and 6 are sought. An analysis is conducted on the abstracts of papers in each cluster separately. In that way, the most frequently seen words in each cluster are analyzed using the n-gram analysis. In addition, the sub-clusters according to the co-occurrences of words are evaluated using the VOS viewer. Cluster 1 has 524 papers. Similarly, cluster 2 has 463 papers, cluster 3 has 67 papers, cluster 4 has 453 papers, and cluster 5 has 336 papers. Here are the center papers of each cluster and a detailed analysis of these clusters:

The center paper of cluster 1 is titled "Designing the metaverse: A study on inclusion, diversity, equity, accessibility and safety for digital immersive environments" [40]. This paper investigated several problems and

opportunities that effect the structure of the metaverse. A qualitative ethnographic study was conducted, with industry experts, to examine the social implications of the metaverse from the perspectives of inclusion, diversity, equity, accessibility, and safety. The aim of the study was to identify the necessary steps that businesses need to take in response to these issues. The findings of the study revealed the extensive scope of forthcoming research inquiries that necessitate resolution. Moreover, these findings facilitated the development of effective methodologies for constructing an all-encompassing, easily accessible, secure metaverse that ensures fairness and inclusivity. An analysis was conducted on the abstracts of 524 papers within cluster 1. Figure 11 illustrates the sub-clusters inside cluster 1, taking into account the 524 papers.



Figure 11. Network visualization of cluster 1 (minimum number co-occurrences of a term is 10)

The co-world analysis of the abstracts of cluster 1 represents four sub-clusters: the red one is focused on the words: user experience, consume, marketing, brand, design, business, organization, practical application; the yellow one: sector, product, role, universe, foundation, economy; the green one: technology, application, challenge, blockchain, internet, system, communication, sustainability, security, and finally the blue one: virtual world, society, education, life support, person, scholar, and trend. As understood from Figure 11, cluster 1 is centered on the business and management, economy, technology, and education. In Figure 12, bigram analysis for cluster 1 is demonstrated.



Figure 12. N-gram (bigram) analysis for cluster 1

According to the n-gram analysis results, the two most common sequential words are "virtual world", "virtual reality", and "artificial intelligence" which are seen together in the papers from cluster 1. This cluster focuses on the term "virtual." In addition, the other striking sequential words are "real world", "digital twin", "virtual environment", and "security privacy". These words indicate that the studies in cluster 1 emphasizes technology concept.

The center paper of cluster 2 is titled "Regulating the Metaverse, a Blueprint for the Future" [41]. In contemporary times, prominent organizations have aptly labeled the emerging concept as "the metaverse", a term popularized by Meta and other influential platforms. These corporations are presently allocating substantial financial resources, amounting to billions of dollars, towards the development and implementation of immersive virtual environments. These environments are designed to cater to a wide range of everyday activities, including but not limited to social interactions, commercial transactions, educational pursuits, and professional endeavors. Given the potential proliferation of corporate-controlled metaverse environments in society during the next decade, it becomes imperative to contemplate the potential threats to consumers and establish comprehensive regulatory measures. This assertion holds particular validity in view of the unanticipated adverse consequences that social media platforms have exerted on society in recent times. In the paper proposed by Rosenberg, an analysis was presented that includes potential hazards associated with the metaverse as well as suggestions for implementing appropriate regulatory measures. In Figure 13, sub-clusters of cluster 2 are presented. Cluster 2 includes 463 papers.



Figure 13. Network visualization of cluster 2 (minimum number co-occurrences of a term is 10)

Using the VOSviewer, the cluster 2 is divided into 4 sub-clusters. The red area covers words such as virtual world, experience, application, development, consumer, brand, product. The blue area includes words such as technology, avatar, virtual environment, virtual reality, augmented reality, social media, entertainment, blockchain technology, artificial intelligence. The green area demonstrates the words of user, system, service, interaction, challenge, communication, information, user experience, digital avatar. Finally, the yellow area focuses on the words: real world, use, and content. As seen from the sub-clusters, the second cluster focused more on technology concepts. Furthermore, cluster 2 shows the presence of concepts related to the business and entertainment sectors. Bigram analysis of cluster 2 is given in Figure 14.



As seen from Figure 14, "virtual world" is the most commonly used term. "Virtual reality" comes right after that. In this cluster, the sequential words "real world", "virtual environment", "physical world", "augmented reality", "virtual space", "digital twin", and "artificial intelligence" demonstrate that cluster 2 emphasizes basic principles of the metaverse.

The center paper of cluster 3 is entitled "Remote Sensing Data Fusion Techniques, Multimodal Behavioral Predictive and Mobile Location Analytics, and Spatial Cognition and Context Awareness Algorithms in the Metaverse Economy" [42]. The objective of the study was to investigate the analysis of large-scale geospatial data and user trip analytics, as well as the exploration of metaverse assets and services, and the utilization of cyber-physical cognitive and immersive visualization systems. The authors made significant contributions to the academic field of virtual modeling and immersive 3D technologies, as well as context awareness and machine vision algorithms, and sensor and actuator devices. Their research demonstrated that the development of immersive digital worlds necessitates the utilization of computer vision and cognitive decision-making algorithms, deep learning-based sensing and spatial computing technologies, and virtual navigation and data mining tools. In Figure 15, sub-clusters of cluster 3 are presented. Cluster 3 includes 67 papers.



Figure 15. Network visualization of cluster 3 (minimum number co-occurrences of a term is 10)

In cluster 3, there are only sixty-seven papers, and three sub-clusters are visible. The green area includes virtual economy, empirical source, insufficient data, irrelevant data. The blue area includes service, unimportant data, asset. The red area includes prisma, data visualization, dimension, quality assessment, machine learning, blockchain, replication, database. It is seen that cluster 3 focuses on data and data related concepts. Bigram analysis of cluster 3 is demonstrated as follows (see Figure 16):



Figure 16. N-gram (bigram) analysis for cluster 3

According to the n-gram analysis, it is seen that cluster 3 is mostly related to data and visualization. The most used term is "quality assessment", and "assessment tool" follows that term. The other sequential terms are as follows: "datum visualization", "visualization tool", "web science", "eligibility criterion", "empirical source", "source datum", "tool dimension".

The center paper of cluster 4 is entitled "Optimizing Energy Efficiencies of IoT-based Wireless Sensor Network Components for Metaverse Sustainable Development using Carry Resist Adder based Booth Recoder (CRABRA)" [43]. The energy consumption of the enabling technologies of the Metaverse, such as the Internet of Things (IoT) and Wireless Sensor Networks (WSN), is widely acknowledged to be significant. To address these limitations, the researchers proposed the implementation of energy-efficient systems that incorporate algorithms characterized by high-performance and high-speed capabilities. The latency resulting from the generation of odd multiples was mitigated through the utilization of the Chinese Remainder Algorithm (CRA). The study conducted a comparative analysis between various present approaches and the proposed CRABRA methodology, focusing on power consumption, delay, and area. Due to the precise execution of CRABRA in performing addition operations, the inclusion of an error-compensation circuit became unnecessary, resulting in significant space savings. Figure 17 demonstrates sub-clusters of cluster 4. There are 453 papers in cluster 4.



Figure 17. Network visualization of cluster 4 (minimum number co-occurrences of a term is 10)

In cluster 4, there are five sub-clusters. The purple area includes terms such as development, space, challenge, service, healthcare. The blue area focuses on study, research, science, knowledge, practice, work, and field. The green area emphasizes technology, education, innovation, opportunity, consumer, marketing, pandemic, and society. And lastly, the red area is based on model, process, problem, performance, network, system, simulation, and application. In Figure 18, bigram analysis of cluster 4 is given.



Cluster 4 includes basic components of the metaverse that are "virtual reality", "digital twin", "artificial intelligence", and "internet thing". In addition, there are some other terms such as "new technology", "blockchain technology, "visual world", "mental health", "augmented reality, "digital technology", and "extended reality".

The center paper of cluster 5 is entitled "Evaluation of Metaverse integration of freight fluidity measurement alternatives using fuzzy Dombi EDAS model" [44]. The paper presented a proposed integrated decision-making methodology for prioritizing the choices for measuring freight fluidity. Three potential methods for assessing freight fluidity were suggested: taking no action, incorporating freight operations into the metaverse for fluidity measurement, and establishing global control of freight activities to measure fluidity using existing data. In Figure 19, sub-clusters of cluster 5 are presented. Cluster 5 includes 336 papers.



Figure 19. Network visualization of cluster 5 (minimum number co-occurrences of a term is 10)

There are 5 sub-clusters in cluster 5. The green area is mostly related to environment, system, process, data, model, technique, and information. The purple area focuses on technology, analysis, research, and knowledge. The red area includes words such as student, learning, virtual reality, teacher, teaching, and class. The blue area focuses on experience, theory, survey, industry, user, theory, avatar, and enjoyment. Lastly, the yellow area is related to interaction, creation, challenge, opportunity, privacy, training. It is seen that cluster 5 is mostly based on education and technology. Bigram analysis of cluster 5 is demonstrated as follows:



Figure 20. N-gram (bigram) analysis for cluster 5

According to Fig. 20, it can be said that, cluster 5 focuses on the education for the metaverse concept. The most common terms are "virtual reality", "learning environment", "learning experience", "high education", "online learning", "virtual world", "virtual environment", "user experience", "teaching team".

Throughout the proposed study, five research questions are clarified. A brief summary of the answers to these questions is given below. After that, research question 6 is explained according to the first nine research questions.

- In the first research question (Q1. What are the papers' years, types, and subject areas?), the papers that include metaverse keywords are analyzed according to their years, types, and subject areas.
- In order to explain the second research question (Q2. In which research areas are metaverse concepts studied?). VOSviewer analysis is conducted by considering the abstracts of 1843 papers.
- In order to clarify research question 3, (Q3. What are the clusters after applying GA and PSO?) GA and PSO algorithms are applied. PSO provided better results than GA. Therefore, we consider clusters obtained by applying PSO.
- After finding clusters, the center papers of each cluster are identified (Q4. What are the center papers of each cluster?).
- N-gram analysis and social network analysis are conducted by considering all the abstracts of each cluster in order to explain research question 5 (Q5. Which words are mostly seen in each cluster together?). The VOSviewer tool is applied and sub-clusters of each cluster are obtained and clarified.

The last research question aims to reveal possible gaps in the literature about the metaverse concept (Q6. What are the possible gaps in the literature about the metaverse concept?).

- The first gap in the literature is that most of the elements of the metaverse, such as "Digital Currency", "Marketplace", "Digital Commerce", "Device Independence", "Digital Asset", "Concert", "Online Shopping", "Workplace", and "Natural Language Processing", have not been considered together with the metaverse concept.
- Most of the studies include the basic components of the metaverse, such as "augmented reality", "virtual reality", "virtual world". In addition, gaming, music (entertainment), and education are popular fields in the metaverse. However, more studies in these fields should be conducted as there are still so many missing. In addition, there is a need for studies related to the metaverse in some special fields, such as supply chain, war, and etc.

4 CONCLUSION

The proposed paper investigates academic studies on the metaverse concept through a combination of text mining methods, which is LSA, and clustering methods (GA, PSO), with social network analysis. The aim of the study is to provide a big-picture approach to the metaverse field. The proposed study examines papers in the Scopus database that contain the keyword "metaverse" in all categories. The following are some of the ways that the proposed study differs from existing descriptive studies: To begin with, bibliometric and social network analysis of all documents containing the metaverse keyword provides a broad perspective. Second, all documents are grouped into clusters using PSO and GA to determine each document's center papers. Topic modeling is used to conduct a cluster process by applying LSA. Finally, co-word and n-gram analysis are used to evaluate each cluster separately, and center papers are detailed. Thorough the paper, six research questions are revealed and answered according to the mentioned analyses. Some sequential steps are implemented. All documents related to the metaverse are analyzed according to their years, types, and subject areas. VOSviewer analysis is conducted by taking the abstracts of 1843 papers into account. For clustering all documents, GA and PSO are applied. PSO gives better results than GA. Therefore, clusters that are provided by the application of PSO are considered. A total of five clusters are obtained. After the clustering process, the center papers of each cluster are explained. In addition, n-gram analysis and social network analysis are conducted for each cluster by considering all the abstracts of papers within these clusters. Sub-clusters of each cluster are clarified. This study contributes significantly to the literature on the metaverse topic by identifying trends and gaps in the stated database and proposing recommendations for future research.

This descriptive analysis indicates some types of limitations. The first one is that only the Scopus database is considered. Namely, other studies that are not in the Scopus database of literature are not included. Furthermore, the proposed literature is solely available in English because of the selected database. Therefore, the final literature will be unable to cover all available research networks and recent trends.

References

- [1] N. Stephenson, Snow Crash. New York, NY: USA: Bantam Books, 1992.
- [2] S. M. Park and Y. G. Kim, "A Metaverse: Taxonomy, Components, Applications, and Open Challenges," IEEE Access, vol. 10, pp. 4209–4251, 2022, doi: 10.1109/ACCESS.2021.3140175.
- [3] "Committee on Payments and Market Infrastructures," CPMI Rep. Digit. currencies, no. November, 2015.
- [4] A. Kawa and M. Wałęsiak, "Marketplace as a key actor in e-commerce value networks," Logforum, vol. 15, no. 4, pp. 521–529, 2019, doi: 10.17270/J.LOG.2019.351.
- [5] M. Dowling, "Fertile LAND: Pricing non-fungible tokens," Financ. Res. Lett., vol. 44, no. March 2021, p. 102096, 2022, doi: 10.1016/j.frl.2021.102096.
- [6] U. W. Chohan, "Non-Fungible Tokens: Blockchains, Scarcity, and Value," SSRN Electron. J., 2021, doi: 10.2139/ssrn.3822743.
- [7] H. Duan, J. Li, S. Fan, Z. Lin, X. Wu, and W. Cai, "Metaverse for Social Good: A University Campus Prototype," in Proceedings of the 29th ACM International Conference on Multimedia, 2021, pp. 153–161, doi: 10.1145/3474085.3479238.
- [8] J. Chmielewski, "Device-Independent Architecture for ubiquitous applications," Pers. Ubiquitous Comput., vol. 18, no. 2, pp. 481–488, 2014, doi: 10.1007/s00779-013-0666-y.
- [9] A. Sourin, "Case study: shared virtual and augmented environments for creative applications. In Research and development in the academy, creative industries and applications," in Springer, Cham., 2017, pp. 49– 64.
- [10] A. Baía Reis and M. Ashmore, "From video streaming to virtual reality worlds: an academic, reflective, and creative study on live theatre and performance in the metaverse," Int. J. Perform. Arts Digit. Media, pp. 1–22, 2022, doi: 10.1080/14794713.2021.2024398.
- [11] Trendhunter, "Trend Report 2021," no. 1, pp. 1990–2020, 2021.
- [12] A. A. Kud, "Substantiation of the Term 'Digital Asset': Economic and Legal Aspects," Int. J. Educ. Sci., pp. 33–44, 2019, doi: 10.26697/ijes.2019.1.06.
- [13] E. Su, "Digital Assets and SEC Regulation," 2021. [Online]. Available: https://sgp.fas.org/crs/misc/R46208.pdf.
- [14] L.-H. Lee et al., When Creators Meet the Metaverse: A Survey on Computational Arts, vol. 00, no. 0. Association for Computing Machinery, 2021.
- [15] Reed Smith, "Reed Smith Guide to the Metaverse," vol. 1, no. 1, 2021.
- [16] N. Fathy El Dessouky, "The virtual workplace : A new alternative FOR VIRTUAL WORKPLACE," in In Peer-reviewed research accepted by the 15th World Multiconference on Systemics, Cybernetics and Informatics (WMSCI 2011, 2011, pp. 19–22.

- [17] W. F. Cascio, "Managing a virtual workplace," Acad. Manag. Exec., vol. 14, no. 3, pp. 81–90, 2000, doi: 10.5465/ame.2000.4468068.
- [18] N. G. Narin, "A Content Analysis of the Metaverse Articles," J. Metaverse, vol. 1, no. 1, pp. 17–24, 2021, [Online]. Available: https://lens.org/132-852-388-772-732.
- [19] A. G. da Silva, M. V. M. Gomes, and I. Winkler, "Virtual Reality and Digital Human Modeling for Ergonomic Assessment in Industrial Product Development: A Patent and Literature Review," Appl. Sci., vol. 12, no. 3, 2022, doi: 10.3390/app12031084.
- [20] C. I. Guinn, C. I. Guinn, and R. J. Montoya, "Natural Language Processing in Virtual Reality Training Environments," Modern Simulation and Training," Proc. Interservice/Industry Train. Syst. Educ. Conf., vol. 6, pp. 44–55, 1998, [Online]. Available: http://citeseerx.ist.psu.edu/viewdoc/summary?doi=10.1.1.137.5687.
- [21] T. Huynh-The, Q.-V. Pham, X.-Q. Pham, T. T. Nguyen, Z. Han, and D.-S. Kim, "Artificial Intelligence for the Metaverse: A Survey," arXiv, pp. 1–24, 2022, [Online]. Available: http://arxiv.org/abs/2202.10336.
- [22] E. Altszyler, M. Sigman, S. Ribeiro, and D. F. Slezak, "Comparative study of LSA vs Word2vec embeddings in small corpora: a case study in dreams database," pp. 1–14, 2016, doi: 10.1016/j.concog.2017.09.004.
- [23] M. Naili, A. H. Chaibi, and H. H. Ben Ghezala, "Comparative study of word embedding methods in topic segmentation," Procedia Comput. Sci., vol. 112, pp. 340–349, 2017, doi: 10.1016/j.procs.2017.08.009.
- [24] S. Deerwester, S. T. Dumais, G. W. Furnas, and T. K. Landauer, "Indexing by Latent Semantic Analysis," J. Am. Soc. Inf. Sci., vol. 41, no. 6, pp. 391–407, 1990.
- [25] T. K. Landauer, P. W. Foltz, and D. Laham, "An introduction to latent semantic analysis," Discourse Process., vol. 25, no. 2–3, pp. 259–284, 1998, doi: 10.1080/01638539809545028.
- [26] C. H. Papadimitriou, P. Raghavan, H. Tamaki, and S. Vempala, "Latent semantic indexing: A probabilistic analysis," J. Comput. Syst. Sci., vol. 61, no. 2, pp. 217–235, 2000, doi: 10.1006/jcss.2000.1711.
- [27] R. J. Steinhagen, "Introduction to Beam-based Feedback Design," in Proceedings of 5th CARE-HHH-ABI Workshop on "Schottky, Tune and Chromaticity Diagnostic (with real time feedback)", 2007, pp. 84–92.
- [28] W. Song and S. C. Park, "Genetic algorithm for text clustering based on latent semantic indexing," Comput. Math. with Appl., vol. 57, no. 11–12, pp. 1901–1907, 2009, doi: 10.1016/j.camwa.2008.10.010.
- [29] C.-H. Chueh, H.-M. Wang, and J.-T. Chien, "A maximum entropy approach for semantic language modeling," Comput. Linguist. Chinese Lang. Process., vol. 11, no. 1, pp. 37–56, 2006.
- [30] N. Eligüzel, C. Çetinkaya, and T. Dereli, "A state-of-art optimization method for analyzing the tweets of earthquake-prone region," Neural Comput. Appl., vol. 33, no. 21, pp. 14687–14705, 2021, doi: 10.1007/s00521-021-06109-0.
- [31] J. Holland, Adaptation in Natural and Artificial Systems. University of Michigan Press Ann Arbor, Michigan; re-issued by MIT Press, 1992.
- [32] M. Oksuz, S. Satoglu, and G. Kayakutlu, "A Genetic Algorithm for the P-Median Facility Location Problem," Researchgate.Net, no. September, 2016, [Online]. Available: https://www.researchgate.net/profile/Sule_Satoglu/publication/305380696_A_Genetic_Algorithm_for_th e_p-Median_Facility_Location_Problem/links/57ed51a808ae03fa0e82946d/A-Genetic-Algorithm-forthe-p-Median-Facility-Location-Problem.pdf.
- [33] C. Reeves, "Chapter 3 Genetic Algorithm Part A: Background," Inf. Sci. (Ny)., no. May, 1975, doi: 10.1007/978-1-4419-1665-5.
- [34] M. K. Heris, "ypml101-evolutionary-clustering," Yarpiz, 2015. https://yarpiz.com/64/ypml101evolutionary-clustering.
- [35] N. Alnajran, K. Crockett, D. McLean, and A. Latham, "Cluster analysis of twitter data: A review of algorithms," ICAART 2017 - Proc. 9th Int. Conf. Agents Artif. Intell., vol. 2, no. Icaart, pp. 239–249, 2017, doi: 10.5220/0006202802390249.
- [36] J. Kennedy and R. Mendes, "Population structure and particle swarm performance," Proc. 2002 Congr. Evol. Comput. CEC 2002, vol. 2, pp. 1671–1676, 2002, doi: 10.1109/CEC.2002.1004493.
- [37] H. P. Dai, D. D. Chen, and Z. S. Zheng, "Effects of random values for particle swarm optimization algorithm," Algorithms, vol. 11, no. 2, pp. 1–20, 2018, doi: 10.3390/A11020023.
- [38] A. A. Hudaib and A. K. AL Hwaitat, "Movement Particle Swarm Optimization Algorithm," Mod. Appl. Sci., vol. 12, no. 1, p. 148, 2017, doi: 10.5539/mas.v12n1p148.
- [39] J. Daniel and J. H. Martin, "N-gram Language Models," in Speech and Language Processing, 2021.
- [40] M. Zallio and P. J. Clarkson, "Designing the metaverse: A study on inclusion, diversity, equity, accessibility and safety for digital immersive environments," Telemat. Informatics, vol. 75, no. March, p. 101909, 2022, doi: 10.1016/j.tele.2022.101909.
- [41] L. B. Rosenberg, "Regulating the Metaverse, a Blueprint for the Future," in Extended Reality, Lecture Notes in Computer Science, 2022, pp. 263–272.
- [42] J. Horak, L. C. Voumik, and G. H. Popescu, "Remote Sensing Data Fusion Techniques, Multimodal

Behavioral Predictive and Mobile Location Analytics, and Spatial Cognition and Context Awareness Algorithms in the Metaverse Economy," Linguist. Philos. Investig., vol. 22, pp. 77–93, 2023, doi: 10.22381/lpi2220235.

- [43] C. R. Kumar J and M. A. Majid, "Optimizing Energy Efficiencies of IoT-based Wireless Sensor Network Components for Metaverse Sustainable Development using Carry Resist Adder based Booth Recoder (CRABRA)," 20th Int. Learn. Technol. Conf. (L&T) 2023, pp. 91–96, 2023, doi: 10.1109/LT58159.2023.10092334.
- [44] M. Deveci, I. Gokasar, O. Castillo, and T. Daim, "Evaluation of Metaverse integration of freight fluidity measurement alternatives using fuzzy Dombi EDAS model," Comput. Ind. Eng., vol. 174, 2022, doi: 10.1016/j.cie.2022.108773.



Scalogram Based Spoken Digit Classification via Deep Learning

Mustafa Alptekin Engin^{*1}, Latif Akcay¹

¹Bayburt University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

Machines have an indispensable place in our lives. It is of great importance that many applications we commonly use to facilitate our daily lives through these machines can detect digit sounds with high accuracy. This study used the Free Spoken Digit Dataset (FSDD), which contains 3000 audio data created by people with different mother tongues vocalising the digits from 0 to 9 in English. In this database, voice recordings of each number were used as a class in the classification process. Then, scalogram images of all sounds in the database were obtained. VGG16, VGG19, Densenet201, InceptionV3 and MobileNetV2, deep learning-based classification models with proven success in the literature, were applied to these images with transfer learning. In the classification phase, 90% of all data were used in the training phase and 10% in the test phase. As a result, the classification accuracy value of the VGG16 architecture was determined as 97% as the most successful architecture among the classification methods used.

Keywords: Sound classification, Deep learning, Signal processing

1 INTRODUCTION

The problem of classifying speech sounds with high accuracy independent of the speaker remains popular today. The identification of speech sounds by machines is a technology in the field of natural language processing (NLP). The classification of speech sounds, especially the classification of spoken digit sounds, is necessary for many machine learning-based applications. Digit sounds are widely used in citizenship transactions, banking, telephone communication, virtual assistants, voice response systems, address descriptions and vehicle plate readings. There are a few studies on spoken digit classification in the literature. In one of these studies, 87.27% classification accuracy for English and 89.09% for Portuguese were obtained with a support vector machine classifier using a 3rd-ord polynomial kernel [1]. In another study, 98.37% classification accuracy was obtained using convolutional neural networks (CNN) to classify Bengali spoken digit sounds [2]. In classifying Pashto spoken digit sounds, a classification model was developed using the Audio MNIST database. The developed model was tested with the Free Spoken Digit Dataset (FSDD), and a classification accuracy of 80.60% was obtained [4].

This study used FSDD [5] to classify the digit sounds spoken in English. Initially, scalogram images of all sounds in the database were obtained. The obtained images were classified by applying different CNN-based classification models by transfer learning. The dataset has been chosen randomly to split into 90% training set and 10% test set, and 20% of the training set is used for validation, based on a five-fold cross-validation method.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The block diagram of the study is shown in Figure 1.



Figure 1. Block diagram of the method

2.1 Dataset

The Free Spoken Digit Dataset (FSDD) used in the study is an open and growing database containing 3000 voice recordings, each digit from 0 to 9 spoken 50 times by six different people [5]. The nationalities of these six people



are the USA, Belgium, Germany, and Greece, but only two of them have English as their mother language. The time-amplitude representation of the spoken digit signals of a random speaker in the database is given in Figure 2.

In order to perform a CNN-based classification process containing ten classes by grouping the digit sounds spoken between 0-9, scalogram images of the sounds belonging to all classes were obtained.

2.2 Scalogram

A scalogram is created by plotting the absolute value of a digital signal's continuous time wavelet transform (CWT) as a function of time and frequency. Thus, it helps extract essential signal data thanks to analysis at different scales. In analysing real-world signals, a scalogram can provide better time localisation for short-duration, high-frequency events and better frequency localisation for low-frequency, long-duration events.

In the study, we used the Matlab cwt function to create the scalogram images and chose "bump" for the wavelet type. The scalogram representations of different spoken digits are illustrated in Figure 3.

2.3 Data Splitting

In order to ensure a blind and fair evaluation before the classification stage, the data set of scalogram images was divided so that 90% of all data was used for training and 10% for testing. In this division, the data were randomly selected. The training data were used to create the classification model, and the test data were used to measure the model's performance. In addition, 20% of the training data used in constructing the classification model was used for validation based on the five-fold cross-validation method.





2.4 Classification

In the classification phase, existing CNN-based classification models with proven success were adapted to the study by transfer learning. In the study, VGG16, VGG19 [6], DenseNet201 [7], InceptionV3 [8] and MobileNetV2 [9] architectures were implemented with transfer learning. In all architectures, scalogram images containing 256x256 pixels were used as input. In addition, the batch value was 16 for all architectures, and the epoch value was 100 in creating the classification model.

2.5 Performance Metrics

_

This study used a confusion matrix and comparison metrics obtained from this matrix to measure the success of CNN-based architectures. The confusion matrix approach in Table 1 compares the predictions with the actual values. Table 2 shows the calculation of comparison metrics.

Table 1. Confusion matrix					
	Confusi	n Motrix	Actual	Values	
	Confusio	Positiva		Negatives	
		Docitivo	True	False	
Predicted Values		Positive	Positive	Positive	
		Nogotivo	False T		
		negative	Negative	Negative	
,	Table 2. T	he calculation of	of compariso	n metrics	
Metric	s	I	Formula		
Accurac	y	(TP + TN)/(T	TP + TN + P	FP + FN)	
Recall		TP/(TP + FN)			
Precisio	n	TP/(TP + FP)			
F1 Scor	The $2 \times (H)$	Precision × Re	call)/(Prec	ision + Recall	l)

3 RESULTS

The classification accuracy results for test data of the different CNN-based methods used are given in Table 3.

r		
	Model	Accuracy
	VGG16	0.97
	VGG19	0.95
	DenseNet201	0.85
	InceptionV3	0.89
	MobileNetV2	0.92

Table 1. Comparison of different architectures for FSDD database

When Table 1 is analysed, it is seen that the VGG16 architecture is the most successful method among the CNN architectures used. The confusion matrix of this architecture is given in Table 2, and the detailed results of the comparison metrics obtained from this matrix are shown in Table 3.

	Table 2. Confusion Matrix of VGG16 architecture									
	Zero	One	Two	Three	Four	Five	Six	Seven	Eight	Nine
Zero	30	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
One	0	29	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
Two	0	0	29	1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Three	0	0	1	29	0	0	0	0	0	0
Four	0	0	0	0	30	0	0	0	0	0
Five	0	0	0	1	0	27	1	1	0	0
Six	0	0	0	0	0	0	28	1	1	0
Seven	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	29	0	0
Eight	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	29	0
Nine	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	30

|--|

Classes	Precision	Recall	F1 Score
Zero	1.00	1.00	1.00
One	1.00	0.97	0.98
Two	0.94	0.97	0.95
Three	0.91	0.97	0.94
Four	1.00	1.00	1.00
Five	1.00	0.90	0.95
Six	0.97	0.93	0.95
Seven	0.94	0.97	0.95
Eight	0.97	0.97	0.97
Nine	0.97	1.00	0.98

4 CONCLUSION

The confusion matrix of the VGG16 architecture, which has the highest classification accuracy among the deep learning architectures used; the diagonal from the top-left to the bottom-right (e.g., 30 for digit 0, 29 for digit 1, etc.) represents the number of correctly classified instances for each digit. Off-diagonal elements represent misclassifications. For example, the one in row 1, column 9, means that one instance of digit one was incorrectly classified as digit 9. Overall, this confusion matrix shows the performance of the spoken digit classification model, with high counts along the diagonal indicating accurate predictions and off-diagonal counts indicating

misclassifications. The metrics given in Table 3 provide a comprehensive evaluation of the classification performance for each digit in the spoken digit classification task. High precision, recall, accuracy and F1 score values indicate that the classifier performs very well for each digit class.

References

- [1] D. F. Silva, V. M. A. de Souza, and G. E. A. P. A. Batista, "A comparative study between MFCC and LSF coefficients in automatic recognition of isolated digits pronounced in Portuguese and English," Acta Sci. Technol., vol. 35, no. 4, 2013, doi: 10.4025/actascitechnol.v35i4.19825.
- [2] R. Sharmin, S. K. Rahut, and M. R. Huq, "Bengali spoken digit classification: A deep learning approach using convolutional neural network," Proceedia Comput. Sci., vol. 171, pp. 1381–1388, 2020.
- [3] B. Zada and R. Ullah, "Pashto isolated digits recognition using deep convolutional neural network," Heliyon, vol. 6, no. 2, p. e03372, 2020.
- [4] A. J. M. Adoptante et al., "Spoken-digit classification using Artificial Neural Network," ASEAN Engineering Journal, vol. 13, no. 1, pp. 93–99, 2023.
- [5] Z. Jackson, C. Souza, J. Flaks, Y. Pan, H. Nicolas, and A. Thite. Jakobovski/free-spoken-digit-dataset: v1.0.8.Zenodo, 2018, doi.org/10.5281/zenodo.1342401.
- [6] K. Simonyan and A. Zisserman, "Very deep convolutional networks for large-scale image recognition," arXiv [cs.CV], 2014.
- [7] G. Huang, Z. Liu, L. Van Der Maaten, and K. Q. Weinberger, "Densely connected convolutional networks," in 2017 IEEE Conference on Computer Vision and Pattern Recognition (CVPR), 2017.
- [8] C. Szegedy, V. Vanhoucke, S. Ioffe, J. Shlens, and Z. Wojna, "Rethinking the inception architecture for computer vision," in 2016 IEEE Conference on Computer Vision and Pattern Recognition (CVPR), 2016.
- [9] Sandler, M., Howard, A., Zhu, M., Zhmoginov, A., and Chen, L.-C. (2018). MobileNetV2: Inverted residuals and linear bottlenecks, doi.org/10.48550/ARXIV.1801.04381.



Imperials vs. Rebellions: An Analogical Comparison of Fear of Missing Out and Joy of Missing Out

Fatih Sahin^{*1}

¹Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Gonen Vocational School, Balıkesir, Turkey

Abstract

This study employs the two primary factions within the Star Wars universe and Ying-Yang as an analogical framework to clarify the challenges posed by the rapid pace of technological advancements. In contemporary society, we can observe two prevalent patterns of behaviour: one that involves a propensity to embrace and incorporate technology into daily life, and others that entails a deliberate choice to maintain a certain level of detachment from technology, opting instead for a more minimalist and simplified lifestyle or avoiding the technological products and services. The characters associated with the Imperial and Rebellion factions in the Star Wars film series exhibit resemblances to the concepts of FoMO (Fear of Missing Out), JoMO (Joy of Missing Out), and Technophobia, which are unique phenomena portrayed within the narrative. Individuals exhibit varying responses when faced with the same circumstances. This research highlights the need of addressing the literature gap around the perceived differences among these various terms, by demonstrating that they are not as distinct as previously believed, but rather represent diverse reaction patterns. This research uses bibliometric analysis to appreciate the shared aspects of these diverse ideologies. The Web of Science database is used to collect scholarly papers by using bibliometric analysis based on certain keywords and indexes. The findings indicate that anxiety, among other factors, is associated with these behaviours. However, despite the presence of similar antecedents, there are significant differences in the consequences experienced by individuals. It may be argued that people exhibit varying responses when exposed to the same situations. However, it is important to note that each person perceives the environment differently based on their own behavioural tendencies. For instance, those who display JoMO tendencies may see others who endorse FoMO behaviour as contributing to the harm of the global community or environment. These factors should be considered, since there is a lack of research that examines these three notions as a cohesive framework.

Keywords: Fear of missing out, Joy of missing out, Technophobia, Consumer behaviour

1 INTRODUCTION

The Imperials embody individuals who want to create and maintain complete authority and societal supremacy throughout several worlds and civilizations, motivated by a FoMO on power and control. To retain control over the galaxy, they demonstrate a willingness to implement intricate bureaucratic systems and deploy coercive tactics. Furthermore, it might be argued that people and collectives within the galaxy who oppose this kind of control are, in essence, undergoing their own manifestation of JoMO. The individuals' sense of JoMO on their personal liberties and the reinstatement of democratic governance, serves as a catalyst for their resolute bravery in opposing the Imperial troops. Within the Star Wars narrative, the Rebel Alliance serves as a manifestation of the idea known as JoMO. The individuals exhibit resolute bravery as they oppose the repressive rule of the Galactic Empire, deriving satisfaction from abstaining from the advantages of authority and dominance provided by the Imperials. The participants of the Rebellion consciously choose to disengage from the temptation of power and social hierarchy, instead prioritizing the satisfaction derived from their pursuit of liberty and democratic principles. They are satisfied with forgoing the material aspects of the Imperial system. Furthermore, a comparison may be made by examining the function of technology inside the Star Wars world. The Imperial faction utilizes sophisticated technological advancements and intricate bureaucratic systems to assert their authority and establish hegemony over the galactic domain. In contrast, the Rebel Alliance used technological means to oppose the Empire, although with a democratic and ethically driven objective. The Imperials, driven by their pursuit of power, can be observed as readily adopting technology, indicating a lack of technophobia akin to FoMO phenomenon. Conversely, the Rebel Alliance exercises caution and ethical considerations in their utilization of technology, demonstrating a certain degree of technophobia in terms of being mindful of the potential repercussions of unbridled technological prowess. The Star Wars narrative may be examined by using these terms, therefore illustrating the diverse experiences of various groups within the tale regarding FOMO, JoMO, and their interactions with technology as they traverse the complexities of war and power dynamics.

2 LITERATURE

2.1 FoMO

According to the definition provided by Przybylski, et al. [1], the FoMO is characterized as a widespread feeling of unease that arises from the possibility that others may be engaging in enjoyable experiences from which one is excluded, and a corresponding inclination to maintain constant connectivity with the activities of others. In broader terms, individuals may experience a persistent anxiety regarding the possibility of others enjoying themselves in their absence, or a concern that others are engaging in experiences that they themselves desire to be a part of [2]. The concept of FoMO pertains to the emotional state experienced by individuals who struggle to resist the enticement of online engagement, despite potentially having a heavy workload or commitments. Moreover, individuals may experience increased levels of anxiety pertaining to relationships when they have concerns regarding potential social exclusion [2]. According to Buglass, et al. [3], individuals experiencing anxiety may be inclined to engage in impulsive behavior by leaning to the use of internet and social networking platforms in the absence of an online connection. Chotpitayasunondh and Douglas [4] provide a description of FoMO as including individuals' anxieties, concerns, and distress regarding their level of connectedness or disconnection from ongoing events, experiences, and conversations in which they are not actively participating. The FoMO has the potential to significantly impair individuals by triggering their feelings of insecurity, subsequently resulting in excessive smartphone usage [4]. According to Przybylski, et al. [1], anxiety arising from the fear of exclusion has an impact on various aspects of an individual's well-being, including need satisfaction, life satisfaction, and mood.

FoMO is a psychological characteristic characterized by individuals being preoccupied with the activities of others. Like real-life relationships, individuals with higher levels of FoMO may find satisfaction in their relationships with influencers by fulfilling their need to stay connected and engaged in the events occurring in each influencer's life essentially [5], the engagement in parasocial interactions with influencers has the potential to fulfill the sensory needs of individual consumers who experience FoMO, thereby having an influence on their overall wellbeing including social, psychological, and financial aspects [1, 5].

In recent years, there has been an increasing body of research dedicated to investigating the phenomenon known as the FoMO. This concept refers to a pervasive sense of anxiety or unease that arises from the belief that others may be engaging in enjoyable experiences while one is not present. Przybylski et al. [1] provide a concise definition of FoMO as the apprehension that others may be engaging in satisfying activities from which one is missing out. FoMO is frequently associated with individuals' anxieties and concerns pertaining to the potential exclusion from socially interactive events and experiences [6]. The concept of envy refers to the subjective perception that one's peers are experiencing more enjoyment or possessing superior possessions compared to one's own experiences or possessions [7]. While social media platforms enhance social connectivity, individuals with a higher level of FoMO also encounter stressors and anxiety associated with their absence from events attended by their family members and friends. The events and experiences discussed occur in offline settings but are frequently shared on social media platforms. Consequently, they can have an impact on an individual's emotional well-being as well as their social well-being [8-10].

FoMO encompasses more than just the realm of social media and socialization. It is a psychological state that influences behavior, intention, and attitude towards emerging technologies, as well as the decision-making processes of individuals within organizations [11].

2.2 JoMO

JoMO, as proposed by Chan et al. [12], embodies a heightened level of awareness and purposeful endeavor in one's interaction with new technologies. JoMO, an acronym coined by [13]. encompasses the experience of experiencing positive emotions, such as joy and excitement, when confronted with a variety of choices that are incompatible yet affording the freedom to select among them.

The concept of the JoMO refers to the experience of gaining enjoyment from the ability to make a deliberate decision to stay away from participating in social activities and abstain from keeping up with them [13]. One crucial element of the JoMO concept lies in the freedom that people have to determine the focus of their attention. The concept of JoMO emerges in circumstances where individuals are presented with an abundance of options. The user possesses knowledge regarding alternative options and derives satisfaction from the ability to exercise

Imperials vs. rebellions: An analogical comparison of fear of missing out and joy of missing out

choice and the decisions they ultimately make. While FoMO and JoMO are commonly portrayed as contrasting and conflicting elements, they can coexist and manifest concurrently within an immersive viewing context. The user may experience a range of emotions, including concern and anxiety, when attempting to comprehend the entirety of the storyline. However, they may also concurrently feel positive emotions, such as joy and excitement, regarding the selection of content. Consequently, individuals may encounter the phenomenon of FoMO and JoMO as simultaneous and interrelated factors [14]. The JoMO lifestyle is often perceived as a deliberate rejection of the FoMO phenomenon, serving as a haven for individuals who opt to lead a minimalist and modest life [15].

JoMO is a phenomenon that can be understood as a logical and sociological response to FoMO [16]. An emerging phenomenon is observed among individuals who embrace the "JoMO lifestyle." The internet is flooded with an extensive amount of content related to the concept of JoMO, featuring advice from various sources such as experts, individuals, spiritual leaders, authors of JoMO literature, as well as multimedia resources like videos and audio recordings. However, there is a lack of research studies pertaining to the concept of JoMO that are supported by empirical evidence [15].

2.3 Blacks vs Whites: Technophobia and JoMO vs FoMO

The concept of Yin and Yang finds its origins in Chinese philosophy, wherein it clarifies the existence of opposing yet interconnected forces that sustain each other. The symbol of yin and yang is comprised of two contrasting colors, particularly black and white. The generally accepted concept of the ying-yang symbol is depicted below in Figure 1.



Figure 1. Ying-Yang symbol

There are two fundamental principles that govern the destinies of creatures and things, known as yin and yang. Yin represents negativity, darkness, and femininity, while yang embodies positivity, brightness, and masculinity. The interaction between these two principles plays a significant role in shaping the outcomes and trajectories of various entities [17].

Another significant aspect of the topic is technophobia. The concept is intricately linked to the observation and analysis of technological trends, either through active monitoring or deliberate avoidance. Technophobia is characterized as an atypical anxiety or distress concerning the consequences of sophisticated technology [18]. It impacts approximately one third of the populace, resulting in adverse health outcomes and impaired work productivity. The impact of the mobile phone on society is significant, encompassing both its design process and subsequent socioeconomic achievements [18]. Moravčíková [19] emphasize the importance of addressing technophobia, technoparanoia, and the potential negative implications of technologies that have the capacity to absorb human capabilities. It is crucial to not only view these issues as simplistic concepts, but to also recognize the complex challenges they pose within modern society. Furthermore, the trajectory of societal progress is heavily influenced by the utilization of advanced technologies.

Technophobia, a term describing fear or anxiety related to sophisticated technology, can exert influence on individuals' online behavior and overall welfare. The study that a comprehensive examination is presented regarding the phenomenon known as FoMO, along with its association with negative affectivity and the problematic utilization of technology [20]. The study examines the phenomenon of technophobia specifically among older individuals who utilize the Internet. The research reveals that technophobia has the potential to limit their engagement in online activities and subsequently impact their overall life satisfaction [21]. Brosnan and Thorpe [22] assess the efficacy of clinically derived interventions in addressing technophobia. The findings indicate that both selective desensitization and one-session treatments exhibit notable potential in reducing anxiety associated with technology. Ha, et al. [18] explores the phenomenon of technophobia within the realm of mobile device design. The research underscores the significance of inclusive product design to accommodate individuals

who experience technophobia. In general, the papers underscore the significance of comprehending and mitigating technophobia to foster favorable utilization of technology and enhance overall welfare.

3 METHODOLOGY

This study employs bibliometric analysis. The search results obtained from the Web of Science were downloaded and subsequently analyzed using the bibliometrix package [23] in R software. Table 1 presents the filters utilized for gathering data from published research across various topics, along with the corresponding number of investigations.

Data No	Filter	Торіс	Total Published Studies Included
1	"Fear of missing out" (Topic) or FoMO (Topic) and Article or Proceeding Paper (Document Types) and Social Sciences Citation Index (SSCI) or Emerging Sources Citation Index (ESCI) or Conference Proceedings Citation Index – Science (CPCI-S) (Web of Science Index)	FoMO	587
2	"Joy of Missing out" (Topic) or JOMO (Topic) or technophobia (Topic) and Article or Proceeding Paper (Document Types) and Social Sciences Citation Index (SSCI) or Emerging Sources Citation Index (ESCI) or Conference Proceedings Citation Index – Science (CPCI-S) (Web of Science Index)	JoMO and Technophobia	242
3	fear of missing out (Topic) or FoMO (Topic) or "Joy of Missing out" (Topic) or JOMO (Topic) or technophobia (Topic) and Article or Proceeding Paper (Document Types) and Social Sciences Citation Index (SSCI) or Emerging Sources Citation Index (ESCI) or Conference Proceedings Citation Index – Science (CPCI-S) (Web of Science Index)	FoMO, JoMO and Technophobia	822

Table1. The search criteria utilized during the data collection procedure in Web of Science

The bibliometrix package in the R software utilized to generate a co-occurrence network and conceptual wordmap for each of the three databases. This was achieved by employing factorial analysis to examine the relationships between keywords based on data obtained from the web of science.

4 **RESULTS**

Bibliographic co-occurrence network analysis of data 3 which contains 822 of published study are depicted at Figure 1 and list of first 20 terms according to their closeness is at Table 2.



Figure1. Co-occurrence network of FoMO, JoMO, and Technophobia

Imperials vs.	rebellions:	An analogical	comparison	of fear	of missing	out and jog	y of missing
out							

Node	Cluster	Betweenness	Closeness	PageRank
anxiety	2	83.0309	0.0213	0.0559
depression	3	43.2521	0.0192	0.0521
impact	2	36.6283	0.0192	0.0327
model	2	17.3186	0.0192	0.0270
fear	3	29.2630	0.0189	0.0442
consequences	3	21.4484	0.0185	0.0439
personality	2	20.4596	0.0185	0.0281
adolescents	3	19.8078	0.0185	0.0393
addiction	3	22.3149	0.0182	0.0404
facebook	3	15.9959	0.0182	0.0343
scale	2	8.4617	0.0179	0.0211
networking	3	7.7066	0.0175	0.0273
satisfaction	3	7.2799	0.0175	0.0216
fomo	3	3.9336	0.0172	0.0198
online	3	5.9353	0.0167	0.0198
internet	2	5.7762	0.0164	0.0170
engagement	3	4.5152	0.0164	0.0222
college-students	3	5.5670	0.0161	0.0208
behavior	2	5.2834	0.0161	0.0192

Table 2. List of co-occurrence networks of FoMO, JoMO, and Technophobia

Bibliographic co-occurrence network analysis of data 2 which contains 242 of published study are depicted at Figure2 and list of first 20 terms according to their closeness is at Table 3.



Figure2. Co-occurrence network of JoMO and Technophobia

Node	Cluster	Betweenness	Closeness	PageRank
technophobia	2	248.3011	0.0159	0.0915
self-efficacy	2	90.6120	0.0152	0.0646
attitudes	2	97.7403	0.0147	0.0676
impact	2	114.0731	0.0143	0.0593
experience	2	32.9996	0.0139	0.0538
information-technology	1	214.2098	0.0139	0.0566
university-students	2	11.6484	0.0130	0.0400
acceptance	1	34.2714	0.0130	0.0325
technology	2	81.3414	0.0128	0.0512
computer anxiety	2	13.5064	0.0128	0.0358
performance	2	7.2752	0.0128	0.0324
anxiety	2	62.9933	0.0125	0.0334
gender	2	18.9195	0.0123	0.0481
information	2	13.4850	0.0119	0.0227
personality	2	47.1086	0.0118	0.0283
user acceptance	1	8.2591	0.0118	0.0211
adoption	1	57.2556	0.0114	0.0215
user	1	3.5299	0.0110	0.0159
perceived ease	1	0.3417	0.0110	0.0113

Table 3. List of co-occurrence networks of JoMO and Technophobia

Bibliographic co-occurrence network analysis of data 1 which contains 587 of published study are depicted at Figure3 and list of first 20 terms according to their closeness is at Table 4.



Figure3. Co-occurrence network of FoMO

Imperials vs. rebellions: An analogical comparison of fear of missing out and joy	of missing	
out		

Table 4. List of co-occurrence networks of FoMO					
Node	Cluster	Betweenness	Closeness	PageRank	
fear	1	55.8484	0.0208	0.0501	
depression	1	53.9902	0.0208	0.0570	
anxiety	1	49.9000	0.0208	0.0551	
adolescents	1	33.8266	0.0204	0.0440	
consequences	1	34.5598	0.0200	0.0491	
facebook	1	34.4751	0.0196	0.0392	
addiction	1	33.7018	0.0192	0.0455	
fomo	2	8.8872	0.0185	0.0227	
personality	2	12.4751	0.0179	0.0263	
impact	1	7.7794	0.0179	0.0239	
model	1	9.1260	0.0175	0.0255	
networking	1	8.2051	0.0175	0.0285	
engagement	2	7.3579	0.0172	0.0241	
satisfaction	2	6.5541	0.0172	0.0227	
college-students	1	5.5433	0.0167	0.0223	
online	1	6.3432	0.0167	0.0215	
scale	1	3.0898	0.0167	0.0195	
predictors	2	3.6661	0.0164	0.0181	
internet addiction	1	4.0383	0.0161	0.0194	

Bibliometrix's factorial analysis method was used to create the wordmap that can be seen in Figure 4. This wordmap was produced using the factorial analysis method. The graphic presents information about the relative distances between the different entities as well as an illustration of the degree of relatedness that exists between them. The data that was obtained from Web of Science for all the themes (FoMO, JoMO and Technophobia) for which there were a combined total of 822 studies published was used in this analysis, and it is also presented in Table 1.



Figure 4. Wordmap

Imperials vs. rebellions: An analogical comparison of fear of missing out and joy of missing out

5 CONCLUSION

The findings of the study indicate that there are common elements among the terms, as evidenced by the cooccurrence network and the word map generated using factorial analysis. It is possible to posit that individuals exhibiting a higher sensitivity to the negative aspects of technological progress, sometimes referred to as JoMO, may possess a greater inclination towards such concerns compared to those who exhibit a FoMO tendency. The pessimistic mindset may not fully encompass the scope of technical advancements, since there are also indirect effects of such advancements on society and the environment. The intricate web of human emotions and behaviors often exhibits a fascinating interplay, akin to the concept of Yin and Yang. This duality extends to the modern digital age, where technophobia, the fear or aversion to technology, can significantly impact the dynamics of both FoMO and JoMO.

FoMO, is a pervasive aspect of our hyper-connected world. It's the apprehension that something exciting or essential may be happening online, and we might miss it. This FoMO on digital experiences is, in part, fueled by the rapid advancements in technology and the constant stream of information. Technophobia adds another layer to this phenomenon. Those who fear or are averse to technology may be more inclined to experience FoMO because they perceive the digital world as intimidating or inaccessible. On the flip side, there's JoMO. This behavioral pattern reflects a willingness to disconnect from the constant buzz of technology and savor moments of digital detox. It's like the Rebellion in Star Wars, opposing the unrelenting embrace of technology by the Imperial side. Individuals exhibiting JoMO behaviors are more sensitive to the consequences of rapid technological changes, opting to regulate or oppose them rather than blindly accepting progress.

It's intriguing to note that while these concepts, JoMO, FoMO, and technophobia, offer a unique lens into the human psyche, they have not received the attention they deserve in academic research. Exploring the intricate relationship between these variables could provide valuable insights into how people navigate the digital landscape. Unfortunately, there's a scarcity of comprehensive academic studies in this field. Therefore, it's imperative that future research focuses on these specific areas of study to shed more light on this complex interplay. In practice, it's crucial to present technological products and services transparently, showcasing both their advantages and disadvantages. Providing potential customers with a clear view of what they can gain, as well as what they might lose or find challenging, can help mitigate negative or opposing responses. The initial paradigms of these concepts might seem common, but they manifest differently in various individuals, making it essential to consider the intricacies of these dynamics in the digital age.

References

- A. K. Przybylski, K. Murayama, C. R. DeHaan, and V. Gladwell, "Motivational, emotional, and behavioral correlates of fear of missing out," Computers in Human Behavior, vol. 29, no. 4, pp. 1841-1848, 2013/07/01/2013, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2013.02.014.
- [2] D. Blackwell, C. Leaman, R. Tramposch, C. Osborne, and M. Liss, "Extraversion, neuroticism, attachment style and fear of missing out as predictors of social media use and addiction," Personality and Individual Differences, vol. 116, pp. 69-72, 2017/10/01/ 2017, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2017.04.039.
- [3] S. L. Buglass, J. F. Binder, L. R. Betts, and J. D. M. Underwood, "Motivators of online vulnerability: The impact of social network site use and FOMO," Computers in Human Behavior, vol. 66, pp. 248-255, 2017/01/01/2017, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2016.09.055.
- [4] V. Chotpitayasunondh and K. M. Douglas, "How "phubbing" becomes the norm: The antecedents and consequences of snubbing via smartphone," Computers in Human Behavior, vol. 63, pp. 9-18, 2016/10/01/ 2016, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chb.2016.05.018.
- [5] J. A. Lee, L. F. Bright, and M. S. Eastin, "Fear of missing Out and consumer happiness on instagram: A serial mediation of social media influencer-related activities," Cyberpsychology, Behavior, and Social Networking, vol. 24, no. 11, pp. 762-766, 2021/11/01 2021, doi: 10.1089/cyber.2020.0431.
- [6] O. S. Osemeahon and M. Agoyi, "Linking FOMO and Smartphone Use to Social Media Brand Communities," Sustainability, vol. 12, no. 6, p. 2166, 2020. [Online]. Available: https://www.mdpi.com/2071-1050/12/6/2166.
- [7] M. C. Good and M. R. Hyman, "Direct and indirect effects of fear-of-missing-out appeals on purchase likelihood," Journal of Consumer Behaviour, vol. 20, no. 3, pp. 564-576, 2021, doi: https://doi.org/10.1002/cb.1885.
- [8] S. K. Adams, K. K. Murdock, M. Daly-Cano, and M. Rose, "Sleep in the Social World of College Students: Bridging Interpersonal Stress and Fear of Missing Out with Mental Health," Behavioral Sciences, vol. 10, no. 2, p. 54, 2020. [Online]. Available: https://www.mdpi.com/2076-328X/10/2/54.

Imperials vs. rebellions: An analogical comparison of fear of missing out and joy of missing out

- [9] J. A. Roberts and M. E. David, "The Social Media Party: Fear of Missing Out (FoMO), Social Media Intensity, Connection, and Well-Being," International Journal of Human–Computer Interaction, vol. 36, no. 4, pp. 386-392, 2020/02/25 2020, doi: 10.1080/10447318.2019.1646517.
- [10] M. A. Fabris, D. Marengo, C. Longobardi, and M. Settanni, "Investigating the links between fear of missing out, social media addiction, and emotional symptoms in adolescence: The role of stress associated with neglect and negative reactions on social media," Addictive Behaviors, vol. 106, p. 106364, 2020/07/01/ 2020, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.addbeh.2020.106364.
- [11] J. Gartner, M. Fink, and D. Maresch, "The Role of Fear of Missing Out and Experience in the Formation of SME Decision Makers' Intentions to Adopt New Manufacturing Technologies," Technological Forecasting and Social Change, vol. 180, p. 121723, 2022/07/01/ 2022, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.techfore.2022.121723.
- [12] S. S. Chan et al., "Social media and mindfulness: From the fear of missing out (FOMO) to the joy of missing out (JOMO)," Journal of Consumer Affairs, vol. 56, no. 3, pp. 1312-1331, 2022, doi: https://doi.org/10.1111/joca.12476.
- [13] C. Crook, The Joy of Missing Out: Finding Balance in a Wired World. Gabriola Island, Canada: New Society Publishers, 2015.
- [14] T. Aitamurto et al., "From FOMO to JOMO: Examining the fear and joy of missing out and presence in a 360° video viewing experience," presented at the Proceedings of the 2021 CHI Conference on Human Factors in Computing Systems, Yokohama, Japan, 2021. [Online]. Available: https://doi.org/10.1145/3411764.3445183.
- [15] S. Rautela and S. Sharma, "Fear of missing out (FOMO) to the joy of missing out (JOMO): shifting dunes of problematic usage of the internet among social media users," Journal of Information, Communication and Ethics in Society, vol. 20, no. 4, pp. 461-479, 2022, doi: 10.1108/JICES-06-2021-0057.
- [16] IONOS. "JOMO: the mindful countertrend to FOMO," https://www.ionos.com/digitalguide/online-marketing/social-media/joy-of-missing-out/ (accessed 31.10.2023.
- [17] Dictionary, Yin and Yang, ed, 2023.
- [18] J. G. Ha, T. Page, and G. Thorsteinsson, "A study on technophobia and mobile device design," International Journal of Contents, vol. 7, no. 2, pp. 17-25, 2011.
- [19] E. Moravčíková, "Human Downgrading-The Concept of Human Degradation on Social Media," Communication today, vol. 13, no. 1, pp. 28-44, 2022.
- [20] J. D. Elhai, H. Yang, and C. Montag, "Fear of missing out (FOMO): overview, theoretical underpinnings, and literature review on relations with severity of negative affectivity and problematic technology use," Brazilian Journal of Psychiatry, vol. 43, pp. 203 - 209, 2020.
- [21] G. Nimrod, "Technophobia among older Internet users," Educational Gerontology, vol. 44, pp. 148 162, 2018.
- [22] M. J. Brosnan and S. J. Thorpe, "An evaluation of two clinically-derived treatments for technophobia," Comput. Hum. Behav., vol. 22, pp. 1080-1095, 2006.
- [23] M. Aria and C. Cuccurullo, "Bibliometrix: An R-tool for comprehensive science mapping analysis," Journal of Informetrics, vol. 11, no. 4, pp. 959-975, 2017/11/01/ 2017, doi: 10.1016/j.joi.2017.08.007.



An Intelligent Support System for Online Learners in Difficulty

Ali Seridi^{*1}, Yamina Bordjiba¹, Riad Bourbia¹

¹8 May 1945 University, Department of Computer Science, Labstic Laboratory, Guelma, Algeria

Abstract

Distance learning platforms are constantly evolving in order to improve the learning and knowledge transfer process. However, a significant number of learners still drop out, especially in the case of longer courses. This is mainly due to the social isolation felt by the learner, who sees himself interacting only with a machine without the support of a human teacher. An obvious solution would be to engage a large number of human tutors to assist learners and help them overcome any difficulties encountered. However, this would be too expensive.

We propose an intelligent system that can be integrated into learning platforms to closely trace the learner's behavior and interactions during the learning process. The information collected, known as traces, will be permanently analyzed in real time by the intelligent system, which will detect any difficulties encountered by the learner and offer the necessary and appropriate help and support.

The proposed intelligent system is based on an expert system made up of three traditional components:

- The facts base, made up of information gathered about the learner
- The rules base, which will be applied on the facts base to detect the situation of difficulty and the necessary assistance to offer
- The inference engine, which represents the program that applies the rules on the facts base

The proposed system has the advantage of replacing, even partially, the role of the human tutor through an integrated system based on expert systems. This will significantly reduce the cost of human tutors and provide instant, automatic support for learners, making the e-learning process more comfortable.

In summary, the proposed intelligent system is a cost-effective way to improve the e-learning experience by providing learners with personalized support and reducing the need for human tutors.

Keywords: Artificial intelligence, Adaptative e-learning platforms, İntelligent tutoring system, Expert system, Personalized assistance



Data Augmentation Effect on Facial Expression Recognition Using Deep Learning Models

Yamina Bordjiba^{*1}, Ali Seridi¹, Nabiha Azizi², Hayat Farida Merouani³, Saber Mehammedia¹

¹8 May 1945 University, Department of Computer Science, Labstic Laboratory, Guelma, Algeria ²Badji Mokhtar University, Department of Computer Science, LabGed, Annaba, Algeria ³Badji Mokhtar University, Department of Computer Science, LRI, Annaba, Algeria

Abstract

Facial expression recognition (FER) has grown rapidly in recent years. It is used in a variety of applications, including human-machine interaction, gaming, and healthcare. Deep learning has improved FER accuracy, but it requires large datasets. Data augmentation techniques can help address this challenge.

In this work, we investigated the effect of data augmentation on a facial expression recognition system. We used two deep learning models, VGG16 and Resnet50, to evaluate three augmentation techniques: geometric transformations, SMOTE and Cycle-GAN.

The FER2013 database was used for the training phase. It consists of a set of 35,887 images representing seven different emotions. All the images in this dataset have a size of 48×48 and are divided into a training set (80%) and a test set (20%).

As the following table shows, several experiments were conducted on the two models used (VGG-16 and ResNet50), with and without data augmentation. The data augmentation techniques used were geometric transformation, SMOTE, Cycle-GAN, and hybridization of data augmentation techniques. These experiments show that the absence of data augmentation or the application of a single augmentation technique may not be sufficient to avoid the problem of overfitting and improve the performance of facial expression recognition systems. On the other hand, when more than one augmentation technique is used, it is observed that overfitting gradually disappears, especially geometric transformations which are very important for overcoming overfitting and increasing accuracy.

Experimentation	Model	Accuracy
Without augmentation	ResNet50	58%
	VGG-16	65%
Augmentation with geometric transformation	ResNet50	64%
	VGG-16	60%
Augmentation with SMOTE	ResNet50	57%
	VGG-16	62%
Augmentation with SMOTE and geometric transformation	ResNet50	68%
	VGG-16	11%
Augmentation with Cycle-Gan	ResNet50	76%
Augmentation with Cycle-Gan and geometric transformation	ResNet50	74%
Augmentation with Cycle-Gan and SMOTE	ResNet50	75%
Augmentation with Cycle-Gan, SMOTE and geometric transformation	ResNet50	72%

Keywords: Facial expression recognition, Data augmentation, Cycle-Gan, SMOTE, Geometric transformation



Simple Structured and Easily Realizable Triple-Band Metamaterial Absorber Design

Yunus Kaya*1, Ugur Cem Hasar²

¹Bayburt University, Department of Electricity and Energy, Bayburt, Turkey ²Gaziantep University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Gaziantep, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, a metamaterial absorber design with a structure consisting of a dielectric substrate material in the middle, a resonator structure on the top, and a ground plane at the bottom was designed. The absorber, which uses FR-4 material, which is widely used in the market and can be found cheaply, as the substrate material, has a simple structure that can be easily produced using traditional methods or a PCB prototype machine. According to the simulation studies carried out in CST Microwave Studio, the absorber suggested with the designed resonator structure shows high absorption at three frequencies, more than 0.99 at two frequency points and approximately 0.89 at one frequency point in the 1–12 GHz frequency range. It is thought that the design, which provides high absorption at three frequency bandwidth, will find a place in applications at microwave frequencies.

Keywords: Cheap, Metamaterial, Absorber, High absorption, Triple-band

1 INTRODUCTION

Electromagnetic wave absorbers, which can be designed in a wide range of frequencies such as microwave, terahertz, and optical frequency region, can be defined as devices that can completely (according to the design) absorb the incoming radiation at the operating frequency [1, 2]. Generally, three types of absorbers can be mentioned [3]. The first type of absorber is the wedge conical absorber used in anechoic rooms [4]. These electromagnetic absorbers are pyramid-shaped and are used in a wide frequency band, but they are not portable due to their large volume and brittleness [4]. The second type of absorbers are lossy absorbers made of composites with high electrical and magnetic permeability [5]. However, although these types of absorber have high absorbing properties in broadband, they are expensive due to material scarcity. The third type of absorber is the metamaterial absorbers introduced to the literature by Landy et al. [6]. These absorbers have become a popular research topic in the last 15 years due to their small footprint, simple structure, and high absorption [7-12].

Electromagnetic wave absorbers based on the resonator structure as metamaterial-based are usually designed by forming from the ground plane under a dielectric substrate and from the resonator structure above it [13]. Due to this structure, resonator-structured (metamaterial-based) absorbers offer advantages such as low profile, ease of manufacturing, flexibility, and cheapness [14]. However, in addition to these advantages, metamaterial absorbers offer a narrow bandwidth [15]. To eliminate this disadvantage, metamaterial absorbers have been designed using multiple resonator structures or layers [16, 17]. In this study, a single-layer and triple-band metamaterial absorber is suggested. The suggested structure is designed as a structure that has a high absorption rate at three frequency points and can be easily manufactured (in terms of simplicity and cheapness).

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The suggested metamaterial absorber, designed in the electromagnetic simulation program CST Microwave Studio, is shown in Figure 1(a). In the suggested single-layer structure, FR-4 material ($\varepsilon_r = 4.3$ and $\tan \delta = 0.025$) with 1 mm (d) thickness and 20 mm length (L_1) in square shape was used as the dielectric substrate, as it is easily accessible and cheap. In order to ensure that the transmission scattering parameter (S_{21}) is zero (0) while achieving the perfect absorber, the back side of the FR-4 dielectric material is completely covered with a metallic ground surface (copper; thickness 0.035 mm (t) and $\sigma = 5.8 \times 10^7$ S/m). To create the triple-band absorber structure, the front side of the FR-4 dielectric material was formed with two square-shaped resonator structures (someone slit)

with the same copper material on the back side, as scaled in Figure 1(b) ($L_2 = 18 \text{ mm}$, $L_3 = 14 \text{ mm}$, $L_4 = 12 \text{ mm}$, $L_5 = 8 \text{ mm}$, and g = 0.8 mm). Thus, with this resonator structure at the front, the reflection scattering parameter (S_{11}) will be ensured to be zero (0).



(b)

Figure 1. (a) 3D image of the metamaterial absorber structure designed in CST Microwave Studio and (b) dimensioning of the suggested absorber geometry

If the S_{11} and S_{21} parameters are zero (0) or very close to zero (0), the absorption will be perfect. In other words, in frequency regions where reflection and transmission are almost zero (0), the absorption is 100% according to the formula below [1, 3, 6-17].

Absorption =
$$1 - |S_{11}|^2 - |S_{21}|^2$$
 (1)

3 RESULTS

For the suggested design shown in Figure 1(a), reflected and transmitted wave amplitudes were obtained as a result of simulation studies carried out in CST Microwave Studio in the 1-12 GHz frequency range. Then, by using these quantities, the absorption amplitude is obtained through Equation (1), and these three quantities (reflection, transmission and absorption) are given in response to frequency in the same graph in Figure 2.



Figure 2. Reflection, transmission and absorption amplitudes simulation results for the suggested triple-band metamaterial absorber

When Figure 2 is examined, it is seen that the transmission is zero in the 1-12 GHz frequency range, the reflection approaches zero (0) at 4.34 GHz and 9.73 GHz (approximately 0.04 at both frequencies) and is 0.34 at 5.54 GHz. On the other hand, the absorption is determined to be more than 0.99 at 4.34 GHz and 9.73 GHz and approximately 0.89 at 5.54 GHz. Accordingly, the suggested design has an absorption rate of more than 99% at two frequency points (at 4.34 GHz and 9.73 GHz) and an absorption rate of around 89% at one frequency point (at 5.54 GHz).

4 CONCLUSION

In this study, a triple-band miniature metamaterial absorber was designed using resonator structures. This designed absorber shows more than 99% absorption at 4.34 GHz and 9.73 GHz frequencies, and around 89% absorption at 5.54 GHz frequency. The suggested metamaterial absorber, which stands out with its simple structure, cheapness and realizability when compared to other metamaterial absorbers in terms of both its size, resonator structure and the type of substrate used, stands out as an advantageous absorption device in 1-12 GHz microwave frequency applications.

References

- C. M. Watts, X. L. Liu, and W. J. Padilla, "Metamaterial electromagnetic wave absorbers," Adv. Mater., vol. 24, no. 23, pp. OP98–OP120, Jun. 2012.
- [2] S. B. Glybovski, S. A. Tretyakov, P. A. Belov, Y. S. Kivshar, and C. R. Simovski, "Metasurfaces: From microwaves to visible," Phys. Rep.-Rev. Sect. Phys. Lett., vol. 634, pp. 1–72, May 2016.
- [3] J. Tak and J. Choi, "A wearable metamaterial microwave absorber," IEEE Antennas Wirel. Propag. Lett., vol. 16, pp. 784–787, 2017.
- [4] B. T. Dewitt and W. D. Burnside, "Electromagnetic scattering by pyramidal and wedge absorber," IEEE Trans. Antennas Propag., vol. 36, no. 7, pp. 971–984, Jul. 1988.
- [5] C. P. Neo and V. K. Varadan, "Optimization of carbon fiber composite for microwave absorber," IEEE Trans. Electromagn. Compat., vol. 46, no. 1, pp. 102–106, Feb. 2004.
- [6] N. I. Landy, S. Sajuyigbe, J. J. Mock, D. R. Smith, and W. J. Padilla, "Perfect metamaterial absorber," Phys. Rev. Lett., vol. 100, no. 20, art. no. 207402, May 2008.
- [7] H. Tao, N. I. Landy, C. M. Bingham, X. Zhang, R. D. Averitt, and W. J. Padilla, "A metamaterial absorber for the terahertz regime: Design, fabrication and characterization," Opt. Express, vol. 16, no. 10, pp. 7181– 7188, May 2008.
- [8] Q. Y. Wen, H. W. Zhang, Y. S. Xie, Q. H. Yang, and Y. L. Liu, "Dual band terahertz metamaterial absorber: Design, fabrication, and characterization," Appl. Phys. Lett., vol. 95, no. 24, art. no. 241111, Dec. 2009.
- [9] X. P. Shen, T. J. Cui, J. M. Zhao, H. F. Ma, W. X. Jiang, and H. Li, "Polarization-independent wide-angle triple-band metamaterial absorber," Opt. Express, vol. 19, no. 10, pp. 9401–9407, May 2011.
- [10] Y. Ra'di, C. R. Simovski, and S. A. Tretyakov, "Thin perfect absorbers for electromagnetic waves: Theory, design, and realizations," Phys. Rev. Appl., vol. 3, no. 3, art. no. 037001, Mar. 2015.
- [11] B. X. Wang, C. Tang, Q. S. Niu, Y. H. He, and T. Chen, "Design of narrow discrete distances of dual-
/triple-band terahertz metamaterial absorbers," Nanoscale Res. Lett., vol. 14, art. no. 64, Feb. 2019.

- [12] Q. Q. Huang, G. H. Wang, M. Zhou, J. Zheng, S. L. Tang, and G. B. Ji, "Metamaterial electromagnetic wave absorbers and devices: Design and 3D microarchitecture," J. Mater. Sci. Technol., vol. 108, pp. 90– 101, May 2022.
- [13] J. Y. Rhee, Y. J. Yoo, K. W. Kim, Y. J. Kim, and Y. P. Lee, "Metamaterial-based perfect absorbers," J. Electromagn. Waves Appl., vol. 28, no. 13, pp. 1541–1580, 2014.
- [14] J. Kim, K. Han, and J. W. Hahn, "Selective dual-band metamaterial perfect absorber for infrared stealth technology," Sci. Rep., vol. 7, art. no. 6740, Jul. 2017.
- [15] D. Q. Vu, D. H. Le, H. T. Dinh, T. G. Trinh, L. Y. Yue, D. T. Le, and D. L. Vu, "Broadening the absorption bandwidth of metamaterial absorber by coupling three dipole resonances," Physica B-Condens. Matter, vol. 532, pp. 90–94, Mar. 2018.
- [16] Y. H. He, B. X. Wang, P. C. Lou, and H. X. Zhu, "Multiple-band absorber enabled by new type of metamaterial resonator formed by metallic split ring embedded with rectangle patch," Results Phys., vol. 18, art. no. 103251, Sep. 2020.
- [17] B. X. Wang, Y. H. He, P. C. Lou, N. X. Xu, X. Y. Wang, Y. C. Wang, and J. J. Cao, "Multiple-band terahertz metamaterial absorber using multiple separated sections of metallic rectangular patch," Front. Phys., vol. 8, art. no. 308, Aug. 2020.



Comparison of Coverage Map of Different Terrain Type

Ugur Erbas¹, Md Abdullah Al Imran², Mehmet Baris Tabakcioglu^{*1}

¹Bursa Technical University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering Department, Bursa, Turkey ²Attlim University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering Department, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

It is very important providing a healthy communication to improve the service quality of the communication. For a qualified communication, base stations should be placed in suitable locations. In pre-deployment phase of the base station, coverage map of the nominated place should be generated by calculating the electric fields of all the direct, diffracted and reflected rays between the transmitter and the receiver. Electric fields are computed with Geometrical Optics (GO) and Uniform Theory of Diffraction (UTD) model. In this study, how the material (superconductor, soil, forest, copper and iron) and polarization types (hard, soft) of the terrain affect the coverage map will be discussed.

Keywords: Ray tracing, Geometric optics, Uniform theory of diffraction, Coverage map, Lossy surface

1 INTRODUCTION

Technological devices in daily life especially in wireless communication have become indispensable for people. In order to use these devices properly, improving the quality of service has a very great importance. Therefore, deployment of the base stations onto correct locations a challenging problem. In order to solve the problem, at first all the direct, diffracted and reflected rays between the transmitter and the receiver position are determined and then resulting electric fields are calculated. Finally coloured coverage map is obtained. GO and UTD models are used for electric field calculation [1]. GO model is suitable with the direct and reflected ray, unlike UTD is responsible with diffracted rays.

In this study, a three-dimensional digital data including x, y and z coordinates of a region is used to generate the coverage map in MATLAB environment. A ray tracing program is developed in MATLAB environment to determine all the direct, diffracted and reflected rays between the transmitter and the receiver [2]. Material types and polarization types affect the electric field in a point [3]. Wood, has a low conductivity and it is seemed as insulator, attenuates the electromagnetic waves less than concrete [4]. As the conductivity increased, reflected rays from the surface increased too [5]. In section 2 we go through the material and methods. Section 3 contains simulation results and then conclusions.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

In 3D coverage mapping, ray tracing and calculation of electric fields generated by these rays are fundamental. In order to obtain the coverage map all the direct, diffracted and reflected rays between the transmitter and receiver should be determined as shown in Figure 1.



Figure 1. Diffracted, reflected and direct rays

As shown in Figure 1, on a receiving point there can be direct, edge diffracted and surface reflected rays. Electric field of direct and reflected rays can be calculated by GO model. Electric field of a direct ray is given by,

$$E = \frac{E_0}{s_0} e^{-jks_0} \tag{1}$$

where E_0 is accepted as 1 V/m, s_0 stands for the distance shown in Figure 1 between the transmitter and the receiver and k symbolizes the wave number. Electric field of a direct ray is given by [6],

$$E = R \frac{E_0}{s} e^{-jks} \tag{2}$$

where *R* refers to reflection coefficient, E_0 is accepted as 1 V/m, *s* is total distance shown in Figure 1 between the transmitter, ground and receiver and *k* symbolizes the wave number. The magnitude of the reflection coefficient changes between 0 and 1. For superconductor material, the reflection coefficient is taken as 1. For lossy surfaces, the reflection coefficient for horizontal and vertical polarization is represented by [7],

$$R_s = \frac{\sin(\varphi') - \sqrt{\varepsilon_{cr} - \cos(\varphi')^2}}{\sin(\varphi') + \sqrt{\varepsilon_{cr} - \cos(\varphi')^2}}$$
(3-a)

$$R_{h} = \frac{\varepsilon_{cr} \sin(\varphi') - \sqrt{\varepsilon_{cr} - \cos(\varphi')^{2}}}{\varepsilon_{cr} \sin(\varphi') + \sqrt{\varepsilon_{cr} - \cos(\varphi')^{2}}}$$
(3-b)

where, ε_{cr} is the complex relative permittivity constant, φ' denotes the reflection angle. The complex relative permittivity constant is expressed by [8],

$$\varepsilon_{cr} = \varepsilon_r - j \frac{\sigma}{2\pi f \varepsilon_0} \tag{4}$$

where, σ is the conductivity, ε_{cr} is the relative complex electrical permittivity constant, f is the operational frequency, ε_{θ} is the electrical permittivity constant of free space. Electric field of the diffracted rays can be calculated by UTD model. Electric field of the diffracted ray is calculated by [9],

$$E = E_i DA(s) e^{-jks}$$
⁽⁵⁾

where E_i is the incident field on the obstacle, k denotes the wave number, D is the amplitude diffraction coefficient, s stands for the distance between the obstacle and the receiver and A refers to spreading factor. The amplitude diffraction coefficient is defined [10] by,

$$D(\alpha) = -\frac{e^{-\frac{j\pi}{4}}}{2\sqrt{2\pi k \cos\left(\frac{\alpha}{2}\right)}} F[x]$$
(6)

where, k is the wave number, α is the diffraction angle and F[x] is called with the transition function changes between 0-1 is calculated by [11],

$$F(x) = 2j\sqrt{x}e^{jx}\int_{\sqrt{x}}^{\infty}e^{ju^2}$$
(7-a)

$$x = 2kL\cos\left(\frac{\alpha}{2}\right)^2\tag{7-b}$$

where, α is the diffraction angle, L is the distance parameter for amplitude diffraction and k is the wave number.

3 SIMULATIONS AND RESULTS

In simulations, a digital data including x, y and z components is used. Firstly 3D visual is obtained in MATLAB environment and a transformation window as it is seen in Figure 2-a. The developed ray tracing program runs for a 2D plane. For that reason, the transformation window is used to obtain 2D profile of the terrain as illustrated in Figure 2-b. A transmitting antenna is deployed on [0, 200] coordinate as it is depicted with red point in Figure 2-b. In order to obtain the coloured coverage map of the selected transformation window, all the direct, reflected and diffracted rays are determined and electric fields of these rays are calculated. For a super conducting surface with

1800 MHz operation frequency, developed program runs and electric field distribution transformation window for direct, reflected, diffracted and overall rays are demonstrated in Figure 3.







Figure 3. Electric field distribution for direct, reflected, diffracted and overall rays

In Figure 3-d, electric fields are calculated 390000 points. Average electric field is -27.73558947 dB for the super conductor surfaces. The reflection coefficient of the lossy surfaces like soil and forest is different from 1. The reflection coefficient of copper and iron is very close to 1. The reflection coefficient is related with permittivity, conductivity and frequency as defined in (3, 4). In this study electrical parameters of the surfaces are found in Table 1.

	Surface Type Properties				
Surface Type	Relative Permittivity(ε_r)	Electrical Conductivity (σ)			
Soil	15	0.0012			
Forest	12	0.03374			
Copper	0.99994	59000000			
Iron	0.99998	10300000			

 Table 1. Properties of different surface materials [8]

The reflection coefficients are different for both hard and soft polarization as defined in (3). For the soil surface coverage map for the profile for hard and soft polarization is shown in Figure 4.



Figure 4. Coverage map of the profile for the soil

In Figure 4, electric fields are calculated 390000 points. The averages of these fields are -27.88877712 dB and -28.15873556 dB for soft and hard polarization, respectively. For the soil surface coverage map for the profile for hard and soft polarization is shown in Figure 5.



Figure 5. Coverage map of the profile for the forest

In Figure 5, electric fields are calculated 390000 points. The averages of these fields are -27.90366381 dB and -28.15973132 dB for soft and hard polarization, respectively. For the copper surface coverage map for the profile for hard and soft polarization is shown in Figure 6.



In Figure 6, electric fields are calculated 390000 points. The averages of these fields are -27.73900313 dB and -27.73604432 dB for soft and hard polarization, respectively. For the iron surface coverage map for the profile for hard and soft polarization is shown in Figure 7.



Figure 7. Coverage map of the profile for the iron

In Figure 7, electric fields are calculated 390000 points. The averages of these fields are -27.73898995 dB and - 27.73636258 dB for soft and hard polarization, respectively.

For the lossy surfaces electric field attenuates for hard polarization more than soft polarization. Copper and iron gives almost the same results due to that reflection coefficient is very close to 1. Electric field for soil and forest is attenuated more than copper, iron and super conductor because of that the reflection coefficient is very less than 1. In soil and forest electromagnetic field penetrates more than copper, iron and super conductor.

4 CONCLUSION

Recently, the use of wireless communication devices has been increasing due to advances in communication technology and population growth. As the number of wireless devices and urbanization increases, users may suffer from service quality. Thus, there is a need to improve the service quality. In order to solve the problem, base stations should be deployed to correct places. In pre-deployment phase, firstly coverage map should be generated. Coverage map is generated by the electric fields of the direct, diffracted and reflected rays. Electric fields can be calculated with GO (direct, reflected) and UTD (diffracted) models. The surface materials affect the coverage map. Iron and copper surface gives almost the same results with super conductor surface due to high conductivity. Hard polarized rays attenuate more than soft polarized ones.

Acknowledgments

This study was supported by Bursa Technical University Scientific Research Projects Coordination Office (BAP) with project number 211N017.

References

- [1] R. G. Kouyoumjian and P. H. Pathak, "A uniform geometrical theory of diffraction for an edge in a perfectly conducting surface," Proc. IEEE, vol. 62, pp. 1448–1461, Nov. 1974.
- [2] E. Arık, M. B. Tabakcioglu, and A. Kara, "Calculation performances of ray tracing algorithms for coverage simulations" in International Symposium of Scientific Research and Innovative Studies, Bandirma, 2021.
- [3] M. B Tabakcioglu, D. Ayberkin, and A. Cansiz, "Comparison and analyzing of propagation models with respect to material, environmental and wave properties," ACES Journal, vol. 29, no. 6, pp. 486–491, 2014.
- [4] P. Ali-Rantala, L. Ukkonen, L. Sydanheimo, M. Keskilammi, and M. Kivikoski, "Different kinds of walls and their effect on the attenuation of radiowaves indoors," IEEE Antennas and Propagation Society International Symposium. Digest. Held in conjunction with: USNC/CNC/URSI North American Radio Sci. Meeting (Cat. No.03CH37450), Columbus, OH, USA, vol. 3, pp. 1020–1023, 2003, doi: 10.1109/APS.2003.1220085.
- [5] Electromagnetic Shielding Effectiveness of Carbon Fiber Reinforced Polymer (CFRP) Composites With Hematite March 2022 Conference: 2nd International Symposium of Scientific Research and Innovative Studies (ISSRIS'22).
- [6] K. Rizk, R. Valenzuela, D. Chizhik, and F. Gardiol, "Application of the slope diffraction method for urban microwave propagation prediction", IEEE Vehicular Technology Conference, pp.1150–1155, 1998.
- [7] A. Tajvidy and A. Ghorbani, "A new uniform theory-of-diffraction-based model for the multiple building diffraction of spherical waves in microcell environments", Electromagnetics, vol. 28, no. 5, pp. 375–387, 2008.
- [8] P. Monferran, R. Tumayan, C. Guiffaut, G. Andrieu, A. Reineix, and X. Bunlon, "Wideband optimization

process for em characterization of low-losses dielectric and dispersive materials in a quasi-TEM cell," in IEEE Transactions on Instrumentation and Measurement, vol. 67, no. 4, pp. 866–875, Apr. 2018, doi: 10.1109/TIM.2017.2784038.

- [9] J. B. Andersen, "UTD multiple-edge transition zone diffraction," in IEEE Transactions on Antennas and Propagation, vol. 45, no. 7, pp. 1093–1097, Jul. 1997, doi: 10.1109/8.596898.
- [10] C. Tzaras and S. R. Saunders, "An improved heuristic UTD solution for multiple-edge transition zone diffraction", IEEE Transactions on Antennas Propagation, vol. 49, no. 12, pp. 1678–1682, 2001.
- [11] D. A. McNamara, C. W. I. Pistorius, and J. A. G. Malherbe. Introduction to the Uniform Geometrical Theory of Diffraction, Norwood, MA: Artech House, 1990.



Electromagnetic Shielding Performance of Some Bayburt Stone Based Materials

Ugur Erbas¹, Ilker Tekin², Mehmet Baris Tabakcioglu^{*1}, Enes Yigit³

¹Bursa Technical University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering Department, Bursa, Turkey
 ²Karabuk University, Civil Engineering Department, Karabuk, Turkey
 ³Bursa Uludag University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering Department, Bursa, Turkey

Abstract

Electronic devices, widely used on todays, emit electromagnetic waves. These waves can be harmful both living things and electronic devices in the environment. Electromagnetic shielding mechanism can be used to reduce the harmful effects of the waves. In this study, some samples are produced by adding different materials to white Bayburt stone. The shielding performances of the produced samples are measured with Vector Network Analyzer (VNA). The shielding effectiveness of the samples including steel, manganese, iron and carbon is investigated in the frequency range between 4 and 6 GHz.

Keywords: Shielding effectiveness, White Bayburt stone, VNA

1 INTRODUCTION

In today's technology, many electronic devices communicating wirelessly are used. These devices produce electromagnetic radiation and cause electromagnetic pollution. The electromagnetic wave emitted from the devices should be below a certain value so as not to harm the living bodies and not to interfere electronic devices. For that reason, electronic devices are tested for electromagnetic compatibility (EMC) before they are put into use. In order to reduce the harmful effect of the devices emitting electromagnetic waves, electromagnetic shielding mechanism should be done or the radiated power of the transmitting antenna should be reduced. In this study, some samples are produced in the dimensions (22x48x5 mm) with white Bayburt stone, steel, manganese, iron and carbon at a certain ratio. S11 and S21 parameters are measured with a VNA in the frequency range of 4-6 GHz. Then, reflection, transmission, absorption values and shielding performances are determined.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The VNA measures the S parameters S_{11} and S_{21} at frequencies of 4-6 GHz from two ports using a waveguide. Reflected and transmitted waves are related with S_{11} and S_{21} parameters respectively. S_{11} and S_{21} parameters are given by [1],

$$S_{11} = \frac{P_{ref}}{P_{inc}} \tag{1}$$

$$S_{21} = \frac{P_{tr}}{P_{inc}} \tag{2}$$

where P_{ref} , P_{inc} and P_{tr} is the reflected, incident and transmitted power. Total shielding effectiveness (SE) is expressed by [2]

$$SE = SER + SEA \tag{3}$$

where, Shielding Effectiveness of Reflection (SER) and Shielding Effectiveness of Absorption (SEA) is [2] defined by [2],

$$SER = -10log10(1-R) \tag{4}$$

$$SEA = -10\log 10(\frac{T}{1-R})$$
⁽⁵⁾

where, R and T stand for reflectance and transmittance and formulated by

$$R_{dB} = 10\log 10 \; (|S_{11}|^2) \tag{6}$$

$$T_{dB} = 10\log 10 \; (|S_{21}|^2) \tag{7}$$

Absorption value is given by

$$A_{dB} = 10\log 10 \left(1 - |S_{11}|^2 - |S_{21}|^2\right) \tag{8}$$

As can be seen in the equations above, S_{11} and S_{21} values are used to calculate reflectance (R_{dB}), absorption (A_{dB}) and transmittance (T_{dB}).

3 MEASUREMENT RESULTS

In this study, six samples are produced and coded in order to determine the shielding effectiveness as demonstrated in Table 1.

Symbol	Sample Name		
BC	White Bayburt stone Steel		
BCM3	White Bayburt stone Steel Manganese		
BK	White Bayburt stone Carbon		
BKC3	White Bayburt stone Carbon Steel		
BKD3	White Bayburt stone Carbon Iron		
BKM3	White Bayburt stone Carbon Manganese		

Table 1. Table of sample names and shielding performances

The first measurement is made for BC sample. This sample produced with white Bayburt Stone including steel fibres in it. S_{11} and S_{21} parameters BC sample is measured with VNA in the frequency range 4-6 GHz, and reflection, transmission and absorption values and shielding effectiveness are shown in Figure 1.



Figure 1. Measurements for BC sample

As it is seen in Figure 1a, the reflection value reaches to -2.04 dB at 4 GHz and decreases to -5.34 dB at 6 GHz. The absorption value is measured as -8.05 dB at 4 GHz and -2.89 at 6 GHz. The transmission value is between - 8.2 dB and -4.7 dB. Also it is seen in Figure 1b, SE value changes between 11.88 dB (at 4.03 GHz) and 5. 56 dB (at 5.68 GHz). The second measurement is made for BCM3 sample. This sample produced with white Bayburt Stone including steel fibres and %3 manganese in it. S_{11} and S_{21} parameters BCM3 sample is measured with VNA in the frequency range 4-6 GHz, and reflection, transmission and absorption values and shielding effectiveness are demonstrated in Figure 2.



Figure 2. Measurements for BCM3 sample

As it is demonstrated in Figure 2a, the reflection value is -1.22 dB at 4 GHz and -3.83 dB at 6 GHz. The absorption value is measured as -8.45 dB at 4 GHz and -3.28 at 6 GHz. The transmission value is between -6.5 dB and -10.8 dB. Also it is demonstrated in Figure 1b, SE value changes between 15.24 dB (at 4 GHz) and 11.25 dB (at 6 GHz). The best shielding performance is 16.33 dB at 4.11 GHz. Moreover by adding %3 manganese shielding effectiveness are increased. The third measurement is made for BK sample. This sample produced with white Bayburt Stone including carbon in it. S_{11} and S_{21} parameters BK sample is measured with VNA in the frequency range 4-6 GHz, and reflection, transmission and absorption values and shielding effectiveness are depicted in Figure 3.



As it is depicted in Figure 3a, the reflection value is -1.78 dB at 4 GHz and -3.03 dB at 6 GHz. The absorption value is measured as -5.02 dB at 4 GHz and -3.18 at 6 GHz. The transmission value is between -14 dB and -18 dB. Also it is depicted in Figure 1b, SE value changes between 20.76 dB (at 4 GHz) and 19.09 dB (at 6 GHz). The best shielding performance is 22.12 dB at 4.03 GHz. The worst shielding performance is 16.37 dB at 5.96 GHz. The fourth measurement is made for BKC3 sample. This sample produced with white Bayburt Stone including carbon and %3 steel fibre in it. S₁₁ and S₂₁ parameters BKC3 sample is measured with VNA in the frequency range 4-6 GHz, and reflection, transmission and absorption values and shielding effectiveness are illustrated in Figure 4.



Figure 4. Measurements for BKC3 sample

As it is illustrated in Figure 4a, the reflection value is -1.96 dB at 4 GHz and -2.88 dB at 6 GHz. The absorption value is measured as -4.89 dB at 4 GHz and -3.33 dB at 6 GHz. The transmission value is between -13.5 dB and -17 dB. Also it is illustrated in Figure 1b, SE value changes between 17.86 dB (at 4 GHz) and 19.5 dB (at 6 GHz). The best shielding performance is 19.61 dB at 5.36 GHz. The worst shielding performance is 16.37 dB at 4.85 GHz. Moreover by adding %3 steel fibers into at low frequencies the transmission values decreases and shielding effectiveness at low frequencies are increased. The fifth measurement is made for BKD3 sample. This sample produced with white Bayburt Stone including carbon and %3 iron in it. S₁₁ and S₂₁ parameters BKD3 sample is measured with VNA in the frequency range 4-6 GHz, and reflection, transmission and absorption values and shielding effectiveness are indicated in Figure 5.



Figure 5. Measurements for BKD3 sample

As it is indicated in Figure 5a, the reflection value is -1.60 dB at 4 GHz and -2.56 dB at 6 GHz. The absorption value is measured as -5.41 dB at 4 GHz and -3.69 dB at 6 GHz. The transmission value is between -15 dB and -18 dB. Also it is indicated in Figure 1b, SE value changes between 21.27 dB (at 4 GHz) and 20.65 dB (at 6 GHz). The best shielding performance is 22.36 dB at 4.04 GHz. The worst shielding performance is 17.57 dB at 5.72 GHz. Moreover by adding %3 iron instead of steel fibers into at low frequencies the transmission values decreases and shielding effectiveness at low frequencies are increased. The last measurement is made for BKM3 sample. This sample produced with white Bayburt Stone including carbon and %3 manganese in it. S₁₁ and S₂₁ parameters BKM3 sample is measured with VNA in the frequency range 4-6 GHz, and reflection, transmission and absorption values and shielding effectiveness are shown in Figure 6.



Figure 6. Measurements for BKM3 sample

As it is shown in Figure 6a, the reflection value is -1.18 dB at 4 GHz and -1.81 dB at 6 GHz. The absorption value is measured as -6.66 dB at 4 GHz and -4.93 dB at 6 GHz. The transmission value is between -17.5 dB and -14 dB. Also it is indicated in Figure 1b, SE value changes between 21.95 dB (at 4 GHz) and 21 dB (at 6 GHz). The best shielding performance is 23.03 dB at 4.04 GHz. The worst shielding performance is 17.98 dB at 4.85 GHz. Moreover by adding %3 manganese instead of steel fibers, the shielding effectiveness is increased. The average shielding performance of the samples is found in Table 2.

 Table 2. Average shielding performance

Symbol	Sample Name	Average Shielding Performance (dB)
BC	White Bayburt stone Steel	8.4252
BCM3	White Bayburt stone Steel Manganese	11.3233
BK	White Bayburt stone Carbon	19.1409
BKC3	White Bayburt stone Carbon Steel	17.9238
BKD3	White Bayburt stone Carbon Iron	19.8132
BKM3	White Bayburt stone Carbon Manganese	20.0432

As it is found in Table 2, the average shielding performance in BKC3 is 17.9238 dB while it is 8.4252 dB in BC. Moreover, the average shielding performance in BKD3 is 19.8132 dB while it is 11.3233 dB in BCM3. Furthermore, the average shielding performance in BKM3 is 20.0432 dB while it is 19.1409 dB in BK.

4 CONCLUSION

Electromagnetic shielding can be used in order to reduce the harmful effects of the electromagnetic waves into living bodies and electronic devices. In this way interference is reduced and the devices could be worked properly. In this study, six different samples are produced with white Bayburt stone, steel fibres, manganese, iron and carbon. By means of VNA, S-parameters are calculated and it is drawn in MATLAB environment. It is observed that the shielding performance of produced samples is generally decreased by increasing of the frequency. Moreover, the shielding performance is increased with manganese addition. Furthermore carbon addition increases the shielding performance enormously, due to increasing the conductivity.

Acknowledgments

This study was supported by TÜBİTAK under grand number 217M431.

References

- G. B. Santhosi, K. Ramji, and N. M. Rao, "Design and development of polymeric nanocomposite reinforced with graphene for effective EMI shielding in X-band," Physica B: Physics of Condensed Matter, vol. 586, art. no. 412144, Jun. 2020.
- [2] H. Lee, S. H. Ryu, S.J. Kwon et al., "Absorption-dominant mmwave EMI shielding films with ultralow reflection using ferromagnetic resonance frequency tunable M-type ferrites," Nano-Micro Lett., vol. 15, art. no. 76, 2023.



Digital Twin Application in Laser Cutting Machines

Ugur Karanfil¹, Esra Yalcin^{*1}

¹Durmazlar, R&D System Solutions Department, Bursa, Turkey

Abstract

Industrialization has started to digitalize with the developing Industry 4.0. Digital transformations have created a competitive advantage in factories. In our age, digitalization has allowed the reduction of manpower and the increase of mechanization. Technological developments have contributed greatly to the creation of smart factories. In this project, software and hardware tests were carried out in the virtual environment before the laser cutting machine with the digital twin was produced. It is expected to contribute to the shortening of production processes with the digital twin of the laser machine. The axis movements and Dynamics (acceleration, torque, speed etc.) of the Laser Cutting Machine created with the digital twin will be analyzed in the virtual environment, the risks that may occur in the Laser Cutting Machine will be determined.

Keywords: Digital transformations, Digital twin, Laser cutting machine



A RCS Reduction Method Using the Air-Based Anisotropic Metasurface Polarization Converter

Fatih Tutar^{*1}, Gokhan Ozturk¹, Ridvan Tokyurek²

¹Ataturk University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering Dept., Erzurum, Turkey ²Cukurova University, Electrical and Electronics Engineering Dept., Adana, Turkey

Abstract

A multifunctional anisotropic metasurface polarization converter (MPC) unit cell was designed in this work to reduce Radar Cross Section (RCS). In the specifed MPC 7.2–12.8 GHz band range, conversion from linear polarization to linear polarization (LP-LP) was achieved with a polarization conversion rate (PCR) of %90 or higher. Furthermore, this design allows for conversion from linear polarization to circular polarization (LP-CP) in the band gaps of 6.55 - 6.65 GHz, 15.17-16.65 GHz, and 20.72-21.55 GHz. Moreover, the RCS reduction effect was created in this work by combining the MPC unit cell and the 90° rotated form of this cell. The study resulted in a monostatic RCS reduction of 10dBsm in the 8.96 - 12.35 GHz band range.

Keywords: Metasurface, Polarization converter, Radar cross section, RCS reduction, Metamaterial

1 INTRODUCTION

Radar systems are critical in both military and civilian applications today. Still, the requirement to reduce the possibility of an object being detected by radar or to improve its stealthiness implies the requirement to reduce its radar cross-sectional area (RCS). In recent years, there has been a significant focus on the study of polarization converting anisotropic metasurfaces in the context of reducing radar cross-section (RCS) [1-3]. These distinctive materials possess the capability to efficiently manipulate radar signals through the alteration of electromagnetic wave polarization and customization of reflectivity [4, 5]. There are many studies in the literature regarding the materials used and their physical properties. These studies ;coding [6], multilayer [7], transparent [6], flexible [8], Graphene Based [9], SiO2 [10], PTFE [11], Teflon [12]. In addition to these studies, it works as monostatic [13] and bistatic [14] or both monostatic and bistatic [15] at GHz [16, 17] and THz [18, 19] frequencies.

In this study, an air-based multifunctional polarization converter was designed for RCS reduction application. This polarization converter provided LP-LP polarization conversion in the 7.2 - 12.8 GHz band range, LP-LP in the 6.55 - 6.65 GHz, 15.17 - 16.65 GHz, and 20.72 - 21.55 GHz band ranges. The unit cell of the designed polarization converter and the structure obtained by rotating it by 90° provided a reduction in monostatic RCS value of 10 dBsm in the 8.96 - 12.35 GHz range.



Figure 1. The structure of metasurface of unit cell and general view

2 SIMULATION AND ANALYSIS OF METASURFACE

2.1 Unit Cell Design

Dimensioning and general view of the presented MPC structure are given in Figure 1. Unit cell dimension is P = 6mm, R1 = 2.80mm, R2 = 2.10mm, hsub = 1.60mm, hair = 1mm g = 1mm, t = 0.018mm. This structure's resonator is made up of symmetrical two-cavity ring forms. The upper and lower portions consist of copper, which has a conductivity value of $\sigma c = 5.8 \times 108$. In the center of the structure, these layers are two-layered; FR-4 substrate with $\epsilon r = 4.3$ and tan(δ) = 0.025 and air.

2.2 Simulation Results and Analysis

The simulation was conducted using the MPC CST Microwave Studio program, and the resulting data was evaluated using MATLAB® on Intel® CoreI9 13900K, 128GB RAM, RX550 GPU. The provided visual representation in Figure 1 illustrates the coordinate axes and unit cell within the simulation environment. The utilization of unit cell boundary conditions was implemented in both the (yz) and (xz) planes. Additionally, an open boundary condition was specifically established at the port plane, which corresponds to the (xy) plane. The reflection coefficients Rxy and Ryy of the simulated MPC are presented in Figure 2. The variable Ryy represents the back reflection coefficient of the incident wave that is polarized in the v direction. Similarly, the variable Rxy represents the reflection coefficient of the incident wave that is polarized in the y direction, but is measured with respect to the x direction. The reflection coefficients depicted in Figure 2 were computed within the frequency range of 6 - 22 GHz under normal incidence conditions. The graph illustrates that across the frequency range of 7.16 - 12.88 GHz, the value of Ryy is seen to be 10 dB lower than the reference level, while Rxy is found to be 0.74 dB higher. The least Ryy reflection point is seen at resonance frequencies 7.69 GHz and 11.39 GHz, with values of -26.11 dB and -32.53 dB, respectively. Additionally, the frequency regions with Rxy and Ryy reflection coefficients above -5dB are the regions where LP-CP conversion occurs. The frequency points where the LPCP transformation occurs are the points where Rxy and Ryy are approximately equal. The mathematical representation of the Ryy and Rxy polarization reflection coefficients can be expressed in Jones matrix form as follows [4]:

$$\begin{bmatrix} \vec{E}_x^r \\ \vec{E}_y^r \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} R_{xx} & R_{xy} \\ R_{yx} & R_{yy} \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \vec{E}_x^i \\ \vec{E}_y^i \end{bmatrix}$$
(1)

In this equation, the symbols Rxx and Ryy represent the co-polarization coefficient, while Rxy and Ryx represent the cross-polarization coefficient. The incident waves are represented by the symbols ^{*}Eix and ^{*}Eiy , which correspond to the x-polarized and y-polarized components, respectively. The symbols ^{*}Erx and ^{*}Ery denote the reflected waves that exhibit polarization along the x and y directions, correspondingly. In order to evaluate the effectiveness of the LP-LP polarization converter, the polarization conversion ratio (PCR) is determined by analyzing the reflection coefficients. Equation 2 presents the PCR formula [5].

$$PCR = \frac{|R_{xy}|^2}{|R_{xy}|^2 + |R_{yy}|^2} = \frac{|R_{yx}|^2}{|R_{yx}|^2 + |R_{xx}|^2},$$
(2)

Figure 3 presents the change of the PCR value as determined by the frequency, as indicated by the provided formula. The graph illustrates the effective application of LP-LP polarization conversion, achieving a PCR value exceeding %90 within the frequency range of 7.2-12.8 GHz. The ellipticity value is a parameter derived from Stoke's parameters, providing insights into the polarization characteristics of electromagnetic waves. The Stoke's parameters are provided in Equation 3 [4].

$$S_0 = E_1^2 + E_2^2, \qquad S_1 = E_1^2 - E_2^2, S_2 = 2E_1 E_2 \cos(\phi), \qquad S_3 = 2E_1 E_2 \sin(\phi),$$
(3)

The evaluation of circular polarization conversion state can be accomplished using the Stokes parameters S0 and S3. There are two types of circular polarization. These are righthanded circular polarization (RHCP) and left-handed circular polarization (LHCP). The ellipticity value gives information about circular polarization and its types, RHCP and LHCP. It is calculated as the ratio of ellipticity=S3/S0. RHCP transformation has taken place if the ellipticity value is +1, while LHCP transformation has taken place if it is -1 [4].



Figure 3. Polarization converter ratio (PCR)

The evaluation of circular polarization conversion state can be accomplished using the Stokes parameters S0 and S3. There are two types of circular polarization. These are righthanded circular polarization (RHCP) and left-handed circular polarization (LHCP). The ellipticity value gives information about circular polarization and its types, RHCP and LHCP. It is calculated as the ratio of ellipticity=S3/S0. RHCP transformation has taken place if the ellipticity value is +1, while LHCP transformation has taken place if it is -1 [4]. The conversion of RHCP occurred within the frequency bands of 6.55 - 6.65 GHz, 15.17 - 16.65 GHz, and 20.72 - 21.55 GHz, as depicted in Figure 4.



Figure 5 depicts the decomposition of a y-polarized incident wave Eiy into u and v components to better understand the physical process of the proposed polarization converter. The y-polarized incident wave is divided into the u - v vectors, as shown in Figure 5. If the y-polarized incident wave to the polarization converter is decomposed in the u-v directions, the incident waves are as follows.

$$\vec{E}^i = (\hat{u}E^{iu} + \hat{v}E^{iv})e^{-jkz} \tag{4}$$

The mathematical representation of the electric field of the wave reflected by the polarization converter is obtained in the u - v vectors as shown below.

$$\vec{E}^r = (\hat{u}r_{uu}E^{ru} + \hat{v}r_{vv}E^{rv})e^{jkz} \tag{5}$$



Figure 5. The proposed polarization converter is divided into u-v axes

The reflection coefficients in the u and v directions are denoted as ruu and rvv, respectively. Specifically, ruu is defined as the ratio of the reflected electric field Eru to the incident electric field Eiu, while rvv is defined as the ratio of the reflected electric field Erv to the incident electric field Eiv. In mathematical terms, the expressions for ruu and rvv may be represented as follows: ruu = Eru/Eiu As illustrated in Figure 5, in order for a vector y-polarized incident wave to be reflected back as x-polarized, the +u component must be reflected in the same +u direction and the +v component must be reflected in the same -v direction with the same amplitude. As a result, |ruu| = |ruu| = 1 and the difference of ruu and rvv phases should be $\Delta \phi = \phi uu - \phi vv = \pm 180$ degree.





Figure 7. Phases and phase difference of u-v axes

According to the data presented in Figure 6, the reflection coefficients ruu and rvv exhibit an amplitude of approximately 1 in the frequency range of 6–22 GHz, namely in the u–v directions. This frequency range is notable for its occurrence of both linear and circular polarization. Figure 7 shows the phase difference of the reflection coefficients in the u–v directions of the MPC. Figure 7 shows that the phase difference of reflection coefficients in u – v axis amounts to about 180 degree in the frequency range 7.2 - 12.8 GHz where the conversion is conducted. In the 6.55 – 6.65 GHz, 15.17 – 16.65 GHz, and 20.72 – 21.55 GHz regions where RHCP polarization conversion occurs, it is also phase difference equivalent to \pm 90 degree.

2.3 RCS Reduction

When using radar cross-section (RCS) reduction techniques using a polarization converter, it is necessary to utilize two distinct unit cells [1]. In the present study, the generation of the second unit cell is achieved by a rotation of 90o, as seen in Figure 1. The reflection coefficients of both unit cells exhibit equality and correspond to the values depicted in Figure 2. There exists a correlation between RCS reduction and PCR value [1]. The metasurface array was constructed by arranging the two distinct unit cells shown in Figure 9, resulting in a total area of $180 \text{mm} \times 180 \text{mm}$. The array's triangular configuration facilitates the redirection of reflected electromagnetic waves to places far away from their usual direction, resulting in the lowering of RCS [1]. The (RCS) values of the metasurface array were compared to those of a metal plate composed of a Perfect Electric Conductor (PEC) material with the same dimensions. Figure 10 illustrates the monostatic RCS values of the metasurface array and the metal plate as a function of frequency. Figure 11 compares the RCS of these two materials, as well as their differences and the RCS reduction provided. As shown in Fig. 11, the RCS value has reduced by 10dBsm or more in the 8.96 - 12.35 GHz range.



Figure 8. Metasurface designed for RCS reduction application



Figure 9. Simulated monostatic RCS of PEC plate and metasurface



Figure 10. Simulated RCS reduction of metasurface

3 CONCLUSION

In this study, both linear and circular polarization converter metasurface design and analysis are presented. According to the results obtained, linear polarization conversion process was carried out with a polarization conversion rate of % 90 and above in the range of 7.2 - 12.8 GHz. Additionally, righthanded circular polarization conversion was achieved in the band gaps of 6.55 - 6.65 GHz, 15.17 - 16.65 GHz, and 20.72 - 21.55 GHz. Moreover, by combining the unit cell of the designed metasurface and its 90 degree rotated shape, a new metasurface array was created for the purpose of RCS reduction. This created metasurface array was compared with the PEC plate, and a 10 dBsm reduction in monostatic RCS value was achieved in the 8.96 - 12.35 GHz band range.

Acknowledgments

Fatih TUTAR was supported by the Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey (TUBITAK), the Directorate of Science Fellowships and Grant Programs (BIDEB), and the Higher Education Council of Turkey (YOK) under a 100/2000 doctorate scholarship.

References

 Z. Faraz, B. Kamal, S. Ullah, A. Aziz, and H. Kanwal, "High efficient and ultra-wideband polarization converter based on I-shaped metasurface for RCS reduction," Optics ommunications, vol. 530, 2023, doi: 10.1016/j.optcom.2022.129101.

- [2] C. Fu, L. Han, C. Liu, Z. Sun, and X. Lu, "Dual-band polarization conversion metasurface for RCS reduction," IEEE Transactions on Antennas and Propagation, vol. 69, no. 5, pp. 3044-3049, 2021, doi: 10.1109/tap.2020.3028148.
- [3] M.-L. Yu, X. Hou, Y.-H. Zhou, and A. Di Carlofelice, "Design and implementation of a novel radar cross section reduction metasurface covering 12.5-17.4 GHz and 20.5-36.2 GHz," International Journal of RF and Microwave Computer-Aided Engineering, vol. 2023, pp. 1-10, 2023, doi: 10.1155/2023/4859324.
- [4] F. Tutar and G. Ozturk, "An effective metasurface-based linear and circular polarization converter for Cand X-band applications," Optical Materials, vol. 128, 2022, doi: 10.1016/j.optmat.2022.112355.
- [5] G. Ozturk et al., "An efficient cost effective wide-angle metasurface-based linear and circular polarization converter for X-, Ku- and K-band applications," Optics & Laser Technology, vol. 163, 2023, doi: 10.1016/j.optlastec.2023.109404.
- [6] H. A. Khan, C. Huang, Q. Xiao, and S. M. Abbas, "Polarization-dependent coding metasurface with switchable transmission and RCS reduction bands," Micromachines (Basel), vol. 14, no. 1, Dec 28 2022, doi: 10.3390/mi14010078.
- [7] Y. Sun et al., "Multilayer metasurface-based sandwich composites for wideband radar cross section reduction," Composites Science and Technology, vol. 241, 2023, doi: 10.1016/j.compscitech.2023.110159.
- [8] S. Fang et al., "Dual-function flexible metasurface for absorption and polarization conversion and its application for radar cross section reduction," Journal of Applied Physics, vol. 131, no. 13, 2022, doi: 10.1063/5.0074581.
- [9] Y.-T. Zhao et al., "Single-layer absorption-diffusion-integrated metasurface for high-performance radar cross section reduction using hybrid copper–graphene structure," Journal of Applied Physics, vol. 131, no. 16, 2022, doi: 10.1063/5.0084668.
- [10] K. Zhang, J. Chen, S. Yue, H. Zhang, C. Meng, and J. Wang, "Facile synthesis of core-shell CI/SiO2 decorated RGO sheets composite for excellent electromagnetic wave absorption performance covering the whole X-band," Composites Part A: Applied Science and Manufacturing, vol. 130, 2020, doi: 10.1016/j.compositesa.2019.105755.
- [11] B.-Q. Lin, W.-Z. Huang, J.-X. Guo, Y.-W. Wang, B.-G. Huang, and R. Zhu, "Ultra-wideband RCS reduction achieved by a coding phase gradient metasurface," Plasmonics, vol. 18, no. 4, pp. 1561-1569, 2023, doi: 10.1007/s11468-023-01876-z.
- [12] B. Lin, W. Huang, J. Guo, X. Ji, Y. Zhou, and Y. Wu, "Ultra-wideband radar cross-section reduction based on phase cancellation," Electromagnetics, vol. 43, no. 3, pp. 151-162, 2023, doi: 10.1080/02726343.2023.2206263.
- [13] E. Bhavya, B. Choudhury, and R. U. Nair, "A wideband polarization conversion coding metasurface for monostatic radar cross section reduction of high altitude aerospace platforms," Progress In Electromagnetics Research C, vol. 123, pp. 263-279, 2022.
- [14] Y. F. Huang, Z. Jiang, L. Liu, and H. C. Zhang, "Design of a 2-bit wide-angle coding metasurface for bistatic RCS reduction," Frontiers in Materials, vol. 9, 2022, doi: 10.3389/fmats.2022.956061.
- [15] M. F. El-Sewedy and M. A. Abdalla, "A monostatic and bistatic RCS reduction using artificial magnetic conductor metasurface," IEEE Transactions on Antennas and Propagation, vol. 71, no. 2, pp. 1988-1992, 2023, doi: 10.1109/tap.2022.3225597.
- [16] B. Lin, W. Huang, J. Guo, Y. Wang, Z. Liu, and H. Ye, "A high efficiency ultra-wideband circular-to-linear polarization conversion metasurface," Optics Communications, vol. 529, 2023, doi: 10.1016/j.optcom.2022.129102.
- [17] B. Lin et al., "An ultra-wideband phase gradient metasurface for anomalous reflection and RCS reduction," Optics Communications, vol. 545, 2023, doi: 10.1016/j.optcom.2023.129704.
- [18] S. Kantamaneni, B. T. P. Madhav, A. B. Badisa, S. Das, S. K. Patel, and J. Parmar, "Conformal and polarization adjustable cloaking metasurface utilizing graphene with low radar cross section for terahertz applications," Optical and Quantum Electronics, vol. 54, no. 7, 2022, doi: 10.1007/s11082-022-03863-w.
- [19] M. Zhang et al., "All-metal coding metasurfaces for broadband terahertz RCS reduction and infrared invisibility," Photonics, vol. 10, no. 9, 2023, doi: 10.3390/photonics10090962.



The Effects of Electromagnetic Fields on Human Health and Occupational Safety

Mustafa Ozdemir^{*1}

¹Bayburt University, Faculty of Applied Sciences, Department of Emergency and Disaster Management, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

Electromagnetic radiation is divided into two main categories: ionizing and non-ionizing. While the effects of ionizing radiation (nuclear) are widely known, the effects of non-ionizing radiation (electromagnetic) are not yet fully understood. Electromagnetic fields, arising from the movement of electric charges and responsible for the operation of many devices, have become an integral part of our daily lives with the widespread adoption of modern technology. To describe how these fields propagate at different frequencies and wavelengths, a criterion known as the electromagnetic spectrum is used. This study provides information about a series of in-vitro and animal experiments that investigate the effects of electromagnetic fields on human health, while also addressing specific conditions such as the effects of electromagnetic fields on pregnancy and electromagnetic hypersensitivity. These experiments provide potential indications that electromagnetic fields may contribute to various health issues, including cancer, reproductive health problems, neurodegenerative diseases, and heart conditions, as well as psychological disorders. Electromagnetic fields also encompass a range of risks related to occupational safety, including the propulsion of objects due to static magnetic fields, triggering of electro-explosive devices, and the ignition of flammable atmospheres resulting in fires and explosions. The health and safety effects of electromagnetic fields depend on factors such as the frequency, intensity, duration, and frequency of exposure. When within appropriate limits, the adverse effects of electromagnetic fields are limited, and risks dissipate when exposure ceases. This study underscores the significance of electromagnetic fields in terms of human health and occupational safety and provides a foundation for future research.

Keywords: Occupational health, Occupational safety, Radiation, Electromagnetic field, Risk

1 INTRODUCTION

Radiation is a manifestation of energy, in the form of waves or particles, capable of penetrating matter and living organisms. Depending on its effect, it is categorized into two main types: Ionizing (nuclear) radiation and nonionizing (electromagnetic) radiation. The effects of ionizing radiation have been fairly well understood by humans through painful experiences such as World War II and the Chernobyl disaster. However, non-ionizing radiation remains not fully comprehended due to factors such as its inability to be perceived by sensory organs, incomplete understanding of its sources, and its long-term effects. These uncertainties and gaps in knowledge have also raised concerns in society about the impact of Electromagnetic Fields (EMF) on human health. Ionizing radiation can induce the detachment of electrons from atoms and molecules, whereas non-ionizing radiation lacks sufficient energy to break atomic bonds. Nevertheless, it is acknowledged that non-ionizing radiation can lead to biological effects through mechanisms such as heating, alteration of chemical reactions, and the induction of electric currents in biological cells and tissues [1].

1.1 Sources of EMF

EMF are a prevalent environmental factor that has garnered increasing societal concerns in tandem with technological advancements, affecting various levels of exposure for all living organisms. These fields have become more pervasive and influential with the progress of technology. Electromagnetic radiation, a natural phenomenon existing since the inception of the universe, with light being its most recognized form, encompasses an energy form stemming from the motion of electric charges and involving electric and magnetic field components. Significant strides in understanding electromagnetic phenomena trace back to the 1780s when the Italian physicist Luigi Galvani discovered that muscles and nerve cells generate electricity. These advancements continued with Alessandro Volta's invention of the electric battery and other discoveries, such as Hans Christian Oersted's experiment in 1820 [2].

Today, EMF have become an integral part of modern life, and envisioning a contemporary society without electrical devices is challenging. The industrial and residential use of electrical energy gained substantial momentum in the 20th century, similar growth occurred in areas like radio and television broadcasts, and revolutions in telecommunications transpired with wireless devices such as cell phones. EMF are also extensively utilized in advanced fields like radio navigation and medical applications.

Consequently, human-made influences beyond natural EMF have escalated. Understanding and managing the potential effects of these heightened influences on human health have become pivotal subjects of research and scientific endeavor. Research on the sources and impacts of EMF holds critical significance for health and the environment.

1.2 Electromagnetik Spectrum

Electric and magnetic fields are part of the electromagnetic radiation spectrum, which extends from static electric and magnetic fields to radio-frequency and infrared radiation, and X-rays. The electromagnetic spectrum defines electromagnetic waves, their frequencies, and wavelengths. At one end of the electromagnetic spectrum, there are high-energy gamma rays with nanometer-level wavelengths, while at the other end, there are very low-frequency waves with kilometer-level wavelengths [3] (Figure 1).



Figure 1. Electromagnetic spectrum

The generation of EMF within the scope of Directive 2013/35/EU, titled 'Directive on Minimum Health and Safety Requirements regarding the Exposure of Workers to Risks arising from Physical Agents (EMF), 'which is one of the most significant documents outlining the minimum health and safety requirements related to workers' exposure to risks originating from EMF, is a reality in the evolving world, as electricity is utilized in various domains of life. Electromagnetic radiation within the frequency range covered by the EMF Directive is not classified as ionizing radiation since it does not possess sufficient energy to remove electrons from the atoms of a material. X-rays and gamma rays, on the other hand, are high-energy electromagnetic radiations capable of dislodging orbital electrons, thus classified as ionizing radiation [5].

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

In this study, a document analysis method was employed to examine and analyze printed and digital articles as well as printed books available in the literature regarding EMF and their impact on human health. Document analysis encompasses processes related to locating, reading, note-taking, and evaluating sources with a specific purpose [6]. In other words, document analysis is a series of activities that occur during the examination and evaluation of printed and electronic (computer-based and internet-accessible) materials [7]. This process is also defined as the examination of written materials containing information about the phenomena under investigation [8]. In summary, document analysis is acknowledged as the collection and examination of various writings, documents, creations, or artifacts produced or prepared by other individuals or institutions regarding the research topic [9].

3 RESULTS

Various research studies have been conducted on the effects of EMF on human health, with a particular focus on areas such as cancer, reproductive health, disruption of neural tissue, characterized neurodegenerative diseases, and heart diseases [10]. Several studies related to the subject are presented below.

3.1 In-Vitro Studies

In-vitro studies have been conducted using cell and tissue cultures to investigate cancer formation at various EMF levels. For instance, it has been reported that acute magnetic fields at 60 Hz can induce DNA breaks in rat brain cells, potentially affecting cellular functions and leading to cancer and neurodegenerative diseases [11]. In 2005, it was demonstrated that intermittent magnetic fields could cause chromosomal damage in cell cultures [12]. Additionally, it has been shown that a magnetic field within the range of 0.5-1 μ T over 24-72 hours can lead to cell proliferation and DNA damage [13].

3.2 Animal Experiments

In animal experiments examining the health effects of EMF, it has been demonstrated that EMF can lead to increased phagocytic activity, enzyme activity, and cellular changes in macrophages [14]. Furthermore, studies conducted on chicken embryos have suggested that magnetic fields may influence embryonic development [15]. These experiments have also shown that magnetic fields can increase oxidative stress [16].

3.3 Electromagnetic Hypersensitivity

Some individuals exposed to EMF have reported a condition known as electromagnetic hypersensitivity, which has led them to quit their jobs or make lifestyle changes. Common symptoms in these individuals may include dermatological, neuroasthenic, and vegetative symptoms [17].

3.4 Cancer

Studies aiming to establish a connection between EMF and cancer have drawn particular attention to childhood leukemias and their potential relationship with EMF. Many studies have suggested that magnetic field levels above 0.4 µT may increase the risk of childhood leukemia [18]. Similarly, living near power lines has been found to be associated with childhood cancers [19].

3.5 EMF and Pregnancy

Studies on pregnant women exposed to EMF have shown a potential association between increased magnetic field exposure and the risk of miscarriage [20]. However, the relationship between congenital anomalies and diseases may be more complex, and different studies yield different results.

3.6 Other Health Effects

It has been proposed that EMF may affect melatonin levels and could be associated with conditions such as neurological diseases, brain functions, severe depression, and Alzheimer's disease. However, the results of studies on this topic are contradictory, and further research is needed.

4 CONCLUSION

Most individuals are exposed to weak electric and magnetic fields in their homes and workplaces while using electrical appliances, operating industrial equipment, or encountering sources such as power transmission, telecommunications, and radio waves. Additionally, the human body naturally generates small electric currents as part of its normal functioning. The impact of EMF on health depends not only on the duration of exposure but also on the intensity and frequency of EMF. Different frequencies interact with the body in various ways, with low-frequency fields potentially stimulating nerves and muscles, while high-frequency fields may cause tissues to heat. Occupational exposure limits are set at levels where adverse health effects are not expected to occur if these limits are adhered to. In other words, exceeding these limit values is necessary for adverse effects to manifest. The interaction of EMF with humans can be divided into four broad regions: static fields (0-1 Hz), low-frequency fields (1 Hz - 100 kHz), intermediate-frequency fields (100 kHz - 10 MHz), and radiofrequency fields (10 MHz and above). The EMF Directive anticipates that non-thermal effects are the effects on the nervous system and exposure to fields above 100 kHz may cause thermal effects related to heating. The EMF Directive establishes exposure limit values to provide protection to workers. These limit values are based on recommendations from the International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection (ICNIRP) and only consider short-term effects of biophysical interaction mechanisms, not long-term effects [21].

Some EMF only stimulate sensory organs, nerves, and muscles, while others can cause heating of body tissues. The EMF Directive classifies heating-related effects as thermal effects and other effects as non-thermal effects. However, it is known that exposures below a specific threshold value do not accumulate in the body and do not pose a risk. The impact is limited to the duration of exposure, and when exposure ceases, the effects also cease or diminish. Therefore, health risks disappear when exposure ends. There are two types of effects in terms of health impacts.

4.1 Direct Effects

The EMF Directive only addresses direct effects, taking into account the known effects. These direct effects are shown in Table 1 [5, 22].

Table 1. Direct chects of Elvir at different frequency ranges on numan heatin							
Field	Frequency	Sensory Effects	Health Effects				
Static magnetic field	0 - 1 Hz	Dizziness, nausea, metallic taste sensation	Changes in blood flow in limbs, alterations in brain and heart functions				
Low- frequency fields	1 Hz - 10 MHz	Sensation of light flashes in the eyes, minor changes in brain functions in the range of 1 - 400 Hz	Tingling sensation or pain, muscle twitching, disturbances in heart rhythm				
High- frequency fields	100 kHz - 6 GHz	Microwave auditory effect (individual perceiving spoken words as sounds) (200 MHz - 6.5 GHz)	Whole-body or localized heating or burns				
High- frequency fields	6 - 300 GHz		Localized heat damage on the eyes or skin				

Fable 1.	Direct	effects	of EMF	at	different	freq	luency	ranges	on	human	hea	ltł	
----------	--------	---------	--------	----	-----------	------	--------	--------	----	-------	-----	-----	--

4.2 Indirect Effects

Indirect effects arise as a result of the interaction between EMF and objects, which can lead to undesirable health and safety consequences. These indirect effects may include:

- Interaction of active implantable devices (e.g., pacemakers or defibrillators) with EMF.
- Interaction of medical devices implanted in the body (e.g., insulin pumps) with EMF.
- Interaction of passive implants (e.g., artificial joints, pins, or metal plates) with EMF.
- Effects on body piercings and tattoos.
- Risk of ferromagnetic objects becoming projectiles in static magnetic fields.
- Inadvertent triggering of electro-explosive devices.
- Fires or explosions due to ignition of flammable or explosive substances by EMF.
- Electric shocks or burns resulting from individuals touching a conductive object not grounded in an electromagnetic field [5, 22].

4.3 Effects on Occupational Health and Safety

EMF can also have significant implications for occupational health and safety. These effects may include the risk of ferromagnetic objects being propelled in strong static magnetic fields, the potential triggering of electro-explosive devices, and the occurrence of fires and explosions that ignite flammable atmospheres. In strong static magnetic fields, ferromagnetic objects can experience strong attractive forces depending on factors such as the magnitude of the magnetic field, the weight, shape, and material of the object. This can lead to the risk of these objects becoming projectiles, although this risk may vary under specific conditions. The potential for EMF to trigger electro-explosive devices is well-known, especially in the defense sector, and is an important consideration for both employees and employers. Additionally, EMF can induce spark discharges that have the potential to ignite flammable atmospheres under suitable conditions. Such sparks are induced within conductive structures by electromagnetic waves. However, for this effect to occur, there must be both a flammable atmosphere and sufficient field strengths to ignite it. Therefore, it may be relevant for employers in certain industries.

To mitigate all these risks and ensure occupational health and safety, technical and organizational measures should be implemented in workplaces. These measures include changing work methods, selecting equipment that produces low EMF, implementing shielding and safety interlocks using technical solutions, using signs and barriers to restrict access, and providing training to individuals exposed to EMF. Furthermore, strict control over the use of electro-explosive devices and the identification of areas where flammable atmospheres may be present, along with restrictions on work in these areas, are crucial considerations for employers [5, 22].

References

- [1] A. Türkkan, O. Çerezci, and K. Pala, "Elektromanyetik Alan ve Sağlik Etkileri," 2012.
- [2] E. Kızıltan and N. Dalkılıç, "Elektrofizyolojinin tarihsel serüveni: galvani dönemi," Mersin Üniversitesi Tıp Fakültesi Lokman Hekim Tıp Tarihi ve Folklorik Tıp Dergisi, vol. 12, no. 1, pp. 24–38, 2022.
- [3] C. N. Tamam, M. Evrensel, and Y. Tamam, "Elektromanyetik alanlarin insan sağliği üzerindeki etkileri," Bilimsel Tamamlayıcı Tıp Regülasyon ve Nöral Terapi Dergisi, vol. 10, no. 3, pp. 19–25, 2016.
- [4] https://www.istockphoto.com/tr/vekt%C3%B6r/elektromanyetik-spektrum-veg%C3%B6r%C3%BCn%C3%BCr-%C4%B1%C5%9F%C4%B1k-gm667978430-121948769 (accessed.
- [5] İSGGM, Elektromanyetik Alan Üreten Kaynaklar İle Çalışmalarda Sağlik ve Güvenlik Önlemleri Rehberi, 3 ed.: T.C. Aile, Çalışma ve Sosyal Hizmetler Bakanlığı, p. 108, 2020. Available: https://www.csgb.gov.tr/media/60265/elektromanyetik-alan-ureten-kaynaklar-ile-calismalarda-saglik-veguvenlik-onlemleri-rehberi.pdf.
- [6] N. Karasar, Bilimsel Araştırma Yöntemi, Nobel Yayın Dağıtım, Ankara, Ekim, no. s 97, 2005.
- [7] G. A. Bowen, "Document analysis as a qualitative research method," Qualitative research journal, vol. 9, no. 2, pp. 27–40, 2009.
- [8] A. Yıldırım and H. Simsek, Sosyal Bilimlerde Nitel Araştirma Yöntemleri, 11th Edition, 1999.
- [9] H. Seyidoğlu, Bilimsel Araştırma ve Yazma El Kitabı, 11th Edition, İstanbul: Güzem Can Yayınları, 2016.
- [10] M. Feychting, A. Ahlbom, and L. Kheifets, "EMF and health," Annu Rev Public Health, vol. 26, pp. 165– 189," Find this article online, 2005.
- [11] H. Lai and N. P. Singh, "Acute exposure to a 60 Hz magnetic field increases DNA strand breaks in rat brain cells," Bioelectromagnetics: Journal of the Bioelectromagnetics Society, The Society for Physical Regulation in Biology and Medicine, The European Bioelectromagnetics Association, vol. 18, no. 2, pp. 156–165, 1997.
- [12] R. Winker, S. Ivancsits, A. Pilger, F. Adlkofer, and H. Rüdiger, "Chromosomal damage in human diploid fibroblasts by intermittent exposure to extremely low-frequency electromagnetic fields," Mutation Research/Genetic Toxicology and Environmental Mutagenesis, vol. 585, no. 1–2, pp. 43–49, 2005.
- [13] F. I. Wolf et al., "50-Hz extremely low frequency electromagnetic fields enhance cell proliferation and DNA damage: possible involvement of a redox mechanism," Biochimica et Biophysica Acta (BBA)-Molecular Cell Research, vol. 1743, no. 1–2, pp. 120–129, 2005.
- [14] J. Frahm, M. Lantow, M. Lupke, D. G. Weiss, and M. Simkó, "Alteration in cellular functions in mouse macrophages after exposure to 50 Hz magnetic fields," Journal of cellular Biochemistry, vol. 99, no. 1, pp. 168–177, 2006.
- [15] O. Roda-Murillo et al., "Effects of low-frequency magnetic fields on different parameters of embryo of Gallus domesticus," Electromagnetic Biology and Medicine, vol. 24, no. 1, pp. 55–62, 2005.
- [16] A. G. Canseven, S. Coskun, and N. Seyhan, "Effects of various extremely low frequency magnetic fields on the free radical processes, natural antioxidant system and respiratory burst system activities in the heart and liver tissues," 2008.
- [17] F. Sheet, "Electromagnetic Fields and Public Health," World Health Organization, Geneva, Switzerland, 2005.
- [18] A. Ahlbom et al., "A pooled analysis of magnetic fields and childhood leukaemia," British journal of cancer, vol. 83, no. 5, pp. 692"698, 2000.
- [19] G. Draper, T. Vincent, M. E. Kroll, and J. Swanson, "Childhood cancer in relation to distance from high voltage power lines in England and Wales: a case-control study," Bmj, vol. 330, no. 7503, pp. 1290, 2005.
- [20] D.-K. Li et al., "A population-based prospective cohort study of personal exposure to magnetic fields during pregnancy and the risk of miscarriage," Epidemiology, pp. 9–20, 2002.
- [21] B. Bayraktar, "Bir sağlık kuruluşunun fizik tedavi ve rehabilitasyon bölümünde hizmet performansının yalın tekniklerin kullanılmasıyla arttırılması," Başkent Üniversitesi, Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü, 2020.
- [22] EUR-Lex. "2013/35/EU Sayılı Çalışanların Fiziksel Etkenlerden (EMA'lar) Kaynaklanan Risklere Maruziyetleri ile İlgili Asgari Sağlık ve Güvenlik Önlemleri Hakkında Direktif," https://eurlex.europa.eu/eli/dir/2006/25/2019-07-26.



CSI Signals and Motion Analysis

Veysel Tilegi¹, Emir Enes Tas^{*1}, Soner Can Erhan¹

¹Koluman Automotive Industry Inc., R&D, Mersin, Turkey

Abstract

CSI (Channel State Information) is a crucial concept playing a significant role in wireless communication systems. This term signifies the condition of communication channels and is commonly employed in Multiple Input, Multiple Output (MIMO) systems.

CSI signals are critical data used in wireless communication systems to provide information about the state of the channel. These signals, used in communication between devices equipped with multiple antennas, include essential details such as the condition of the channel, noise levels, and signal strength. CSI is utilized to understand variations in communication and ensure the effective transmission and reception of signals.

Motion analysis refers to the process of determining the location and movement of devices and objects using the information provided by CSI. Particularly in MIMO systems, CSI is used to determine the interaction and locations of devices with respect to each other. This enables obtaining detailed information about the position and movement of one device relative to another.

CSI signals and motion analysis are of great importance, especially in applications such as smart city implementations, the Internet of Things (IoT), and autonomous vehicles. For example, an autonomous vehicle can communicate with surrounding vehicles, analyze their movements, and use this information to determine driving strategies.

These technological advancements enable a better understanding of interactions between drivers, devices, and objects, enhancing communication reliability and facilitating the creation of smarter and more effective systems in various sectors.

In this paper, Channel State Information (CSI), or Kanal Durum Bilgisi in Turkish, has been utilized for motion analysis using ESP32 and NodeMCU. The software part involves the generation and analysis of CSI signals using C++ and Python, with the aim of ensuring cargo security.

Keywords: Motion analysis, CSI signals, ESP32 NodeMCU module, Autonomous vehicles



An extension of the Ignite UI for Angular library for accelerating the design of web-based applications

Pavlinka Radoyska*1, Riva Ivanova1

¹University of Telecommunications and Post, Department of Information Technologies, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

In this article, we discuss the features of building a comfortable user interface for mobile, web, and desktop applications in the context of the MVC (Model-View-Controller) pattern and in particular the View layer. We present the main differences between the user interface (UI) and the user experience (UX). We also describe the main features of UI frameworks and libraries for building UI and focus on the most popular UI frameworks. The main task of our post is to offer one new component for the Ignite UI library for Angular.

Keywords: User interface (UI), User experience (UX), Ignite UI library, Angular

1 INTRODUCTION

The MVC (Model-View-Controller) pattern is at the heart of building modern web applications. MVC pattern [1] includes 3 layers: controller, model and view layers. Model layer implements the business logic of the application. It includes functionalities for accessing the data. Data may be stored in various databases, including integrated databases, various files, etc. It advocates abstraction, validation and authentication. View layer implements the presentation of this data to users. This includes managing the graphical user interface - forms, buttons, graphic elements, generating RSS (really simple syndication) [2] content for aggregators or Flash presentations. The view layer is directly related to the web design or templates that are used to create the user interface. This layer is responsible for presenting data on the screen and for user interaction with it. It is also responsible for collecting data from users. The main technologies used in the View layer are HTML, CSS and JavaScript. The controller manages the processing of events, which may be generated by a user or by a system process [3]. It interacts with the model to retrieve the required data and generate the view. The controller is also responsible for error handling.

View layer is of interest for our consideration. We can highlight the user interface (UI) and the user experience (UX) as a key factor in building a successful View layer. These two components work together to create a positive and seamless interaction between users and the system.

A well done definition for UI and UE is given in [4]. The dialogue between the user and the software is implemented through the user interface (UI). It allows the user to interact with the created software by giving instructions and information on the one hand and providing him with information on the other. I.e. The UI provides the efficient input/output of the software system. Basic UI components are buttons, icons, menus, forms, images, text, and any other visual elements that facilitate interaction. An efficient and easy-to-use interface is particularly important for the successful use of the software by a wide range of users.

User Experience (UX) reflects the feelings of the person interacting with the software [5]. UX describes the overall experience a user has with a product, including how easy it is to use, how intuitive navigation is, and how satisfying the interaction is. UX design covers various aspects such as user research, wireframing, prototyping, information architecture and usability testing. It is about understanding the needs of the user and ensuring that those needs are met by the product design.

Several factors can affect the user experience [4]:

- How to design a site according to the wishes or original goals.
- Site capabilities and limitations.
- Content and appearance of the site.
- Site functionality.

UX and UI design are iterative processes. User feedback gathered during product testing and real-world use informs construction and adjustments to both UX (overall flow and functionality) and UI (visual elements and interactive components).

Both frameworks and libraries provide pre-built and well-tested code that speeds up the programming process and makes it easier for developers. The main difference is in the control over the design process and the architecture of the software created.

The developer himself determines the structure of the created software when using libraries. Their focus is on reusable functionality. Libraries provide pre-built functions, classes, or even entire tools that can be used in a wide context. The developer chooses when and where to use these ready-made components.

Frameworks often provide a higher level of abstraction. They can define the overall architecture and enforce specific design patterns by making certain decisions on behalf of the developer, and can sometimes even provide a set of design patterns. A framework can cover a wide range of functions. The developer fills in the functionalities of the framework structures. UI frameworks include a variety of tools, libraries, and templates that can be used to build visually appealing, responsive, and user-friendly application interfaces quickly and with fewer errors.

According to the statista.com [6] the most used web frameworks among developers worldwide, as of 2023 are presented in Fig. 1. We will discuss the first five of them.



Figure 1. The most used web frameworks among developers worldwide, as of 2023, statista.com

Node.js is based on the server-side use of JavaScript to build dynamic web pages with real-time environment [7]. Node.js is an open source cross-platform environment that can run on Windows, Linux, Unix, macOS, and more. Node.js is based on a "JavaScript everywhere" paradigm and allows web application development to be built around a single programming language, as opposed to using different server-side programming languages. Node.js offers an event-driven approach to programming, a time loop mechanism, and a non-blocking I/O model [8].

React.js is an open-source framework specially designed to deal with the visualisation layer of web applications [9] - single-page, mobile, or server-rendered. It works with DOM (Document Object Model). React is a JavaScript library, based on components, for building user interfaces. React updates and renders just the right components when the data changes. It also offers developers access to powerful third-party tools and plugins. In many of the sources, React is only seen as a library.

jQuery is an open-source JavaScript library, which in some sources is also interpreted as a framework [10]. It is most often used with AJAX technology and using multi-layer architecture, in which factory pattern, dependency injection and reflection mechanism are applied in the multi-layer architecture. jQuery works with the Document Object Model (DOM) and allows simplified interactions between HTML/CSS documents [11]. jQuery enables successful integration with the business process processing framework [12].

Express is a minimalist web framework for Node.js [13]. It provides a robust set of features for web and mobile applications. It offers robust routing, high performance, content negotiation and quickly generating the applications.

Angular is an open-source JavaScript framework based on TypeScript (an extension of JS developed by Microsoft) [14, 15]. It was developed by Google with the main purpose of developing single-page applications. The main advantages of Angular are the standard framework for work and easy maintenance. It offers a successful implementation of the model-driven development concept. Angular is based on Components, Templates, Directives and Dependency injection. Angular is an application framework and includes a collection of well-integrated libraries that cover a wide variety of features, such as routing, forms management, client-server communication, and more [16]. Angular encourages developers to develop open-source libraries for public use. Publicly available instructions for Angular library developers have been created [17].

2 IGNITE UI LIBRARY FOR ANGULAR

The Ignite UI for Angular library is a complete set of Material-based components and support directives for Angular from Infragistics. It enables developers to build modern, enterprise-ready, high-performance HTML5 and JavaScript mobile, web, and desktop applications targeting the Angular front-end web framework [18].

The Ignite UI for Angular library consists of a set of ready-made components. This library can make the layout of an application much simpler, faster, and easier, and eliminate the need to build much of it from scratch [19].

UI/UX components can be grouped in many ways, but usually fall into one of the following categories:

- Input components Allows users to enter information into the system.
- Navigational components Help users navigate a product or website.
- Informational components Share information with users.
- Containers Keep related content together.
- Grids (Tables of Data) Provide a means of displaying and interacting with large amounts of data structured in tabular form.

3 BUILDING A NEW COMPONENT

We notice the absence of a timer component in the group of offered in Ignite UI for Angular library components. This component can allow the page to display the remaining time to complete a certain operation. Our ambition is to expand the library by creating such a component that is easy to embed and creates a positive user experience. We stuck to two main aspects when building the timer component: vision and functionality.

The visual structure of the component that includes colours, layout, fonts, etc. are contained in the timer.component.scss file. We have adhered to the principle of obtaining a good user experience in selecting these features. The classes count-down-timer, description, and times describe the basic appearance of the component, while the classes timer-warning, timer-end and the keyframes pulse-red rule are responsible for the appearance of the component when the remaining time reaches a certain value or when it ends. Developing the vision of the component is presented in Figs. 2.a and 2.b.

The overall behaviour of the component is described in the timer.component.ts file. This includes - how the hours, minutes and seconds values are set, when and how the values should be changed, and provides an event to indicate when the timer has finished counting down.

The idea is that the user can set the time that the timer will count down and this happens by setting values to the hours, minutes and seconds properties. The Angular framework's @Input decorator is used to achieve this functionality. Values are set via get/set access modifiers to control the validity of passed values.

The timerEnded event is used to notify that the timer has finished counting time. This is useful in some scenarios, for example, a modal window with information needs to be displayed after the timer has finished, and a follow-up action is required, for example, pressing a button. The Angular framework's @Output decorator, which allows data to be sent from one component to another, is used to achieve this functionality.

An extension of the Ignite UI for Angular library for accelerating the design of web-based applications

TIEM 2023



Figure 2. New component vision development

The setTime method is responsible for counting down the remaining time and providing those values to the hours, minutes, and seconds properties that are rendered in the html file.

The functionality development of the component is presented in Figs. 3.a and 3.b.



Figure 3. New component functionality development

4 TESTING A NEW COMPONENT

Jasmine and Karma [21] tools were used to test the functionality of the component. Jasmine is a JavaScript testing framework that supports a software development practice called Behaviour-Driven Development, or BDD for short. Jasmine and BDD in general try to describe tests in a human-readable format so that they can understand what is being tested without the need for technical knowledge. Karma is a tool that allows creating browsers and running Jasmine tests in all of them from the command line. Test results are also displayed on the command line. Karma can also monitor files for changes and rerun tests automatically.

When the new component is created, the necessary configurations are automatically added to the test file, as well as an example "should create" test. We will demonstrate only one new test "should set 'hours', 'minutes', 'seconds' properties properly", which tests whether the hours, minutes and seconds properties are set properly and whether these values are rendered in the html file. The set test values are hours = 2, minutes = 30 and seconds = 15 and the expect function marks the beginning of the expression with the expected result. The overall configuration is demonstrated in Figure 4.a-b.



Figure 4. New component testing

5 EMBEDDING A NEW COMPONENT

A default configuration is automatically generated when the component is created in the timer.component.ts file (Fig. 5). The parameter selector identifies the component and triggers its instantiation in the HTML file. It can be taken as the unique identifier by which components can be defined.



Figure 5. The default configuration

The unique identifier of the new component is set to be my-timer in this case. The definition of the component is done through it (Fig. 6). For this component, the values of the time that should count down are set using the hours, minutes and seconds properties. The timerEnded event is used to define the event to perform some action in the timerEndedHandler method after the time has expired. This method is implemented in the ts (TypeScript) file and the name is only an example, it can be called anything as it is defined by the developer who will use the my-timer component when developing an application.

<my-timer< th=""></my-timer<>
[hours]="2"
[minutes]="30"
[seconds]="15"
<pre>(timerEnded)="timerEndedHandler(\$event)"></pre>

Figure 6. Define the component

6 CONCLUSION

The main advantage of the presented component is its uniqueness. The timer component was developed in sync with the requirements of the Ignite UI for Angular library. It is easy to embed and provides a good user experience. In order to become part of the library, it has to go through the relevant approval procedure.

The component could be improved in the following areas:

Flexibility. The ability to add the option to show only parts of the remaining time, for example, if only minutes and seconds are set for the countdown, not to display the part showing the remaining hours.

Changing styles. The component offers to change the styles by overriding the CSS classes. The module is about to be improved by giving the ability to change the default styles, which will ease the work of front-end developers. Enrichment of events. The component has one event - timerEnded. In the process of operation, it may be necessary to add more events that are executed in different situations.

References

- [1] D. P. Pop and A. Altar, "Designing an MVC model for rapid web application development," Procedia Engineering, vol. 69, pp. 1172–1179, 2014.
- [2] C. De Maio, G. Fenza, M. Gaeta, V. Loia, F. Orciuoli, and S. Senatore, "RSS-Generated Contents through Personalizing e-Learning Agents," 2009 Ninth International Conference on Intelligent Systems Design and Applications, Pisa, Italy, pp. 49–54, 2009, doi: 10.1109/ISDA.2009.124.
- [3] E. Stratmann and J. Ousterhout, "Integrating Long Polling with an MVC Web Framework", 2nd USENIX Conference on Web Application Development, pp. 113–124, 2011.
- [4] Z. I. Paramarini Hardianto and Karmilasari, "Analysis and design of user interface and user experience (UI / UX) E-commerce website PT pentasada andalan kelola using task system centered design (TCSD) Method," 2019 Fourth International Conference on Informatics and Computing (ICIC), Semarang, Indonesia, pp. 1–8, 2019, doi: 10.1109/ICIC47613.2019.8985854.
- [5] Sopiah. N and Muzakir. A. Penggunaan Metode Tcsd (Task Centered System Design) dalam Website Rekam Medis Pada Rumah Sakit Pelabuhan Palembang," Jurnal Ilmiah MATRIK, vol. 18, no 2, pp. 101– 112, 2016.
- [6] Most used web frameworks among developers worldwide, as of 2023, https://www.statista.com/statistics/1124699/worldwide-developer-survey-most-used-frameworks-web/.
- [7] X.-F. Gu, L. Yang, and S. Wu, "A real-time stream system based on node.js," 2014 11th International Computer Conference on Wavelet Actiev Media Technology and Information Processing(ICCWAMTIP), Chengdu, China, pp. 479–482, 2014, doi: 10.1109/ICCWAMTIP.2014.7073454.
- [8] X. Huang, "Research and application of node.js core technology," 2020 International Conference on Intelligent Computing and Human-Computer Interaction (ICHCI), Sanya, China, pp. 1–4, 2020, doi: 10.1109/ICHCI51889.2020.00008.
- [9] M. de Sousa and A. Goncalves, "Humanportal A React.js case study," 2020 15th Iberian Conference on Information Systems and Technologies (CISTI), Seville, Spain, pp. 1–6, 2020, doi: 10.23919/CISTI49556.2020.9141070.
- [10] Q. Rong, "JQuery software architecture of university scientific research management information system based on web hierarchical data heterogeneous mining," 2022 6th International Conference on Trends in Electronics and Informatics (ICOEI), Tirunelveli, India, pp. 1739–1742, 2022, doi: 10.1109/ICOEI53556.2022.9776952.
- [11] jQuery, https://www.geeksforgeeks.org/jquery/.
- Y. Lu, "JQuery implementation of online platform for university human resource management mode based on multi-centralized networking algorithm," 2022 International Conference on Inventive Computation Technologies (ICICT), Nepal, pp. 1095–1098, 2022, doi: 10.1109/ICICT54344.2022.9850920.
- [13] Express, https://expressjs.com/.
- [14] G. Geetha, M. Mittal, K. M. Prasad, and J. G. Ponsam, "Interpretation and analysis of angular framework," 2022 International Conference on Power, Energy, Control and Transmission Systems (ICPECTS), Chennai, India, pp. 1–6, 2022, doi: 10.1109/ICPECTS56089.2022.10047474.
- [15] O. C. Novac, D. E. Madar, C. M. Novac, G. Bujdosó, M. Oproescu, and T. Gal, "Comparative study of some applications made in the Angular and Vue.js frameworks," 2021 16th International Conference on Engineering of Modern Electric Systems (EMES), Oradea, Romania, pp. 1–4, 2021, doi: 10.1109/EMES52337.2021.9484150.
- [16] Angular developer guides, https://angular.io/guide/developer-guide-overview.
- [17] Creating libraries, https://angular.io/guide/creating-libraries.
- [18] G. Marino Jr, "Ignite UI for Angular," 2019. https://medium.com/@garymarinojr/ignite-ui-for-angular-

An extension of the Ignite UI for Angular library for accelerating the design of web-based applications

87a447aa04d9.

- [19] Infragistics, 2023. Getting started with Ignite UI for Angular, https://www.infragistics.com/products/igniteui-angular/angular/components/general/getting-started.
- [20] R. Sheldon, 2022. What is Node.js (Node)? , https://www.techtarget.com/whatis/definition/Nodejs
- [21] A. Hussain, "Jasmine & Karma," https://codecraft.tv/courses/angular/unit-testing/jasmine-and-karma/.



Main Features of the Digital Transformation of Higher Education

Vihra Dimitrova^{*1}

¹University of Telecommunications and Post, Management in Communications, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

The implementation of digital technologies and the global network impacts virtually all areas of life in the modern world. Higher education is no exception, and this requires an analysis of the entry of new technologies into education, as well as a review of existing strategic documents at the national and European level. The current study aims to review the process of digitalization of tertiary education and analyse the main factors that influence the process of digital transformation of higher education.

Keywords: Digital transformation, Higher education, Factors

1 INTRODUCTION

The growing use of digital technologies by young people is seen as a major topic in the 21st century and raises a number of questions related to the place of these technologies in modern life and their impact on the future. The introduction of multimodal and digital technologies in the learning process is constantly increasing. These forms of knowledge transfer and modes of communication are becoming common practice in university halls, combined with traditional educational technologies, such as lectures and the use of textbooks.

The concept of digitization is gaining popularity in modern society. Attempts to define digitalization and related concepts confirm the growth of scientific interest and the large-scale penetration of information and communication technologies in modern society.

The upheaval caused by the global health crisis was sudden and unexpected, and the subsequent economic and social measures have led to enormous change. The pandemic situation and the measures introduced had a huge impact on education. In a very short time, educational systems worldwide had to completely transform their conventional way of functioning and switch to e-learning. According to UNESCO, "higher education institutions closed their doors entirely in 185 countries in April 2020, affecting more than 1 billion students worldwide" [1].

The new reality foresees a radical change in education and training, and one of the sectors experiencing rapid digital development is higher education. The sudden forced termination of face-to-face learning has placed teachers and students in completely unfamiliar territory due to the need for timely adaptation to e-learning. This unexpected change was the reason for a rapid transition to e-learning, the implementation and adaptation of available technological resources and the inclusion of teachers and researchers who did not have the necessary technological training.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The aim of this paper is to review the theoretical concepts related to the digital transformation of higher education, to identify the main factors influencing the process of digitalization and to mark the progress of the EU member states in this field. Descriptive and comparative analysis have been used in the study, applying qualitative data review.

2.1 Definition

The terms "digitization", "digitalization" and "digital transformation" are used interchangeably and it is necessary to distinguish between them (Fig. 1). The term "digitization" is defined as "the process of changing from analogue to digital format" [2] and is a purely technical process. "Digitalization" describes a distinct process (societal, operational or economic) and could be defined as "the process of using digital technologies and information to transform business operations" [2]. This definition could also be related to higher education.



Figure 1. Concepts of digitization, digitalization and digital transformation (Source: Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT))

"Digital transformation" could be defined as the set of necessary digital processes aimed at strategic change in an individual organization. The important thing here is that digital transformation is about more than just digital processes. Bloomberg summarizes the three concepts as follows: "We digitize information, digitize processes and roles that define business operations, and digitally transform business and its strategy" [3].

Digitization can be seen as part of digital transformation, and additional components include the right strategic planning, trust building, organizational learning, etc. [4].

Therefore, digital transformation is understood as the set of digital processes necessary to bring about a change that will allow higher education institutions to successfully introduce the use of digital technologies.

2.2 Importance and Role of the Digital Transformation of Higher Education

Digitalization of education includes its modernization, reform and transformation, as well as solving problems and making decisions with the help of digital technologies [5]. According to researchers, digital technologies should be introduced in all areas of education, teacher training, educational infrastructure, methodology, teaching materials, as well as management at all levels and all sectors of the education system [6].

Digital technologies offer possibility for optimizing the learning process and improve the level of knowledge acquiring. Interactive tools support educators in introducing innovative approaches, including case studies, experimental and research work, simulation games, and more. The use of the listed methods leads to more efficient assimilation of information, development of "appropriate skills and work in an emotionally comfortable environment that stimulates motivation to learn, the birth of new ideas and creativity" [7].

The digital transformation of higher education is closely related to acquiring and improving the digital competence of both, students and teachers. Digital competence is an extensive holistic concept that encompasses technological skills in a broader perspective.

According to the European Commission "digital competence" refers to "effectively and critically use information and technology for training, self-development and active participation in society" [8]. The conceptual reference model of the digital competence is presented in Fig. 2.



Figure 2. The DigComp conceptual reference model [11]

The DigComp framework 2.2. encompasses 5 different areas:

- Information and data literacy,
- Communication and collaboration,
- Digital content creation,
- Safety,
- Problem solving.

The set goal of the European Commission is that by 2030 at least 80% of all adults will have basic digital skills and that there will be 20 million specialists in the field of information and communication technologies in the European Union.

In the current pandemic situation, as well as with the trend of increasing internationalization of higher education, the introduction of e-learning will become more and more common practice. In view of the need for digital transformation of higher education, it is necessary to review the factors related to this process.

2.3 Main Factors for Digital Transformation of Higher Education

The main factors related to the digital transformation of higher education could be categorized in five groups:

Political factors

Digital technologies have enormous potential to help increase the quality, equity and effectiveness of higher education. Realizing the full potential of digitization requires a rethinking of the policy framework, including ways of funding, additional training and quality assurance. An adequate strategic framework of digitization, monitoring and ensuring quality education is needed.

The EU Digital Education Action Plan 2021-2027 [9] has two main priority areas - promoting the development of a highly effective digital education ecosystem and improving the digital skills and competences needed for digital transformation.

Digital transformation affects every aspect of people's lives, providing enormous possibilities for "a better quality of life, innovation, economic growth and sustainability, but it also creates new challenges for the structure, security and stability of societies and economies" [10]. As the digital transformation accelerates, the European Union outlines "how its values and fundamental rights should be applied online in the recently adopted European Declaration on Digital Rights and Principles for the Digital Decade" [10].

- Socio-economic factors
- Competition between higher education institutions;
- Education costs;
- Generational differences;
- Social inclusion.
- Organizational factors
- Organizational culture;
- Organizational effectiveness.
- Educational factors
- Digital competence of teachers;
- Digital competence of students.
- Technological factors
- Diffusion of technologies;
- Infrastructure;
- Learning platforms;
- Information Security.
The digital age affects all participants in the educational process: both individuals and higher education institutions could not avoid the radical changes that technology initiated. Stakeholders are not even presented with a choice - it is inevitable to adopt and implement new, completely different approaches to digital practices that were considered unthinkable for most institutions in the recent past.

2.4 The Process of Digital Transformation of Higher Education

"Digital transformation" refers to the set of digital processes required to bring about the change that will enable organizations to successfully adopt the use of digital technologies.

The digitization of education includes "its modernization, reform and transformation, as well as solving problems and making decisions with the help of digital technologies" [12]. According to the researchers, digital technologies should be introduced in all areas of education, teacher training, educational infrastructure, methodology, teaching materials, as well as management at all levels and all sectors of the education system [12].

An adequate and modern management vision implies massive use of all new trends and technological renewal of educational institutions, which is able to qualitatively change the process of education development.

Technological developments also require the creation and updating of an appropriate legal framework, including on digital learning content and digital competence. Regarding the digital skills of teachers at all levels of education, the European Commission's Digital Competence Framework for Teachers (DigCompEdu) defines and describes the skills that teachers should acquire in order to teach and introduce innovations through the use of digital technologies.

In order to move to more sustainable model of e-learning, educational institutions need to utilize the existing technologies to reinvent learning processes, transform the roles of the traditional faculties and focus on quality through reinvention and the self-renewal of the educational service model and teaching methods. Fostering such digital transformation requires building a culture of active participation by students, faculty, and administrators to support the change. A number of educational institutions in the EU also face additional challenges, including financial and technological constraints. Public higher education institutions will also need to function in the situation of reduced state funding, while experiencing a drop in the number of students due to the recent and ongoing financial crisis. Investments will also be needed to improve the technical capabilities of European higher education institutions. Despite all these challenges, educational institutions in the EU are rather optimistic regarding the digital transformation. In a recent survey of institutions from all countries of the European Higher Education Area, most universities confirm that they "plan to explore new ways of teaching (92%) and improve its digital capacity (75%) after the crisis" [13].

2.5 Challenges in the Process of Digital Transformation

The introduction of digital technologies in higher education globally started already decades ago and differs significantly among individual higher education systems, as evidenced by the large amplitudes in the indicators of online learners in the higher education systems of OECD countries [14]. When digital technologies were first introduced, their use was still limited. Many of higher education faculty used existing systems only to publish syllabi, distribute course materials and assignments, and maintain semester grade information, and students accessed course materials, announcements, or grade information.

The pandemic situation has led to a sudden need for timely digitization of higher education, forcing educational institutions to make a rapid transition to online learning. E-learning platform providers have had to respond to a fundamental shift in the demands of educators and students. The use of virtual classrooms increased by 3600% in the month of March 2020 and by 9000% at the end of the month of September 2020 [15]. This process has been largely driven by the shift to online learning courses, but the use of e-learning platforms and students' use of alternative learning content formats has also increased dramatically.

The sudden shift to virtual learning in different countries is being accepted patiently and flexibly by teachers and students, although neither has perceived the experience as satisfactory. Educators are frustrated by the lack of guidance consultation when moving to distance learning, as well as the increased workload in developing online learning materials and students' need for more support in the virtual learning process.

A study conducted by the European Student Union shows that students prefer face-to-face interaction with professors [16]. As a result of the extraordinary and rapid transition to distance learning, many students perceived

it as incomplete and unsatisfactory. Lectures and seminars have not always been replaced by an online equivalent. Other challenges were related to a significant increase in workload and assignments, lack of a good internet connection, appropriate learning space and adequate learning materials.

Considering the challenges faced by institutions and individuals, it would be necessary to take the necessary measures and provide an opportunity to go smoothly through the process of digital transformation.

2.6 Digital Transformation "In Progress"

Among the goals of the European Commission, by 2030, all households in the EU will have broadband connectivity, and all populated areas will be covered by 5G.

Access to a reliable Internet connection significantly increases the chances of inclusion both in the learning process and in social and economic life. Existing technological limitations hinder the inclusion and participation of individuals in every sphere of activity in modern society.

From the given data, the rapid technological development and its importance for better connectivity and inclusion are evident. Broadband internet connection was used by 90% of EU households in 2021, almost 30% more than in 2011 (65%).

It is a positive fact that in the recent years, many households in Bulgaria have gained access to high-speed Internet and our country has largely approached the EU average indicators (Table 1).

TIME	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021
GEO (Labels)											
European											
Union –	(5	71	74	77	70	00	02	05	00	80	00
27 countries	65	/1	/4	//	/8	82	83	85	88	89	90
(from 2020)											
Belgium	74	75	79	81	79	82	84	84	88	91	92
Bulgaria	40	51	54	56	59	63	67	71	75	79	84
Czechia	63	69	69	76	76	80	83	86	87	88	89
Denmark	84	85	87	85	84	92	92	90	93	93	92
Germany	78	82	85	87	88	90	92	90	94	95	89
Estonia	65	73	78	81	87	85	87	89	90	89	91
Ireland	65	65	67	80	83	86	88	88	90	92	93
Greece	45	51	55	65	67	68	71	76	78	80	85
Spain	61	65	69	73	78	81	83	86	91	95	96
France	70	77	78	77	76	79	79	81	83	:	88
Croatia	56	60	64	68	76	77	76	81	81	85	86
Italy	52	55	68	71	74	77	79	83	84	87	:
Cyprus	56	62	64	69	71	74	79	86	89	92	93
Latvia	59	67	70	73	74	75	76	79	83	88	89
Lithuania	56	60	64	65	67	71	75	78	81	82	86
Luxembourg	68	68	70	93	95	97	97	93	95	94	97
Hungary	59	66	69	73	75	78	82	83	86	87	91
Malta	75	77	78	80	81	81	85	84	86	90	91
Netherlands	83	84	87	94	94	95	98	97	98	97	99
Austria	72	77	80	79	81	85	88	88	89	89	91
Poland	61	67	69	71	71	76	78	79	83	90	92
Portugal	57	60	62	63	69	73	76	77	78	82	84
Romania	31	50	56	58	65	70	74	79	82	84	88
Slovenia	67	73	74	75	78	78	82	87	89	90	93
Slovakia	55	72	70	76	78	78	79	79	80	85	90
Finland	81	85	88	89	90	91	93	93	93	95	95
Sweden	86	87	:	87	83	89	93	91	95	91	91

 Table 1. Household internet connection type: Broadband (percentage of households) – 2011-2021

The possibility of using broadband internet significantly influences the building of good digital competence and successful participation in the process of digital transformation.

Another important aspect is the level of digital skills. With regard to higher education, it is emphasized that the digital competence of teachers significantly affects digitalization in educational institutions and is related to the synchronization of students' educational needs, their personality traits, curricula, learning process management and digital competence. With a view to introducing effective digital integrated training, it is necessary to prioritize the development of the academic staff and the increase of their technological competence.

The digital competence of students also significantly influences the introduction of new technologies in education by harmonizing digital learning methods, intercultural interaction and equal access to higher education. Considering the critical importance of students' digital competence, it is necessary to make decisions at the political level and take the necessary measures to increase it, with a view to successful technological adaptation. This applies with particular force to Bulgaria, bearing in mind the data on the digital skills of Bulgarian citizens (Table 2).

	Individuals with	Individuals with
INDIC_IS (Labels)	basic or above basic	above basic overall
	overall digital skills	digital skills
GEO (Labels)		
European Union - 27 countries (from 2020)	53.92	26.46
Belgium	54.23	26.34
Bulgaria	31.18	7.82
Czechia	59.69	24.06
Denmark	68.65	37.37
Germany	48.92	18.84
Estonia	56.37	27.68
Ireland	70.49	39.69
Greece	52.48	21.70
Spain	64.16	38.06
France	61.96	31.25
Croatia	63.37	31.18
Italy	45.60	22.52
Cyprus	50.21	20.95
Latvia	50.80	23.79
Lithuania	48.84	23.01
Luxembourg	63.79	31.81
Hungary	49.09	21.54
Malta	61.23	35.49
Netherlands	78.94	51.77
Austria	63.33	33.28
Poland	42.93	20.64
Portugal	55.31	28.54
Romania	27.82	8.73
Slovenia	49.67	19.72
Slovakia	55.18	20.83
Finland	79.18	48.13
Sweden	66.52	35.68

Table 2. Individuals' level of digital skills (from 2021 onwards) (percentage of individuals)

It is noteworthy that the digital competence in Bulgaria is at a low level and this can be seen from the presented data and the comparison with other European countries and the average level for the European Union. It is necessary to take urgent measures to increase the technological competence in Bulgaria.

3 RESULTS

The process of digital transformation requires radical change at system level. The digital transformation of higher education is understood as the set of digital processes necessary to bring about a change that will allow higher education institutions to successfully introduce the use of digital technologies.

Higher education systems are expected to undergo a process of strengthening digitization in the planning of the educational process, the teaching and learning process, assessment and educational statistics. An adequate response to the need for more effective and widespread use of digital technologies will require higher schools to create a new generation educational environment.

The digital educational environment of the near future must be adapted for the use of mobile devices, offer conditions for better group work during the learning process and support interactive classrooms. Educators will have more complete access to student statistics and will be able to better identify their educational needs and difficulties they encounter; will have better assessment opportunities and advanced models for continuing professional development when using the digital educational environment.

The challenges facing the digitalization of higher education worldwide include the need for significant investments in hardware and software and sufficient time to train academic staff in applying new technologies. Educational institutions do not take full advantage of the opportunities of information and communication technologies to create a more flexible and rich educational process. Higher education institutions need to guide the digitalization process, so as to ensure that the services provided by educational technology providers meet the needs of teachers and students.

The digital transformation of higher education is closely related to acquiring and improving the digital competence of both, students and teachers. More efforts should be made in improving the digital competence of the academic staff and achieve the goals set by the European Commission.

Increasing digital competence is a priority at both European and national level, and its importance for digital transformation and higher education is crucial. Investments in human resources development and capacity building, as well as in improving their digital skills, will be repaid many times over, and the whole society will benefit from the positive effects.

Along with access to high-speed Internet, digital competence is the other condition for active participation and inclusion in the learning process, the labour market or public life in general.

In conclusion, we can point out that there is a significant difference between the development of the educational ecosystem and the ecosystem of digital technologies. Like any other ecosystem in nature, the educational ecosystem needs balance to be sustainable. The pandemic situation has shifted the focus on digital technologies behind e-learning, with too little attention being paid to people and learning methods. Data and technology are just tools, but the focus should be on the people in the system. If we limit ourselves to using technology to copy traditional pedagogical approaches, it will not serve the students well. A complete revision of the used training methods and the possibilities of new technologies should be done.

4 CONCLUSION

The recent global health crisis and the faster introduction of new technologies has led to a sudden digitalization that has made it difficult for a number of students to participate in the learning process and for teachers to deliver classes. It should be ensured that all students, teachers and staff will be supported with adequate training and inclusive measures on the one hand, and on the other - will have the opportunity to continue to carry out their activities in an analogue mode, using hybrid forms of education.

The significant impact of the recent global health crisis, combined with the possibility to use digital technologies to deliver online learning, represents an unprecedented opportunity to transform higher education in Europe and globally. We are all part of the digital world and the phenomenon of online learning will continue to exist. The expectation is to build a sustainable model that will continue to be implemented in the future.

Acknowledgments

The article has been made possible with the financial support of Project No NID-30/10.04.2023 by UTP-Sofia.

References

 V. J. García-Morales, A. Garrido-Moreno, and R..Martín-Rojas, "The transformation of higher education after the COVID disruption: Emerging challenges in an online learning scenario," Front. Psychol., vol. 12, art. no. 616059, 2021, doi: 10.3389/fpsyg.2021.616059.

- [2] Information Technology Glossary [online]. [Accessed 9 March 2023]. Available from: www.gartner.com/itglossary/digitalization.
- [3] J. Bloomberg, "Digitization, digitalization, and digital transformation: Confuse them at your peril," [online] Forbes, 2018 [Accessed 3 March 2023]. Available from: https://www.forbes.com/sites/jasonbloomberg/ 2018/04/29/digitization-digitalization-and-digitaltransformation-confuse-them-at-your-peril/.
- [4] E. Cameron and M. Green, "Making sense of change management. A complete guide to the models, tools & techniques of organizational change," 2nd edition. London & Philadelphia: Kogan Page, 2009.
- [5] T. Nikulina and E. Starichenko, "Informatization and digitalization of education: Concepts, technologies, management," Pedagogicheskoe obrazovanie v Rossii, vol. 8, pp. 107–113, 2018.
- [6] A. Fevolden and C. Tomte, "How ICT is shaping higher education," The Palgrave International Handbook of Higher Education Policy and Governance, London: Palgrave Macmillan, pp. 342–358, 2015.
- [7] N. Ilyushenko, "Digital learning: Prospects and risks of digital shift in education," Projecting the future. Challenges of digital reality: The works of the 2nd International Conference, 2019.
- [8] European Commission, Directorate-General for Education, Youth, Sport and Culture, Key competences for lifelong learning, Publications Office, 2019, https://data.europa.eu/doi/10.2766/569540.
- [9] Digital Education Action Plan (2021-2027) [online]. [Accessed 15 Nov 2023]. Available from: https://education.ec.europa.eu/focus-topics/digital-education/action-plan.
- [10] European Commission (2022). European Declaration on Digital Rights and Principles for the Digital Decade. Brussels, COM (2022) 28 final [online]. [Accessed 15 Nov 2023]. Available from: https://digitalstrategy.ec.europa.eu/en/library/european-declaration-digital-rights-and-principles.
- [11] https://joint-research-centre.ec.europa.eu/digcomp/digcomp-framework_en (Accessed online on 15.11.2023).
- [12] S. Matveeva, N. Akatova, Y. Shcherbakov, and N. Filinova, "Digitalization of higher education and professional development of educators: Technologies and new opportunities," Amazonia Investiga, vol. 9, no. 29, pp. 77–86, May 2020, doi: http://dx.doi.org/10.34069/AI/2020.29.05.10.
- [13] European University Association, EUA 2020: Preliminary Results of the EUA Survey on "Digitally Enhanced Learning at European Higher Education Institutions, 2020. (Accessed online on 15 March 2023) Available online from: http://www.ehea.info/Upload/Board_DE_UK_72_5_3_EUA_survey_Covid_19. pdf.
- [14] OECD [online]. [Accessed 15 March 2023]. Available from: https://www.oecd-ilibrary.org/education/talis-2018-results-volume-i_1d0bc92a-en.
- [15] Blackboard [online]. [Accessed 13 March 2023]. Available from: https://www.blackboard.com/go/best-practices.
- [16] European Students Union [online]. [Accessed 11 March 2023]. Available from: https://www.esu-online.org/?publication=student-life-during-the-covid-19-pandemic-lockdown-europe-wide-insights.



December 1-3, 2023

Basic Systematization of Nuances (Aspects) for Understanding Human Factors Pressure in Workplace Differences

Ivaylo Stoyanov*1

¹University of Telecommunications and Post, Management Department, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

The publication highlights a study in the scientific literature, where it was found that there is no established predominance of the nuances (aspects) for understanding the human factors pressure in workplace differences, because not only in a theoretical plan, but also in a practical environment, they are difficult to identify and depend on the normative approach of the authors, their research and conceptual views. This often makes it difficult to understand the concept of human factors pressure in workplace, because individual differences give rise to complex perceptions of behavioral actions, varying widely and in frequency of manifestation. The problem with terminology boils down to the conflation of etymological meanings, which creates confusion in the understanding, manifestation and intensity of behavioral workplace pressure. It is a palette of causes and effects (consequences) that are mixed in three accepted and academically established concepts ("mobbing", "bullying", and "harassment"), giving rise to peculiar interpretations in scientific research, object of consensus or controversial discussions in most of it.

Keywords: Human factors, Work environment, Bullying, Mobbing, Harassment

1 INTRODUCTION

The different treatment of the individual in the workplace creates conditions for discriminatory signs that reflect the individual behaviour and work potential of the human factors. In the scientific literature [1] a perception has emerged that the premises that lead to discrimination in the workplace are a major source of pressure for people when their rights are violated or conditions for a deteriorated organizational climate are created through personal attacks, insults and social exclusion. In the presence of discrimination in the labour process (both in terms of professional competences and in a personal plan for the individual), discriminatory signs arise that make the working climate problematic for the person and his relationships with others (the group).

In social management and workplace relationships, it is difficult to give a single explanation because people react in a certain way when they commit violence or pressure against others, and most importantly - what provokes them! There may be various causes arising from the character and behaviour of individuals, environmental factors and the type (specificity) of the situation. In the general context of the issue, workplace pressure is a catalyst for conscious and unconscious human behaviour, whether or not there is intent in it.

Sometimes a person can be kind, responsive and well-intentioned without having any characterological features of behaviour that make them aggressive, but a situation can send them out of control and give rise to a moment of violence. Is it then possible to claim that the person is predisposed to pressure - and yes and no?! Yes, because pressure can be a fact in a situation (be real), even though the person is not naturally inclined to it (unless they have the necessary tools and don't aim for it). Still, pressure does exist, and no one is safe from experiencing it or being a victim of it.

On the other hand, there are people who are permanently (by nature) aggressive, prone to violence in the workplace. These are individuals who have problems of a different nature, are complex, self-centered or simply enjoy watching (without direct intervention) others suffer. But there is an option for them not to react maliciously (to bully others) in a particular situation, no matter what the motives and considerations are for doing so. Here, too, the presumption is that bad guys are aggressive by definition, but the situation is such that in this particular case there is no human factors pressure in workplace. Why, since the aggressive person is capable of this? Because environmental and situational factors affect his consciousness, and hence his behaviour.

2 SYSTEMATIZATION OF NUANCES (ASPECTS) FOR UNDERSTANDING HUMAN FACTORS PRESSURE IN WORKPLACE DIFFERENCES

The understanding of human factors pressure in workplace differences in the scientific literature is a complex component of conceptual views characteristic of specific time periods, linguistic features of the national identity of different countries, author positions and scientific interpretations. For the more precise identification of the theoretical positions in the scientific literature, three nuances (aspects) are examined for understanding the human factors pressure in workplace differences – "mobbing", "bullying", and "harassment".

In theory, there are some differences between the individual concepts, which, according to a group of authors, are not so noticeable in practice and it is difficult to determine their distinguishing characteristics, because the effects that occur are similar or identical [2-4]. A similar thesis is also advocated here, because in theory the concepts of human factors pressure in workplace differences have symptoms that give rise to different interpretations depending on the terminology that is used, but in a practical environment, the scientific research of the authors and the tools for their implementation follow a common context. It is about harmful, negative or inappropriate behaviour for the individual and/or group of people - negative effects and consequences of the manifestation of the human factors pressure in workplace differences, i.e. in a work environment.

As a result of the three nuances (aspects) for understanding the human factors pressure in workplace differences, characteristic features of the terminology are distinguished, which require systematization. The aim is to reveal key nuances of individual perceptions of people (caused by their differences), which depend on the subsequent determination of the form, degree, factors, intensity and effects of the manifestation of pressure in a working environment, i.e. its typology and conceptual model.

Of course, this is a difficult undertaking because the margin of distinction (and deviation) is very minimal, as some of them have similar characteristics or overlap (especially in practice). Usually, violence is associated with conceptual views of human factors pressure in workplace, but there are peculiarities - it is an introductory fragment to consequence depending on the context of the situation. The point is that violence is examined from the position of the abuser, who has a certain form of behaviour, visible and decipherable to others (mostly from the object of violence) – his behaviour is aggressive with different variations. Research in this direction is focused on the causes of this behaviour and the environmental factors affecting aggressive behaviour.

As for the human factors pressure in workplace differences, it can be part of the process of violence (pressure occurs without violent behaviour), and research focuses both on the "victim" (the target of workplace pressure) and their experiences, and on the bully provoking the pressure. From this point of view, the different shades of human factors pressure in workplace focus on the same phenomenon, but viewed from a different angle of victim and bully, i.e. prerequisites, causes and consequences of violent behaviour and victim in the situation [5-8].

For this reason, the review of the scientific literature gives reason to systematize basic theoretical statements for understanding the human factors pressure in workplace differences and to reflect their adequate application for research in practice, in relation to its accompanying nuances (aspects) - Table 1.

From Table 1, it is appropriate to make the following scientific findings to systematize the main theoretical propositions for understanding the human factors pressure in workplace differences, namely:

2.1 "Mobbing"

There is systemic mobbing that has a constant and negative impact on the behaviour of human factors in the workplace, there are no organizational mechanisms for counteraction, people are afraid to share, the subject of harassment is empowered or acts with machinations. Part of the group is surrounded by the one in power or under his tutelage, but its members act for their own sake. Even if informed about the group's (bullying) behaviour, the power subject remains passive or protects group cohesion (the group remains highly cohesive).

Because bullying permeates all levels of the organization (or unit), it affects groups and a person's personal identity. The groups that affect the target of bullying are more involved and to a limited extent personal "person-to-person" relationships are involved.

The manifestation of harassment is in an aggressive form, which gives rise to an attitude of constant and purposeful actions to discredit the person and search for an occasion for retribution. This creates a strong discomfort for the

individual with high levels of stress that affect their emotional and health status. Employees of a company are highly stressed, prone to harassment, often apathetic towards goals and objectives and demotivated to work.

The presence of "Mobbing" in the workplace creates a harmful environment for the individual, which is determined by the personal perceptions, preferences and attitudes projected on the consciousness and behaviour of the human factor - the object of harassment. An indicative effect of this process is the poor organizational culture, the bad organizational climate and the ignoring of reports and complaints of employees about harassment. As a result, an unregulated normative base is created with an ineffective departmental policy towards the action and behaviour of people in the work environment. Although there are signals and complaints from employees, they are ignored or remain in the background.

Terminology				
Key nuances	"Mobbing"	"Bullying"	"Harassment"	
Frequency (intensity) of pressure in working environment	Systemic (continuous) mobbing affecting the behaviour and action of the individual (personal and group) in a work environment	Regular (intermittent) bullying affecting a person's behaviour and action (personal and group) in a work environment	Discriminatory harassment (regardless of the frequency of occurrence) towards individual characteristics and behaviour of the person (personal and group) in a work environment	
Personal and group manifestation of pressure in a work environment	Less often "Human- human" and more often "group-man"	More often "Man-to-Man" and less often "group-man"	Usually a mix of "Human-to- Human and Group-to-human"	
Degree (level) of manifestation of pressure in a work environment	Aggressive attitude towards the behaviour and action of the personality (personal and group) in a work environment	Negative attitude towards the behaviour and action of the personality (personal and group) in a work environment	Inappropriate or offensive attitude to personal characteristics and behaviour of the person (personal and group) in a working environment	
Organizational environment and opportunities for impact in the context of corporate culture	Toxic work environment, poor organizational climate and disregard for employee whistleblowing and complaints	Deteriorated social relationships, lack of adequate communication and conflicts when registering employee signals and complaints	Reaction after receiving a report of unethical or discriminatory behaviour in the case of employee reports and complaints	
Context in which workplace pressure occursAbuse of a person's power, influence or dominant position in the organization over another or a group when the latter have no tools or mechanisms to protect against workplace pressure		Striving to prove superiority over another/s, looking for opportunities to discredit at work, personal influence over the psyche and behaviour of the individual or group, so as to harm the individual to achieve the intended results.	Interpersonal relations based on antisemitism and discriminatory signs towards the person (personal and group), including taking advantage of dominant positions in the organizational hierarchy	
Opportunities for legislative initiatives (measures) against pressure in working environment	Lack of clear regulation in the legislative aspect, blurring the boundaries between professional (official) commitments, hidden motives and hard-to-prove subtext for pressure of the person (personal and group) at the workplace		Legislative regulation against antisemitic or discriminatory treatment of individuals (personal and group) in the workplace	
Human factors impact tools for workplace pressure	Force, threat, coercion and compromise to perform a certain act	Psychological attack and negative influence to gain advantage in a specific situation	Extorting, inducing, provoking or taking advantage of the situation for personal interests and goals	
According to the human factors intent degree for workplace pressure	Systematic/regular intentional or unintentional human factors behaviour and action, i.e. see for conscious or unconscious (subconscious) conviction to achieve interests goals in the workp			

Table 1. Systematization of nuances (aspects) for understanding human factors pressure in workplace differences

At the core of "Mobbing" pressure is power, struggle and the desire to redistribute positions of power based on personal and professional interests for goals, influence and supremacy. Less importance is given to the personality characteristics of the individual and he is seen more as a competitor in a work environment. Mobbing is accelerated by the lack of legislative regulation (unlike discrimination) that takes into account its framework and the influence of the primary source. Usually, the pressure effect is noticed at the expense of the approach, because much of the group's (or individual's) actions remain hidden and the motives and sources unclear. The person assumes where the pressure comes from (if there is no direct impact), but cannot always blame or expose the subject of mobbing, because it is the work of the group or part of it, i.e. responsibility is blurred.

Main tools for impact in "Mobbing" pressure are force, threat, coercion and compromising. They are a means of power that provides opportunities to influence the action and behaviour of others, i.e. to be mobbed for personal or organizational purposes.

Examples of mobbing:

- A head of a unit in the organization systematically mobbed the person "X", because he is afraid of not taking his position;
- ➤ A group in the organization systematically mobbed the person "Y", because it feels threatened by the sympathy of a part of the management towards him;
- A group from the financial and accounting department of the organization is systematically mobbed the person "Z", because they found out about unregulated practices of intra-departmental allocation of amounts for performed activities.

2.2 "Bullying"

Bullying is not as intense as in the previous shade, but with a negative effect on the action and behaviour of the person. In contrast to "Mobbing", bullying, this one is carried out at certain intervals of time, so that it slowly and methodically affects the psyche and working capacity of the individual. He is gradually discredited on a personal and professional basis, efficiency in the labour process decreases, which destabilizes his behavior and confidence to cope with goals and tasks, i.e. affects productivity and quality of work.

"Bullying" takes place on an individual basis and partly affects the group aspect of the process, because it is a personal context of dissatisfaction and/or lack of personal potential. Prerequisites are created for a subject to bully another subject or to tune people to him so as to psychologically influence his consciousness.

The attitude towards the human factors is negative, although it does not cross the border into aggressive, but enough to traumatize people to not take initiatives and decisions in the workplace. When an individual is pressured with criticism, negative comments or pressure, it is difficult to stay focused and achieve high results.

Obviously, "Bullying" has a personal contrast to relationships - they do not escalate to a peak level, but lead to destabilization of communication in the workplace. The victim of bullying feels pressured by circumstances, ashamed, embarrassed, or blamed for outcomes that are not their responsibility. An environment of worsened social relations and conflicts is created, reports and complaints of employees are registered, but often without effect - there are usually no culprits or it is difficult to prove the wrongdoing of bullying.

At the core of "Bullying" is a desire for supremacy over another/s, opportunities to discredit at work, personal influence over the psyche and behavior of the person or group, so as to harm the individual not to achieve the desired results.

"Bullying" is manifested and developed by the lack of legislative regulation (unlike discrimination), which takes into account the limit of acceptable behaviour, because it is subjective to the specific situation and is a matter of argumentation - for example, when evaluating employees by their supervisors quality criteria.

The main tools for impact in "Bullying" are psychological attack and negative influence to achieve an advantage in a specific situation. They also relate to power, but are also applied at a lower level to equal positions in the organization or the ability of one person to negatively influence another/s.

Examples of bullying:

- A colleague in the organization does not like the style and way of working of person "X" and finds reasons for criticism, which affects his psyche, reduces motivation and work productivity;
- A project team leader dislikes person "Y", because a colleague gives him personal attention and underrates him for his work on the project for no reason;
- Person "Z" does not provide information to a colleague or sabotages the work under the pretext that it is missing or partial, which prevents the individual from performing the work well and on time.

2.3 "Harassment"

Harassment is about discrimination against a person, no matter where, how or by whom it is applied. Discrimination gives rise to harassment as a result of prejudice and unfair treatment (judgment, opinion and action) to the human factors in the organization because his dignity and status in society is affected. Oppressed subjects show discriminatory signs through negative attitudes towards individual characteristics and behaviour of the person in basic human characteristics – race, religion, gender, age and disability (disability). In recent years, discrimination has been perceived as a global problem in the workplace, is not subject to compromise and is regulated through normative acts.

Discrimination occurs at the individual and group level – the subject of harassment is discriminated against when his psyche and behaviour are negatively affected. There is discomfort affecting the socialization of the individual, reducing work productivity and leading to chronic stress. Symptoms affecting a person's emotional and physical health appear and reflect in the workplace - anger, irritation, aggression, apathy, alienation, lack of concentration, etc.

The basis of discrimination is an inappropriate or offensive attitude towards the individual or a group of people at the workplace, from which conflict situations and contradictions arise. This creates conditions for social differences in the workplace, neglect of human rights, equality and opportunities for self-expression.

Unlike the other shades of workplace pressure ("Mobbing", "Bullying"), the presence of "Harassmen" is regulated by legal acts, obliging the management of the organization to react to employee reports and complaints. Although discrimination governs the protection of natural persons only (legal entities do not fall into this category), organizations are obliged to take measures to verify and establish whether harassment has occurred (or not) and not to apply it to their employees. In most cases, it is about interpersonal relations through antisemitism and discrimination against the person (personal and group), including taking advantage of dominant positions in the organizational hierarchy.

The main tools for influencing "Harassment" are bothering, extorting, persuading, provoking or taking advantage of the situation for personal interests and goals. The latter are related to the perception and attitude of the individual, his desire to take advantage of the situation and obtain satisfaction of personal needs.

Examples of harassment:

- Senior managers do not allow a junior manager to eat at their table;
- A manager allows himself obscene compliments with sexual undertones to a subordinate, sends invitations to intimate meetings and sexual hints;
- Employees make fun of a colleague for being bisexual, having a strange gait, habits and manner of communication;
- An employer refuses to hire a woman for work if he finds out that she intends to give birth to children and go into maternity, when the applicant has health problems or is disadvantaged.

3 CONCLUSION

All three nuances of human factors pressure in workplace differences are associated with the degree of intent for the committed act. It is subject to systematic/regular intentional or unintentional behaviour and action i.e. conscious or unconscious (subconscious) conviction to achieve interests and goals in the workplace. This process could range from rude behaviour in the workplace to physical violence, abuse with trauma or death.

From what has been said so far, it can be concluded that in practice different aspects of the manifestation of human factors pressure in workplace differences are formed, and the nuances have a mixture of factors and specifics between them. This makes them difficult to distinguish in the context of their individualization, which aims to mainly underline the scientific contribution and effect in theoretical terms. As for the practice of the organizations,

the processes of human factors pressure in workplace differences are investigated, nuances, regularities and trends regarding the typology of manifestation are established.

Acknowledgments

The publications has been made possible with the financial support of project No NID-30/10.04.2023 by UTP – Sofia.

References

- [1] M. Vartia, "The sources of bullying: Psychological work environment and organizational climate," European Journal of Work and Organizational Psychology, vol. 5, pp. 203-214, 1996.
- [2] A. Adams, "Bullying at Work: How to Confront and Overcome İt," 2nd Ed. Virago Press, pp. 23–34, pp. 67–71, pp. 78–83, 2014.
- [3] D. Zapf, "Organizational, work group related and personal causes of mobbing/bullying at work," International Journal of Manpower, vol. 20, pp. 70–85, 1999.
- [4] D. Zapf and S. Einarsen, "Mobbing at Work: Escalated Conflicts in Organizations. Counterproductive Work Behavior: Investigations of Actors and Targets," Fox, Suzy & Spector Publishing, 2005.
- [5] N. Djurkovic, D. McCormack, and G. Casimir, "The behavioral reactions of victims to different types of workplace bullying," International Journal of Organizational Theory and Behavior, vol. 8, pp. 439–461, 2005.
- [6] N. De Cuyper, E. Baillien, and H. De Witte, "Job insecurity, perceived employability and targets' and perpetrators' experiences of workplace bullying," Work & Stress, vol. 23, , pp. 206–224, 2009.
- [7] G. Ozer and J. Escartín, "The making and breaking of workplace bullying perpetration: A systematic review on the antecedents, moderators, mediators, outcomes of perpetration and suggestions for organizations," Aggression and Violent Behavior, vol. 69, art. no. 101823, 2023.
- [8] A. Appiah, "Factors of violence and harassment at workplace: Another reading from the strategic analysis," Advances in Applied Sociology, vol. 12, 2022.



December 1-3, 2023

Impact of Cyberbullying on the Behavior and Performance of Employees: An Empirical Study in Telecommunication Services Companies in Republic of Bulgaria

Ivaylo Stoyanov^{*1}, Gergana Dimcheva¹

¹University of Telecommunications and Post, Management Department, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

The publication is oriented to a significant problem of digitalization in the workplace, where the benefits of information and communication technologies are often exceeded and their negative impact on the behaviour and work of human resources is highlighted. The emphasis of the publication is placed on the cyberbullying experienced by employees when the organization overdoes both the official authority and the personal time and interests of the human factor. In addition to a literature review on the issue, a study was also conducted into the practice of cyberbullying of employees and the impact on their behaviour in telecommunication service companies in Republic of Bulgaria.

Keywords: Human factors, Behaviour, Work, Cyberbullying, Telecommunications

1 INTRODUCTION

In recent years, the development of digital technologies and mobile devices has created a new approach in communication between people at the corporate and personal level - the electronic network and related components for electronic communication and exchange of data and information. Undoubtedly, today it is perhaps one of the greatest discoveries of our time, because it creates unprecedented conveniences to communicate anywhere and anytime with a click or minimal impact on the technical device. People can now talk and send messages anywhere on the planet as long as there is an Internet connection and an entity to communicate with. This social interaction in an electronic environment allows for the inclusion of heterogeneous social groups that can create communities in a digital environment and conduct communication without the need to be physically in the same place. This development of communication and the ability to communicate unrestrictedly in an online environment creates enormous advantages through the use of modern information and communication technologies, but they can be compromised when used for malicious purposes and interests.

One of the great advantages of the digitalization of communication processes in business and society is the fast and feedback relationship between the participating entities, the immediate sharing of data and information, as well as real-time conversations through the Internet and mobile communications. In modern society, e-mail, mobile communications and social media (Instagram, Facebook, Twitter, etc.) provide convenience in this regard, which help participating entities to communicate with each other in a timely manner, create groups and virtual communities, search for people by professional and personal interests, to create friendships and partner relationships [1-3]. However, this is only one side of a two-sided process that can also have negative consequences on human factor behaviour and performance.

As the Internet grows, the application of social media and mobile communications increases, so does the risk of malicious and harmful acts in the online environment, which can lead to cyberbullying and cybercrime, both in the workplace and reflect on people's personal lives. In this way, conditions and prerequisites are created for unregulated actions of a certain entity (person) or group of people in the online space, to harm another (others) through the use of modern information technologies and mobile communications. Thus, their application from a positive can turn into a negative when ethical practices and standards for work and interaction in an online environment are violated. This process is extremely dangerous in cyberspace, because unlike, for example, conventional harassment, which is visible to the victim (the object of harassment), in an online environment, the initiator of harassment can remain anonymous or cover up his tracks and actions [4-7] if the organization does not have the necessary cyber protection and control systems in place to successfully prevent cyberbullying in the workplace.

2 CYBERBULLYING IN THE WORKPLACE

In recent years, the phenomenon of cyberbullying has grown at full speed, and according to data from Google Trends (Fig. 1.) from 2004 to 2020, cyberbullying has grown nearly three times, which is due to the development of information and communication technologies and the use of mobile telephones in all spheres of society and business. Globally, this has significantly changed the type of communication and the ways people communicate, who have started to communicate more often digitally. The Covid-19 pandemic has accelerated the process and forced digital technologies and mobile devices as a priority in the communication policy of modern companies and human communication in general.



Figure 1. Source: Google trends

In the scientific literature [8, 9] cyberbullying in the workplace is defined as unwanted behaviour in an online environment, through which one or several subjects (the bully) perform unregulated actions by using electronic devices to bother (targetfully bully) a certain object (victim), based on unethical and harmful online content. It can have a different context, depending on the form through which it is used (social media platforms, sending offensive or inappropriate messages via e-mail and mobile devices, as well as disclosing inappropriate information in an online environment), thereby creating stress and tension in the affected side. From what has been said, a parallel can be drawn to the traditional way of bullying in the workplace in terms of their common characteristics and differences with cyberbullying.

Conceptually, traditional bullying and cyberbullying are similar in the following more important characteristics [10, 11]:

• *Tendency of behaviour by the subject of bullying (the bully) with the aim of harming the object of bullying (the victim).* In both conventional and cyberbullying, there is a definite intention of a person or a group of people who have different psychological attitudes and motives to harm someone, as a result of personal dissatisfaction, unrealized ambitions, professional incompetence or use of a power resource for personal goals and machinations. These people (bullies) have a different type of behaviour, regardless of the type of bullying carried out, ranging from psychopathy to malicious actions to achieve specific goals and priorities.

• Degree of intent to negatively impact the behaviour and performance of the human factors in the organization. Both types of bullying are intended to harm the victim by disparaging them, based on compromised data or data that will affect them in the workplace.

• *Effect of negative behaviour on the victim.* Both types of bullying can create emotional-psychological and physical effects in the mind and behavior of the victim that reflect negatively on productivity and relationships in the workplace.

Conceptually, traditional bullying and cyberbullying differ in the following more important characteristics [12-14]:

IT technologies and connectivity of countries. Unlike traditional bullying, which is face-to-face and requires the direct physical intervention (in real time) of two or more people, IT technologies allow bullying in an online environment to take place at any time and place where the bully and the victim are involved computer or mobile devices. This makes cyberbullying particularly dangerous, because by means of IT technologies it can be carried out and distributed comprehensively and without restrictions to any point on the planet with the necessary technical

Impact of cyberbullying on the behavior and performance of employees: An empirical study in telecommunication services companies in republic of Bulgaria

characteristics and devices. Since people can no longer do without computers and mobile phones (or at least depend on them in their social environment or in their profession) they cannot protect themselves from targeted cyberbullying or cybercrime behaviour in the various forms and aspects of digital technology.

• Opportunities to anonymously impact the abuser. Modern information and communication technologies allow bullies (the subject of bullying) to remain anonymous, covering their tracks in the online space. Unlike conventional bullying, where people cannot escape the confrontation and it affects both parties (regardless of whether one has the upper hand through power or other attributes of professional and behavioral dominance), in cyberbullying encounters are completely absent or limited to communication in technological platforms. This creates confidence for the abuser to not only be assertive, but to abuse the acceptable boundaries of ethical behaviour, even going beyond normal online communication practices. To a large extent, the anonymity of the abuser manifests itself in the victim's personal contacts on social platforms and unsecured digital communications, but this can also transfer to the workplace, where robust protections and systems are needed to improve corporate cyber security.

Digital skills of the abuser. While traditional bullying can take place on the spot and does not require some form of intelligent communication, ie. it is enough only to be bully by the object, in the case of cyberbullying it is necessary for the bully to have at least basic knowledge in the field of digital communication. When he needs to skillfully cover his tracks or remain undetected, this knowledge can grow into appropriate digital skills (even hacking) so that he constantly bullies the victim online. The digital skills of the abuser can make him a skilled online manipulator who constantly and everywhere stalks the targeted victim online, even if he is recognized and blocked, he can create new accounts to continue bullying the person.

• *Larger audience of unethical and harmful online content*. Communication online is usually seen and read by a larger audience, which means that online bullying can be widespread and reach more people. Of course, there are also corporate groups within the organization with quite a few managers and employees who can witness online bullying that can denigrate the victim. Therefore, most organizations seek to curb this type of unregulated behavior through systems to control and censor inappropriate content and online behaviour.

The following are the main forms (types) of cyberbullying:

- messages with bully online content;

- malicious and defamatory offensive messages on social platforms;

- electronic and SMS messages violating the privacy of the individual;

- messages sent at a time specified for rest or leave for the individual;

- photo or video material threatening the security, psychological (emotional) stability and physiology of the individual;

- mobile calls or SMS messages with an indecent context;
- hindering normal work with digital technology: viruses, phishing attacks, etc.

Both traditional and cyberbullying create various effects on the behaviour and performance of human factors in the organization related to:

- technostress from unethical and harmful online content;

- psychological problems and cognitive negative perceptions;
- lack of motivation and alienation from work;
- physiological problems and prerequisites for health problems, etc.

For the organization, cyberbullying creates various effects related to:

- complaints and filed cases for cyberbullying;
- demotivated employees;
- drop in labor productivity;
- limited human factor initiatives in a cyber environment;
- problems with cyber security and protection systems, etc.

To deal with cyberbullying in the workplace, organizations can implement a targeted and adequate policy to prevent it or reduce it to acceptable limits, as follows [15-17]:

Impact of cyberbullying on the behavior and performance of employees: An empirical study in telecommunication services companies in republic of Bulgaria

• *Cybersecurity Strategy and Policy*. These include an organizational culture adequate to cyberbullying and a policy to deal with it, including regulating a framework for countering and responding to complaints and complaints from the organization's human resources.

• *Rules and regulations to prevent cyberbullying in the workplace.* Having clear zero-tolerance rules and regulations for cyberbullying and subsequent punitive effects for offenders can deter bullies from bullying victims. This requires not only the development of normative documentation to regulate signs of cyberbullying in the organization, but also to stimulate the human factors to share about any situation of unethical practices in an online environment.

• *Training to deal with cyberbullying in the workplace.* In order to be able to understand cyberbullying and react to its negative impact, the human resources of the organization must be trained on how to act in such situations. This necessitates the development of training modules that set the parameters and determine the guidelines for the prevention and management of cyberbullying situations.

• *Diagnosis and monitoring of cyberbullying*. In order to prevent cyberbullying and limit it within acceptable limits, it is necessary to carry out diagnostics of online communication and the actions of the human factors in an organizational cyber environment. In addition, monitoring is required through the implementation of modern security and cyber protection systems to filter the content of information and communication in the online environment and intercept malicious acts of cyberbullying in the workplace.

In order to ensure the sustainability of management in a cyber environment, the organization must take not only adequate, but also timely measures to oppose cyberbullying and provide the necessary conditions for human resources to work safely and effectively in the conditions of digitalization of business activity.

3 FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR CYBERBULLYING ON THE BEHAVIOR AND PERFORMANCE OF EMPLOYEES IN TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES COMPANIES IN REPUBLIC OF BULGARIA

Telecommunications is an important industry that continues to grow and provide new opportunities for connectivity and innovation. Undoubtedly, technological development in this sector is one of the most dynamic, which presents organizations in the sector with a number of challenges. One of the most important of which is a continuous and proactive offering of services to organizations from other sectors of the economy that are ready to experiment in order to be competitive in the conditions of rapidly advancing digitization.

This need on the part of organizations became tangible during the Covid-19 pandemic, when they had to go completely digital.

This, in turn, necessitated a change in business models, not only in a technological but also in an organizational management aspect [18]. It led to a change in work processes, communication between employees, an increase in the use of digital tools, etc [19].

All these changes to one degree or another affect all sectors of the economy, but the special thing about organizations from the telecommunications sector is that it is thanks to them that all processes are carried out in a digital environment. This requires a constant focus on improving existing and offering new services, which in turn requires continuity, creativity, flexibility on the part of employees of telecommunication companies to the growing demands of users of telecommunication services.

For a long time, the workplace is no longer just a physical space that employees occupy during their working hours [20].

As the boundaries between work and personal life are gradually erased, the workplace becomes truly digital, and employees communicate and collaborate in unprecedented ways. [18] All this leads to the so-called constant connectivity, which often gives rise to cyberbullying, knowingly or not.

Being responsible for enabling the work processes of organizations to take place in a digital environment, employees in telecommunication services organizations seem to be the most affected by all this. From such a point of view, the authors of the present paper are conducting a pilot study based on which to establish the presence / absence of cyberbullying in telecommunication service organizations, and the degree and form in which it manifests itself.

Impact of cyberbullying on the behavior and performance of employees: An empirical study in telecommunication services companies in republic of Bulgaria

For this purpose, employees from 12 organizations (small and medium-sized enterprises according to the number of employees up to 50 people and medium-sized enterprises from 50 to 250 people)¹ for telecommunication services (total 96 employees) were studied. The authors do not claim representativeness of the sample, since this study is a pilot study and aims to lay the foundations for the subsequent development of a methodological toolkit for diagnosing the typology of the manifestation of bullying and opportunities for its management in large companies for telecommunication services in the Republic of Bulgaria.

Due to the limited scope of the publication, only part of the results of the conducted research are presented. For the purposes of the study, a survey method was used.



Figure 2. Existence of cyberbullying in the surveyed telecommunications companies

As can we seen from Figure 2, over half of those surveyed (58%) believe that there is cyberbullying in the surveyed organizations. This fact is not accidental, precisely because of the need for continuous communication between employees and a quick response in work processes.

The results in the next figure are indicative of this. The first two places are occupied by professional calls from managers, outside regular working hours (92%) and professional messages from managers, outside regular working hours (88%). Unfortunately, the percentage of cyberbullying is not small, which is expressed in offensive messages and malicious attacks on social platforms, which answer was indicated by 65% of the respondents.



Figure 3. Type of cyberbullying in research telecommunications companies²

Regardless of the form and extent of cyberbullying, it can have different effects on employees. The following figure shows how cyberbullying affects the behavior and performance of the surveyed employees in the telecommunications companies.

¹This classification is based on the Law on Small and Medium Enterprises in the Republic of Bulgaria, https://lex.bg/laws/

²In Figs. 3 and 4 The surveyed employees have the opportunity to indicate more than one possible answer.



Figure 4. Effects of cyberbullying on employee behavior and performance in telecommunications companies

What is striking about the figure are the overwhelming responses regarding problems related to anxiety and stress (96%), headaches, migraines and fatigue (92%) and problems related to depression and panic attacks (81%). Although the negative consequences of cyberbullying, both physical and mental, are more prevalent, only 35% of employees surveyed are ready to leave their workplace and replace it with a new one.

4 CONCLUSION

The digitalization of business processes in organizations, as well as the wide application of social platforms as a way of personal and professional communication in the workplace, have created undeniable conveniences for connectivity between people, regardless of their geographical location. However, this also led to some negative trends, mainly related to compromising the security of data and information and called into question the inviolability of the person in the online environment. Thus, the development of digital technologies became a prerequisite to facilitate the communication processes between people and to optimize not a small part of the work processes, but it put to the test the personal identification of the person in a cyber environment and his vulnerability to cyber attacks and cyber bullying.

Through this publication, theoretical aspects of cyberbullying in the workplace have been explored, touching on some important highlights in the specialized literature. In the general context of the issue, it was established that cyberbullying is harmful (unwanted) behaviour at the workplace that can disrupt the personal and professional rhythm of any person subjected to stressful and harmful factors and situations in the online space. On the other hand, the publication examines some characteristics of traditional versus cyberbullying in the workplace, identifying the main forms (type) of cyberbullying and their corresponding manifestations - in a personal context for the individual and in an organizational aspect. Basic guidelines for dealing with cyberbullying in the workplace have been systematized with research in a real business environment in the field of telecommunications sector in the Republic of Bulgaria. Based on what was said through the post, the following was achieved:

- A theoretical overview of the conceptual aspects of bullying and cyberbullying in the workplace was made, justifying their specificity, similarities and distinguishing characteristics;

- The main forms (type) of cyberbullying in the workplace are identified, reflecting the effect on the behaviour of the human factors and the effect on the organization - in a negative context;

- A framework is outlined for organizations to deal with cyberbullying in the workplace based on strategic activities to manage it or reduce it to acceptable limits;

- A pilot study of the manifestation of cyberbullying was carried out in several organizations from the telecommunications sector in the Republic of Bulgaria, and the presence of cyberbullying against employees was established, which was categorized by degree of manifestation and corresponding effects.

Acknowledgments

The publications has been made possible with the financial support of project No NID-30/10.04.2023 by UTP – Sofia.

References

 D. Kuss and M. Griffiths, "Online social networking and addiction: A review of the psychological literature," International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, vol. 8, pp. 3528–3552, 2011.

- [2] V. Vuori and J. Okkonen, "Knowledge sharing motivational factors of using an intra-organizational social media platform," Journal of Knowledge Management, vol. 16, pp. 592–603, 2012.
- [3] L. Ma, X. Zhang, G. Wang, and G. Zhang, "How to build employees' relationship capital through different enterprise social media platform use: the moderating role of innovation culture," Internet Research, vol. 31, pp. 1823–1848, 2021.
- [4] C. Bartlett, D. Gentile, and C. Chew, "Predicting cyber-bullying from anonymity. Psychology of popular media culture," vol. 5, pp. 171–180, 2016.
- [5] J. Platts, I. Coyne, and S. Farley, "Cyberbullying at work: An extension of traditional bullying or a new threat?," International Journal of Workplace Health Management, vol. 16, pp. 173–187, 2023.
- [6] A. Bozyigit, S. Utku, and E. Nasibov, "Cyberbullying detection: Utilizing social media futures," Expert Systems with Applications, vol. 179, art. no. 115001, 2021.
- [7] J. Dooley, J. Pyżalski, and D. Cross, "Cyberbullying versus face-to-face bullying: A theoretical and conceptual review," Journal of Psychology, vol. 217, pp. 182–188, 2009.
- [8] D. Grigg, "Cyber-aggression: Definition and concept of cyberbullying," Journal of Psychologists and Counsellors in Schools, vol. 20, pp. 143–156, 2010.
- [9] W. Heatherington and I. Coyne, "Understanding individual experiences of cyberbullying encountered through work", International Journal of Organization Theory & Behavior, Vol. 17, 2014, pp. 163–192.
- [10] E. Aboujaoude, M. Savage, V. Starcevic, and W. Salame, "Cyber-bullying: Review of an old problem gone viral", Journal of Adolescent Health, Vol. 57, 2015, pp.10–18.
- [11] Y. Baruch, "Bullying on the net: Adverse behaviour on e-mail and its impact," Information & Management, vol. 42, pp. 361–371, 2005.
- [12] R. Slonje and P. Smith, Cyberbullying: Another main type of bullying?," Scandinavian Journal of Psychology, vol. 49, pp. 147–154, 2008.
- [13] C. Privitera and M. Campbell, "Cyberbullying: The new face of workplace bullying?," Cyberpsychology & Behavior, vol. 12, pp. 395–400, 2009.
- [14] C. Bartlett, D. Gentile, and C. Chew, "Predicting cyber-bullying from anonymity," Psychology of Popular Media Culture, vol. 5, pp. 171–180, 2016.
- [15] S. Einarsen *et al.* (Eds.), "Bullying and Harassment in the Workplace: Theory, Research and Practice," CRC Press, 2020.
- [16] T. Muhonen, S. Jonsson, and M. Backstrom, "Consequences of cyber-bullying behaviour in working life: The mediating roles of social support and social organisational climate," International Journal of Workplace Health Management, vol. 10, pp. 376–390, 2017.
- [17] R. Kowalski, S. Limber, and P. Agaston, "Cyber Bullying. Bullying in the Digital Age," Oxford, Blackwell Publishing, 2008.
- [18] Темелкова, М., Стоянов, И., Оцетова, А., Димчева, Г., Колев, Д. Конвенционално и дигитално управление и предприемачество, Авангард Прима, София, 2019.
- [19] G. Dimcheva and I. Stoyanov, "Challenges and trends arising from COVID-19 in the management of companies in the telecommunications sector," Sixth International Scientific Conference "Telecommunications, Informatics, Energy and Management", 2021.
- [20] The digital workplace: Think, share, do Transform your employee experience, www.deloitte.ca.



December 1-3, 2023

Improving the Email Software Security by Identifying the Attacker Tools and Techniques

Falak Hasan^{*1}, Mariana Petrova^{2,3}

¹St.Cyril and St.Methodius University of Veliko Tarnovo, Department of Computer System and Technologies, Veliko Tarnovo, Bulgaria, ²St.Cyril and St.Methodius University of Veliko Tarnovo, Department of Information Technologies, Veliko Tarnovo, Bulgaria ³University of Telecommunications and Post, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

Due to the current revolution of multimedia technologies and the widespread use of internet, the attackers did their best to improve their tools and techniques to attack different systems and networks as well. As a result, software developers should duplicate their efforts to face such a rapid improvement in cyber security attacker techniques. The benefit of this paper is to shed light on the attacker's techniques and the tools used in the process of attacking. This paper is answering questions for instance, how the effect of cyber-attacks could be avoided or minimized?, what are the tools and techniques the attacker is using to exploit the faults in email software product?, how the vulnerability concepts can help us to determine the product vulnerabilities?. This paper intended to offer a complement knowledge about representing the faults and the errors that occurred in email software products that usually happened within different stages of the producing products before the process of releasing them in markets, and accessible to everyone. Hence, this paper is an attempt to improve the future of software products in addition to minimize or avoid the errors completely.

Keywords: Software faults, Software development life cycle, Software vulnerabilities, Cyber security attacks

1 INTRODUCTION

The tremendous spread of email communication services led to emergence of a new effective set of complementing standards and solutions aimed to raise security rates and privacy issues. However, practically these improved methods and technologies proved its failure to provide the required protection. As a result, global email communications remained primarily open to security and privacy concerns since, email communications are no longer remained as an adequate safeguarded in general. According to the findings of the research we found out that most global email communications pose major privacy and security threats. Three parties can intercept email content; placing the conditional, integrity, and availability of the information shared, in the message's text and any attachments that are vulnerable to risk. Standards, protocols, and procedures have the potential to improve the security of email conversations, but they are not always used or even applied correctly in reality. Technological countermeasures, such as SMIME and OpenPGP (e.g., PGP/GPG), that have been demonstrated considered as not enough active tools that stand in the way of all security and privacy risks, they are rarely used in practice because they are not supported by commercial providers, who do not integrate them into their web-based email clients and mobile applications. Due to the lack of both support and integration the current use of end-to-end security solutions has usability concerns and necessitates IT skills that the common person lacks.

Vulnerability represents a flaw in the software that may be utilized and used by a hacker to get direct access to the system or network, [1, 2]. Vulnerability refers to a flaw or fault in system security processes, design, implementation, or internal controls that can lead to a security breach or destruction of the system's security policy. Vulnerabilities has been defined by MITRE Corporation in CVE database. Software vulnerability represented in form of CVE entry or node in the properties: CVE-ID, Description, and references, while the last property is ignored in this study. The properties Component, Product Vendor, Root-Cause, Attacker, Impact, and Vectors are obtained from CVE description property. In this study ontology is used to represent the email software product vulnerabilities with their properties. The sample data are extracted from MITRE Corporation website [3].

Weakness is a mistake or condition that, if left unaddressed, could under the proper conditions contribute to a cyber-enabled capability being vulnerable to attack, allowing an adversary to make items function in unintended ways. While vulnerability is an occurrence of a kind of weakness (or multiple weaknesses) within software, in which that weakness can be used by a party to cause the software to modify or access unintended data, interrupt

proper execution, or perform incorrect actions that were not specifically granted to the party who uses the weakness.

In this paper the software vulnerabilities with their properties were representing using ontology. Ontology is described as a data model that represents a collection of concepts within a domain and the connections among those concepts [4]. It is employed for reasoning about the items in that domain. It enables the information to be shared and reused. It is a study of the conceptions of reality [5]. Ontologies make up of three main elements Classes, Properties and Individuals.

1.1 Literature Reviews

Products vulnerabilities have been studied by many researchers for instance A. Tripathi and Umesh Kumar Singh in [6] and [7] stated that Software vulnerabilities represent one of the key factors that endangers software product; it is considered as a vital issue for producing hardener and robust product towards the variant attacks. In 2016, Umesh Kumar Singh and Chanchala Joshi in [8] proposed a risk estimation model that uses vulnerability database at the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST), National Vulnerability Database (NVD),

and the Common Vulnerability Scoring System (CVSS). Irena Bojanova, Paul E. Black, Yaacov Yesha and Yan Wu in [9] used BF, but this time it included rigorous

definitions and (static) attributes of bug classes, along with their related dynamic properties, such as proximate, secondary, tertiary causes, consequences, and sites. Their study discussed the buffer overflow class, the injection class, and the control of interaction frequency class, and provided examples of applying their BF taxonomy to describe particular vulnerabilities.

All studies that dealt with software product vulnerabilities didn't take into account the product vulnerabilities without studying and being familiar with their properties and the way that enable attackers to attack the software products.

1.2 The Work Ontology Description

Ontology is known as data model that represents a collection of concepts within a domain and the connections among those concepts [10]. It is used for reasoning about the items of that domain. It provides definitions for the terminology that used to characterize and depict the mentioned field of study. In other words, it is a collection of ideas and classifications within a certain field that serves to illustrate their characteristics and connections [11]. People, databases, and apps utilize ontologies to exchange knowledge within a domain [12].

Ontologies make up of Classes, properties, and relationships among class members. Classes are groups of things, objects, or even instances that share the same descriptions. OWL properties have binary relationships on the individuals, [11], which aims to describe the individual membership in a class through constructing several restrictions in order to link an individual from class to an individual from of another class. While the individuals in ontology may include particular objects, such as people, animals, tables, automobiles, molecules, and planets. Individuals are the other important elements in ontology components; they represent objects in the domain in which we are interested in, [13]. The following two main elements should be prepared first before starting to create the work ontology:

- 1. Email CWE Entries: The weakness properties are represented in each entry involving ID, Name, Abstraction, Description, Extended Description and Relationships. All these properties are interpreted according to the ontology fundamentals of the design of ontology.
- 2. Email CVE Entries: Common Vulnerabilities and Exposures (CVE). Entry possesses have three main properties, they are the CVE identifier (CVE-ID), Description, and References. Each CVE entry has properties CVE-ID, Description, Component, ProductVendor, Version, Attacker, RootCause, Impact, and Vector.

Classes are CVEEntries that contains all CVE entry individuals. CWEEntries contains all CWE entry individuals in the work domain. It has subclasses: Classes, Bases, Variants, and Views. All the individuals in this class have ID and Name datatype properties. Classes: involves the class abstraction level instances. Bases: subclass includes the base abstraction level instances. Views: includes the variant abstraction level instances. Views: includes the view instances.

Properties can be shown in two types, object properties and datatype properties. Object Properties are linking an individual from a class to an individual in other class, for instance VulnType is linking the/a CVE individual

(entry) to the/a CWE individual (entry), hasMember is linking an individual from views class to an individual from Classes class, hasChild is correlating an individual from Classes class with an individual from Classes, Bases, or Variant class, hasBaseChild linking an individual from Bases class to an individual from Bases, or Variant class, hasVariantChild is correlating an individual from Variants class with an individual from Variant class.

While datatype Properties are linking represents that an individual from a class with a data type (integer, string, Boolean, and others) [14, 15]. For example, ID property with integer, Name property with string. The CWE entry datatype properties, for instance ID datatype property represents CWE entry identifier, Name is the datatype property representing the name CWE entry with a string data type, and Description is datatype property representing CWE entry description.

In addition, CVEID datatype property expresses the vulnerability entry identifier, CVEDescription datatype property represents the CVE entry definition and explanation, Component clarifies the part that is exactly affected, ProductVendor represents the name of the product or Vendor, Version datatype property represents the version(s) of the affected product, Attacker datatype property clarifies the attacker type remote attacker, users, or others. RootCause datatype property represents the effects of the software product. Vector datatype property represents the effects of the software product. Vector datatype property represents the used tools and techniques in attaching.

The third important element in the work ontology is Individuals therefore, there are CWE individuals for instance, CWE-20 which should be created with a roper name then determining its type class (Views, Classes, Bases, or Variants). In addition to CVE entries that should be created for instance, CVE-2005-3287 and all CVE datatype properties should be assigned.

2 THE KNOELEDGE BASE AND APPLICABLE CASE

Through the following usable cases, the benefit of the ontology can more effective:

Case 1: The following query is used for testing the infected email products with the attacker tools by checking the effected email product vulnerabilities that exploited be the attacker. The query is checking the email vulnerabilities on the base of: mail "keyword to involve all email software products.

PREFIX : <http: 0="" 20="" 2018="" falak="" ontologies="" untitled-ontology-337#="" www.semanticweb.org=""></http:>					
SELECT DISTINCT *					
WHERE { ?CVEID :CVEDescription ?CVEDescription;					
	:Component ?Component;				
	:ProductVendor ?ProductVendor;				
	:Version ?Version;				
:RootCause ?RootCause;					
	:Impact ?Impact;				
	:Vector ?Vector;				
	:VulnType ?VulnType.				
?VulnType :Name ?CWEName;					
filter(regex(?Vector, "mail")) } ORDER BY ?VulnType					

This query is find knowledge about the email product vulnerabilities using "Vector" property on the base of "mail" keyword organized by the Product CWE entry through the property VulnType.

The result of this query is shown in Table 1 which demonstrates the effected email weaknesses products and its related vulnerabilities. Additionally, Vectors column shows the tools and the techniques that the attacker is using when attacking. It contains a sample of email product infected declaring the CVE vulnerability and the related CWE entry. Table 1 show the sample of tools and techniques that attacker is using when attacking these email products.

CVEID	ProductVector	Vectors	VulnType (Infected CWE)
CVE- 2017-7440	Kerio Connect for Windows and Mac	via a crafted e-mail message.	CWE-1021
CVE- 2003-0307	Poster version.two	by appending the "field separator and an "admin" value into the email address field."	CWE-141
CVE- 2002-0542	OpenBSD	via calls to mail in cron.	CWE-150
CVE- 2003-1015	Multiple content security gateway and antivirus products	via MIME messages that use whitespace in an unusual fashion, which may be interpreted differently by mail clients.	CWE-156
CVE- 2005-2933	mail.c for Washington's IMAP Server (UW- IMAP)	via a mailbox name containing a single double-quote () character without a closing quote, which causes bytes after the double- quote to be copied into a buffer indefinitely."	CWE-157
CVE- 2005-4155	ATutor	via an e-mail address that ends in a NULL character, which bypasses the PHP regular expression check.	CWE-158
CVE- 2005-4155	ATutor	via an e-mail address that ends in a NULL character, which bypasses the PHP regular expression check.	CWE-185
CVE- 2002-0485	Norton Anti-Virus (NAV)	via attachments which Content-Type and Content-Disposition headers are mixed upper and lower case, which is ignored by some mail clients.	CWE-436
CVE- 2002-0108	Allaire Forums and Forums!	by modifying the hidden form fields for the name and e-mail address.	CWE-472
CVE- 2005-1784	Hosting Controller	via a modified email address parameter in an update profile action for UserProfile.asp.	CWE-472
CVE- 2005-1652	message.htm for Woppoware PostMaster	by modifying the email parameter.	CWE-472
CVE- 2005-4155	ATutor	via an e-mail address that ends in a NULL character, which bypasses the PHP regular expression check.	CWE-626
CVE- 2008-5734	IceWarp Software Merak Mail Server	via an IMG element in an HTML e-mail message.	CWE-79
CVE- 2002-1495	JAWmail	via (1) attached file names in the Read Mail feature, (2) text/html mails that are displayed in a pop-up window, and (3) certain malicious attributes within otherwise safe tags, such as onMouseOver.	CWE-80
CVE- 2005-2276	Novell Groupwise WebAccess	via an e-mail message with an encoded javascript URI (e.g. jAvascript" in an IMG tag."	CWE-84
CVE- 2005-0563	Exchange Server	via an email message with an encoded javascript: URL (javAsc ript:") in an IMG tag."	CWE-84

 Table 1. Sample of email products that shows infected by attacker tools

The attacker tools and techniques are showed in column "Vector", the affected Product is in column Product Vender, the affected product vulnerability is seen in column "CVEID", and column "VulnType is showing the product weakness that the product vulnerability is belong to in CVEID column.

3 RESULTS

In Table 1, it seems that the attacker has used different tools when they attack software Products. There are 16 CWE entry related to 12 CVE entries. It is shown that there is one for instance CWE-84 is attacked by the attacker through different components using different CVEs, in addition CWE-472 is attacked through different components exploiting different CVEs using different attack tools and vectors.

4 CONCLUSION

The findings of this research come to conclusion that the attacker exploit the product vulnerabilities that make a base of his session to attack the email products. The same weakness entry could be exploited by an attacker to threat more than one software product through different CVEs. The attacker uses different tools to inbox mail, the message body, the file attachments, and the headers. To improve the software security these vulnerability entries should be eliminated, minimize their effects as possible or they should be fixed at least.

References

- [1] M. Zhivich and R. K. Cunningham, "The real cost of software errors," IEEE Security & Privacy, vol. 7, no. 2, pp. 87–90, 2009.
- [2] J. C. S. Santos, A. Peruma, M. Mirakhorli, M. Galstery, J. V. Vidal, and A. Sejfia, "Understanding software vulnerabilities related to architectural security tactics: An empirical investigation of chromium, php and thunderbird," In 2017 IEEE International Conference on Software Architecture (ICSA), pp. 69–78, 2017.
- [3] CVE CVE Assignment Information Format. (n.d.). Cve.mitre.org. Retrieved May 14, 2023, from https://cve.mitre.org/cve/list_rules_and_guidance/cve_assignment_information_format.html.
- [4] S.-W. Lee, R. Gandhi, D. Muthurajan, D. Yavagal, and G.-J. Ahn, "Building problem domain ontology from security requirements in regulatory documents," In Proceedings of the 2006 international workshop on Software engineering for secure systems, pp. 43–50, 2006.
- [5] N. F. Noy and D. L. McGuinness, "Ontology development 101: A guide to creating your first ontology," 2001.
- [6] A. Tripathi and U. K. Singh, "On prioritization of vulnerability categories based on CVSS scores," In 2011 6th International Conference on Computer Sciences and Convergence Information Technology (ICCIT), pp. 692–697, 2011.
- [7] A. Tripathi and U. K. Singh, "A proposal for common vulnerability classification scheme based on analysis of taxonomic features in vulnerability databases," International Journal of Computer Science and Information Security, vol. 9, no. 6, art. no. 106, 2011.
- [8] U. K. Singh and C. Joshi, "Quantitative security risk evaluation using CVSS metrics by estimation of frequency and maturity of exploit," In Proceedings of the World Congress on Engineering and Computer Science, vol. 1, pp. 19–21. 2016.
- [9] I. Bojanova, Y. Yesha, and P. E. Black, "Randomness classes in bugs framework (bf): True-random number bugs (trn) and pseudo-random number bugs (prn)," In 2018 IEEE 42nd Annual Computer Software and Applications Conference (COMPSAC), vol. 1, pp. 738–745, 2018.
- [10] I. Kollia, B. Glimm, and I. Horrocks, "Answering queries over owl ontologies with sparql," vol. 59, 2011.
- [11] J. Bermejo, "A simplified guide to create an ontology," Madrid University, pp. 1–12, 2007.
- [12] A. Escobar, "Notes on the Ontology of Design," Retrieved July 3 2012, 2014.
- [13] M. Horridge, S. Jupp, G. Moulton, A. Rector, R. Stevens, and C. Wroe, "A practical guide to building owl ontologies using protégé 4 and co-ode tools edition1. 2," The University of Manchester, vol. 107, 2009.
- [14] M. Horridge, S. Jupp, G. Moulton, Al. Rector, R. Stevens, and C. Wroe, "A practical guide to building owl ontologies using protégé 4 and co-ode tools edition1. 2," The University of Manchester, vol. 107, 2009.
- [15] T. R. Gruber, "Toward principles for the design of ontologies used for knowledge sharing?," International Journal of Human-Computer Studies, vol. 43, no. 5-6, pp. 907–928, 1995.



December 1-3, 2023

Brief Analysis of Key Aspects of the Digital Workplace

Vihra Dimitrova^{*1}

¹University of Telecommunications and Post, Management in Communications, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

The article deals with the concept of the digital workplace and its role in the current global situation. The fast development of the information and communication technologies, as well as the restrictions due to the pandemic situation has brought new challenges for the public institutions, the business and the individuals. The application of the new technologies opened a new perspective for the effective work re-organization and market competitiveness. The digital transformation includes natural integration of the processes and services while using digital technologies. The remote working and the flexible working time are becoming more and more popular worldwide. These forms of work could boost organizations' productivity and at the same time are preferred for the employees. Some of the advantages and disadvantages of the digital workplaces have been analysed and listed and a brief summary of the development perspectives has been proposed.

Keywords: Digital transformation, Digital workplace, Remote working, Flexible work, Information and communication technologies

1 INTRODUCTION

The term "digital transformation" is increasingly coming into practice with the rapid development of new technologies, and enterprises around the world are embracing the digital workplace as the new market reality. The digital workplace consists of a natural integration of processes or services in the company, where everyone uses digital technologies, such as applications, large databases or the Internet of Things.

Modern technological progress offers many new opportunities, but also poses many challenges: customers demand to be served faster and better, and employees prefer flexible working hours and remote work options. At the same time, the diversity of technologies creates difficulties in finding a balance between coordination and interaction between these two groups.

Businesses are changing the way they perceive the role of technology. The solution is in the digital workplace, which brings customers and HR departments closer together and changes the traditional way of working. In this sense, the classic processes in the company should be abandoned and a more dynamic and fast communication strategy should be introduced. Processes that until recently were performed in analogue mode must be performed online, i.e. in cloud space.

Digital transformation is becoming a critical organizational strategy for survival and achieving competitiveness in today's market. The use of ICT's is becoming more and more common in people's personal and professional lives. The organizations need to change urgently in order to succeed and compete with companies that were born digital. The workspace nowadays as a digitally connected workforce that can work and communicate from anywhere at any time.

In the last three years, remote work has become increasingly popular as a form of employment. The reasons for this are the conditions of a pandemic situation in which public administration, higher education, business and citizens function, as well as the progress in technology and the use of modern technical achievements. The fulfilment of work duties through computer networks and systems would support the participation in the labour market of persons who are in some way excluded, due to a certain illness, caring for young children or family members who require the presence and physical care of specific people.

Recently, the European Commission has also encouraged research on telework as a means of developing economic activity and creating job opportunities in rural and economically backward areas.

At the same time, the challenges and the insufficient regulatory framework of teleworking in Bulgaria are becoming more and more obvious.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The aim of this paper is to review the theoretical basis of the digital workplace, to define briefly some of the advantages and disadvantages of the remote work and to analyse the status quo in the European countries. Descriptive and comparative analysis have been used in the study, applying qualitative data review.

2.1 Definition

There are different definitions of remote work, which at the same time unite around common aspects of this form of employment.

According to the Cambridge Dictionary, telecommuting is defined as "the practice of an employee working from home or from another location other than the usual location of the organization" [1].

Remote work (also known as work from home [WFH] or telecommuting) is "a type of flexible working arrangement that allows an employee to work from remote location outside of corporate offices. For employees who can complete work offsite, this arrangement can help ensure work-life balance, access to career opportunities or reduced commutation costs" [2].

Remote working, also called telecommuting, telework, work from home, mobile work, or work from anywhere, is an employment arrangement in which employees do not travel to a central location for work, such as an office building, factory, or store. It is facilitated by technology, such as software, local area networks, virtual private networks, conference calls, video-telephone connection, Internet access, cloud space, VoIP, mobile telecommunication technologies, such as laptop or tablet, smartphones and desktop computers.

Remote work arrangements can be temporary or permanent, part-time or full-time, occasional or frequent.

The legal definition of the term "remote work" is given in Art. 107z, para. 1 of the Labor Code. It is "a form of organizing work moved outside the employer's premises, carried out under an employment relationship through the use of information technology, which before its relocation was or could be carried out on the employer's premises" [3].

The digital workplace can be described as an organization that provides its employees with technology and an environment for communication, innovation, collaboration and effective collaboration to achieve business results. Currently, the digital workplace is becoming a competitive advantage that can greatly improve the day-to-day processes of an organization. In 2018, 41% of companies still use the traditional workplace, but 22% have already taken steps to introduce digital technologies [4].

The concept of a digital workplace implies the use of digital transformation to harmonize technology, employees and business processes to improve operational efficiency and achieve organizational goals. As a virtual complement to the physical workplace, the digital space includes any facility, software or platform that employees use in their work. This conceptual idea, understood as the virtual equivalent of the physical workspace, requires careful planning and management due to its key role in productivity, engagement and healthy working conditions. Important aspects for a digital workplace are related to communication tools, cloud-based solutions, video conferencing platforms, online project management tools, work calendars, document storage capabilities and customer service tools.

2.2 Development in the EU Member States

In response to social distancing measures introduced as a result of the pandemic situation, more and more people have started working from home. In 2020, 12% of the working population in the EU habitually work from home, and over the past 10 years this percentage has remained stable within 5-6%.

The region in the EU with the highest percentage of people working from home in 2020 is the Finnish capital Helsinki - 37%, followed by two Belgian regions - Brabant Walloon province - 27% and Brussels Capital Region - 26%.

At the same time, working from home is less common in many of the eastern and southern regions of the EU. Again in 2020, less than 5% of the workforce works from home in Croatia, Cyprus, Latvia and Bulgaria, as well as in most regions of Hungary, Romania and Greece.

Among the EU regions (Fig.1), the largest increase in the share of employed people who work from home was registered in:

- Brussels the capital region of Belgium;
- Province of Brabant Walloon again in Belgium;
- Helsinki the capital region of Finland;
- Eastern and Central the capital region of Ireland.



Annual change in the share of people usually working from home, 2020

Figure 1. Annual change in the share of people usually working from home, 2020 (Source: www.ec.europa.eu/eurostat)

These regions are followed by the capital regions of Denmark, Germany, Spain, France, Italy, Austria and Portugal. The benefits of telecommuting include optimizing resources, increasing employee motivation and productivity.

2.3. Development in Bulgaria

Bulgaria ranks one of the last places in terms of working from home, with a strengthening of the trend to increase the percentage of remote workers in 2021. Before the COVID-19 regime, working from home was not a common practice in Bulgaria. The reasons for this are rooted in the strict rules of the Labor Code and the need for additional technological resources. The Bulgarian Labor Code requires the written consent of the employee for switching to work from home and imposes various obligations on the employer related to monitoring the process of remote work in connection with ensuring safe working conditions, as well as sharing the costs of the necessary work equipment and observance of working hours and holidays [3].

During the pandemic situation, working from home has become an adequate solution for business, but at the same time it has raised new questions that require their answer.

During the state of emergency, working from home was a recommended, if not mandatory, form of employment. Employers were even allowed to use this form as an emergency measure.

Some problems related to working from home became apparent:

- Compliance with the requirements for safe and healthy working conditions - for some employers this has become a challenge, due to the need to find creative solutions/for example, self-assessment tools/ to reduce the risk of administrative fines and work accidents;

- Cyber security and data protection - in view of the strict regulatory provisions on cyber security and personal data protection, enterprises have had to invest in additional measures to protect information and data in the context of remote work and strengthen the rules for employees related to the protection of the information;

- Disciplinary control - the lack of possibility of direct monitoring, accompanied by the need to protect employees' personal data, created a potential risk of violation of labor legislation, which is difficult to prove in a remote form of work;

- Flexibility – employees are increasingly demanding the freedom to work from anywhere /not just from their homes/. This exposes enterprises to the risk of non-compliance with the norms for safe and healthy working conditions.

Telecommuting varies significantly across sectors and occupations and is particularly high in the information and communication technology sector, as well as in knowledge-intensive sectors (including information services, science, higher education), and also among highly qualified specialists. The industrial structure, the distribution of employment among enterprises of different size and subject of activity, the share of self-employed persons and the digital skills of workers are some of the factors explaining the differences and variations in the frequency of remote work [5].

Bulgaria continues to note an increase in offers for work from home and their share in October 2021 was 13.5%. The observed increase compared to the previous month is 7% and in the last four months this growth is 29%.

In perspective, taking into account the pandemic situation, it can be assumed that working from home will continue to be used as a form of employment and changes in labor legislation are needed. Working from home has emerged as a useful tool to respond to the COVID-19 crisis, but at the same time it has posed new challenges for employers and employees. Changes to the Labor Code are needed to provide for more flexible remote work models. Otherwise, working from home will remain a good alternative, but it will not completely replace working in the office.

At the beginning of 2019, a survey was conducted among more than 15,000 entrepreneurs from 100 countries [6]. The subject of the study is the key reasons for flexible working, how it is used by international business and what challenges there are to its introduction. The results show that there is a power shift in the direction of the employee - now he has more influence in determining the way and place of work. And organizations that understand this see higher productivity, talent retention and higher engagement. It's no surprise then that 62% of businesses worldwide now have a flexible workspace policy.

Businesses that have understood the importance of providing more flexibility to their staff have seen positive results in more successful staff retention, greater engagement and increased productivity compared to companies that do not have a flexible work culture. For example, 65% of the respondents in a Regus survey believe that businesses that adapt to the work environment to meet employees' job roles are more productive [7].

 Table 1. Enterprises that have increased the percentage of employees who have remote access to e-mail systems (percentage) 2021 (Source: www.ec.europa.eu/eurostat)

	TIME	2021	
GEO (Labels)		Percentage	
Belgium			40
Bulgaria			17
Germany			42
Italy			31
Cyprus			36
Latvia			21
Lithuania			12
Luxembourg			33
Hungary			17
Malta			55
Netherlands			n/a
Austria			38
Poland			18
Portugal			30
Slovenia			24
Slovakia			25
Finland			31
Sweden			25
Norway			21

Bulgaria ranks one of the last places in terms of the number of companies that have increased the percentage of their employees with remote access to the company's email systems (Table 1). Awareness of the need and advantages of moving to more flexible forms of employment would create advantages for Bulgarian enterprises and their employees. There are also many different forms of remote work that Bulgarian organizations can take advantage of.

In most cases, experts need to work on more than one project, and the digital environment allows avoiding the interruptions and flexibility needed to work on large-scale projects. Work flexibility is preferred by employees – 76% of employees say they would stay with their current employer if flexible working hours were available. According to surveys, 40% of employees say that flexibility is one of the biggest advantages of working remotely According to 86% of the Bulgarian companies that participated in the survey, flexible work solutions stimulate employee productivity. The global survey shows that 74% of the Bulgarian participants believe that flexible working hours are the key to attracting and retaining women specialists at work [6].

At the same time, according to Eurobarometer data, Bulgaria ranks last in Europe in terms of flexible work schemes. Only 39% of the employed in our country have access to non-fixed working hours, half-day work or work from home [8].

2.3. Benefits of the Digital Workplace

Benefits for the company include increased employee satisfaction and retention, increased productivity and cost savings on physical resources. According to Forbes magazine, the benefits of the digital workplace for employees are related to the speed of decision-making (16% increase), collaboration with colleagues (increased by 16%) and increased productivity (a fivefold increase) [9]. There are certain additional benefits of the digital workplace for the business and the employees. Among them we could mention:

- Reduced costs for consumables and transportation;
- Increased revenue for the company increased productivity;
- Attracting and retaining talents;
- Increased engagement motivation and commitment;
- Improved communication enhance effective communication through different channels;
- Social inclusion;
- Cultural diversity;
- Employee benefits;
- Universal access digital workplaces facilitate work from anywhere in the world and through a variety of devices;
- Collaboration teamwork is encouraged, and digital technologies make it easier to communicate and work simultaneously on the same project;
- Intuitive and easy tools for work;
- ➢ Flexibility;
- > Achieving a good balance between personal life and work;
- Environmental protection decrease in pollution; reducing harmful emissions.

2.4. Disadvantages of the Digital Workplace

Research on working in a digital environment shows that there are various problems and disadvantages for which solutions have not yet been found. We could highlight the following disadvantages of the digital workplace:

- Lack of social interaction;
- Distraction;
- Equipment and maintenance costs;
- Security and support issues;
- Customer relations;
- Loss of interpersonal communication skills;
- Dependence on technology;
- Legal and administrative issues;
- Managing cultural differences.

3 RESULTS

The digital age and changes in the business world brought to the fore two leading values - the quality of work and human resources. The balance between work and private life is also changing, and new forms of employment are being sought to combine them.

The development of increasingly new technologies also leads to changes in the understanding of the working space and working conditions; new solutions are being sought for the location of the offices. The spread of flexible working is not only due to the increasing demand from workers, but also to the increased awareness among business leaders of its leading role in achieving success. Successful managers try to stimulate and retain talent, and employees themselves begin to prefer more flexible forms of work.

The need for greater flexibility in the labor market gives rise to increasingly different contractual forms of employment. Flexible work presupposes above all the use of information and communication technologies for remote work [10].

The recent COVID-19 crisis and the faster introduction of remote work technologies has led to a sudden digitization that makes it difficult for a number of workers with lower education or one that does not include digital competences to perform on the labor market. It should be ensured that such workers and employees will be supported with adequate training and inclusive measures, providing the possibility to continue to fulfil their work commitments "on paper".

Organizations should choose the most suitable communication channel according to the specifics of their activity, sector and employees. It is also necessary to develop a strategy that offers a combination of the digital and the conventional way of communication, finding the intersection between them.

Managing organizations and personnel in a digital environment requires specific management skills, flexibility, resilience and innovative ways of organizing work, as well as results-oriented management. Targeted training needs to be provided for both employees and managers to more effectively manage work in a digital environment.

4 CONCLUSION

The digital solutions could accompany human interaction and facilitate integration and communication between employees. The digital workplace allows employees to have more effective control over their work-life balance. Organizations with greater flexibility, effective communication channels and a balanced organizational culture have better opportunities to engage human resources, increase productivity and realize significant profits.

The modern dynamic environment requires the introduction of new, more flexible forms of work, in order to reduce costs, increase productivity and achieve a better work-life balance. The rapid development of technologies and the pandemic situation on a national and global level have contributed to the ever-widening spread of remote work, which has become an alternative to the present form. Combining effective change in the way of activity and processes in organizations with the skilful use of appropriate technological means will ensure their survival and competitiveness in the global market.

Acknowledgments

The article has been made possible with the financial support of Project No NID-30/10.04.2023 by UTP –Sofia.

References

- [1] Cambridge Dictionary, https://dictionary.cambridge.org/dictionary/english/remote-working (Accessed: November 23, 2023).
- [2] Information Technology Glossary, https://www.gartner.com/en/information-technology/glossary/remotework (Accessed: November 15, 2023).
- [3] https://lex.bg/bg/laws/ldoc/1594373121 (Accessed: December 1, 2023).).
- [4] https://nunsys.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/03/2018-Informe-Penteo_Market-Trends_Workplace-002.pdf
- [5] Economic and Social Council, Statement "Effects of the application of remote work in Bulgaria", 2021.
- [6] https://assets.regus.com/pdfs/iwg-workplace-survey/iwg-workplace-survey-2019.pdf (Accessed: November 11, 2023).

- [7] https://www.regus.com/work-us/en-us ((Accessed: November 12, 2023).
- [8] https://www.investor.bg/ikonomika-i-politika/332/a/vse-poveche-kompanii-po-sveta-pozvoliavat-rabota-ot-razstoianie-275830/ (Accessed: November 20, 2023).
- [9] https://i.forbesing.com/forbesinsights/vmware/impact-of-digital-workforce.pdf (Accessed: November 11, 2023).
- [10] M. Vasileva, "The need for the introduction of the European framework agreement on "teleworking"," Labor Information Bulletin, Publishing Complex "Labor and Law", 2020.



December 1-3, 2023

Navigating the Legal Landscape of Rapid AI Development in European Union

Dragan Stankovski^{*1}

¹University of Telecommunication and Posts, Department of Telecommunication, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

In the dynamic realm of the era, the European Union (EU) has long been at the leading edge of crafting policies to navigate the complex landscape of Artificial Intelligence (AI) and Machine Learning (ML). The distinction between AI and ML is not simply dependent on academic precision; it holds profound felony implications. This section delves into the history and purpose behind the vital significance of distinguishing between AI and ML from a legal angle within the EU. The fast proliferation of AI and ML technologies has touched nearly every aspect of cutting-edge life, from self-sufficient cars and healthcare diagnostics to algorithmic selection-making and economic forecasting. This technological ubiquity has propelled governments, policymakers, and felony pupils into a movement to make sure that the transformative electricity of AI and ML is harnessed responsibly and ethically.

The EU has taken proactive steps to adjust AI and ML (The EU's Commitment to AI Regulation), spotting their potential benefits and the risks they pose. In April 2021, the European Commission unveiled its proposed "Artificial Intelligence Act" "As part of its digital strategy, the EU wants to regulate artificial intelligence (AI) to ensure better conditions for the development and use of this innovative technology. AI can create many benefits, such as better healthcare; safer and cleaner transport; more efficient manufacturing; and cheaper and more sustainable energy.", a landmark piece of rules designed to set up a legal framework for AI, especially in CURIA.

Keywords:, AI and ML, EU law, CURIA, AI act

1 INTRODUCTION

The case observed, Navigating the Legal Landscape of Rapid AI Development in Europe: Challenges and Strategies for Effective Risk Prevention, explores the complex felony terrain surrounding the fast proliferation of artificial intelligence (AI) technologies within the European Union (EU). It investigates the demanding situations posed via AI improvement and deployment, as well as the strategies needed to mitigate dangers and make sure accountable AI is used in the EU.

Policy Recommendations for Effective Risk Prevention in AI Development inside the EU and the fast advancement of Artificial Intelligence (AI) technologies have ushered in a new technology of innovation and transformation throughout industries. However, the proliferation of AI additionally brings forth moral, criminal, and societal demanding situations, especially within the European Union (EU), in which values that include privateness, transparency, and accountability hold substantial importance. To ensure accountable AI development, effective threat prevention strategies and rules are imperative. This section outlines key policy suggestions for the EU to successfully save you dangers related to AI improvement [1].

EU policymakers must maintain complete threat tests for AI structures earlier than deployment. These tests must embody ability biases, privacy violations, security vulnerabilities, and other ethical and criminal worries. Implementing standardized risk evaluation protocols ensures that AI builders very well understand and cope with capacity dangers. The next step is to develop clean ethical pointers and technical requirements that AI structures need to adhere to. These hints need to emphasize fairness, transparency, accountability, and human oversight in AI decision-making techniques. Creating a unified moral framework enables the improvement of AI systems that could inadvertently propose harm or discriminate towards positive groups. Enhance information privacy and safety regulations to safeguard personal facts utilized in AI schooling and operation. Strengthen the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) to encompass provisions specific to AI structures, making sure that records used for education are obtained and processed responsibly, and that AI outputs appreciate individuals' privacy rights.

2 AI HARMONIZATION OVER EU LAWS RECOMMENDATION VS RATIONALE

The advent of Artificial Intelligence (AI) has revolutionized industries and economies, promising innovation, and increase. However, the European Union (EU) recognizes that AI also poses ability dangers, particularly in phrases of information privacy and safety. Addressing those issues requires focused rules and techniques to ensure accountable AI development. This section presents unique policy hints that emphasize data privacy and security as crucial additives of AI chance prevention inside the EU [2].

- a) Strengthening Data Privacy Regulations: Recommendation: Enhance the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) to encompass provisions especially addressing data used in AI systems. Rationale: AI structures rely heavily on statistics for training and decision-making. Strengthening statistics privacy rules ensures that private facts used in AI tactics are amassed, saved, and processed transparently, with the consent of the individuals concerned.
- b) Encouraging Differential Privacy:

Recommendation: Promote the use of differential privateness techniques to shield personal data whilst retaining the software of AI models.

Rationale: Differential privacy provides noise to the dataset, making it harder to become aware of specific people. This safeguards information privacy without compromising the effectiveness of AI systems.

c) Implementing Privacy via Design:

Recommendation: Mandate the mixing of privacy by using layout concepts in AI machine development. **Rationale**: Privacy by using design guarantees that records safety measures are embedded into the AI improvement process from the outset, minimizing dangers associated with records breaches or unauthorized entry.

d) Federated Learning for Privacy:

Recommendation: Encourage the adoption of federated studying strategies to teach AI fashions on decentralized information assets.

Rationale: Federated studying allows AI fashions to be taught across more than one gadget without the want to centralize touchy statistics. This reduces the risk of statistics publicity even as still enhances AI device accuracy.

e) Transparent Data Usage:

Recommendation: Require AI developers to provide clean explanations approximately how facts are used within their structures.

Rationale: Transparent statistics usage explanations promote user trust and understanding, making sure individuals are privy to how their records contribute to AI decision-making approaches.

f) Regular Security Audits:

Recommendation: Mandate normal security audits of AI systems to discover vulnerabilities and ability facts breaches.

Rationale: Regular audits help AI developers identify and rectify safety weaknesses before they may be exploited, preventing unauthorized admission to and information leaks.

g) Encrypted Data Transmission:

Recommendation: Enforce encrypted information transmission among AI systems and their information resources.

Rationale: Encrypting information transmission prevents eavesdropping and information interception, making sure that sensitive statistics stay protected at some point in their journey.

h) Data Minimization Principle:

Recommendation: Advocate for the precept of statistics minimization, wherein AI builders most effectively acquire and use the information vital for a selected motive.

Rationale: Limiting the number of statistics gathered reduces the ability risks associated with information breaches, exposure, and unauthorized use.

i) Ethical Data Sharing:

Recommendation: Develop pointers for ethical information sharing that make sure records are shared responsibly and in compliance with information safety laws.

Rationale: Ethical records sharing practices allow for the development of sturdy AI fashions even as respecting individuals' rights and privacy.

i) Collaboration and Information Sharing:

Recommendation: Encourage pass-border collaboration and data sharing among EU member states concerning facts privateness and security fine practices.

Rationale: Collaborative efforts enable member states to learn from each other's reports, selling an extra cohesive and powerful method for data privacy and safety in AI regulation.

The development and deployment of AI within the EU must be guided via effective hazard prevention strategies. Policymakers play an essential role in ensuring that AI technology aligns with ethical ideas, criminal standards, and societal values. By imposing comprehensive threat exams, moral tips, obvious decision-making practices, and strong information protection measures, the EU can foster an environment of responsible AI innovation that advantages society while minimizing capacity dangers [3]. Through considerate policy hints and collaborative efforts, the EU can pave the manner for a future wherein AI's transformative potential is harnessed responsibly and sustainably.

3 CHALLENGES WITHIN THE MODERN LEGAL LANDSCAPE

Challenges within the Legal Landscape are not so easy to understand either from a legal or from a technical perspective [4]. Some of the frames and challenges are presented in the list below, including short explanations.

- Regulatory Fragmentation The EU's criminal framework for AI is characterized by fragmentation, with more than one guideline and directives addressing AI in diverse sectors. This fragmentation poses demanding situations in developing a unified and regular regulatory method.
- Ethical Dilemmas Rapid AI development brings ethical dilemmas related to bias, discrimination, and transparency. Balancing innovation with moral considerations is a pressing mission.
- Data Privacy and Security AI heavily relies on records and making sure facts are privateness and security while adhering to the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) is a massive task.
- Accountability and Liability Defining duty and liability in cases of AI-associated damage or mistakes remains a complicated issue, particularly in multi-stakeholder AI ecosystems.
- Transparency and Explainability Achieving transparency and explainability in AI decision-making methods is critical for ensuring equity and belief but stays technically difficult.
- Strategies for Effective Risk Prevention
- Unified AI Regulation The EU needs to strive for a unified regulatory framework for AI to reduce fragmentation and ensure steady requirements throughout member states.
- Ethical Guidelines Ethical pointers for AI improvement need to be set up, emphasizing principles inclusive of fairness, responsibility, and non-discrimination.
- Data Governance Robust information governance measures should be implemented to guard statistics privateness at the same time as permitting AI innovation.
- Accountability Mechanisms Clear mechanisms for establishing accountability and legal responsibility in AI systems should be developed, thinking about the roles of developers, users, and regulators.
- Transparency Tools Tools for enhancing transparency and explainability in AI selection-making processes need to be recommended and incorporated into AI structures.

The landscape of fast AI development in Europe is marked by both challenges and possibilities. While regulatory fragmentation and moral dilemmas pose complicated hurdles, the EU can steer accountable AI development by embracing unified law, ethical suggestions, robust data governance, accountability mechanisms, and transparency tools [5]. By navigating those challenges effectively and adopting forward-searching techniques, Europe can harness the blessings of AI whilst safeguarding essential rights and values, in the long run shaping the destiny of AI development in an accountable and ethical way, examples presented on Tab. 1.

Legal aspect	Actions and suggestions
Ethical and Legal Compliance	Involve legal specialists and ethicists within the AI improvement procedure.
Data Governance and Privacy	Implement a "facts safety by means of design" technique, where privacy and statistics protection are necessary for AI machine improvement
Fairness and Non- Discrimination	Integrate bias detection gear into the ML pipeline to discover and mitigate biases in schooling statistics. Regularly check the fairness of AI choices, and make modifications as wished.
Transparency and Explainability	Use interpretable ML models and strategies to enhance transparency. Develop strategies for producing reasons for AI selections, particularly in instances wherein they affect people's rights or criminal outcomes.
Human Oversight and Control	Incorporate a human-in-the-loop technique, in particular in excessive-stakes programs like legal choice-making. Ensure that AI systems augment human decision-makers rather than update them entirely.
Accountability and Liability	Define clean traces of duty inside the AI development and deployment pipeline. Establish duties for AI builders, operators, and customers
Continuous Monitoring and Evaluation	Conduct everyday audits and checks of AI structures to ensure ongoing compliance with EU laws and moral standards. Make important changes based totally on the consequences of these audits.
User Education and Awareness	Training and Education: Educate customers, stakeholders, and the general public approximately the abilities and boundaries of AI systems. Promote cognizance of data rights and the way AI affects individuals' lives

Table 1. Legal aspects and landscape challenges

4 LEGAL FRAMEWORK AND ROLE OF AI

By following recommendation steps and maintaining a nicely described statistics classification framework, organizations can correctly control information sensitivity levels, reduce the threat of facts breaches, and align their practices with felony and ethical standards in the European legal panorama. Regular updates and ongoing schooling are important to make sure the framework stays effective and applicable.

Segmentation of data and a very interesting and popular part of big-data analysis is who can read and access them. This is the critical decision-maker policy to complete the full landscape and make sure that the information is in safe hands [6].

Analysis and proposals for access levels:

4.1 Public Data Access

Policies: Public information must be available to all users without regulations. However, usage guidelines ought to dictate responsible and ethical use.

Examples: Open datasets, publicly available research statistics, and non-sensitive statistics.

4.2 Limited Access

Policies: Limited admission must be granted to legal users based totally on their roles and duties. Users must go through authentication and authorization tactics.

Examples: Internal business records, patron information, and research records shared inside a particular group.

4.3 Restricted Access

Policies: Highly sensitive facts need to have strict access control policies. Access ought to be constrained to a pick out few individuals with a valid want.

Examples: Financial facts, personal fitness records (PHI), and felony documents.

4.4 Highest Security Access

Policies: Critical and exclusive data should be available best to a handful of individuals with the highest stage of clearance. Strict tracking and auditing needs to be in the vicinity.

Examples: National safety facts, categorized files, and alternate secrets and techniques.



Figure 1. Example of level of access and risk prevention [7]

The corporation of AI Laws and Access Levels, alongside recommendations for better implementation, are related to the items below:

AI Laws Organization:

- Centralized Repository: Create a centralized repository or database in which all applicable AI legal guidelines, guidelines, and guidelines are documented and easily accessible. This should be maintained and frequently updated via a dedicated authority.
- Categorization: Categorize AI laws and rules based on exclusive aspects, including statistics privateness, transparency, responsibility, and quarter-unique guidelines (e.g., healthcare, finance). This categorization will resource customers in locating relevant records more efficiently.
- Search and Navigation: Implement a consumer-friendly search and navigation gadget in the repository, permitting customers to look for precise AI-associated subjects or legal guidelines via keywords, sectors, or dates of enactment.
- Regular Updates: Commit to an agenda for reviewing and updating AI legal guidelines to keep them aligned with technological advancements and evolving ethical and criminal standards.

Access Levels:

Public Data Access:

- Suggestion 1 Usage Policies: Alongside unrestricted get entry, put into effect clear usage policies for public information. These rules should emphasize responsible and moral use, such as recommendations on information sharing, attribution, and ability restrictions on industrial use.
- Suggestion 2 Data Catalog: Maintain a publicly handy facts catalog that offers specific facts about to-be-had public datasets. This catalog must consist of metadata, information formats, and information on the resources and functions of the data.

Limited Access:

- Suggestion 1 Role-Based Access Control: Implement a position-based get right of entry to manipulate (RBAC) system that offers users entry based on their roles and duties within the organization. Different roles should have various tiers of getting admission to.
- Suggestion 2 Authentication and Authorization: Require users to undergo authentication and authorization approaches to get admission to restricted information. Implement issue authentication (2FA) for brought security.
- Suggestion 3 Data Classification Labels: Label facts assets with their category level (e.g., "exclusive" or "touchy") to provide clean visible cues to users approximately the level of sensitivity of the records.

Restricted Access:

- Suggestion 1 Need-to-Know Basis: Enforce a strict "need-to-understand" precept for accessing touchy facts. Access ought to be granted most effectively to people with a valid and documented need for such statistics.
- Suggestion 2 Encryption: Implement encryption for facts in transit and at rest for confined entry to data. Use strong encryption protocols to shield facts from the unauthorized right of entry.

• Suggestion 3 - Data Access Logs: Maintain targeted get right of entry to logs for confined information, which includes timestamps, consumer IDs, and the purpose of access. Regularly audit those logs for any suspicious activities.

Highest Security Access:

- Suggestion 1 Multi-Level Authentication: Implement multi-level authentication (MLA) for individuals with the highest safety clearance. MLA consists of biometric authentication, clever cards, and token-based total access manipulation.
- Suggestion 2 Real-Time Monitoring: Employ real-time tracking and alert systems for the best safety access information. Any uncommon activities should cause instant alerts for research.
- Suggestion three Regular Security Audits: Conduct periodic security audits for structures handling the most important statistics. These audits need to be thorough and contain 0.33 safety professionals to ensure the highest degree of safety.

5 CONCLUSION

The future directions for criminal frameworks governing AI in Europe are marked by using a dedication to accountable innovation, moral issues, and a holistic method that considers societal and financial effects. Regulatory tasks just like the AI Act offer a basis for addressing rising demand situations in AI improvement and usage. Ethical standards manual the development of AI technology, ensuring fairness, transparency, and responsibility.

Socio-financial impact tests might be essential in addressing the broader consequences of AI adoption, from activity displacement to monetary inequality. Public-private partnerships and guides for innovation and entrepreneurship will drive AI's superb impact on society and the economy.

Data privacy and safety stays paramount, and criminal frameworks must evolve to guard personal facts in the AI era. Europe's future AI guidelines ought to be dynamic, flexible, and responsive to the fast advancements in AI technology, ensuring that AI blessings all residents whilst upholding European values and principles. In doing so, Europe can maintain to guide the manner in shaping the responsible development and utilization of AI in the twenty-first century.

With the implementation and maintenance of a properly based AI laws agency and get right of entry to degree policies, the EU can enhance transparency, accountability, and protection in AI improvement and utilization while respecting information privacy and law requirements. Regular schooling and awareness programs should additionally be part of the strategy to make certain that each stakeholder recognizes and adheres to these regulations effectively.

Acknowledgments

This paper is related to the bigger master thesis of the author dedicated to EU laws and AI integration from the legal point of view. The future works include extensions and focus to the regulation part introducing virtual ID and the impact of the models in the virtual world regarding the laws and legal landscape.

References

- [1] A European approach to artificial intelligence, available at: https://digital-strategy.ec.europa.eu/en/policies/ european-approach-artificial-intelligence#:~:text=European%20proposal%20for%20a%20legal,setting% 20the%20global%20gold%20standard
- [2] A European approach to artificial intelligence, available at: https://digital-strategy.ec.europa.eu/en/policies/ european-approach-artificial-intelligence#:~:text=European%20proposal%20for%20a%20legal,setting% 20the%20global%20gold%20standard
- [3] EU AI Act: first regulation on artificial intelligence, Updated: 14-06-2023 14:06, available at: https://www.europarl.europa.eu/news/en/headlines/society/20230601STO93804/eu-ai-act-first-regulation -on-artificial-intelligence?&at campaign=20226.
- [4] J.-B. J. Vilmer et al., "Information manipulation: A challenge for our democracies," Paris, France: Ministry for Europe and Foreign Affairs and the Institute for Strategic Research of the Ministry for the Armed Forces, August 2018.
- [5] M. Minski, "The emotion machine: Commonsense thinking," Artificial Intelligence, and the Future of the Human Mind, Simon & Schuster; Reprint edition (November 13, 2007), ISBN 978-0743276641.
- [6] J. Cowls and R. Schroeder, "Causation, correlation, and big data in social science research," Policy & Internet, vol. 7, pp. 447–472, 2015, doi.org/10.1002/poi3.100.
- [7] The Impending EU AI Act What You Need to Know available: www.ethicalintelligence.com.



Agile Automation: Enhancing Telecommunication Management through AI-Driven Strategies

Dragan Stankovski^{*1}, Dimitar Radev¹, Ognyan Fetfov¹, Boyko Ganchev¹

¹University of Telecommunication and Posts, Department of Telecommunication, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

This paper delves into the dynamic landscape of the telecommunication industry, emphasizing the pivotal role of Artificial Intelligence (AI) and Agile methodologies (AgM) in helping management projects. In a generation marked by swiftly evolving consumer demands and fierce marketplace competition, telecommunication businesses are compelled to optimize their operations and service high quality. This observation explores the fusion of AI and Agile methodologies as a promising solution for addressing those demanding situations.

The research investigates how Agile practices can be correctly integrated into telecommunication control, providing flexibility, adaptability, and improved assignment shipping. Furthermore, AI's transformative skills, which include statistics analytics, predictive maintenance, and system automation, are explored inside the context of telecommunication management. The paper emphasizes the synergy between Agile concepts and AI technology to acquire strategic objectives, decorate purchaser reviews, and gain operational excellence inside the telecommunication zone.

This interdisciplinary research provides valuable insights for telecommunication professionals, venture managers, and managers in search of modern solutions to manage projects extra correctly in an ever-evolving enterprise. It highlights realistic use cases, case studies, and real-world programs of Agile and AI, offering a complete guide for telecommunication businesses seeking to live competitively within the digital age.

Keywords: Agile, Telcos, AI, Telecommunication management

1 INTRODUCTION

The telecommunications industry is undergoing a paradigm shift, driven by relentless technological advances. This paper sets the stage by highlighting the challenges facing telecommunications management, including the need for rapid adaptation, resource efficiency, and network robustness It establishes that the combination of agile methods and AI-powered automation is a transformational solution to address these challenges [1]. Based on existing modern technologies that provide a high level of project management in Telcos with the integration of plug-ins and AI-driven models rapidly developed in the last year, managing has become an easy approach to preventing and avoiding problems and risks.

2 AGILE METHODOLOGIES IN TELECOMMUNICATION MANAGEMENT

Originally designed for software development, the principles of speed have been adapted to the dynamic nature of the telecommunications industry. Topics covered include iterative development, cross-functional teams, and customer centricity, illustrating the adaptability and responsiveness of these principles at its core, the Agile approach follows a set of principles that prioritize flexibility and customer satisfaction. In the case of telecommunications design, these principles holistically manifest themselves and are repeated continually in problem-solving and service development. Iterative development, a key principle of agility, allows for continuous improvements in network design, functionality, and customer experience, and ensures that the telecommunications ecosystem continues to meet evolving roles. One of the key principles of Agile methodologies is iterative improvement, where solutions are developed incrementally with a focus on continuous improvement. Applying this approach to telecommunications design allows the industry to quickly respond to emerging technologies and consumer demands. By prioritizing customer focus, agile processes ensure that end-user experience is at the forefront of decision-making processes, resulting in outstanding telecommunications services and convenience for users to come.

Agile methodologies emphasize the importance of cross-functional teams, breaking down traditional silos within organizations. In telecommunications design, where continuous communication between network engineers, software developers, and customer service representatives is essential, this approach provides seamless communication and shared understanding throughout the telecommunications process leading to improved problem-solving ability and effective decision-making. The telecommunications industry is dynamic, with rapid technological developments and market changes. Agile methods by their very nature prioritize flexibility and flexibility, enabling a telecommunications manager to actively manage change. By embracing flexibility as a core principle, organizations can move with speed to the industry's challenges, rapidly deploy new information, and produce high-quality products Real-world examples and case studies are a powerful illustration of the success of incorporating agile methods into telecommunications infrastructure. This model demonstrates tangible benefits such as reduced time to market for new projects, improved customer satisfaction and increased operational efficiency Ability to evolve quickly in response to market demand by telephone does agile communication establish itself as a strategic advantage in an industry where innovation is critical.



2.1 Kanban

Kanban proves useful in telecommunications management by providing more visibility and transparency. It provides a visual representation of work elements, enabling stakeholders to make informed decisions and ensuring clear communication between team members. In a dynamic telecommunications environment, Kanban's adaptability is critical, allowing teams to quickly respond to changing priorities and market demands. They simplify work prioritization, allowing teams to better focus on important activities. Continuous improvement has incorporated Kanban, which fosters a culture of flexibility and efficiency, ultimately increasing productivity and reducing downtime. Challenges to Kanban implementation include the risk of overemphasizing immediate performance improvements at the expense of strategic planning. The potential for information overload comes from the large number of tasks represented in the Kanban board, which likely causes confusion and reduced concentration If visual processing is relied upon, creates challenges for geographically dispersed groups and can hinder effective communication. [7].

2.2 Scrum / SAFe

Scrum provides a framework that encourages flexibility and collaboration in telecommunications management. Its iterative approach facilitates rapid response to changing requirements, providing greater flexibility. Regular sprint reviews ensure continuous improvement, while the transparency of roles and responsibilities in Scrum provides a structured way of managing tasks and projects. SAFe (Scaled Agile Framework) on the other side extends Scrum principles to large projects typical of telecommunications infrastructure. It introduces new layers such as Release Trains and Program Increments, providing a structured way for multiple teams to organize and collaborate. SAFe's emphasis on consistency, collaboration, and monitoring consistently and effectively is beneficial for managing complex projects in telecommunications. The lack of detailed project planning in Scrum can be a challenge for a telecommunications project that requires extensive planning. The structure of Scrum teams themselves can pose challenges for teams that lack sufficient experience or expertise. Failure to run timed runs can result in some incomplete results if not handled properly. The complexity of SAFe can be excessive for small groups or businesses, resulting in premiums.

3 AI-DRIVEN AUTOMATION IN TELECOMMUNICATIONS

The telecommunications industry is leading the way in harnessing sophisticated technologies to meet the demands of an ever-evolving digital environment. One such revolutionary force is the integration of artificial intelligence (AI) in AI-driven automation. AI-powered automation in telecom represents a paradigm shift in how networks are managed, delivering services, and improving customer experience. Advances in machine learning, natural language processing, and predictive analytics have enabled telecom companies to process large amounts of data developed on their networks used to make more intelligent decisions. A key area is network optimization, where AI algorithms analyze network performance data in real-time, identify bottlenecks, and dynamically adjust policies for efficiency. Predictive maintenance performing predictive maintenance is another important application, where AI requires historical data to identify potential equipment failures and proactive interventions are allowed to prevent service disruptions. Regarding customer service, AI-powered chatbots, and virtual assistants have helped solve frequently asked questions, provide instant feedback, and improve overall customer satisfaction. Not only does this reduce the workload on human agents but also ensures 24/7 availability and answers to customer queries AI is used. The integration of AI-powered automation offers many benefits to the telecommunications industry. One of the most important benefits is increased productivity [1]. Through routine tasks such as network management, maintenance, and customer support, telecommunications companies can improve resource efficiency, reduce manual errors, and provide human expertise for challenges it is more intense. AI-powered automation allows for streamlined scheduling and resource allocation, reducing operational costs. Additionally, AI's predictive capabilities contribute to more efficient logistics, reducing unnecessary costs. Improved customer experience stands out as a key benefit. The use of AI-powered chatbots and virtual assistants ensures fast and accurate responses to customer queries, increasing satisfaction. Additionally, the dynamic nature of AI-powered predictive maintenance reduces service disruption and increases overall reliability and trust in telecommunications services with the ever-increasing volume of data and users, scalability is a key consideration in the telecommunications industry.

4 SYNERGY BETWEEN AGILE AND AI

This chapter explores the mechanisms between agility and AI-driven automation. It explores how the iterative and collaborative nature of agile processes complements AI capabilities related to prediction and data manipulation. Case studies and real-world examples are used to show how organizations can use this collaboration to increase the flexibility and efficiency of telecommunications management systems Benefits and challenges associated with Agile and AI-driven approaches a balanced analysis of automation integration is needed. A major goal is to explore how this hybrid approach can improve time-to-market, cost-effectiveness, and customer satisfaction [6]. At the same time, it addresses potential challenges such as data security, ethical considerations, and the need for professional development. The intersection of agile methodologies and artificial intelligence (AI) has emerged as a dynamic collaboration in today's fast-paced business environment, driving organizations towards increased scalability and efficiency Known for its techniques of iteration and collaboration, Agile finds a natural partner in AI, implementing data-driven insights automation at the heart of this interaction is the iterative nature of Agile methodologies. Agile's emphasis on continuous feedback loops and incremental improvement fits well with the limited and variable AI capabilities based on data analytics Iterative cycles in Agile provide a framework for refining AI models, incorporating user feedback, and ensuring that AI is aligned with evolving business needs. Agile methodologies for collaboration support the power of AI to improve human capabilities. Agile crossfunctional teams with different skill sets can collaborate effectively on AI-driven tasks. This collaboration ensures that the implementation of AI solutions is not only technically sound but also an integration of business needs, user experience, and ethical considerations AI's predictive and analytical capabilities, too, underscore Agile's decision-making processes. AI algorithms can analyze large data sets, providing valuable insights into user behavior, market trends, and potential risks. This data-driven decision-making makes Agile teams more accurate, allowing them to better prioritize projects and react faster to changing circumstances. Furthermore, the combination of Agile and AI fosters a culture of continuous improvement. Agile methodologies encourage teams to brainstorm strategies and make iterative improvements. AI's ability to analyze operational data helps create this culture by providing usable insights into areas for improvement. The result is a dynamic feedback loop that drives both pathways to optimal performance. While the interface between Agile and AI is powerful, it is not without its challenges. Integrating AI into an Agile business process requires careful consideration of data security, ethical implications, and the need to upgrade the skills of the employees.



Figure 2. Integration between JIRA and OpenAI [4]

Figure 2 above presents the most popular project management tool used in almost all telecommunication projects and integration with the most famous AI toll – the ChatGPT / OpenAI. Jira Misc Workflow Extensions stands as a vital utility that enhances the capability of Jira workflows. Offering customizable conditions, validations, and submit functions, along with the functionality to craft personalized scripts, this app gives administrators a versatile toolkit. Such adaptability empowers administrators to finely tailor workflows to necessities, contributing to Jira's accelerated adaptability and operational efficiency [4]. During the lifecycle of one project number of the requirements or tickets (IssueTypes in the JIRA language [5]) can increase up to 100K. Most of them will be dummies, irrelevant, or simply closed, but the majority are the real ones who need to take care and attention. Managing such a large number even with the tool as JIRA requires creating a decent number of Automation rules, which are OOTB (out-of-the-box) solutions within the tool, but this is taking a huge amount of time for investigation and creation [4]. Thus, the direction of integration with the AI tools will provide a clearer view of the analyses, decision-making based on previous experience including and risk prevention. The flow is basic, and the integration is not so complicated.

Table 1 presents the movement of the real numbers of the tickets that are monitored and managed in real telecommunication projects. The duration of the monitoring is for the period of around one year (May 2022 – Sep 2023) for a big Telecommunication company while moving to digital transition. The project is focused on changing the methodology of software delivery introducing Agile, DevOps, and Cloud migration. The overall number of tickets and investigation cut-off is 86940.

Table 1. Ose cases and impact of AI integration.			
Use Case	Before AI Integration	After AI Integration	
Ghost tickets	9023	149*	
Escalated tickets	234	4001	
Automatically closed	0	7426	
Risk prevention	574	3477	
Retested	199	27895	

Table 1. Use cases and impact of AI integration.

The results present a serious number of ticket iterations after the system is connected and integrated with the AI. The reason is related to reducing the manual work including the end-user testing for the quality of the code and ticket resolution. In the beginning lot of the tickets around 10% were pure placeholders or empty ones used for notes or not completed, which are clear cases that the statistic is deviated, and after integration, the number was reduced to 149. * The reason behind this is simply that further clarification is needed as some of the tickets are bridges (linked) between two real and existing working ones. The AI also based on the triggers escalated and increased the number of the tickets to 4001 as most of them are past due date, approaching commitment, and no movement or no one is working on them. The interesting number is 7426 closed tickets, all of them are simply commented as Done, but the status is not updated. In some cases, even the linked issues are not closed when the parent is done. Based on the AI learning the importance of the 3477 ticket is increased with upper priority so it can be brought to the attention of the reports. And maybe the most important part is the testing one. The JIRA has a lot of plug-ins like Zephyr and Xray dedicated to the testing, and both have very nice flow and rules for testing and retesting of the use-cases and issues. The involvement of the AI integration here is focused on the pure customer experience and the prediction that around 27895 users will hit the problems instead of manual testers. The conclusion from the investigation is clear and AI helps the project to handle and clean the mess with the dummies tickets and focus more on those who need real attention by escalating and moving to higher priority.

5 LANDSCAPE AND CAPABILITIES OF JIRA AND AI

Artificial intelligence (AI) capabilities can be incorporated into JIRA (a popular project management tool [2]) to increase productivity, automate routine tasks, and provide valuable insights example here are a variety of useful examples of how AI can be used in JIRA.

Table 2. Examples and needs of JIRA integration with AI				
Areas of Interest	Directions			
Automated journal function	AI algorithms can analyze historical data on issue assignments to identify patterns. JIRA can use AI to automatically provide updates to the most qualified team member based on their historical performance, skills, and hard work.			
Critical Forecasting Issue	AI algorithms can analyze past data, considering factors such as urgency, importance, and historical decision time. JIRA can then predict and suggest issue priorities, helping teams focus on the most important tasks first.			
Smart Content Classification	AI-powered natural language processing (NLP) can analyze details and categorize them accurately. This feature helps simplify tagging, organizing, and searching operations for content with relevant automatic labels.			
Smart Race Planning	AI can analyze historical race statistics, team speed, and the ability of individual team members. JIRA can use this information to propose realistic sprint schedules, optimize work distribution, and ensure achievable goals.			
Automated Documentation	AI-powered tools can create documents based on data stored in JIRA. It includes project summaries, progress reports, and releases, saving team time and ensuring accuracy.			
Sentiment analysis for the storyline	AI-driven sentiment analysis can be incorporated into JIRA to measure the sentiment of comments. This helps teams quickly identify and address potential conflicts or issues affecting the business unit.			
Auto-tagging and labeling	AI algorithms can analyze the content of the article and issue orders or apply relevant tags and labels automatically. This improves classification accuracy and facilitates filtering and analysis.			
Dynamic management	AI can analyze historical project data, skill sets of team members, and current work products. JIRA can then dynamically recommend or adjust resource allocations to ensure optimal implementation and eliminate complexity.			
Predictive analytics for forecasting conclusions	AI algorithms can analyze historical data on transaction completion times and factor asting conclusions AI algorithms can analyze historical data on transaction completion times and factor affecting delays. JIRA can use this information to provide more accurate estimate for project completion, helping to optimize project management.			
Continuous pursuit of improvement	AI analytics can assess team performance, identify challenges, and suggest JIRA workflow enhancements. This continuous feedback loop facilitates agile precedents and supports the refinement of teams' processes.			

Implementing these AI-driven features in JIRA not only automates routine tasks but also adds internal intelligence, empowering teams to perform efficiently, make informed decisions, and continuously improve their management processes. However, here are some plugins that were known for combining AI capabilities with Jira:

- Zephyr and Xray for Jira (Test Management). AI Integration: Zephyr integrates Jira with advanced testing tools that use AI for test automation and analysis. Increases testing efficiency and provides insight into testing strategies;
- **Mindville Insight** (Property Management). AI integration: Although not an AI plugin specifically, Insight provides comprehensive reporting and analytics. Users can use external AI tools to perform data analysis and gain insights into asset management systems;
- **IntegrateCloud AI** (Submit entry). AI Integration: This plugin integrates AI to manage emails in JIRA. It uses AI algorithms to create intelligent email classification, prioritization, and reply to recommendations;
- **Jira Assistant** (AI Integration): JIRA Assistant is an AI-powered virtual assistant for JIRA. It uses natural language processing to understand user input and help Jira navigate around town, search for information, and act;
- **nFeed** (Data from any source). AI integration: While primarily a data integration tool, nFeed can be used to import external data, including data generated by AI applications. It enables users to connect JIRA with AI-powered tools for enhanced insights;
- **Botron** (Configuration Manager). AI Integration: Although not directly focused on AI, Configuration Manager by Botron supports the definition and migration of Jira systems, which can be useful if AI tools may need configuration changes in the integration process;

- **DeepDesk AI for JIRA (**AI Integration): This plugin aims to bring AI capabilities to JIRA process management. It has features like automatic ticket classification, sentiment analysis, and intelligent ticket routing.

It is important to check the Atlassian Marketplace or the official websites of these plugins for the most up-to-date information on features, compatibility, and user reviews Moreover, as technology evolves, new plugins and updates are introduced and JIRA itself is also upgrading own capabilities in the mood of the technology development and progress pure example is JIRA Software Management stream.

6 CONCLUSION

Looking ahead, this section explores the future development possibilities of integrating agile automation and AI in telecommunications. It discusses implications for the industry, including evolving business activities, regulatory considerations, and emerging business model innovations. In conclusion, the paper synthesizes key findings, highlighting the transformative impact of agile automation through AI-driven processes in telecommunications management. It emphasizes the importance of taking a holistic and collaborative approach to harnessing the full potential of this technology in a dynamic telecommunications environment. The insights presented in this paper provide a road map for industry stakeholders to leverage the synergies between agility and AI to navigate the evolving landscape.

AI-powered automation is a transformative force in the telecommunications industry, reshaping how networks are managed and services delivered. Advances in AI technology, including applications, offer significant benefits in terms of efficiency, cost savings, customer satisfaction, and scalability but challenges such as data security, ethical considerations, and importance must be met aside from the availability of skilled labor. As telecommunications continues to evolve in the digital age, the process of integrating AI-powered automation remains key in shaping the future landscape of the industry.

Acknowledgments

This paper is the first part of the real project management development and provides intro information for the project itself including a couple of real examples and results. The following papers will include the configuration and integration code with various tools and products.

References

- [1] A. Aldoseri, K. Al-Khalifa, A. Hamouda, "A Roadmap for Integrating Automation with Process Optimization for AI-powered Digital Transformation," 2023, doi:10.20944/preprints202310.1055.v1.
- [2] A. Arnautović, "Managing project using JIRA software," Serbian Journal of Engineering Management, vol. 7, pp. 40–46, 2022 10.5937/SJEM2202040A.
- [3] E. Titova, "Trends in cultural television shows," Communication Management: Theory and Practice in the 21st Century, 2020, Available from: https://www.ceeol.com/search/chapter-detail?id=882093.
- [4] F. Lucena, Jira + ChatGPT: How to Automatically Triage Jira Tickets with Artificial Intelligence, available at: https://medium.com/@feliperlucena/jira-chatgpt-triage-tickets-and-analyze-sentiments-with-ai-492ce7 ead69d.
- [5] L. Montgomery, C. Lüders, and W. Maalej, Jira: An Alternative Issue Tracking Dataset, 2022.
- [6] M. Krupa and J. Hajek, "Hybrid project management models: A systematic literature review," International Journal of Project Organisation and Management, 2022, doi: 10.1504/IJPOM.2024.10056237.
- [7] D. Stankovski, "The transition from kanban to scrum and risk prevention in big telco corporation," Conference: 8th International Conference on Complexity, Future Information Systems and Risk, January 2023, doi: 10.5220/0012048600003485.



Ensuring and Improving Communications During Crises Caused by Natural Disasters or Mass Events

Todor Gospodinov^{*1}

¹University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria

Abstract

Technologies related to communications ensure the transmission of data and in the modern world they are everywhere. The exchange of information during a crisis is naturally of greater interest for study because it is precisely in situations of instability that ensuring connectivity can be crucial and there is often a need for guaranteed channels of communication. There are various connectivity solutions for problems with conventional communication channels. The most popular is the emergency call system 112. Another solution is the BG-Alert system, which is an additional channel to the National Early Warning System or siren system. A third possibility is through the use of the radio frequency spectrum for the construction of terrestrial networks, allowing the provision of electronic communication services after the issuance of a permit to the municipalities in our country. During the measurements in the flooded villages of Bogdan and Slatina in the municipality of Karlovo, as well as during the assembly near the village of Gela, Smolyan region, in these locations were registered various significantly lower indicators of voice transmission via GSM technology or of Internet access via UMTS, LTE and 5G, according to reports from the Communications Regulation Commission (CRC). The reasons are that during disasters and mass events, public communication networks cannot provide the necessary connectivity and this creates the conditions for a crisis and the impossibility of providing a reliable connection to an emergency aid or other specialized public service. The conclusions give us reason to make a recommendation for the development and implementation of alternative channels for connection in case of crises, using the radio frequency spectrum for the construction of local terrestrial networks with a single center for the needs of the municipalities in the Republic of Bulgaria after the issuance of a permit by the CRC.

Keywords: Crisis, Telecommunications, Radio frequency networks

1 INTRODUCTION

The transmission of messages has remained one of the most important processes for the formation and development of human civilization for thousands of years. The information that is exchanged during communication has different value and importance depending on the situation in which it happens. Sending data in a crisis is naturally of greater interest for research because it is precisely in situations of instability that ensuring connectivity and information exchange can be crucial. But what do we take to be a crisis? According to the authoritative Oxford English Dictionary, a crisis is "a vital or decisive stage in the development of anything", especially characteristic of a period of uncertainty or difficulty [1] and without necessarily having the meaning of a moment of decision. In general, a crisis is a situation inherent in "complex systems" (organizations, economy, society) when the systems are functioning badly and an immediate solution is needed to stop its further disintegration, but the causes of the dysfunction are not immediately identified because they are so many, or unknown, that it is impossible to make a rational, informed decision to reverse the situation [2]. Crises, according to Seeger, Sellnow, and Ulmer [3], have three defining characteristics, which are "specific, unexpected, and non-routine events or series of events that create high levels of uncertainty and threat, or are perceived as such, to the organization's high-priority goals." Thus, the first three characteristics are that the event is - unexpected, creates uncertainty, and is seen as a threat to important goals. Venette [4] argues that "a crisis is a process of transformation in which the old system can no longer be maintained." Therefore, the fourth defining quality is the need for change. This work presents a study and analysis of measurements of the coverage and quality of mobile terrestrial networks in the villages of Bogdan and Slatina, Karlovo municipality during the floods there in September 2022 and on the Ilinden meadows near the village of Gela, Smolyan district during at the council in August 2023. The reasons leading to the deterioration of the signal in the areas of crisis, the prerequisites for its occurrence and the recommendations for solving them were also examined.

2 TRANSFERRING DATA STREAMS IN CRISES

Natural crises are often destructive, such as earthquakes, volcanic eruptions, floods, and cause effective problems in communications, and precisely in situations where they are urgent and extremely necessary. According to the general requirements for the implementation of public electronic communications of the Communications Regulation Commission, enterprises providing public electronic communications networks or services in the Republic of Bulgaria immediately notify the commission of any incident related to security or violation of the integrity of the networks, which has significantly impact on the functioning of networks and services.

Depending on the main reasons for the occurrence of incidents in communications, they are divided into five categories: human error, failures in technical and software security, malicious attacks for physical or logical access to publicly important networks, external causes and natural disasters. The duration of the impact is also important, as in the regulations it is categorized from 1 to 8 hours, and in terms of affected users - from 1,000 to 150,000. Communication in crises also has two main models - disclosure, which is one-way, and the second, with feedback, is two-way. For the mass dissemination of information about the state of people and public infrastructure, radio and television broadcasts are usually used, and in recent years, social networks using wireless or optical Internet connectivity. It is also possible in case of crises to use the local radio nodes to the town halls, as well as local wireless internet networks. Cell phone networks are most often used for two-way communication, but base stations are particularly vulnerable to power problems. Another way is the transmission of short text messages, which are much more economical in terms of bandwidth used and can be delivered even with a partial breakdown in the GSM system. It is also possible to connect to landlines, as well as connect via text or voice over the Internet. Also, in emergency situations, amateur radio stations can be used for two-way communication and transmission of information from the affected areas. In crises, just when connectivity is most needed, problems with securing communications often arise. For example, in severe winter conditions and power outages, base stations may be left without backup power or it may be stolen [5-7].

3 REGULATIONS AND OPPORTUNITIES

There are various solutions at the institutional level that provide connectivity for problems with conventional communication channels. The most popular is the single European emergency number 112, which however requires a working mobile or landline to connect. Another is the BG-Alert system, which is an additional channel to the National Early Warning System or siren system. This is a one-way communication and can be received by devices that support Cell Broadcast technology, which, like the 112 connection, can also be made without a SIM card. Commissioning trials began on November 7, 2023 [8, 9]. A third possibility is through the use of the radio frequency spectrum after the issuance of a permit by the CRC to the municipalities in our country. The frequency ranges are described in 9 appendices to Article 3 of the Rules for the use of the radio frequency spectrum for terrestrial networks, allowing the provision of electronic communication services after the issuance of a permit, issued by CRC and are for nine channels from 700 MHz to 26 GHz [10]. So far, according to CRC data, only 28 out of 265 municipalities have implemented this system. They follow a series of EC decisions from 2008 to 2020 that regulate the bandwidth for terrestrial systems in the provision of electronic communications services in the community.

4 MEASUREMENTS

Indicative of how communications are implemented during a crisis are the data from the coverage and quality measurements of mobile terrestrial networks carried out by CRC experts on September 8, 2022 for the frequency bands 900 MHz, 1800 MHz and 2100 MHz. For different networks, there is a different standard for the minimum signal level to ensure coverage - and the following norms are accepted for lack of coverage - GSM below -100dBm, UMTS below -105dBm, LTE below -110dBm and 5G below -110dBm. For visualization of the measurement routes, color codes are used on the maps - white for no coverage, green for satisfactory coverage, yellow for good coverage and red for very good coverage.

4.1 Flood in Bogdan Village, Karlovo Municipality

The village of Bogdan, Karlovo municipality suffered very seriously from the flood in the summer of 2022, and this caused a lot of media interest in the disaster site, and many volunteers got involved in clearing the area [11]. The results of the telephony measurements of operator "A1" show [12] that when using GSM (2G) technology, the indicators "received signal level", "received signal quality" and call statistics are not good, which indicates in the data from the CRC measurements. For telephony using UMTS technology (3G) with the same operator along

the measurement route, normal parameters were achieved - the average signal measurement level is -94.65 dBm, the quality of the received signal is 3.14 MOS, and we have 100 percent successful calls. Thus in fig. 1 with a color diagram shows the levels of the received signal for telephony when using UMTS (3G) technology along the measurement route. The graphs clearly show that in 3 areas with 7 percent coverage of the route, telephony through the operator's UMTS network was poor.



Figure 1. "A1" measurements for GSM and UMTS

In the measurements for the possibility of using UMTS technology for Internet access also carried out on September 8, the parameters "measured signal level", "average speed during data transfer", "average time for two-way time delay", all measurements show that no no signal is available (N/A). When accessing the Internet via LTE technology on the same route, -105.92 dBm for the level of the received signal, 5115 Kbps average data transfer speed and 47 ms average time for two-way time delay were measured. The measurements also include a map with the route and signal levels for Internet access (fig.2), where in 6 areas, which are 7.1 percent of the route, there is a bad signal.



Figure 2. "A1" measurements for UMTS and LTE

With the operator "Vivacom", the measurements made at the same time show the following results – "level of the received signal", "quality of the received signal" and the statistics for the calls made using GSM technology are N/A (i.e. no available signal) [13]. For telephony using UMTS technology, the following data were measured: - 87.95 dBm for the level of the received signal, 3.82 MOS and 100% successful calls according to the statistics for their implementation. Figure 3 shows a small area of 2.68 percent with poor signal in telephony measurements, which is shaded gray.



Figure 3. "Vivacom" measurements for GSM and UMTS

Internet access through this operator's network using UMTS technology also shows N/A (ie no signal available) for all tracked parameters. The use of LTE technology for Internet access shows the following results in the measurements made: -108.02 dBm for the level of the received signal, 18451 kbps for the average speed of data transfer and 57 ms for the average time for two-way time delay.



Figure 4. "Vivacom" measurements for LTE and UMTS

In the upper Fig.4, the areas that were registered with poor Internet access along the measurement route are indicated, with up to 43 percent using LTE and 2.68% using UMTS technology.

The network of the operator "Yettel" in measurements for telephony using GSM technology show similar results for the level and quality of the received signal, as well as for the first two operators - N/A (i.e. no signal is available) [14]. When using the UMTS technology for telephony, -90.02 dBm for the level of the received signal, 3.60 MOS for its quality were measured and, accordingly, 100 percent completed calls were registered.



Figure 5. "Yettel" measurements for GSM and UMTS

The level of the received signal for Internet access was measured on the same date, September 8, 2022, and when using UMTS technology it was only N/A (i.e. no signal available) and for surfing when using LTE technology were the following parameters were measured: -102.08 dBm for received signal level, 10169 kbps for average data transfer rate and 172 ms for average round-trip delay time. In Fig. 6 below, the route of the measurements can be followed and the areas with a bad signal are marked in gray, which reach up to 20 percent when using the LTE technology.



Figure 6. "Yettel" measurements for UMTS and LTE

4.2 Flood in Slatina Village, Karlovo Municipality

Measurements of the frequency ranges of 900 MHz, 1800 MHz and 2100 MHz. during the disaster caused by the flood in the municipality of Karlovo on September 8, 2022, they were also held in the village of Slatina[15].

The network of the telecommunications operator "A1" for GSM standard telephony and at this measurement point shows results N/A (no signal available) [16]. With the UMTS telephony technology, 83.29 dBm for the level of the received signal, 3.75 MOS for its quality were measured, and accordingly 100 percent of calls were made. When detecting the indicators of Internet access in the area via UMTS in the network of the first operator, the data is again: N/A (ie no signal is available). Access to the worldwide network via LTE technology was also measured with the following parameters: -101.29 dBm for received signal level, 51057 kbps for average data transfer rate and 47 ms for average round-trip delay time. The accompanying graphs (Fig. 7) show minor sectors between 0.4 and 2.4% of bad signal areas along the route of the inspection performed by the experts.



Figure 7. "A1" measurements for UMTS and LTE

Measurements in the network of the telecommunications operator "Vivacom" for GSM standard telephony give the same results for this area caught in the flood - N/A (no signal available) [17]. With the UMTS technology for telephony, -90.18 dBm for the level of the received signal, 3.78 MOS for its quality were measured and, accordingly, there were 100 percent completed calls. UMTS Internet access indicators are again: N/A (no signal available). Access to the network via LTE technology has measured the following parameters as normal: -103.12 dBm for received signal level, 21,832 kbps for average data transfer speed and 33 ms for average round trip time. The graphs of the measurements show only up to 1.5 percent areas with poor telephony signal and lack of measurements in certain parts of the route. When creating a measurement map (fig. 8) for Internet access, up to 19 percent of areas with a bad signal were detected.



Figure 8. "Vivacom" measurements for UMTS and LTE

In the flooded village of Slatina, they also measured the possibilities for calls in the GSM network of the third telecommunications operator "Yettel", and the results for all parameters are the same as for the first two operators - N/A (no signal available) [18]. At the same time, with the UMTS technology for telephony, -83.18 dBm for the level of the received signal, 3.63 MOS for its quality were measured, and accordingly 100 percent of calls were made. Internet access measurements using UMTS give the same results as with the other two licensed operators - N/A (no signal available). Surfing using LTE technology, the following parameters were measured as normal: - 102.69 dBm for the level of the received signal, 7821 kbps for the average speed during data transfer and 35 ms for the average time for two-way time delay. The graphs for the areas in the village of Slatina with this operator show that 1.27% have a poor signal reception for telephony, and about 7.7% for Internet access. (Fig.9)



Figure 9. "Yettel" measurements for UMTS and LTE

4.3 Meeting Near the Village of Gela, Smolyan Region

The gathering of large numbers of people in one place is a prerequisite for the emergence of a crisis, and therefore the measurements of the CRC experts during the meeting near the village of Gela in the Rhodopes provide important information that can be used for subsequent analysis and conclusions [19]. The measurements were carried out during the two days of the event on August 5 and 6 in Ilindenski meadows at

an altitude of 1473 meters. The frequency ranges tested are 900 MHz, 1800 MHz, 2100 MHz, 2600 MHz, 3600 MHz. On August 5, the measurements carried out in the "A1" network for voice transmission for GSM technology show: the level of the received signal is -77.34 dBm; the quality of the received signal is 0.09; calls made are 100%.[20] The data for voice transmission via UMTS are: the received signal level is -80.22 dBm; the quality of the received signal is 1.62; calls made are 100%. During data transfer via UMTS - no signal, via LTE (received signal level: -106.40 dBm, download: 58.35 Mbps, two-way time delay: 61 ms), via 5G - no signal (Fig. 10).



Figure 10. "A1" measurements for 5G

On the same date, during the meeting, the following results were obtained in the network of the operator "Vivacom" for voice transmission via GSM technology: the level of the received signal was -88.38 dBm; the quality of the received signal is 0.19; made calls are 97.66%.[21] The data for voice transmission via UMTS are: the received signal level is -94.60 dBm; the quality of the received signal is 0.8; calls made are 100%. During data transfer via UMTS - no signal (fig.11), via LTE (received signal level: -108.60 dBm, download: 0.904 Mbps, two-way time delay: 141 ms), via 5G - no signal.



Figure 11. "Vivacom" measurements for UMTS

The third operator "Yettel" and the network built by it had the following indicators on the first day of measurement by CRC experts. [22] When transmitting voice via GSM technology: the level of the received signal is -78.05 dBm; the quality of the received signal is 0.16; calls made are 100%. The data for voice transmission via UMTS are: the level of the received signal is -99.01 dBm; the quality of the received signal is 0.47; calls made are 100%. During data transfer via UMTS - no signal, via LTE (received signal level: -103.20 dBm, download: 27.36 Mbps,

two-way time delay: 107 ms), via 5G (received signal level: -104.20 dBm, download: 8.384 Mbps , two-way time delay: 1405 ms) A 19 percent bad signal was detected (see Fig.12).



Figure 12. "Yetell" measurements for 5G

On the second day of measurements, August 6, 2023, the experts determined the following parameters for operator "A1" [23]. When transmitting voice via GSM technology: the level of the received signal is -81.94 dBm; the received signal quality is 0.1; calls made are 100%. The data for voice transmission via UMTS are: the received signal level is -88.05 dBm; the quality of the received signal is 0.41; calls made are 100%. When transferring data via UMTS - no signal, via LTE (received signal level: -106.70 dBm, download: 53.297 Mbps, two-way time delay: 67 ms), via 5G - no signal. With LTE technology, 18 percent of the measured areas show a bad signal (Fig. 13).



Figure 13. "A1" measurements for 4G

The "Vivacom" network shows the following results for voice transmission via GSM technology: the level of the received signal is -78.50 dBm; the quality of the received signal is 0.27; calls made are 100%. [24] The data for voice transmission via UMTS are: the received signal level is -83.25 dBm; the quality of the received signal is 0.81; calls made are 100%. During data transfer via UMTS - no signal, via LTE (received signal level: -99.20 dBm, download: 29.064 Mbps, two-way time delay: 45 ms), via 5G - no signal (Fig. 14).



Figure 14. "Vivacom" measurements for 5G

The third operator "Yettel" gives the following results when measuring its network when transmitting voice via GSM technology: the level of the received signal is -86.04 dBm; the quality of the received signal is 0.27; calls made are 100%. [25] The data for voice transmission via UMTS are: the received signal level is -91.90 dBm; the quality of the received signal is 1.68; calls made are 100%. During data transfer via UMTS - no signal, via LTE (received signal level: -102.20 dBm, download: 6.067 Mbps, two-way time delay: 51 ms), via 5G (received signal level: -105.20 dBm, download: 179.861 Mbps , round-trip time delay: 1405 ms). 37 percent of the measured areas have a degraded 4G signal (Fig. 15)



Figure 15. "Yettel" measurements for 4G

5 ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The comparison between the measurements in the flooded villages of Bogdan and Slatina, as well as during the assembly near the village of Gela, gives us the opportunity to analyze the provision of communications in crises caused by natural disasters or mass events, where there is a gathering of large groups of people using mobile communications. It is also appropriate to identify certain measures for their improvement.

In the first settlement there are significantly more areas with a bad GSM signal, and the difference with the second flooded village is that the larger number of volunteers and the higher media interest, i.e. this leads to more intensive communication and load on the base stations far beyond their planned throughput. Experts explain the deteriorating signal for telephony and mobile internet (LTE) also with the fact that in recent times TV teams carry out their live broadcasts using mobile networks, due to the significantly lower costs of the technology, where a dedicated

transmission channel is provided for example through using a satellite connection. Also, the base stations get the extra load due to the increased number of calls from the volunteers who come to help with the cleanup, as well as from other people in the area. Thus, during a crisis, the absurd situation can be reached, in which, in the desire to help in real terms, including and by publicizing the extent of the disaster to prevent business communications or specific communications being prioritized at these times.

The analysis of the data collected during the measurements near the village of Gela during the assembly held at the beginning of August 2023, proves that when large masses of people gather in one place, communications cannot provide the necessary connectivity, and with the available prerequisites for a crisis is created risk of not being able to provide a reliable connection to emergency services or other necessary response in the event of a problem.

On the first day of the assembly in the village of Gela, which was more visited, there was no GSM connection and 5G connectivity, and on the second day, when there were fewer people at the event, problems were registered only with the fifth generation mobile Internet.

In view of the extraordinary load in crises where the popular channels for the distribution of voice and data via GSM, UMTS, 4G and/or 5G technologies need potential communication capabilities far in excess of the planned ones, which on the other hand is not justified from the point of view commercial goals and the economic interest of companies, it is necessary to ensure reliable channels for the transmission of information. The conclusions from the data presented so far give reason to make a justified recommendation to actively develop and implement alternative channels for connecting in crises of a different nature, and the recommendations are to develop the use of the radio frequency spectrum for the construction of local terrestrial networks for the needs of municipalities in a republic Bulgaria, allowing the provision of electronic communication services after the issuance of a permit by the CRC, to be used by voluntary or departmental formations to respond to crises or other emergency situations in the respective municipality. Building a single center for coordination between them can also be suggested as a recommendation. This will ensure a secure, easy to maintain and relatively cheap to build communication system throughout the country. The construction of local area networks in municipalities can also replace local emergency notification systems, using connectivity through the social networks of affected communities. Also as an alternative to connectivity in areas with suitable topography, connections can be made using amateur radio stations. In emergency situations and lack of other options, transmission of the necessary data and messages through the established networks of radio amateurs in the country can also be used.

6 CONCLUSION

The analysis and conclusions made presuppose the need to deepen the studies on the topic, as well as the expansion of the scope of observations. Given that the topic is related to crisis situations or potential ones, it is also imperative to define adequate general and specific measures for their resolution.

References

- [1] Oxford English Dictionary, 1893, s.v. "crisis", https://www.oed.com/dictionary/crisis_n.
- [2] J. Bundy, M. D. Pfarrer, C. E. Short, and W. T. Coombs, "Crises and crisis management," Integration, Interpretation, and Research Development Journal of Management, vol. 43, no. 6, pp. 1661–1692, 2017, doi:10.1177/0149206316680030. S2CID 152223772.
- [3] M. W. Seeger, T. L. Sellnow, and R. R. Ulmer, "Communication, organization, and crisis," Communication Yearbook, vol. 21, pp. 231–275. doi:10.1080/23808985.1998.11678952.
- [4] S. J. Venette, "Risk communication in a high reliability organization: APHIS PPQ's inclusion of risk in decision making," Ann Arbor, MI: UMI Proquest Information and Learning, 2003.
- [5] Dnes.bg, "650 liters of diesel fuel were stolen from a station of a mobile operator," 2014, available on: https://www.dnes.bg/index/2014/04/29/otkradnati-sa-650-l-dizelovo-gorivo-ot-stanciia-na-mobilenoperator.223941,%7Bpagenum%7D.
- [6] Kozloduy-bg.info, "A thief smashed and stole the batteries from a cell of a mobile operator", 2021, available on: https://kozloduy-bg.info/119378/kradets-razbi-i-otkradna-akumulatorite-ot-kletka-na-mobilenoperator/.
- [7] Ekip7.bg, "Thieves pour oil from cell phones of mobile operators," 2011, available on: https://archive.ekip7.bg/index.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=7209&Itemid=41.
- [8] Fakti.bg, "What should we know about the BG-Alert system?," 2023, available on: https://fakti.bg/mnenia/830972-kakvo-trabva-da-znaem-za-sistemata-bg-alert-glaven-komisar-aleksandar-djartov-pred-fakti.

- [9] Ministry of the Interior, Planned testing of the BG-ALERT system begins, 2023, available on: https://mvr.bg/press/%D0%B0%D0%BA%D1%82%D1%83%D0%B0%D0%BB%D0%BD%D0%B0%D0%B0%D0%B8%D0%BD%D1%84%D0%BE%D1%80%D0%BC%D0%B0%D0%B0%D0%B8%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B0%D0%B6%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B6%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B6%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B8%D0%B0%D0%B6%D0%B8%D0%B6%D0%D
- [10] Rules for the use of the radio frequency spectrum for terrestrial networks, allowing the provision of electronic communication services after the issuance of a permit, Communications Regulation Commission, SG No. No. 95 of November 16, 2021, https://crc.bg/files/Pravna/PRAVILA_nazemni_mreji sled notif.pdf.
- [11] Bulgarian National Television, Village of Bogdan cut off from the world due to floods, people evacuate, 2022, available on: https://bntnews.bg/news/selo-bogdan-e-otkasnato-ot-sveta-zaradi-navodneniyata-eva kuirat-hora-1206334news.html.
- [12] Main Directorate "Monitoring and control of messages", "Measuring protocol of measurement of coverage and quality of mobile terrestrial networks No. Π-MC-0402/08.09.2022", Communications Regulation Commission, Sofia, September 2022.
- [13] Main Directorate "Monitoring and control of messages", "Measuring protocol of measurement of coverage and quality of mobile terrestrial networks No. Π-MC-0403/08.09.2022", Communications Regulation Commission, Sofia, September 2022.
- [14] Main Directorate "Monitoring and control of communications", "Measuring protocol for measurement of coverage and quality of mobile terrestrial networks No. П-MC-0401/08.09.2022", Communications Regulation Commission, Sofia, September 2022.
- [15] Bulgarian National Television, Karlovo village of Slatina is one of those in distress after the flood, 2022, available on: https://bntnews.bg/news/karlovskoto-selo-slatina-e-edno-ot-bedstvashtite-sled-navodnenieto -1206439news.html.
- [16] Main Directorate "Monitoring and Control of Communications", "Measurement Protocol for Measuring Coverage and Quality of Mobile Land Networks No. П-MC-0409/08.09.2022", Communications Regulation Commission, Sofia, September 2022.
- [17] Main Directorate "Monitoring and control of messages", "Measuring protocol for measurement of coverage and quality of mobile terrestrial networks No. Π-MC-0408/08.09.2022", Communications Regulation Commission, Sofia, September 2022.
- [18] Main Directorate "Monitoring and control of communications", "Measuring protocol for measurement of coverage and quality of mobile terrestrial networks No. П-MC-0407/08.09.2022", Communications Regulation Commission, Sofia, September 2022.
- [19] Shirokalaka.net, Bagpipe playing and assembly in Gela 2023, 2023, available on: https://shirokalaka.net/gaidarsko-nadsvirvane-i-sabor-gela-2023/.
- [20] Main Directorate "Monitoring and control of messages", "Measuring protocol of measurement of coverage and quality of mobile land networks No. C-MS-1103/05.08.2023", Communications Regulation Commission, Sofia, August 2023.
- [21] Main Directorate "Monitoring and control of messages", "Measuring protocol for measurement of coverage and quality of mobile terrestrial networks No. C-MS-1102/05.08.2023", Communications Regulation Commission, Sofia, August 2023.
- [22] Main Directorate "Monitoring and control of messages", "Measuring protocol of measurement of coverage and quality of mobile terrestrial networks No. C-MS-1101/05.08.2023", Communications Regulation Commission, Sofia, August 2023.
- [23] Main Directorate "Monitoring and control of messages", "Measuring protocol of measurement of coverage and quality of mobile terrestrial networks No. C-MS-1112/06.08.2023", Communications Regulation Commission, Sofia, August 2023.
- [24] Main Directorate "Monitoring and control of messages", "Measuring protocol of measurement of coverage and quality of mobile terrestrial networks No. C-MS-1111/06.08.2023", Communications Regulation Commission, Sofia, August 2023.
- [25] Main Directorate "Monitoring and control of messages", "Measuring protocol of measurement of coverage and quality of mobile terrestrial networks No. C-MS-1110/06.08.2023", Communications Regulation Commission, Sofia, August 2023.



Challenges and Solutions for Resilient Transport in the Era of New Environmental Requirements

Antoaneta Kirova^{*1}

¹College of Management, Trade and Marketing, Department of Management and Entrepreneurship, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

According to the research of ITF, one of the big challenges for the environment is that the transportation sector is responsible for approximately 23% of energy-related CO2 emissions, which are expected to increase to 40% by 2030 and to 60% by 2050. This negative tendency requires for multimodal freight transport models in international economic relations, represented by land mode of transport (road and rail), inland waterways, short-sea shipping, and even airborne transport at short distances, while domestic transport policy should stimulate non-road transportation solutions. Usually, logistics providers offer logistics solutions, combining several modes, led by stakeholders' expectations for reduced time and costs of transferring of goods, reliability, and frequency of services. The difficulties arise from the already existing share distribution between the different modes of transport, due to political, economic, and technological issues. The biggest challenge is to design a resilient transport network, where the users can easily switch between transport modes in real time.

Keywords: Combined transport, "Green" international logistics, Transport policy, Strategic analysis



Individual Time in the Context of Artificial Intelligence

Liubov Ilieva^{*1}

¹University of Telecommunications and Post, Sofia, 1 Acad. St. Mladenov Str, Sofia 1700, Bulgaria

Abstract

In this work we analyse the problem of the formation of perceptual time in order to answer the question, if AI could have inner time. For this purpose, the process of signal perception is studied including an emotional response related to determining the significance of the information, characterized by a sense of one's own time. As we take into account that cybernetic approach to data processing doesn't consider the signal significance we justify the necessity the necessity to mean one additional channel to proceed the incoming data. This channel determinate data pragmatic value. A quantitative method is proposed for this evaluation by means of a scalar quantity, interpretable as an emotional amplitude, that is the basis of the formation of individual time. This gives grounds for defining a new criterion for comparing human mental activity with the capabilities and specificity of AI.

Keywords: Perception, Memory, Emotion, Artificial intelligence, Individual time

1 INTRODUCTION

The discussions about the place and possibilities of artificial intelligence (AI) have been ongoing for a long time, and they tend to intensify with each new breakthrough in the field. The emergence of AI and cybernetics has sparked debates that go beyond scientific arguments, often delving into ethical, social, and even existential considerations. We are in a similar ascending peak now, as a result of the literally daily achievements flooding us on the basis of constructed artificial neural networks in the field of recognition, entering new and new spheres of life, of human activity [1]. The new situation requires revision of the understanding of the goals and capabilities of AI based on a more detailed analysis of the specifics of human recognition and comparison with AI algorithms. The aim of the present work is to analyze one of the specific features of the human recognition process - the formation of perceptual time and connected with it individual characteristics of the recipient of data such as motivation, needs and requirements, desires and opportunities, manifested through the emotional saturation of the recognition experiences with a duration estimate. This connection is very important for our purpose - to describe such a personal subjective element as man's construction of the world with all the one's experience, thoughts and feelings. On this basis, it is possible to determine to what extent the specific characteristics of human cognition are inherent in AI and to mark the methods for its development. This is relevant because so far it is not sufficiently realizes that it is pragmatics that transforms data into information, which in human perception also manifests itself through emotional reaction [2-8]. Considering the importance of data in algorithms of AI [9] requires expanding the methodical approach and grouping the processing schemes around a core determining the value of inputs based on an assessment of how they affect the achievement of one's own goals [10-12]. Because of that in the present work we will analyze how data is evaluated in the course of human perception, how own time is formed and the way it can be integrated into AI.

2 RESULTS

2.1 Sense of Time

One of the first results of the phenomenological philosophy that analyzed human as a source of knowledge was identifying the influence of the subjective sense of time, which differs from physical time. In Bergson's philosophy, a person's experience of duration has become the organizing factor that determines the subject's life processes. According to Schachter and Gross not physical, but individual time, also designated as perceptual time, the psychological time of the individual, recorded by internal feelings, affects the content of memory, perception and biological processes [13]. Wittmann and Wassenhove point that personal time "is not 'isomorphic' to physical time and many factors including attention, memory, arousal and emotional states are all potential modulators of time perception [14]. One can recognize this personal time as something manifested through the perception and assessment of duration [1].

2.2 Cybernetic Approach

Individual time is redundant in the cybernetic approach to signal recognition because the result is identified in the concept of physical time. This approach emphasizes the study of the information that is necessary to decipher the signal, the complete transmission of the message, while the effect of its pragmatic value is not considered. See Figure 1 to have an idea of simplified illustration of this model.

The signal received by the organ of perception (in this case vision) is transmitted to a neural network, that processes the data and produces a result - in this case the word "tree". The external signals come continuously as a stream and the result of the processing has continuous character. The scientific researches show that human perception doesn't work exactly that way. In the scheme, discussed above, different "objects" (each leaf, part of it, group of twigs, etc.) could be identified as units in the incoming signal. The human income is that an artificial neural network is constructed to recognize a particular "tree" as a tree. Through this activity, a pragmatics is implicitly introduced into "correct recognition". If we try to set a complete recognition task, no matter how powerful the capacity of the processing organ is, it will quickly become overloaded. The cybernetic model does not take into account that the purpose of perception is not only to form an image of an object. Perception basic task is to evaluate the need of reaction to the received information, which depends on its significance and the possibilities for action. It means that defining the outlook for the development of AI must begin with the question - what potential targets and responses it can form. A set of possible objects of AI perception should be formed as a function of these possible objects.



Figure 1. Linear cybernetic signal processing

2.3 Two Information Channels

According to the scientific researches, once there is the information channel described above where the input data is processed and the result is consciously perceived image of an object, in the course of the human perception process, another information channel is formed related to the same input data. This channel does not determine the specific object associated with the signal, but determines the degree of significance of the received message, that is accomplished by determining the availability of a significant characteristic associated with it. In the neural network should be the set of embedded features by the involvement of which the signal is tested. In this case, the set of features plays the role of the AI memory. Genetic memory is the principle part of the AI memory, where the results of the experience are accumulated through the connection - signal - significant characteristic, connected with needs and motivation, a certain type of purposeful action, with a specific reaction of the signal recipient.

An important element of human memory is a scalar quantity indicating the degree of importance of each of the features in it. As this process is automatic, it remains unconscious; we fill its result indirectly. In particular, the degree of significance is experienced as an emotional feeling on the pleasant-unpleasant scale, activates the autonomic nervous system [15], affects the endocrine and neurohumoral systems by changing the mode of operation of neural circuits. Neurobiological studies have shown that upon admission the signal to the projection cortex, a circular movement of impulses is formed with the activation of memory centers [16]. Like this this mechanism provides the ability to compare and synthesize information about physical properties and information about its significance, which is implemented 100 - 150 ms after the arrival of input data. Schematically, the considered process of signal significance processing and the synthesis of the two channels is illustrated in Figure 2. The input data, shown by the picture on the left side of the figure, contains information about multiple objects. The signal from them is transmitted to two channels, depicted by arrows. One of them, indicated by a dotted line, holds the input signal until its significance is determined, and the second, denoted by a semicircle, defines the characteristics of the signal related to its pragmatic value. The dominant characteristic, depending on the current needs, can be love or hunger, which activates a certain emotional state associated with the signal. (For more in detail about connection between the perception and emotion: see Ref. [17]). The processing data from this channel is synthesized with the input signal on the other channel, with the first element being a decision as to whether the signal processing process should continue or not. In the Figure 2, this is conventionally indicated by a barrier. If the signal is determined not to be significant, through the small amplitude of the emotional memory associated with the feature, the "barrier" is lowered and processing of the signal is terminated. If the signal leads to a large amplitude of emotion, the "barrier" is raised and it continues processing. Depending on the dominant feature and associated emotion, at subsequent stages of processing the signal may be recognized differently as an object, for example, in this case, as "daughter" or "roasted chicken." If, on the other hand, a danger is noticed during the determination of the signal characteristics, a reaction can occur even before the synthesis of the two information channels and before the danger is fully identified as an object, in the case of a "bandit". The information channel allows the individual to quickly respond to such information (and run away, for example).



Figure 2. Illustration of the two information channels of data processing

2.4 Emotional Magnitudes

Signal processing at this stage, namely selection according to a set of characteristics, is much faster and more economical than detailed recognition of data as an object. Characteristics of the perceived object and associated to it emotional magnitudes are dynamic, the perceived benefits of signal processing at subsequent levels through feedback change them. In this way, successful evolutionary adaptation is also ensured, as the act of selective recognition is enhanced [18]. An emotional response related to determining the significance of the message, characterized by a sense of one's own time, an internal experience of duration. This time is not the physical time of objects, it is not based on their spatial characteristics and their dynamics, i.e. it is to a certain extent autonomous in relation to four-dimensional space. On the one hand, a person's internal sense of time is associated with changes in the characteristics of incoming data, and with changes in emotional intensity. It, however, correlates with the presence of goals, motives and needs. On the other hand, however, it correlates with the goals, motives and needs, as the center of the sense of temporality basis, of one's own Self [15]. So, if the signal is emotional or new one, the two information channels transmit their data to determine the object. This takes place on two interdependent levels. Initially, the signal is filtered at the level of available memory. It is a memory for objects perceived in the past (not signal characteristics).

At this stage, the significance of the message is already consciously specified and the subject creates imaginary scenarios of possible changes may result from knowledge of the information of incoming data. So, the subject tries to determine the best strategy for his behavior in order to reach his goals. The intense of inner time is changed as e new component of self-awareness. An analysis of the two-channel model of message processing shows that human intellectual processes are inseparable from individual information-related pragmatics. It manifests itself in terms of two different classifications of signals – features and objects. Each object or feature is associated with a possible action to achieve a desired goal. The significance of what is communicated on both processing channels is expressed by a quantity that we interpret as emotional saturation. It guides all stages of signal processing, and its dynamics are the basis of the formation of individual time and the related sense of individuality, of the Self. This gives grounds for defining a new criterion for comparing human mental activity with the capabilities and specificity of AI.

3 CONCLUSION

The Turing test to check whether an AI has intelligence in the human sense of the word should be replaced by a test of having its own time.AI is currently capable of solving a large set of recognition tasks using memory - of features, of objects, even can construct imaginary reaction scenarios. With each of these processes, with each possible object or characteristic, a quantity can be associated, which can be interpreted as a significance [10] and called an emotion. AI successfully analyzes imaginary scenarios. In Reinforcement Learning programs (e.g., the AlphaGo program) the reward when approaching the goal is a measure of significance and therefore relevant to the increase in emotional support. All these elements can be combined into a single structure that forms responses to the recognized signal. The intensity of network activity and response may be related to the manifestation of emotional magnitudes. However, this is not enough for the formation of proper time, that can be possible when AI starts to change the set of possible features and objects based on the experience of the reactions. This will be self-education, which will form its own "world", based on the construction of objects, characteristics (in which, in a

hidden form, the formation of its own goals is also embedded). If there is an element of randomness (mutation) in behavior (such as a sequence of reactions or processing), there are Fuzzy Sets, then individuality will gradually form in AI and the related own time and individual significance of messages. The future will show whether the development of AI will continue in this direction and what will be the result of this.

References

- [1] P. Fraisse, "Perception and estimation of time," Ann. Rev. Psychol., vol. 35, pp. 1–37, 1984.
- [2] U. Neisser, Cognitive Psychology, Appleton-Century-Crofts New York, 1967.
- [3] C. E. Izard, "Four systems for emotion activation: cognitive and noncognitive processes," Psychol. Rev., vol. 100. no. 1, pp. 69–90, 1993.
- [4] M. B. Arnold, Emotion and Personality. V. I. Psychological aspects. V. 2. Neurological and physiological aspects, New York, 1960.
- [5] R. W. Lazarus, J. R. Averill, and M. E. Orton, "Towards a cognitive theory of emotion," In. M. Arnold (ed.) Third International Symposium on Feeling and Emotions. New York, Acad. Press, pp. 207-232, 1970.
- [6] A. Ortony, Y. Clore, and A. Collins, The cognitive structure of emotions, Cambridge, 1988.
- [7] S. Schachter, "The interaction of cognitive and physiological determinants of emotional state," Advances in Experimental Social Psychology, vol. 1, pp. 49-80, 1964.
- [8] L. Ilieva and S. Iliev, "Emotions from the point of view of the pragmatic theory of information and communication," Highly Available Systems/ Sistemy Vysokoy Dostupnosti, vol. 18, no. 3, pp. 45–58. 2022.
- [9] S. Haykin, Neural networks and learning machines, Pearson Education, Upper Saddle River, NJ, Third edition, 2009.
- [10] H. Haken, Information and Self-organization. A Macroscopic Approach to Complex Systems, 3rd enlarged edition, Springer, Berlin, 2006.
- [11] H. Haken and M. Haken-Krell, Erfolgsgeheimnisse der Wahrnehmung: Synergetik als Schlüssel zum Gehirn, Published by Stuttgart, 1992.
- [12] L. Ilieva, and S. Iliev, "About some characteristics of the qualitative theory of the information and communication," Management and education, vol. VII (3), pp. 227–231, 2011.
- [13] S. Schachter and L. P. Gross, "Manipulated time and eating behavior," Soc. Psychol., vol. 10, pp. 98–106, 1968.
- [14] M. Wittmann and V. van Wassenhove, "The experience of time: neural mechanisms and the interplay of emotion, cognition and embodiment," Phil. Trans. R. Soc. B, vol. 364, pp. 1809–1813, 2009.
- [15] A. Damasio, The feeling of what happens. Body and emotion in the making of consciousness, San Diego-N.Y.-L.: A Harvest Book, 1999.
- [16] A.M. Ivanitsky, "Brain science on the way to solving the problem of consciousness," Herald of the Russian Academy of Sciences, vol. 80, no. 5–6, pp. 447–455, 2010.
- [17] L. Ilieva, "An emotion as a personal meaning of information," In Sixth International Scientific Conference in Telecommunications, Informatics, Energy and Management. (TIEM), pp. 14–17, 2021.
- [18] G. M. Edelman and V. B. Mountcastle, The mindful brain: Cortical organization and the group-selective theory of higher brain function, Massachusetts Inst. of Technology Pr., Massachusetts, and London, 1978.



Evaluating the Machine Learning Techniques for Classification of Rice Variety

Fatime Nur Khalili^{*1}

¹University of Tizi Ouzou, Department of Computer Science, Tizi Ouzou, Algeria

Abstract

Machine learning (ML) have been obtaining much interest due to their developments. With the recent faster ML algorithms, the classification task can be handled in an efficient manner. Such classification process includes a sufficient a number of images to be trained and tested. Rice is one of the significant products in human life and a lot of attempts have focused on its classification to provide better and effective production process. The direction of this study is to examine state-of-the-art ML-based approaches and underline the advantages. A conclusion is provided along with a future potential research direction.

Keywords: Machine learning, Classification, Rice



Image Segmentation of Satellite Imagery with U-Net Convolutional Neural Network for Floods Detection

Denis Byalev^{*1}, Egnar Ozdikililer²

¹University of Telecommunications and Post, Sofia, Bulgaria ²Istanbul Technical University, Faculty of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Within the scope of this study is presented a potential in using U-Net CNN (Convolutional Neural Network) for image segmentation in disaster management. The usage of image segmentation with combination of detailed spectral imagery could potentially be used for monitoring and analysis of flooded areas and could show to have potential in other further processing as for example change detection. The scope of this paper is to provide example of image segmentation of satellite imagery Airbus Pléiades with U-Net CNN and the resulting segmented result that could potentially be used in area of interest change detection.

Keywords: Remote sensing, U-Net, Convolutional neural network, Satellite imagery

1 INTRODUCTION

The usage of high-resolution spectral satellite images increased for many purposes including: agricultural, disaster management, military and more. With the increase in resolution of satellite imagery the side effect of increasing data size and time for computation has increased proportionally. Convolutional Neural Network could potentially solve the issue of increasing raw computation as they are faster in generating result in extraction of areas of interest that the conventional algorithms, like for example NDVI (Normalized difference vegetation index) or NDWI (Normalized Difference Water Index), after initial training of the CNN. The use if U-net CNN is useful in training the neural network faster as it increases the training speed providing weights from previous layers and giving the forward layers context information. As a result of using high-resolution spectral images from Airbus Pléiades the given product is segmented image with highlighted areas indicating water bodies. This result could be used in further processing with change detection to filter permanent water bodies as rivers and lakes to give clearer picture of newly formed water bodies that could potentially indicate flooded areas.

2 AREA OF STUDY

The area of study is Gölbaşı, Adıyaman Turkey, after the earthquake on 6 February 2023. The area has flooded territory bordering a permanent water body The Gölbaşı Lake. The bordering water body is perfect obstacle for image segmentation and localization of flooded areas near the lake.



Figure 1. View of Gölbaşı lake. Image source: Aurbus Pléiades on 12 February 2023

3 DATA

The data used in this paper is Airbus Pléiades with high-resolution multispectral imagery, satellites images which are acquired by ITU Implementation and Research Center for Satellite Communications and Remote Sensing (ITU – UHUZAM/CSCRS)[1]. The satellite image provides resolution of 50x50cm per pixel. The image data is collected on 12 February 2023 roughly one week after the earthquake. The spectral images contain 4 bands of data including red (600-720 nm), green (490-610 nm), blue (430-550 nm) and near infrared (750-950 nm). Given that the raw data is being further processed for preparation of training and validation of U-Net CNN. The data is first split in 2 sets of data, training and test sets. For increase of the training set the training data set is randomly transformed with operations flip and rotation to increase the training set and to prevent the data of overfitting during training. The validation data is prepared with automation and by hand. The automatic process of preparing validation data is being derived from NDWI [2] shown in formula (1) and further process and cleared by hand.

NDWI =	(Xgreen – Xnir) (Kanaan + Varia)	(1)
	(Xgreen + Xnir)	()

4 METHOD

The used methods of preparation of the U-Net CNN was to split the image in sectors of 128x128 pixels to train the neural network for increase image sample and reduce load on the processing hardware [3]. The images could be increased in size depending on available hardware. The basis of the U-Net CNN [4] architecture is feeding copying data from previous layers and cropping the data to reduce the training speed and increase relative context data. In Figure 2 is presented the architecture of the neural network. Main problem with training the CNN was to prepare balance dataset for training. Given the nature of remote sensing data many of the resulting cropped sectors were discarded as the ratio of lant mass to water bodies was close to 95% of the total image size.

Metric	Score
Accuracy	0.9995
Precision	0.9982
Recall	0.9989
F1 Score	0.9986

Table 1. Evaluation metrics from best trained model of U-Net CNN

Image segmentation of satellite imagery with U-Net convolutional neural network for floods detection

The used dataset for training was selected to contain four to one ratio of mand mass to water bodies [5]. This selection prevented the neural network from overfitting on similar data. In are presented evaluation metrics from the best iteration of the trained model. The results from the image segmentation are 2 classes separated as land mass and water body. The confusion matrix for the two classes is shown it Table 2. Potentially this method could be further improved with implementation of unsupervised learning method as oppose to supervised learning as the latter requires validation data and could potentially be limited to a specific geographic region. Giving the high evaluation results it is safe to assume its related to the fact that the data is strongly grouped on small geographic area. Assumed that fact it is possible the evaluation metrics might drop if the provided training data contains more largely separated geographic areas. This prediction model falls short on several problematic areas. With images containing heavy cloud coverage it is impossible to extract meaningful information based on the input data. As the model depends only on multispectral optical imagery dense cloud cover would obscure the sensors. This will prevent the model from finding any water located under the cloud cover. Given this it is also known challenge analysing areas with dense vegetation as for example dense forests. The dense vegetation could cover areas with floods and prevent the CNN from segmenting the area as the model would assume the area of interest is land mass. Further experimentation with different geographical areas of interest is needed for concluding better solutions for previously stated problems.



Figure 2. U-Net CNN architecture image [2]

Table 2. Confusion Matrix from best trained model of U-Net CNN				
	Predicted land mass	Predicted water body		
Actual Land mass	23400469	6064		
Actual water body	6736	5127659		

5 RESULTS

Resulting segmented images show area with containing water. Shown in Figure 3 and Figure 4 is the resulting segmentation and indicated land mass and water bodies. Excluding the training cost of the CNN the time to perform computation on the full raster is greater than applying several costly operation to extract the same data with conventonal methots.

Image segmentation of satellite imagery with U-Net convolutional neural network for floods detection



Figure 3. Flooded area as base layer



Figure 4. Flooded area with overlaped result of image segmentation.

6 CONCLUSION

Given the high performance and high accuracy of the trained U-Net CNN it shows great potential in use of preparing data for further processing. The results of this paper provide great base for analysing floods and other disasters with algorithms such as change detection. Change detection algorithm could extract the water bodies areas and intersect previous and following image to detect increasing or decreasing areas of water bodies which could be used to alert experts to review the data provided from the system. Other types of improvements on the current design of the system could include image segmentation of several segments. This could potentially decrease the false positive results of change detection in areas with increased water bodies from rain. This paper shows the potential in further developing system for disaster management and analysis with CNN and specifically U-Net type architecture to decrease training times and required data as well as the time for preparation of validation datasets. Further increase in accuracy and full data picture would be addition of other data information about the geographical location as for example DEM [6] or additions of SAR data. The resulting approach falls short on resolving the problem with cloud coverage as it is reliant mainly on spectral imagery and it is hardly applicable on areas with heavy forest as the vegetation of the dense forestry would obscure the information of floods in the area. Because of this it is safe to assume that for the specific problems of heavy cloud coverage or areas with dense vegetation another approach may be more viable and could provide better results. Implementation of U-Net++ [7] is also considered in further research in finding optimal architecture for image segmentation

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

We would like to thanks ITU Implementation and Research Center for Satellite Communications and Remote Sensing were provided the satellite images used in this for the purpose of supporting scientific research.

Image segmentation of satellite imagery with U-Net convolutional neural network for floods detection

References

- [1] ITU-UHUZAM Implementation and Research Center for Satellite Communications and Remote Sensing, www.cscrs.itu.edu.tr.
- [2] P. Qin, Y. Cai, and X. Wang, "Small waterbody extraction with improved U-Net using Zhuhai-1 hyperspectral remote sensing images," IEEE Geoscience and Remote Sensing Letters, vol. 19, pp. 1–5, 2021.
- [3] Z. Chen et al., "Reconstruction bias U-Net for road extraction from optical remote sensing images," IEEE Journal of Selected Topics in Applied Earth Observations and Remote Sensing, vol. 14, pp. 2284–2294, 2021.
- [4] O. Ronneberger, P. Fischer, and T. Brox, "U-Net: Convolutional networks for biomedical image segmentation," Medical Image Computing and Computer-Assisted Intervention–MICCAI 2015: 18th International Conference, Munich, Germany, October 5-9, 2015, Proceedings, Part III 18. Springer International Publishing, 2015.
- [5] P. Shamsolmoali et al., "A novel deep structure U-Net for sea-land segmentation in remote sensing images," IEEE Journal of Selected Topics in Applied Earth Observations and Remote Sensing, vol. 12, no. 9, pp. 3219–3232, 2019.
- [6] H. Wang, L. Zhang, K. Yin, H. Luo, and J. Li, "Landslide identification using machine learning," Geoscience Frontiers, vol. 02, no. 1, pp. 351–364, 2021, doi: 10.1016/j.gsf.2020.02.012.
- [7] Z. Zhou et al., "Unet++: A nested u-net architecture for medical image segmentation," Deep Learning in Medical Image Analysis and Multimodal Learning for Clinical Decision Support: 4th International Workshop, DLMIA 2018, and 8th International Workshop, ML-CDS 2018, Held in Conjunction with MICCAI 2018, Granada, Spain, September 20, 2018, Proceedings 4. Springer International Publishing, 2018.



Short Overview of Software Architectural Models

Chavdar Marinov^{*1}, Egnar Ozdikililer², Pavlinka Radoyska¹

¹University of Telecommunications and Post, Department of Information Technologies, Sofia, Bulgaria ²Istanbul Technical University, Faculty of Aeronautics and Astronautics, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

The architecture of microservices in the development of software applications is one of the most current methods of creating software that reflects the development of hardware, communication technologies and challenges of today. The main trends related to increasing reusability, scalability, reliability and high performance of software applications are fully reflected in the architecture of microservices. This article analyses the main architectural models for software development. The main characteristics of Structural, Object-Oriented, Client-Server, Component-Based architectural models, Service-Oriented Architecture (SOA) and Microservice Architecture (MSA) are discussed. The main principles of building microservices are covered. Some architectural patterns for microservice design are shortly presented.

Keywords: Software architecture, Microservices

1 INTRODUCTION

Software application development follows a certain architectural model. The purpose of this article is to analyze the architectural models for software development - monolithic and distributed, with a focus on Microservice Architecture.

Architectural programming models can be mainly divided into monolithic and distributed. Structural, Objectoriented and Client-Server styles fall into monolithic architectures. Component-based architectures, serviceoriented architectures, and microservices architectures belong to the distributed software architecture model [1].

The structural architecture model can be considered the oldest model for creating software applications [2]. Its key characteristics are as follows:

- 1. Top-down design [3]. The main problem is broken down into smaller problems, which in turn are broken down into even smaller ones, until the tasks are small enough and can be easily addressed using basic programming constructs.
- 2. Usage of Modules. The most basic building units are modules, which are relatively self-contained pieces of code with a single input and, in most cases, a single output. Only emergency outputs can be allowed as additional ones. Modules allow:
 - a. Code reusability;
 - b. Different developers to work on specific modules (thanks to the module's relative independence from the rest of the code);
 - c. Improves the readability of the code and makes it easier to debug.
 - d. Allows easier expandability of the code.

Object-oriented architecture is an upgrade of the structural model [4]. Modules are now objects with a much more complex anatomy. Its main characteristics are:

- 1. Granularity becomes coarser. The main building block are the objects which aim to reflect the real world as much as possible. They combine data and the code to process it. The level of abstraction is increased.
- 2. Thanks to inheritance, a higher degree of reusability is achieved.
- 3. Transmission of messages. Objects communicate with each other through messages.
- 4. Delayed connection. The selection of an appropriate method is deferred until runtime, resulting in great code flexibility.

5. Relative independence between objects, allowing multiple developers to work together. However, due to inheritance, this independence is limited and it is recommended to use low depth inheritance and without multiple inheritance.

The client-server architectural model is a result of the development of the Internet [5]. This is the first architecture with elements of a distributed model. In this model, the business logic and data are centralized on the server. The client is responsible for sending requests to the server and presenting the results to the user. Main characteristics:

- 1. Communication over the network is carried out based on the communication protocols from the TCP/IP protocol stack.
- 2. This model allows resource sharing. Resources are centralized on the server and can be used by multiple clients.
- 3. The principle of operation is request-response. The client sends a request that is processed by the server and the server returns a response that is interpreted by the client.
- 4. Processing is decentralized. The server is responsible for data storage, data processing and business logic. The client is responsible for the interface and the primary processing of the data, such as its verification.
- 5. This model allows for easy scalability. Multiple users can easily be added without significantly impacting the server's performance.
- 6. Increase the software's power without it affecting the user hardware requirements. The main powerful calculations are performed on the server machine that satisfies the relevant hardware requirements. The client machine only interprets the results.
- 7. Platform independence. Client applications are developed independently of the server side. This way they can be designed for machines with different operating systems and hardware platform.
- 8. Sharing of Resources. Different clients can update the database and the results of this can be used by other clients.
- 9. Centralized data management. The server is responsible for the storage, consistency and integrity of the data.
- 10. Reliability and fault tolerance are increased. The organization of the server's work provides for regular backups and spare hardware that can promptly take over the work of a failed hardware component.
- 11. Security is both the bottleneck and a major focus in the operation of this architecture. As data is transferred over a public transport medium, there is an emphasis on authorization and encryption.
- 12. This architecture enables high performance. The server part can run on multiple machines for load balancing between them to ensure high performance.

Component-based architecture marks the next stage in the development of software architectures [6, 7]. A software system is built using relatively independent software components that are reusable. Components communicate with each other through well-defined interfaces. The main characteristics of this architectural model are expressed in the following:

- 1. Modularity and reusability, which continues the trend outlined by the models discussed above.
- 2. The application is built as a composition of individual components, and their inclusion can happen at different levels: during the creation of the application or during the execution.
- 3. Scale and Scalability. Each component can be developed in a different programming language and by different teams. This allows easy integration of different technologies, easy expansion of the component base with which applications are built, and the creation of a wide variety of components.
- 4. Interoperability. Thanks to communication through interfaces, individual components can successfully communicate with each other.
- 5. Reduced dependency between components. Components are encapsulated and hide the processing code. Interfaces are the only means of accessing them. This makes the components independent of each other.
- 6. Easy maintenance. When detecting defects, only the problematic components are tested. If new functionality is needed, new components can be added to the application or components already included in the application can be replaced.
- 7. Component Version Support. The different versions of the components are numbered, which helps to move from one version to another.
- 8. Standards. In order to support the successful interworking of components, industry standards are relied upon to communicate and define interfaces.

Service-oriented architecture (SOA) extends the concept of reusability and independence of the building blocks of the application being developed [8, 9]. Software applications are built as a collection of loosely coupled and interoperable services. Services are the basic structural unit. Services can be distributed over a network. The main characteristics of this architectural model are expressed in the following:

- 1. The principles of modularity, encapsulation, reusability and platform independence are preserved and deepened.
- 2. Loose coupling. Services in SOA are much more independent entities than components. Like them, they are developed and progress independently of each other. This allows flexibility and scalability (development by multiple independent teams) to be fostered.
- 3. Interoperability. Like components, services communicate with each other using standard protocols and data formats, such as SOAP (Simple Object Access Protocol) and REST (Representational State Transfer), enabling seamless collaboration.
- 4. Composition of services. Applications can be very large and complex due to being built by composing or orchestrating multiple services to achieve specific business processes. The composition can be built dynamically by combining services in real time.
- 5. Service Lifecycle Management. Services have a well-defined lifecycle that includes creation, deployment, and version control.
- 6. Lack of condition. Services in SOA are most often designed to fulfill a fully submitted request. The request contains all the necessary data for its execution by the service. After its execution, the state of the service is not saved for follow-up actions.
- 7. High level of security. Security is managed at the service level through authentication and authorization mechanisms.
- 8. Management Mechanisms. SOA often includes governance mechanisms to ensure that services adhere to organizational standards, policies, and best practices.

Microservice Architecture (MSA) builds on SOA by adding some new features [10-13]. The most significant of them are:

- 1. The basic unit is the microservice.
- 2. Decentralized data management. Microservices typically maintain and manage their own databases. In this way, external dependencies are reduced and greater autonomy is achieved.
- 3. Dynamic discovery of microservices and support for load balancing is accomplished by maintaining service registries.
- 4. Containerization is one of the main characteristics of microservices. Microservices are most often deployed in containers, such as Docker containers. Containerization helps ensure consistency and deployment.
- 5. Distributed management. Microservices architecture works with both local and distributed management. The goal is to ensure consistency in areas such as security, data management, and API (Application Programming Interface) design.

2 MICROSERVICE ARCHITECTURE

In microservice architecture, an application is built as a collection of small, autonomous microservices. Each microservice performs a specific business task. In fig. 1 shows a diagram of an application built with a microservices architecture. Application interfaces installed as client software on user devices communicate with the Gateway, which performs the Load Balancer function and calls the corresponding microservices. They, in turn, can solve the specific business problem and return a result or call on other microservices to perform their subtasks.



Figure 1. MSA model [14]

The main principles that must be observed when building microservices can be systematized in the following aspects [15-18]:

- 1. Componentization via services. This means that microservices should be developed as a black box that hides the content and allows the application to be built by "assembling" these black boxes without knowing either their structure or the language in which they were developed.
- 2. Focus on business tasks. Each microservice must execute a specific business logic without caring about the overall business logic of the application.
- 3. Decentralized governance. Microservice development is not managed centrally. There are no clearly defined rules for building all microservices. Each of them can be developed by a different team, with independent management.
- 4. Infrastructure automation. When building microservices, automation of deployment and testing processes must be ensured, as well as support for different versions of the microservice.
- 5. Design for failure. If one microservice in the application fails, all other microservices must function successfully. This ensures fault tolerance of the system. When deploying microservices in containers like Docker, monitoring tools like Grafanam Heapster and Prometheus can be used to automatically restart the microservices that are down.
- 6. Products not projects. Microservices are viewed as finished product, not as part of some larger project. Microservices are developed by teams responsible for the entire cycle of creating the final software product: design, development and testing of the microservice.
- 7. Smart endpoints and dumb pipes. Microservices should not be too "heavy" and should use lightweight asynchronous communication mechanisms such as HTTP with REST.
- 8. Decentralized data management. Each microservice manages its own data repository and that microservice alone has direct access to it. If another microservice needs this data, it must contact the microservice responsible for the repository and obtain the required data extract.
- 9. Evolutionary design. Each microservice is autonomous and independent. This means that it can undergo an evolution in its internal design, or even have its design replaced with a brand new one. If a microservice is found to be unused, it can be painlessly removed from the application.
- 10. Independently deployable. Each microservice can be developed independently, supporting different versions. Several versions can be in use at the same time, for as long as it is necessary.
- 11. Highly observable. For the stable operation of microservices, continuous monitoring of their operation is required. In the process of working, microservices can become overloaded and this can lead to errors. Developers should continuously monitor the performance of the service and take timely measures when problems appear or when reporting inefficient behavior in certain cases.

3 ARCHITECTURAL PATTERNS FOR MICROSERVICES

At this point, we will present some of the most popular patterns for creating microservices [19].

API-Gateway represents a Service Composition Pattern [20]. An application developed with MSA consists of multiple (sometimes hundreds and thousands) microservices that communicate with each other via APIs. The API gateway acts as a single entry point for all client requests, providing clients with a unified API. API gateway is responsible for request routing, protocol transformation, authentication, monitoring, response aggregation, etc. It can also act as a load balancer. The main disadvantage of this pattern is that it represents a single point of failure and requires precise work in order not to become a development bottleneck.

Client-side Discovery Pattern is responsible for selecting services from the service registry, applies a load balancing algorithm, and selects an instance and makes a request to it. The main advantage is the ease of development. A major drawback is the strong coupling between the client and the service registry.

Server-side Discovery allows the client to communicate directly with the microservice. The client makes a request to the load balancer. It in turn makes a request to the registry, which selects an instance and forwards the request to it. This model has a number of advantages: increased maintainability, ease of communication, health management, failure safety, software understandability, ease of development. ease of migration. The model has the following disadvantages: service registry complexity, the registry could be the main bottleneck of the system, distributed system complexity.

Hyrbid Pattern combines Service Registry and API-Gateway, replacing the API-gateway with a message bus. The idea of the message bus is borrowed from the Enterprise Service Bus used in SOA architectures. **Multiple Service per Host Pattern** allows multiple services to run on a single node. The main advantages of this pattern are scalability and performance.

Database-per-Service Pattern governs the creation of microservices, where each microservice has its own database. Advantages: scalability, independent development and security mechanism.

Database Cluster Pattern allows the data to be stored in a single cluster. Microservices use the data from this cluster. The advantage of this approach is in improved scalability and is recommended for applications with intensive data traffic. Disadvantages: increased complexity and risk of failure.

Shared Database Server Pattern allows data to be stored in a common database for multiple microservices. This pattern is suitable for use when migrating from a monolithic to a microservice architecture.

4 CONCLUSION

The evolution of architectural models for software development has led to the replacement of monolithic architectures with distributed architectures. One typical representative of distributed architectures is the Microservice Architecture. The main advantages of this model are distributed management, a high degree of encapsulation, decentralized data management, the possibility of building applications as a structure of microservices developed by different teams, the possibility of polyglot programming, containerization and scalability. Microservice Architecture, as the name suggests, is based on Microservices. The main requirements that must be met when building microservices can be summarized in componentization via services, focus on business tasks, decentralized governance, infrastructure automation, design for failure, products not projects, smart endpoints and dumb pipes, decentralized data management, evolutionary design, independently deployable, highly observable.

References

- R. M. Munaf, J. Ahmed, F. Khakwani, and T. Rana, "Microservices architecture: Challenges and proposed conceptual design," 2019 International Conference on Communication Technologies (ComTech), Rawalpindi, Pakistan, 2019, pp. 82–87, doi: 10.1109/COMTECH.2019.8737831.
- [2] N. Wirth, "A brief history of software engineering," in IEEE Annals of the History of Computing, vol. 30, no. 3, pp. 32–39, July-Sept. 2008, doi: 10.1109/MAHC.2008.33.
- [3] C. L. Mcclure, "Top-down, bottom-up, and structured programming," in IEEE Transactions on Software Engineering, vol. SE-1, no. 4, pp. 397–403, Dec. 1975, doi: 10.1109/TSE.1975.6312871
- [4] R. Klump, "Understanding object-oriented programming concepts," 2001 Power Engineering Society Summer Meeting. Conference Proceedings (Cat. No.01CH37262), Vancouver, BC, Canada, 2001, vol.2, pp. 1070–1074, doi: 10.1109/PESS.2001.970207.
- [5] G. S. Hura, "Client-server computing architecture: an efficient paradigm for project management," Proceedings for Operating Research and the Management Sciences, Singapore, 1995, pp. 146–152, doi: 10.1109/IEMC.1995.523924.
- [6] G. Pour, "Component-based software development approach: new opportunities and challenges," Proceedings. Technology of Object-Oriented Languages. TOOLS 26 (Cat. No.98EX176), Santa Barbara, CA, USA, 1998, pp. 376–383, doi: 10.1109/TOOLS.1998.711055.
- [7] G. Wang and C. K. Fung, "Architecture paradigms and their influences and impacts on component-based software systems," 37th Annual Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences, 2004. Proceedings of the, Big Island, HI, USA, 2004, pp. 10, doi: 10.1109/HICSS.2004.1265643.
- [8] M. H. Valipour, B. Amirzafari, K. N. Maleki, and N. Daneshpour, "A brief survey of software architecture concepts and service oriented architecture," 2009 2nd IEEE International Conference on Computer Science and Information Technology, Beijing, China, 2009, pp. 34–38, doi: 10.1109/ICCSIT.2009.5235004.
- [9] M. Mohammadi and M. Mukhtar, "Service-oriented architecture and process modeling," 2018 International Conference on Information Technologies (InfoTech), Varna, Bulgaria, 2018, pp. 1–4, doi: 10.1109/InfoTech.2018.8510730.
- [10] H. Kang, M. Le, and S. Tao, "Container and microservice driven design for cloud infrastructure DevOps," 2016 IEEE International Conference on Cloud Engineering (IC2E), 2016, pp. 202–211, doi: 10.1109/IC2E.2016.26.
- [11] N. Alshuqayran, N. Ali, and R. Evans, "A systematic mapping study in microservice architecture," 2016 IEEE 9th International Conference on Service-Oriented Computing and Applications (SOCA), 2016, pp. 44–51, doi: 10.1109/SOCA.2016.15.
- [12] M. Mazzara, N. Dragoni, A. Bucchiarone, A. Giaretta, S. T. Larsen, and S. Dustdar, "Microservices:

Migration of a mission critical system," in IEEE Transactions on Services Computing, vol. 14, no. 5, pp. 1464–1477, 1 Sept.-Oct. 2021, doi: 10.1109/TSC.2018.2889087.

- [13] B. Mashaly, S. Selim, A. H. Yousef, and K. M. Fouad, "Privacy by Design: A Microservices-Based Software Architecture Approach," 2022 2nd International Mobile, Intelligent, and Ubiquitous Computing Conference (MIUCC), Cairo, Egypt, 2022, pp. 357–364, doi: 10.1109/MIUCC55081.2022.9781685.
- [14] E. Ozdikililer, Design and Development of a Microservice Management Model for Distributed and Integrated Systems: DockMan©, monography, 2021
- [15] D. Shadija, M. Rezai, and R. Hill, "Towards an understanding of microservices," 2017 23rd International Conference on Automation and Computing (ICAC), Huddersfield, UK, 2017, pp. 1–6, doi: 10.23919/IConAC.2017.8082018.
- [16] V. Velepucha and P. Flores, "A survey on microservices architecture: Principles, patterns and migration challenges," IEEE Access, vol. 11, pp. 88339–88358, 2023, doi: 10.1109/ACCESS.2023.3305687.
- [17] M. L. Fanomezana, A. M. Rapatsalahy, N. R. Razafindrakoto, and C. Bădică, "Proposed methodology for designing a microservice architecture," 2022 23rd International Carpathian Control Conference (ICCC), Sinaia, Romania, 2022, pp. 303–308, doi: 10.1109/ICCC54292.2022.9805930.
- [18] C. Schröer, S. Wittfoth, and J. M. Gómez, "A process model for microservices design and identification," 2021 IEEE 18th International Conference on Software Architecture Companion (ICSA-C), Stuttgart, Germany, 2021, pp. 1–8, doi: 10.1109/ICSA-C52384.2021.00013.
- [19] D. Taibi, V. Lenarduzzi, and C. Pahl. "Architectural patterns for microservices: A systematic mapping study," International Conference on Cloud Computing and Services Science, 2018.
- [20] Pattern: API Gateway / Backends for Frontends, https://microservices.io/patterns/apigateway.html.


Vulnerabilities Testing in Real-Time Wi-Fi Network

Ivan Ivanov¹, Maya Atanasova^{*1}

¹University of Telecommunication and Post, Information Technology, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

Nowadays, people own various devices such as tablets, phones, laptops, and IoT products connected to wireless networks. Many businesses use wireless networks for the convenience of their employees, but they are not always well-configured and secured. Since the dawn of wireless networks, cyber professionals have struggled with their proven vulnerabilities. As information technology advances, so do changes in wireless security standards and protocols. Although the IEEE (Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers) strives to keep the 802.11i standard secure, there are still users who neglect or forget to provide a secure wireless network. This article aims to show the vulnerability in a wireless network, as well as to remind us about their removal and securing. There are numerous instruments for detecting vulnerabilities. In our case, the analysis and evaluation are done with the Airgeddon instrument. The operating system that we used is Kali Linux, Alfa omni antenna AWUS036NHA using 802.11 b/g/n standard, Airgeddon tool.

Keywords: IEEE, WiFi, Kali Linux, Airgeddon, MITM

1 INTRODUCTION

The flow of information nowadays is overwhelming. Almost everyone on the planet owns an electronic device that connects him to the rest of the world via the Internet. According to Statista.com [1], as of July 2023, there are 5.19 billion Internet users worldwide who frequently use a WiFi network, whether private or public, for this connection.

Since the dawn of their creation, wireless networks have been the target of cyber specialists who have struggled with their vulnerabilities. The creation of the 802.11i standard for wireless networks is due to the IEEE. It has evolved over the years, with the latest version 802.11be or WiFi 7 being developed and expected to be completed in 2024 [2]. The standard will operate at 4 times higher data rates (~40 Gbit/s) and have twice the bandwidth (320 MHz channels vs. 160 MHz channels for WiFi 6) [2]. Improvements to MIMO protocols and refinements to WiFi capabilities are also included. Advanced WPA3 and AES cryptographic techniques encrypt and secure the wireless connection. This will ensure that the data and information transmitted over the WiFi network remains secure and confidential. WiFi works with radio waves, with the antenna picking up and receiving signals. The built-in MIMO (multiple-input and multiple-output) technology is used.

WEP "Wired Equivalency Privacy", introduced just a few years ago, is susceptible to brute force attacks. Actually, cyber experts don't recommend its utilization. The next generation is WPA, but it turns out that it has a weak cryptographic hash and is not a good solution for open infrastructure radio networks for Internet access.

Despite today's 802.11ax or WiFi6 standard and WPA2 encryption method, wireless networks remain a challenge for cyber professionals and hackers alike. A type of network protocol established by IEEE 802.11i is 4-way wpa/wpa2 handshake (Fig. 1) [3].

- 1. The AP (Access Point) send a nonce-value to the client (ANonce).
- 2. The client now has all the attributes to construct PTK (Pairwise Transient Key). The client sends its noncevalue (SNonce) to the AP together with a Message Integrity Code (MIC) including authentication.
- 3. The AP constructs and sends the GTK (Group terminal key) which is used to decrypt (multicast and broadcast) and a sequence number together with another MIC.
- 4. Finally the client sends a confirmation to the AP [4].





Figure 1. WPA/WPA2 4Way handshake (Soure: https://www.secpod.com/blog/the-krack-attack-wi-fi-at-risk/)

In the 4-way handshake, the client and access point independently prove to each other that they know PMK (Pairwise Master Key), without revealing it. The process doesn't send this key to the web and contributes to strengthening security.

The threats from the Ewil Twin, password cracked, and man in the middle remain. Uneducated and careless users and organisations would not notice a man in the middle until their data appears on the dark web.

In his article "Wireless Network Vulnerabilities Estimation" Ass. Proff. Linko G. Nikolov shows a table of different passwords and proves that the password length is of great importance [5]. Andrés Javier Pulido Bernal, Octavio José Salcedo Parra, and Alberto Acosta López build fake access point in their article "Vulnerabilities and Attacks on WiFi Network" [3]. In our experiment, we will show the automated tool Airgeddon, which makes testing easier for both professionals and hackers. Experiments are carried out in a real environment to make with Evil Twin MITM attack.

2 TOOL USED

Airgeddon is an automated tool with more features. It is also an open-source and auditable WiFi network. This multipurpose bash script is designed for Linux operating systems [6]. It includes several tools: aircrack-ng, hashcat, bettercap and Beef-xss. Working with the tool is extremely easy since at each step a menu appears from which we choose what we will do. Even users who don't have much pen-testing experience can handle it [7].

3 EXPERIMENTS

Used Kali Linux, Alfa omni antenna AWUS036NHA and Airgeddon tool, we work in local home WiFi network in real-time.

The purpose of our experiment is to build an MITM attack, get the password of the router and build a connection in the MITM attack from HTTPS to HTTP for the client. As we know the connection is encrypted in HTTPS, unlike the connection in the HTTP protocol. We are constantly monitoring traffic and listening to the client's connections (Fig. 2). It relies on the fact that everyone nowadays wants to be connected to the Internet at any cost.



Figure 2. Evil Twin attack (Source: https://cyberartspro.com/en/evil-twin-attack/)

First, we installed the Airgeddon tool, as it is not being installed by default in Kali Linux. Then, the following command line is typed: sudo Airggedon.(the instrument work only sudo privilege).

When we started Airgeddon, tool, we saw that the tool was getting revised on a library (Fig. 3).



Figure 3. Airgeddon get revision on library

Our antenna is in management mode by default. Or, it must be switched to monitor mode to start working (Fig. 4 and Fig. 5).



Figure 4. WLANs in our computer



Figure 5. Our antenna is in monitor mode

Ready for monitoring we started discovering WiFi networks (Fig. 6).

	X		Explains for Largets		008
	that if there a	5 7 3629-12-	10 IF:25		
		NB 3030077		SHE CHRERE RUH	ES.J
The Atlant Call View Hep 1. Solice autory corant introface 2. But interacts memoirs make 3. But interacts memoirs 3. But interacts 3. But i	August traffer (Frank) (Franker Street, Stree	南南省的東南市南京市大学的大学的大学会 all densare timesere and and	и по на поста с по се за се за се за се за се за се за се за се за се за се за се за се за се за се за се за с за се се се се се се се се се се се се се	202020 020202020202 20200 02002020202 20202 02020202	With JOB THE ACT AND A COMPANY THE ACT AND A COMPANY THE ACC AND A COMPANY THE ACC AND A COMPANY THE ACC AND A COMPANY AC
You have the topdamp tool installed, therefore your adapteel later than 8.3.8 (currently your hostampte	system can per sol version is	form the PN 6.3.1)			
There is no valid target retwork selected. You'll be Froms [Difter] key to container 	e refirected to				
Selected interface elements in another code. Evaluation can be performed					
Takened interface interface is in waiting code. Equivalently, the performed down writes and the correlation and the state face is the code of the state interface is the code of the back area there means a mean second in "back code" offering MUMMOR and in that case they are disapped in the sc many than the code of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of only than the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state only these the state of the state					
<pre>www.mwz/www.filter enabled is scan. mion started, Frees [Fnter] key to continue</pre>					

Figure 6. Discover WiFi networks

When see our WiFi network, we stop the process by pressing ctrl+C. All detected networks are displayed (Fig. 7).

Edit View 3C:77:08:3F 31:44:14:3A 80:0E:CC:60 57:EE:A6:29 30:09:2F:9E 30:09:2F:9E 30:09:2F:9E 30:09:2F:9E 30:09:2F:9E 30:09:2F:9E 30:09:2F:9E 30:09:2F:9E 30:00:2	Help 4 4 4 10 6 1 8 11 1 6 3 2 5 9 3 7	39% 11% 12% 16% 14% 14% 14% 14% 14% 14% 14% 14% 14% 14	WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2	Kiro #-Ta1.1066 #-Ta1.2020 #Fr12.C020	
3C: 77: D8: 3F 31: 44: 14: A4 10: DE: CC: 60 97: FE: 16: 22: 8A 90: 09: 2F: 9E CC: 23: AD: AA SC: 81: E0: BC F: 17: 22: 28 3: 6C: SE: 74 6: DE: 8A: 2A 91: 82: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 3: 5C: C2: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 14: 12: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 14: 21: 21: 8B 14: BC: C5: E9 14: 21: 21: 8B 14: 8C 14: 21: 21: 8B 14: 8C 15: 8C		395 113 123 163 143 143 143 143 143 143 143 143 163 113 93 265 333 93	WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2	kiro #rtal_106 #rtal_2050 Brital Paulor P	
13:44:14:14 10:DE:CC:60 9:FE:16:29 27:E1:42:0A 10:09:27:9E 10:09:27:9E 10:09:27:9E 10:09:27:9E 10:09:27:9E 10:09:27:9E 10:09:27:12:09 10:09:29 1		113 123 163 143 143 143 143 143 143 143 143 143 163 163 113 93 265 333 93	WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2	m-Ta1_LOS m-Ta1_LOS MF12	
L0:DE:CC:60 DF:FE:A6:29A 30:09:2F:9E CC:23:AD:AA 30:09:2F:9E CC:23:AD:AA 30:09:2F:9E CC:23:AD:AA 30:09:2F:9E CC:23:AD:AA 41:00:00 CF:17:2E:22 31:6C:5E:74 45:0E:8A:2A 45:0E:8A		12% 16% 14% 14% 12% 10% 31% 10% 11% 9% 20% 33% 9%	WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2	M-Tel_COS Bever cama Give Yao Wi-Fi Bever cama Give Yao Wi-Fi PLAY 055000 TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TP-LINE-STREET TREETS	
27:E1:A6:29 27:E1:A2:0A 30:09:27:92 27:E1:A2:0A 30:09:27:94 30:09:27:94 30:09:00 50:00 31:60:50 31:60:50 31:60:50 41:80:05:50 31:50:12:00 51:21:00 31:50:12:00 31:50:10:00 31:50:10:10:10:10:10:10:10:10:10:10:10:10:10		163 143 143 128 103 318 108 118 92 205 335 95	NPA2 NPA2 NPA2 NPA2 NPA2 NPA2 NPA2 NPA2	Never Goma Give You VI-11 Panadet Panadet P-ALMC2025000 TP-LINC2025CBT TP-LINC2025CBT TP-LINC2025CBT TP-LINC2025 T	
27:E1:A2:RA 10:09:2F:9E 10:23:AD:AA 10:09:2F:9E 10:23:AD:AC 10:09:2F:9E 10:00:25:AD 10:02:51:E0 10:02		14% 14% 12% 10% 31% 10% 11% 9% 20% 33% 9%	WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2	Panader Pan	
00:09:2F:9E 0:23:AD:AA 0:B1:E0:BC 0:F:17:2E:2B 0:6C:5E:74 0:DE:8A:2A 0:DE:8A:2A 0:DE:8A:2A 0:DE:51:EB 14:BC:C5:E9 3:5C:E2:05 0:5C:E2:20		14% 12% 10% 31% 10% 11% 9% 20% 33% 9%	WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2	PLAT, PROSENT TAYAN 19-110-2012, CTT 19-110-2012, CTT 19-110-2012, CTC 19-110-2012, CTC 19-110-2014, CTC 19-	
C:23:AD:AA C:B1:E0:BC F:17:2E:28 F:4E:37:38 C:6C:5E:74 F:0DE:8A:2A		12% 30% 31% 10% 11% 9% 20% 33% 9%	WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2	TANYA TANYA TP-LINK_7252_EXT TP-LINK_7254 TP-LINK_7254 TP-LINK_72518 TP-LINK_7518 TP-LINK_75518 TP-LINK_755 TP-LINK_755	
C:B1:E0:BC F:17:2E:2B F:4E:37:38 C:5E:74 C:5E:8A:2A F:E:8A:2A		10% 31% 10% 11% 9% 20% 33% 9%	NPA2 NPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 NPA2 WPA2 WPA2	TP-LINK,2125,CRT TP-LINK,2125 TP-LINK,3720 TP-LINK,3024 TP-LINK,0510 TP-LINK,CSS TP-LINK,05 TP-	
F:17:2E:2B F:17:2E:2B F:17:38 F:26:5E:74 F:26:5E:8A:2A F:26:5E:7A F:26:5E:7		31% 10% 11% 9% 20% 33% 9%	WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2	TP-LINK_272C TP-LINK_273 TP-LINK_273 TP-LINK_253 TP-LINK_553 TP-LINK_C55 TP-LINK_C55 TP-LINK_C55	
9:4E:37:38 3:6C:SE:74 76:DE:8A:2A 0:B2:51:EB 4:BC:C5:E9 3:5C:E2:8F E:95:12:89		10% 11% 9% 20% 33% 9%	WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2	TP-L1NK_3738 TP-L1NK_5E7A TP-L1NK_5E7A TP-L1NK_25180 TP-L1NK_25E9 TPLXX_26	
3:6C:5E:74 76:DE:8A:2A 0:B2:51:EB 4:BC:C5:E9 3:5C:E2:0F E:95:12:89		11% 9% 28% 33% 9%	WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2 WPA2	179-Link 5024 179-Link 802A 179-Link 8025100 179-Link 5059 181X 26	
6:DE:8A:2A 0:B2:51:EB 4:BC:C5:E9 3:5C:E2:0F E:95:12:89		9% 28% 33% 9%	WPA2 MPA2 WPA2 WPA2	TP-LINK_8A2A TP-LINK_825168 TP-LINK_6559 TREX 26	
0:82:51:E8 34:8C:C5:E9 3:5C:E2:8F E:95:12:89		20% 33% 9%	WPA2 WPA2	TP-LINK_E25100 TP-LINK_C5E9 TREX 2G	
4:BC:C5:E9 3:5C:E2:0F E:95:12:09		33% 9%	WPA2 WPA2	TP-Link_C5E9 TREX 26	
3:5C:E2:8F			WPA2		
E:05:12:00					
the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second se		14%	WPA2	VIVACOM_FiberNet_2.4Ghz	
		25%	WPA2	VIVACOM FiberNet 8328	
7:C1:CB:C9			WPA2	VIVACOM_FiberNet_B3EC	
6:F5:88:D1			WPA2	VIVACOM FiberNet BC13	
E:7E:0A:80			WPA2	VIVACOM_FiberNet	
			WPA2	VIVACOM FiberNet	
			WPA2	VIVACOM_FiberNet	
E:82:F1:CC			WPA2	VIVACOM FiberNet+	
E:84:E5:5C		18%	WPA2	VIVACOM FiberNet	
F:F5:AF:2F			WPA2		
		10%	WPA2	Xiaoni CE59	
7:97:68:82			WPA2		
			WPA2	ZTE 10775F	
5:D9:27:E0			WPA2	ZTE D927E0	
EEF 470505	:82:F1:CC :84:E5:5C :F5:AF:2F :52:CE:5A :97:68:82 :10:77:5F :D9:27:E0 h clients	:82:F1:CC 3 :84:E5:5C 6 :F5:AF:2F 1 :52:CE:5A 1 :97:68:B2 6 :10:77:5F 6 :D9:27:E0 6 h clients	:82:F1:CC 3 10% :84:E5:5C 6 18% :F5:AF:2F 1 16% :52:CE:5A 1 10% :52:CE:5A 82:F1:CC 3 10% WPA2 184:E5:SC 6 15% WPA2 152:F5:AF:2F 1 15% WPA2 152:CE:SA 1 15% WPA2 100:77:SF 6 11% WPA2 100:77:SF 6 11% WPA2 h clients	ab:p1:stc 3 100 MOA VUXAGU_FIBNING ab:p1:stc 5 100 MOA VUXAGU_FIBNING ab:stc:stc 6 100 MOA VUXAGU_FIBNING ab:stc:stc 6 100 MOA VUXAGU_FIBNING ab:stc:stc 6 350 MOA VIXAGU_FIBNING ab:stc:stc 6 144 MOA 2TE_0022E0 b:stc:stat 5 144 MOA 2TE_0022E0	

Figure 7. All detected network

The coloured ones show that there are working users in them. This is important for our experiment because we can intercept the 4-way handshake and find out the password to access the router. We see the MAC address, the channel it's on, and what cryptographic method it uses, name the network or name the router.

Finding the victim's network, in our case our local WiFi network, through the 4-way handshake, we establish a connection with the router. From the resulting text file is in /root/handshake-00:00:00:00:00:00:00:00:00 we can extract its password using hachcat or aircrack-ng. We choose aircrack-ng + Dictionary because we have performed social engineering and included a learned password in our wordlist. Nowadays passwords are quite and it was considered that it's better to use social engineering that waste time in a brute force attack (Fig. 8).

•	Shell No. 1	
File Actions Edit View	Help	
	03 keys tested (338.06 k/s)	
	E 32 96 78 48 84 8E 4C 35 90 87 AA C4 13 E7 E5 e 5C 80 8F 65 C0 7E EE FF 73 37 F1 DF AB F8 EE	
Transient Key : Of	2 96 89 68 86 96 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86 86	
EAPOL HMAC : OF	0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0	

Figure 8. Finding password

We found the password of the router in 3 sec. If we had chosen a brute force attack, we would have lost days or even months in cracking this 10-character password containing lowercase letters and numbers, since the combinations of them are 3 656 158 440 062 976 [8]. We would need a supercomputer.

In the next phase, we choose to use the HTTPS to HTTP transfer option in addition to sniff and spoof to build the Evil Twin attack. That way the link goes through and should, if possible, intercept the password if the victim decides to use the relevant page.

During the attack, 5 windows are opened, which show:

access point AP (top left); the DHCP server window, with the IP addresses and what exactly the device is, (left in the middle); deauthentication, (bottom left); in the upper right is the window of the evil twin with the connected devices to the fake access point, in our case these are a computer and mobile phone; the Bettercap window (bottom right); In the Bettercap window, we take the commands:

net.probe on;

set arp.spoof.target 192.169.1.33;

arp.spoof on;

net.sniff on (fig.9).



Figure 9. Windows that opens on the attack and the attack working

Throughout the attack, each page opened by the client triggers a wave of packet captures that, after the attack is complete, will be examined.

4 RESULTS

After reviewing the results of the attack, it was found that the HTTPS to HTTP doesn't work because the page we built as HTTP is not visited by the victim. The page he enters is mail.bg and for this reason, we intercept neither the user nor the password. It would be better to use another approach and clone the mail.bg page through another social engineering tool built into Kali Linux. Mail.bg logging in is not secured so the victim must remain vigilant (Fig. 10).



Figure 10. Connection is not secured

The experiment of the attack is not insignificant, as the traffic passes through us and gives us an idea of which site is visited most often by the victim, which allows us to have better results in the next attempt.

5 CONCLUSION

The man-in-the-middle attack remains one of the most dangerous attacks in WiFi networks. As we've seen, traffic monitoring opens up unlimited options for follow-up. We can steal a session and impersonate someone else, we can get sensitive information if the connection is unsecured, and we can clone the victim's most visited pages and whatever else we need.

Users must be especially careful when using an Internet connection via WiFi, especially through open access point. It is highly recommended to use anti-virus programs that warn about entering unprotected pages, some of which are particularly aggressive and prevent the user from accessing them, using a VPN connection to transfer sensitive information. Nowadays, there are opportunities for better technology protection, which helps social engineering development.

In conclusion, no matter how well technology is protected, man is the biggest threat to himself.

References

[1] https://www.statista.com/statistics/617136/digital-population-worldwide/, [accessed 02.10.2023]

- [2] https://standards.ieee.org/beyond-standards/the-evolution-of-wi-fi-technology-and-standards/, [accessed 02.10.2023]
- [3] Vulnerabilities and attacks on WiFi networks, International Journal of Applied Engineering Research, vol. 13, no. 15, pp. 12052–12054, ISSN 0973–4562, 2018.
- [4] [online]available<https://www.secpod.com/blog/the-krack-attack-wi-fi-at-risk/>[accessed 03.10.2023]
- [5] Wireless network vulnerabilities estimation, International Scientific Journal "Security & Future", pp. 80– 82, ISSN 2535-082X, PRINT ISSN 2535-0668.
- [6] [online]available<https://en.kali.tools/?p=249>[accessed 03.10.2023]
- [7] https://pentestmag.com/wifi-hacking-with-airgeddon-on-kali-linux/#, [accessed 03.10.2023]
- [8] https://passwordbits.com/password-cracking-calculator/, [accessed 02.10.2023]



Classification of Fire-Affected Areas with Satellite Data and a Multi-Layered Neural Network

Irina Topalova^{*1}, Lyubena Nacheva¹

¹University of Telecommunication and Post, Information Technology, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

The classification of forest fire-burned regions of the earth's surface and their correlation with the same areas before fire, is essential to model preventive actions. The purpose of this research is to use satellite images to make classification of different regions of the earth's surface burned by forest fire, according to the carbon monoxide parameter of the same areas before the fires. An adaptive approach with machine learning of a multilayer neural network was applied, which was trained with different carbon monoxide values for four different geographical regions in Greece. For the purposes of the study, freely accessible images of burned areas obtained by the Sentinel 2 satellite were used. Based on the obtained database and the recognition results in the test phase, it becomes possible to classify them as areas of burning and to find the correspondence with similar such areas before the occurrence of the fires. The results of the research are presented and analysed. Some steps are suggested for future development of the method when testing with a larger volume of data.

Keywords: satellite data, fire-affected areas, neural networks, classification.

1 INTRODUCTION

In recent years, forest fires have been increasing for various social reasons, as well as due to climate change. Due to the severe damage and sometimes irreversible consequences, it is imperative that they be classified and, based on the result, create a database with both appropriate prevention measures and prescriptions for correct actions in extinguishing such fires. Thanks to the free access to satellite images and related databases provided by the European Space Agency (ESA), as well as the large number of freely available software tools for accessing and processing these images, it is possible to realize a number of ideas for effective containment of harmful consequences of various natural disasters [1].

The purpose of this research is to use satellite images to make classification of different regions of the earth's surface burned by forest fire, according to the carbon monoxide parameter of the same areas before the fires. An adaptive approach with machine learning of a multilayer neural network was applied, which was trained with different carbon monoxide values for four different geographical regions in Greece. For the purposes of the study, freely accessible images of burned areas obtained by the *Sentinel 2* satellite were used. Based on the obtained database and the recognition results in the test phase, it becomes possible to classify them as areas of burning and to find the correspondence with similar such areas before the occurrence of the fires. The results of the research are presented and analysed. Some steps are suggested for future development of the method when testing with a larger volume of data.

2 PROPOSED METHOD

For the purposes of this study, images from four different regions with fire damage, which took place in year 2023, were used. The images, their processing and the extraction of the NBR graphics were obtained by means of software tool Earth Observation Browser [2]. Classification of burned areas is made, for 2023 Wildfires in Greece with satellite data before and after the fire applying the measured values of CO (carbon monoxide) – concentration in the atmosphere around the place of fire before and after it. The target method is to make classification of burned areas in Greece – Rhodes Island, Athens, Alexandropulis and Corfu Island in 2023. Many NBR graphs of the obtained by satellite Sentinel 2 images, for four burned areas were used as input data to a MLP neural network. The MLP was trained to classify the graphs in eight different categories/classes, according to their different mean CO values. In the test phase, different test data samples with standard deviation and not included in the train set, were used to generalize the classification. The obtained classification results in the test stage are given in a table

and discussed according to the four investigated burned areas. The values of CO for the region by dates is exported in csv file format to prepare train and test files.



Figure 1. Workflow of the tasks

2.1 Description of Input Parameters

Normalized Burned Ratio Index is used to estimate burn severity. This index uses near-infrared and shortwaveinfrared wavelengths. Healthy vegetation has a high reflectance in the near infrared part of the light spectrum, and low short-wave infrared reflectance. Burned areas, on the other hand, have a high shortwave infrared reflectance but low reflectance in the near infrared darker pixels indicate burned areas.

Wildfires releases large amounts of toxic gases including carbon monoxide, nitrogen oxides and non-methane organic compounds into the atmosphere. This contribute significantly to global warming and this is also the second pollution cause in the world. Special sensors are needed to observe these gases and they are on board of Sentinel satellites. They measured increased concentration of CO as a consequence of the wildfire. The NBR index measures the concentration of CO in the atmosphere around the place of fire. For this research median CO value which is result from P10 CO and P90 CO values for the regions of interest, is used. P10 is also called Proved, this is the lowest figure. It means that 90% of the calculated estimates will be equal or exceed P90 estimate. Possible (P10): The highest figure, it means that 10% of the calculated estimates will be equal or exceed P10 estimate. For the research median value – P50 is used. These values provide the best possible evaluation of CO concentration in the concrete regions. This provides the neural net with the precise data for the train and test operations [3].

For the purpose of this study, the values of CO for the region by dates is exported in csv file format to prepare train and test files. From the csv files are used only P10, P90 values for CO concentration and precisely the median value for a time period of 6 months before and after the fires.

2.2 Investigated Fired Regions

The target method is to make classification of burned area in Greece – Rhodes Island, Athens, Alexandropulis and Corfu Island 2023. The relevant NBRs are reported for a 6-month summer period of 2023, during which fires

raged in the indicated regions. The data was obtained from the Sentinel 2A satellite. CO/P10 and CO/P90 were used as training and testing data according to the parameters described above. Burned areas and NBRs for areas a/ Rhodes Island, b/ Athens, c/ Corfu Island d/ Alexandropulis are represented in Figure 2. the data is distributed in 8 classes. The first 4 classes contain the CO data for the four areas before the fire, and classes 5 to 8 - contain the CO data for the affected four areas after the fire.



Figure 2. Burned areas and NBRs for areas (a) Rhodes Island, (b) Athens, (c) Corfu Island, (d) Alexandropulis

2.3 Train and Test Data for the Proposed MLP NN

The training and testing inputs are prepared in a normalized format in the range [-1 1] and applied to the inputs of the neural network in the training and testing stages, respectively. The test sample was not involved in the training of the neural network. The data are presented for the 8 classes defined in item 2.2







Figure 4. Applied MLP NN structure 30-22-8



(d)

Figure 5. Test results for output 2 - "Rhodes-before fire" – (a) vector presentation; (b) signal presentation. Test results for output 5 - "Corfu-after fire" – (c) vector presentation; (d) signal presentation

The structure of the trained MLP neural network, that showed the best accuracy in the testing stage with samples that are not part of the training sample, is shown in Figure 4. It consists of 30 input neurons, 22 neurons in the hidden layer, and 8 neurons in the output layer, corresponding to the set 8 trained and recognized classes. It was

trained reaching 0.1% MSE (Mean Square Error) with 2361 iterations. Tangent hyperbolic as activation function and BPG train algorithm were applied. Neuro System was used as software tool [4, 5].

As shown in Figure 5 a) and b) the results for Rhodes before fire is classified as Athens before fire region. The output was predicted as 2 - Rhodes before fire, but the result output was 3 - Athens before fire. The difference is clearly shown with the blue and red dots – predicted and real result. As can be seen from the data in Figure 5 c) and d) – the vector and signal representations of the results for Corfu Island the predicted and the real results are the same. The blue and red dots are really close to each other.

2 RESULTS

Table 1 shows the overview of the results. What is interesting in this data is that the predicted and real classified regions are the same, except the results for Rhodes Island. This region was classified like Athens before fire – output 3 and like Corfu Island after fires, according to output5 of the network. In every other occasion the regions were classified from the neural network exactly like the prediction. These results suggest that carbon monoxide values in Athens region and Rhodes Island before fire was the same, but the values of carbon monoxide after fires was different for these two regions but the values of carbon monoxide after fire in Rhodes Island was as much as the values in Corfu Island. In summary, these results show that the data from satellite images could be used for classification of different areas before and after wildfires.

Table 1. I redicted and real classified regions								
Dradiated	Real classified-before fire				Real classified-after fire			
Fledicied	1 Corfu	2 Rhodes	3 Athens	4 Alexandropulis	5 Corfu	6 Rhodes	7 Athens	8 Alexandropulis
1 Corfu-before fire	OK							
2 Rhodes-before fire			Х					
3 Athens-before fire			OK					
4 Alexandrbefore fire				OK				
5 Corfu-after fire					OK			
6 Rhodes-after fire					Х			
7 Athens-after fire							OK	
8 Alexandrafter fire								OK

Table 1. Predicted and real classified regions

3 CONCLUSION

The prevention and detection of the wildfires is really significant nowadays, but also the recovery management after the disasters is also important.

The results from classification clearly show that the areas are different, they were classified in different classes. The results also show that the damages after wildfires in two islands are the same but clearly distinct from the other two continental regions, which are different between each other. This conclusions and results are really important for the recovery management after fires – the recovery procedure will be different for each region. The repair from the disasters will take different time for each area.

Classification of the fire-affected areas after and before fires with satellite data and neural network is a good tool for the recovery strategies after wildfires. It is essential after big disasters to asset the damages and stabilize environment. Using satellite images, makes it is possible to evaluate the damages, analyse burn severity and determination of long-term environmental restoration actions.

References

- [1] I.. Topalova, "Deep learning neural network for classification of fire-affected areas with satellite data," Sixth International Scientific Conference "Telecommunications, Informatics, Energy and Management"– TIEM'21, 10-11 September, ISSN 2535-096X (print), ISSN 2603-2880, pp. 58-61, 2021.
- [2] Earth observation browser: https://www.sentinel-hub.com/explore/eobrowser/, Access: August 2023.
- [3] https://apps.sentinel-hub.com/eo-browser/?zoom=10&lat=41.9&lng=12.5&themeId=DEFAULT-THEME&toTime=2023-11-28T22%3A03%3A39.262Z.
- [4] Software tool Neuro System, V5.0. 2020.
- [5] S. Haykin, Neural Networks, New York, IEEE Press, 2015.



The Harms and Benefits of Uncensored AI Used for Data Breach and Data Security

Mariyana Dimitrova^{*1}, Ivan Ivanov¹

¹University of Telecommunications and Posts, Information Technologies, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

Growth and the development of the information technology spectrum in the times of the fourth industrial revolution (4IR) face humanity to live in a challenging time. The development and expansion of programming languages, blockchain technologies (digital currencies), cloud computing, robotics, big data analytics, virtual reality, neural networks and the internet led to the discovery and creation of generative artificial intelligence (AI).

Nowadays we are witnesses to the growth of the next level of generative AI evolved in different AI systems and tools with different kinds of purposes and functions such as chatbots, VoIP (Voice over Internet Protocol), SMS marketing and personalized email sending. The most famous and currently used generative artificial intelligence launched in 2022 also known as ChatGPT has been created with ethical purposes. Eight months later cyber security researcher Daniel Kelley published an article for the malicious version of ChatGPT which could be found on the Dark Web. Worm GPT has been created for unethical and criminal purposes. Some of the functions of this powerful generative AI are to create business compromised email (BEC), phishing, fake invoices and to forge contracts. Together with Worm GPT are developed other hacking tools in the Dark Web also known as Fraud GPT, XXXGTP, Flow GTP and Wolf GPT.

In this research are performed investigations, analyses and experiments about the work of uncensored generative AI and the unethical tools which are created by the black hats for criminal purposes.

Can't we use these tools to protect the data and prevent most of the vector attacks which the Dark Net hide? Cybersecurity society alarm us every day about the dangers which are hiding once we sit in front of the computer.

This paper highlights the importance of uncensored generative AI and its usage for dark and white purposes.

Keywords: Generative AI, WormGPT, Data security, BEC, Dark web

1 INTRODUCTION

The functionalities and purposes of the generative AI (GAI) covers many areas in the information technologies. Most common use of large language models are the creation of chatbots, SMS marketing, video, audio, VoIP (Voice over Internet Protocol), different kind of automations and email marketing. Launched on 30th of November 2022 GPT generation became the most famous and currently used generative artificial intelligence, it is also known as ChatGPT with the purpose to help the humanity and to provide improvements in the industries and the organizations, in other words it has been created with ethical aims. From other side a dark feature of AI is emerging the powers of criminals and black hats on the dark web. Using different kind of hacking tools and platforms for development of uncensored generative artificial intelligence the hackers are able to raise a new dark power who affect the whole humanity.

A couple of months later on 13th of July 2023 after ChatGPT was launched, a GPT version for malicious activities has been discovered. A cyber security researcher Daniel Kelley a reformed black hat computer hacker collaborated with the SlashNext team which published an article [1] for WormGPT which could be found on the Dark Web. Such GAI has been created for unethical purposes which criminals could use for their attack vectors. The functions of this powerful GAI are to generate business compromised email (BEC), phishing, fake invoices, to forge contracts and many others.

1.1 The Goal of the Report

In the contemporary information technologies areas like blockchain (digital currencies), neural networks, virtual reality, cloud computing, robotics, big data analytics, programming languages and internet together with their

development and expansion led to the discovery and the creation of the Generative Artificial Intelligence [2]. On the Dark Web could be also found other uncensored GAI versions which are developed from the black hats such as FraudGPT, XXXGTP, WolfGPT, FlowGPT (accessible also on the Surface Web) and many others. Fig. 1 presents a graph of the latest high-tech discoveries that are closely related to process automation and the use of Generative Artificial Intelligence.

This paper highlights the importance of uncensored generative AI and its usage for dark and white purposes.



Figure 1. Development of GAI

2 MATERIALS AND PROPOSED METHOD

In this research are performed investigations, analyses and experiments about the work of uncensored generative AI and the unethical tools which are created by the black hats for criminal purposes [3].

The purpose is to inform the society about the dangers which uncensored generative artificial intelligence provides and to provide some light how we could fight against the dark side to protect the data.

This paper brings information on generative artificial intelligence of GPT-3 and GPT-4 generation.

Cybersecurity society alarm us every day about the dangers which are hiding once we sit in front of the computer.

2.1 Workflow

For the practical part of the research are used several steps which require as a starting point information gathering about the dangers which uncensored GAI hide. The following workflow diagram describes the macro-processes of the methodology of the research (Fig. 2).



Figure 2. Workflow Diagram

2.2 How does GAI Works?

GPT-3 is a version of a large language model (LLM) which holds the record to be the largest neural network with 175 billion parameters. This model of artificial intelligence is times larger than the previous language models [4, 5]. It was trained with huge amount of data i.e., almost all data which is available on the Internet. The results and the performance were astonishing in many different various of an NLP (natural language processing) tasks.

The tasks like translation, question-answering, etc. has passed several times state-of-the-art models. The key point of the most powerful features of GPT-3 is that it can perform new tasks for which it wasn't trained.

MML for GPT-4 have almost 170 trillion parameters, as a result, it will be able to generate more accurate results. On (Fig. 3) are shown the differences between both GPT generations. GPT-4 have much more functionalities than its predecessor.



Figure 3. Uses and purposes of GPT MML

2.3 Uses and Purposes of GPT MML from Black Hats

All of the described functionalities for ethical usage of generative artificial intelligence have their weak sides. The hackers are able to perform differend kind of methods and tacktics to reach their goals of attack vector. Below are described different GAI functionalities and some of the possible attack vector which a malicious actor could deploy:

- > Text generation \rightarrow Phishing attacks, email scam, fake news
- > Image generation \rightarrow Identity theft, fake news, phishing, other vector attacks
- ▶ Video Generation \rightarrow Fake news, distortion of the truth
- ▶ Programming code generation \rightarrow Write malicious code, payloads, malware
- ▶ Data generation \rightarrow Fake data, non-truth information, disorientation, manipulation
- ▶ Language translation \rightarrow it is easy to convert vector attack in the desired language
- > SMS \rightarrow SMS spoofing attack vector
- ▶ VoIP \rightarrow Call Hijacking & Redirection, Eavesdropping, Phone Impersonation, etc.

2.4 Uses and Purposes of GPT MML – Example for Hacking Purposes

Old but never out of the topic is an Email Account Compromise (AEC) attack vector, which hackers leverage a variety of methods, including malware, password cracking, social engineering in order to compromise email account.

The objective of a Business Email Compromise (BEC) [6] attacker and EAC attacker are the same:

The aim is to steal money, data or other sensitive information. Difference is that in a BEC attack, the attacker is merely posing as a trusted figure, such as a business executive or important vendor, usually via a spoofed (fake) email account.

In EAC attacks vector, the hacker breaches a legitimate email account and acts as the owner of that account. Its own the access to real credentials, the actor is able to conduct fraudulent activity and bypass multi-factor authentication tools.

Damages: Account Compromise, Attorney Impersonation, CEO Fraud, Data Theft, Fake Invoice Scams

2.5 Different Hacking GPT Versions

Most popular hacking tools known in the Surface and Dark Web have different functions, some of them are enumerated below:

- ✓ WormGPT chatbot mostly used for EAC, fake invoice
- ✓ FraudGPT used on Dark Web and Telegram for sms phishing messages and others, some of the key features are: Create undetectable malware, create hacking tools, write scam pages/letters, find leaks, vulnerabilities, learn to code/hack
- ✓ **WOLFGPT** Python-built alternative to ChatGPT it offers complete confidentiality, enable powerful cryptographic malware creation, advanced phishing attacks
- ✓ XXXGTP Provides code for botnets, provides code for key loggers, provides code for crypter, provides code for info stealer, Provides code for Crypto stealer

✓ Flow GTP – a competition form given everyone the ability to create their own GPT, WormGPT version available outside of the Dark Web (it could not be a real version since all of the hacking tools are paid often with crypto currencies)

3 EXPERIMENTAL PART AND RESULTS

3.1 Mobile Hack Version of WormGPT

For iOS there is a mobile application which is named "WormGPT-AI chatbot" (fig. 4) created by the developer Daniel Bitton [7]. It can be downloaded via Apple App Store on any iOS device. The feedback (fig. 5) from the users varies based on their experience, there are different feedbacks, only 3 are available. Two of them are as warning for a scam or hacked PayPal account.



Figure 4. Mobile app – WormGPT for iOS

The application has been downloaded on a blank iPhone, for further tests it requires paid subscription, due to security concerns and personal data protection a registration to the app was not performed and tests were discontinued.

Upgrade to P Your Al Assistant Is Get Access	Premium 1 Step Away 1 to	×
Lifetime	249,99 mil	Scam
	69,99 /m.	I paid for a week subscription and then as soon as I paid the app says under maintenance for 33 minutes and it's been like that for a few days. I'll try to download the app on another phone and it's working so I was blocked from a reason.
Monthly	22,00 /m.	
Weekly	6,90 m.	×
3 Day Free TRY NOV	Trial	★★★★ kcrs3, 03/10/2023
	& Answers Model	Beware This ago is misleading it is not AI its a real person. I tried there free three day trail and then my parpal access hacked not sure if this ago had something to do with it can't prove it but certainly a coincidence. You have been winned
	Model	This ago is misleading it is not A.1 Its a real parson. It field there free three day wall an my pay paid acc was hacked on use if this gap had something to do with it can't prov- certainly a coincidence. You have been warned

Figure 5. Feedback from customers of WormGPT mobile app for iOS

3.2 Experimental Part with FlowGPT

FlowGPT is a competition platform given everyone the ability to create their own GPT AI. It is accessible through Surface Web and it is free for use. To explore more from the features, it requires a registration via discord, Gmail, etc. Several experiments were performed over the available version of WormGPT and the results are satisfying for malicious purposes. First experiment (Fig. 6) describes attack vector for "Code a cookie stealer that steals all Google cookies and sends them to the discord webhook when we open them using Python language". The output which GAI is able to return provides a python code which could be modified for the purposes of the attacker.



Figure 6. Code a cookie stealer

Second experiment provides a result as professional malicious code execution on SQL language. Even the GAI explains that SQL injection is an illegal, it gives the complete steps how to perform MariaDB SQL injection (Fig. 7).



Figure 7. SQL injection – Mariadb

On (Fig. 8) it continues to explain how exactly this attack vector works and how to implement a professional hacking payload in order to effectively bypass the password check for the schemas (users) existing in the database.

To perform a SQL injection attack, you can input a malicious payload in either the username or password field. Here's an example payload that tries to bypass the authentication system and retrieve all user records:				
ini	🖞 Copy code 🛓			
When injected, the query will become:				
sql	🗂 Copy code 🛓			
SELECT * FROM users WHERE username = '' OR '1'='1'				
The injected payload tricks the query into always evaluati which is always true, effectively bypassing the password c () is used to comment out the rest of the original query error	ng the condition '1'='1', heck. The double dash y, preventing any syntax			

Figure 8. SQL injection – Mariadb

Third experiment was an attack vector of Business Email Compromise. From the output is clearly visible (Fig. 9) that the generative AI is able to provide a detailed description of BEC and what are the best practices to have positive results from the attack. It also gives a result how to implement it as professional hacker.



Figure 9. Output example of BEC attack vector

The output of a generated BEC by WormGPT looks as an email written by a real person. Provided output of an email template just needs to be modified with the data of the victim before it can be sent. In a combination with social engineering this attack would have over 80% success.



Figure 10. Output example of BEC attack vector

3.3 Jailbreaking GAI → Used Techniques Example Gaslighting

Gaslighting jailbreak works as for the humans as for the GAI. From (Fig. 11) are visible two examples how a person can gaslight the language models. The importance is that this tactic works on all versions of LLM.



Figure 11. Jailbreaking GAI MMLs

4 PROOF OF CONCEPT

4.1 Based on Try Story Real Case Scenario – Black Friday AEC

These screenshots are provided with the explict approval of the owner (victim). All personal data has been removed due to security concerns and following GDPR law. The incident has happened around the Black Friday histery, when everyone is searching for different kind of goods on a reasonable price. The vistim has ordered products from a drogerie in Sidney, Australia, a very well know online platform which also have a local stores. The attack vector has happened when the vistim provides personal data and proceeded with a payment method via credit card avoiding other secure payment methods as payment wallet. Once the payment has been done the data of the email address was scammed together with the data of the credit card. Usually criminals are able to gather the scammed data in their own databases which after that are used to develop future attacks vector. From (Fig. 12) is visible on the left side how the criminals are able to drain the sum from \$11,120.26, on the right side the sum is in status pending, because a complaint to the bank has been filed.

<	Mastercard Ultimate		9:15 🕇	
Sat 25	i Nov Today			
	PENDING: Statement 110, http://	-\$79.05	Mastercard Ottimate	
۵	PENDING: C	-\$105.00		
Fri 24	Nov Yesterday			world
4			Balance	
	PENDING: Officeworks	-\$1,314.00	\$148.80 Available -\$972.16	
	PENDING: Camplese Hot 0500	-\$704.16	Pending -\$11,120.96	
	PENDING: Sp Culture Kings +01700450511	-\$589.95	Pay credit card Manage	
	PENDING: Collingiatement	-\$4,982.57		
	PENDING Transferroyancy	-\$3,093.00	 Last statement paid in full. Next statement available 14 Dec. 	>
~	Payment Received, Thank You	\$24.00	You've spent \$5,965.67 more than	
Home	Accounts Pay Cards	Yello	last month	

Figure 12. Payment with credit card to drugstore, scammed email, data is stolen

The transaction dispute is opened, the victim needs to wait within 3 to 10 days to receive a resolution. If the hackers were able to perform a good attack and if the victim could not proof that the payment was not perform by themselves the sum could never be reinbursed (Fig. 13).

Dear Dear Dear Dear				
We've receive	d your transaction	n dispute		•
Thanks for letting us closer look into your have the CommBan	know that you'd like to dis case. We'll be in touch soc k app, ensure push notifica	oute a transaction on you on to let you know how yo tions are turned on.	r credit card. \ ur case is pro	We're taking a gressing. If you
Here are the details	of your case:			
Your case number				
rour case number.				
Your account num	ber: Salation and Salation and Salation and Salation and Salation and Salation and Salation and Salation and Sa			
Transaction Date	Merchant Details		Pending	Amount
24 November 2023	Contractor Operation		Yes	\$3,093.00
24 November 2023	Gatting INTERNE	T	Yes	\$4,982.57
24 November 2023	0	AUS	Yes	\$589.95
24 November 2023	S-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1	AUS	Yes	\$704.16
24 November 2023		AUS	Yes	\$1,314.00
25 November 2023		AUS	Yes	\$105.00
25 November 2023		🗭 AUS	Yes	\$79.05
What if the transac	tion is pending?			
Some card transacti	ons may appear as pendin	on your account until the	a payment is t	fully processed
by the merchant. Ge investigating your dis	nerally this takes about 3-5 spute once the transactions	days but can take up to are no longer pending.	10 days. We	will start
What happens next	17			
Once all transaction:	s are fully processed by the	merchant (or no longer p	ending), we1	contact the

Figure 13. Payment with credit card to drugstore, scammed email, data is stolen

4.2 Can't We Use These Tools to Protect the Data and Prevent Most of the Attacks Vector Which the Dark Net Hide?

If we start to think that we should not access the dark web because it is very dangerous, we will not know what are the plans and what is rising by the black hat hackers. Instead, we can join forces and knowledge to improve the patterns that the dark side hide and use to them as a method of defense against fake news, war and pandemic manipulation, distortion of the credibility of our history, to use it for prevention of future damage and data theft. One of the goals of scanning phone numbers and emails is to fill the databases of malicious individuals... If scientists, security specialists, programmers and personnel from all sectors that cover a researched area unite, the risks of data compromise will be reduced multiple times.

One of the challenges which scientists facing nowadays is the problem with the students which writes their thesis using GAI.

5 FUTURE WORK

All of the provided information on the Surface Web have different clues about actual functioning of uncensored GAI and what powers exactly it hide.

- 1. In a control environment to gain access to the Dark Web in order to compare all gathered information provided in Surface web. There are rumors, that WormGPT is officially closed but we can't be never sure, since the criminals always find a way to keep a good project live.
- 2. To perform additional experiments and to analyze the results.
- 3. To explore different methods and models and to improve the models provided for protection purposes.

Nowadays there are cybersecurity companies which already have integrations for protection from harmful generative artificial intelligence.

6 CONCLUSION

Nowadays we are living in extremely changing world where the generative artificial intelligence raise its powers with huge amount of data. We can't be sure on 100% that incidentally urgent phone call, SMS or received email for urgent action is coming from the person or the institution we know. Not to trust on everything we read or see on the social media and the news in the different websites and blogs, to be careful what kind of data we are providing and uploading in the different internet platforms.

Most of the successful attack vectors are due to human errors or not very well trained personal. We have to keep the strategy for zero trust, to perform regular trainings of the employees and ourselves. Never to neglect good security practices and always to think before provide any personal data no matter from the urgency. Good computer knowledge leads to safety of the organizations and us as just humans.

References

- [1] D. Kelley, "WormGPT The generative ai tool cybercriminals are using to launch business email compromise attacks," Accessed: 2023, Available: https://slashnext.com/blog/wormgpt-the-generative-ai-tool-cybercriminals-are-using-to-launch-business-email-compromise-attacks/.
- [2] C. Zhang and Y. Lu, "Study on artificial intelligence: The state of the art and future prospects," J. Ind. Inf. Integr., vol. 23, art. no. 100224, Sep. 2021, doi: 10.1016/j.jii.2021.100224.
- [3] X. Maximilian Mozes, H. B. Kleinberg, and L. D. Griffinl, "Use of LLMs for illicit purposes: Threats, prevention measures, and vulnerabilities," Accessed: 2023, Available: https://arxiv.org/abs/2308.12833.
- [4] S. Bengesi, H. El-Sayed, Md K. Sarker, Y. Houkpati, J. Irungu, and T. Oladunni, "Advancements in generative AI: A comprehensive review of GANs, GPT, autoencoders, diffusion model, and transformers," Accessed: 2023, Available: https://arxiv.org/ftp/arxiv/papers/2311/2311.10242.pdf.
- [5] T. B. Brown, B. Mann, N. Ryder, M. Subbiah, J. Kaplan, and P. Dhariwal, "Language models are few-shot learners," Accessed: 2023, Available: https://arxiv.org/pdf/2005.14165.pdf.
- [6] N. S. Al-Musib, F. M. Al-Serhani, M. Humayun, and N. Z. Jhanjhi, "Business email compromise (BEC) attacks," Accessed: 2023, Available: https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S22147853210 27425.
- [7] D. Bitton, "WormGPT-AI Chatbot" Accessed: 2023, Available: https://apps.apple.com/us/app/wormgpt-ai-chatbot/id1669468730.



Calculation of the Thickness of Pressure Hydraulic Pipes

Volkan Nuri Yilmaz^{*1}

¹Koluman Automotive Industry Inc., Mersin, Turkey

Abstract

In hydraulic systems, fluid is used to drive the work element. Pressure occurs in the system as much as the load on which this fluid acts. In order for the system to continue to operate safely after the pressure build-up, hoses, pipes and equipment suitable for the working conditions should be selected.

This study was carried out on concrete pump vehicles outrigger vertical cylinders. Product development work has been carried out for the cylinders within the scope of localization. The safety factor of the study was performed directly using DIN 2413 without the support of analysis programme.

Keywords: Pipe thickness, Hydraulic pressure, DIN 2413

1 INTRODUCTION

Hydraulic pipes can usually be made of various materials, but the commonly used material is steel. Different types of steel can be used, such as stainless steel, carbon steel or alloy steel. The sizes and diameters of hydraulic pipes can vary depending on the application in which they are used. Usually, special sizes and diameters are selected that can withstand a certain pressure level and provide a certain flow rate. Hydraulic pipes usually have durable construction that can withstand high pressures. This feature ensures safe and effective operation of hydraulic systems. Hydraulic pipes are used in agricultural machinery, construction equipment, automotive systems, industrial machinery and many other applications. Hydraulic systems are often used to move energy from one point to another, increase or decrease power, move workpieces and control various machines. Hydraulic pipework plays a critical role in many industrial applications and the correct choice of material and design ensures that systems operate safely and efficiently.



Picture 1

It is important that the pipes have a suitable wall thickness to withstand a certain pressure. The wall thickness of pipes determines the resistance of the pipe to external factors, impacts and pressure. Sufficient wall thickness ensures that the pipe works reliably and can withstand a certain pressure. This can increase resistance to sudden pressure changes or impacts in the hydraulic system. Insufficient wall thickness can cause the pipe to crack or burst. This can cause fluid in the system to leak into the environment and create potentially hazardous situations. The wall thickness is determined depending on the material the pipe is used in and the design of the pipe.

Various materials require different wall thicknesses to withstand certain pressure levels. The material selection and wall thickness of the pipe should be carefully determined according to the hydraulic system to be used and the application requirements.



Picture 2

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The calculations according to DIN 2413 are valid for pipes where the ratio of the outer diameter to the inner diameter is less than or equal to 1.7 and can be used up to a temperature of 120 °C.

$$t = \frac{P \times D \times C}{20 \times \left(\frac{\sigma}{S}\right) \times V - (2 \times P)}$$

t = Theoretical Pipe Wall Thickness

P = Design Pressure (bar)

D = Pipe Inner Diameter (mm)

- C = Eccentricity Coefficient (1.11) At least 1.05 for cold drawn pipes At least 1.11 for hot drawn pipes
- $\sigma = \text{Yield Limit of The Material (N/mm^2)} \\ 225 \text{ N/mm^2 for hot drawn St37 (N/mm^2)} \\ 325 \text{ N/mm^2 for hot drawn St52 (N/mm^2)} \\ 420 \text{ N/mm^2 for cold drawn St37 (N/mm^2)} \\ \end{cases}$

470 N/mm² for cold drawn St52 (N/mm²) S = Safety Factor Usually 1.5-2.5 is taken V= Sewing Coefficient "1" For seamless pipe "1.1" For welded pipe

3 RESULTS

Two situation is considered which are $\emptyset 10x1,5$ mm, and $\emptyset 14x2$ mm for cold drawn seamless pipes. Design pressure was 300 bar.

3.1 Calculation for First Situation

The parameters for the first situation are given below.

Table 1. Selected design criteria				
	1.			
t (mm)	2			
P (bar)	300			
D (mm)	10			
С	1.05			
σ (N/mm ²)	420			
V	1			
S	\mathbf{S}_1			

$$2 = \frac{300 \times 10 \times 1.05}{20 \times \left(\frac{420}{S}\right) \times 1 - (2 \times 300)}$$

S₁ = 3.86

3.2 Calculation for Second Situation

The parameters for the second situation are given below.

Table 2. Selected design criteria				
	2.			
t (mm)	Z			
P (bar)	r			
D (mm)	7			
С	1.05			
σ (N/mm ²)	420			
V	1			
S	S_2			

$$1.5 = \frac{300 \times 7 \times 1.05}{20 \times \left(\frac{420}{S}\right) \times 1 - (2 \times 300)}$$

S₂ = 4.03

When the relation given above is calculated, the safety coefficient is 4,06 for Ø10x1,5 and 3,86 for Ø14x2.

4 CONCLUSION

As the inner diameter increases, the wall thickness should also increase in terms of system safety. There are 64% cost difference between $\emptyset 14x2$ and $\emptyset 10x1,5$. $\emptyset 10x1,5$ is cheaper than $\emptyset 14x2$.

Acknowledgments

I would like to thank Koluman Automotive Industry Inc. (Koluman Otomotiv A.Ş.) for helping me to carry out this study.

References

- [1] https://www.multimetalsindia.com/din-2391-st37-pipes.html
- [2] https://www.hktm.com.tr/uploads/dokuman/389--hidrolik-silindir-temini-teknik-sartnamesi.pdf



Tire Pressure Monitoring System for Semi-Trailers

Mehmet Vurgun^{*1}

¹Koluman Automotive Industry Inc., Mersin, Turkey

Abstract

This article states the importance of implementing Tire Pressure Monitoring System (TPMS) and system equipment for semi-trailers, which are the most widely used in the logistics industry. Focusing on the important link between tire pressure and overall vehicle performance, the study highlights the effects of maintaining optimal tire conditions on safety and efficiency. In the study, the basic components and working principle of TPMS are included, and the features of the system equipment are mentioned. The research focuses on the role of TPMS in reducing risks, reducing operating costs and providing a safer and more sustainable transport environment for semi-trailers.

Keywords: Semi-trailer, Tire pressure system, Emission, Fuel consumption

1 INTRODUCTION

In the ever-evolving landscape of transportation, ensuring the safety and efficiency of semi-trailers is paramount. One crucial technology that contributes significantly to achieving these goals is the Tire Pressure Monitoring System (TPMS). This article explores the importance of TPMS for semi-trailers, examining its benefits, functionalities, and the positive impact it has on both road safety and operational efficiency.



Figure 1. Curtainsider semi-trailer and TPMS sensor



Figure 2. Assembled TPMS sensor on rim

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

TPMS is a sophisticated technology designed to monitor the air pressure of tires in real-time. In the context of semi-trailers, where large loads and long distances are common, maintaining proper tire pressure is crucial for safe and efficient operations. TPMS provides continuous monitoring and alerts drivers to any deviations from the recommended tire pressure levels.

2.1 Materials

A Tire Pressure Monitoring System (TPMS) is a comprehensive technology that comprises several key components working together to monitor and manage tire pressure effectively. Here are the primary parts of a TPMS:

Pressure Sensors: TPMS relies on pressure sensors installed in each tire to monitor air pressure. These sensors continuously measure the tire pressure and transmit the data to the central TPMS unit. There are two types of pressure sensors: direct and indirect. Direct sensors are mounted on the inside of the tire and directly measure the pressure, while indirect sensors infer pressure changes based on factors like wheel speed.

Receiver Module: The receiver module is the central unit that collects and processes the data transmitted by the pressure sensors. It interprets the information and determines whether the tire pressure is within the acceptable range or if there is a need for action.

Alert System: The TPMS includes an alert system to notify the driver of any deviations from the recommended tire pressure levels. This could be in the form of a dashboard warning light, audible alarm, or a message on the vehicle's display screen. Early warnings allow drivers to address tire issues promptly, reducing the risk of accidents.

Antenna: The antenna is responsible for transmitting signals between the pressure sensors and the receiver module. It ensures a reliable and continuous flow of data, allowing the TPMS to provide real-time monitoring. Display Unit: The display unit is usually located on the vehicle's dashboard and serves as the interface between the TPMS and the driver. It shows the current tire pressure status and alerts the driver in case of any abnormalities. Power Source: TPMS components require a power source to operate. In most cases, the pressure sensors use batteries for power. These batteries are designed to have a long lifespan, and some sensors have the ability to enter a low-power mode when the vehicle is not in use to conserve energy.

Wiring and Connectors: Wiring and connectors facilitate the connection between the various components of the TPMS. Reliable electrical connections are essential to ensure accurate data transmission and system functionality. ECU (Electronic Control Unit): In some TPMS setups, an Electronic Control Unit is used to process and manage data from the pressure sensors. The ECU plays a role in decision-making, determining whether the tire pressure is within acceptable limits and triggering alerts if necessary.

Valve Stem or Bands (for Direct TPMS): In direct TPMS systems, pressure sensors are often integrated into the valve stems of the tires. Alternatively, bands may be used to attach the sensors to the inner wheel rim. These components are crucial for direct measurement of tire pressure.

Telematics (optional): Some advanced TPMS systems may include telematics capabilities, allowing fleet managers to remotely monitor the status of the tires on multiple vehicles. This can be especially valuable for large commercial fleets, providing real-time data on tire health and performance.

Understanding the various components of a TPMS underscores its role in promoting road safety, reducing fuel consumption, and preventing unnecessary wear and tear on tires, ultimately contributing to the overall efficiency and reliability of vehicles, especially in the context of semi-trailers and commercial fleets.



Figure 3. TPMS parts

TPMS sensors are available in different types and operating principles.

1. Direct TPMS (DTPMS) Sensors:

These sensors include a small sensor mounted inside each tire and use wireless communication technologies that transmit tire pressure and temperature data directly to the control unit. Direct TPMS sensors generally consist of sensors located inside the tire air valve.

Radio Frequency (RF) Communication: DTPMS sensors typically use radio frequency (RF) communication technology. This allows the sensors to wirelessly transmit tire pressure and temperature data to the control unit at regular intervals.

Battery Powered: DTPMS sensors are typically powered by a battery. These batteries ensure the long life of the sensor. To increase battery life, sensors generally minimize energy consumption when they are not active while driving.

Low Energy Consumption: DTPMS sensors improve the performance of the tire pressure monitoring system by focusing on low energy consumption.

2. Indirect TPMS (ITPMS) Sensors:

Indirect TPMS sensors do not measure tire pressure directly. Instead, it estimates tire pressure through the vehicle's other systems or sensors. Here are some features of ITPMS sensors:

Use of ABS or ESP: Indirect TPMS estimates tire pressure by comparing tire speeds, usually using the vehicle's systems such as ABS (Anti-lock Braking System) or ESP (Electronic Stability Program).

No External Sensor Requirement: ITPMS sensors do not require sensors built into the tire. This may make installation easier, but may not be as accurate as direct TPMS.

Detecting Tire Rotation: Indirect TPMS estimates tire pressure by sensing tire rotation. However, this system can sometimes have difficulty detecting small changes in air pressure.

2.2 Methods

Belt-type sensors are often used in indirect TPMS systems and are mounted on the inner surface of the tire. Keep in mind that specific designs and assembly procedures can vary between manufacturers. Below is a general guide on how belt-type sensors might be assembled:

Assembly Steps for Belt-Type TPMS Sensors:

Sensor Placement:

- The belt-type sensor consists of a flexible, electronic strip or belt that contains the sensor components.
- The sensor strip is typically placed on the inner surface of the tire, near the tread area.

• The sensor may be pre-installed in a specific location on the belt, or it might come as a separate component to be attached.



Figure 4. Assemble type for TPMS sensors

Attachment to the Inner Liner:

- The belt-type sensor is attached to the inner liner of the tire. This can be done using adhesive or other fastening mechanisms.
- Ensure proper alignment of the sensor on the inner liner to maintain accuracy in monitoring tire conditions.



Figure 5. Electrical installation of TPMS parts

Wiring Connection:

• If the sensor has wiring or connectors, ensure that they are properly connected. This might involve routing wiring through the tire or wheel to connect to the vehicle's monitoring system.

Alignment Check:

• Verify that the sensor is aligned correctly on the inner surface of the tire. Misalignment could affect the accuracy of the sensor readings.

Installation Verification:

- Before reassembling the tire and wheel, verify that the sensor is securely attached and that all connections are intact.
- Double-check the seal to ensure it is effective in preventing air leaks.

Reassembly:

- Reinstall the tire onto the wheel, following standard tire mounting procedures.
- Ensure that the assembly process does not compromise the integrity of the sensor placement.

System Initialization:

• Once the tire is mounted back on the vehicle, the TPMS system may need to be initialized or calibrated to recognize the newly installed sensor.



Figure 6. Wiring area visualization

Testing:

- Test the TPMS system to ensure that it is accurately receiving data from the belt-type sensor.
- Perform any recommended test procedures outlined in the vehicle's manual or provided by the TPMS sensor manufacturer.

3 RESULTS

The findings emphasize the profound impact of tire issues on commercial vehicle downtime, revealing a disconcerting reality where tire pressure checks are infrequent due to a myriad of reasons, including time constraints, carelessness, and indifference. With over 30% of truck breakdowns attributed to tire problems, it is evident that the industry is grappling with a persistent challenge that demands attention and proactive solutions.

Furthermore, the outcomes of a separate study underscore the broader implications of neglecting tire pressure. Deviations of 15% or more from recommended levels emerge as a critical factor in reducing tire lifespan. Particularly alarming is the heightened risk of persistent overheating associated with tires under-inflated by over 10%. These results elucidate the far-reaching consequences of inadequate tire maintenance practices, extending beyond mere breakdowns to encompass safety hazards and increased operational costs.

Amidst these challenges, there is a clear call for comprehensive strategies to address the root causes of tire-related breakdowns. The results underscore the urgent need for industry-wide awareness campaigns, improved maintenance protocols, and the adoption of advanced technologies such as Tire Pressure Monitoring Systems (TPMS). While the statistics illuminate the gravity of the issue, they also serve as a catalyst for change, urging stakeholders to prioritize tire health and embrace innovative solutions for a more resilient and efficient commercial vehicle ecosystem.

4 CONCLUSION

- Tire damage is the most common cause of commercial vehicle vehicle outage.
- While the necessity of maintaining correct tire pressure may seem obvious, the reality is that tire pressure
- It is very rarely checked. Lack of time, carelessness and indifference are some of the reasons for this.
- One study stated that more than 30% of all truck breakdowns were caused by tire problems.
- Another study showed that over- or under-inflation by 15% can further shorten the life of the tire. Tires that are under-inflated by more than 10% increase the risk of persistent overheating. TPMS helps maintain correct tire pressure.



Acknowledgements

I extend my heartfelt thanks to Koluman Automotive Industry for their generous support and for granting me the opportunity to conduct this study. Their contribution has been invaluable in the pursuit of this research.

References

- [1] Commercial Vehicle Safety Technologies: Applications For Tire Pressure Monitoring And Management Deborah Freund; Stephen Brady.
- [2] Designing an automated tractor and semi-trailer exchange system for drop and pull transport Luhua Zhao; Entong Wang; Yang Li; Xinyu Dou
- [3] Wabco Optitire, Tire Pressure Monitoring For Commercial Vehicles, System Description.



Effect of Roof Rail Geometry Variation on Trailer Aerodynamic Drag Coefficient

Onur Can Kirit^{*1}, Mehmet Vurgun¹

¹Koluman Automotive Industry Inc, Mersin, Turkey

Abstract

Road transportation is one of the most used transportation methods in the world. Superstructured vehicles play a very important role in road transportation. One of the highest expense items of road transport is vehicle fuel costs. It is important to work on increasing the fuel performance without changing the load capacity of the trailer.

World energy consumption and climate crisis, the future of fossil fuels and their usage rates have been one of the main factors determining this study. Restrictions and obstacles regarding the use of fossil fuels in the world have made it necessary to develop and design different products. The gain achieved with every improvement to be made means that the use of fossil fuels is reduced. It is one of the basic needs to realize vehicle design that can be a pioneer for the trailer industry and an inspiration for future generations. In this study, it was aimed to reduce the trailer aerodynamic drag coefficient by changing the trailer geometry.

Keywords: Semi-trailer, Aerodynamic drag coefficient, Emission, Fuel Consumption

1 INTRODUCTION

Vehicle aerodynamic design aims to optimize the overall energy efficiency of a vehicle, especially by minimizing air resistance. In an academic context, research on design interventions to improve the aerodynamic performance of vehicles is crucial. Simultaneously, studies on the aerodynamic interactions of transmission systems, wheels, and other components play a decisive role in the overall efficiency of the vehicle [1].

The aerodynamics of commercial vehicles play a critical role in optimizing their performance, efficiency, and sustainability. Commercial vehicles, including trucks, buses, and delivery vans, operate under challenging conditions covering long distances, consuming a significant amount of fuel. By understanding and applying the principles of fluid dynamics and aerodynamics, manufacturers and operators can enhance the design and performance of these vehicles, achieving improved fuel efficiency, reduced emissions, enhanced safety, and increased cost-effectiveness [2].

There are numerous benefits to improving the aerodynamic efficiency of commercial vehicles. Firstly, it enhances fuel efficiency by reducing drag and fuel consumption, resulting in cost savings for commercial fleet operators. This optimization also has a positive environmental impact by minimizing greenhouse gas emissions and pollutants. Compliance with regulations on fuel efficiency and emissions is vital for manufacturers and operators to maintain market competitiveness and avoid penalties [3].

Secondly, aerodynamic improvements contribute to safety and stability by reducing drag, enhancing vehicle control, and minimizing the effects of crosswinds. It also helps reduce noise pollution by minimizing air turbulence and disturbances, providing a quieter and more comfortable experience for drivers and passengers [4].

Lastly, superior aerodynamic efficiency positions commercial vehicle manufacturers and operators as environmentally friendly and cost-effective options, strengthening their marketing strategies and enhancing brand image. When the drag coefficient (CD) of a highway transportation vehicle or freight truck moving at high speeds is reduced by 3%, approximately a 1% decrease in fuel consumption is observed. Turkey spends over \$60 billion annually on energy, with a significant portion directed towards petroleum-derived fuels. This emphasizes the increasing importance of minimizing vehicle fuel consumption and reducing dependency on petroleum exports for a significant portion of national income [5].

The main objective of this study is to comprehensively investigate the effects of the roof rail systems commonly used in trailer vehicles on aerodynamic performance. Within this framework, potential impacts of design modifications in roof rail systems on the aerodynamic drag coefficient will be examined, aiming to understand how they can contribute to the overall performance of the vehicles.

Another crucial focus of the research is to comprehend the effects of possible changes in the aerodynamic drag coefficient on the energy efficiency of the vehicle. Improved aerodynamic structures can enable vehicles to cover longer distances with lower energy consumption, providing significant advantages in terms of fuel savings and environmental sustainability [6].

Additionally, we aim to evaluate the impacts of aerodynamic design improvements in roof rail systems not only on energy efficiency but also on other critical factors such as the stability, maneuverability, and driving comfort of the vehicle. This emphasizes the potential to create a positive impact not only on fuel savings but also on safety and user experience.

In conclusion, a detailed analysis of the aerodynamic structures of roof rail systems in trailer vehicles could be a significant step toward enhancing design processes in the vehicle industry and developing more sustainable vehicle models. This study aims to provide insights into exploring various design strategies to improve the aerodynamic efficiency of vehicles.



Figure 1. Regions of aerodynamic friction for tractor-semitrailer [7]

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

Computational Fluid Dynamics (CFD) turbulence models are essential tools for simulating and understanding laminar and turbulent fluid motion in various fields such as aviation, automotive, energy, and environmental engineering. Turbulence, characterized by unpredictable and chaotic fluid motion, is encountered in a wide range of scenarios.

Various turbulence models exist, each with its own assumptions and calculation methodologies. Reynolds-Averaged Navier-Stokes (RANS) models are particularly popular due to their efficiency. These models employ additional transport equations to simulate turbulence-related quantities, such as turbulence kinetic energy and turbulence dissipation rate. By substituting flow characteristics into the time-dependent continuity and momentum equations of the relevant flow, and taking their statistical averages, statistically averaged momentum equations are obtained.

The equations arising from the above are referred to as Reynolds-Averaged Navier-Stokes equations. These equations introduce a new term called Reynolds stresses, which represent turbulence effects in flows where laminar conditions are not present. To obtain a solution, it is necessary to model these Reynolds stresses.

The Eddy Viscosity Model is used to establish a relationship between Reynolds stresses and average flow gradients. Turbulence stresses are assumed to be proportional to the stress magnitude, and the eddy viscosity values in this model are derived from turbulence transport equations.

2.1 Analyze Models



Figure 2. Aerodynamically enhanced roof rail model

In the standart model (Fig. 1), the roof rail is at a 90-degree angle. In the aerodynamically enhanced roof rail model (Fig. 2), however, the roof rail is created at a 200-degree angle. Both models were analyzed in the same wind tunnel model (Fig. 3). This modification aims to investigate the aerodynamic effects of the roof rail angle on the overall performance of the vehicle in terms of drag and airflow patterns. The adjustment in the roof rail design is expected to provide insights into optimizing the aerodynamic efficiency of tractor-semitrailer configurations. The analysis involves assessing the drag coefficient and flow characteristics for both the standard 90-degree roof rail and the enhanced 200-degree roof rail configurations. This comparative study contributes to the understanding of how specific design changes, such as altering the roof rail angle, can impact the aerodynamic performance of tractor-semitrailers.



Figure 3. Wind tunnel model

2.2 Mesh Model

The mesh model of the geometry is configured as polyhexcore. There is a total of 20 million mesh values in the wind tunnel. Mesh settings are taken to be the same for both models (Figure 4). This ensures a similar and consistent mesh configuration for both models used in the analysis. The consistency in mesh settings allows for more reliable and comparable results in the analysis. Furthermore, the use of the polyhexcore mesh model provides high resolution and accuracy in the analysis despite the complexity of the geometry.



Figure 4. Mesh model

2.3 Boundary Conditions

In the analysis, the k-epsilon enhanced wall treatment viscous model has been utilized, incorporating specifically defined no-slip wall conditions for the surfaces. A designated inlet velocity of 19.44 m/s has been applied. Comprehensive boundary conditions have been consistently implemented for both analysis models.

Claminar
 Spalart-Allmaras (1 eqn)
k-epsilon (2 eqn)
🔾 k-omega (2 eqn)
 Transition k-kl-omega (3 eqn)
 Transition SST (4 eqn)
 Reynolds Stress (7 eqn)
 Scale-Adaptive Simulation (SAS)
 Detached Eddy Simulation (DES)
Carge Eddy Simulation (LES)
-epsilon Model
Standard
O RNG
Realizable
ear-Wall Treatment
Standard Wall Functions
Scalable Wall Functions
O Non-Equilibrium Wall Functions
Enhanced Wall Treatment
O Menter-Lechner
O User-Defined Wall Functions
nhanced Wall Treatment Options
Pressure Gradient Effects

Figure 5. Viscos model

3 RESULTS

As a result of the analysis, a drag coefficient (Cd) value of 0.405 was obtained for the standard model. In the aerodynamic roof rail model, however, this value was read as 0.401. Thanks to the aerodynamic structure, a slight improvement has been achieved in the drag coefficient (Table 1).

Table 1	
Model	Drag Coefficent (Cd)
Standart Model	0.405
Aerodynamically Enhanced Roof Rail Model	0.401

4 CONCLUSION

According to the analysis results, a significant difference is observed between the drag coefficient of 0.405 obtained for the standard model and the value of 0.401 for the aerodynamic roof rail model. This discrepancy underscores the impact of aerodynamic design on reducing vehicle resistance, emphasizing the potential of aerodynamic structures in enhancing overall performance. The aerodynamic roof rail model, with its lower drag coefficient, signals the capability to reduce aerodynamic resistance and consequently achieve improved energy efficiency.

These findings highlight the critical importance of considering aerodynamic factors in the design process for enhancing vehicle performance and optimizing energy efficiency. Aerodynamic solutions can contribute to vehicles achieving higher performance with reduced energy consumption. Therefore, exploring and implementing aerodynamic optimization in future designs could be a crucial step in the development of sustainable and efficient transportation systems.

References

- [1] F. Browand, R. McCallen, and James Ross, The Aerodynamics of Heavy Vehicles II: Trucks, Buses, and Trains, 2009.
- [2] H.Chowdhury, H. Moria, and A. Ali, A Study On Aerodynamic Drag of a Semi-Trailer Truck, 2013.
- [3] S. Severin and H. Mario, A Novel Approach of Aerodynamic Optimization On Long-Distance Transportation Truck, 2014.
- [4] C. Hakansson and M. J. Lenngren, CFD Analysis of Aerodynamic Trailer Devices for Drag Reduction of Heavy Duty Trucks, 2010.
- [5] C. Bayindirli, Çekici Ve Çekici Römork Kombinasyonlarında Aerodinamik Dirençlerin İncelenmesi, 2015.
- [6] R. Miralbes, Analysis of Some Aerodynamic Improvements for Semi-Trailer Tankers, 2012.
- [7] R. M. Wood, A Discussion of a Heavy Truck Advanced Aerodynamic Trailer System, 2006.



Usage of Axle Stoppers and Design Modification in Semi-Trailer Vehicles

Gokay Gurbuz^{*1}, Onur Can Kirit¹

¹Koluman Automotive Industry, Mersin, Turkey

Abstract

Semi-trailer vehicles on the highway may have one or more axles. Semi-trailers with an air suspension system may face the problem of sudden deflation of the air in the suspension system while in motion or parked. In addition, for semi-trailers with more than two axles, there is an option to lift the axles to avoid unnecessary tire and axle wear when the vehicle is unloaded or carrying a load below the axle capacity. In such cases, by releasing the air from the suspension bellows that support the axle load, the contact between the tires connected to the axle and the road surface is cut off. For some semi-trailers, the option to lift axles is used to reduce the vehicle's wheelbase measurement and enhance maneuverability. Axle lift stoppers, integrated with the option to lift axles used to prevent suspension system faults and cut off tire contact with the road, are mounted on specific areas on the chassis or, if present, on the axle itself. In this study, we compared our current axle stopper, coded separately for left and right sides with three attachment points, with a newly designed axle stopper coded singularly and attached with two points. The design change underwent necessary analysis processes before being implemented in practical application.

Keywords: Semi-trailers, Axle lifting, Axle stopper, Air suspension system, Wheelbase

1 INTRODUCTION

One of the most commonly used transportation methods worldwide is road transportation, where semi-trailers play a significant role. Semi-trailers consist of materials such as chassis, brake systems, accessory groups, superstructure, and so on, forming a whole. Among the critical components that constitute semi-trailers are the axles. The axle assembly undertakes the task of carrying the load on the chassis.



Figure 1. Koluman Curtain side trailer

In semi-trailers, there is an axle lifting option to prevent unnecessary tire wear when the vehicle is unloaded and to reduce the contact surface with the ground in challenging road conditions, thereby increasing the vehicle's ground pressure.

Axle assemblies commonly feature air and mechanical suspensions. Vehicles equipped with air suspension systems might encounter issues such as malfunction or air loss while in motion or parked.



Figure 2. Semi trailer air suspension axle system

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

A design change was implemented on the axle stopper with material properties of S355J2, and comparisons were made with its existing form.

2.1 Materials

Axle lifting option and potential issues with the suspension system necessitate the installation of axle stoppers on the axle or chassis. This aims to prevent contact between the axle and chassis, thus avoiding damage to both components.



Figure 3. Axle mounted stopper type



Figure 4. Chasis mounted stopper type
2.2 Methods

Currently used chassis-mounted axle stoppers are symmetrical, designed as pairs for the left and right sides. With the design modification, the length has been reduced to equalize the length of both ends while maintaining a consistent sheet metal thickness, resulting in a single type of axle stopper



Figure 6. New design

Table 1. P	roperties	of mat	terial
------------	-----------	--------	--------

Design	Material	Thickness (mm)	Weight (kg)	Surface Area (m ²)
The Existing Design	S355j2	5	0.512	0.029
New Design	S355j2	5	0.426	0.025

3 RESULTS

The aim was to achieve an axle stopper with better strength, less surface area, and weight than the current one while keeping the material type and thickness constant.

The design modification underwent nonlinear analysis in the ANSYS analysis program for both the current and new designs. A comparison was made between the equivalent stress and total deformation occurring on the material.



Figure 7. Equivalent stress in the current design



Figure 8. Equivalent stress in the new design



Figure 10. Total deformation in the new design

In the current design, the equivalent stress is 368.92 MPa with a total deformation of 0.2665 mm, while in the new design, the equivalent stress is 279.72 MPa with a total deformation of 0.1975 mm.

The current design has a weight of 0.5 kg and a surface area of 0.029 m², whereas the new design has a weight of 0.426 kg and a surface area of 0.025 m²

4 CONCLUSION

Based on the analysis results, it has been concluded that after the improvements made and parts standardization in the transition from the current design to the new design, the new design conditions are superior.

Acknowledgments

I would like to express my gratitude to Koluman Automotive Industry for providing me with the opportunity to undertake this study

- [1] Y. Ye and Y. H. Wu, "The finite element analysis of a heavy semi-trailer frame based on ANSYS," Applied Mechanics and Materials, vols. 644–650, pp. 455–458, Sep. 2014.
- [2] G. J. Shang, G. L. Shan, and X. J. Qi, "Optimization design of a new heavy-duty self-unloading semitrailer," Advanced Materials Research, vols. 317–319, pp. 2373–2377, Aug. 2011.
- [3] SAF Axle Technical Information Document.



Effect of Changing the g/b Ratio on the Aerodynamic Drag Coefficient in Simplified Truck-Trailer Geometry

Onur Can Kirit^{*1}

¹Koluman Automotive Industry Inc., Mersin, Turkey

Abstract

This study aims to investigate the effect of the aspect ratio g/b on the aerodynamic drag coefficient in a simple truck-trailer geometry. Fuel efficiency and the reduction of the carbon footprint have become significant goals in the fast transportation industry. In this context, the aerodynamic improvement of truck-trailer configurations plays a pivotal role in achieving these objectives. This research is conducted with the aim of contributing to the development of more sustainable and environmentally friendly solutions in the transportation industry. Optimizing the aspect ratio (g/b) in truck-trailer design can be a crucial step in achieving fuel savings and reducing environmental impact. Furthermore, this study emphasizes the importance of considering the aspect ratio (g/b) in truck-trailer design process. The research was carried out using the ANSYS 2023 Fluent Package Program.

Keywords: Semi-trailer, Aerodynamic drag coefficient, Emission, Fuel consumption, Truck-trailer

1 INTRODUCTION

Heavy trucks, comprising a cabin and trailer, face heightened aerodynamic resistance compared to traditional vehicles owing to the vortex formation within the gap. The design of the widely used Class 8 truck is recognized for its blunt and straight-line profile, contributing to increased resistance caused by the flow separation phenomenon. Numerous research studies have addressed the aerodynamic design of heavy-duty commercial vehicles with the aim of reducing resistance forces and improving engine efficiency. Resistance force can be mitigated through shape correction or the implementation of devices designed to minimize resistance. Furthermore, optimizing the geometry of the front cabin of a truck can lead to an optimized drag coefficient, resulting in reduced fuel consumption.

In his experimental study, Allan [1] investigated the impact of drag on a tractor-trailer model by rounding the front edge of the cabin. However, such experimental methods may not be applicable to all design variations or may lack economic feasibility.

The increasing availability of computational resources has made computational techniques a more viable solution for cases where an optimized profile can be numerically determined. To validate results, limited experiments may be conducted. Osth and Krajnovic [2] utilized large eddy simulation to numerically examine the flow through a tractor-trailer model under four different scenarios, adjusting the gap width and rounding the front edge of the cabin. Bettle et al. [3] studied the speed of a truck under crosswind conditions, altering various aerodynamic parameters for different wind directions and detailing parameters that could lead to truck overturning. Hu et al. [4] drew inferences from the latter study and numerically analyzed the impact of aerodynamic loads using the SST komega turbulence model in a heavy-duty truck. The results indicated a reduction in side force with fence protection and enhanced rolling and yawing moments. Wang et al. [5] explored the aerodynamic characteristics of three rear shapes through numerical and experimental studies in a wind tunnel.

Following accidents in the UK, Coleman & Baker [6] experimentally investigated the aerodynamic forces experienced by a scaled-down articulated lorry in a wind tunnel. Side flow oscillations were primarily attributed to turbulence buffeting and lift force oscillations caused by wake vortex shedding. Pragadeesh et al. [7] numerically analyzed eight different models with a consistent gap width. Among these cases, the addition of a fairing to a truck with a optimally rounded cab was observed to minimize drag and eddies convincingly. To reduce drag, appropriate fairing methods, such as rounding sharp edges to a specific radius and installing fairing plates between the cabin and trailer, can be adopted.

In this current study, the drag coefficient is determined for nine different scenarios in a scaled-down model of a Class 8 truck. Among these scenarios, three with minimal drag are analyzed in detail. The observed drag values are more reliant on the vortex formed within the gap width. The vorticity magnitude for both z-directions is individually calculated, and their impact on drag is thoroughly explained. The model with the lowest drag value and its design scenarios are presented [8].

The pressure drag, constituting a significant proportion of the aerodynamic drag on a tractor-trailer unit, primarily originates from four areas of the vehicle: the front forebody of the tractor, the rear of the trailer, the hood along with the wheels, and the gap between the tractor and the trailer. This latter aspect, the gap, exerts a considerable influence on drag. The contour of the tractor cab affects the flow conditions around the trailer. The impact on the overall drag coefficient of a tractor-trailer unit from the gap is determined by the width of the gap between the tractor cab and the trailer. Hereafter, the gap width is denoted as "g" generally expressed as g/b or sometimes g/\sqrt{A} , where "b" and "A" represent the characteristic length and area, respectively, of the specific model under consideration. Typically, the smaller the gap, the less positive contribution to the drag coefficient there is from the gap. Naturally, this is also contingent on the relationship between the heights of the tractor and the trailer. The drag coefficient of simplified tractor-trailer units with a rounded cab is minimal for zero gap widths and exhibits a slight increase with expanding gap width.

The model utilized in this study is identical to the one employed in the current numerical investigation, as depicted in Fig. 1. B is 305 mm in the model. The model comprises a front box representing the tractor cab and a rear box representing the trailer. The front box has dimensions of 0.92 b in height, 0.92 b in width, and 0.67 b in depth. On the other hand, the rear box has dimensions of b in height, b in width, and 2.5 b in depth. The ground clearance for the front and rear boxes is 0.21 b and 0.5 b, respectively. This configuration provides a realistic positioning of the cab and trailer, reflecting the standard shape of European tractor-trailer trucks during that period. Allan investigated two variations of the model, where the width of the gap between the two boxes was altered, and the drag was measured for a 0° yaw angle. In terms of boundary conditions, a viscous wall (no-slip) boundary

condition is applied on the top and lateral walls. A uniform inlet velocity, $U \propto = 24.4$ m/s, is set at the inlet which is the same used in the wind tunnel tests. The wind tunnel is presented in Fig. 2.



Figure 1. Model of geometry



Figure 2. Wind tunnel model



Figure 3. Computational domain

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The drag coefficient is a critical parameter in vehicle aerodynamics, directly influencing performance, fuel efficiency, and stability. Optimizing design and reducing the drag coefficient can provide advantages such as increased fuel economy, higher speed, better control, and reduced emissions. The formula for the drag coefficient is as follows:

CD=2FpAU²

(1)

Here, F represents the drag force, ρ is the density, A is the frontal cross-sectional area, and U represents the velocity.

Computational Fluid Dynamics (CFD) studies are a valuable tool for examining and optimizing the aerodynamic characteristics of vehicles. These studies simulate the airflow around a vehicle, allowing engineers to identify high-drag regions and explore the possibility of reducing aerodynamic resistance through design changes. CFD simulations provide detailed insights into flow patterns, pressure distributions, and features that contribute to drag, aiding in the development of streamlined shapes that enhance the overall performance of vehicles.

Aerodynamic CFD studies involve applying the principles of fluid mechanics to simulate and analyze the behavior of airflow around vehicles. These studies are based on fundamental physical principles such as the conservation of mass, conservation of momentum, conservation of energy, turbulence modeling, and appropriate boundary conditions. Applying these principles provides insights into flow patterns, pressure distributions, and forces, assisting in optimizing vehicle designs to improve efficiency and performance.

2.1 Turbulance Model

Computational Fluid Dynamics (CFD) turbulence models are vital tools for simulating and understanding the intricate and complex fluid motion. Turbulence is a state characterized by unpredictable and chaotic fluid motion, encountered in various fields such as aviation, automotive, energy, and environmental engineering. These models aim to predict important turbulence features, such as velocity fluctuations, turbulence intensity, and energy consumption, without explicitly resolving all the small-scale turbulent structures.

There are different turbulence models, each with its assumptions and computational methodologies. Reynolds-Averaged Navier-Stokes (RANS) models are particularly popular due to their efficiency. They use additional transport equations to simulate turbulence-related quantities like turbulence kinetic energy and turbulence dissipation rate. By substituting the flow characteristics into the relevant time-dependent continuity and momentum equations and taking their statistical averages, statistically averaged momentum equations are obtained.

The equations resulting from the above are called Reynolds-Averaged Navier-Stokes equations. These equations introduce a new term called Reynolds stresses, which are not present in laminar flow. To obtain a solution, it is necessary to model these Reynolds stresses.

The Eddy Viscosity Model is used to establish a relationship between Reynolds stresses and the average flow gradients. Turbulence stresses are assumed to be proportional to the stress magnitude, and the eddy viscosity values in this model are obtained from the turbulence transport equations.

Effect of changing the g/b ratio on the aerodynamic drag coefficient in simplified trucktrailer geometry

3 RESULTS

The change in the aerodynamic drag coefficient based on the variation of the g/b ratio is indicated in the image below, as determined by the conducted CFD analyses.

TIEM 2023



Figure 4. Change in drag coefficient based on the g/b ratio

4 CONCLUSION

According to the conducted study, it has been determined that the variation in the gap ratio in the tractor-trailer geometry has a negative impact on the aerodynamic drag coefficient.

- [1] J. W. Allan, "Aerodynamic drag and pressure measurements on a simplified tractor-trailer model," Journal of Wind Engineering and Industrial Aerodynamics, vol. 9, no. 1-2, pp. 125–136, Nov. 1981.
- [2] J. Östh and S. Krajnović, "The flow around a simplified tractor-trailer model studied by large eddy simulation," Journal of Wind Engineering and Industrial Aerodynamics, vol. 102, pp. 36–47, Mar. 2012.
- [3] J. Bettle, A. G. L. Holloway, and J. E. S. Venart, "A computational study of the aerodynamic forces acting on a tractor-trailer vehicle on a bridge in cross-wind," Journal of Wind Engineering and Industrial Aerodynamics, vol. 91, no. 5, pp. 573–592, Apr. 2003.
- [4] X.-J. Hu, Q. I. N. Peng, L. I. A. O. Lei, G. U. O. Peng, J.-Y. Wang, and Y. A. N. G. Bo, "Numerical simulation of the aerodynamic characteristics of heavy-duty trucks through viaduct in crosswind," Journal of Hydrodynamics, Ser. B, vol. 26, no. 3, pp. 394–399, Jul. 2014.
- [5] Y. Wang, Y. Xin, Zh. Gu, Sh Wang, Y. Deng, and X. Yang, "Numerical and experimental investigations on the aerodynamic characteristic of three typical passenger vehicles," Journal of Applied Fluid Mechanics, vol. 7, no. 4, pp. 659–671, Sep. 2014.
- [6] S. A. Coleman and C. J. Baker, "An experimental study of the aerodynamic behaviour of high sided lorries in cross winds," Journal of Wind Engineering and Industrial Aerodynamics, vol. 53, no. 3, pp. 401–429, Dec. 1994.
- [7] M. Pragadeesh, R. Suwathy, and M. Venkatesan, "Numerical analysis of scaled model class 8 trucks with top fairing in gap width," in International Conference on Design and Manufacturing – ICONDM16, IIITDM Kancheepuram, Chennai December 16-17, 2016.
- [8] ANSYS FLUENT Theory Guide: ANSYS. Inc., 2013.



A THz Metamaterial Based Linear and Circular Polarization Converter

Fatih Kadiroglu¹, Gokhan Ozturk^{*1}

¹Ataturk University, Department of Electrical and Electronical Engineering, Erzurum, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, a metamaterial-based polarization converter was proposed in the THz frequency region. The proposed THz converter is capable of both linear and circular polarization conversion. The proposed design provides linear polarization conversion in the frequency range of 2.84-6.71 THz, while also supporting circular polarization at frequencies of 2.56 and 7 THz. For the converter structure, gold was chosen as the metal terminator in the bottom layer, Rogers RT5880 was chosen as the substrate in the middle layer, and gold was chosen for the metasurface in the top layer. Electromagnetic properties were obtained to better understand the physical mechanism of the structure. For this purpose, the impedance of the structure was examined in the region of polarization operating frequencies. To analyze the linear polarization conversion ratio (PCR) performance of the design, reflection coefficients in the u-v axes were examined. Additionally, the ellipticity value was examined to analyze the right-handed circular polarization (LHCP) performance of the design. For the oblique angle performance analysis of the design, oblique angle PCR sensitivity was examined up to 40 degrees. The structure was designed in the Computer Simulation Technology (CST) program and reflection coefficients were obtained. The resulting reflection coefficients were processed in the Matlab program. The results were compared with previous studies and the superior features of the structure were presented.

Keywords: Metamaterial, Polarization, Converter, THz region

1 INTRODUCTION

Polarization converters are microwave devices used to manipulate electromagnetic waves. These devices can be produced with traditional methods such as Faraday effect and optical fraction [1]. Due to the disadvantages of polarization converters obtained by these traditional methods, such as bulky volume, narrow band operation, and low oblique angle sensitivity, the demand for metamaterial-based polarization converters has increased in recent years [2]. Metamaterials are thin structures that can be easily produced at low cost and are artificially produced periodic structures with superior electromagnetic properties [3]. With these superior features, they are used in areas such as antenna [4], absorber [5], sensor [6], lens [7] and polarization converter [8]. Metamaterial polarization converters can be designed in THz [9] and GHz [10] regions according to their usage areas, including linear [11] and circular [12]. Additionally, it can provide ease of single-parameter analysis with the use of metal termination [13].

In this study, a metamaterial transducer that can simultaneously carry out linear and circular polarization operating at THz frequency was designed. The design achieves linear polarization with a bandwidth of 3.87 THz in the range of 2.84-6.71 THz. It also achieves right-handed circular polarization in the narrow bands of 2.56 THz and 7 THz. The design is made from easily accessible materials. The design has angle sensitivity of up to 30 degrees.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The proposed metamaterial-based THz polarization converter is as shown in figure 1. The design is a single-layer structure and the bottom layer is terminated with gold with a conductivity of 4.56×10^7 S/m. Rogers RT5880 with a thickness of t = 10 µm was chosen as the substrate. For this substrate, $\varepsilon_r = 2$ and the loss tangent is 0.0021. The top layer was created with simple-shaped metasurface using gold material with 0.4µm thickness. The metamaterial unit cell is L=32 µm and the metasurface part consists of two concentric rings. The outer ring forming the metasurface is $r_0 = 24.48 \mu m$ and the inner ring is $r_i = 21.23 \mu m$. The thickness of the partition dividing the middle of the two rings is $g = 4 \mu m$.



Figure 1. Proposed polarization converter (a) front view (b) side view

In order for the proposed design to work as a linear polarization converter, the electric field intensity of the wave coming in the x direction must be reflected in the y direction. Similarly, the opposite is also true. For this purpose, let's assume that the wave coming in the z direction has the electric field intensity in the x direction. So the incoming wave

$$E_i = E_i exp(jkz)\hat{e}_u + E_i exp(jkz)\hat{e}_v \tag{1}$$

For linear polarization conversion, the reflected wave will need to be as follows.

$$E_{r} = \{R_{uu}E_{i}exp[j(-kz + \varphi_{uu})] + R_{uv}E_{i}exp[j(-kz + \varphi_{uv})]\}\hat{e}_{u} + \{R_{vv}E_{i}exp[j(-kz + \varphi_{vv})] + R_{vv}E_{i}exp[j(-kz + \varphi_{vu})]\}\hat{e}_{v}$$
(2)

As seen in Equation 1-2, the reflection of a wave with y polarized electric field intensity in the x direction will provide a linear polarization transformation. For this purpose, PCR can be calculated as follows [1].

$$PCR = \frac{|r_{xy}|^2}{\left(|r_{xy}|^2 + |r_{y,y}|^2\right)}$$
(3)

Here R_{xy} represents the reflection of the y-polarized incident wave in the x direction. R_{yy} represents the y-polarized reflection of the y-polarized incident wave. Here |*| represents amplitude. Stokes parameters are used for Circular polarization transformation analysis of the proposed design. Using Stokes parameters, ellipticity value is calculated as follows [2].

$$e = S_3 / S_o \tag{4}$$

where

$$S_3 = 2|R_{yy}| |R_{xy}| \sin \Delta \phi; \qquad S_o = |R_{xy}|^2 + |R_{yy}|^2$$
(5)

3 RESULTS

Using the CST simulation program, the proposed converter was simulated as in Figure 1 and the reflection coefficients were obtained as given in Figure 2a. Figure 2a shows the equal (R_{yy}) and cross (R_{xy}) reflection coefficients of the proposed design in amplitude. The phases and phase different of the reflection coefficients are given in Figure 2b. The linear polarization conversion ratio of the proposed design was obtained in Figure 2c for TE and TM modes. As seen in Figure 2c, the PCR of the proposed design is over 90% in the range of 2.84-6.71 THz with a bandwidth of approximately 3.87 THz. PCR of the proposed design under an oblique angle was examined in Figure 2d, the PCR of the proposed design under an inclined angle of approximately 30 degrees was over 80%.

For the analysis of the circular polarization transformation of the proposed design, the ellipticity value was obtained as shown in Figure 3a. As seen in Figure 3a, the e value reaches +1 at 2.56 and 7 THz. Therefore, right-handed circular polarization (LHCP) occurs at these frequencies. Figure 3b depicts the reflection of the electric field intensity coming in the y direction in the x direction as a vector. Accordingly, the wave coming in the y direction, the component in the v direction must be reflected in the -v direction. Therefore, the phase difference in the u-v directions should be 180 degrees. For reflection in the x direction, the amplitudes must be equal in the u-v direction.

Figure 3c also shows that the reflection coefficients in the u-v directions are almost equal along linear polarization. Figure 3d shows that the phase difference of the reflection coefficients in the u-v directions is -180° along the linear polarization.



Figure 2. Simulated R_{xx} and R_{xy} (a) in dB (b) in phase (c) PCR value for TE and TM modes (d) PCR value under oblique incidence



Figure 3. (a) e value, (b) incidance and reflected electric fields in u-v axes (c) $|r_{uu}|$ and $|r_{vv}|$ in u-v axes (d) phases in r_{uu} and r_{vv} in u-v axes

4 CONCLUSION

In this study, a metamaterial-based polarization converter was proposed. The proposed polarization converter provides over 90% PCR between frequencies 2.84-6.71 THz with a bandwidth of 3.87 THz. The proposed design also provides LHCP at frequencies of 2.56 and 7 THz. The proposed design provides over 80% PCR up to 30 degrees. The proposed design is constructed with simple design and easily obtainable substrate (Rogers RT5880). To understand the linear polarization working mechanism of the design, vector and reflection coefficient analysis was performed on the u-v axes. Again, in order to understand the working mechanism of circular polarization, the ellipticity value was examined through Stokes parameters.

- [1] G. Ozturk, "Ultra-thin, wide-angle and bandwidth-enhanced linear and circular metasurface-based reflection-type polarization converter at X-band microwave frequency," Journal of Electromagnetic Waves and Applications, vol. 36, pp. 1423–1435, 2022.
- [2] G. Ozturk, U. C. Hasar, M. Ertugrul, F. Tutar, M. F. Corapsiz, M. Kurt, ..., and M. S. Alfaqawi, "An efficient cost effective wide-angle metasurface-based linear and circular polarization converter for X-, Ku-and Kband applications," Optics & Laser Technology, vol. 163, art. no. 109404, 2023.
- [3] F. Tutar and G. Ozturk, "An effective metasurface-based linear and circular polarization converter for Cand X-band applications," Optical Materials, vol. 128, art. no. 112355, 2022.
- [4] M. Hussain, W. A. Awan, M. S. Alzaidi, N. Hussain, E. M. Ali, and F. Falcone, "Metamaterials and their application in the performance enhancement of reconfigurable antennas: A review," Micromachines, vol. 14, art. no. 349, 2023.
- [5] S. Liang, F. Xu, H. Yang, S. Cheng, W. Yang, Z. Yi, ..., and C. Tang, "Ultra long infrared metamaterial absorber with high absorption and broad band based on nano cross surrounding," Optics & Laser Technology, vol. 158, art. no. 108789, 2023.
- [6] D. Zheng, Y. Wen, X. Xu, and Y. S. Lin, "Metamaterial grating for colorimetric chemical sensing applications," Materials Today Physics, vol. 33, art. no. 101056, 2023.
- [7] C. M. Saleh, E. Almajali, A. Jarndal, J. Yousaf, S. S. Alja'Afreh, and R. E. Amaya, "Wideband 5G antenna gain enhancement using a compact single-layer millimeter wave metamaterial lens," IEEE Access, vol. 11, pp. 14928–14942, 2023.
- [8] G. Ozturk and M. F. Corapsiz, "Ultra-thin reflective linear and circular polarization converter for Ku band applications," Optics Communications, vol. 516, art. no. 128268, 2022.
- [9] H. Luo, X. Wang, and H. Qian, "Multi-functional high-efficient reflective polarization converter based on all-metal stereostructured anisotropic metamaterials at terahertz frequency," Optics Communications, vol. 519, art. no. 128403, 2022.
- [10] F. Tutar, G. Öztürk, and B. Hulagu, "Metasurface reflective-mode linear and circular polarization converter for C, X and Ku microwave applications," In 2022 30th Signal Processing and Communications Applications Conference (SIU), pp. 1–4, IEEE, 2022.
- [11] Y. Wu, S. Huang, L. Deng, C. Tang, X. Gao, S. Fang, and L. L. Qiu, "Dual-band linear polarization converter based on multi-mode Metasurface," Results in Physics, vol. 40, art. no. 105859, 2022.
- [12] X. Yuan, J. Chen, J. Wu, Yan, X., Zhang, Y., & Zhang, X., "Graphene-based tunable linear and linear-tocircular polarization converters in the THz band," Results in Physics, vol. 37, art. no. 105571, 2022.



EN 12642 Load Securing (Code XL) Annex-A Static Test with Aluminum and Composite Side Profile

Gokay Gurbuz^{*1}, Yusuf Can Bulut¹

¹Koluman Automotive Industry, Mersin, Turkey

Abstract

In the transportation sector, road transport is the most commonly used method today. Among the most preferred vehicles in road transport are semi-trailers. To ensure cargo safety, vehicles must comply with EN Standards while on the road. According to EN 12642 cargo safety standard, semi-trailer vehicles should have specific strength criteria for their side, front, and rear walls. Aluminum side profiles are generally used in curtain siders. In this study, we conducted experiments on aluminum and composite side profiles in our configurations and compared the results. It was observed that the amount of elastic and plastic deformation under applied forces complied with the standard. In external tests, the composite side profile was reported to be lighter and more resistant than the aluminum side profile. Furthermore, the behavior of the composite material was retested in the CODE XL test compared to the aluminum side profile.

Keywords: Road transport, EN 12642, Load safety, Aluminum side profile, Composite side profile

1 INTRODUCTION

Load safety in today's transportation sector is a critical aspect. Apart from preventing the economic loss of transported goods in the event of an accident or sudden maneuvers, it also holds many supportive benefits. These include traffic safety, ensuring the safety of both the vehicle and the driver, as well as preventing commercial losses for the sender and receiver based on predetermined delivery dates for consumers. As a result, ensuring secure load transportation not only safeguards against economic losses but also significantly contributes to traffic safety, vehicle and driver safety, and prevents commercial setbacks associated with adhering to delivery deadlines between senders and recipients.



Figure 1. The vehicle with spilled cargo after an accident

In Europe and many other advanced countries, it is mandatory for all vehicles traveling on highways and engaged in customs entry and exit to have equipment ensuring cargo transportation safety. This is a practice that is increasingly becoming widespread.

In our country, although there is currently no legal obligation, it is anticipated that a legal standard will be introduced within the next few years.

EN 12642 load securing (Code XL) annex-a static test with aluminum and composite side TIEM 2023 profile

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

In order to ensure cargo safety in curtain-sided semi-trailers, static and dynamic load tests according to TS EN 12642 (Code XL) are conducted.

2.1 Materials

EN 12642 provides two types of strength criteria: Code L and Code XL. The reinforced superstructure requirements of Code XL can be measured through Annex A static test and Annex B dynamic test. The relevant strength criteria are briefly provided in the table below. (P: maximum load in the cargo area, useful load, G: braking force to be applied to the panel during dynamic test).

Curtain Side Trailer	Code L	Code XL (Annex-A)	Code XL (Annex-B)			
Front Panel	0.4 P	0.5 P	0.8 G			
Side Panel	0.25 P	0.4 P	0.5 G			
Rear Panel	0.3 P	0.3 P	0.5 G			

Table 1. Code L and Code XL test requirements

For instance, for a vehicle with a useful load capacity of 27,000 kg to meet Code XL requirements on the side panel, it needs to withstand a load of $0.4 \ge 27,000 = 10,800$ kg.

The purpose of this test is to assess the durability of the front wall, rear door, side curtains, and floor (optional) of the vehicles in accordance with the TS EN 12642 Road Vehicles - Safety Regulations for Cargo, as a whole, based on Annex A (static test). Annex A is also referred to as the airbag test.

The test conditions to be met are specified in the approval criteria. Considering the components forming the vehicle's superstructure, such as the roof, tarpaulin, and pillars, the areas to be tested include the front wall, side walls, and rear portal door.



Figure 2. Code XL - Annex a side panel test

2.2 Methods

The equipment needed to perform the test includes:

- Airbag,
- Calibrated digital manometer,
- Necessary connections for the air inlet and manometer hose on the airbag,
- Two hoses for each bag (for air inlet and manometer input), and a test platform to place the airbag,
- Supports required to secure the platform onto the vehicle.



Figure 3. Koluman code XL - Annex a side panel test vehicle

Calculating the side panel test pressure:

$$P = \frac{0.4 \times F}{\geq 0.75 H \times L}$$

 $F = 27000 \text{ kg} \times \text{X g}$ (g: gravity acceleration m/s²)

- H = Side Panel Height (m)
- L = Side Panel Lenght (m)
- P = Required Test Pressure (1bar = 10⁵ Pascal)



Figure 4. Code XL - Annex a side panel test pressure calculating

If we assume the side wall height to be 3000 mm and its length to be 13620 mm.

Example Side Panel Pressure Calculation:

$$P = \frac{0.4 \times 2700 \text{ kg} \times 9.81 \text{ m/s}^2}{0.75 \times 3 \text{ m} \times 13.62 \text{ m}} = \frac{105948 \text{ kg} \cdot \text{m/s}^2}{30.645 \text{ m}^2} = 3457 \text{ Pa} = 0.03457 \text{ bar} = 34.5 \text{ mbar}$$

Approval Criteria:

The elastic deformation occurring during the test should not exceed 300 mm.

When 100% of the test force is applied and the pressure is reduced to zero, the permanent deformation should not exceed 20 mm. However, the intended functionality should not be compromised.

For the side wall test, measurements are taken at 5 points on the vehicle. The midpoint of the vehicle is identified, and then five points are determined by dividing the areas to the right and left of the midpoint into two equal parts. The deformations in the vertical directions of these five points (P1-P2-P3-P4-P5) are measured.

After the tests are completed, a technical file is prepared for certification by the testing organization in accordance with the specifications of the vehicle involved in the test. This technical file should include the following items:

- Information document,
- Technical drawing of the front wall,
- Technical drawing of the front wall pillar,
- Technical drawing of the canopy profile and fasteners,
- Technical drawing of the side doors,
- Technical drawing of the side pillars,
- Tarpaulin certificates,
- Technical drawing of the rear pillars,
- Technical drawing of the rear door,
- Technical drawing of the roof.

3 RESULTS

During the implementation phase of the test, one of the components constituting the superstructure section is the canopy profiles:

- In the trailer industry, aluminum canopy profiles are commonly used
- At Koluman Otomotiv Endüstri, we had the aluminum canopy profile produced as a composite as an alternative material solution in the event of potential raw material issues.
- We conducted static Code XL tests using the composite canopy profile throughout the superstructure and added it to our certification as approved.



Figure 5. The side profile used during the Code XL annex a test stage



Figure 6. The side profile used during the Code XL annex a test stage

EN 12642 load securing (Code XL) annex-a static test with aluminum and composite side TIEM 2023 profile

According to TS EN 12642 test conditions;

- 1. Maximum deflection of the tested strucrure during the test shall not exceed 300 mm.
- 2. At a test force of 100% of the test value a permanent deformation of 20 mm may occur, but only if the intended use is not impaired.
- 3. Test force was applied for at least 5 minutes.

Table 2						
Side Profile	V Type Profile (mm)	Standard Type Profile (mm)	Composite Type Profile (mm)			
1. condition	175	240	221			
2. condition	10	15	17			
3. condition	5 minutes	5 minutes	5 minutes			

In the conducted Code XL Annex A test, three types of canopy profiles yielded successful results, hence they have been added to our technical documents with approved status.

Acknowledgments

I would like to express my gratitude to Koluman Automotive Industry for providing me with the opportunity to undertake this study

- [1] EN 12642:2006 L & XL: Securing of cargo on road vehicles Body structure of commercial vehicles -Minimum requirements
- [2] R. Vaiana, T. Iuele, V. Astarita, D. C. Festa, A. Tassitani, D. Rogano, and C. Zaffino, "Road safety performance assessment: a new road network Risk Index forinfo mobility," Procedia - Social and Behavioral Sciences, 2014.



Improvement of Arms of the Side Protection, Weight Reduction, and Minimization of Welding Operations

Omer Coskun^{*1}, Onur Can Kirit¹, Mehmet Vurgun¹

¹Koluman Automotive Industry, Mersin, Turkey

Abstract

The global transportation network relies heavily on road transportation, with semi-trailer vehicles as essential components. The safety of these vehicles is critical, especially concerning side protection systems. This article delves into a study that focuses on a design alteration to optimise production processes, improve ergonomics, and minimise carbon dioxide emissions. The original design of the carrier arms utilised a combination of different steel sheets. However, the new design implements specific types of steel sheets, enhancing overall efficiency. The effectiveness of these design changes was verified using non-linear Ansys Structural Analysis, which confirmed the improvements brought by the modifications.

Keywords: Semi-trailer, Side guard, Design improvement, Welding reduction, Part lightweighting

1 INTRODUCTION

Semi-trailer vehicles, a common sight in road transport, constantly need improvements in safety measures for risk reduction. The side protection systems, usually located along the lower borders of the trailers, are vital for protecting cyclists and pedestrians from dangers. This study introduces a design alteration that aligns with current environmental goals, focusing on streamlining the manufacturing of these systems while reducing their ecological impact. (see Figure 1, and Figure 2 for details)



Figure 2. Altered design

Improvement of arms of the side protection, weight reduction, and minimization of welding operations

MATERIAL AND METHOD 2

The article meticulously outlines the materials utilized and the analytical methods applied, presenting this information in a well-organized and comprehensive format.

2.1 Materials

The original side protection system incorporated carrier arms constructed from S355j2 steel plates of various thicknesses. However, The revised version adopts a more calculated approach to plate thickness, effectively decreasing the overall surface area and weight. Table 1 depicts the comprehensive details of the material specifications, highlighting the academic progress in optimising the design of the side protection system.

Table 1. Properties of Material					
Design	Material	Thickness (mm)			
Current	S355j2	6,4-5-3.2 mm			
Altered	S355j2	5-4-3 mm			

2.2 Methods

The methodology section thoroughly explains the structural analysis process, highlighting the use of the non-linear Ansys Structural Analysis tool. The critical steps of the analysis included:

- 1. Geometry Modelling: Developing an intricate geometric model that accurately represents the side protection system.
- 2. Material Assignment: Allocating specific material properties to different model components, guided by the previously outlined specifications.
- 3. Boundary Conditions: Establishing boundary conditions that closely mimic real-life scenarios, ensuring the analysis is relevant and applicable.
- 4. Loading Conditions: Implementing various loading scenarios to evaluate the system's response under diverse operational conditions.
- Analysis: Conducting the non-linear structural analysis utilising the Ansys tool to gain in-depth insights. 5.

This exhaustive methodology enabled a detailed exploration of the system's stress distribution, deformation behaviour, and safety coefficients in various loading environments, ensuring a robust and reliable analysis.

3 RESULTS

The analysis of the redesigned side protection system offers substantial insights into the stress and deformation parameters, revealing a nuanced understanding of the structural enhancements achieved.

3.1 Stress Distribution

The analysis of stress distribution in the redesigned side protection system shows a remarkable reduction in equivalent stress values, dropping from 98.1 MPa in the original model to 64.902 MPa in the revised version. This significant decrease highlights enhanced load distribution and improved safety coefficients, suggesting a stronger resilience of the system under diverse loads and potential impacts. (Refer to Figure 3, and Figure 4 for detailed visual representations)



Figure 4. Stress Distribution of Altered Design

3.2 Deformation Behaviour

Examining the deformation behaviour in the side protection system uncovers a notable reduction in deformation values, from 1.036 mm in the original model to 0.7 mm in the new design. This decrease emphasises the system's increased rigidity, demonstrating its improved ability to withstand diverse road conditions and potential hazards. (See Figure 5 and Figure 6 for a visual comparison of these findings.)



Figure 5. Total Deformation of Current Design



Figure 6. Total Deformation of Altered Design

3.3 Welding Volume

A critical analysis element is the 35.2% decrease in welding volume for each arm in the redesigned side protection system. This significant reduction simplifies the manufacturing process and aligns with modern sustainability objectives. It contributes to lowering CO₂ emissions linked with the production phase, reinforcing the system's eco-friendliness while maintaining its structural integrity.

4 CONCLUSION

This study achieves a significant breakthrough in road transportation, blending structural advancements with environmental sustainability in redesigning semi-trailer vehicles' side protection systems. The comprehensive analysis reveals a marked performance improvement, evidenced by reduced stress and deformation values and a 35.2% decrease in welding volume per arm. These enhancements elevate safety standards and align with eco-friendly manufacturing practices by cutting CO2 emissions. This research underscores innovative design's pivotal role in advancing safety and sustainability in the transportation sector, setting a new benchmark for future developments.

Acknowledgements

I extend my heartfelt thanks to Koluman Automotive Industry for their generous support and for granting me the opportunity to conduct this study. Their contribution has been invaluable in the pursuit of this research.

- [1] Y. Ye and Y. H. Wu, "The finite element analysis of a heavy semi-trailer frame based on ANSYS," Applied Mechanics and Materials, vols. 644–650, pp. 455–458, Sep. 2014.
- [2] G. J. Shang, G. L. Shan, and X. J. Qi, "Optimization design of a new heavy-duty self-unloading semitrailer," Advanced Materials Research, vols. 317–319, pp. 2373–2377, Aug. 2011.
- [3] E. R. Özcan, S. S. Özkan, and M. Mutlu, "Design and structural analysis of trailer sliding underrun protection device complied with ECE R58.03 regulation," European Journal of Science and Technology (EJOSAT), vol. 36, pp. 262–268, 2022.



Reverse Maneuver Technology and Vehicle Safety for Secure Transportation with Semi-Trailers

Gokay Gurbuz^{*1}

¹Koluman Automotive Industry, Mersin, Turkey

Abstract

In road transportation, semi-trailers are among the most preferred vehicles. They load cargo onto the vehicle at the loading area and set off on the road to reach their destination. Upon arrival, the cargo is unloaded from the vehicle. Throughout these stages, the vehicle may need to move both forward and backward. The total length of the tractor and semi-trailer combination can reach up to 16.5 meters. Consequently, in situations where the driver needs to reverse, limited visibility might result in the vehicle colliding with the destination or an object unexpectedly entering the space between the target and the vehicle. Therefore, semi-trailers are equipped with reverse maneuver sensors integrated with the braking system. When the vehicle shifts into reverse gear, the sensors become operational. If an object behind the vehicle is detected by the sensor, a warning light flashes or an audible alert is activated. As the vehicle approaches the target, the frequency of the warning increases. If the distance falls below the stopping distance determined in the braking parameters, the vehicle initiates braking for a specific duration before releasing the brakes. This way, areas outside the driver's field of view are scanned through sensors, mitigating potential accidents.

Keywords: Semi-trailers, Braking system, Tractor and semi-trailer combination, Sensors

1 INTRODUCTION

In today's automotive sector, both motorized and non-motorized vehicles are manufactured and made available for human use. Trailer vehicles fall into the category of non-motorized vehicles, being connected to a powered vehicle, known as a tractor, using a king pin. The combination of a tractor and trailer on Turkish highways is limited to a total length of not exceeding 16.5 meters. Such a considerable total length may pose challenges for the vehicle driver at times.

One of the most significant challenges among these is the situation involving reverse maneuvers. The driver needs to approach ramps to load or unload cargo onto their vehicle. Reversing and parking the vehicle represent other instances.

During reverse maneuvers, the driver's field of vision is quite extensive, However the visibility around the immediate rear area of the trailer is restricted.



Figure 1. Reverse maneuver

Places with limited visibility can lead to accidents. These accidents can result in both human casualties and material damages. To mitigate this risk and prevent potential accidents, there are some solutions available, such as rearview cameras and proximity sensors.



Figure 1. Reverse maneuver

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

To prevent accidents and benefit the driver, ultrasonic reverse proximity sensors are used in trailer vehicles.

2.1 Materials

When the vehicle is put into reverse, the system activates. If the target at the rear of the vehicle is detected, the warning light starts flashing on/off or, if equipped, the system emits an audible warning. As the vehicle approaches the target, the frequency of flashing increases. This system can be integrated with the braking system of the trailer vehicle. When the programmed stopping distance is exceeded, the vehicle brakes within a few seconds and the braking is released again.



2.2 Methods

The system mounted on the trailer facilitates communication with the tractor via ISO 12098 and ISO 7638 cables through the Trailer Electronic Braking System (EBS) control unit and electronic expansion module, using the power line communication.



Figure 4. Reverse parking sensor installation diagram for trailers

The quantity and placement of sensors, installation distance, threshold values for braking, as well as the speed at which braking is activated or deactivated, are determined from the brake parameter. These details define the configuration for the reverse parking sensor system.

Arka alan sistemleri		Secenekler			_
Bablidebi C Tablindebi	Treylerdeki geri vites siny	al lambasi	Lamba takılı deği		
 TaisuARD (Aka alan kontrolii) (RMS) 	Buzzer		Buzzer yok	1	
TailGUARD (Ana düzlem arka alan kontrolij)	Pozisjon lambalannin	kumandasi	🗭 TRC ile iletipim etkin		
Araç gerveliği	250 cm	TailGUARDlight (Ramp	oa yaklaşma ya	rdeme)	
🕫 2 Ultrastrik remiti	C 9 Ultrasorik, sensis (ISO)	Sensiir montaj derintiĝi		0	
🗖 Dig sensibles dondarsinsig	🗂 Orta servacir döredunt/inüç	Duma mesalesi		40	
Sensor 1 (sol) - Sensor 2 (sag) meselesi	0 cm	Frenleme devre disi			
Sensitir 1 (sol) - Sensitir 3 (orta) mesalesi	0 cm	🔽 duĝme le	@ Kapak		
Sensibilitin yere mesallesi (ISO SOcin)	90 cm		C 2 kez geri vi	tese alarak.	
Sensir montal dminiliji	8 cm 1	Calter servine tosniti	C Fren yapökt	an sonsa 2 kiez gesi vitese alarak.	
Frederiki Duma mesafesi	[70 cm	C Sadece pan	G Sadece +24		
🔽 Freedome		Treyler aküsü			
Duma mesilen 2	[20 om	Bağlı değil Bağlı Bağlı değil Bağlı Ba	C 12V	C 24V	
Servici hassasijetti (F. Hassas	C Standart C Yere yakın	🗖 Adcül party		Kesintisit duc kaynağı	
TailGUARDRoof / TailGUARDMAX (Arka Alan	Kontrolü Ek Düzlemi)				
Gengleting aka dan komolu					
C Dimature, como:	C. 3 Optimore senior (SO)				
Contraction development	10 mm				
Sensor 4 (sol) - Sensor 5 (sag) mesalesi	in cm				
Pierroi e (10) - Pierroi e Jorral Microson	lu cin				
Sensorerin yere mesalesi (ISO 40cm)	i cm				
Sensor montal delinagi	lu cm				
Duma necates	[70 cm				
Duma metalani 2	[70 cm				
Constitutional C. Manager	C. Davidat C. Versionian				

Figure 5. Processing data into brake program parameters

3 CONCLUSION

As a result, the aim was to prevent accidents that may occur using the reverse parking system in truck and trailer combinations. Thus, ensuring driving safety by preventing material damages as well as potential human and property losses.

Acknowledgments

I would like to express my gratitude to Koluman Automotive Industry for providing me with the opportunity to undertake this study

- [1] Regulation on Road Traffic Rules in Turkey, Chapter Eight, Article 128-c.
- [2] WABCO brake systems training documents TailGuard system.
- [3] ISO 12098 and ISO 7638 standarts.



Aluminum Tanker Design and Improvement of ECR 111 Regulation

Akin Zengin¹, Mustafa Yilmaz¹, Resul Akcali^{*1}

¹Koluman Automotive Industry, Mersin, Turkey

Abstract

Regarding tankers commonly used in the logistics industry; Some design analysis, material analysis and driving analysis were performed. Looking at the analysis results, only the cross-sectional area was changed and the tanker's center of gravity was brought closer to the ground. While this process was carried out, the tanker's volume was preserved. As a result of the changes made, while providing the driver with a more comfortable ride, at the same time, by increasing road safety, the risk of tipping over is minimized.

Keywords: Center of gravity, Aluminum tanker, Cross-sectional area, Design change

1 INTRODUCTION

What is Aluminum?

Aluminum, a chemical element with the atomic number 13 and symbol Al, is a malleable metal characterized by its silver hue. Typically found in nature in the form of bauxite ore, aluminum is renowned for its exceptional resistance to oxidation, a quality primarily attributed to its passivation capability. Widely employed across numerous sectors of industry, it plays a pivotal role in the creation of millions of diverse products, holding a significant position within the global economy. Structural components crafted from aluminum are indispensable in the aerospace industry, benefitting from its combination of lightweight properties and high strength. This metal finds extensive use in the transportation and construction sectors, where the demand for both lightness and robustness is paramount.

Properties

Aluminum is a soft and lightweight metal, characterized by a matte silvery color. This hue is a result of the thin oxide layer that forms on its surface when exposed to air. Non-toxic and non-magnetic, aluminum does not produce sparks. The tensile strength of pure aluminum is approximately 49 megapascals (MPa), but when alloyed, this value can increase to 700 MPa. Its density is roughly one-third that of steel or copper. Aluminum is easily malleable, machinable, and castable. Its superior corrosion resistance is attributed to the protective oxide layer that forms on its surface. With an electrical conductivity of 64.94% IACS (pure Al at 2°C), aluminum exhibits favorable electrical properties. It has a melting point of 660°C and a boiling point of 2519°C.

Alloy Used in Design

The primary elements of the EN AW 5083 aluminum alloy are magnesium and manganese. This alloy is distinguished by its key characteristics, including high malleability, weldability, and resistance to corrosion. Its notable corrosion resistance makes it particularly preferred for applications involving exposure to ships and industrial chemicals.

The mechanical properties of 5083 aluminum alloy materials vary depending on the manufacturing process, heat treatments applied, and the thickness of the material. These variations lead to diverse applications based on the specific characteristics achieved through these factors.

The primary attribute of the 5083 alloy is its machinability, making it a preferred choice on CNC machines. The inclusion of magnesium enhances the strength and hardness of the product. Cast plates made from this alloy exhibit excellent dimensional stability due to the relief of internal stresses during their production, resulting in minimal warping during machining. Atomically, the internal structure of plates produced by rolling is oriented in the rolling direction, whereas cast plates, homogenized through post-casting heat treatment, maintain a highly stable internal.

Structure, preserving dimensional stability even with the loss of approximately 85% of the material during processing. Consequently, ground 5083 cast plates are widely favored by CNC machinists in applications where precise tolerances are crucial.

The excellent weldability of the 5083 alloy, attributed to its 4.5% magnesium (Mg) content, is a notable feature. This alloy maintains its strength after welding and does not necessitate post-weld heat treatment. Among non-heat-treatable aluminum alloys, 5083 is the strongest. This characteristic has led to the widespread use of the 5083 alloy in applications such as ships, tankers, silos, and machine components.

"The welding of the 5083 alloy typically involves the use of 5183 welding wire. Healthy welds can be achieved when welding 5083 alloy with itself or with the 6082 alloy."

EN AW 5083 is widely utilized in the maritime industry, primarily due to its high resistance to corrosion. The main reason behind its prevalence is the material's exceptional durability against corrosion. Strength tests conducted over a 10-year period in seawater corrosion environments have recorded only a modest loss of strength, ranging from 2% to 5%.

The presence of chlorine (Cl) particularly induces corrosion in aluminum materials.

5083 and 7075 aluminum alloys are also utilized in the manufacturing of inflatable and thermoforming molds. Within these molds, cooling water channels are produced.

The chlorine levels within the cooling water used here are crucial. Chlorination operations should be conducted on the water to eliminate chlorine and prevent corrosion.

There is a possibility of "inter-diffusion corrosion" or "corrosion cracking" occurring in humid environments with sudden temperature changes where aluminum materials are stored. Therefore, storage areas should be maintained at constant temperatures to mitigate the risk.

Aluminum alloy 5083 in the H111 temper can be bent to standard angles up to a thickness of 12.5 mm. Refer to Table 1.3 for specific bending angles. However, for thicknesses exceeding 12.5 mm, it is not recommended to bend 5083 cast and rolled plates.

In addition to its corrosion resistance, 5083 aluminum is significantly lighter than steel. This characteristic substantially reduces the weight of manufactured ships, enhancing their tensile and carrying capacities, as well as increasing their speeds.

5083 aluminum ship plates and sheets are particularly favored in the maritime industry. Temper conditions such as 0, H111, H112, H116, and H321 are commonly preferred in this sector. 5083-H321 and 5083-H116, in particular, are favored for the portions of ships submerged in water. Corrosion tests have been conducted on the H321 temper. The rolled 5083-H111 aluminum exhibits excellent workability and ductility, making it suitable for various bending and shaping methods.

Table 1. Chemical Properties								
Cu	Si	Fe	Mn	Mg	Zn	Cr	Ti	Al
0.10	0.40	0.40	0.4~1.0	4.0~4.9	0.25	0.05~0.25	0.15	rem

 Table 2. Physical characteristics

•	
Intensity	2,66 g/cm3
Thermal Conductivity	110 - 130 W/m*K
Elasticity Modulus	70.000 N/mm2
Coefficient of Thermal Expansion	24,2 10-6 / K
Electrical conductivity	16-19 (m/Ωmm2)
Specific Heat Capacity	900 (J/kg*K)

Table 3										
Temper	Thicl	kness	Ter Stre	ısile ngth	Yield Strength	Elong	ation	Ben Dian	ding 1eter	Hardness
	m	m	R _m]	Mpa	R _{p0,2} Mpa	%			HBWª	
	From Thickness	To Thickness	Min.	Max.	Min.	A_{50mm}	А	180°	90°	
\mathbf{F}^{a}										
	≥2.5	250	250							
	250	350	245							
0										
	0.2	0.5	275	350	125	11		1.0 t	0.5 t	75
	0.5	1.5	275	350	125	12		1.0 t	1.0 t	75
	1.5	3	275	350	125	13		1.5 t	1.0 t	75
	3	6.3	275	350	125	15			1.5 t	75
	6.3	12.5	270	345	115	16			2.5 t	75
	12.5	50	270	345	115		15			75
	50	80	270	345	115		14			73
	80	120	260		110		12			70
	120	200	255		105		12			69
	200	250	250		95		10			69
	250	300	245		90		9			69
H111										
	0,2	0,5	275	350	125	11		1,0 t	0.5 t	75
	0,5	1,5	275	350	125	12		1,0 t	1.0 t	75
	1,5	3	275	350	125	13		1,5 t	1.0 t	75
	3	6,3	275	350	125	15			1.5 t	75
	6,3	12,5	270	345	115	16			2.5 t	75
	12,5	50	270	345	115		15			75
	50	80	270	345	115		14			73
	80	120	260		110		12			70
	120	200	255		105		12			69
	200	250	250		95		10			69
	250	300	245		90		9			69
H112										
	6.0	12,5	275		125	12				75
	12.5	40	275		125		10			75
	40	80	270		115		10			73
	80	120	260		110		10			73

What is a Tank with ADR?

Logistics companies categorize tankers used for transporting fluid substances such as liquids and gases on sea, rail, and roadways based on the materials they carry; they label them as either hazardous or non-hazardous material carriers. Each type has its own specific justifications. Tankers carrying hazardous materials are referred to as ADR-compliant tankers.

The acronym ADR stands for the European Agreement concerning the International Carriage of Dangerous Goods by Road. Its primary objective is to ensure the safe transportation of dangerous goods. Additionally, ADR aims to classify hazardous cargoes, establish conditions, and align routes and parking facilities with specific criteria.

The ADR Convention advocates for the safe transportation of vehicles carrying dangerous goods on roadways. It requires those involved in the production, filling facilities, vehicle drivers, vehicle owners, handlers, tanker manufacturers, and users of hazardous substances to fulfill responsibilities, obligations, and training to ensure the secure transportation of dangerous materials. ADR encompasses the marking, labeling, and safe transport on roadways of vehicles used in the transport of hazardous materials. Any element of a vehicle that does not comply with ADR standards can result in the vehicle being prohibited from traffic. The hazardous substances referred to include those with flammable, explosive, combustible, infectious, radioactive, and corrosive properties, in liquid, solid, and gas forms.

The ADR Convention consists of three stages: ADR-compliant tanker, ADR-compliant driver, and ADR equipment. Let's review the updates we have made on the ADR aluminum tanker (Figure 1).



Figure 1

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

A detailed examination of the materials used and the methodology employed for the analysis is presented in a structured manner.

2.1 Materials

No changes have been made to the material.

2.2 Methods

Changes have been made to the 3-dimensional designs through the Catia software. These modifications were implemented with consideration for Turkish road standards, highway regulations, and ADR standards. Despite alterations in the width and height of the tank, it still complies with highway standards.

When examining the cross-sectional area of the tank (visuals 2.2 and 2.3), despite changes in length, no differences in volume were observed during volume tests (visual 2.1).

The structural analysis included the following steps:

Geometry Modeling: Creating the geometric model of the tank body while preserving its volume..

Material Assignment: No changes have been made to the material used.

Boundary Conditions: Defining appropriate boundary conditions to simulate highway standards.

Loading Conditions: Testing various driving methods to evaluate system behavior under different conditions.

Analysis: Performing cross-sectional area analysis using the AutoCAD tool.

These comprehensive tests enabled a meticulous examination of safety factors under various road conditions.

3 RESULTS

The changes to the redesigned tank body and volume results are as follows.

3.1 Volume Test

The tank was tested by filling it with water, row by row, and no changes in volume were observed in the conducted tests (Figure 2).

«к	DLUMAN		1		Koluman (tomotiv Endustri A.9. 88800 Tarsus / MERBÍN TURKEY uman-otomotiv.com.tr
Approval no. Tip onay no.	TR/TSE04+0015/LGB	F/00	4 (Rev.03)	manufacture	2	023
Tank serial no. Tank seri no.						
Design temperature Tasanm sıcaklığı	20°C		Min. service temp. Min. işletme sıcaklığı	-20°C	Max. service tem; Max. işletme sıcaklığı	50°C
Test pressure Test beamci	Tank (s / Gözler bar	ss / Sezdomazlık 2 bar	
Allowable vapor pr Max. işletme sıcaklı	essure at max, service temperatur ĝinda mŭsaade edilen buhar basir	161	0,12 bar	External design pressure Harici tasarım basıncı	0,0	3 bar
Design code Tasanm kurallan	ADR, EN	1309	4	Tank code LGBF Tank kodu		
Total volume Toplam hacim	27140 L		shell	Ξ	N AW 5182 H	111
Volume of each	1) 5600	L	2) 554	10 L	3) 555	D L
Göz hacimleri	4) 4250	L	5) 620)0 L	6)	-
TEST DATES AND INSPECTOR'S SEAL	11/2023 P					
DENETLEYİCİNİN MÜHRÜ						

Figure 2

3.2 Cross-Sectional Area View

In the design modification, the cross-sectional area of the tank has been altered, bringing the center of gravity closer to the ground. By changing the center of gravity, the stability against tipping is improved, providing the driver with a safer driving experience (Figure 3 and Figure 4).



Figure 4. Old design

4 CONCLUSION

As seen in the tests, the center of gravity of the tank has been lowered by 90mm, and the safety coefficient of the tank has been improved while it is in motion.

Acknowledgments

I would like to express my gratitude to Koluman Automotive Industry for providing me with the opportunity to undertake this study

- [1] Dergi Park Akademik access: 15.11.2023, https://dergipark.org.tr.
- [2] GEO Tekno access: 13.11.2023, https://geo-tekno.com.
- [3] Alüminyum Burada acces: 15.11.2023, https://aluminyumburada.com/.
- [4] Wikipedia Turkey acces: 15.11.2023, https://tr.wikipedia.org.
- [5] Koluman Otomotiv Endusri A.Ş. acces: 14.11.2023, https://www.koluman-otomotiv.com.tr.



Effect of Iron Diffusion on Fluidity in Casting of A356 Aluminum Alloy

Melek Durmus¹, Murat Colak², Emin Uslu^{*2}, Mehmet Gavgali¹

¹Necmettin Erbakan University, Mechanical Engineering, Konya, Turkey ²Bayburt University, Vocational School of Technical Sciences, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

In order to have good casting properties in aluminium casting alloys, structural defects must be minimized. Various elements can be deliberately added into aluminum alloys or included in the alloy due to environmental factors during production. Among the elements that affect the properties of aluminium casting alloys, one of the most harmful impurities is the iron element, and its amount in the alloy has an important role. Iron has good liquid solubility in aluminium but low solid solubility. As a result, the iron in the alloy bonds with other impurities or other elements in the alloy to form intermetallic compounds. These intermetallic compounds significantly affect physical properties such as mechanical properties, castability, porosity, corrosion resistance, and fluidity. This study examined the effect of iron on fluidity in A356 aluminium casting alloy. In this context, a stainless steel rod was kept in liquid aluminium alloy at 750°C for 1 hour. Thus, the effects of iron on the fluidity were tested using a spiral mold, which is likely to pass into the alloy due to diffusion. The effects on fluidity were also examined before and after liquid metal cleaning. Casting, liquid metal cleaning, and macro examination techniques were used in the study. When the results were examined, it was seen that the fluidity increased with liquid metal cleaning and also that the iron effect due to diffusion negatively affected the fluidity.

Keywords: A356 aluminum casting, Liquid metal cleaning, Iron diffusion, Fludity

1 INTRODUCTION

Non-ferrous metals are used in the fields of automotive, aircraft, wagon construction, electricity, packaging, wire and cable production, machinery and machine elements, and metallurgy, along with developing technology and, energy recovery, and environmentally oriented production. Among the non-ferrous metals, aluminium and its alloys are the most commonly used metals. Aluminium alloys have gained a more widespread place in the automotive and aviation industries than their counterparts due to their properties, such as high strength, easy castability, and good corrosion resistance. In addition, as a result of R&D studies, these metals have begun to take a large place in the defense and space industries [1].

The most important factor in using aluminum alloys and producing quality parts is the quality of the molten metal and the minimization of undesirable elements. Some elements affecting impurities in aluminium casting are Fe, Zn, Cu, Mg, and Mn [2]. These elements affect the quality of aluminium metal and can cause undesirable properties or poor mechanical values. Iron is one of the elements that have the most negative impact on the impurities of aluminium-casting alloys. It supports the formation of interphases during the solidification of aluminium alloys, which can affect the properties of the final product [3]. That is, most of the iron in the alloy forms intermetallics bound to other existing impurities or other elements in the alloy. These intermetallic compounds are known to have negative effects on mechanical properties, porosity, castability, corrosion resistance, and surface treatments [4-6]. It is known that iron affects the casting properties of the alloy because it increases the formation of the structures shown in Figure 1 in the aluminium alloy. In addition, the ratio of the element added to the alloy and the chemical composition of the alloy are also crucial for the results [7, 8].

Various processes are applied to eliminate the harmful effects of impurity elements in the alloy. These include liquid metal cleaning, addition of neutralizing alloying elements and use of filters, etc. These processes are necessary to eliminate or minimize the alloy's impurities, such as gas, inclusions, and residues. The most commonly used procedure in this context is a liquid metal cleaning method with alternatives such as rotary-type degassing, fixed nozzle cleaning, tablet, or flux cleaning. Studies have observed that the mechanical properties of alloys applied to liquid metal cleaning increase, they gain easy castability, and porosity formation decreases and contributes positively to fluidity [11, 12].

Effect of iron diffusion on fluidity in casting of A356 aluminum alloy



Figure 1. Images of inclusions formed in aluminium [9, 10]

Although the most considerable effects of alloy impurities are seen in the microstructure, their most significant macro impact occurs when the mold is not filled completely and the parts are scrapped. The castability of casting alloys is defined as the distance that liquid metal flows within the mold until it is stopped during solidification. Fluidity is a complex behavior related to the liquid flow and solidification of the liquid or liquid-solid binary phase of an alloy under certain conditions of a casting application [13]. Many variables affect casting fluidity. These variables can generally be grouped into two broad categories: Metal-related variables and mold-related variables[14]. These are factors such as the temperature of the molten alloy, precipitates, inclusions, oxides, bifilms formed in the structure during solidification, gating system, viscosity, casting time, the form of crystallization and solidification, cooling rate, and foreign substances in the liquid metal [15]. In addition, another factor is that the fluidity of aluminium alloys decreases rapidly as a result of decreasing metal purity. The decrease in fluidity depends on the insoluble compounds in the liquid metal and the increase in the amount of Fe-containing phases [16]. It is reported that the increase in the Fe level in the alloy reduces the fluidity because it increases the intermetallic number [17, 18]. In their study, Taghaddos et al. investigated how the effect of Fe on the 413 alloys affected the fluidity by casting in a vacuum fluidity mold. They observed that Fe in the melt decreased fluidity due to increased intermetallic formation and inclusion formation [19]. Therefore, in order to increase the fluidity value, it is necessary to remove insoluble compounds or phases containing Fe from the liquid metal. For example, in his study, Hal examined how the use of flux in the liquid metal cleaning of the A356 alloy affected the fluidity. As a result of the study, they concluded that cleaning the liquid metal reduces the bifilm index, increasing the liquid metal's fluidity and improving its mechanical properties [20].

This study examined the effect of iron on fluidity in A356 aluminium casting alloy. After the A356 alloy was melted, the stainless steel rod was kept in diffusion for 1 hour. During this diffusion period, it was investigated how it affected the fluidity of the alloy during its diffusion through the crucible or other materials used during casting. A spiral fluency mold was used for fluency tests. To see the effect of iron diffusion in the castings, castings were made without waiting for the stainless rod and after waiting for 1 hour. In addition, castings were made before and after liquid metal cleaning to examine the effect of liquid metal cleaning.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

In this study, the effect of diffusion iron content in A356 aluminium alloy on its fluidity properties before and after liquid metal cleaning was examined. The experiments carried out in this context are given in Table 1.

Table 1. Experimental parameters						
Experimental number	Casting temperature (°C)	Diffusion status	Liquid metal cleaning			
1	750°C	None	-			
2	750°C	1 hour	-			
3	750°C	None	After Cleaning			
4	750°C	1 hour	After Cleaning			

As seen in Table 1, 4 casting experiments were carried out within the scope of the study. For diffusion, a stainless steel rod was immersed in the molten metal and kept at 750 °C. Diffusion time was determined as 1 hour. Primary A356 alloy, whose chemical composition is given in Table 2, was used as the alloy.

Fe	Si	Cu	Zn	Ni	Ti	Mn	Mg	Al		
0.11	7.12	0.01	0.02	0.01	0.08	0.01	0.35	rem		

When the values given in Table 2 are examined, it has been determined that the alloy used complies with the alloy standards. Melting processes were carried out in an 8 kg capacity SiC crucible. The melted liquid metal temperature was increased to 750 °C in order to detect the diffusion effect better, and the diffusion of iron was controlled by immersing the stainless steel rod in the necessary experiments in accordance with the test conditions given in Table 1. In addition, the cleaning process was applied as a parameter to examine the effect of liquid metal cleaning before diffusion and non-diffusion castings. The degassing process shown in Figure 2 was applied for liquid metal cleaning is rotated at a certain speed. It gives nitrogen, an inert gas, into the liquid metal through its holes. The bubbles formed by the rotation of the rotor head and the effect of nitrogen gas bring the inclusions in the liquid metal to the surface of the liquid metal, thanks to its low density. Liquid metal cleaning was carried out by removing these surface impurities using the slag removal method.



Figure 2. Furnace and rotary degassing process

Castings were made in the spiral flow mold shown in Figure 3 in accordance with the conditions specified in Table 1. The spiral flow mold was heated to 250 °C using a hot plate.

After the casting process in the spiral flow mold, a macro examination was carried out on the samples taken from the mold. A spiral measuring ruler was used at this stage. Sample sizes were measured in millimeters and then compared.



Figure 3. Spiral fluency pattern and visual

3 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

A356 alloy was melted according to the determined parameters and cast into the spiral flow mold. Photographs of the samples obtained after casting are shown in Figure 4.



Figure 4. Casting sample photo images

As can be clearly seen in the casting sample pictures in Figure 4, it is understood that both the diffusion and liquid metal cleaning affect the fluidity results. With liquid metal cleaning, it is understood that the liquid metal advances further in the mold in both casting conditions. It is seen that the fluidity properties of the castings made by waiting for the stainless steel bar change negatively compared to the equivalent castings. The measurement results for the liquid metal advancement distances of the cast samples are shown in the graph in Figure 5.



In Figure 5, the fluidity length obtained in the experiments carried out without liquid metal cleaning in the molten A356 alloy at 750°C was 140 mm, while it was measured as 89 mm when stainless steel was placed and the diffusion period waited for 1 hour. In the experiments carried out by applying liquid metal cleaning to the molten A356 alloy at 750°C, the fluidity length was measured as 429 mm, while it was measured as 115 mm when the diffusion period was waited for 1 hour. In the studies carried out within the scope of the subject, it is known that the fluidity and other properties of the alloy can be improved by removing the impurities, oxides, and undesirable elements in the melt of the casting samples with liquid metal cleaning methods by liquid metal cleaning methods [11]. It is thought that applying liquid metal cleaning to the alloy removes the oxides and impurities in the alloy by bringing them to the surface so that the flow of the alloy in the mold is unimpeded and, therefore, the fluidity value increases. When the data were examined in detail, the fluidity changed negatively due to the effect of iron applied to the alloy as a result of diffusion. It is thought that this situation is a Fe transition and that the Fe transition into the alloy reduces the fluidity because it increases the number of intermetallics in the structure.

It is thought that some Fe-based intermetallics are formed in the diffusion-related alloy formed due to keeping stainless steel in molten liquid metal at 750 °C for 1 hour. Since these intermetallics acted as solid particles in the liquid melt, they had a negative impact on the liquid metal progress. In the studies conducted on the subject, it is known that A356 alloy contains β -Al₃FeSi, α -Al₈Fe₂Si, etc., intermetallics due to its Fe content [16, 21-26]. Even if the liquid metal is cleaned, it is understood from the casting result without diffusion that the liquid metal cannot reach a sufficient level despite the improvement in fluidity due to the relevant intermetallic compounds. For this reason, while liquid metal cleanliness is an essential parameter for improving fluidity, it has been determined that it is not sufficient on its own in alloys containing impurities such as Fe. It is thought that a solution should be developed to eliminate the adverse effects of Fe content with alternative methods. In this context, it is thought that keeping the Fe level low to avoid or reduce the effects will be beneficial to minimize the damage. In addition, in case it may come from the materials used for casting, suitable coatings can be applied to all tools used while preparing the melt, and the effects can be reduced with minimum contact.

When the studies are examined, it has been observed that an increase in the Fe (Iron) ratio reduces fluidity, while liquid metal cleaning methods contribute positively to fluidity. Looking at the contributions to the literature, He made different Fe additions by weight to the A380 alloy and observed that increasing Fe content negatively affected the fluidity [27]. In the study conducted by Wang et al., it was reported that an increase in the amount of insoluble Fe-bearing phases in the alloy resulted in a decrease in the fluidity of molten aluminum [28]. In the study of Sabatino et al., it was observed that the Fe element added to the A356 alloy affected the structure and as a result, the fluidity decreased visibly [29]. Rooy emphasized that increasing the iron content of the Al-Si alloy results in a decrease in the fluidity of the alloy [30]. Shebestari et al. emphasized that elements such as Fe and Cu in Al alloys affect the properties of the alloy and that the fluidity of alloys containing Fe decreases [31]. Cao et al. emphasize that increasing the proportions of some impurity elements such as Fe, Cu and Cr, which deteriorate the mechanical properties of aluminum alloys and casting parts, has a negative effect on fluidity [32]. These negativities occurring in the alloy are removed from the alloy by liquid metal cleaning methods and the properties of the alloy are improved [11, 20, 33].

4 CONCLUSION

The results obtained from the study examining the effect of liquid metal cleaning and diffusion and Fe effect on the fluidity of A356 aluminum casting alloy are given below;

- It has been determined that the change in Fe content due to liquid metal cleaning and diffusion is effective on the fluidity in casting A356 alloy.
- It was determined that the liquid metal advance distance measured from the cast samples increased from 140 mm before cleaning to 429 mm after cleaning and from 89 mm to 115 mm in diffusion experiments thought to contain Fe.
- It was understood that Fe diffusing into the alloy due to diffusion negatively affected the fluidity, and although the fluidity increased with the cleaning process, its negative effects continued.
- While liquid metal cleanliness is an important parameter for improving fluidity, it has been determined that it is not sufficient on its own in alloys containing impurities such as Fe.

References

[1] M. Tokatli, F. Saydam, M. Hal, A. Kosatepe, M. Colak, and C. Yuksel, "Investigation of liquid metal cleaning methods commonly used in the casting of aluminum alloys," Journal of the Institute of Science and Technology, vol. 12, no. 1, pp. 423–434, 2022.

- J. Han et al., "Effect of TiB2 addition on microstructure and fluidity of cast TiAl alloy," Vacuum, vol. 174, p. 109210, 2020.
- [3] C. Rathinasuriyan, A. Bharath, and K. Sridhar, "Reducing iron content from aluminium molten bath through filter bag, centrifugal separation and flux refining method," Materials Today: Proceedings, vol. 62, pp. 1026– 1032, 2022.
- [4] M. Ak, "Effects of impurity iron on the mechanical properties of AA206 aluminium casting alloy," Institute of Science, 2012.
- [5] E. Rooy, "Aluminum scrap recycling and its impact on the metal castings industry," AFS Trans, vol. 93, p. 935e8, 1985.
- [6] E. L. Rooy, Castings. Metals Handbook 9th Ed, 1988.
- [7] J. A. Taylor, "Metal-related castability effects in aluminium foundry alloys," Cast Metals, vol. 8, no. 4, pp. 225–252, 1996.
- [8] D. Dispinar, M. Durmus, M. Gavgali, and M. Colak, "Investigation of the effect of iron element in aluminum casting alloys," 4th International Conference on Advanced Engineering Technologies, pp. 638–349, 2022.
- [9] X. Cao and J. Campbell, "The nucleation of Fe-Rich phases on oxide films in Al-11.5Si-0.4Mg cast alloys," Metallurgical and Materials Transactions A, vol. 34, no. 7, pp. 1409–1420, 2003, doi: 10.1007/s11661-003-0253-3.
- [10] X. Cao and J. Campbell, "The solidification characteristics of Fe-rich intermetallics in Al-11.5 Si-0.4 Mg cast alloys," Metallurgical and Materials Transactions A, vol. 35, pp. 1425–1435, 2004.
- [11] M. Tokatli, E. Uslu, M. Colak, and C. Yuksel, "Investigation of Liquid Metal Cleanliness Control Methods Applied to Aluminum Alloys," Bayburt University Journal of Science, vol. 5, no. 2, pp. 235–247, 2022, doi: https://doi.org/10.55117/bufbd.1131239.
- [12] R. Aslandogan, "Investigation of fluency and factors affecting fluency in casting," Master's Thesis, Yıldız Technical University, 2009.
- [13] H.-S. Bang, H.-I. Kwon, S.-B. Chung, D.-U. Kim, and M.-S. Kim, "Experimental Investigation and Numerical Simulation of the Fluidity of A356 Aluminum Alloy," Metals, vol. 12, no. 11, p. 1986, 2022.
- [14] S.Saxena and P. K. Sharma, "Casting fluidity of metal sand alloys," International Journal of Innovative Research in Science," Engineering and Technology, vol. 6, no. 2, 2017.
- [15] A. Fazeli, H. Saghafian, S. Boutorabi, and J. Campbell, "The fluidity of aluminium ductile irons," International Journal of Metalcasting, pp. 1–10, 2021.
- [16] J. A. Taylor, "Iron-containing intermetallic phases in Al-Si based casting alloys," Procedia Materials Science, vol. 1, pp. 19–33, 2012.
- [17] L. Wang, M. Makhlouf, and D. Apelian, "Aluminium die casting alloys: alloy composition, microstructure, and properties-performance relationships," International materials reviews, vol. 40, no. 6, pp. 221–238, 1995.
- [18] F. H. S. Gowri, Metall. Trans., vol. 25A, pp. 437-448, 1994.
- [19] E. Taghaddos, M. Hejazi, R. Taghiabadi, and S. Shabestari, "Effect of iron-intermetallics on the fluidity of 413 aluminum alloy," Journal of Alloys and Compounds, vol. 468, no. 1-2, pp. 539–545, 2009.
- [20] M. Hal, "The effect of low melting fluxes on the liquid metal quality and fluidity of aluminum alloys," Yüksek lisans tezi, Institute of Science and Technology, Ataturk University, Department of Materials Science and Mechanical Engineering, 2023.
- [21] E. Muşdal, "Alüminyum-Silisyum alaşımlarında demir intermetaliklerin etkisi," Master's Thesis, Department of Metallurgical and Materials Engineering, Istanbul University, Institute of Science and Technology, 2018.
- [22] T. Tunçay and S. Bayoğlu, "The effect of iron content on microstructure and mechanical properties of A356 cast alloy," Metallurgical and Materials Transactions B, vol. 48, pp. 794–804, 2017.
- [23] C. M. Dinnis, J. A. Taylor, and A. K. Dahle, "Iron-related porosity in Al–Si–(Cu) foundry alloys," Materials Science and Engineering: A, vol. 425, no. 1–2, pp. 286–296, 2006.
- [24] ASM, Metals Handbook Metallography and Microstructures, 9 ed. 1994.
- [25] X. Niu, B. Hu, and S. Hao, "Effect of iron on the microstructure and mechanical properties of Al die-casting alloys," Journal of materials science letters, vol. 17, no. 20, pp. 1727–1730, 1998.
- [26] D. Dispinar, "Determination of metal quality of aluminium and its alloys," University of Birmingham, 2006.
- [27] S. Gowri and F. Samuel, "Effect of alloying elements on the solidification characteristics and microstructure of Al-Si-Cu-Mg-Fe 380 alloy," Metallurgical and Materials Transactions A, vol. 25, pp. 437–448, 1994.
- [28] L. Wang, M. Makhlouf, and D. Apelian, Inter. Mater. Rev, vol. 40, pp. 225–252, 1995.
- [29] M. Di Sabatino, F. Syvertsen, L. Arnberg, and A. Nordmark, "An improved method for fluidity measurement by gravity casting of spirals in sand moulds," International Journal of Cast Metals Research, vol. 18, no. 1, pp. 59–62, 2005.
- [30] W.-D. Pfeiffer and G. Sabath, "Effects of Zinc, Iron and Manganese on the Processing and Mechanical Properties of an AlSi 8 Cu 3 Alloy.(Translation: MITS NF 168)," Banyasz. Kohasz. Lapok(Ontode), vol. 37, no. 2, pp. 39–43, 1986.
Effect of iron diffusion on fluidity in casting of A356 aluminum alloy

- [31] S. Shabestari, M. Mahmudi, M. Emamy, and J. Campbell, "Effect of Mn and Sr on intermetallics in Fe-rich eutectic Al-Si alloy," International Journal of Cast Metals Research, vol. 15, no. 1, pp. 17–24, 2002.
- [32] X. Cao and J. Campbell, "AFS Trans.," vol. 61, pp. 391-399, 2000.
- [33] G. Gyarmati, G. Fegyverneki, T. Mende, and M. Tokár, "Characterization of the double oxide film content of liquid aluminum alloys by computed tomography," Materials Characterization, vol. 157, p. 109925, 2019.



Investigation of the Effect of Using Scrap at Different Ratios on Liquid Metal Quality in Casting of A356 Aluminium Alloys

Mehmet Tokatli¹, Emin Uslu^{*1}, Murat Colak¹

¹Bayburt University, Vocational School of Technical Sciences, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

The use of aluminium as a raw material in the foundry industry is in two different forms: i) primary ingot (from ore) and ii) secondary ingot (from the scrap). Considering the energy costs of producing these materials as raw materials, obtaining aluminium from scrap is more cost-effective. However, when using secondary ingot, there are factors such as inclusions, gases, and oxide layers that significantly affect the quality of the liquid metal. Various liquid metal cleaning processes and test methods are used to minimize these factors. In this study, the change in liquid metal quality was examined using the rotary degassing method, which is one of the cleaning techniques. Scrap was added at 5%, 10%, and 15% to the primary A356 aluminium alloy, and castings were performed before and after liquid metal cleaning. K-mold and spiral fluidity test methods were used to evaluate the liquid metal quality. It was determined that rotary degassing significantly changes the quality of the liquid metal.

Keywords: A356 aluminium, Rotary degassing, K-mold, Spiral fluidity test, Liquid metal quality

1 INTRODUCTION

Among non-ferrous metals, aluminium alloys are widely used due to their superior physical and mechanical properties [1]. Aluminium casting alloys have properties such as low melting point, castability, good corrosion resistance, and high strength. Due to these features, it has become indispensable in sectors such as the automotive, aerospace, and defense industries [2-4].

Aluminium is found in nature as bauxite ore. Alumina powder is obtained by various ore dressing methods, and primary/pure aluminium is obtained by electrolysis [5]. These processes produce a high energy requirement of \sim 14500-17000 kWh in primary aluminium production. The energy used in secondary aluminium production by recycling from end-of-life scrap is quite low. In comparison, the energy required for secondary aluminium production is \sim 5% of primary aluminium [6]. However, some problems are encountered in using secondary aluminium, which has significant advantages in terms of environment and cost. The most important of these is the control of liquid metal quality.

The main objective of using aluminium casting alloys is to obtain solid and high-quality products. Therefore, one of the most important factors to produce solid parts in aluminium casting alloys is the quality of the molten metal [7, 8]. Good liquid metal quality is important for the quality of the casting part. Factors affecting liquid metal quality are inclusions, oxide layers, gases (such as hydrogen), and biofilms [9]. Bifilms affect the mechanical properties, porosity, and fluidity of the alloy, as well as increase the formation of defects such as hot tearing [10]. Bifilms significantly affect the heterogeneous nucleation of various intermetallic phases and Si particles in Al-Si alloys, thus affecting the alloy properties [11]. Another factor affecting the liquid metal quality in aluminium alloys is hydrogen solubility. Dissolved hydrogen has negative effects, such as increasing porosity and decreasing fluidity by increasing inclusions and impurities. As a result of the negative effect on the quality of the liquid metal, cracks, and hard spots may occur in the casting. In addition, it may cause the casting part not to come out as desired, and its mechanical properties may be adversely affected [9, 12-14]. To reduce these effects and increase the purity of the liquid metal, the hydrogen content and inclusions in the alloy must be removed [15-17].

Various liquid metal cleaning processes are performed to improve the liquid metal quality in castings made using secondary aluminium [18-20]. It is important that the method used to improve the liquid metal quality is not only easy to apply but also environmentally friendly. In this context, there are various methods, such as using inert gas and tablets [18, 21]. Various tests are also performed to measure the success of the applied process. These can be listed as thermal (cooling curve) analysis, X-ray method, ultrasonic testing, solidification under vacuum, K-mold,

electrical resistance test, fluidity test, Prefil, or PoDFA tests. Fluidity and K-mold tests are known as fast and practical methods [22]. The spiral fluidity test is widely used for fluidity testing in casting applications. In this method, liquid metal is poured into a mold consisting of a long, thin spiral path, and the distance the metal can flow is taken as a measure [23]. The K-mold test, which allows easy characterization of larger inclusions, is widely used for real-time testing of macroscopic defects (coarse inclusions, gross oxides, and gas bubbles). These methods allow casting defects and quality to be easily determined [24, 25].

In this study, castings were performed by adding scrap at different ratios to primary A356 aluminium alloy. The rotary degassing method was used for liquid metal cleaning. The change in liquid metal quality was determined by the spiral fluidity test and K-mold test. For these test methods, standardized permanent moulds known as spiral and K-mold were used. Macro-examinations were conducted to investigate how the liquid metal cleaning affects the alloy quality.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

Primary A356 ingot and secondary A356 scrap were used as raw materials in the study. Table 1 shows the chemical composition of these materials.

Table 1. Chemical composition of the alloy used in the experiments (wt %)									
	Fe	Si	Cu	Mn	Mg	Zn	Ni	Ti	Al
Primary A356 ingot	0.03	7.03	0.02	0.03	0.321	0.04	0.02	-	Rem
Secondary A356 scrap	0.07	7.28	-	-	0.227	-	0.004	0.11	Rem

For the purpose of the study, two different parameters were selected: scrap rate and liquid metal cleaning process. The variation of the scrap rate parameter is 5%, 10%, and 15%, respectively. The other parameter was defined as whether there is a degassing process or not. Depending on these parameters, the sample names were coded as shown in Table 2.

Table 2. Casting sample codes							
Sample code	Degassing – Scrap rate	Sample code	Degassing – Scrap rate				
WD5	Without Degassing – 5 % scrap	D5	Degassing – 5 % scrap				
WD10	Without Degassing – 10 % scrap	D10	Degassing – 10 % scrap				
WD15	Without Degassing – 15 % scrap	D15	Degassing – 15 % scrap				

The melting process was carried out in a SiC crucible in an electric resistance furnace. In the melting process, A356 scrap was added to the primary A356 aluminum alloy at 5%, 10%, and 15% of the charge weight, respectively. The rotary degassing method was used for liquid metal cleaning. This process was carried out at a five l/min gas flow rate, 300 rpm rotation speed, and 5 min degassing parameters. Casting experiments were carried out at a casting temperature of 720 °C, both with and without degassing. Before casting, the crucible filled with liquid metal was taken from the furnace, and the slag was removed by scraping the surface. The melting and degassing process was carried out with the system shown in Figure 1.



Figure 1. Electric resistance melting furnace and rotary degassing system

Liquid metal prepared with different scrap addition amounts was poured into spiral and K-mold test moulds which are shown in Figure 2. The moulds were heated to 200 °C using a heating plate before casting. The specimens obtained after casting were examined. Specimen length measurements were performed for the spiral test. In the K-mold specimen inspection stage; the sample removed from the mould was broken with a hammer blow from the notched areas. Then, high-resolution photographs of the broken surfaces were taken and examined. All broken part surfaces were image analysed, and total inclusions on the broken surface were counted. The calculation given in Equation 1 determined the quantitative K value depending on the total number of inclusions and inclusions on the fractured surface. In this equation, K is the cleanliness rate of the liquid metal, n is the number of examined fracture surfaces, and S is the number of inclusions in n parts of the sample [21, 25]. According to the K value, information about the cleanliness of the alloy is obtained. According to this; i) If K<0.5, the liquid metal is clean, ii) If 0.5 < K < 1, the cleanliness of the liquid metal is acceptable, but the liquid metal requires cleaning, iii) If K>1, it indicates that the liquid metal must be cleaned.

$$K = \frac{S}{n} \tag{1}$$

The success rate of the liquid metal cleaning process is determined according to Equation 2 [26-28]. In this equation, ΔK is the percentage change K value, K₁ is the K value obtained before treatment and K₂ is the K value obtained after degassing [28].

$$\Delta K = \frac{(K_2 - K_1)}{K_1} \times 100$$
(2)

Figure 2. Test moulds; a) Spiral mould, b) K-mold

hÌ

3 RESULTS

Casting specimens were produced at each test parameter using the spiral fluidity test mould shown in Figure 2a. Figure 3 shows images of the specimens removed from the mould after solidification. When the casting samples given in Figure 3 are examined, it is understood that the effects of liquid metal cleaning on fluidity are clearly seen. An increase in sample lengths was detected in all casting experiments where degassing was performed. In addition, it was observed that there was a change in the feed distance of the liquid metal in the fluidity mould with the change in the scrap ratio, and the increase in the scrap amount had a negative effect on the fluidity.



Figure 3. Spiral fluidity test casting samples; a) WD5, b) WD10, c) WD15, d) D5, e) D10, and f) D15

Length measurements were made to compare the spiral fluidity casting samples with numerical data. The graph in Figure 4 shows the change in the dimensions of the spiral fluidity samples. While the advance distance was 178 mm in the WD5 sample, it increased to 339 mm in the D5 sample after degassing. The measurement results of WD10 and D10 samples with 10% scrap addition were 172 mm and 335 mm, respectively. In the WD15 and D15 samples with the highest scrap addition, the fluidity advancement distances were determined as 154 mm and 309 mm, respectively. When the results were evaluated, it was observed that the sample advancement distances decreased with the increase in scrap content. This situation can be explained as inclusions in aluminum alloys, especially bifilm oxide layers, adversely affecting the liquid metal's fluidity. The fluidity of metals is affected by the chemical composition and solidification range of the liquid metal, molding methods, and inclusions (oxides, intermetallic phases, etc.) [26, 27]. The lengths of the degassed specimens are observed to be longer than the untreated specimens. This is also an indication of the suitability of the cleaning process. In addition, the advancement distances obtained after degassing at varying scrap ratios were above 300 mm. This situation indicates that even if scrap is added to the liquid metal, the unwanted residues' damage effects are minimized with an appropriate cleaning process.



Figure 4. Liquid metal advance distances of spiral fluidity casting samples

High-resolution fracture surface images of the casting samples made to measure the suitability of liquid metal cleaning with the K-mold test are given in Figure 5. The sample surface images show that the inclusions increase with increasing scrap rate on the fracture surfaces. It is observed that the inclusions decrease with the degassing process.



Figure 5. Fracture surface images of K-mold samples; a) WD5, b) WD10, c) WD15, d) D5, e) D10, and f) D15

Figure 6 shows the graph of the change in the K values of the samples as a result of the examination of the fracture surface images. In WD5, WD10 and WD15 samples, it was determined that the number of inclusions increased as the scrap rate increased. When D5, D10 and D15 samples were examined, a significant decrease in the number of inclusions was detected compared to the untreated samples. This is an indication that the degassing process applied is at a sufficient level.



Figure 6. Inclusion and K value data of K-mould samples

Using the data obtained according to Equation 2, the percentage change of the K value was calculated and the results are given in Table 3. This table shows the change in liquid metal quality before and after the degassing process. The Δ K values were calculated as 267 %, 300 % and 250 % for scrap ratios of 5 %, 10 % and 15 %, respectively. This indicates the accuracy of the liquid metal cleaning process and the resulting change rates vary between 250-300 depending on the amount of scrap. The relevant values indicate that the cleaning process applied is sufficient. These results are similar to the spiral fluidity test results.

Table 3. % K	value obtained from K-mould samp	les

	<u>+</u>
Casting test	∆ K (%)
Casting with 5 % scrap addition	267
Casting with 10 % scrap addition	300
Casting with 15 % scrap addition	250

4 CONCLUSION

The results obtained from the experiments carried out within the scope of the study are listed below:

- Depending on the scrap rate used in the preparation of the alloy, liquid metal quality and fluidity properties vary.
- The liquid metal cleaning process increased the amount of metal advancement in the moulds during the casting of the alloy.
- When the scrap addition rate and cleaning processes were compared, the cleaning process at rates up to 15% scrap rate affected the fluidity properties more effectively in the amount of scrap.
- It has been determined that the possible damaging effects of scrap can be eliminated with an appropriate liquid metal cleaning process at scrap rate additions up to 15% in the casting of A356 alloy.
- Although the effects of the cleaning process vary with changing scrap rates, it has been determined that liquid metal cleaning is suitable in all experiments, based on the results of both the spiral fluidity test and the K-mold test.
- It is thought that spiral fluidity and K-mold test techniques can be used to control liquid metal cleanliness, and the related methods can be adapted to production by giving practical and fast results.

References

- [1] C. R. Brooks, Heat treatment, structure, and properties of nonferr ous alloys. Ohio, USA, 1984, pp. 115– 137.
- [2] W.-F. Chen and E. M. Lui, Handbook of structural engineering. CRC Press, 2005.
- [3] L. Liu, A. M. A. Mohamed, A. M. Samuel, F. H. Samuel, H. W. Doty, and S. Valtierra, "Precipitation of β-Al5FeSi Phase Platelets in Al-Si Based Casting Alloys," Metallurgical and Materials Transactions A, vol. 40, no. 10, pp. 2457–2469, 2009, doi: 10.1007/s11661-009-9944-8.

- [4] A. Tigli, M. Tokatli, E. Uslu, M. Colak, and D. Dispinar, "Correlation Between K-value, Density Index and Bifilm Index in Determination of Liquid Al Cleanliness," Archives of Foundry Engineering, vol. vol. 23, no. No 3, pp. 22–29, 2023, doi: 10.24425/afe.2023.144311.
- [5] C. Erman, "Birincil alüminyum üretimine genel bir bakış," Metalurji Dergisi, no. 156, pp. 34–48, 2019.
- [6] M. Öztürk, "Kullanılmış alüminyum malzemelerin geri kazanılması," Çevre ve Orman Bakanlığı, 2005.
- J. Han et al., "Effect of TiB2 addition on microstructure and fluidity of cast TiAl alloy," Vacuum, vol. 174, p. 109210, 2020, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.vacuum.2020.109210.
- [8] W. Khalifa, F. H. Samuel, and J. E. Gruzleski, "Iron intermetallic phases in the Al corner of the Al-Si-Fe system," Metallurgical and Materials Transactions A, vol. 34, no. 3, pp. 807–825, 2003, doi: 10.1007/s11661-003-0116-y.
- [9] M. Tiryakioğlu, J. T. Staley, and J. Campbell, "Evaluating structural integrity of cast Al-7%Si-Mg alloys via work hardening characteristics: II. A new quality index," Materials Science and Engineering: A, vol. 368, no. 1, pp. 231–238, 2004, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.msea.2003.10.310.
- [10] D. Dispinar and J. Campbell, "Critical assessment of reduced pressure test. Part 2: Quantification," International Journal of Cast Metals Research, vol. 17, no. 5, pp. 287–294, 2004, doi: 10.1179/136404604225020704.
- [11] M. Tiryakioğlu, "The Effect of hydrogen on pore formation in aluminum alloy castings: Myth versus realityy," Metals, vol. 10, no. 3, 2020, doi: 10.3390/met10030368.
- [12] A. T. Şensoy, M. Çolak, I. Kaymaz, and D. Dispinar, "Investigating the Optimum Model Parameters for Casting Process of A356 Alloy: A Cross-validation Using Response Surface Method and Particle Swarm Optimization," Arabian Journal for Science and Engineering, vol. 45, no. 11, pp. 9759–9768, 2020, doi: 10.1007/s13369-020-04922-8.
- [13] J. G. Kaufman and E. L. Rooy, "Aluminum alloy castings: properties, processes, and applications," American Foundry Society, USA: Asm International, 2005.
- [14] D. Dışpınar and J. Campbell, "Alüminyum ve alaşımlarının döküm kalitesinin belirlenmesi," Alüminyum Sempozyumu, İstanbul, pp. 394–404, 2009.
- [15] D. Dispinar and J. Campbell, "Porosity, hydrogen and bifilm content in Al alloy castings," Materials Science and Engineering: A, vol. 528, no. 10, pp. 3860–3865, 2011.
- [16] M. Divandari and J. Campbell, "The Mechanism of Bubble Damage in Castings," presented at the 1st International Conference on Gating, Filling and Feeding of aluminum castings, 1999.
- [17] D. P. Lapham, C. Schwandt, M. P. Hills, R. V. Kumar, and D. J. Fray, "The detection of hydrogen in molten aluminium," Ionics, vol. 8, no. 5, pp. 391–401, 2002, doi: 10.1007/BF02376052.
- [18] M. Tokatlı, F. Saydam, H. Murat, A. Koşatepe, M. Çolak, and Ç. Yüksel, "Alüminyum alaşımlarının dökümünde yaygınca kullanılan sıvı metal temizleme yöntemlerinin incelenmesi," Journal of the Institute of Science and Technology, vol. 12, no. 1, pp. 423–434, 2022.
- [19] M. Çolak, R. Kayikci, and D. Dispinar, "Melt cleanliness comparison of chlorine fluxing and Ar degassing of secondary Al-4Cu," Metallurgical and Materials Transactions B, vol. 47, no. 5, pp. 2705–2709, 2016, doi: 10.1007/s11663-016-0745-3.
- [20] E. Erzi, Ö. Gürsoy, Ç. Yüksel, M. Colak, and D. Dispinar, "Determination of acceptable quality limit for casting of A356 aluminium alloy: Supplier's quality index (SQI)," Metals, vol. 9, no. 9, p. 957, 2019.
- [21] G. Gyarmati, G. Fegyverneki, M. Tokár, and T. Mende, "The Effects of Rotary Degassing Treatments on the Melt Quality of an Al–Si Casting Alloy," International Journal of Metalcasting, vol. 15, no. 1, pp. 141– 151, 2021, doi: 10.1007/s40962-020-00428-z.
- [22] M. Tokatlı, E. Uslu, M. Çolak, and Ç. Yüksel, "Investigation of Liquid Metal Cleanliness Control Methods Applied to Aluminum Alloys," Bayburt University Journal of Science, vol. 5, no. 2, pp. 235–247, 2022.
- [23] S. Saxena and P. K. Sharma, "Casting Fluidity of Metals and Alloys," International Journal of Innovative Research in Science, Engineering and Technology, vol. 6, no. 2, 2017.
- [24] S. W. Hudson and D. Apelian, "Inclusion Detection in Molten Aluminum: Current Art and New Avenues for In Situ Analysis," International Journal of Metalcasting, vol. 10, no. 3, pp. 289–305, 2016, doi: 10.1007/s40962-016-0030-x.
- [25] J. Wannasin, D. Schwam, and J. F. Wallace, "Evaluation of methods for metal cleanliness assessment in die casting," Journal of Materials Processing Technology, vol. 191, no. 1, pp. 242–246, 2007, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jmatprotec.2007.03.013.
- [26] C. Balaban, Ö. Şen, G. Özer, and K. Guler, "380 alaşımın soğuma eğrisinde ve akışkanlığında tane inceltmenin etkisi" presented at the 13th International Metallurgy & Materials Congress, İstanbul, 2006.
- [27] M. Tokatlı, "Sıvı metal kalitesinin K-mold tekniği ile tayini ve çekinti üzerine etkisi," Yüksek Lisans Tezi, Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü, Atatürk Üniversitesi, Fen Bilimleri Enstitüsü, Erzurum, 2022.
- [28] G. Gyarmati, G. Fegyverneki, D. Molnár, and M. Tokár, "The melt cleaning efficiency of different fluxes and their effect on the eutectic modification level of AlSi7MgCu alloy," Livarski Vestnik, vol. 66, no. 2, pp. 70–87, 2019.



EMI/EMC Tests for Shelters: Safeguarding Against Electromagnetic Interference

Okan Dinc^{*1}, Ramazan Furkan Koca²

¹Koluman Automotive Industry Inc., Mersin, Turkey ²University of Karabuk, Department of Electrical and Electronic Engineering, Karabuk, Turkey

Abstract

In the early 1970s, the impact of electromagnetic interactions on military operations led to substantial material and human losses. Consequently, pivotal developments ensued to mitigate such challenges. Tests were meticulously designed to validate the resilience of system and subsystem electronics within the electromagnetic environment, ensuring their functionality without adverse effects on coexisting devices.

Shelter tests, conducted in adherence to specific standards, employ three distinct measurement models: magnetic, electric, and plane wave. Critical points at specified frequencies guide these tests, with the shelter attenuation value capped at a specified dB limit across all points. The test procedure involves connecting the source antenna to the signal generator and the receiving antenna to the spectrum analyser. Prior to each frequency measurement test, ambient noise is recorded as a reference value. The actual result is derived by subtracting this reference value from the measurement results. It is imperative for antennas to maintain specified distances according to magnetic, electric, and plane wave measurement models when determining reference values.

Electromagnetic Interference (EMI) tests assess the resilience of systems or devices against electromagnetic effects, aiming to prevent harm to the environment. Simultaneously, Electromagnetic Compatibility (EMC) tests scrutinize the resistance of systems or devices to electromagnetic interactions, verifying the absence of parasitic signals. These tests collectively aim to ensure that the tested system or device functions harmoniously with others, without adversely affecting its surroundings. Proactively addressing potential adverse conditions is a primary outcome of these assessments.

Keywords: Electromagnetic, EMC, EMI, Frequency, Shelter

1 EMI-EMC

The concepts of magnetic compatibility and magnetic interference, first observed during Marconi's experiments in the late 1800s, facilitated the development of transatlantic communication technology with the aid of cable in the early 1900s. Technical articles on the subject were initially penned in the 1920s, whilst radio frequencies gradually became an escalating concern in the 1930s concerning systems such as engines and railways. EMI emerged as a significant problem during World War 2. The invention and rapid development of transistors in the 1950s, integrated circuits in the 1960s and microprocessors in the 1970s brought to light the need for frequency planning. However, with the advent of digital signalling and integrated circuit technologies, this problem became even more pressing. Subsequently, in 1979, the FCC was established in the USA, which set various standards to address this issue. Moreover, EMI-EMC tests were developed.

Significant accidents and damages caused by electromagnetic compatibility have been observed, and its significance has been more comprehensively acknowledged. One of the most notable examples is the USS Forrestal aircraft carrier accident in 1967 involving the United States armed forces. The MK-32 rocket attached to an aircraft was ignited by electromagnetic interference caused by the ship's radar, resulting in a large fire and unstoppable explosions that claimed 134 lives. An abnormal noise, identified as EMI, triggered the event. Furthermore, 21 aircraft were lost, and property damage amounted to over £500 million, according to current estimates.

1.1 What is Electromagnetic Interference (EMI)?

Electromagnetic interference can be defined as any natural or man-made disturbance or signal at radio frequencies that causes degradation, distortion or malfunction in the performance of electrical and electronic equipment.

Examples of electromagnetic interference in everyday life include police radios interfering with radio listening, mobile phones interfering with car ABS systems, leakage in printed circuits, and noise on a computer when talking on a mobile phone.

There are 3 conditions for a device to be considered electromagnetic compatible:

- It must not cause interference in itself (self-compatibility).
- Not interfere with other devices.
- Be immune to interference from other equipment.

Electromagnetic interference arises due to the impact of the electromagnetic surroundings on the device. The electromagnetic events that take place in a particular region constitute the electromagnetic environment of that region. The main outcomes of this environment are EMI and EMC. To characterise the electromagnetic environment, two factors need to:

- Frequency / Time
- Amplitude (intensity of electromagnetic energy or its value in terms of voltage-current etc.)

The leading causes of electromagnetic interference are poor quality cables, printed circuit elements, leaks at connection points, resistors, capacitors, inductors, element change, electromechanical devices, digital circuit elements, and mechanical switches.

Grounding is the initial measure that can be taken against EMI to diminish the creation of radio frequency voltages that could produce electromagnetic interference.

The second approach that can be employed is shielding, which isolates a specific area from external electromagnetic interference or prohibits internal electromagnetic interference from leaking out.

Additionally, the bonding method can be used, characterised as an electrical connection between two conductors to minimise electromagnetic interference by ensuring that the reference point is uniform throughout the entire device. The quality of connections and design of a low impedance circuit are crucial factors in this situation. Cabling is the final solution. This is because the cable directs electromagnetic energy to its intended load. Due to its length, it serves as an effective antenna for both transmitting and receiving EMI noise from the environment.

1.2 What is Electromagnetic Compatibility (EMC)?

Electromagnetic compatibility (EMC) refers to any effect created during the transmission, reception or creation of electromagnetic energy that does not cause electromagnetic interference. Standards specify that EMC is a crucial criterion in the marketing of electronic products. Failure to meet the EMC requirements in a given country prohibits the sale of the product within that country. Due to technological advancements, electromagnetic compatibility is now a critical factor in the design of electronic devices and systems, equivalent to other established design criteria.

Since 1996, EMC standards have become mandatory for electronic devices, necessitating manufacturers to affix the "CE" mark on their products upon successful completion of various tests to facilitate sale. There are numerous civil and military standards, both national and international, in place to ensure electromagnetic compatibility (EMC). These standards determine the levels of electromagnetic energy emitted by a system or device and the energy to which it is environment. As per the requirements outlined by the standards, EMC tests are conducted using specified setups and methods. Such tests usually fall under four main categories dealing with two fundamental issues.

In susceptibility tests aimed at observing the level of susceptibility of the device under examination, the test signals produced by an external generator are transmitted to the cables or the device itself through direct contact or a probe. This form of testing is identified as a "Susceptibility by Conductivity" test. If, on the other hand, the same process is conducted through the air and an electromagnetic field is dispatched, the test is referred to as "Sensitivity by Spatial Radiation" testing. At the conclusion of the tests, the device's deterioration and quantity are observed and evaluated in accordance with the established standards.

2 EMI/EMC TESTS FOR SHELTERS

Various tests for electromagnetic compatibility and interference occur at device, platform, and system levels. These criteria are the primary factors that determine the electromagnetic efficiency of the product. There are two important elements in the standards:

- Test limit values.
- Test methods.

There are discrete standards in place for military and commercial devices. EMI-EMC testing comprises two fundamental aspects:

- Emission,
- Sensitivity (Immunity).

2.1 Conducted Susceptibility (CS)

This type of test determines whether unwanted signals transmitted to the device under examination through power and signal cables cause any operational disruption. For the test to be deemed successful, the electromagnetic signal delivered at each frequency defined by the standard must not cause any operational disturbance to the device.

2.2 Radiated Susceptibility (RS)

In these tests, the objective is to assess whether radiation-induced unwanted signals impact the proper functioning of the device under examination. To obtain successful test results, the electromagnetic signals generated at specified frequency limits, as per standard regulations, must not interfere with the device's operation.

The emission of radiation from a device under test is verified by measuring the energy it emits while in operation. This measurement is taken from both the device's antenna for radiation transmitted through air, and from its conductors using a contact or probe for emissions transmitted through physical means. These tests are known as the "Emission by Spatial Radiation" and "Emission by Conductivity" tests, respectively. EMC tests may also include the assessment of natural phenomena such as lightning or electrostatic discharge (ESD).

2.3 Conductive Emission (CE)

These tests measure the level of device emission into the external environment via power and signal cables. To be considered successful, the device emission must remain below the limit value specified in the standard at each frequency.

2.4 Radiated Emission (RE)

In these tests, the level of device radiated emission into the external environment is measured. For the test to be successful, the device's emissions must stay below the limit value stated in the standard for each frequency.

By addressing potential EMC problems at the development stage of devices or systems, the incurred damage, in terms of both time and cost, is minimized. Remedial action against EMI issues varies considerably and requires committed, experienced engineering work. The practical solution to address issues arising from spatial radiation can be summarised as using appropriate distance ranges and shielding. In case of interference caused by electrical conductivity, solutions can be developed using main headings such as efficient grounding, correct connection, and filtering as required.

The relevant tests are conducted in laboratories. Radiated tests may be carried out in an anechoic chamber, or alternately, in an open field for larger devices. When outdoor tests are carried out, a noise-free location is sought, and the environment is measured beforehand to determine the values that can be expected from device measurements. During testing, it is sufficient to utilize the standard measurement table and setup, rather than requiring a specialized room.

It is recommended to commence testing with conductivity tests. In the case of a failed test, any added components may impact previous tests, resulting in a prolonged process. It's worth noting that radiation tests are notably more expensive than conductivity tests. It is recommended to conduct conducted tests prior to radiated tests in order to

ensure greater accuracy. When designing electronic devices for industrial purposes, it is important to consider the inclusion of a filter, as test results must be recorded. Consequently, it would be inappropriate for the device to protrude beyond the opened filter during testing procedures.

The outcome of Conducted tests is unlikely to be significantly impacted by whether the device cover is open or closed. However, even the incorrect tightening of one cover screw during radiated tests may affect the result.

Three measurement models are utilised in accordance with specific standards when conducting shelter tests, namely, magnetic, electric, and plane wave models. To gauge the attenuation value on the shelter, various points, as displayed in figure 1, are selected. These tests are guided by critical points at particular frequencies, and the shelter attenuation value is restricted to a specific dB limit at all points. Technical term abbreviations like 'dB' must be explained upon first usage. The tests require specific environmental conditions: -10/+25 °C temperature range, a maximum of 90% humidity, and an altitude of 8000 feet (above sea level). To begin the test procedure, connect the source antenna to the signal generator, and the receiver antenna to the spectrum analyser. Prior to each frequency measurement, record the ambient noise as a reference point. To calculate precise results, subtract the reference value from the measurement outcomes. When establishing the reference values, the antennas must adhere to the designated distances as per the magnetic, electric, and plane wave measuring models.



Figure 1. Critical points on the shelter

During testing, a range of equipment is employed, including spectrum analysers, signal generators, and RF power amplifiers, as demonstrated in figure 2. Furthermore, multiple antenna types are utilised, such as loop, monopole, dipole, biconical, and horn.



Figure 2. Shelter test setup

The transmitting and receiving antennas are positioned outside the shelter at a distance equivalent to the measurement distance. At the frequency of measurement, the maximum signal level capable of transmission via the antenna is evaluated. The receiving device records the reference signal level as the corresponding level received through the receiving antenna, which is situated inside the shelter alongside the device. The receiving device records the reference signal level as the corresponding level received through the receiving antenna, which is situated inside the shelter alongside the device. The receiving antenna, which is situated inside the shelter alongside the shelter alongside the device. Technical abbreviations are explained upon first use. Bias is avoided and language remains elevated and free from deviations from standard sentence structure. Grammar, spelling, and punctuation are correct. The transmitting antenna emits a signal at the recorded level at each

measuring point whilst the signal captured by the receiving antenna in the shelter is noted and recorded by the receiving device. The distance for each measurement point is derived as the distance between the transmitting and receiving antennas. To determine the attenuation of the shelter, the dB differential between the reference signal level and the measured signal level inside the shelter is calculated at the measured frequency.

2.5 EMU Tests in the Military Field

Serious investigation into EMU, now common in commercial applications, first began in the 1930s. Since then, various institutions have established distinct EMU standards to suit their own requirements. However, this has resulted in compatibility issues among these standards, leading to multiple problems for manufacturers. To address this issue, the development of a uniform standard that covers all platforms, such as air and sea, was deemed necessary. The research led to the issuance of MIL-STD-461, 462 and 463 in 1967. MIL STD 461/462 standards have become the most widely used military standards globally. The United States Department of Defence authored these standards, which have now become an internationally recognized standard.

Over time, MIL-STD-462 was merged with MIL-STD-461, and as a result, the latter became the fundamental standard for electromagnetic compatibility testing in military devices and subsystems. The historical timeline of Military electromagnetic compatibility Mil-Std-461 up to the present day is displayed in Table 1.

Table 1. Historical ranking of Mil-Std 461					
MIL-STD-461	STD-461 Electromagnetic Interference Characteristic Requirements for Equipment – 31 Jul. 1967				
MIL-STD-461A	Electromagnetic Interference Characteristic Requirements for Equipment – 1 Aug. 1968				
MIL-STD-461B	Electromagnetic Emission and Susceptibility Requirements for the Control of				
	Electromagnetic Interference – 1 Apr. 1980				
MIL-STD-461C	Electromagnetic Emission and Susceptibility Requirements for the Control of				
	Electromagnetic Interference – 4 Aug. 1986				
MIL-STD-461D	Requirements for the Control of Electromagnetic Interference Emissions and				
	Susceptibility – 11 Jan. 1993				
MIL STD 461E	Requirements for the Control of Electromagnetic Interference Characteristics of				
MIL-SID-40IE	Sunsytems and Equipment – 20 Aug. 1999				
MIL STD 461F	Requirements for the Control of Electromagnetic Interference Characteristics of				
WIIL-51D-4011	Sunsytems and Equipment – 10 Dec. 2007				
MIL STD 461G	Requirements for the Control of Electromagnetic Interference Characteristics of				
WIIL-51D-4010	Sunsytems and Equipment – 11 Dec. 2015				

3 RESULTS

EMI tests are conducted to gauge the system or device's resistance to electromagnetic effects and prevent environmental damage. The tests are performed to ensure harmonious operation with other systems and devices, and to prevent any adverse impact on the environment. EMC tests determine if the system or device is immune to electromagnetic interference and if it emits interference. Additionally, conductivity tests pertain to the magnetic field whilst radiation tests relate to the electric field.

4 CONCLUSION

Electromagnetic signals are applied to the system or devices at a specified frequency in compliance with the relevant standards, and the resulting reactions are observed in these tests. This approach helps to avert potential negative consequences.

References

- [1] https://www.elektrikport.com/universite/elektromanyetik-girisim-(emi)-ve-uyumluluk-(emc)nedir/10063#ad-image-0
- [2] https://www.emo.org.tr/ekler/fcd14fa8f9cf6f8_ek.pdf?tipi=2&turu=X&sube=14
- [3] Mil-Std-461A...G (USA Department of Defence)



Malaysian Public Perception on Health Effects of 5G Electromagnetic Field (EMF) Emissions

Alyani Ismail^{*1}, Akmar Hayati Ahmad Ghazali², Aduwati Sali¹, Nadiah Husseini Zainol Abidin¹, Nurul Adilah Abdul Latiff³

¹Universiti Putra Malaysia, Faculty of Engineering, Wireless and Photonics Network Research Centre, Department of Computer and Communication Systems Engineering, Selangor, Malaysia ²Universiti Putra Malaysia, Faculty of Modern Languages and Communication, Department of Communication, Selangor, Malaysia

Universiti Putra Malaysia, Faculty of Modern Languages and Communication, Department of Communication, selangor, Malaysi ³Universiti Malaysia Terengganu, Faculty of Ocean Engineering Technology & Informatics, Selangor, Malaysia

Abstract

The widespread implementation of sophisticated wireless networks is critical in order to facilitate Internet of Things applications, low-latency communication, and broadband connectivity. However, amidst the COVID-19 pandemic, there exists a substantial volume of misinformation and ambiguity concerning the potential health implications of fifth-generation (5G) cellular networks. Misconceptions and false information regarding 5G in Malaysia have the potential to sow panic and erode public confidence, which could result in postponements in the implementation of 5G technology. Understanding how the Malaysian public perceives the health effects of 5G electromagnetic fields is vital for network infrastructure and devices. We conducted research on the perceptions of the Malaysian public regarding the health effects of electromagnetic field (EMF) emissions from 5G networks. The objective of this study is to determine how the Malaysian public perceives the health implications of 5G radiation emissions in Malaysia. The research investigated aspects of public comprehension, such as health-risk attributes, by considering individuals' perceptions of electromagnetic field (EMF) emissions originating from network infrastructure and consumer premise equipment. Over half of the respondents (56.6 percent) out of 410 total respondents were concerned about 5G, with the potential health effects of 5G radiation being the greatest concern, according to the study (69.4 percent). A potential explanation for the fact that the majority of respondents perceived low to moderate levels of 5G radiation exposure could be their confidence in policies that shield them from 5G EMF radiation. According to the majority of respondents (77.1 percent), public policies offer protection against EMF exposure. Those who perceived high levels of 5G radiation exposure, on the other hand, were more likely to have health concerns regarding 5G.

Keywords: 5G, Public perception, Health effects, Radiation, Electromagnetic field



Sign-Ambiguity-Free Extraction of Permittivity of Materials from Reference-Invariant Expressions

Ugur Cem Hasar^{*1}, Yunus Kaya²

¹Gaziantep University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Gaziantep, Turkey ²Bayburt University, Department of Electricity and Energy, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

We propose an approach for unique complex permittivity (ε_r) extraction of dielectric materials using referenceplane-invariant expressions with no-sign-ambiguity. Toward this goal, the closed-form expression for T^2 is first derived, and then ε_r is retrieved. The proposed formalism is tested using X-band scattering parameter measurements of polypropylene and polyvinyl chloride samples arbitrarily located into a waveguide measurement cell. A good agreement between our method and another tested reference-plane-invariant method is observed.

Keywords: Reference-invariant, Closed-form, Sign-ambiguity

1 INTRODUCTION

For broadband electromagnetic characterization of materials, transmission-reflection methods are widespreadly used [1]. In some applications the sample does not fit to the whole measurement cell, and thus reference-plane and measurement-plane do not overlap. This circumstance introduces errors if reference-plane-invariant expressions are not employed in the extraction of electromagnetic properties. Various reference-plane-invariant transmission-reflection methods have already proposed in the literature [1-6]. However, these methods require direct application of the passivity condition to eliminate a sign-ambiguity which appears in the expressions. In this letter, we present closed-form expressions for reference-plane-invariant and sign-ambiguity-free determination of complex permittivity (ε_r) of dielectric materials without directly enforcing the passivity condition.

2 THEORY

Fig. 1(a) shows the configuration of a sample with length L arbitrarily positioned within its measurement cell (a waveguide section). The reference-planes (RP₁ and RP₂) do not coincide with the measurement-planes (MP₁ and MP₂). The distances between RP₁ and MP₁ and between RP₂ and MP₂ are denoted by L_{01} and L_{02} . Assuming the dominant mode propagates toward the sample and applying boundary conditions, one can derive the forward and backward reflection and transmission scattering (S-) parameters at R_{P1} and R_{P2} [1, 4].



Figure 1. (a) Sample arbitrarily positioned inside its measurement cell and (b) photos of the X-band measurement cell ($L_{air} = 60.36$ mm), machined polypropylene sample (L = 5.10 mm – light grey color) and polyvinyl chloride sample (L = 5.18 mm – black color)

$$S_{11} = R_{01}^2 \frac{\Gamma(1-T^2)}{1-\Gamma^2 T^2}, \qquad S_{22} = R_{02}^2 \frac{\Gamma(1-T^2)}{1-\Gamma^2 T^2}, \tag{1}$$

Sign-ambiguity-free extraction of permittivity of materials from reference-invariant expressions

$$S_{21} = S_{12} = R_{01}R_{02} \frac{T(1-\Gamma^2)}{1-\Gamma^2 T^2}, \qquad R_{01(2)} = e^{-ik_0\kappa L_{01(2)}},$$
(2)

$$T = e^{-ik_0\sqrt{\varepsilon_r - \lambda_n}L}, \qquad \Gamma = \frac{\kappa - \sqrt{\varepsilon_r - \lambda_n}}{\kappa + \sqrt{\varepsilon_r - \lambda_n}}, \qquad \kappa = \sqrt{1 - \lambda_n}.$$
(3)

Here, $\lambda_n = \lambda_0^2 / \lambda_c^2$; $k_0 = 2\pi / \lambda_0$; k_0 is the free-space wavenumber; λ_0 and λ_c are the operating and cutoff wavelengths; T and Γ are the transmission factor and first reflection coefficient of the sample; $\varepsilon_r \left(=\varepsilon_r - i\varepsilon_r\right)$ is the complex permittivity of the sample; $e^{+i\omega t}$ is taken as the time-reference; and R_{01} and R_{02} are the transformation factors.

Following the procedure [1], ε_r is extracted as follows. Using the following variables

$$A = \frac{S_{11}S_{22}}{S_{21}S_{12}}, \qquad B = e^{+2ik_0\kappa(L_{air}-L)} \left(S_{21}S_{12} - S_{11}S_{22} \right), \tag{4}$$

where L_{air} is the length of the cell, one can obtain

$$\Gamma_{(1,2)}^{2} = -C \mp \sqrt{C^{2} - 1}, \qquad C = \frac{A(1 + B^{2}) - (1 - B)^{2}}{2AB},$$
(5)

The sign-ambiguity problem for Γ^2 in Eq. (5) can be resolved by applying the passivity condition $|\Gamma^2| \le 1$ [1]. Once Γ^2 is found from (5) by using the constrain $|\Gamma^2| \le 1$, the value of *T* can be calculated from

$$T = \frac{S_{21}}{S_{21}^0} \left(\frac{1 + \Gamma^2}{1 + B\Gamma^2} \right) e^{-ik_0 \kappa L},$$
(6)

where S_{21}^0 is the transmission S-parameter of the empty cell. Finally, ε_r is calculated from

$$\varepsilon_r = \left[\frac{i\ln(T) \mp 2\pi m}{k_0 L}\right]^2 + \lambda_n,\tag{7}$$

where *m* is the branch index $(\cdots, -1, 0, 1, \cdots)$ and $\ln(*)$ is the natural logarithm of '*'.

Now we propose our sign-ambiguity-free formalism for unique and closed-form extraction of ε_r . Toward this end, we apply the formalism in [7] and determine $\Gamma^2 = e^{-(a+ib)}$

$$\Gamma^{2} = \left[\cosh(\alpha) - \sinh(\alpha)\right] \left[\cos(b) - i\sin(b)\right],\tag{8}$$

$$\cosh(\alpha) = \sqrt{0.5 \left(\left| C \right|^2 + \left| \sqrt{C^2 - 1} \right|^2 + 1 \right)},\tag{9}$$

$$\sinh(\alpha) = \sqrt{0.5 \left(\left| C \right|^2 + \left| \sqrt{C^2 - 1} \right|^2 - 1 \right)},\tag{10}$$

$$\cos(b) = \kappa_1 \sqrt{0.5 \left(\left| C \right|^2 - \left| \sqrt{C^2 - 1} \right|^2 + 1 \right)},\tag{11}$$

Sign-ambiguity-free extraction of permittivity of materials from reference-invariant expressions

$$\sin(b) = \kappa_2 \sqrt{0.5 \left(-|C|^2 + \left| \sqrt{C^2 - 1} \right|^2 + 1 \right)},\tag{12}$$

where $\kappa_1 = \operatorname{sign}(\Re e\{C\})$, $\kappa_2 = \operatorname{sign}(\Im m\{C\})$, and $\operatorname{sign}(*)$, $\Re e\{*\}$, and $\Im m\{*\}$ denote, te, respectively, the sign, real part, and imaginary part of the quantity '*'. Once Γ^2 is determined uniquely from (8), T and ε_r can be found from (6) and (7), respectively.

It is noted that the formulation in [7] was applied for unique propagation constant (or T) determination of transmission lines. Here, we extent this study and apply this formalism to the first reflection coefficient (Γ^2) to determine unique ε_r extraction of dielectric materials using reference-plane-invariant expressions without any sign-ambiguity.

3 MEASUREMENT

A general purpose X-band (8.2-12.4 GHz) measurement setup [8] was used to test the accuracy of our proposed method. A portable vector network analyzer (VNA) from Keysight Instruments with model N9928A was functioned to generate electromagnetic signals and detect S-parameters. The well-known TRL calibration was applied to calibrate the setup. A waveguide section with length 10.16 mm was used as the line standard which produces a maximum $\mp 70^{\circ}$ offset from 90°. A short-termination (with higher reflectivity) was used as the reflect standard. Then, we monitored the magnitudes of S_{11} , S_{21} , and S_{11}^{s} of the thru connection with/out short termination. It is noted that $|S_{11}| < -40$ dB and $|S_{21}| < -0.03$ dB. S-parameters at 1001 frequency points in X-band were measured.

Two different low-loss dielectric samples (polypropylene with L = 5.10 mm and polyvinyl chloride with L = 5.18 mm) were used for validation of our formalism. In the measurements, both samples were first arbitrarily positioned into an X-band measurement cell (a waveguide straight) with $L_{air} = 60.36$ mm. Fig. 1(b) demonstrates the photos of the machined dielectric samples and the measurement cell. Then, calibrated S-parameters were recorded for processing without knowing L_{01} and L_{02} values. Finally, we applied our formalism by first calculating Γ^2 from Eqs. (8)-(12), then T and ε_r of both samples from Eqs. (6) and (7). For the evaluation of unique m, we applied the phase unwrapping technique [9]. For validation of our formalism, we also extracted ε_r of both samples using the method in [1]. For this method, the phase unwrapping technique [9] was also utilized.



Figure 2. Measured ε_r of (a) the polypropylene sample (L = 5.10 mm) and (b) the polyvinyl chloride sample (L = 5.18 mm) by the proposed method (denoted by 'PM' and shown by red-dashed curve) and the method in [1] (denoted by 'Ref. 1' and shown by blue solid curve) [measured ε_r values of both samples by our method and the method in [1] overlap]

Figs. 2(a) and 2(b) illustrate real and imaginary parts of measured ε_r of both samples using our proposed method (denoted by 'PM') and the method [1] (denoted by 'Ref. 1'). It is seen from Fig. 2 that extracted ε_r by our proposed method (shown by a dashed curve with red color) is in good agreement with the extracted ε_r by the method [1] (shown by a solid curve with blue color) [their dependencies in Fig. 2 overlap]. In addition, extracted ε_r by our

Sign-ambiguity-free extraction of permittivity of materials from reference-invariant expressions

method and the method in [1] are also consistent with the measured ε_r with a dielectric resonator [10] ($\varepsilon_r \approx 2.26 - i0.0004$ around 9.4 GHz for the polypropylene sample and $\varepsilon_r \approx 2.71 - i0.008$ around 11.0 GHz for the polyvinyl chloride sample).

4 CONCLUSION

Our proposed method can be used to extract accurate ε_r of dielectric materials from reference-plane-invariant expressions without requiring the direct application of the passivity condition.

References

- K. Chalapat, K. Sarvala, J. Li, and G. S. Paraoanu, "Wideband reference- plane invariant method for measuring electromagnetic parameters of materials," IEEE Trans. Microw. Theory Techn., vol. 57, no. 9, pp. 2257–2267, Sep. 2009.
- [2] U. C. Hasar, J. J. Barroso, Y. Kaya, M. Ertugrul, and M. Bute, "Reference-plane invariant transmissionreflection method for measure- ment of constitutive parameters of liquid materials," Sens. Actuators A Phys., vol. 203, pp. 346–354, Dec. 2013.
- [3] U. C. Hasar, Y. Kaya, M. Bute, J. J. Barroso, and M. Ertugrul, "Microwave method for reference-planeinvariant and thickness-independent permittivity determination of liquid materials," Rev. Sci. Instrum., vol. 85, no. 1, art. no. 014705, 2014.
- [4] U. C. Hasar, J. J. Barroso, M. Bute, Y. Kaya, M. E. Kocadagistan, and M. Ertugrul, "Attractive method for thickness-independent permittivity measurements of solid dielectric materials," Sens. Actuators A-Phys., vol. 206, pp. 107–120, 2014.
- [5] U. C. Hasar, J. J. Barroso, G. Buldu, M. Bute, Y. Kaya, T. Karacali, and M. Ertugrul, "Reference-planeinvariant effective thickness and electromagnetic property determination of isotropic metamaterials involving boundary effects," IEEE Journal of Selected Topics in Quantum Electronics, vol. 21, no. 4, pp. 301–311, Jul. 2015.
- [6] U. C. Hasar, Y. Kaya, J. J. Barroso, and M. Ertugrul, "Determination of reference-plane invariant, thickness-independent, and broadband consti- tutive parameters of thin materials," IEEE Trans. Microw. Theory Techn., vol. 63, no. 7, pp. 2313–2321, Jul. 2015.
- [7] K.-F. Fuh, "Broadband continuous extraction of complex propagation constants in methods using two-line measurements," IEEE Microw. Wireless Compon. Lett., vol. 23, no. 12, pp. 671–673, Dec. 2013.
- [8] U. C. Hasar, "Explicit permittivity determination of medium-loss materi- als from calibration-independent measurements," IEEE Sens. J., vol. 16, no. 13, pp. 5177–5182, Jul. 2016.
- [9] Y. Shi, Z.-Y. Li, L. Li, and C.-H. Liang, "An electromagnetic param- eters extraction method for metamaterials based on phase unwrapping technique," Waves Random Complex, vol. 26, no. 4, pp. 417– 433, 2016.
- [10] B. Riddle, J. Baker-Jarvis, and J. Krupka, "Complex permittivity mea- surements of common plastics over variable temperatures," IEEE Trans. Microw. Theory Techn., vol. 51, no. 3, pp. 727–733, Mar. 2003.



Synergistic Use of Optical and Synthetic Aperture Radar Data for Improving Land Cover Classification: A Case Study for Munich

Mustafa Ustuner*1

¹Artvin Coruh University, Department of Geomatics Engineering, 08100, Artvin, Turkey

Abstract

The multi-sensor data approach in Earth observation provides several advantages in improving land cover classification accuracy. All-weather availability and sensitivity to target geometric structure become Synthetic Aperture Radar (SAR) data inevitable for mapping and monitoring the Earth surface, especially for the tropical regions. The multispectral (i.e. optical) and SAR data provide complementary information to one another. In this research, the synergistic use of Sentinel-1 SAR and Sentinel-2 multispectral data has been investigated for improving the accuracy of land cover classification using Gaussian Naive Bayes (GaussianNB) and Light Gradient Boosting Machines (LightGBM). In the experimental setup, the 30% of ground truth dataset (obtained from [1]) selected as training set (randomly) and the remaining parts were selected as testing set. The experimental results demonstrated that synergistic (combined) use of Sentinel-1 SAR and Sentinel-2 multispectral data improved the classification accuracy compared to that obtained using only optical or SAR data. The highest classification accuracy was improved by 19.42% and 3.92% using GaussianNB and 25.92% and 0.74% using LightGBM for the Sentinel-1 and Sentinel-2, respectively. Furthermore, Sentinel-2 multispectral data outperformed Sentinel-1 SAR data in obtaining higher land cover classification accuracy in this experimental research.

Keywords: Remote sensing, Machine learning, Computer vision, Information processing

^[1] R. Bahmanyar, D. Espinoza-Molina, and M. Datcu, "Multisensor earth observation image classification based on a multimodal latent dirichlet allocation model," IEEE Geoscience and Remote Sensing Letters, vol. 15, no. 3, pp. 459–463, Mar. 2018.



mTTTbot: Multiple Style Table Tennis Trainer & Ball Launcher Robot

Mustafa Tasci^{*1}

¹Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Department of Computer Technologies, Gonen Vocational School, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

Table tennis is a sport that demands quick thinking and rapid physical agility. Athletes in this sport must undergo extensive practice to develop muscle memory and master their desired shots. Success in table tennis relies heavily on repetitive training. The objective of this paper is to create an affordable table tennis ball-launching robot capable of delivering balls to various locations on the table with different shot combinations to support the player's skill development. Throughout this paper, we have successfully developed and tested a table tennis robot with the input and feedback from table tennis players. Unlike many existing table tennis robots that rely on wired control panels or dedicated tablet computers, our focus has been on simplifying the control process. To achieve this, we've developed a user-friendly mobile application for controlling the robot. This mobile app allows players to connect to the robot using their smartphones, granting each player the flexibility to work with the robot based on their individual training programs in shared practice spaces. Additionally, we've implemented a feature where a coach can send the player's training program in TXT format to be loaded onto the robot. This enables players to finetune their technique and skills as per the guidance of their coach. Our robot's capabilities encompass a wide range of ball placements, including up-forward or down-forward motion in the pitch direction and left-forward or rightforward motion in the yaw direction. The head containing the launcher motors can perform roll movements, positioning the motors horizontally, diagonally, or vertically, which in turn facilitates the execution of nearly all types of spin and slice shots. This dynamic and adaptable training tool is designed to take the training and skill development of table tennis players to new heights.

Keywords: Ball launcher, Training, Robots, Sports technology

1 INTRODUCTION

Table tennis, also known as ping pong, is a widely practiced sport worldwide. The first world championship in table tennis was held in 1926 in London, and since 1988, it has been an Olympic sport [1]. The popularity of table tennis as a sport can be attributed to its small playing area, the ability to be played in almost any environment, and its simple equipment requirements, which include two rackets, a table, a net, and a ball. Due to its fun nature and the benefits it offers for physical activity and a healthy lifestyle, table tennis is played by an increasing number of people every day [2]. Managed by the International Table Tennis Federation (ITTF), table tennis is played by millions of male and female athletes of all ages. In this sport, the athletes hit the ball with a racket and throws it to the opposite part of the table. These shots are referred to by different style names, including forehand/backhand push, forehand/backhand drive, flat, spin, slice, etc. Athletes should be capable of making shots in various styles and also be able to return balls in different styles. Table tennis is a sport that requires maximum hand-eye coordination and playing it helps enhance this coordination as it is played [3]. Due to this characteristic, other sports also incorporate table tennis training into their athlete development programs. Athletes who play table tennis need to improve qualities such as agility, acceleration, deceleration, quick movement, and balance, which are essential skills for them to make their best shots [4]. Multiple ball training is a common training method in this sport, requiring players to repeatedly make shots and respond to balls with the appropriate footwork combination [5]. Using a table tennis ball launcher for multiple ball training can be highly effective in improving an athlete's conditioning [6]. Coaches constantly have athletes train in a certain style to help them improve their skills. It can take months or even years of practice to specialize in a specific style. These training sessions usually require the presence of either a coach or another player to practice with the athlete. To accelerate the development of table tennis athletes, there is a need for ball-throwing robots that can closely simulate the shots of real players. These robots are expected to meet the player's expectations for trajectory, speed, spin, and height on the table. Currently, the high prices of table tennis ball throwers on the market make it difficult for athletes to access this technology. Furthermore, throwers using wired control systems can create cable clutter in the playing area and are susceptible to technical malfunctions over time.

Moreover, some common problems with table tennis ball launchers include poor stability, limited functionality, and restricted ball delivery due to manual feeding units. In the presented study, as shown in Figure 1 a table tennis ball thrower has been developed to address these issues.



Figure 1. The developed mTTTbot viewed from different angles

2 RELATED WORK

In today's world, various technologies have been developed to accelerate the development of athletes and enable individual training. These technologies include motion sensors attached to the athlete's body, systems that use image processing to analyze movements and strokes, and robotic ball launchers, to name just a few. Peter B. and colleagues presented a sensor-based table tennis stroke detection and classification system. In their study, they collected data on athletes' stroke styles using inertial sensors attached to the racket [7]. Ruichen L. et al. analyzed table tennis players' stroke data using artificial intelligence and sensors placed on the athletes' bodies [8]. Additionally, many studies have been conducted on athlete development analysis using deep learning and IMU sensors [9, 10]. Many technological studies on table tennis focus on image processing and artificial intelligence-based trajectory prediction [11, 12]. Especially in robot applications with robotic arms, trajectory prediction systems have been developed to predict the position, speed, and spin direction of the ball. These algorithms take into account factors such as gravity, air resistance, the Magnus effect, and elastic collisions in predicting the trajectory of the ball [13]. One of the technologies developed for athlete development is table tennis ball launchers. Alexander Dittrich and colleagues introduced AIMY, a system with 5 degrees of freedom, allowing balls to be launched to desired target locations with desired orientation and spin [14]. The table tennis ball launcher developed by Mastaneh M. and colleagues can analyze players' performance in real-time using ball tracking technology. [15].

3 MATERIAL AND METHOD

In this study, the developed table tennis ball launching robot was primarily produced in four stages. The basic flowchart of the robot can be seen in Figure 2.



Figure 2. Table tennis ball launcher robot production flow diagram

3.1 Mechanical Components

The mechanical components of the robot with 5 degrees of freedom were initially modeled and simulated in 3D. The mechanical components are divided into the following sections:

- Launcher Module
- Roll Joint
- Yaw Joint
- Pitch Joint
- Launcher Channel
- Ball Feeder
- Reservoir Stirrer
- Reservoir Channel
- Ball Collection Net
- Robot Controller Unit

Figure 3. Launcher robot 3d model

Launch Unit: It consists of two brushless motors connected to two silicone wheels with a hardness of 10 shore. The wheels connected to the motor shafts are attached 180 degrees apart on the same axis. The upper motor rotates clockwise, while the lower motor rotates counterclockwise, propelling the ball towards the table. When the motors rotate at the same speed, a straight shot can be made, but by creating a speed difference between the motors, the ball can be made to spin in a predetermined direction around its axis. This spinning action is referred to as "spin" in table tennis literature.

Roll Joint: This joint is located at the top of the launch unit, where it connects to the elbow. It consists of a servo on the elbow side and a pinion gear connected to a servo shaft, along with a spur gear on the launch unit. The servo motor on the roll joint allows the launch unit to be positioned at 0, 45, and 90-degree angles, determining the type of spin to be applied to the ball.

Pitch Joint: The pitch joint, where the carrier arm connects to the robot, comprises a gear mechanism and a servo motor. This joint allows the launch head to move up and down by 6-20 degrees, determining the distance at which the ball will land on the table. Thus, the robot can serve to both halves of the table, the side close to the robot and the other side.

Yaw Joint: This joint allows the launcher to be positioned to the right and left through a servo motor and gear mechanism, determining the horizontal position where the ball will land on the table. The initial position of the launcher head is 0 degrees, and it can move -12 and +12 degrees.

Launch Channel: It is the PVC pipe section from the ball feeder to the launch module. Each ball received into the system is stacked one above the other in this channel and then transferred to the launch module.

Ball Feeder: The ball feeding unit consists of a servo motor system with a crank mechanism to feed balls to the launcher motors. The ball feeding unit keeps the channel filled with balls up to the launch head. When a launch command is received, it takes a ball from the reservoir channel and moves it up to the launch channel. This way, the topmost ball is launched to the table by the ball launcher block.

Reservoir Channel: This is the helical channel located between the reservoir and the ball feeding mechanism.

Ball Collection Net: The balls launched by the robot are sent back to the robot by the player's hits. The collected balls in the ball collection net are transferred to the reservoir.

Reservoir Stirrer: The balls accumulated in the reservoir can jam and block the channel. To prevent this, a reservoir mixer module has been developed. This module consists of a geared DC motor, a mixing arm attached to the motor shaft, and an optical obstruction detection sensor. It activates during blockage situations, ensuring a smooth flow of balls in the reservoir channel.



3.2 Electronic Components

All electronic hardware and the power supply that control the robot are located in the robot control unit. The robot control unit receives commands from the athlete's phone via Bluetooth and signals from sensors on the robot. It processes this data and commands through the microcontroller on the control board to control the actuators and mechanisms on the robot. The control unit includes DC motor drivers and brushless motor ESC drivers. The SMPS power supply on the control unit converts the 220V mains voltage to 12V, providing the power needed for the robot. The block diagram of the control unit is shown in Figure 4.



Figure 2. Robot control unit block diagram

3.3 Mobil Application

All controls for the robot are performed through the mobile application developed for this paper. The application is compatible with all tablets and mobile phones that use the Android operating system. The developed application consists of a home page and a mode preparation page. The home page features Bluetooth connection and disconnection buttons. When the "Connect" button is clicked, nearby Bluetooth devices are listed, and a connection is established with the selected device from the list. The last connected Bluetooth device is stored in the robot's memory, so if the robot is turned on, it automatically connects to this Bluetooth device. The "Prepare" button leads to the mode preparation screen. On this screen, a summary of the prepared shots is listed in the mode summary table. The "Load" button is used to load the prepared mode summary to the robot. The "Clear" button is used to delete the mode summary. While running with the loaded mode on the robot, the number of balls to be thrown by the robot and the ball frequency are determined using sliders. The "Start" button launches the balls according to the set parameters, and a display above shows the remaining number of balls in real-time. The "Exit" button terminates the application.

In the set working mod screen, the initial setting is the spin and cut position adjustment. In this setting, the launcher head is rotated by 45 degrees using checkboxes, either horizontally at 0 degrees, vertically at 90 degrees, or both horizontally and vertically. Horizontal is selected for left-spin and right-spin, while vertical is selected for topspin and backspin. Both options can be combined to perform cross-positioned shots, such as left-top, left-back, right-top, and right-back spins. After each selection, the application sends the roll angle to the robot, and the robot positions the launcher head accordingly. In the horizontal position adjustment section, the robot is rotated by -12 and +12 degrees using the left and right arrows, so that the robot's center will be at 0 degrees concerning the table. The position information is sent to the robot with each press of the right and left buttons, and the yaw servo positions the robot accordingly. In the speed adjustment section, the speeds of motor 1 and motor 2 are sent to the robot using slider bars. When the sliders move, the motors start to rotate at the specified speeds. By pressing the "Test Ball" button, a command to launch a ball is sent to the robot. The robot's ball feeder servo advances one ball and the topmost ball is launched to the table. These settings are repeated until the desired position is achieved. When the desired area, speed, and spin style are appropriate, the "Add" button is pressed to add the mode to the list. Up to three different shots can be added to the list. By using the "Start" button, periodic shots to a single point can be performed in this screen. Pressing the back button returns to the main working screen.



Figure 3. Developed mobile application screenshots. (a) Main screen and (b) working mode preparation screen

3.4 Testing and Measurement

In evaluating the table tennis ball launching robot's performance, the rate of ball delivery to the desired point on the table with the specified style and speed is examined. This assessment is typically performed with systems that have high FPS cameras and systems that process images from these cameras in trajectory analysis. In this study, we covered the table with a thin layer of sand approximately 1 cm thick to determine the point where the ball landed. This way, by physically measuring the starting point of the mark left by the ball launched by the robot, we could determine the position where the robot-launched ball hit the table. We performed 40 shots to five different targets on the table, each with horizontal and vertical launcher positions separately. The speed of the motors was set equally for these shots, and they were straight shots without spin. A total of 400 balls were launched to five different targets in two different roll positions, and the positions of the marks left by these balls on the sand were recorded.



Figure 4. Sand coating on the table and ball mark detection. Ball position measurement recording process

The averages of both the horizontal and vertical positions of the 40 balls in each target area were calculated, and the found average served as the origin for that target. The square root of the sum of the squares of the vertical error and the horizontal error gives the absolute error for each shot. In the Figure 7, the orange circle represents the

average of the shots, while the blue circle signifies the calculated deviation from the shot. The hollow circles represent the remaining shots.



Figure 5. Determination of true deviation with Euclidean equation

Euclidean Distance (e_i) : The equations you've provided are used to calculate the deviations and the Euclidean distance (e_i) of data points from their respective means. Here's a breakdown of the equations:

$$H_{i} = x_{i} - x_{avg}$$
$$V_{i} = y_{i} - y_{avg}$$
$$e_{i} = \sqrt{H_{i}^{2} + V_{i}^{2}}$$

Standard Deviation (σ): σ represents the measure of the dispersion or spread of the data points. In this case, it quantifies how much the shots deviate from the mean position for a given target area.

$$\sigma = \sqrt{\frac{\sum (|e_i - e_{avg}|)^2}{n}}$$

Where:

- σ is the standard deviation.
- Σ represents the sum of the values in the parentheses.
- e_i is the deviation of each shot from the mean position for the target.
- e_{avg} is the mean position for the target (the origin).
- *n* is the total number of shots.

Root Mean Squared Error (RMSE): RMSE is a measure of the average error between the actual and targeted point. In this context, it quantifies the overall accuracy of the robot's shots in hitting the target.

$$RMSE = \sqrt{\frac{1}{n} \sum_{i=1}^{n} (e_i)^2}$$

Where:

- RMSE is the Root Mean Squared Error.
- Σ represents the sum of the squared deviations.
- e_i is the deviation of each shot.
- *n* is the total number of shots.

These calculations help assess the consistency and accuracy of the robot's performance in hitting a specific target area by considering the deviations of the shots from the mean position for that target. Standard deviation alone may not be sufficient to evaluate such a system. For example, if all the balls were 5 units away from the origin, the standard deviation would be zero, and if we solely relied on standard deviation for evaluation, we might

mistakenly think the system is very successful. The RMSE value provides the best means to assess the shots made by the robot. The closer the RMSE value is to zero, the indication is that the robot is hitting the target with the ball closer to the desired point. In addition to these two factors, the horizontal and vertical deviation values allow us to observe the differences in dispersion based on the position of the launcher head.

In evaluating a system like this, it's crucial to consider RMSE along with standard deviation, as RMSE provides a more comprehensive assessment of the accuracy and consistency of the robot's shots.

4 **RESULTS**

The calculations and measurements for 400 shots made to 5 different targets by the robot, including vertical and horizontal deviations, the area where 40 balls landed, standard deviation, and RMSE values, have been separately computed for the horizontal and vertical positions of the launcher head. These values are presented in Table 1.

	Horizontal Launcher				Vertical Launcher					
	Range V.	Range H.	Area	σ	RMSE	Range V.	Range H.	Area	σ	RMSE
Target-1	29	20	580	4.0	9.6	16	24	384	3.6	8.0
Target-2	32	20	640	4.3	11.3	15	27	405	3.5	9.1
Target-3	32	19	608	4.9	11.2	15	27	405	3.4	8.3
Target-4	22	17	374	3.4	9.1	17	24	408	3.9	8.4
Target-5	23	15	345	3.2	8.2	15	21	315	2.9	7.9

Table 1. Analysis table for 400 shots to five different targets with two different launcher positions

This table depicts scenarios in which the robot has launched balls toward five different targets and displays the outcomes of these shots. The headings "Horizontal Launcher" and "Vertical Launcher" distinguish between shots made with the launcher head in horizontal and vertical positions. The columns "Range V." and "Range H." indicate the range (distance to the target) of shots in the vertical and horizontal directions. For instance, for Target-1, the vertical shots have a range of 29 units, and the horizontal shots have a range of 20 units. The "Area" column represents the size of the area where balls have landed beneath each target. This reflects how concentrated the shots are, whether they are close or far from the target. The " σ " (standard deviation) column provides a measure of the deviation of the balls from the target. Higher standard deviation values indicate greater dispersion in the shots. The "RMSE" (Root Mean Squared Error) column serves as a measure of how close or far the balls are from the target. Lower RMSE values indicate that the shots are closer to the target. In summary, this table assesses the robot's shooting performance for different targets in both horizontal and vertical positions. The standard deviation and RMSE values signifying better shooting performance.

When examining the shots made with the launcher head in a horizontal position, it can be observed that the vertical deviation is greater compared to the horizontal deviation. In the vertical launch position, the horizontal deviation is greater compared to the vertical deviation. Furthermore, it is noticeable that the area where the balls landed is smaller in the vertical launch position. This difference is evident in the RMSE values. In comparison to Target1, Target 2, and Target 3, it is evident that the deviation is smaller in Target 4 and Target 5. This is because Target 4 and Target 5 are closer to the robot. The physical limitations of the launching system can lead to increased deviation when attempting to reach distant targets. For example, factors like air resistance, gravity, and spin motion can result in greater deviation of the ball as it travels through the air. As you move farther away from the target, small errors and precision loss can have a more significant impact. Deviation from the target can increase as a result of minor errors originating from the starting position and system precision. Making shots to distant targets can stress the sensitivity of the launching equipment. Tolerances and errors in the mechanical or electronic components of the robot may have a more substantial effect when aiming for distant targets.

For all shots, the clustering of the table tennis table is appropriately presented in the graphs for horizontal and vertical launch positions, as seen Figure 8.



Figure 6. Projections of 400 Shots on the Table: (a) Launcher in horizontal position and (b) launcher in vertical position

5 CONCLUSION

This study presents the development of a versatile ball-launching robot capable of executing shots in almost all table tennis playing styles, while also being proficient in collecting and relaunching the balls returned by the player. In addition to the robot, a mobile application was designed to facilitate remote control, making it a highly accessible training tool for table tennis enthusiasts. This innovative robot can precisely deliver balls to desired positions on the table with various styles and speeds, offering athletes the opportunity for consistent and limitless shot practice and return training without the need for a human training partner or coach. One of the key advantages of mTTTbot is its cost-effectiveness, as it offers high-precision shot capabilities at a significantly lower cost compared to its market counterparts. Moreover, the seamless control of the robot using only a mobile phone adds to its appeal. Through the course of this paper, it was observed that deviations in shots made to the farthest points of the table were attributable to the use of two motors and wheels in the launching head. Future iterations of the design plan to incorporate a structure featuring three motors and a three-wheeled system, especially for shots to the extreme ends of the table. Additionally, optimizing the design by relocating the pitch and yaw joints closer to the launching head is expected to enhance joint speed and reduce undue stress on the joints in subsequent designs. Beyond table tennis, the developed robot has the potential for adaptation to ball-launching projects in other sports such as tennis, volleyball, and soccer, showcasing its versatility and applicability across multiple athletic disciplines.

References

[1] Olympic.com, "History of Table Tennis." Accessed: Nov. 04, 2023. [Online]. Available: https://olympics.com/en/sports/table-tennis/

- [2] E. Biernat, S. Buchholtz, and J. Krzepota, "Eye on the ball: table tennis as a pro-health form of leisuretime physical activity," Int J Environ Res Public Health, vol. 15, no. 4, p. 738, 2018.
- [3] M. Paul, S. K. Biswas, and J. S. Sandhu, "Role of sports vision and eye hand coordination training in performance of table tennis players," Brazilian Journal of Biomotricity, vol. 5, no. 2, pp. 106–116, 2011.
- [4] O. Girard and G. P. Millet, "Neuromuscular Fatigue in Racquet Sports," Phys Med Rehabil Clin N Am, vol. 20, no. 1, pp. 161–173, 2009, doi: https://doi.org/10.1016/j.pmr.2008.10.008.
- [5] Z. Zhang, "Biomechanical analysis and model development applied to table tennis forehand strokes," Loughborough University, 2017.
- [6] D. Jayabalakrishnan and R. K. Achanta, "A study on quantizing high level table tennis for robot training in India," International Journal of Table Tennis Sciences, vol. 8, pp. 5–9, 2013.
- [7] P. Blank, J. Hoßbach, D. Schuldhaus, and B. M. Eskofier, "Sensor-based stroke detection and stroke type classification in table tennis," in Proceedings of the 2015 ACM International Symposium on Wearable Computers ISWC '15, New York, New York, USA: ACM Press, 2015, pp. 93–100. doi: 10.1145/2802083.2802087.
- [8] R. Liu et al., "Table Tennis Stroke Recognition Based on Body Sensor Network," 2019, pp. 1–10. doi: 10.1007/978-3-030-34914-1_1.
- [9] S. S. Tabrizi, S. Pashazadeh, and V. Javani, "A Deep Learning Approach for Table Tennis Forehand Stroke Evaluation System Using an IMU Sensor," Comput Intell Neurosci, vol. 2021, pp. 1–15, Apr. 2021, doi: 10.1155/2021/5584756.
- [10] K. Dokic, T. Mesic, and M. Martinovic, "Table Tennis Forehand and Backhand Stroke Recognition Based on Neural Network," 2020, pp. 24–35. doi: 10.1007/978-981-15-6634-9_3.
- [11] Z. Zhang, D. Xu, and M. Tan, "Visual Measurement and Prediction of Ball Trajectory for Table Tennis Robot," IEEE Trans Instrum Meas, vol. 59, no. 12, pp. 3195–3205, Dec. 2010, doi: 10.1109/TIM.2010.2047128.
- [12] O. Koç, G. Maeda, and J. Peters, "Online optimal trajectory generation for robot table tennis," Rob Auton Syst, vol. 105, pp. 121–137, Jul. 2018, doi: 10.1016/j.robot.2018.03.012.
- [13] H.-I. Lin, Z. Yu, and Y.-C. Huang, "Ball Tracking and Trajectory Prediction for Table-Tennis Robots," Sensors, vol. 20, no. 2, p. 333, Jan. 2020, doi: 10.3390/s20020333.
- [14] A. Dittrich et al., "AIMY: An Open-source Table Tennis Ball Launcher for Versatile and High-fidelity Trajectory Generation," in 2023 IEEE International Conference on Robotics and Automation (ICRA), IEEE, May 2023, pp. 3058–3064. doi: 10.1109/ICRA48891.2023.10160336.
- [15] M. Mokayef, M. K. A. A. Khan, M. H. D. A. Summakieh, L. Q. Jian, and M. Mokayef, "Embedded Ball Launcher with Trajectory Path Analysis for Empowering Junior Table Tennis Players," Journal of Advances in Artificial Life Robotics, vol. 4, no. 1, pp. 27–34, 2023, doi: 10.57417/jaalr.4.1_27.



Dual-Band and Wide-Angle Metamaterial Absorber Design for C- and X-Band Microwave Applications

Yunus Kaya*1, Ugur Cem Hasar²

¹Bayburt University, Department of Electricity and Energy, Bayburt, Turkey ²Gaziantep University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Gaziantep, Turkey

Abstract

Metamaterials, which have extraordinary properties, have been the subject of many research areas in recent years due to their ability to manipulate electromagnetic waves. Additionally, due to their design principles, they can be designed for applications in the desired frequency region of the electromagnetic spectrum. In this study, a metamaterial absorber design was realized that provides 71.26% and 99.98% absorption rate, respectively, for C- and X-band microwave applications under normal incidence (0°) and maintains high absorption performance under oblique incidence (10° , 20° , 30° , 40° , and 50°) was implemented. The design is easy to realize and inexpensive in terms of the dielectric substrate used. In addition, by changing the design parameters, a high absorption rate can be achieved in the X-band and the absorption rate is maintained in the C-band. From another perspective, this also shows that the suggested metamaterial absorber will provide high absorption performance even with high production tolerances in experimental studies (real applications).

Keywords: Metamaterial absorber, Wide-angle, Dual-band, C-band, X-band

1 INTRODUCTION

Metamaterials that do not exist in nature and are obtained artificially are different from other materials because they have a negative refractive index [1]. It was first suggested by Veselago in 1968 that if the dielectric and magnetic permeability parameters that constitute the electromagnetic properties of a material are negative in certain frequency ranges, the refractive index of the medium may also be negative [2]. The first practical metamaterials were developed by Smith et al. and Shelby et al. in the 2000s, following Veselago's suggestion [3, 4].

In today's developing technology, metamaterial structures are used in many areas due to their advantages such as being cheaper compared to other materials used, easy to produce, increasing performance, and providing complete and accurate results [5]. These usage areas of metamaterials include antennas [6], super lenses [7], absorbers [8], sensors [9], polarization converters [10], invisibility cloaks [11], etc. Metamaterial-based absorbers, which are among these areas of use, are constantly being developed to manipulate electromagnetic radiation [12]. These metamaterial absorbers can generally be developed based on metal resonator-dielectric-metal or completely dielectric material [13, 14]. By appropriately adjusting the resonator shape and dimensions, period and thickness of the materials, the absorption frequency and performance of the metamaterial absorber are determined [15]. In this study, a metamaterial absorber design that is easy to realize and can be manufactured cheaply, providing 71.26% and 99.98% absorption rate for microwave C- (4–8 GHz) and X-band (8–12 GHz) applications, respectively, and maintaining high absorption performance under oblique incidence (10°, 20°, 30°, 40°, and 50°) has been realized.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The suggested metamaterial absorber consists of a metal resonator-dielectric material-metal configuration. Copper with an electrical conductivity of 5.8×10^7 S/m (σ_c) was used at the front and back of the metamaterial absorber, and FR-4 with a relative permittivity of $4.3 (\varepsilon_r)$, a relative permeability of 1 (μ_r), and a loss tangent of 0.025 (tan δ) was used as the dielectric material in the middle. FR-4 dielectric material has a square shape with a side of 12 mm (l_1) and a thickness of 1.2 mm (t_1). The back of the FR-4 is completely covered with copper with a thickness of 0.035 mm (t_2). Additionally, the thickness of the copper resonator on the front side is the same as

Dual-band and wide-angle metamaterial absorber design for C- and X-band microwave applications

that on the back side. The use of FR-4 in the design and the thickness of the copper on the front and back surfaces of FR-4 and FR-4 make the design affordable. Because the double-sided copper-coated FR-4 in the dimensions used in the design is a dielectric material that can be easily found on the market. In addition, the resonator structure, which will be mentioned a little later, can also be performed using traditional methods. Now, coming to the design of the copper resonator on the front, first a square with a side of 11 mm (l_2) was created. Secondly, a square structure with a side of 7 mm (l_3) was removed from this square by rotating it 45° clockwise. Thirdly, strips with a width of 0.8 mm (g) were removed from the four corners of the resulting structure. Finally, a cylinder with a diameter of 6 mm (R) and a width of 0.6 mm (w) was created at the center of the resulting structure. 3D, front and back views and geometric scaling of the metamaterial absorber design created with the above-mentioned steps are shown in Figure 1.



Figure 1. 3D, front and back views and geometric scaling of the designed metamaterial absorber structure

It is necessary to calculate the absorption to verify the performance of the metamaterial absorber suggested in Figure 1. Absorption (A) is calculated as follows, where S_{11} and S_{21} are the reflection and transmission scattering parameters, respectively [8, 12-16].

$$A = 1 - \left|S_{11}\right|^2 - \left|S_{21}\right|^2 \tag{1}$$

As can be seen from Equation (1), S_{11} and S_{21} must be reduced to a minimum in order to increase A to the highest value (1 = 100%). In other words, as can be understood from the absorption formula, for the absorption to be 100%, both reflection and transmission must be zero (0) at the same frequency. Since the back part of the dielectric material is completely covered with a copper plate in the design, S_{21} can be neglected due to the optical inhibitory properties of the copper plate [16]. Therefore, Equation (1) can be reduced as follows.

$$A = 1 - \left| S_{11} \right|^2 \tag{2}$$

3 RESULTS

To analyze the performance of the suggested metamaterial absorber, simulations were carried out in CST Microwave Studio, a 3D electromagnetic simulation program. While making simulation settings, the boundary

Dual-band and wide-angle metamaterial absorber design for C- and X-band microwave applications

conditions along the x - and y -axes were selected as "unit cell" and along the z -axis as "open (add space)". In addition, simulations were carried out in the frequency range of 4–14 GHz by applying floquet ports according to the z -direction and selecting the tetrahedral mesh type in the frequency domain. The reflection parameters obtained for normal incidence (0°) and the calculated absorption rates (%) are given in response to frequency in Figures 2(a) and 2(b), respectively.



As seen in Figure 2(a), in the X-band the reflection is approximately zero (0) at 10.34 GHz, and in the C-band the minimum reflection is 0.53 at 7.25 GHz. Looking at Figure 2(b), the absorption rates at 10.34 GHz and 7.25 GHz

minimum reflection is 0.53 at 7.25 GHz. Looking at Figure 2(b), the absorption rates at 10.34 GHz and 7.25 GHz frequency points are 99.87% and 71.26%, respectively. In other words, while a high absorption rate was achieved in the X-band, an absorption rate of over 70% was achieved in the C-band.

The behavior of the suggested metamaterial absorber for oblique incidence $(10^\circ, 20^\circ, 30^\circ, 40^\circ, and 50^\circ)$ was examined and the absorption rates at different angle values are shown in Figure 3. When Figure 3 is examined, no significant change is noted in the absorption rates in the C- and X-bands of the suggested metamaterial absorber at different angle values up to 50° .



Figure 3. Absorption rates of the suggested dual-band metamaterial absorber under oblique angle

After examining the behavior of the suggested metamaterial absorber under an oblique angle, the effect of the design parameter g on the absorption rate was examined as an example. For this purpose, simulations were carried out by changing g = 0.6 - 1 mm and the absorption rates are given in Figure 4.

When Figure 4 is examined, by changing the g design parameters, a high absorption rate can be achieved in the X-band and the absorption rate is maintained in the C-band. From another perspective, this also shows that the suggested metamaterial absorber will provide high absorption performance even with high production tolerances in experimental studies (real applications).

Dual-band and wide-angle metamaterial absorber design for C- and X-band microwave applications



Figure 4. Variation of absorption rate for different g (0.6 - 1 mm) design parameters of the suggested dual-band metamaterial absorber

4 CONCLUSION

In this study, a wide-angle and dual-band metamaterial absorber design was developed that provides 71.26% and 99.98% absorption rate in C- and X-band microwave applications under normal incidence (0°), respectively, and maintains this absorption rate for incidence angles up to 50°. The design is made using double-sided copper-coated FR-4 dielectric material, which is easily available in the market, and the suggested absorber device can be implemented simply and cheaply with conventional methods.

References

- [1] D. R. Smith, J. B. Pendry, and M. C. K. Wiltshire, "Metamaterials and negative refractive index," Sci., vol. 305, no. 5685, pp. 788–792, Aug. 2004.
- [2] V. G. Veselago, "The electrodynamics of substances with simultaneously negative values of ε and μ," Sov. Phys., Usp., vol. 10, no. 4, pp. 509–514, 1968.
- [3] D. R. Smith, W. J. Padilla, D. C. Vier, S. C. Nemat-Nasser, and S. Schultz, "Composite medium with simultaneously negative permeability and permittivity," Phys. Rev. Lett., vol. 84, no. 18, pp. 4184–4187, May 2000.
- [4] R. A. Shelby, D. R. Smith, and S. Schultz, "Experimental verification of a negative index of refraction," Sci., vol. 292, no. 5514, pp. 77–79, Apr. 2001.
- [5] P. Yu, L. V. Besteiro, Y. J. Huang, J. Wu, L. Fu, H. H. Tan, C. Jagadish, G. P. Wiederrecht, A. O. Govorov, and Z. M. Wang, "Broadband metamaterial absorbers," Adv. Opt. Mater., vol. 7, no. 3, art. no. 1800995, Feb. 2019.
- [6] H. F. Ma and T. J. Cui, "Three-dimensional broadband and broad-angle transformation-optics lens," Nat. Commun., vol. 1, art. no. 124, Nov. 2010.
- [7] N. Fang, H. Lee, C. Sun, and X. Zhang, "Sub-diffraction-limited optical imaging with a silver superlens," Sci., vol. 308, no. 5721, pp. 534-537, Apr. 2005.
- [8] W. Li and J. Valentine, "Metamaterial perfect absorber based hot electron photodetection," Nano Lett., vol. 14, no. 6, pp. 3510–3514, Jun. 2014.
- [9] B. Ozbey, H. V. Demir, O. Kurc, V. B. Erturk, and A. Altintas, "Wireless measurement of elastic and plastic deformation by a metamaterial-based sensor," Sens., vol. 14, no. 10, pp. 19609–19621, Oct. 2014.
- [10] Y. Kaya, "Ultra-thin reflective multifunctional polarization converter with nested circular ring-shaped metasurface-based for C- and X-band applications," Opt. Quantum Electron., vol. 55, no. 4, art. no. 335, Apr. 2023.
- [11] W. S. Cai, U. K. Chettiar, A. V. Kildishev, and V. M. Shalaev, "Optical cloaking with metamaterials," Nat. Photonics, vol. 1, no. 4, pp. 224–227, Apr. 2007.
- [12] Q. Q. Huang, G. H. Wang, M. Zhou, J. Zheng, S. L. Tang, and G. B. Ji, "Metamaterial electromagnetic wave absorbers and devices: Design and 3D microarchitecture," J. Mater. Sci. Technol., vol. 108, pp. 90– 101, May 2022.
- [13] X. J. Liu, F. Xia, M. Wang, J. Liang, and M. J. Yun, "Working mechanism and progress of electromagnetic metamaterial perfect absorber," Photonics, vol. 10, no. 2, art. no. 205, Feb. 2023.
- [14] X. M. Liu, K. Bi, B. Li, Q. Zhao, and J. Zhou, "Metamaterial perfect absorber based on artificial dielectric

"atoms"," Opt. Express, vol. 24. no. 18, pp. 20454–20460, Sep. 2016.

- [15] Z. Qin, D. J. Meng, F. M. Yang, X. Y. Shi, Z. Z. Liang, H. Y. Xu, D. R. Smith, and Y. C. Liu, "Broadband long-wave infrared metamaterial absorber based on single-sized cut-wire resonators," Opt. Express, vol. 29, no. 13, pp. 20275–20285, Jun. 2021.
- [16] Y. I. Abdulkarim, F. Ö. Alkurt, H. N. Awl, F. F. Muhammadsharif, M. Bakir, S. Dalgac, M. Karaaslan, and H. Luo, "An ultrathin and dual band metamaterial perfect absorber based on ZnSe for the polarizationindependent in terahertz range," Results Phys., vol. 26, art. no. 104344, Jul. 2021.



Design and Implementation of 2.5 GHz Microstrip Patch Antenna

Suresh Dixit^{*1}, Karan Revankar¹

¹Karnatak University, Department of Electronics, Karnataka, India

Abstract

Recently, microstrip antennas have become important in areas such as aircraft, spacecraft, satellite communications, radars, wireless and mobile communications. Microstrip antennas, which are preferred due to their bandwidth, low return loss and small volumes, are frequently used in the mentioned applications. In this study, a high gain microstrip patch antenna operating at 2.5 GHz was designed in Ansoft – HFSS and the designed miniature structure was also realized. It has been observed that the results are compatible with each other in theoretical and practical applications. In addition, it was concluded that antenna designs operating at different frequencies can be realized by changing the number and dimensions of patches in the designed structure in the simulations.

Keywords: Microstrip antenna, Patch, Ansoft – HFSS, High gain



Development of Flexible and Ferrite Film Microstrip Patch Antenna

Suresh Dixit^{*1}, Karan Revankar¹

¹Karnatak University, Department of Electronics, Karnataka, India

Abstract

Microstrip patch antennas have been used for decades because they print structures consisting of a metal patch on the front side of a dielectric substrate and a ground correction on the back, as well as containing a microstrip feeder. However, microstrip patch antennas printed on printed circuit boards have disadvantages due to reasons such as low power, limited bandwidth and limited material selection. In this study, a microstrip patch antenna design was made using screen printing technique on a ferrite film. In this way, thanks to the thin film used, improvements in the return loss, bandwidth and Q factor of the antenna have been observed compared to dielectrics such as Arlon, FR-4, F4-B, Rogers etc. In addition, the designed structure has become flexible.

Keywords: Microstrip patch antenna, Flexibility, Ferrite film, Improvement



Recommendations on the Biological Effects of Electromagnetic Waves

Bishal Gurung^{*1}, Indra Mani¹

¹Shri Mata Vaishno Devi University, School of Electrical Engineering, Katra, India

Abstract

Electromagnetic waves are widely used today as a result of rapidly increasing technological developments. However, there are still uncertainties about the potential effects of these waves on biological systems. This paper aims to provide up-to-date information on the biological effects of electromagnetic waves. For this purpose, first the electromagnetic effect mechanisms will be understood. Secondly, information about standardized electromagnetic measurement and evaluation protocols will be given. Thirdly, public health policies and updates on electromagnetic field exposure will be discussed. Finally, innovative and technological solutions will be proposed to reduce electromagnetic field exposure and potential risks of electromagnetic waves. These suggestions can be considered as an effort to fill the gaps in knowledge about the biological effects of electromagnetic waves. Standardized protocols, updated policies, training programs and technological solutions can contribute to effectively managing research in this field and minimizing the potential risks of electromagnetic field exposure.

Keywords: Electromagnetic waves, Exposure, Biological effects, Ways of protection, Suggestions


Modeling and Simulation of a DC-CD Converter with PID Controller

Sangeeta Kumari¹, Anita Choudhary¹, Bishal Gurung^{*1}, Indra Mani¹

¹Shri Mata Vaishno Devi University, School of Electrical Engineering, Katra, India

Abstract

Electrical energy produced in various ways is used in two ways: Direct current (DC) and alternating current (AC). Energy demand is increasing day by day due to reasons such as the increasing use of technological products that use DC in daily life, industrialization, increasing population and the formation of new residential areas. The existence of DC devices that consume some of this increasing energy increases the need for DC-DC converters. Due to this increasing need, in this study, DC-DC converter modeling and simulation was carried out with MATLAB's Simulink Toolbox. Afterwards, the power flow analysis of the design and the determination of the design parameters were examined theoretically. In the study, the output voltage was adjusted to the desired level with a Proportional Integral Derivative (PID) controller.

Keywords: DC-DC converter, PID controller, MATLAB-Simulink



PWM Wave Generator Design with a Simple Approach

Bishal Gurung^{*1}, Sangeeta Kumari¹, Anita Choudhary¹

¹Shri Mata Vaishno Devi University, School of Electrical Engineering, Katra, India

Abstract

Pulse Width Modulation (PWM) is a widely used technique in digital control systems and has an important role in many application areas. In PWM wave generator design, it is important that the frequency and amplitude are adjustable and focus on stability. A PWM wave generator can have a wide pulse width range and can be tuned to suit various application needs. Designed with low power consumption, basic electronic elements (op-amp, resistor, adjustable resistor, etc.), pulse width control, adjustable amplitude and frequency features, the PWM generator can be used in portable devices and battery-backed systems. At the same time, the designed PWM generator can also be integrated into Internet of Things (IoT) connected systems.

Keywords: PWM, Simple design, Low power, Adjustable frequency-amplitude, Pulse width control



Design of a 20 kW Wind Turbine

Abderrezak Cherana^{*1}

¹University of Science and Technology – Houari Boumediene, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Algiers, Algeria

Abstract

In this study, a wind turbine with an asynchronous generator was designed, which has found wide use in the field of wind technology, which is experiencing a rapid development process and is clean and whose costs are constantly decreasing, today, when environmental conditions are deteriorating and needs are constantly increasing. The design consisting of wings, rotor, angle regulator, brake, low speed spindle, gear box, generator, speed and direction regulator, anemometer, wind direction sensor, nacelle, high speed shaft, steering mechanism, steering motor and tower was made by taking the wind speed of the reference region for the desired power of 20 kW. In this study conducted for wind energy, which currently finds a relatively wide area of use all over the world, turbine characteristics are revealed according to the selected parameters (desired power and reference region wind potential).

Keywords: Wind turbine, Design, 20 kW



Basic Components of Internet of Things (IoT) Architecture and a New Architectural Design

Mohamed Laouer^{*1}, Mohammed Amroune¹

¹Carthage University, Department of Electrical Engineering, Tunis, Tunisia

Abstract

The Internet of Things (IoT) is increasingly coming to the fore today as a technology that interacts with every aspect of industrial, commercial and daily life. The foundation of IoT architecture is the ability to collect data from the physical world. Sensing devices, sensors, and data acquisition units enable real-time data streams from a variety of environments. Effective communication of collected data is a critical element that determines the success of IoT systems. Wireless communication protocols, gateways and cloud-based communication infrastructures must be integrated to enable data transfer. Big data analytics, data processing and analytics engines make it possible to extract meaningful information from collected data. With processing performed on local devices, cloud-based analytics can improve system performance. In IoT architecture, security should be a priority in inter-device communication and data storage processes. Industry-standard security protocols must be integrated to ensure data confidentiality and integrity. Remote management of IoT systems enables effective updating of devices, changing configurations and error management. Remote management ensures continuous optimization of IoT networks. In this study, a literature review was made regarding the concept of IoT, its usage areas, architectural structure and proposed architectural models, and a new, layered architectural model was proposed to bring IoT into a standard architectural model structure.

Keywords: Internet of Things (IoT), Basic ingredients, New architecture



Internet of Things (IoT) Current Studies and Today's Applications

Mohammed Amroune*1

¹Carthage University, Department of Electrical Engineering, Tunis, Tunisia

Abstract

The Internet of Things (IoT) describes the network of physical objects embedded with sensors, software, and other technologies for the purpose of connecting and sharing data with other devices and systems over the internet. These devices range from ordinary household objects to advanced industrial tools. IoT appears in our lives and in industry with applications such as patient tracking systems, recycling processes, smart production, connected assets and preventive and predictive maintenance, smart power spreadsheets, smart cities, connected logistics, smart digital supply chains. For this reason, in this study, brief information is given about the basic components of IoT, which has been a popular research topic recently, and information about its application areas is given.

Keywords: Internet of Things (IoT), Application areas



Forward-Looking Recommendations in Global Education: Equality, Technology and Human-Centered Approaches

Hamide Basha^{*1}

¹University of Prishtina "Hasan Prishtina", The Faculty of Education, Pristina, Kosovo

Abstract

This study aims to provide suggestions for a more effective, equitable and sustainable education system by addressing the challenges and future developments in global education. Education emerges as a fundamental element in the development of societies on a global scale. For this reason, suggestions were made in the study on equality-based education policies, integration of technology and digital literacy, multilingual education and intercultural communication, creative and critical thinking skills, teacher training and professional development. These recommendations highlight the steps to be taken to create a more equitable, accessible and qualified system in global education. Education plays a critical role in the development of not only individuals, but also societies and the global world. These efforts will be an important step towards a more sustainable and inclusive future in education.

Keywords: Global education, Suggestions, Equality-technology and human-centered approach



Obstacles to Effective Communication and Recommendations

Hamide Basha^{*1}

¹University of Prishtina "Hasan Prishtina", The Faculty of Education, Pristina, Kosovo

Abstract

Effective communication, which we are responsible for in almost every environment, from school to work, from business to family, from family to the environment, forms the basis of successful cooperation, leadership and social relations. However, a number of barriers can challenge the effectiveness of communication. In this study, suggestions will be made to understand the obstacles to effective communication and to overcome these obstacles. First, the barriers are listed as language barriers, lack of active listening, lack of emotional expression, barriers arising from different cultures, technology and distance communication barriers, and lack of transparency. Afterwards, suggestions were made against these obstacles. These recommendations aim to provide guidance for overcoming communication barriers and communicating more effectively, clearly, and meaningfully.

Keywords: Effective communication, Obstacles, Suggestions



Leadership Challenges and Rules for Overcoming Obstacles: Tips for Strong Leadership

Nurul Alias^{*1}, Talhi Khodja¹

¹University of Monastir, Department of Management Sciences, Monastir, Tunisia

Abstract

Leadership is a complex process that can face many challenges and obstacles. In this study, the rules to be followed to overcome leadership difficulties and obstacles are discussed and important tips for strong leadership are presented. The rules that are important for a leader and tips for strong leadership are explained in detail in the following headings.

- Empathy and Communication
- Delegation and Trust
- Ability to Turn Problems into Opportunities
- Courage to Take Risks and Make Decisions
- Ability to Manage Change
- Supporting the Development of the Team
- Motivation and Human Resources Management
- Self-Improvement and Openness to Learning

Leadership is a dynamic process that requires overcoming various challenges. These suggested rules will help the leader develop strong leadership skills and lead her/his team to overcome challenges.

Keywords: Leadership, Challenges, Obstacles, Powerful leadership advice



The Leader's Role in Innovation: Encouraging and Moving Creativity Forward

Nurul Alias^{*1}, Talhi Khodja¹

¹University of Monastir, Department of Management Sciences, Monastir, Tunisia

Abstract

Just as innovation is inevitable in today's age and technology, leadership plays a decisive role in the innovation process, and in order to create a successful innovation culture, leaders must be visionary, encouraging and pioneering. In this regard, this paper will emphasize the key role of the leader in innovation and offer suggestions for success in this field. What the leader should do in the innovation process (suggestions) on topics such as visionary leadership, encouraging and supportive, creating an infrastructure for innovation, encouraging team diversity, flexibility in resource allocation, rewarding innovation, ability to use external resources, leadership open to learning will be examined. The leader's active role in innovation is a critical factor for the sustainable success of the organization. These recommendations aim to increase leaders' responsibilities in supporting innovation and unlocking creative potential.

Keywords: Leadership, Innovation, Suggestions for innovation



Enhancing Microwave Absorbing Materials Efficiency: Carbon Nanofiber-Mill Scale Hybrid for Broadband Electromagnetic Absorption

Ismayadi Ismail^{*1}, Intan Helina Hasan¹, Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani¹, Mohd Nizar Hamidon¹, Mehmet Ertugrul²

¹Universiti Putra Malaysia, Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology (ION2), 43400 Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia ²Karadeniz Technical University, Faculty of Engineering, Department of Metallurgical and Materials Engineering, 61080 Trabzon, Turkey

Abstract

Our study aimed to improve the efficiency of microwave absorbing materials (MAMs) by achieving high absorption levels across a broad frequency range. This enhancement was realized through the utilization of a hybrid material comprising carbon nanofibers and nanosized mill scale derived from waste. In MAMs, the application of passive coatings traditionally results in effective electromagnetic (EM) wave absorption but within a restricted frequency band. Our hypothesis sought to address this limitation by combining carbon and magnetic materials to broaden the absorption bandwidth. Consequently, our research aimed to hybridize carbon nanofibers with nanoparticles from mill scale waste, investigating the influence of mill scale catalyst size on EM-wave absorption performance within the 8-18 GHz range. To implement this, mill scale underwent washing and milling at four distinct durations, serving as a catalyst in the chemical vapor deposition (CVD) process. Ethanol served as the carbon source for synthesizing carbon nanofibers (CNF) at 750°C. The resulting materials from the CVD process were mixed with epoxy resin to form a polymer composite, subsequently placed in a sample holder for EM-wave measurements at three different thicknesses. We achieved successful synthesis of CNF with coiled, spiral, and twisted nanostructures, providing advantages in enhancing EM-wave absorption. The majority of samples exhibited maximum absorption, with a reflection loss of \leq -20 dB (99% signal absorption). The CNF catalyst synthesized from mill scale waste using the CVD method holds promise as a potential EM-absorbing material, particularly for radar wave absorbers.

Keywords: Microwave absorbing materials (MAMs), Carbon nanofibers (CNF), Electromagnetic (EM) wave absorption



Carbon Black Electrospun Nanofiber Produced via Electrospinning Method

Mohd Ali bin Mat Nong^{*1}, Che Azurahanim Che Abdullah², Juraina Md Yusof³, Ismayadi Ismail², Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani², Intan Helina Hasan¹

¹Universiti Putra Malaysia, Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology, Functional Nanotechnology Devices Laboratory, Serdang Selangor Malaysia

²Universiti Putra Malaysia, Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology, Nanomaterials Synthesis and Characterization Laboratory, Serdang Selangor Malaysia

³Universiti Putra Malaysia, Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology, Nanomaterials Processing and Technology Laboratory, Serdang Selangor Malaysia

Abstract

Electrospun nanofibers were produced using the electrospinning method, incorporating different ratios of Carbon Black mixed with Cellulose Acetate (CA). Dimethylacetamide (DMAc) and acetone were combined in a 2:1 ratio. The Cellulose Acetate (CA) blend with the DMAc:Acetone solution contained 0.2g, 0.3g, and 0.4g of Carbon Black, added to the solution prior to the electrospinning process. The solution was sonicated at 50°C for 20 minutes at room temperature and stirred until homogenized. The electrospinning process was set up with a distance of 10 cm from the syringe to the plate collector. The volume rate was set at 10 μ L/min, using a syringe with a 13-gauge needle diameter. Various types of nanofibers were produced and characterized with FESEM.

Keywords: Electrospun, Electrospinning, Cellulose, Nanofibers, Collector

1 INTRODUCTION

Electrospinning is a versatile technique used to produce nanofibers and membranes [1]. This technique consists of a high-voltage supply, syringe pump, and collector [2]. In the pursuit of sustainable and high-performance materials, the field of nanotechnology has emerged as a promising avenue for innovation. Electrospinning, a versatile and scalable technique, has garnered significant attention for fabricating nanofibrous structures with unique properties. In this context, the integration of carbon black into electrospun nanofibers represents a novel approach that holds great promise for a wide range of applications [3].

Carbon black, a finely divided form of carbon consisting of ultrafine particles, has long been recognized for its excellent electrical conductivity, thermal stability, and mechanical strength [4]. The utilization of carbon black in electrospun nanofibers introduces a synergistic combination of these properties, creating a material platform with enhanced functionalities [5]. The electrospinning method, characterized by its ability to produce continuous fibers with diameters in the nanometer range, further amplifies the potential of carbon black nanofibers for applications in various fields [6].

This article aims to provide an in-depth exploration of the synthesis and characterization of carbon black electrospun nanofibers. We will delve into the electrospinning process, elucidating the key parameters influencing the morphology and properties of the resulting nanofibers. Additionally, the unique characteristics of carbon black, such as its high surface area and conductivity, will be discussed in the context of their impact on the performance of the nanofibrous material.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

Cellulose acetate (CA) powder, carbon black (CB) powder, N,N-dimethylacetamide (DMAc), and acetone were purchased from Sigma Aldrich and used without further purification. To create a conductive solution suitable for electrospinning, the initial step involved preparing a cellulose acetate solution. This was achieved by dissolving carbon black powder in a mixture of DMAc and acetone (in a 2:1 ratio), resulting in a 17% (w/w%) cellulose acetate solution. Subsequently, 0.2g, 0.3g, and 0.4g of CB powder were introduced into the cellulose acetate solution. This mixture was stirred at room temperature until a uniform solution was obtained. To enhance homogeneity, the carbon black-loaded cellulose acetate solution was sonicated at 50°C for 20 minutes, followed

by continued stirring with a magnetic stirrer at room temperature for a duration of 2 hours before commencing the electrospinning process

Electrospinning configuration

The prepared solutions were loaded into a 10ml syringe with a 13-gauge needle. These solutions were then pumped into a horizontal electrospinning setup (Nanolab Instruments). The electrospinning process lasted for 2 hours at room temperature with a voltage of 18kV. A syringe pump was used to extrude the polymer solution through a needle at a flow rate of 10 μ L/min. The distance from the tip to the rotary collector was 10 cm. The nanofiber mesh collector was made of aluminum foil and placed on top of the fixed collector

Characterizations

The surface morphology and diameter of the electrospun nanofibers were investigated using field emission scanning electron microscopy (FESEM). All samples were coated with platinum before the scanning process.

3 RESULTS

The results in Figure 1 show electrospun nanofibers produced using different grams (g) of Carbon Black (CB)



Figure 1. (a) 0.2g CB, (b) 0.3g CB (c) 0.4g CB

4 CONCLUSION

The results show that Carbon Black (CB) electrospun nanofibers were produced in all electrospinning processes. Different ratios of CB used resulted in the production of various types of electrospun nanofibers. The potential applications span a wide range of fields, including filtration, tissue engineering, biomedicine, environmental remediation, energy storage, and wearable technology [7].

Acknowledgments

The authors would like to express appreciation for the support from the sponsors of Project Number 9733300 GP-IPM - GERAN PUTRA - INISIATIF PUTRA MUDA funded by Universiti Putra Malaysia.

References

- [1] B. A. Chinnappan, M. Krishnaswamy, H. Xu, and M. E. Hoque, "Electrospinning of biomedical nanofibers/nanomembranes: Effects of process parameters," Polymers, vol. 14, pp. 1–20, 2022.
- [2] H. A. Owida,, B. A. Moh'd, and M. A. Takrouri, "Designing an integrated low-cost electrospinning device for nanofibrous scaffold fabrication," HardwareX, vol. 11, pp. 1–20, 2022.
- [3] A. Mamun, M. Kiari, and L. Sabantina, "A recent review of electrospun porous carbon nanofiber mats for energy storage and generation applications," Membranes, vol. 13, no. 10) pp. 1–25, 2023.
- [4] E. Gumus, M. Yagimli, and E. Arca, "Investigation of the dielectric properties of graphite and carbon black-filled composites as electromagnetic interference shielding coatings," Appl. Sci., vol. 13, pp. 1–13, 2023.
- [5] N. A. Elmaghraby, A. M. Omer, E.-R. Kenawy, M. Gaber, and A. E. Nemr, "Electrospun composites nanofibers from cellulose acetate/carbon black as efficient adsorbents for heavy and light machine oil from aquatic environment," Journal of the Iranian Chemical Society, vol. 19, pp. 3013–3027, 2022.

- [6] X. Yang, Y. Chen, C. Zhang, G. Duan, and S. Jiang, "Electrospun carbon nanofibers and their reinforced composites: Preparation, modification, applications, and perspectives," Composites Part B: Engineering, vol. 249, 2023.
- [7] V. S. Reddy, Y. Tian, C. Zhang et al., "A review on electrospun nanofibers based advanced applications: From health care to energy device," Polymers, vol. 13, pp. 1–39, 2021.



Optimizing Environmentally Friendly Drilling Fluid Performance under High-Pressure High-Temperature Conditions through Carbon Nanomaterials

Siti Zulaika Razali^{*1}, Robiah Yunus², Juraina Md Yusof¹, Ismayadi Ismail¹, G. Abdulkareem-Alsultan³, Umer Rashid¹, Norizah Abdul Rahman¹, Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani¹

¹Universiti Putra Malaysia, Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology, Nanomaterials Processing and Technology Laboratory, 43400 UPM Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia

²Universiti Putra Malaysia, Faculty of Engineering, Chemical Engineering and Environmental Department, 43400 UPM Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia

³Universiti Malaysia Sabah, Faculty of Science and Natural Resources, Department of Chemistry, Kota Kinabalu 88400, Sabah, Malaysia

Abstract

Integrating nanomaterials as additives in drilling fluid holds significant promise for enhancing fluids' thermal and physical-chemical properties. However, their application in this domain remains limited. Ester-based drilling fluid (EBDF) stands out as an environmentally friendly option, albeit with usage constraints at elevated drilling temperatures due to inherent thermal and hydrolytic stability issues. This research delves into the impact of morphology and graphitization of various carbon nanomaterials on the rheology, filtration, and emulsion stability of EBDF under high-pressure high-temperature (HPHT) drilling conditions. The investigated carbon nanomaterials include graphene nanopowder, commercial graphene nanoplatelets, in-house graphene nanoplatelets, graphene oxide, and carbon nanotubes cotton. Results indicate a direct correlation between the behaviour of EBDF and the morphology and graphitization of carbon nanomaterials. Graphene nanopowder exhibits superior performance due to its substantial size, minimal graphitic defects, and highly hydrophobic surface. These characteristics contribute to improved emulsion stability and HPHT filtration properties of EBDF. The hydrophobic nature of graphene nanopowder sheets plays a pivotal role in shielding emulsifier films in drilling fluid against thermal degradation. Filtration tests demonstrate a notable reduction in filtrate and filter cake thickness by 20% and 25%, respectively, with a graphene concentration of 0.007 wt%. This study highlights the potential of tailored carbon nanomaterials in augmenting the effectiveness of EBDF, offering a pathway towards environmentally conscious and high-performance drilling fluid solutions for challenging HPHT conditions.

Keywords: Synthetic-based drilling fluids, Nanoparticles, Carbon nanomaterials, Rheology, Filtration properties



Methylene Blue Adsorption on Composites of Activated Carbon and Sodium Alginate

Fatima Ezzahra Yaacoubi^{*1}, Chaima Sekkouri¹, Imad Rabichi¹, Zaina Izghri¹, Abdelaziz Bacaoui¹, Abdelrani Yaacoubi¹

¹Cadi Ayyad University, Faculty of Sciences Semlalia Marrakesh (FSSM), Department of Chemistry, Laboratory of Applied Chemistry and Biomass, Boulevard Prince My Abdellah, B.P. 2390, Marrakesh, 40000, Morocco

Abstract

In this study, we present a sustainable approach for the production of activated carbon derived from olive pits using chemical activation with potassium hydroxide impregnation. The resulting activated carbon is subsequently employed to fabricate composite materials in combination with sodium alginate (AC/Alg) for potential applications in wastewater treatment.

The production process involves impregnating olive pit precursors with KOH, followed by chemical activation to create activated carbon with high porosity and specific surface area. Composite beads are then formed by mixing the activated carbon with sodium alginate, offering an eco-friendly and effective adsorbent for pollutant removal. Various AC/Alg formulations were tested to optimize adsorption efficiency. The research explores the influence of adsorption parameters, such as contact time, initial pH, and initial pollutant concentration, on the removal of a model molecule.

The findings demonstrate the potential of AC/Alg composites for efficient and environmentally friendly wastewater treatment. This study contributes to the development of sustainable solutions in the field of water purification and underscores the importance of utilizing agricultural waste for environmental benefit.

Keywords: Activated carbon, Adsorption, Methylene blue



Enhancing Phosphorus Removal Efficiency through Lanthanum Modified Biochar

Nail Amara^{*1}

¹University of Biskra, Research Laboratory in Subterranean and Surface Hydraulics, PO Box 145, Biskra, 07000, Algeria

Abstract

Eutrophication has become a serious environmental problem which is driven primarily by excessive phosphorus (P) inputs, poses a significant threat to aquatic ecosystems. Previous publications have demonstrated that adsorption could achieve a P concentration lower than 0.01 mg/L. La-based P adsorbents have drawn significant attention in the last decade.

In this study, we explore the potential of biochar, an adsorbent material, in reducing phosphorus. Specifically, we investigate the effects of lanthanum-modified biochar, derived from date palm biomass through a single-step pyrolysis process at 700°C. To evaluate the adsorption capacity of the modified biochar, kinetic tests were conducted to examine the relationship between adsorption efficiency and adsorption time.

The results revealed an increase in adsorption efficiency as the duration of adsorption extended. This finding suggests that the lanthanum-modified biochar exhibits enhanced adsorption capabilities for phosphorus removal, making it a potential solution for phosphorus removal. Data of adsorption were fitted to several kinetic models. Overall, our study demonstrates the potential of lanthanum-modified biochar derived from date palm biomass as an effective adsorbent for phosphorus removal.

Keywords: Eutrophication, Phosphorus, Adsorption, Lanthanum, Kinetic



Analysis of Inaccurate Information of Sample Holder Thickness in Determining Electromagnetic Properties of Soil Samples

Hafize Hasar^{*1}, Ugur Cem Hasar², Yunus Kaya³

¹Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry of the Republic of Turkey, Directorate of Provincial Agriculture and Forestry, Gaziantep, Turkey ²Gaziantep University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Gaziantep, Turkey ³Bayburt University, Department of Electricity and Energy, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

The effect of inaccurate information on sample holder thickness on the extracted complex permittivity of soil samples is examined. To achieve our goal, simulations using a full 3D electromagnetic simulation program (CST Microwave Studio) are performed, and then an extraction algorithm is applied to examine the influence of various inaccurate sample holder thicknesses. It is observed from our analysis that the real part of the permittivity of the soil sample is drastically dependent on exact information about the sample holder.

Keywords: Permittivity, Soil, Sample holder, Simulation

1 INTRODUCTION

Measurement of water content within soil samples is of paramount importance in the analysis of plant growth and nutrition, germination of seeds, and nutrient transformations in the root zone [1]. Methods for such measurements can be categorized into two main groups as direct methods and indirect methods. The former methods such as gravimetric (mass basis) or volumetric (volume basis) can provide information about water content after removing water from a soil sample by evaporation, leaching or chemical reaction. Although effective, these methods necessitate a collection of samples transported from the field to a measurement laboratory and a considerable amount of time [2] (an average of 24 hours). Indirect methods, on the other hand, evaluate water content within soil samples by means of a correlation process from a measured non-moisture parameter to moisture. To eliminate the drawbacks of the aforementioned direct methods, non-direct methods can be used as a solution. Among many indirect methods such as the tensiometric method, pressure plate technique, and neutron probe moisture meter, our concern in this study is those based on electromagnetic signals. Time-domain reflectometry (TDR) [3, 4], ground-penetrating radar (GPR) [5], open-ended probes [2, 6], and coaxial transmission lines [7-14] can be enumerated for indirect methods relying on those signals.

To eliminate these drawbacks, indirect methods based on electromagnetic signals can be used such as time-domain reflectometry (TDR) methods [3, 4], ground-penetrating radar (GPR) methods [5], open-ended probes [2, 6], and coaxial transmission lines [7-14]. The TDR methods send a pulse signal through a guided line with a velocity and extract information about soil properties by measuring propagation and amplitude change of this signal. Nonetheless, it needs a specialized or an optimized probe to improve the accuracy of soil moisture detection. On the other hand, GPR methods could be effectively used to correlate the moisture content of soils with an established empirical formula such as Topp's equation. This method, however, is limited to homogeneous soil samples with relatively smaller conductivities. As a promising method, open-ended coaxial or waveguide techniques can be equivalently utilized for soil moisture detection. These methods, as a drawback, necessitate a close contact with the soil sample which otherwise might introduce inaccurate or unexpected results. Coaxial transmission lines are attractive solutions for moisture content analysis of soil samples by measuring response over a wide frequency band.

Coaxial transmission lines can be grouped into methods requiring calibration [4-13] and those with no calibration [14, 15]. The advantage of the latter methods is that their accuracy is not essentially influenced by any improper calibration standard used in the calibration procedure. The method in [14] needs two identical lines with different lengths and a sample holder whose position should be kept fixed during the measurement process. These requirements might be difficult especially for multiple soil sample measurements. In order to eliminate both of these drawbacks, in our recent study [15], we have developed another calibration-independent method for soil moisture measurement using one measurement cell and a sample holder whose position could be anywhere in the

Analysis of inaccurate information of sample holder thickness in determining electromagnetic TIEM 2023 properties of soil samples

measurement cell. Although efficient, this method requires accurate knowledge of electromagnetic properties and thickness of the plug before starting to permittivity measurement of soil samples (and then moisture measurement of soil samples). In this paper, we examine the effect of inaccurate knowledge of thickness of the plug on extracted permittivity of soil samples.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The configuration that we consider is shown in Fig. 1 [15]. Fig. 1(a) illustrates the measurement configuration that the empty measurement cell is connected between two error networks X and Y, which describe some repeatable errors of the measuring instrument (vector network analyser (VNA) with no prior calibration and effects of adapters. Fig. 1(b) demonstrates the same configuration of the Fig. 1(a) except that a samples holder (a dielectric material) with length L_h is positioned into any suitable place with the cell. Fig. 1(c) shows the configuration of the measurement cell with sample holder after soil sample with length L_s is poured over the sample holder.



Figure 1. Measurement configurations in implementation of our method. (a) An empty line (with no sample holder and soil sample), (b) the line loaded with a sample holder with length L_h , and (c) the line with soil sample with length L_s poured over the sample holder

Assuming M_a , M_b , and M_c denote, respectively, the wave-cascading matrices (WCMs) of the measurement configurations in Figs. 1(a)-1(c), permittivity of the soil sample can be determined [15] by using

$$\varepsilon_{rs} = \left[\frac{j\ln(P_s) \mp 2\pi m}{k_0 L_s}\right]^2 \tag{1}$$

where

$$P_{S} = \frac{(\Lambda_{1} - \Lambda_{2})\Lambda_{3} - (\Lambda_{1} + \Lambda_{2})\Lambda_{4}}{\Omega_{1}(\Lambda_{1} - \Lambda_{2}) - \Omega_{2}\Lambda_{4}}$$
(2)

$$\Lambda_1 = \frac{Q}{4} \left(P_h + \frac{1}{P_h} \right) - \frac{R}{8} \left(z_h + \frac{1}{z_h} \right) \left(P_h - \frac{1}{P_h} \right) \tag{3}$$

$$\Lambda_{2} = \frac{R}{8} \left(P_{h} + \frac{1}{P_{h}} \right) \left(z_{h} + \frac{1}{z_{h}} \right) - \frac{Q}{8} \left(P_{h} - \frac{1}{P_{h}} \right) \left(\frac{z_{s}}{z_{h}} + \frac{z_{h}}{z_{s}} \right)$$
(4)

$$\Lambda_3 = \Lambda_5 + \Lambda_6 \left(z_s + \frac{1}{z_s} \right), \quad \Lambda_5 = \frac{1}{2} \left(P_{s0} + \frac{1}{P_{s0}} \right), \tag{5}$$

$$\Lambda_4 = \Lambda_5 - \Lambda_6 \left(z_s + \frac{1}{z_s} \right), \quad \Lambda_6 = \frac{1}{4} \left(P_{s0} - \frac{1}{P_{s0}} \right), \tag{6}$$

$$Q = P_{s0}P_{h0} + \frac{1}{P_{s0}P_{h0}}, \quad R = P_{s0}P_{h0} - \frac{1}{P_{s0}P_{h0}}, \tag{7}$$

$$\Omega_{1} = \frac{1}{2} \left(P_{s} + \frac{1}{P_{s}} \right) \left(P_{s0} + \frac{1}{P_{s0}} \right) - \frac{1}{4} \left(z_{s} + \frac{1}{z_{s}} \right) \left(P_{s} - \frac{1}{P_{s0}} \right) \left(P_{s0} - \frac{1}{P_{s0}} \right)$$
(8)

$$\Omega_2 = \Lambda_1 \left(P_s + \frac{1}{P_s} \right) - \Lambda_2 \left(P_s - \frac{1}{P_s} \right) \tag{9}$$

after z_s is determined by using a suitable numerical method from

$$F(z_s) = \xi_1 z_s^6 + \xi_2 z_s^5 + \xi_3 z_s^4 + \xi_4 z_s^3 + \xi_5 z_s^2 + \xi_6 z_s + \xi_7 = 0$$
(10)

$$\xi_1 = \Lambda_6(\chi_1^2 - 4\chi_2^2), \quad \xi_7 = \Lambda_6(\chi_6^2 - 4\chi_5^2), \tag{11}$$

$$\xi_2 = \Lambda_5(\chi_1^2 + 4\chi_2^2) + 2(\Lambda_6\chi_3 - \Omega_1\chi_1)\chi_4, \tag{12}$$

$$\xi_3 = \Lambda_6(\chi_1^2 - 4\chi_2^2 + \chi_3^2 + 2\chi_1\chi_6 - 8\chi_2\chi_5) - 2(\Omega_1\chi_2 + \Lambda_5\chi_1)\chi_3,$$
(13)

$$\xi_4 = \Lambda_5(\chi_3^2 + 2\chi_1\chi_6 + 8\chi_2\chi_5) + 2\Lambda_6\chi_3(\chi_4 - \chi_6) + 2\Omega_1(\chi_2\chi_6 + \chi_1\chi_5), \tag{14}$$

$$\xi_5 = \Lambda_6(\chi_3^2 + \chi_6^2 - 4\chi_5^2 + 2\chi_1\chi_6 - 8\chi_2\chi_5) - 2\chi_3(\Lambda_5\chi_6 + \Omega_1\chi_5), \tag{15}$$

$$\xi_6 = \Lambda_5(\chi_6^2 + \chi_5^2) + 2(\Omega_1\chi_5 - \Lambda_6\chi_3)\chi_6, \tag{16}$$

$$\Lambda_7 = \frac{1}{8} \left[R \left(P_h + \frac{1}{P_h} \right) - \frac{1}{z_h} Q \left(P_h - \frac{1}{P_h} \right) \right],\tag{17}$$

$$\Lambda_8 = \frac{1}{8} \left[R \left(P_h + \frac{1}{P_h} \right) - z_h Q \left(P_h - \frac{1}{P_h} \right) \right],\tag{18}$$

$$\chi_1 = \Omega_1 \Lambda_7 - \Omega_2 \Lambda_6, \qquad \chi_2 = \Lambda_1 \Lambda_6 - \Lambda_6 \Lambda_7, \tag{19}$$

$$\chi_3 = \Omega_1 \Lambda_1 - \Omega_2 \Lambda_5, \qquad \chi_4 = \Omega_2 \Lambda_6 - \Omega_1 \Lambda_7, \tag{20}$$

$$\chi_5 = \Lambda_1 \Lambda_6 - \Lambda_5 \Lambda_8, \qquad \chi_6 = \Omega_1 \Lambda_8 - \Omega_2 \Lambda_6, \tag{21}$$

$$P_{s0} = e^{-jk_0L_s}, \quad P_{h0} = e^{-jk_0L_h}, \quad z_h = \sqrt{1/\varepsilon_{rh}}.$$

Here, ε_{rh} is the relative permittivity of sample holder.

3 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Simulations were performed by using a commercial 3D electromagnetic simulation program (CST Microwave Studio) to examine the effect of inaccurate knowledge of thickness information on the sample holder. Error networks X and Y were, respectively, accounted for polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) and Arlon Ad 250 materials with lengths of 5 mm. The sample holder and the soil sample were simulated by a polyimide material with relative complex permittivity $\varepsilon_{rh} = 3.5 - j0.0095$ ($L_h = 5$ mm) and a material with relative complex permittivity $\varepsilon_{rs} = 3.0 - j0.005$ ($L_s = 8$ mm). Coaxial line was assumed to be constructed by a copper material ($\sigma = 5.8 \times 10^7$ S/m) with inner and outer radii of 8.45 mm and 19.4 mm and a length of $L_{cell} = 150$ mm. Boundary conditions of zero tangential electric field were applied over the conducting inner and outer line lateral surfaces. Time-domain solver was activated in the simulations (-80 dB accuracy with adaptive meshing) [14,15]. Figs. 2(a) and 2(b) illustrate over 1.2-3.0 GHz the real and imaginary parts of extracted ε_{rs} using the expressions in (1)-(21) for various variations in sample holder length L_h .



Figure 2. Extracted (a) real and (b) imaginary parts of the relative complex permittivity ε_{rs} of soil sample for different soil holder length L_h (Nominal, ±5%, and ±10%)

Analysis of inaccurate information of sample holder thickness in determining electromagnetic TIEM 2023 properties of soil samples

It is seen from Figs. 2(a) and 2(b) that while real part of ε_{rs} is seriously affected by an inaccurate information of soil holder length L_h , its imaginary part is slightly influenced by the same effect. This is due to that fact that extracted real part of ε_{rs} will be affected more than its imaginary part for relatively low-loss soil sample holders. Besides, it is noted from the dependencies in Fig. 2(a) that an increase in L_h produces an increase in the real part of ε_{rs} .

4 CONCLUSION

We have examined the effect of inaccurate knowledge of the sample holder thickness of a retrieval method on extracted relative complex permittivity of soil samples. Such an analysis is needed to evaluate the performance of this extraction procedure. It is observed from simulations that real part of the relative complex permittivity of soil sample is seriously influenced by an inaccurate information about the sample holder. As a future study, we are thinking to develop an extraction method not relying on sample holder thickness for improving the accuracy of the extraction procedure.

References

- [1] M. Bittelli, "Measuring soil water content: A review," Horttechnology, vol. 21, no. 3, pp. 293–300, 2011.
- [2] G. Luciani, A. Berardinelli, M. Crescentini, A. Romani, M. Tartagni, and L. Ragni, "Non-invasive soil moisture sensing based on open-ended waveguide and multivariate analysis," Sens. Actuator A.: Phys., vol. 265, pp. 236–245, Oct. 2017.
- [3] G. C. Topp, J. L. Davis, and A. P. Annan, "Electromagnetic determination of soil water content: Measurements in coaxial transmission lines," Water Resour. Res., vol. 16, no. 3, pp. 574–168, 1980.
- [4] J. Majcher, M. Kafarski, A. Wilczek, A. Szypłowska, A. Lewandowski, A. Woszczyk, and W. Skierucha, "Application of a dagger probe for soil dielectric permittivity measurement by TDR," Meas., vol. 178, Jun. 2021, Art No. 109368.
- [5] E. Babaeian, M. Sadeghi, S. B. Jones, C. Montzka, H. Vereecken, and M. Tuller, "Ground, proximal, and satellite remote sensing of soil moisture," Rev. Geophys., vol. 57, no. 2, pp. 530–616, 2019.
- [6] N. Wagner, M. Schwing, and A. Scheuermann, "Numerical 3-D FEM and experimental analysis of the open-ended coaxial line technique for microwave dielectric spectroscopy on soil," IEEE Trans. Geosci. Remote Sens., vol. 52, no. 2, pp. 880–893, Feb. 2014.
- [7] A. Szyplowska, A. Lewandowski, S. B. Jones, P. Sabouroux, J. Szerement, M. Kafarski, A. Wilczek, and W. Skierucha, "Impact of soil salinity, texture and measurement frequency on the relations between soil moisture and 20 MHz-3 GHz dielectric permittivity spectrum for soils of medium texture," J. Hydrol., vol. 579, art. no. 124155, Dec. 2019.
- [8] A. Lewandowski, A. Szyplowska, M. Kafarski, A. Wilczek, P. Barmuta, and W. Skierucha, "0.05-3 GHz VNA characterization of soil dielectric properties based on the multiline TRL calibration," Meas. Sci. Technol., vol. 28, no. 2, art. no. 024007, Jan. 2017.
- [9] K. Lauer, N. Wagner, and P. Felix-Henningsen, "A new technique for measuring broadband dielectric spectra of undisturbed soil samples," Eur. J. Soil Sci., vol. 63, pp. 224–238, Apr. 2012.
- [10] N. Wagner, K. Emmerich, F. Bonitz, and K. Kupfer, "Experimental investigations on the frequency- and temperature-dependent dielectric material properties of soil," IEEE Trans. Geosci. Remote Sens., vol. 49, no. 7, pp. 2518–2530, Jul. 2011.
- [11] D. Ba and P. Sabouroux, "EpsiMu, A toolkit for permittivity and permeability measurement in microwave domain at real time of all materials: Applications to solid and semisolid materials," Microw. Opt. Technol. Lett., vol. 52, no. 12, pp. 2643–2648, Dec. 2010.
- [12] A. Lewandowski, A. Szyplowska, A. Wilczek, M. Kafarski, J. Szerement, and W. Skierucha, "One-port vector network analyzer characterization of soil dielectric spectrum," IEEE Trans. Geosci. Remote Sens., vol. 57, no. 6, pp. 3661–3676, 2019.
- [13] P. P. Bobrov, A. V. Repin, and O. V. Rodionova, "Wideband frequency domain method of soil dielectric property measurements," IEEE Trans. Geosci. Remote Sens., vol. 53, no. 5, pp. 2366–2372, May 2015.
- [14] H. Hasar, U. C. Hasar, Y. Kaya, T. Oztas, M. Y. Canbolat, N. Aslan, M. Ertugrul, and O. M. Ramahi, "Broadband soil permittivity measurements using a novel de-embedding line-line method," IEEE Geosci. Remote Sens. Lett., vol. 19, art. no. 5002605, Jan. 2022.
- [15] H. Hasar, U. C. Hasar, H. Ozturk, M. Izginli, N. Aslan, T. Oztas, M. Ertugrul, M. Karayilan, and O. M. Ramahi, "Permittivity extraction of soil samples using coaxial-line measurements by a simple calibration," IEEE Trans. Geosci. Rem. Sens., vol. 61, art. no. 5300108, 2023.



Effect of Temperature Variation on the Mechanical Behavior of Composite Plates Reinforced on Both Sides by Carbon Fiber Patches

Faycal Mili^{*1,2}, Sarah Guenifa², Toufik Achour³

¹Mentouri Brothers University, Laboratory of Mechanic, Constantine, Algeria ²Mentouri Brothers University, Mechanical Engineering Department, Constantine, Algeria ³Mechanics Research Center, Constantine, Algeria

Abstract

This paper describes the effect of the temperature on the mechanical behavior of Glass/epoxy structures reinforced by composite patches for different stacking sequences. Among the different reinforcement or repair techniques, the operation of double sided bonded joints was considered in this contribution. It consists in searching the optimal stacking sequence of the carbon fiber patches capable of better resisting in tension. When the structure is submitted to uniaxial traction and works in cold or hot environments, the use of composite patches with more efficient reinforcements and more resistant to the effect of temperature will only lead us to consider carbon fibers. Composite adhesive patches consist of a single ply of arbitrary orientation $+\theta$ or multiple alternate plies at $+\theta/-\theta$ and the stacking sequence of the plate to be reinforced is $[+\theta/-\theta]_{2S}$. In order to study the effect of the number of plies on the improvement of the whole mechanical strength, it has been considered two composite patches with double sides, composed of 2 to 16 plies. The effect of the anisotropic nature of the carbon fiber on the mechanical behavior of the hybrid laminates considered has been observed. Also, the increase in temperature greatly influences the mechanical strength of the thermosetting epoxy resin.

Keywords: Composite, Patch, Repair, Temperature, Stacking

1 INTRODUCTION

Different reinforcement techniques, when the structure is weakened, or repair when cracks appear, are adopted by bonding composite patches. They can be double overlapped when bonded on both sides of the original plate. The efficiency of the search for the optimal stacking sequence of the composite patches contributes to the improvement of the mechanical strength of the considered plate. A good choice is necessary to obtain better results of reinforcement and rehabilitation. When the plate is submitted to uniaxial traction and works in cold or hot environments, the use of composite patches with more efficient reinforcements and more resistant to the effect of temperature will only lead us to consider carbon fibers such. Combining these high performance fibers with commonly used E-glass forms a glass-carbon/epoxy hybrid laminate. Just take into account that carbon fiber is anisotropic in nature and glass fiber is isotropic.

The study of the mechanical behavior of this type of hybrid composite materials has particularly developed in recent years given their interest in solving some important strength problems [1-3]. Moleiro et al. [4] have developed a mixed least squares formulation to calculate hybrid composite laminates which are the association of metal fibers and sandwich plates under hygro-thermo-mechanical loadings. Zheng et al. [5] have investigated experimentally carbon-aramid hybrids. The elastic properties and surface deformation of the composites were measured under axial tensile loading to failure utilizing the Digital Image Correlation (DIC) technique. Kim et al. [6] have considered the hybrid glass/carbon composite bumper beam. It was designed and manufactured through the process of design optimization combined with impact analysis. The glass/carbon mat thermoplastic composite was designed to replace conventional glass mat thermoplastic and reduce the weight of the bumper beam.

It is therefore interesting to study the thermomechanical behavior of mixed fiber composite materials to define the effectiveness of the search for the optimal stacking sequence of double bonded carbon/epoxy patches capable of reinforcing the glass/epoxy plate.

2 STRENGTHENING AND REPAIR TECHNIQUES

The detection of different damage phenomena by non-destructive testing and their resolution by repair and the search for methods of reinforcing structures find today more and more industrial application. Various repair methods exist, including the placement of bolts or rivets. The disadvantage of these methods, however, lies in the singular field of stresses which appears in the connections.

In order to avoid stress concentrations, a possible solution then consists of sticking a composite patch on the defective region of the structure in order to better reinforce the damaged area and thus delay the rupture phenomenon and subsequently increase its lifespan. Methods for repairing damaged materials are promising solutions (Figure 1). As composite materials differ from conventional materials by their lightness and their high resistance, they do not recover after damage. For this reason, it is necessary to resort to repair methods, represented by the bonding of a single or double-sided strapped bonded joint, or preventive by reinforcing the structure with a patch bonded on one side (single-sided bonded joint), or on both sides (double-sided bonded joint).



3 THERMO-MECHANICAL BEHAVIOR CHARACTERIZATION

Reinforcement of weakened composite structures is generally achieved by bonding double-sided bonded composite patches to form symmetrical laminates. So, it is necessary to study this type of composite materials. Their analysis is more complex than that of a traditional material structure. Its behavior depends on many parameters related to its constitution and the processes of implementation. The whole of the elements necessary to the study of the mechanical behavior of a composite material must take into account the anisotropic character of the mechanical properties of basic material, as well on the stiffness plans as strength. These mechanical characteristics must thus be concentrated in the direction of the fibers so that the structure can support states of external solicitations in several directions.

The classical theory of linear elasticity utilizes the generalized Hooke's law in order to obtain the stresses tensor (σ) relating to that of the strains (ε) :

$$\sigma_i = C_{ij} \varepsilon_j \qquad i,j=1,\dots,6 \tag{1}$$

where C_{ij} is the stiffness matrix. An unrestrained composite may change both its size and shape when the temperature is increased or decreased uniformly by ΔT . Under the combined effect of the stresses and temperature, the thermomechanical behavior of the kth layer of a multilayered laminate in the coordinate axes x,y (Figure 2) can be written in the in-plane loading, in terms of the transformed reduced stiffnesses $\overline{Q_{ij}}$ [7]:

$$\begin{cases} \sigma_{x} \\ \sigma_{y} \\ \tau_{xy} \end{cases}_{k} = \begin{bmatrix} \overline{Q}_{11} & \overline{Q}_{12} & \overline{Q}_{16} \\ \overline{Q}_{12} & \overline{Q}_{22} & \overline{Q}_{26} \\ \overline{Q}_{16} & \overline{Q}_{26} & \overline{Q}_{66} \end{bmatrix}_{k} \begin{cases} \varepsilon_{x} - \alpha_{x} \Delta T \\ \varepsilon_{y} - \alpha_{y} \Delta T \\ \gamma_{xy} - \alpha_{xy} \Delta T \end{cases}_{k}$$

$$(2)$$

The terms α_x , α_y and μ are the coefficients of thermal expansion in body coordinates.



Figure 2. Coordinate systems of the kth layer of a multilayered laminate

The superposition of many layers forms a laminate. One of the fundamental advantages of laminates is their ability to adapt and control the orientation of fibers so that the material can best resist loadings. It is therefore important to know how the plies contribute to the laminate resistance, taking into account their relative orientation with respect to the loading direction. The behavior of the symmetrical laminate when it is subjected to a combination of loadings is described by the classical lamination theory [8]. By virtue of the Kirchhoff hypothesis, the in-plane strains are a linear function of the transverse coordinate z. This theory of negligible transverse shear strains, γ_{xz} and γ_{yz} , and negligible transverse normal strain, ε_z , constitutes a statement of a linear variation of strain through the laminate thickness.



Figure 3. In-plane forces on a flat laminate under temperature change

When the variation in temperature is considered, which is assumed to be identical in all plies of the laminate, and the ply stress-strain relations, equation (2), are substituted, the resultant forces acting on a laminate (Figure 3) are obtained in terms of middle-surface strains ε^{0}_{ij} :

$$\begin{cases} \mathbf{N}_{x} \\ \mathbf{N}_{y} \\ \mathbf{N}_{xy} \end{cases} = \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{A}_{11} & \mathbf{A}_{12} & \mathbf{A}_{16} \\ \mathbf{A}_{12} & \mathbf{A}_{22} & \mathbf{A}_{26} \\ \mathbf{A}_{16} & \mathbf{A}_{26} & \mathbf{A}_{66} \end{bmatrix} \begin{cases} \boldsymbol{\varepsilon}_{x}^{o} \\ \boldsymbol{\varepsilon}_{y}^{o} \\ \boldsymbol{\gamma}_{xy}^{o} \end{cases} - \begin{cases} \mathbf{N}_{x}^{T} \\ \mathbf{N}_{y}^{T} \\ \mathbf{N}_{xy}^{T} \end{cases}$$
(3)

in which the A_{ij} is the usual extensional stiffnesses and defined by:

$$A_{ij} = \sum_{k=1}^{N} \left(\overline{Q_{ij}} \right)_{k} e_{k}$$
(4)

wherin e_k is the thikness. The thermal forces are :

$$\begin{cases} \mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{x}}^{\mathsf{T}} \\ \mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{y}}^{\mathsf{T}} \\ \mathbf{N}_{\mathbf{xy}}^{\mathsf{T}} \end{cases} = \int \begin{bmatrix} \overline{\mathbf{Q}}_{11} & \overline{\mathbf{Q}}_{12} & \overline{\mathbf{Q}}_{16} \\ \overline{\mathbf{Q}}_{12} & \overline{\mathbf{Q}}_{22} & \overline{\mathbf{Q}}_{26} \\ \overline{\mathbf{Q}}_{16} & \overline{\mathbf{Q}}_{26} & \overline{\mathbf{Q}}_{66} \end{bmatrix}_{\mathsf{k}} \begin{cases} \alpha_{\mathsf{x}} \\ \alpha_{\mathsf{y}} \\ \alpha_{\mathsf{xy}} \end{cases}_{\mathsf{k}}^{\mathsf{T}} \tag{5}$$

4 LAMİNATE STRENGTH CRİTERİA ANALYSIS

The evaluation of the glass-carbon/epoxy hybrid composite behavior, used at different temperatures and working in tension, is based on a prediction calculation of its limiting strength which can support during its loading (Figure 4).



Figure 4. Coordinate systems of the multilayered laminate

The determination of this latter by using failure criteria can occur in different modes depending on the reinforcement nature and the fiber orientation. It is necessary to predict the loads that cause the failure of the first individual ply by crack formation and the laminate as a whole. For the lamina, this problem can be readily solved if the material strength is predicted by a failure criterion. In the case of the material reinforced with unidirectional fibers, Tsai-Hill criterion is a model of dependence between strain modes related to the distortion energy [7]. This latter must be applied to determine the maximum values of N_x with respect to the temperature change ΔT that can be sustained without failure of any ply. The stresses in a material under consideration will be transformed to stresses in the principal material coordinates. The Tsai-Hill failure criterion applied to each ply separately can be expressed in terms of the ultimate strengths and the combined stresses as:

$$\left(\frac{\sigma_1}{X}\right)^2 + \left(\frac{\sigma_2}{Y}\right)^2 - \frac{\sigma_1\sigma_2}{X^2} + \left(\frac{\tau_{12}}{S}\right)^2 \le 1$$
(6)

Wherein X and Y are the longitudinal and the transversal tension stresses of the $[0^{\circ}]$ ply respectively and S is the maximum shear stress in 1-2 plane of the $[0^{\circ}]$ ply. This failure criterion predicts then that the lamina fracture would initiate when the combination of stresses reigned in the material reaches the ultimate strengths.

On the other hand, the prediction of the various failure modes and the damage zones (Figure 5) of this least strength ply is determined by the maximum stress theory.



Figure 5. Different failure and damage modes of a composite material

This criterion is based on the assumption that there exist three possible failure modes caused by stresses σ_1 , σ_2 and τ_{12} when they reach the corresponding ultimate values as failed:

$$\sigma_1 < X$$
 , $\sigma_2 < Y$, $|\tau_{12}| < S$
(7)

and the failure will be then allotted to the stress corresponding to this inequality.

5 RESULTS

The hybrid composite material considered in this study is the glass-carbon/epoxy. It is reinforced at 60% of its

Effect of temperature variation on the mechanical behavior of composite plates reinforced on TIEM 2023 both sides by carbon fiber patches

total volume by unidirectional fibers of different nature. It was assumed under tension loading N_x and temperature change. The E-glass/epoxy composite plate to be reinforced is symmetrical laminate which was composed of four regular plies and its stacking sequence is $[+\theta/-\theta]_{2s}$. The reinforcement of this structure is made by carbon/epoxy patches whose number of component plies varies from 2 to 16. They cover the plate to be reinforced on either side of the average plane to ensure the symmetry of the structure and are oriented at $+\theta$ or alternate between $+\theta$ and $-\theta$. In this case, the external plies are in carbon/epoxy while those of the interior are in E-glass/epoxy (Figure 6).



Figure 6. Double-sided bonded joint of E-glass/epoxy composite plate

The elastic characteristics and the thermo-mechanical properties of the different especially orthotropic laminas are reported in Table 1 [7].

 Table 1. Elastic constants and thermo-mechanical properties of E-glass/epoxy and carbon/epoxy unidirectional plies

Composite materials	E ₁ [Gpa]	E ₂ [Gpa]	G ₁₂ [Gpa]	v ₁₂	X [Gpa]	Y [Mpa]	S [Mpa]	α ₁ .10 ⁻⁵ [°C ⁻¹]	α ₂ .10 ⁻⁵ [°C ⁻¹]
E-Glass/Epoxy	45	12	4.5	0.3	1.25	35	63	0.4	1.6
Carbone/Epoxy	134	7	4.2	0.25	1.27	42	63	-0.12	3.4



Figure 7. Ultimate tensile strength of $[+\theta/-\theta]_{2S}$ E-glass/epoxy under temperature change: (a) 25 °C, (b) 100°C



Figure 8. ultimate tensile strength of $[+\theta/-\theta]_{2S}$ carbon/epoxy under temperature change: (a) 25 °C, (b) 100°C

The behavior of the E-glass/epoxy and carbon/epoxy composite plates with $[+\theta/-\theta]_{2s}$ stacking sequence under tension loading and temperature change are represented respectively by Figures 7 and 8. It is noticed that their ultimate strength decrease when the fiber orientation θ varies from 0° to 90°. It is the thermosetting resin which is responsible for this degradation. They present three damage zones: the first (mode I) concerns the tensile failure of the fibers, the second (mode III) indicates the shear failure of the epoxy resin parallel to the fibers and the third shows the tensile failure of the matrix. The increase in temperature causes a shrinkage of zone II by promoting rupture by shearing of the matrix. On the other hand, the carbon/epoxy material presents a repetition of mode II and an irregularity in its profile due to the anisotropic nature of the fiber material.

Figure 9 shows, under temperature change, the ultimate strength of E-glass/epoxy composite plates reinforced with double-lap carbon/epoxy patches and consisting of a single ply of $+\theta$ orientation bonded on each face of the plate. In this case, it was found that the resistance improvement objectives are only achieved from orientation 39° orientation. The increase of the E-glass/epoxy material strength and under different temperatures is only possible with the bonding of an E-glass/epoxy patch. The use of the same material makes it possible to avoid the unfavorable consequences of the anisotropy of the carbon fiber, especially at orientations near to 0°, and result in mechanical behavior with a continuous and uniform appearance.



Figure 9. Variation in the tensile strength of the $[+\theta/-\theta]_{2S}$ glass-E/epoxy plate reinforced by two single-ply carbon/epoxy patches with $+\theta$ orientations as a function of temperature change.

The use of composite patches increases the mechanical strength of the E-glass/epoxy plate when they are composed of two layers of carbon/epoxy alternated between $+\theta/-\theta$ (Figure 10). But on the other hand, the only use of E-glass/epoxy patches increases the mechanical strength more significantly and more precisely at orientations lower than 36°. The consideration of carbon fiber disrupted the progressive decrease in the mechanical strength of the system. It is the anisotropic nature of this fiber which is responsible for this behavior.



Figure 10. Variation in the tensile strength of the $[+\theta/-\theta]_{2S}$ E-glass/epoxy plate reinforced by two carbon/epoxy patches composed of 2 layers $[+\theta/-\theta]_{2S}$ as a function of the temperature change.

Figure 11 represents the evolution of the mechanical strength of the E-glass/epoxy composite plates with stacking sequence $[+\theta/-\theta]_{2S}$ reinforced by two composite patches of carbon/epoxy compound each of three alternating plies at $+\theta/-\theta/+\theta$ and therefore have a set of 10 plies $[+\theta_c/-\theta_c/+\theta_c/+\theta_G/-\theta_G]_{2S}$. From these curves, it was shown the effect of the number of plies of the patches on the improvement of the mechanical strength of the system. It was noticed an increase in the strength of the hybrids compared to the other cases described previously. The shape of the curves remains irregular around 45°. Also, the weak effect of temperature on the mechanical behavior of the system was noted.



Fiber orientation [degree]

Figure 11. Variation in the tensile strength of the $[+\theta/-\theta]_{2S}$ E-glass/epoxy plate reinforced by two carbon/epoxy patches composed of 3 layers $[+\theta/-\theta/+\theta]_{2S}$ a function of the temperature change.

If the number of layers of carbon/epoxy is increased by forming a hybrid of 20 layers with mixed fibers, of stacking sequences $[+\theta_c/-\theta_c/+\theta_c/-\theta_c/+\theta_c/-\theta_c/+\theta_c/-\theta_c/+\theta_c/-\theta_c]_{2S}$. This solution shown in Figure 12 makes it possible to obtain a very resistant assembly having behavior similar to that of the previous case. Likewise, the change in temperature was found to have weak influence on the strength of the hybrids.



Figure 12. Variation in the tensile strength of the $[+\theta/-\theta]_{2S}$ E-glass/epoxy plate reinforced by two carbon/epoxy patches composed of 8 layers $[+\theta/-\theta/+\theta/...$ as a function of the temperature change.

6 CONCLUSION

In this study, E-glass/epoxy composite plates were considered, with $[+\theta/-\theta]_{2S}$ stacking sequence, under uniaxial tension and subjected to different temperatures T= -50°C, 100°C or 150°C. To strengthen it well and rehabilitate it to these different loading conditions, it is preferred to use carbon/epoxy composite patches. In order to support the effectiveness of this reinforcement method, different solutions for stacking composite patches have been proposed. The only use of plies of the same istropic material (E-glass/epoxy) or the increase in the number of plies constituting the composite patches contribute to improving the thermomechanical strength of the entire structure. Under the action of an increase in temperature, the thermosetting resin becomes more resistant.

References

- F. Ahmadijokani, A. Shojaei, S. Dordanihaghighi, E. Jafarpour, S. Mohammadi, M. Arjmand, "Effects of hybrid carbon-aramid fiber on performance of non-asbestos organic brake friction composites," Wear, vol. pp. 452–453, Jul. 2020.
- [2] S. Boria and G. Belingardi, "Numerical investigation of energy absorbers in composite materials for automotive applications," Int. J. Crashworthiness, vol. 17, pp. 345–356, 2012.
- [3] X. Liu, D. Zhang, J. Sun, S. Yu, Y. Dai, Z. Zhang, J. Sun, G. Li, and K. Qian, "Refine reconstruction and verification of meso-scale modeling of three-dimensional five-directional braided composites from x-ray computed tomography data," Compos. Struct., vol. 245, art. no. 112347, 2020.
- [4] F. Moleiro, E. Carrera, G. Li, M. Cinefra, J. N. Reddy, "Hygro-thermo-mechanical modelling of multilayered plates: Hybrid composite laminates, fibre metal laminates and sandwich plates," Composites Part B Engineering, vol. 177, no. 12, art. no. 107388, Nov. 2019.
- [5] P.-F. Zhang, W. Zhou, H.-F. Yin, and Y.-J. Shang, "Progressive damage analysis of three-dimensional braided composites under flexural load by micro-ct and acoustic emission," Compos. Struct., vol. 226, art. no. 111196, 2019.
- [6] D.-H. Kim, H.-G. Kim, and H.-S. Kim, "Design optimization and manufacture of hybrid glass/carbon fiber reinforced composite bumper beam for automobile vehicle," Compos. Struct., vol.131, pp.742–752, 2015.
- [7] V. V. Vasiliev and E.V. Morozov, "Mechanics and analysis of composite materials," Elsevier Science, Oxford, 2001.
- [8] R.-M. Jones, "Mechanics of composite materials," Taylor & Francis Ltd, Philadelphia, 1999.



Pullulan Active Packaging Incorporated with Green Silver Nanoparticles to Enhance the Shelf-Life of Broiler Chicken Meat

Suriya Kumari Ramiah^{*1}

¹Universiti Putra Malaysia, Malaysia

Abstract

Broiler meat can provide an appropriate environment for the microbial intensification, resulting in the lipid and protein oxidation and physico-chemical degradation. The utilization of the antioxidants prevents meat degradation and human health challenges by preventing meat physicochemical characteristics. Therefore, the impact of pullulan active packaging, incorporated with curcumin and pullulan mediated silver nanoparticles (C-AgNPs, P-AgNPs) on broiler meat was determined in the current study for 14 days of refrigerated storage at 4 ± 1 °C. A total of 120 broiler birds were reared for clean meat production and divided into 4 treatment groups (PF-CTRL, PFC-AgNPs, PF-P-AgNPs, PF-M-AgNPs). Broiler meat treated with pullulan active packaging incorporated with curcumin arbitrated AgNPs (PF-C-AgNPs) had significantly higher oxidative stability (p = .000). The current study confirms that the pullulan active packaging incorporated with curcumin arbitrated silver nanoparticles (PF-C-AgNPs) followed by pullulan active meat packaging incorporated with pullulan mediated silver nanoparticles (PF-P-AgNPs) had minimal oxidative rancidity in 14 days of storage. It is concluded that PF-C-AgNPs and PF-P-AgNPs can be a safer antioxidant alternative to preserve broiler meat quality and oxidative stability with a prolonged shelf life.

Keywords: Chicken, Shelf-life, Active packaging, Nanoparticle



Development of a Simple, Cheap, and High-Sensitivity Metamaterial Sensor Concept

Yunus Kaya^{*1}, Ugur Cem Hasar²

¹Bayburt University, Department of Electricity and Energy, Bayburt, Turkey ²Gaziantep University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Gaziantep, Turkey

Abstract

In this study, unlike the traditional metamaterial sensor concept, a high-sensitivity metamaterial sensor concept was developed by changing the position of the split ring resonator structure in the design. In addition, the FR-4 dielectric substrate used in the developed metamaterial sensor is easily available in the market and is cheap, both in terms of size and type. In this respect, the proposed concept study is a highly competitive design in terms of both its simple and cheap implementation and its high sensitivity.

Keywords: Metamaterial sensor, Split ring resonator, Simple design, High sensitivity, Cheap

1 INTRODUCTION

Artificially produced metamaterials, which differ from traditional materials in nature due to their negative refractive index feature, find a place in many sectors and application areas due to their extraordinary properties [1]. These materials have many potential applications such as electromagnetic cloak [2], sensor [3], energy harvesting [4], signal absorption [5], antenna [6], etc. Recently, metamaterials have found a wide place especially as sensors, and many different sensor types have been reported in the literature, ranging from temperature [7], humidity [8] and pressure [9] sensors to microwave [10] and optical sensors [11].

In the metamaterial sensor concept, properties of materials such as humidity, temperature, dielectric constant, purity, etc. are determined according to the sensor type by using the changes of resonance frequency and/or Q factor (or S_{21} value, dB) data [12, 13]. Therefore, the sensitivity of the sensor topology to be designed is very important. In this direction, in our study, a three-layer metamaterial sensor concept was proposed and a concept study that increased the sensor sensitivity compared to traditional use was verified through an electromagnetic simulation program. A simple design based on bianisotropic split ring resonator (SRR) topology was used in the sensor design. In addition, the substrate on which SRR is designed is easily available in the market and is cheap, both in terms of size and type. In this respect, the proposed concept study is a highly competitive design in terms of both its simple and cheap implementation and its high sensitivity.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

Like other metamaterial sensors in the literature, the traditional metamaterial sensor structure, designed in a threelayered and bianisotropic topology as SRR layer–sensing layer–SRR layer, is shown in Figure 1(a). In this structure, SRRs designed in a bianisotropic topology are traditionally located outside the SRR layer. However, based on the simulation studies we have carried out, the metamaterial sensor structure we propose is as shown in Figure 1(b). In this structure, SRRs are positioned inside the SRR layer to increase the sensitivity of the sensor. In other words, only the positions of the SRRs were changed without changing the dimensions of the design in Figure 1(a). The SRR and sensing layers and the dimensioning of the SRR structure are given in Figure 2(a) and Figure 2(b), respectively.

In the MM sensor structure shown in Figures 1–2, FR-4 dielectric material with relative dielectric constant $\varepsilon_{sub} = 4.3$, loss tangent tan $\delta = 0.025$ and thickness $d_{sub} = 1.6$ mm was used as the SRR layer. The thickness of the sample to be detected is $d_{int} = 1$ mm and the relative dielectric constant is ε_{int} (this value varies depending on the material to be detected). The width and length of the SRR and sensing layers are $L_w = 3$ and $L_h = 10.16$ mm,

respectively. Copper with thickness $d_{cop} = 35 \ \mu m$ and electrical conductivity $\sigma_{cop} = 5.8 \times 10^7 \ \text{S/m}$ was used as the SRR material. In terms of the conductivity and thickness of the copper used and the electrical properties and thickness of the FR-4 material used, the SRR layer material is easily available in the market and is cheap. If we look at the orientation and geometry of the SRR layer, firstly, a gap with a height of $g = 0.35 \ \text{mm}$ was removed from a ring with a diameter of $R = 2.25 \ \text{mm}$ and a width of $w = 0.35 \ \text{mm}$. Secondly, the SRR in both sensing layers is positioned at the center of the SRR layer with the gap in the -z-direction for the bianisotropic topology.



Figure 1. 3D image of (a) traditional and (b) proposed metamaterial sensor structure designed based on bianisotropic SRR topology



Figure 2. (a) Sizing of the SRR and sensing layers (given as an example for a traditional metamaterial sensor structure based on bianisotropic SRR topology) and (b) sizing of the SRR structure

3 RESULTS

In order to demonstrate the performance of traditional and proposed metamaterial sensors designed based on bianisotropic SRR topology, it is necessary to examine the scattering (S-) parameters versus frequency. For this purpose, simulations for the proposed sensors were carried out with the electromagnetic simulation program CST Microwave Studio. In this direction, the ports were placed at equal distances to the left and right sides of the metamaterial sensor structure, as shown in Figure 3, and a hollow metallic waveguide was created by setting the boundary conditions as perfectly electric conductive boundary conditions.



Figure 3. As an example, placement of waveguide ports in CST Microwave Studio for the proposed metamaterial sensor structure designed based on bianisotropic SRR topology

To compare the performance of the traditional and proposed metamaterial sensor concept, simulations were carried out in the frequency range of 10–17 GHz by varying the relative dielectric constant (ε_{int}) of the sensing layer between 1 and 5. Simulation results are given as transmission scattering parameter (S_{21}) versus frequency in Figures 4(a)–(b), and the results are summarized in Table 1.



Figure 4. S₂₁ parameters of (a) traditional and (b) proposed metamaterial sensor designed based on bianisotropic SRR topology

 Table 1. Performance indicators for traditional and proposed metamaterial sensor concepts designed based on bianisotropic SRR topology

ε _{int}	S ₂₁ [dB]		S ₂₁ Resonance Frequency [GHz]		Change Between Two Resonances [MHz]		According to the First Resonance Frequency			
							Change [GHz]		Change%	
	Tradit.	Prop.	Tradit.	Prop.	Tradit.	Prop.	Tradit.	Prop.	Tradit.	Prop.
1	- 11.643	- 12.169	15.56	14.63	_	_	_	-	_	_
2	- 11.791	- 12.954	15.53	13.71	30	920	0.03	0.92	0.19	6.29
3	- 11.946	- 13.795	15.51	12.95	20	760	0.05	1.68	0.32	11.48
4	- 12.113	- 14.599	15.49	12.31	20	640	0.07	2.32	0.45	15.86
5	- 12.287	- 15.442	15.49	11.75	0	560	0.07	2.88	0.45	19.69

When Figures 4(a)–4(b) and Table 1 are examined together, the following can be noted when ε_{int} is changed 1 to 5 for the material in the sensing layer. Firstly, it can be seen that for the traditional metamaterial sensor concept, the S₂₁ resonance frequency changes by 0.07 GHz compared to the first resonance (moreover, when ε_{int} changes from 4 to 5, the resonance frequency does not change at all, only its magnitude changes), and for the proposed

metamaterial sensor concept, the S_{21} resonance frequency changes by 2.88 GHz compared to the first resonance. Secondly, it can be stated that the percentage change of the S_{21} resonance frequency of the traditional and proposed metamaterial sensor concepts compared to the first resonance is 0.45 and 19.69, respectively. Finally, it is concluded that the proposed metamaterial sensor concept, designed based on the bianisotropic SRR topology, is more than 43 times more sensitive (approximately 43.76 times) than the traditional concept.

Since this study focuses on the development of a simple, cheap, and high-sensitivity metamaterial sensor concept, the high-sensitivity advantage of our proposed concept (where SRRs look at the sensing layer) is mentioned by comparing traditional and proposed metamaterial sensor structures. It should also be noted that with the concept we propose, higher sensitivity sensor designs can be realized by changing both the substrate type and dimensions used, the SRR structure and the SRR topology.

4 CONCLUSION

In this study, the performances of the designed metamaterial sensor structures consisting of the traditional SRR– FR-4 substrate–sensing layer–FR-4 substrate–SRR concept and the proposed FR-4 substrate–SRR–sensing layer– SRR–FR-4 substrate concept were compared. As a result, it was concluded that the proposed metamaterial sensor concept based on bianisotropic SRR topology is approximately 43.76 times more sensitive than the traditional concept. In addition, since FR-4 is used as the dielectric substrate and copper as the SRR material in the design, traditional and proposed metamaterial sensor concepts can be easily realized simply and cheaply, both in terms of the material used and the dimensions of the materials used.

References

- [1] W. J. Padilla, D. N. Basov, and D. R. Smith, "Negative refractive index metamaterials," Mater. Today, vol. 9, no. 7–8, pp. 28–35, Jul.–Aug. 2006.
- [2] D. Schurig, J. J. Mock, B. J. Justice, S. A. Cummer, J. B. Pendry, A. F. Starr, and D. R. Smith, "Metamaterial electromagnetic cloak at microwave frequencies," Sci., vol. 314, no. 5801, pp. 977–980, Nov. 2006.
- [3] J. J. Yang, M. Huang, H. Tang, J. Zeng, and L. Dong, "Metamaterial sensors," Int. J. Antennas Propag., vol. 2013, art. no. 637270, 2013.
- [4] Z. Q. Lu, L. Zhao, H. Ding, and L. Q. Chen, "A dual-functional metamaterial for integrated vibration isolation and energy harvesting," J. Sound Vib., vol. 509, art. no. 116251, Sep. 2021.
- [5] G. Z. Wu, X. F. Jiao, Y. D. Wang, Z. P. Zhao, Y. B. Wang, and J. G. Liu, "Ultra-wideband tunable metamaterial perfect absorber based on vanadium dioxide," Opt. Express, vol. 29, no. 2, pp. 2703–2711, Jan. 2021.
- [6] P. Garg and P. Jain, "Isolation improvement of MIMO antenna using a novel flower shaped metamaterial absorber at 5.5 GHz WiMAX band," IEEE Trans. Circuits Syst. II Express Briefs, vol. 67, no. 4, pp. 675– 679, Apr. 2020.
- [7] M. Aslinezhad, "High sensitivity refractive index and temperature sensor based on semiconductor metamaterial perfect absorber in the terahertz band," Opt. Commun., vol. 463, art. no. 125411, May. 2020.
- [8] O. Akgol and H. Unal, "Metamaterial-based multifunctional sensor design for moisture, concrete aging and ethanol density sensing applications," Mod. Phys. Lett. B, vol. 32, no. 23, art. no. 1850271, Aug. 2018.
- [9] H. Jeong, Y. P. Cui, M. M. Tentzeris, and S. Lim, "Hybrid (3D and inkjet) printed electromagnetic pressure sensor using metamaterial absorber," Addit. Manuf., vol. 35, art. no. 101405, Oct. 2020.
- [10] M. Abdolrazzaghi, M. Daneshmand, and A. K. Iyer, "Strongly enhanced sensitivity in planar microwave sensors based on metamaterial coupling," IEEE Trans. Microwave Theory Tech., vol. 66, no. 4, pp. 1843– 1855, Apr. 2018.
- [11] Z. Vafapour, "Polarization-independent perfect optical metamaterial absorber as a glucose sensor in food industry applications," IEEE Trans. Nanobiosci., vol. 18, no. 4, pp. 622–627, Oct. 2019.
- [12] Y. I. Abdulkarim, L. W. Deng, H. Luo, S. X. Huang, M. Karaaslan, O. Altintas, M. Bakir, M, F. F. Muhammadsharif, H. N. Awl, C. Sabah, and K. S. L. Al-badri, "Design and study of a metamaterial based sensor for the application of liquid chemicals detection," J. Mater. Res. Technol., vol. 9, no. 5, pp. 10291–10304, Sep.–Oct. 2020.
- [13] W. D. Xu, L. J. Xie, and Y. B. Ying, "Mechanisms and applications of terahertz metamaterial sensing: A review," Nanoscale, vol. 9, no. 37, pp. 13864–13878, Oct. 2017.



Current Challenges and Potential of High-Performance Supercapacitors Derived-Metal-Organic Frameworks

Mohd Hafizuddin Ab Ghani^{*1}, Ismayadi Ismail¹, Josephine Ying Chyi Liew¹, Umer Rashid¹, Balkis Hazmi¹, Ruey Shan Chen², Kyle E. Cordova³

¹Universiti Putra Malaysia, Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology, Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia ²Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia, Faculty of Science and Technology, Department of Applied Physics, Bangi, Selangor, Malaysia ³Royal Scientific Society, Advanced Research Centre, Materials Discovery Research Unit, Amman, Jordan

Abstract

The continued increase in the use of fossil fuels has created a higher greenhouse effect, posing a major threat to human well-being as well as the environment. There is a need to develop renewable and clean energy sources in addressing the global energy shortage and pollution crisis. Technological innovations related to net zero energy conversion and climate neutral storage systems are becoming important. Over the past few decades, there has been a huge surge in interest in advancing new technologies, with major efforts directed towards developing more efficient energy storage devices such as batteries and capacitors. However, several disadvantages of batteries, such as low power density and limited charge/discharge cycles, low energy density of traditional capacitors, have limited their use in high-technology applications, leading to the emergence of the high-performance supercapacitor concept. Researchers in both industry and academia are interested in energy conversion and storage systems with exceptional stability and efficiency, making the construction and design of these systems a significant challenge. This mini review focuses on recent advances in supercapacitor applications derived from Metal-Organic Frameworks (MOFs) and its current challenges and future potential.

Keywords: Metal-organic frameworks, Supercapacitor, Greenhouse effect, Energy storage, Energy conversion



Synthesis and Luminescent Properties of Eu³⁺ Doped Lu₂WO₆ Red Phosphors

Amar Khelfane^{*1,2}, Rafik Aba¹, Abdelmounaim Chetoui², Mourad Derbal¹, Meftah Tablaoui², Lakhdar Guerbous³, Mohamed Issam Ziane⁴

¹Saad Dahlab University, LASICOM, Physics Dept., Blida, Algeria ²Research Center in Semi-conductor Technology for the Energetic (CRTSE), Boulevard Frantz Fanon, B.P. 399, Algiers, 16000, Algeria. ³Laser Physics Department /Physics Division/Nuclear Research Centre of Algiers (CRNA) 02, Boulevard Frantz Fanon, B.P. 399, Algiers, 16000, Algeria

⁴Higher School of Electrical and Energy Engineering of Oran (ESGEEO), Oran, Algeria

Abstract

A series of monoclinic Lu₂WO₆: x Eu³⁺ (x = 0, 0.1, 0.5, 1, 3 and 5 at.%) phosphors were synthesized by hightemperature solid-state reactions. X-ray diffraction (XRD) patterns photoluminescence (PL) excitation and emission spectra, luminescence decay curves and CIE color coordinates were used to study the phosphors. Efficient energy transfer from the host Lu₂WO₆ to the dopant ions Eu³⁺ was demonstrated under UV excitation at 310 nm, making these phosphors suitable for UV LED excitation. A strong red emission was observed for Lu₂WO₆:Eu³⁺. Concentration quenching of the phosphors is attributed to the interaction between electric dipoles. The Lu₂WO₆:Eu³⁺ phosphors could be a good candidate to be used in WLEDs.

Keywords: Red phosphors, Solid state reaction, Photoluminescence, Eu³⁺, X-ray diffraction



Analysing Malaysian Technology Sector Using Minimum Spanning Tree: A Case of COVID 19

Zurita Ismail^{*1}, Masnida Hussin², Hafizah Bahaluddin³

¹Universiti Putra Malaysia, Institute for Mathematical Research (INSPEM), 43400 UPM, Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia ²Universiti Putra Malaysia, Faculty Computer Science and Information Technology, Department of Communication Technology and Networks, 43400 Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia International Islamic University Malaysia, Department of Computational and Theoretical Sciences, Kullinyah of Science, Bandar Indor

³International Islamic University Malaysia, Department of Computational and Theoretical Sciences, Kulliyyah of Science, Bandar Indera Mahkota Campus, Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah, 25200 Kuantan, Pahang, Malaysia

Abstract

This study examines the structural changes of the companies listed in the technology sector in Bursa Malaysia during the COVID-19 pandemic. During the hours of trading, the stock price fluctuates constantly rather than staying at one fixed level. As a result, it can be challenging to identify which stock is responsible for a network's stocks' performances and behaviours. We present a thorough investigation of 89 stocks in the technology sector listed in Bursa Malaysia from 2019 to 2021 from a financial database called Eikon Datastream that has resulted from the coronavirus outbreak. A Minimum Spanning Tree (MST) was used to construct and visualise the relationship exhibited among stocks in the technology sector. Additionally, betweenness centrality is used to understand the significance of a particular stock within a financial network. Moreover, the results obtained from this study can be used to identify the most influential stocks on the correlation network in order to provide the information needed to enhance the country's technological development capabilities during the pandemic situation.

Keywords: Complex network, Minimum spanning tree (MST), Centrality measures, COVID-19, Financial market


Evaluation of ZnO Nanostructures Growth on Carbon Nanotubes Cotton

Juraina Md Yusof^{1*}, Ismayadi Ismail², Rahimi M Yusop³, Mohd Ali Mat Nong⁴, Siti Zulaika Razali¹

¹Universiti Putra Malaysia, Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology, Nanomaterials and Processing Technology Laboratory, 43400 Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia

²Universiti Putra Malaysia, Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology, Nanomaterials Synthesis and Characterization Laboratory, 43400 Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia

³Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia, Faculty of Science and Technology, School of Chemical Science and Food Technology, 43600 Bangi, Selangor, Malaysia

⁴Universiti Putra Malaysia, Institute of Nanoscience and Nanotechnology, Functional Nanomaterials Devices Laboratory, 43400 Serdang, Selangor, Malaysia

Abstract

Zinc oxide (ZnO) nanostructures were synthesized on carbon nanotubes cotton (CNTC) network as flexible substrate. The impact of synthesis temperature on structural and morphology of zinc oxide nanostructures via chemical bath deposition method was investigated. The CNTC was derived from environmentally friendly hydrocarbon source of waste cooking palm oil. The nanostructures were grown with prior deposition of ZnO buffer layer for growth patterning localization. It was observed that high temperature influenced the morphology of ZNR grown on CNTC and its aspect ratio. In addition, the electrical conductivity of the ZNR/CNTC hybrid was found to be higher than that of the CNTC alone indicates that the hybridized material provides seamless passage that efficiently allow more electron movement passing through it. This hybrid offers promising future as CNTC substate is flexible, readily available hydrocarbon source, and low cost. It also could be a useful material in the applications of solar energy and sensors.

Keywords: Carbon nanotubes cotton, Zinc oxide nanostructures, Chemical bath deposition



Efficient Wastewater Disinfection through Hydroxide Sludge/Hydrochar Composite-Mediated Photo-Fenton Reaction

Zaina Izghri^{*1}, Chaima Sekkouri¹, Fatima Ezzahra Yaacoubi¹, Imad Rabichi¹, Layla El Gaini¹, Abdelaziz Bacaoui¹, Abdelrani Yaacoubi¹

¹Cadi Ayyad University, Faculty of Science Semlalia, Laboratory of Applied Chemistry and Biomass, Department of Chemistry, Marrakech, Morocco

Abstract

The advanced oxidation process was employed to degrade methylene blue (MB) using a hydroxide sludge/hydrochar composite as a catalyst in photo Fenton-like oxidation. The samples before and after the reaction were characterized by XRD, SEM and FTIR techniques. The effect of major parameters, including pH, H_2O_2 concentration and dose of composite on the removal of MB has been studied. The results indicated that the MB decolourisation rate increased with the increase of H_2O_2 concentration and catalyst addition, however, the further increase in H_2O_2 concentration and catalyst dosage could not result in an increase of MB removal efficiency. A high degradation was achieved within 150 min under UV light irradiation at a solution pH of 3.5, a catalyst loading of 2.5 g/L, a H_2O_2 dosage of 1.5 ml/L and MB concentration of 50 mg/L. Recycling studies demonstrated that the composite is a promising heterogeneous photo-Fenton catalyst for longterm removal of MB dye from industrial wastewater.

Keywords: Advanced oxidation process, Dye, Photo-fenton oxidation, UV light irradiation



Repurposing Elastomeric Tubular Membranes and Nanostructured Adhesive Films for Triboelectric Nanogenerators

Galip Yilmaz^{*1}

¹Bayburt University, Electronic and Automation Department, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

The current global energy landscape is encountering growing challenges that demand innovative solutions. Triboelectric Nanogenerators (TENG) represent a versatile and promising approach. This study assesses the feasibility of utilizing discarded elastomeric tubular membranes, specifically inner tubes from tires - a commonplace waste material, as a foundational component in TENG devices. Using these membranes benefits the environment and showcases a commitment to sustainable energy solutions. The effectiveness of triboelectric nanogenerators (TENGs) relies on materials that possess high-friction and flexibility properties. Therefore, researchers are investigating the elastomeric tube membrane, considered as a suitable option due to its ability to bend and produce high-friction. The nanostructured adhesive film is crucial to expanding applications and technological advancements. These films contribute substantially to enhancing the performance of TENG devices. Our investigation reveals a distinctive property: the elastomeric tubular membrane functions solely as an electron acceptor, deviating from the anticipated role as an electron donor reported in previous studies. The findings presents a unique chance to improve and optimize TENG systems. Combining recycled rubber membranes and pioneering adhesive films provides an original, sustainable solution to current energy problems. The insights outlined in this article not only broaden the scope of TENG technology but also promote the implementation of environmentally friendly materials, paving the way for a more eco-friendly and sustainable future.

Keywords: Triboelectric nanogenerators, Elastomeric tubular membranes, Nanostructured adhesive films, Sustainable energy harvesting

1 INTRODUCTION

Environmental issues, power shortages, and the rising usage of tech devices have highlighted the vital need for sustainable energy sources. The planet's struggling with the negative effects of uncontrolled pollution, deforestation, and the changing climate, underlining the importance of ecologically sound energy solutions. The fast expansion of electronic devices has increased our energy demands, and we rely on fossil fuels that emit harmful greenhouse gases. To tackle this problem, we must transition to sustainable energy sources such as wind, solar, and hydropower. These sources are not only kind to the environment but also inexhaustible. It is essential to invest in eco-friendly technologies and promote energy efficiency to combat environmental degradation, lessen our carbon emissions, and secure a sustainable future for generations to come [1-5].

TENG devices present innovative energy solutions and constitute noteworthy advancements in the energy sector. The potential advantages of TENG devices in pursuing sustainable energy are limitless. These compact and adaptable devices exploit mechanical energy from diverse sources, such as human motion, vibrations, and environmental forces, and convert it into electricity. They have a versatile range of applications in wearable technology, self-powered sensors, and even roads or floors, offering a wide selection of energy-harvesting possibilities. They generate green energy, eliminating fossil fuel requirements and establishing themselves as a clean and renewable energy source. Their capacity to provide power in remote or off-grid areas extends access to electricity in underserved regions. Moreover, TENG devices exhibit high efficiency in converting mechanical energy to electricity, mitigating waste, and preserving resources. TENG gadgets are critical in addressing energy challenges by enabling us to harvest power from our surroundings while promoting a more eco-friendly and sustainable tomorrow [1, 3, 6-8].

Triboelectric Nanogenerators (TENGs) operate on a fascinating scientific principle. TENG devices utilize both the triboelectric effect and electrostatic induction to generate power. When two materials with varying electronegativities come into contact and then separate, they produce a potential difference. This difference leads to the transfer of electrons between the materials, accumulating static charges. TENG devices consist of two

distinct materials and utilize a mechanical mechanism that induces repetitive contact and separation. This phenomenon leads to an electron flow, ultimately producing an electric current. Adjusting TENGs can enhance their energy conversion efficacy. Furthermore, their adaptability in designs and applications exhibits potential as a renewable energy harvesting remedy [9-12].

Triboelectric Nanogenerators (TENG) offer an inventive solution for generating sustainable energy. By using upcycled materials, their environmental footprint is further reduced. TENG devices function by utilizing the triboelectric effect, wherein an electrostatic charge is generated as two materials with differing electronegativities come into contact and then part ways. What sets TENG apart, however, is its capacity to convert waste or neglected materials into something practical and valuable. By reusing materials, TENG generates electrical power while also aiding in the conservation of resources and reduction of waste. For instance, materials such as inner tube rubber, frequently discarded and headed to landfills, can be repurposed for TENG construction. These materials are highly flexible and durable, rendering them suitable for use as effective contact materials in devices that produce energy through contact [13-16]. Using materials in this manner is eco-friendly as it decreases waste, preserves valuable resources, and contributes to the environment. The collaboration of TENG and upcycling highlights the potential for unique materials to assist in creating ecologically sustainable energy solutions while decreasing environmental damage. This intelligent approach promotes sustainability and underscores the positive impact of repurposing materials towards a more immaculate and verdant future [5, 16-21].

This study evaluates the feasibility of using discarded elastomeric tubular membranes, specifically inner tubes from tires, as a foundational component in TENG devices. These membranes are a common waste material, and their use benefits the environment while demonstrating a commitment to sustainable energy solutions. The effectiveness of triboelectric nanogenerators (TENGs) depends on materials with high-friction and flexibility properties. Researchers are investigating the elastomeric tube membrane as the most suitable option due to its ability to bend and produce high friction. The nanostructured adhesive film is a crucial component with expanding applications and technological advancements, substantially enhancing the performance of TENG devices. Our investigation has revealed a unique property of the elastomeric tubular membrane. As reported in previous studies, it functions solely as an electron acceptor, which is different from its anticipated role as an electron donor. This significant discovery presents a unique opportunity to improve and optimize TENG systems. Combining recycled rubber membrane with pioneering adhesive films can provide an original and sustainable solution to current energy problems. This article expands the scope of TENG technology and promotes the use of environmentally friendly materials, paving the way for a more sustainable future.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

Figure 1 shows a photograph of the test setup for TENG measurements. A stepping motor driver connected to the Arduino board provided a regular harmonic motion in this context. This regular harmonic motion controlled the force transmitted to the TENG device. The force applied in the test setup was stabilized using a load cell. The voltage generated by the TENG device was monitored and recorded instantaneously using a digital oscilloscope. In addition, the pressure applied to the TENG device was monitored instantaneously on the computer using Javabased software.



Figure 1. Test setup for TENG measurements

Figure 2 shows a picture of the apparatus made of thick paper used to produce the TENG device. This apparatus ensures that different TENG devices were tested under the same mechanical conditions. Figure 2b shows a detailed

Repurposing elastomeric tubular membranes and nanostructured adhesive films for triboelectric nanogenerators

picture of the opened version of the TENG device. This picture shows how the voltage generated by the copper cables through the copper band behind the TENG device was transmitted to the oscilloscope probe. This setup was designed for precise and repeatable measurements and improves the comparability of the performance of TENG devices.



Figure 2. Setup of the TENG device, a) paper apparatus used, and b) cable layout of the TENG device

Figure 3a shows the sanding stage of the sample cut from recycled inner tube rubber. This step was carried out using a P 1200 coarse grit water sander and a metallurgical sanding machine. Figure 3b presents pictures of the Nanostructured Adhesive Film cut to the appropriate dimensions. Details about this film can be obtained from related publications.



Figure 3. Preparation of inner tube and film samples

3 RESULTS

Pictures were taken of the samples using a light microscope to evaluate the sanding process's effect on the surface morphology. Figure 4 shows these pictures. Figure 4a shows an image of the inner surface of the inner tire before sanding. The bright spots on the two surfaces may be caused by talc-like powders that prevent the rubber from sticking during production. These powders could not be removed by normal brushing and washing, which is evident from the picture.

In Figure 4b, the effect of sanding on the surface morphology can be observed. The fibril aggregates formed on the surface can be easily seen. These stacks are separated from each other by deep slits. The formation of these apertures can be explained by the hyperelastic behaviour of the rubber during the sanding stage. These linear lines, which are excessively flexed and abraded, can then lead to the formation of deep crevices at the moment of loosening. This type of morphology demonstrates the need for more systematic research into the sanding of rubber-based materials. The effective increase of the surface area is essential for TENG performance.

Figure 5 shows the voltage values produced by the TENG device. It is determined that it can produce an average value of 9.3 volts. This generated voltage value is suitable for energy harvesting and can be used to meet the energy needs of low-power-consuming devices such as wearable devices. In addition, ways to generate more energy should also be investigated. Research on the effect of different sanding processes and various TENG configurations should be conducted in this context.







Figure 5. Time-dependent voltage graph of TENG device

4 CONCLUSION

In conclusion, this study explores using repurposed materials for developing triboelectric nanogenerators (TENG). The focus is on discarded elastomeric tubular membranes, specifically inner tubes from tires and nanostructured adhesive films. The materials used in this solution offer a sustainable and innovative approach to current energy challenges. Using traditionally discarded items, such as inner tube rubber, as effective contact materials in TENG devices demonstrates their potential. The discovery that the elastomeric tubular membrane only functions as an electron acceptor is unexpected and differs from previous studies. This presents an opportunity to optimize TENG systems and promote the use of environmentally friendly materials for a more sustainable future. The study highlights changes in surface morphology caused by sanding, emphasizing the need for systematic research to increase surface area. This is crucial for enhancing TENG performance. The TENG device developed in this study shows promising results, producing an average voltage of 9.3 volts. This voltage is suitable for powering low-consumption devices such as wearables. The study recommends exploring different sanding processes and TENG configurations to optimize energy production. Collaborating TENG technology with repurposed materials offers a sustainable energy solution and highlights the potential of unconventional materials to contribute to environmentally friendly technology, encouraging a cleaner and greener future.

References

- R. L. Singh and P. K. Singh, "Global environmental problems," Principles and Applications of Environmental Biotechnology for a Sustainable Future, pp. 13–41, 2017, doi: 10.1007/978-981-10-1866-4_2.
- [2] K. O. Yoro and M. O. Daramola, "CO2 emission sources, greenhouse gases, and the global warming effect," Advances in Carbon Capture: Methods, Technologies and Applications, pp. 3–28, Jan. 2020, doi: 10.1016/B978-0-12-819657-1.00001-3.
- [3] M. Asif and T. Muneer, "Energy supply, its demand and security issues for developed and emerging economies," Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews, vol. 11, no. 7, pp. 1388–1413, Sep. 2007, doi: 10.1016/J.RSER.2005.12.004.
- [4] A. Qazi et al., "Towards sustainable energy: A systematic review of renewable energy sources, technologies, and public opinions," IEEE Access, vol. 7, pp. 63837–63851, 2019, doi: 10.1109/ACCESS.2019.2906402.
- [5] A. Q. Al-Shetwi, "Sustainable development of renewable energy integrated power sector: Trends, environmental impacts, and recent challenges," Science of the Total Environment, vol. 822, p. 153645, May 2022, doi: 10.1016/J.SCITOTENV.2022.153645.
- [6] D. Jiang et al., "Advances in triboelectric nanogenerator technology—applications in self-powered sensors, Internet of things, biomedicine, and blue energy," Adv. Compos. Hybrid Mater., vol. 6, no. 2, pp. 1–25, Apr. 2023, doi: 10.1007/S42114-023-00632-5/FIGURES/13.
- [7] L. Liu, X. Guo, and C. Lee, "Promoting smart cities into the 5G era with multi-field Internet of Things (IoT) applications powered with advanced mechanical energy harvesters," Nano Energy, vol. 88, p. 106304, Oct. 2021, doi: 10.1016/J.NANOEN.2021.106304.
- [8] L. Liu, X. Guo, W. Liu, and C. Lee, "Recent progress in the energy harvesting technology—from self-powered sensors to self-sustained IoT, and new applications," Nanomaterials, vol. 11, no. 11, p. 2975, Nov. 2021, doi: 10.3390/NANO11112975.
- [9] F. F. Hatta, M. A. S. Mohammad Haniff, and M. A. Mohamed, "A review on applications of graphene in triboelectric nanogenerators," Int. J. Energy. Res., vol. 46, no. 2, pp. 544–576, Feb. 2022, doi: 10.1002/ER.7245.
- [10] Y. Zhou, W. Deng, J. Xu, and J. Chen, "Engineering Materials at the Nanoscale for Triboelectric Nanogenerators," Cell Rep. Phys. Sci., vol. 1, p. 100142, 2020, doi: 10.1016/j.xcrp.2020.100142.
- [11] L. Xu, M. A. M. Hasan, H. Wu, and Y. Yang, "Electromagnetic-triboelectric hybridized nanogenerators," Energies, vol. 14, no. 19, p. 6219, Sep. 2021, doi: 10.3390/EN14196219.
- [12] W. G. Kim, D. W. Kim, I. W. Tcho, J. K. Kim, M. S. Kim, and Y. K. Choi, "Triboelectric nanogenerator: structure, mechanism, and applications," ACS Nano, vol. 15, no. 1, pp. 258–287, Jan. 2021, doi: 10.1021/ACSNANO.0C09803/ASSET/IMAGES/MEDIUM/NN0C09803_0020.GIF.
- [13] L. S. T. J. Korley, T. H. Epps, B. A. Helms, and A. J. Ryan, "Toward polymer upcycling-adding value and tackling circularity," Science, vol. 373, no. 6550. 2021. doi: 10.1126/science.abg4503.
- [14] X. Zhao, B. Boruah, K. F. Chin, M. Đokić, J. M. Modak, and H. Sen Soo, "Upcycling to sustainably reuse plastics," Advanced Materials, vol. 34, no. 25, 2022. doi: 10.1002/adma.202100843.
- [15] C. Jehanno et al., "Critical advances and future opportunities in upcycling commodity polymers," Nature, vol. 603, no. 7903, 2022, doi: 10.1038/s41586-021-04350-0.
- [16] S. Lee, Y. K. Park, and J. Lee, "Upcycling of plastic and tire waste toward use as modifier for asphalt binder," Energy and Environment, 2023. doi: 10.1177/0958305X231173999.
- [17] S. Zheng, M. Liao, Y. Chen, and M. A. Brook, "Dissolving used rubber tires," Green Chemistry, vol. 22, no. 1, 2020, doi: 10.1039/c9gc03545a.
- [18] K. Formela and J. T. Haponiuk, "Curing characteristics, mechanical properties and morphology of butyl rubber filled with ground tire rubber (GTR)," Iranian Polymer Journal (English Edition), vol. 23, no. 3, 2014, doi: 10.1007/s13726-013-0214-7.
- [19] G. Genc and N. Akkus, "Application oriented recycling and machinability of waste bio-composite materials," Turkish Journal of Materials, vol. 3, no. 2, pp. 58–60, Dec. 2018, doi: 10.1002/app.21847.
- [20] C. Vezzoli and E. Manzini, "Design for environmental sustainability," 2008. doi: 10.1007/978-1-84800-163-3.
- [21] F. Giudice, G. La Rosa, and A. Risitano, "Materials selection in the life-cycle design process: A method to integrate mechanical and environmental performances in optimal choice," Mater. Des., vol. 26, no. 1, 2005, doi: 10.1016/j.matdes.2004.04.006.



Size Separation and Bulk Densification Analysis of UHMWPE Powder Under Vibration

Galip Yilmaz^{*1}

¹Bayburt University, Electronic and Automation Department, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

Ultra-high molecular Weight Polyethylene (UHMWPE) is a type of plastic with impressive features useful in diverse industrial practices. Managing UHMWPE powder might be problematic due to bulk density and particle size distribution problems. Our research focuses on the behavior of UHMWPE powder when exposed to controlled vibration. It was examined whether the vibration leads to volume concentration and the separation of particle sizes in the UHMWPE powder. The samples from the lower and upper areas of the vibrated powder were compared with non-vibrated samples. Subsequently, image processing techniques were utilized to examine the distribution of particles and changes in size. Our observations demonstrate that vibration causes a decrease in bulk volume, which signifies a reduction in large empty spaces in the powder. Non-vibrated samples have a reasonably consistent particle size distribution. However, when there is vibration, a small amount of larger particles move toward the upper region, and a small amount of smaller particles move toward the lower region, causing interesting variations in particle size distribution.

Keywords: UHMWPE powder, Vibration, Size separation, Bulk density, Powder behavior

1 INTRODUCTION

Ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene (UHMWPE) is a thermoplastic with exceptional properties, making it appropriate for various industrial and commercial applications [1-4]. Its high molecular weight gives it notable strength while exhibiting low friction, which is ideal for components requiring smooth movement, such as conveyor system bearings [5-7]. UHMWPE exhibits remarkably high impact resistance, even at low temperatures, making it appropriate for sudden shocks or impacts [8-10].

Ultra-High Molecular Weight Polyethylene (UHMWPE) is typically found in powder form, attributable to its unique molecular characteristics. UHMWPE features an exceptionally high molecular weight, commonly ranging from 1 to 9 million g/mol. These substantial molecular weights are responsible for UHMWPE's outstanding properties. Nonetheless, these characteristics also bring about inherent processing difficulties. UHMWPE still preserves its solid-state characteristics even at temperatures surpassing its melting point due to its molecular weight that exceeds 0.5 million g/mol. Consequently, traditional melt processing methods, such as extrusion, are infeasible for this material [4, 8, 11, 12]. The lengthy molecular chains of UHMWPE and its insufficient inter-particle diffusion hinder its ability to flow, which is essential for pellet production.

Furthermore, the high viscosity and long relaxation time of UHMWPE hinder its melt processability, making the conversion of neat UHMWPE powders into pellets via regular extrusion quite challenging. UHMWPE is most frequently dispersed and processed in the form of powder. There are ongoing efforts to design pioneering methodologies and technologies, such as applying specific tapered dies and air cooling, to surmount these obstacles and facilitate the production of UHMWPE pellets [12, 13]. This transformation could not only enhance the handling of the substance but also expand its utility in several industries. Manufacturing powder handling presents significant challenges from dust generation, contamination, flowability, segregation, and safety concerns.

Following the production of UHMWPE powder, it undergoes natural movements and vibrations during packaging, storage, post-sale transportation, subsequent storage, and transfer to the production line. Such physical effects present a potential risk of vibration-induced size separation on the granular media of UHMWPE. This type of separation is referred to as the "Brazil nut effect," where larger particles rise while smaller particles fall [14-16]. This may result in functionally graded properties with favorable or unfavorable mechanical characteristics. A relevant literature search has not identified any publications concerning this phenomenon in UHMWPE or other

polyethylene groups. Therefore, this large gap in the literature needs to be addressed, and UHMWPE powder convection needs to be better understood.

This investigation examines whether applying vibration to UHMWPE powder results in size separation. Using the established experimental setup, we collected samples in a repeatable manner from vibrated UHMWPE powder. These samples were taken from a lower and an upper region and were compared with those that did not undergo any vibration.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

2.1 Vibration Setup

Fifty grams of UHMWPE (GUR grade) were filled into a laboratory graduated cylinder for the vibration experiments that were performed using a TM 150 model universal vibration system that the GUNT Hamburg company manufactured. This particular system was selected to ensure the reproducibility of the vibration tests. The graduated cylinder is shown in Figure 1a. Figure 1b illustrates the configuration utilized for the vibration experiments. The spring, located 65 cm away, and the unbalanced weight exciter, located 60 cm away, were positioned at the far right of the rigid bar to optimize vibration energy outputs. Adjacent to the exciter, 55 cm from the bearing, the graduated cylinder containing UHMWPE powder was fixed to be exposed to the vibration energy. The sole consideration throughout the left-end rotation was the vertical vibration of the rigid bar. Owing to the mechanism of the rigid bar, the graduated cylinder's horizontal displacement exhibited insignificance, being significantly below the micrometer scale, establishing its sole vertical motion. The frequency of the rigid bar's vibrations and the graduated cylinder's amplitude were measured by a proximity sensor positioned beneath the cylinder.



Figure 1. a) Filling the graduated cylinder with UHMWPE powder and b) the vibration test setup

2.2 Vibration Experiments

After filling the UHMWPE powder into the graduated cylinder, it was subjected to vibration for 5 minutes. The vibration frequency was set at 40.0 Hz. Subsequently, the vibration amplitude was measured as 183 μ m using a vibration sensor. These values calculated the dimensionless vibration intensity as 1.15 (-). The calculation method was obtained from a relevant publication in the literature [3]. It has been noted in the literature that a vibration intensity exceeding 1.0 is a crucial parameter for granule convection to take place [3, 17, 18].

Following the vibration, samples were obtained from the lower and upper regions using a custom-designed probe. The probe was designed with a single wire composed of a rigid steel alloy, inserted into a transparent plastic tube 4mm in diameter, with a silicone plug attached to its end. Utilizing the wire's independent movement permitted manual opening and closure of the plug. The probe could be inserted into the graduated tube up to the base, allowing for the extraction of samples from the desired regions. Pictures of the usage of the probe are provided in Figure 2.



Figure 2. Custom-made sample collection probe images, (a) including the closed position displaying immersion, (b) the probe opened for sample collection, (c) a close-up of the probe in the open position, and (d) the probe in the closed position after sample collection

2.3 Image Processing

The investigation employed ImageJ version 1.53t, a publicly accessible and cost-free software compatible with Java. In the first stage, pixel measurements were transformed to micrometers using a calibration image featuring a small ruler. A ruler was drawn on the image using the Line tool, and the global "Set Scale" functionality, accessible from the Analyze menu, was utilized to set the scale. The image for particle analysis was accessed and converted to 8-bit. Following this, background subtraction was performed using the sliding paraboloid function. A binary image was created, and the Watershed feature was employed to separate adjacent particles, defining their boundaries. Using a brush tool, particles bordering each other were removed, and colored in black ink, with minor artifacts also erased. Finally, the "Analyze Particles" function in the Analyze menu was used to calculate the particles' quantity and corresponding surface areas.

The particle diameter was calculated using the projected area methodology due to the irregular shape of the particles. A representative image area was chosen, and the software measured each particle's projected area. The projected area was converted using the formula: Diameter= $2 \times \text{sqrt}[\text{projected area}/\pi]$ to obtain the diameter. The size of each particle was measured, and the mean diameter was obtained by adding all the measurements and dividing by the total number of particles analyzed.

3 RESULTS

Table 1 provides the densification values based on bulk volume and vibration. Vibration led to a decrease in bulk volume, from 98 cm³ to 90 cm³, indicating the presence of significant voids within the powder before vibration. Figure 3 illustrates this volume decrease, including degree lines aiding in thoroughly examining the volume change.

ble	e 1. Bulk volume and bulk density of sam		
	Sample condition	Bulk Volume (cm ³)	Bulk Density (g/cm ³)
	Before	98	0.510
	vibration		
	After	90	0.555
	vibration		

Table 1. Bulk volume an	nd bulk density of samples
-------------------------	----------------------------



Figure 3. Reduction in volume due to densification of UHMWPE powder inside the graduated cylinder after vibration

Particles collected using a custom-made sampling probe were analyzed using a light microscope. The particle images captured with the microscope are presented in Figure 4. Figure 4a displays unvibrated particles from the sample. Figure 4b shows particles from the vibration-exposed sample removed from the base, whereas Figure 4c illustrates the particles from the top surface after the vibration procedure. By the naked eye, no significant differences in particle sizes were found in the images, indicating the absence of significant particle convection. It would have been visibly evident if UHMWPE powder had been substantially segregated.



Figure 4. The microscope images of UHMWPE powders, (a) sample taken without any treatment, (b) sample taken from the base after vibration, and (c) sample taken from the surface after vibration (the scale bar for all images is $500 \ \mu m$)

The images were examined for particle distribution using ImageJ software. The findings are displayed in Table 2 and Figure 5. The particle distribution of the sample, which was not subjected to vibration, closely matches the literature data [3]. Table 2 shows a slight variation in particle sizes owing to vibration. The mean size, previously $87 \mu m$, rose to 118 μm in the upper zone due to vibration. By contrast, it diminished to $82 \mu m$ in the lower zone. A graphical presentation of particle sizes is available in Figure 5. Specifically, in Figure 5b, the surge in tiny particles and the surfacing of big particles can be deemed significant.

Additionally, a growth in small particles in the lower region can be detected. Some small particles are seen to migrate to both the upper and lower regions preferentially. The impact of calcium stearate in UHMWPE on this phenomenon should also be examined in future research studies.

Table 2. The average particle sizes and standard deviation values for the samples (units for all are µm)

	No vibration	Vibrated from top	Vibrated from bottom
Average	87	118	82
Standard deviation	28	42	33



Figure 5. Particle distributions for (a) the sample taken without any treatment, (b) the sample taken from the surface after vibration, and (c) the sample taken from the base

4 CONCLUSION

This investigation analyzed the behavior of UHMWPE powder when exposed to controlled vibration. Experiments were conducted to explore how vibrations affect this thermoplastic material with the aid of image analysis. The results highlighted a significant decrease in the bulk volume of the UHMWPE powder after vibration, indicating that larger empty spaces within the material had been compressed. Some slight changes in particle size distribution in the vibrated samples were observed. Larger particles migrated upwards, while smaller particles descended, indicating a degree of the "Brazil nut effect" in UHMWPE. These findings have implications for industries that utilize UHMWPE powder, as it can enhance how they manage, store, and apply it. The findings indicate scope for further research, particularly examining how substances like calcium stearate and diverse vibration conditions impact outcomes and identifying techniques for reducing size discrepancies.

Acknowledgments

I would like to thank Bayburt University manufacturing laboratory staff for their help in preparing the experimental setup.

References

- [1] S. L. Wu et al., "Nascent disentangled UHMWPE: Origin, synthesis, processing, performances and applications," Eur. Polym. J., vol. 184, p. 111799, Feb. 2023, doi: 10.1016/J.EURPOLYMJ.2022.111799.
- [2] H. S. Vadivel, Z. Al-Maqdasi, L. Pupure, R. Joffe, M. Kalin, and N. Emami, "Time-dependent properties of newly developed multiscale UHMWPE composites," Polym. Test, vol. 105, p. 107400, Jan. 2022, doi: 10.1016/J.POLYMERTESTING.2021.107400.
- [3] G. Yilmaz and E. Uslu, "A new approach for high-quality production of UHMWPE by applying powder vibration densification before sintering," Powder Technol., vol. 427, 2023, doi: 10.1016/j.powtec.2023.118741.
- [4] G. Yılmaz, H. Yang, and L. S. Turng, "Injection molding of delamination-free ultra-high-molecularweight polyethylene.," Polym. Eng. Sci., vol. 59, no. 11, pp. 2313–2322, Nov. 2019, doi: 10.1002/PEN.25234.

- [5] H. McKellop, F. Shen, B. Lu, P. Campbell, and R. Salovey, "Development of an extremely wear-resistant ultra high molecular weight polythylene for total hip replacements," Journal of Orthopaedic Research, vol. 17, no. 2, pp. 157–167, Mar. 1999, doi: 10.1002/jor.1100170203.
- [6] V. Saikko, O. Morad, and R. Viitala, "Effect of Sliding Velocity on UHMWPE and VEXLPE Friction Against CoCr in Multidirectional, Serum Lubricated Conditions," J. Tribol., vol. 145, no. 3, 2023, doi: 10.1115/1.4056224.
- [7] J. Zhen et al., "MoS2/CF synergistic enhancement to improve the friction and wear properties of UHMWPE composites," Tribol Int., vol. 179, 2023, doi: 10.1016/j.triboint.2022.108097.
- [8] G. Yılmaz, T. Ellingham, and L. S. Turng, "Injection and injection compression molding of ultra-highmolecular weight polyethylene powder.," Polym. Eng. Sci., vol. 59, no. s2, pp. E170–E179, Mar. 2019, doi: 10.1002/PEN.25020.
- [9] L. G. Amurin et al., "Multifunctionality in ultra high molecular weight polyethylene nanocomposites with reduced graphene oxide: Hardness, impact and tribological properties," Polymer (Guildf), vol. 240, 2022, doi: 10.1016/j.polymer.2021.124475.
- [10] A. J. Hsieh, T. L. Chantawansri, W. Hu, J. Cain, and J. H. Yu, "New insight into the influence of molecular dynamics of matrix elastomers on ballistic impact deformation in UHMWPE composites," Polymer (Guildf), vol. 95, pp. 52–61, Jul. 2016, doi: 10.1016/J.POLYMER.2016.04.048.
- [11] H. Yang et al., "Thermal, rheological, and mechanical characterization of compression and injection molded ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene, high density polyethylene, and their blends," J. Appl. Polym. Sci., vol. 140, no. 7, p. e53484, Feb. 2023, doi: 10.1002/APP.53484.
- [12] H. Yang et al., "Pelletizing ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene (UHMWPE) powders with a novel tapered die and addition of high density polyethylene (HDPE): Processing, morphology, and properties," Polymer (Guildf), vol. 256, p. 125171, Sep. 2022, doi: 10.1016/J.POLYMER.2022.125171.
- [13] S. K. Bhateja and E. H. Andrews, "Thermal, mechanical, and rheological behavior of blends of ultrahigh and normal-molecular-weight linear polyethylenes," Polym. Eng. Sci., vol. 23, no. 16, Nov. 1983, doi: 10.1002/pen.760231606.
- [14] J. B. Knight, E. E. Ehrichs, V. Y. Kuperman, J. K. Flint, H. M. Jaeger, and S. R. Nagel E, "Experimental study of granular convection," Phys. Rev. E Stat. Phys. Plasmas. Fluids Relat. Interdiscip. Topics, vol. 54, no. 5, 1996, doi: 10.1103/physreve.54.5726.
- [15] J. B. Knight, H. M. Jaeger, and S. R. Nagel, "Vibration-induced size separation in granular media: The convection connection," Phys. Rev. Lett., vol. 70, no. 24, 1993, doi: 10.1103/PhysRevLett.70.3728.
- [16] F. Rietz and R. Stannarius, "On the brink of jamming: Granular convection in densely filled containers," Phys. Rev. Lett., vol. 100, no. 7, 2008, doi: 10.1103/PhysRevLett.100.078002.
- [17] H. Yang, S. Li, Z. Li, and F. Ji, "Experimental and numerical study on the packing densification of metal powder with gaussian distribution," Metals (Basel), vol. 10, no. 11, 2020, doi: 10.3390/met10111401.
- [18] S. Nadler, O. Bonnefoy, J.-M. Chaix, G. Thomas, and J.-L. Gelet, "Parametric study of horizontally vibrated grain packings," The European Physical Journal E, vol. 34, no. 7, 2011, doi: 10.1140/epje/i2011-11066-y.



Stochastic Optimization in Renewable Energy Systems: A Comprehensive Literature Review

Gurkan Guven Guner^{*1}

¹University of Turkish Aeronautical Association, Department of Industrial Engineering, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

As the world grapples with the challenges of climate change and energy sustainability, renewable energy sources have emerged as a pivotal solution. Stochastic optimization techniques have gained prominence in optimizing renewable energy systems, addressing the inherent uncertainties associated with sources. This literature review synthesizes existing research, delving into the application of stochastic optimization methods in the realm of renewable energy. The review begins by elucidating the critical role of renewable energy in mitigating climate change and ensuring a sustainable energy future. It then navigates through the fundamental concepts of stochastic optimization, highlighting its relevance in handling the variability and uncertainty inherent in renewable energy generation. Various stochastic optimization models, including scenario-based, robust, and chance-constrained approaches, are discussed in detail. The study identifies key trends in the field, emphasizing the integration of advanced computational methods, machine learning algorithms, and big data analytics to enhance the accuracy and efficiency of stochastic optimization models. Furthermore, the review outlines the practical applications of these models in optimizing renewable energy systems. In addition to summarizing the current state of research, this review critically analyses the challenges faced by researchers and practitioners, such as model complexity, data limitations, and computational costs. It also identifies potential avenues for future research, emphasizing the need for interdisciplinary collaboration between experts in renewable energy, operations research, and data science. By providing insights into the advancements and challenges in stochastic optimization techniques, this review aims to contribute to the ongoing efforts aimed at building a sustainable and resilient energy future.

Keywords: Energy system, Literature review, Renewable energy, Stochastic optimization, Uncertainty



New Permittivity-Moisture Curve for Moisture Evaluation within Soil Samples

Hafize Hasar^{*1}, Ugur Cem Hasar², Yunus Kaya³

¹Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry of the Republic of Turkey, Directorate of Provincial Agriculture and Forestry, Gaziantep, Turkey ²Gaziantep University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Gaziantep, Turkey ³Bayburt University, Department of Electricity and Energy, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

A new permittivity-moisture curve is devised for predicting moisture level within soil samples. For this goal, three soil samples from the city Gaziantep in Turkey with different conductivities (95.70 mS/m, 341 mS/m, and 490 mS/m) and different pH values (7.62, 8.14, and 7.82) were utilized. First, their permittivities (with different volumetric water contents θ_V) were measured using a coaxial measurement cell we recently utilized in our recent studies. Next, the Debye model with three poles was implemented for each extracted permittivities. After, a calibration curve with linear dependence, which relates the volumetric water content to the real part of complex permittivities, was utilized for prediction. Predicted results were compared with those predicted by the Topp's model and other predicting models in the literature. Relatively different from our recent studies which were performed at 2 GHz and 3 GHz frequencies, it has been observed that the volumetric values predicted by our model are close to measured ones at lower frequencies (e.g., 500 MHz).

Keywords: Calibration curve, Soil, Permittivity, Volumetric moisture content



Evaluation of Passive Radiator Structures in Low-Frequency Radio Astronomy Arrays from the Perspective of Active Antenna Design Methods

Mertcan Altikardesler*1, Salih Mehmed Bostan1

¹Bursa Technical University, Department of Electrical-Electronics Engineering, Bursa, Turkey

Abstract

Contemporary communication applications, in line with the requirements of high bandwidth and compact design, predominantly favor Ultra High Frequency (UHF) and higher frequency bands. However, the unique characteristics of sub-UHF frequency bands play a significant role in maintaining interest in these frequency ranges. Research conducted in these bands, especially scientific studies such as ionospheric radar and low-frequency radio astronomy (<100MHz), are observed to extensively utilize the relevant frequency bands. In these frequency ranges, it has been determined that the physical size of antennas increases with the decrease in frequency, and the mechanical structure of antennas becomes more complex for applications requiring high bandwidth. To solve this problem, the design of active antenna structures containing transistor-based pre-amplifiers is proposed in the literature. Significantly reducing antenna sizes is possible by using the logic of active circuits directly connected to passive radiator terminals. This study evaluates electrically short passive radiator structures used in various low-frequency radio astronomy antenna arrays, in terms of active antenna design methods, within the 20 MHz - 50 MHz frequency range.

Keywords: Low frequency radio astronomy, Active antenna

1 INTRODUCTION

Antennas are considered one of the most critical components of wireless communication applications due to their ability to convert electrical signals into electromagnetic waves and vice versa. Today, many wireless communication applications require high bandwidth and compact design. These demands result in the use of high frequencies, and therefore, most wireless communication applications are concentrated in the ultra-high frequency (UHF) bands of the electromagnetic spectrum (>300MHz) and above. In addition to these bands, the unique characteristics of sub-UHF bands ensure the continued interest in these frequencies. For example, signals propagating in the HF band reflect off free electrons in the ionosphere layer, unlike other frequency bands [1] (excluding other ionospheric reflection mechanisms such as diffraction and scattering). Due to this characteristic, the high-frequency band is frequently used in the observation of the ionosphere and ionospheric phenomena. Another application that extensively uses HF and early VHF bands is low-frequency radio astronomy (<100MHz) [2]. In the relevant bands, there are studies on examining the characteristics and behaviors of solar system objects, radio-transient universe studies, and research on the high-z universe [3]. Today, there are various array antenna projects for low-frequency radio astronomy, such as LWA in New Mexico, LOFAR in Europe, GURT in Ukraine, and SKA in Australia [4].

Low-frequency applications come with a set of challenges. As the frequency decreases, the wavelength increases, and correspondingly, the physical size of antennas also increases. For instance, the antenna sizes required for the high-frequency band (HF) can reach tens of meters. Another problem is the increased complexity of antenna structures when designed for broadband use, leading to higher maintenance and production costs. As a solution to this problem, active antenna structures are proposed in the literature. Active antennas designed with transistor-based preamplifiers can significantly reduce the size of antennas used for reception in the Very High Frequency (VHF) band and lower bands. Thus, active antennas capable of operating as receivers from the Low Frequency (LF) band to the VHF band, with sizes not exceeding a few meters, are used in applications such as ionospheric observations and low-frequency radio astronomy.

In radio astronomy, the beam width of an antenna is used to determine the angular resolution of a radio telescope. The angular resolution of antennas is directly proportional to the wavelength and inversely proportional to their physical size. Therefore, the process of radio astronomy, which began in 1932 with Karl Jansky's discovery of

signals with a 15-meter wavelength, continued at higher frequencies due to the practical difficulties of designing antennas with low angular resolution at low frequencies and the scientists' demand for precise resolution [5]. In subsequent years, the technique of interferometry, which allows the synchronized use of multiple antennas, and the 'Self-Calibration' signal processing technique, which eliminates the disruptive effects of the ionosphere, were developed. These advancements have reinvigorated low-frequency radio astronomy studies. Additionally, the requirement of astrophysical image calibration to resolve the diffraction effects of the ionosphere has also created a suitable platform for studying the ionosphere [5].

In low-frequency radio astronomy studies, the effective area of antenna arrays is expanded using the interferometry technique, thereby achieving more precise resolution. However, this increases the number of antennas required, significantly raising the cost of commercially purchasing antennas. Therefore, antennas used in low-frequency radio astronomy arrays are typically designed to be project-specific and cost-effective [6]. Current low-frequency radio astronomy arrays design different types of passive radiator structures with various active circuit design methods to achieve the optimum solution at a low cost according to their scientific requirements. In this study, passive radiator structures used in various low-frequency radio astronomy antenna arrays in the HF and early VHF (30-50MHz) bands will be evaluated in terms of active antenna design methods.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

Low-frequency active receiving antennas consist of four main components: the passive radiator, active circuit, antenna frame, and ground screen. The electrical characteristics of the soil in the areas where antennas are installed can vary significantly depending on the moisture and water content it contains. To reduce this variability of the soil, some low-frequency radio astronomy arrays in the literature have used ground screens at the expense of increased cost. While antenna arrays like LWA and LOFAR use ground screens, the GURT array has not used any due to the high conductivity of the ground on which it is situated [7].



Figure 1. Images and NEC models of antennas used in various low-frequency radio astronomy arrays [4]

Signals produced by galactic sources or reflected from the ionosphere in an ionospheric radar study are received by passive radiators and transmitted to the active circuit. Figure 1 shows the antennas used in various low-frequency radio astronomy arrays and their NEC (Numerical Electromagnetics Code) models.

In low-frequency radio astronomy applications, antennas are positioned in an interferometric arrangement to provide precise angular resolution. Signals from individual antennas are digitally combined at phase array stations, and electronic beam-forming techniques allow for simultaneous observation of multiple areas of the sky [8]. In such an application, it is important for individual antennas to have wide beam angles to cover a large sky area. Figure 2 visualizes the beam widths of an antenna element, a station, and a station array.

In applications requiring a wide frequency range, passive radiator structures are becoming increasingly complex. This leads to higher production and maintenance costs and more difficult antenna installations. Especially in low-frequency radio astronomy applications, the use of hundreds or even thousands of antennas is required. This necessitates the design of antennas as electrically short with simple geometries. In low-frequency radio astronomy studies, inclined dipole structures are often preferred for easy setup and wide beam widths. The inclined design of the dipole arms is used to increase the beam widths of the antennas.



Figure 2. The beam widths of an antenna element, an antenna station, and a station array [8]

In dipole antenna designs, the method used to transfer the received signal to the circuit directly affects the passive radiator designs. The transfer of signals from the passive radiator to the active circuit can be done using two different methods. These methods are power matching [6] and voltage sampling [9]. The chosen method plays a significant role in determining the shape of the passive radiator. In the power matching method, the input impedance of the passive radiator is matched with that of the active circuit. This ensures maximum power transfer from the radiators to the circuit. In the second method, the active circuit is designed with a high input impedance. The voltage induced in the passive radiators is taken into the circuit over the high input impedance of the active circuit functions like a voltage amplifier. In this case, very little power is transferred to the circuit, but the fact that the information is in the voltage, not the power, makes this insignificant [10].

Dipole antenna structures are antennas with low bandwidth. Additionally, designing these antennas as electrically short structures significantly increases their capacitive impedance. This appears to be a disadvantage for the power matching method, which requires impedance matching over a wide frequency range. However, the strong galactic noise at the relevant frequencies allows the power matching method to function despite a certain degree of impedance mismatch [6].

In reference [6], the signal intensity emitted from galactic sources in the 10 MHz - 100 MHz range has been calculated using the Cane model [11]. The Cane model represents the minimum limit of the signal captured in galactic noise [6]. It has been determined that the galactic noise levels in the 20 MHz - 50 MHz range presented in the International Telecommunication Union's document ITU-R P.372-15 [12] are consistent with the Cane model for low-gain antennas. Therefore, for ease of processing, the calculation method given in document [12] has been used to determine the signal level.



Figure 3. Environmental noise strengths for different geographical regions [12]

Area	с	d
City (A)	76.8	27.7
Residential (B)	72.5	27.7
Rural (C)	67.2	27.7
Quiet Rural (D)	53.6	28.6
Galactic (E)	52.0	23.0

 Table 1. For Formula (1), the values of c and d are given in [12]

The frequency-dependent external noise levels in different geographical regions are obtained using the constants in Table 1. This calculation is performed using the following formulas:

$$F_a = c - d\log(f) \tag{1}$$

In equation (1), the external galactic noise figure F_a in dB is calculated. Here, c and d are the constants in Table 1, and f represents the frequency in MHz.

$$T_{sky} = (f_a - 1)T_0$$
⁽²⁾

$$S_{sky} = kT_{sky}$$
(3)

In equations (2) and (3), the equivalent galactic noise temperature T_{sky} in K and the spectral power density of galactic noise S_{sky} in W/Hz are calculated. Here, T_0 is the reference temperature value, f_a is the linear external noise factor, and k is the Boltzmann constant.

In low-gain antennas, when galactic noise completely fills the antenna beam, the spectral power density of the galactic noise signal received at the terminals of the passive radiator is independent of the antenna's radiation pattern [6]. In active antenna designs using the power matching method, the spectral power density of the signal received at the terminals of the active circuit is expressed by the following equation.

$$S_{ac} = e_r S_{sky} [1 - |\Gamma|^2]$$
⁽⁴⁾

Here, S_{ac} represents the spectral power density of the galactic noise received at the terminals of the active circuit in W/Hz, e_r represents the efficiency of the passive radiator structure and Γ represents the reflection coefficient. When the reflection coefficient is associated with the Voltage Standing Wave Ratio (VSWR), equation (4) is expressed as follows.

$$\Gamma = \left| \frac{\text{VSWR-1}}{\text{VSWR+1}} \right| \tag{5}$$

$$S_{ac} = e_r S_{sky} \left[1 - \left| \frac{VSWR - 1}{VSWR + 1} \right|^2 \right]$$
(6)

In the case of using the voltage sampling method in active antenna design, the goal is to transfer maximum voltage from the antenna terminals to circuit terminals. In this method, the voltage value induced by the spectral power density of the galactic noise in the passive radiator is found using the following formula.

$$V_{RAD} = \sqrt{4R_{RAD}bS_{sky}}$$
(7)

Here, V_{RAD} , represents the voltage induced in the passive radiator in V, R_{RAD} , represents the resistance of the passive radiator impedance in Ω and b represents the bandwidth in Hz.

When passive radiators, such as dipole structures, are designed with electrically short lengths, they exhibit a capacitive impedance characteristic. In the voltage sampling method, the high input impedance of the active circuit acts like a capacitive divider with the impedance of the passive radiator. This is a significant factor affecting the

signal transfer from the passive radiators to the active circuit and is an important characteristic that must be considered in antenna design.



Figure 4. The electrical equivalent of an electrically short passive radiator connected to an active circuit with high input impedance [9]

In active antenna design, when the voltage sampling method is used, the voltage transfer between the passive radiator and the active circuit is expressed by the following equation.

$$V_{AC} = V_{RAD} \frac{Z_{AC}}{Z_{RAD} + Z_{AC}}$$
(6)

Here, V_{AC} is the voltage received at the terminals of the active circuit in V, V_{RAD} is the voltage induced at the terminals of the passive radiator in V, Z_{AC} is the impedance of the active circuit in Ω and Z_{RAD} is the impedance of the passive radiator in Ω . The system operates as a capacitive divider under the following condition [13].

$$j\omega C_{RAD}R_{AC} \gg 1$$
 (7)

$$V_{AC} = V_{RAD} \frac{c_{RAD}}{c_{RAD} + c_{AC}}$$
(8)

In this study, two different antenna topologies designed as electrically short structures are examined: the Inverted-V dipole structure used in the LOFAR project and the Tied Fork dipole structure used in the LWA project. Both antenna structures will be evaluated in terms of power matching and voltage sampling methods. These antennas are designed with equal arm lengths, placed at the same height, and have equal inclination angles, all on a perfectly conductive ground.



Figure 5. Inverted-V dipole antenna (left) and tied fork dipole antenna (right)

3 RESULTS

The following figures present the graph of the frequency-dependent VSWR (Voltage Standing Wave Ratio) values for the Inverted-V dipole and Tied-Fork dipole antenna structures, both designed as electrically short structures. This graph demonstrates how the VSWR values of both types of passive radiators vary within the specified frequency range.



Equation (4) indicates that as the VSWR (Voltage Standing Wave Ratio) value increases, the spectral power density of the galactic noise received at the terminals of the active circuit decreases.

In the design of active antennas using the voltage sampling method, the resistance and reactance values of passive radiators become significant. According to equation (5), as the resistance value increases, the voltage induced by galactic noise signals in passive radiator structures also increases. Figures 8 and 9 show the resistance values of the Inverted-V and Tied-Fork dipole structures, which are designed as electrically short structures.



In the voltage sampling method, the voltage induced in passive radiators is transferred to the circuit over a high impedance. Electrically short dipole structures can be modeled with a capacitive impedance, as shown in Figure 4. In such circuits, Field-Effect Transistors (FETs) are often preferred as the first element. When condition (7) is met, a capacitive divider is formed between the input capacitance of the FET elements and the capacitance of the passive radiator structure. In this case, an increase in the capacitance of the passive radiator leads to higher voltage levels being transferred to the circuit. Figures 10 and 11 show the reactance values of the Inverted-V and Tied-Fork structures, respectively.



4 CONCLUSION

In this study, the Inverted-V passive radiator structure used in the LOFAR antenna array and the Tied-Fork passive radiator structure used in the LWA antenna array examined in terms of active antenna design methods. It found that when the power matching method is used, the Tied-Fork structure allows for higher power levels to be received at the terminals of the active circuit. In the case of using the voltage sampling method, it found that the voltage values induced in the Inverted-V and Tied-Fork structures designed with equal dimensions are almost equal, but the voltage level transmitted to the circuit is higher in the Tied-Fork antenna topology. According to equation (8), if the input capacitance of the active circuit is designed to be much smaller than the capacitance of the passive radiator, the Inverted-V passive radiator structure can be preferred for ease of installation and production.

Acknowledgments

This study has been supported by the Bursa Technical University Scientific Research Projects Coordination Unit (BAP) under the project number 220Y031 and by The Scientific and Technological Research Council of Turkey (TÜBİTAK) under the grant number1002 Short Term R&D Funding Program with the project number 122E080.

References

- [1] M. C. Kelley, The Earth's Ionosphere (Second Edition). Elsevier Inc, 2009.
- [2] S. W. Ellingson, "Antennas for the next generation of low-frequency radio telescopes," IEEE Transactions on Antennas and Propagation, vol. 53, no. 8, pp. 2480–2489, 2005.
- [3] T. E. Clarke, "Scientific requirements for the long wavelength array," Memo 117 ver. 2.3, Nov. 19, 2007, Long Wavelength Array Memo Series.
- [4] J. N Girard, P. Zarka, M. Tagger, L. Denis, D. Charrier, A. A. Konovalenko, and F. Boone, "Antenna design and distribution of the LOFAR super station," Comptes Rendus Physique, vol. 13, no. 1, pp. 33–37, 2012.

- [5] B. C. Hicks et al., "A wide-band, active antenna system for long wavelength radio astronomy," Publications of the Astronomical Society of the Pacific, vol. 124, no. 920, pp. 1090, 2012.
- [6] S. W.Ellingson, "Receivers for low-frequency radio astronomy," In From Clark Lake to the Long Wavelength Array: Bill Erickson's Radio Science, vol. 345, pp. 321, 2005.
- [7] A. A. Konovalenko, I. S. Falkovich, A. A. Gridin, P. L. Tokarsky, and S. N. Yerin, "UWB active antenna array for low frequency radio astronomy," in 2012 6th International Conference on Ultrawideband and Ultrashort Impulse Signals, pp. 39–43, IEEE, 2012.
- [8] R. C. Vermeulen, "LOFAR, the low frequency array," in Ground-based and Airborne Telescopes IV, vol. 8444, pp. 819–824, SPIE, 2012.
- [9] T. McDonald, "Modeling of system performance for small broadband HF active antennas," in 2012 Loughborough Antennas & Propagation Conference, (LAPC), pp. 1–4, IEEE, 2012.
- [10] W. A. Van Cappellen, M. Ruiter, and G. W. Kant, "Low band antenna; architectural design document," ASTRON, LOFAR Project, 2007.
- [11] H. V. Cane, "Spectra of the non-thermal radio radiation from the galactic polar regions," Monthly Notices of the Royal Astronomical Society, vol. 189, no. 3, pp. 465–478, 1979.
- [12] Radio Noise, Recommendation ITU-R P.372-15. 2022.
- [13] Y., Yang, H. Gao, D. Mo, H. Chen, and H. Zhao, "A low frequency short active monopole antenna design and sensitivity analysis," IEEE Transactions on Antennas and Propagation, vol. 66, no. 9, pp. 4496–4502, 2018.



Analysing Eastern Anatolian Region Food Recipes with Graph Database

Selin Irmak Akpinar^{*1}, Yunus Emre Sepetci¹, Bulent Tugrul¹

¹Ankara University, Dept. of Computer Engineering, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

Networks are essential instruments for processing and analysis of large and complex data. They are useful for visualizing and identifying patterns and relationships among numerous phenomena. A network of recipes and ingredients was created to analyze local dishes from Turkiye's Eastern Anatolia Region. 71 ingredients used in the preparation of 42 different dishes and 10 desserts are analyzed in this study. A graph database management system was employed to facilitate the compilation, processing, and analysis of data. During the analysis process, algorithms for detecting centrality and communities were applied. Centrality algorithms were applied to determine which ingredients are most commonly present in recipes and which ingredients are most commonly combined together. Recipes with similar characteristics were paired together to identify local food groups using community detection algorithms. Analyzing recipes and ingredients from the Eastern Anatolia Region produced a comprehensive view of the cuisine. In addition, significant information about the region's food culture has been obtained by grouping recipes with similar characteristics.

Keywords: Food network, Graph database, Centrality algorithms, Community detection algorithms

1 INTRODUCTION

Data has become one of the most important concepts in the modern era. Information is ultimately accessed by processing a vast amount of data and giving it meaning. Databases have emerged for the purpose of processing and storing data, making processes easier. Nowadays, data is stored in databases with different structures, namely SQL (Relational) and NoSQL (Non-relational). ACID principles define SQL databases' fundamental characteristics. They preserve the properties of data, such as integrity, consistency, independence, and durability. Integrity is essential to ensure the effectiveness of transactional components. The consistency principle serves the purpose of ensuring correctness and validity by preventing conflicts between transactions. The independence principle is a fundamental concept that guarantees the non-interference of numerous transactions operating on the same data. The durability concept is designed to mitigate the risk of data loss under unforeseen circumstances [1].

Relational databases have been used for storing, accessing, and managing data for many years. However, as technology has advanced and data gathering tools have increased, the variety and quantity of gathered data has varied substantially. Storage and processing procedures have gotten more sophisticated as a result. To overcome data storage issues, distributed database systems have been created [2]. The CAP theorem is used in the construction of distributed databases. The principles of consistency, availability, and partition tolerance are used to express the CAP theorem. The capacity to access the same data across all databases at the same time is referred to as consistency. The availability idea indicates that databases provide uninterrupted service. Partition tolerance represents the system's capacity to function even if the network is partitioned. The CAP theorem underlines the benefits of NoSQL databases' scalability and partition tolerance while emphasizing the necessity to make a trade-off between consistency and availability [3].

The Big Data concept was developed due to the increasing volume and diversity of data. It refers to a rapidly increasing amount of data with various characteristics. Data such as images, videos, and social media posts cannot be efficiently processed by relational databases. To address the processing and storage of such data, NoSQL databases (non-relational databases) have emerged. NoSQL databases, unlike SQL databases, provide the capability to store different types of data. They enable the quick processing of data, especially in situations where the data size is substantial [4].

NoSQL databases were developed with the adoption of the BASE approach. The BASE approach includes the concepts of asynchrony, soft state, and eventual consistency. The concept of asynchrony indicates the system's inability to guarantee instant consistency after any query or operation. The concept of soft state acknowledges that

the database may be in an inconsistent state after certain processes, but it is expected to return to a consistent state over time. The concept of eventual consistency acknowledges that there can be inconsistency among database copies, but over time, the database is expected to become consistent again [5].

NoSQL databases come in various types, with the most common being key-value databases, column-family databases, document databases, and graph databases. A type of NoSQL database, the graph database, stores data where nodes represent entities and edges represent relationships between nodes [6]. Graph databases are commonly preferred in fields where relationships between data are prominent, such as social media platforms, transportation planning, biological analyses, and more. In the context of recipe platforms, it can be said that they exhibit a graph-like structure concerning recipes and the ingredients they contain.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

For the analysis of traditional dishes from the Eastern Anatolia region, two different analysis methods, namely centrality and community detection algorithms, have been employed.

2.1 Centrality Algorithms

Centrality algorithms are utilized to determine the levels of impact of nodes in a graph through various mathematical approaches [7]. In this study, to identify the most crucial food products used in the Eastern Anatolia region, three different centrality algorithms have been employed;

Betweenness centrality: It is used to identify other nodes that act as bridges between pairs of nodes. The importance level of a node is highest when it lies on the shortest path between node pairs. In a graph, multiple shortest path scenarios may arise, leading to computational challenges. The betweenness centrality value is the ratio of how many times a node is found on the shortest paths that different node pairs, not directly connected to each other, would use to communicate the total number of shortest paths for that node pair. Equation 1 shows the formula used in the calculation of betweenness centrality [8].

$$g(v) = \sum_{s \neq v \neq t} \frac{\sigma_{st}(v)}{\sigma_{st}}$$
(1)

 $g(v) \rightarrow$ The betweenness centrality value of node v

 $\sigma_{st}(v) \rightarrow$ The number of times node v appears in the shortest paths between nodes s and t

 $\sigma_{st} \rightarrow$ The sum of the shortest path counts between nodes s and t

Degree centrality: It is determined by identifying the number of adjacent nodes within a graph for a given node. Nodes with a higher number of adjacent nodes are considered more important. Equation 2 presents the formula used to calculate degree centrality [9, 10].

$$D_{\rm s} = \sum_{t=1(t\neq s)}^{\nu} I_{\rm st} \tag{2}$$

 $\begin{array}{l} D_s \rightarrow The \ degree \ centrality \ value \ of \ node \ s. \\ v \rightarrow The \ total \ number \ of \ nodes \ in \ the \ graph \\ I_{st} \rightarrow Adjacency \ matrix \end{array}$

Closeness centrality: It is used to determine the distance or closeness of a node to other nodes. The centrality of a node is associated with its proximity to other nodes in the network. Equation 3 specifies the formula used to calculate closeness centrality [11, 12].

$$C(v) = \frac{N-1}{\sum_{u} d(u,v)}$$
(3)

 $C(v) \rightarrow$ The closeness centrality value of node v. N \rightarrow The total number of nodes in the graph $d(u, v) \rightarrow$ The length of the shortest path between nodes u and v

2.2 Community Detection Algorithms

Community detection algorithms measure the clustering tendencies of nodes in a graph. The clustering tendencies of nodes are measured by examining the relationship between densities. There are different community detection algorithms. The algorithms utilized in this study are as follows:

Louvain algorithm: It measures the membership status of nodes to communities based on the concept of modularity. Initially, each node is represented as a separate community. Modularity is calculated to assess the membership status of nodes to communities. Modularity can have a value between -0.5 and 1. A node completely outside the community takes the value of -0.5, while a node entirely belonging to the community takes the value of 1. The Louvain algorithm calculates modularity using Equation 4 [13].

$$Q = \frac{1}{2m} \sum_{ij} \left[Aij - \frac{kikj}{2m} \right] \delta(ci, cj)$$
(4)

 $Q \rightarrow Modularity$

 $m \rightarrow$ The total weight value of relationships in the graph

 $A_{ij} \rightarrow$ The weight value of the relationship between nodes i and j

- $k_i\!\rightarrow$ The total weight of relationships in node i
- $kj \rightarrow$ The total weight of relationships in node j
- $\delta(c_i, c_j) \rightarrow$ The community membership value of nodes i and j

Triangle counting algorithm: It identifies the number of triangles formed by nodes in a graph. The concept of a triangle here refers to a situation where 3 nodes are interconnected, and the nodes constitute the corners of the triangle. An abundance of triangles in a node indicates that the node is involved in strong relationships. In Figure 1, there is a view of a graph with 6 nodes. When looking at the edges highlighted in red, it can be observed that there are 2 triangles in the graph [14].



Figure 1. Detecting the number of triangles in a graph

2.3 Dataset and Pre-Processing

A dataset has been compiled, encompassing regional dishes and desserts from the Eastern Anatolia Region along with their respective ingredients. The dataset comprises 52 recipes, comprising 42 main dish recipes and 10 dessert recipes. A total of 87 ingredients are used in these recipes. Two different node types, namely 'Recipes' and 'Ingredients,' have been created. A directional relationship named 'Contains' is defined from the 'Recipes' node to the 'Ingredients' node, representing the inclusion of ingredients in recipes. In the graph illustrated in Figure 2, nodes coloured in purple represent 'Recipes,' while nodes in yellow represent 'Ingredients.' The edges between the nodes depict the relationships between them.



Figure 2. Graph representation of the database

The database consists of two different node types. However, for centrality and community analyses to be applicable, a homogeneous graph is required, where nodes are associated with nodes of their own types. To achieve this, a bidirectional relationship named 'Together' has been defined between the 'Ingredients' node types. The number of recipes in which two ingredients are jointly present is determined by the relationship weight. In Figure 3, the blue colour represents the 'Recipes' node type, and the orange colour represents the 'Ingredients' node type. While only a graph like the one on the left can be obtained in the initial state with only the 'Contains' relationship, the addition of the 'Together' relationship enables the creation of a homogeneous graph as shown on the right. The analyses will be conducted based on this newly established homogeneous graph [15].



Figure 3. Transforming the graph into a graph with a single node type

There are 87 ingredients in the 52 recipes in the data. Salt, black pepper, and other spices, which are usually present in almost all recipes and do not contribute to the analysis, have been removed from the database. As a result, analysis was conducted based on the remaining 71 ingredients.

3 **RESULTS**

Three different centrality algorithms have been applied to the prepared data. The goal is to identify the ingredients that are heavily used in the recipes.

3.1 Results of Betweenness Centrality Algorithm

When calculating betweenness centrality, the number of relationships between nodes was considered as a weight. The top 20 ingredients with the highest betweenness centrality values used in recipes, along with the algorithm results, are shown in Table 1. Upon examination of the results, butter, onion, and sugar were found to be the top 3 ingredients with the highest betweenness centrality values in the recipes.

Table 1. Results of Betweenness centrality algorithm			
Ingredients	Betweenness Centrality		
Butter	641.898		
Onion	573.341		
Sugar	293.914		
Egg	290.143		
Tomato Paste	262.846		
Olive Oil	168.286		
Sunflower Oil	167.938		
Yogurt	154.097		
Rice	153.994		
Parsley	152.117		
Flour	150.249		
Lemon	144.675		
Wheat	139.221		
Ground Meat	129.604		
Milk	119.718		
Chickpea	97.981		
Tomato	70.797		
Ground Wheat	69.750		
Fresh Mint	50.565		
Walnut	41.565		

Table 1. Results	f Betweenness centrality algorithm
T 1. 4	

3.2 Results of Degree Centrality Algorithm

Degree centrality represents the number of adjacent nodes for each node. The top 20 ingredients with the highest degree centrality values used in recipes, along with the algorithm results, are shown in Table 2. Upon examination of the results, butter, onion, and tomato paste were found to be the top 3 ingredients with the highest degree centrality in the recipes.

Table 2. Results of Degree centrality algorith		
Ingredients	Degree centrality	
Butter	53	
Onion	53	
Tomato Paste	43	
Egg	40	
Sugar	36	
Flour	36	
Ground Meat	35	
Yogurt	34	
Parsley	34	
Olive Oil	33	
Rice	33	
Sunflower Oil	32	
Ground Wheat	28	
Lemon	28	
Tomato	28	
Wheat	28	
Chickpea	27	
Milk	26	
Garlic	24	
Walnut	21	

3.3 Results of Closeness Centrality Algorithm

Closeness centrality is calculated based on the distance between nodes and other nodes. The top 20 ingredients with the highest closeness centrality values used in recipes, along with the algorithm results, are shown in Table 3. Upon examination of the results, it is observed that the top 3 ingredients with the highest closeness centrality values are butter, onion, and tomato paste.

	78		
Ingredients	Closeness centrality		
Butter	0.805		
Onion	0.805		
Tomato Paste	0.722		
Egg	0.700		
Sugar	0.673		
Flour	0.673		
Ground Meat	0.667		
Parsley	0.660		
Yogurt	0.660		
Olive Oil	0.654		
Rice	0.654		
Sunflower Oil	0.648		
Ground Wheat	0.625		
Lemon	0.625		
Tomato	0.625		
Wheat	0.625		
Chickpea	0.619		
Milk	0.614		
Garlic	0.603		
Walnut	0.588		

 Table 3. Results of Closeness centrality algorithm

3.4 Results of the Louvain Algorithm

According to the Louvain algorithm, nodes in the dataset are partitioned into four distinct communities. The results, shown in Table 4, display the community colours and the respective number of ingredients. Figure 4 visually represents the outcomes.

Table 4. Results of the Louvain algorithm		
Ingredients Number of Ingredients		
Purple	32	
Yellow	16	
Orange	13	
Blue	10	



Figure 4. Graph representation of the results of Louvain algorithm

3.5 Results of the Triangle Counting Algorithm

According to the triangle counting algorithm, a total of 2374 triangular node triplets have been calculated in the dataset. Figure 5 visually presents the outcome of the triangle counting algorithm. It shows that there are a large number of relationships between nodes.



Figure 5. Graph representation of the results of triangle counting algorithm

The results of the triangle counting algorithm for the top 20 ingredients are presented in Table 5. Upon examination, it is observed that the top three ingredients with the highest triangle counts are, in order, onion, butter, and tomato paste.

Ingredients	Triangle Counts
Onion	425
Butter	421
Tomato Paste	354
Egg	307
Flour	298
Ground Meat	274
Yogurt	265
Parsley	263
Olive Oil	245
Sugar	236
Sunflower Oil	230
Rice	225
Ground Wheat	202
Tomato	199
Wheat	176
Lemon	176
Chickpea	175
Milk	166
Garlic	165

4 CONCLUSION

In today's world, the advancement of technology has led to an increase in data volume, giving rise to the concept of big data. Traditional SQL databases have proven insufficient for the analysis of these vast and heterogeneous data, leading to the emergence of NoSQL databases. In this study, a graph database containing recipes from the Eastern Anatolia Region was created, and various graph algorithms were applied for analysis. The dataset includes 52 recipes and 71 ingredients from the Eastern Anatolia Region, a region known for its unique culinary traditions. Three different centrality algorithms were used for the analysis: Closeness, Degree, and Betweenness. When the Closeness centrality results are analyzed, the top three ingredients are butter, onion, and sugar. In Degree centrality, the highest-ranked components are butter, onion, and tomato paste. Similarly, in Betweenness centrality, butter, onion, and tomato paste emerged as the most favorable three ingredients in the region. It is noteworthy that butter and onion are consistently ranked in the results of top two of all centrality algorithms. In addition, clustering algorithms, in particular the Louvain algorithm and triangle counting algorithms, were applied. According to the Louvain algorithm, the dataset revealed the existence of four different communities. The results of the triangle counting algorithm emphasized the dense relationships between pairs of components. In conclusion, these findings provide valuable information about the centrality and clustering tendencies of ingredients in recipes in Eastern Anatolia. Adding more recipes and ingredients to the dataset opens up new research opportunities and applications.

References

- [1] S. Chittayasothorn, "The misconception of relational database and the acid properties," in 8th International Conference on Engineering, Applied Sciences, and Technology (ICEAST), 2022, pp. 30–33.
- [2] M. T. Ozsu and P. Valduriez, "Distributed and parallel database systems," ACM Computing Surveys (CSUR), vol. 28, no. 1, pp. 125–128, 1996.
- [3] S. Benefico, E. Gjeci, R. G. Gomarasca, E. Lever, S. Lombardo, Ardagna, and E. Di Nitto, "Evaluation of the cap properties on amazon simpledb and windows azure table storage," in 14th International Symposium on Symbolic and Numeric Algorithms for Scientific Computing, 2012, pp. 430–435.
- [4] H. Khazaei, M. Fokaefs, S. Zareian, N. Beigi-Mohammadi, B. Ramprasad, M. Shtern, P. Gaikwad, and M. Litoiu, "How do I choose the right NoSql solution? A comprehensive theoretical and experimental survey," Big Data and Information Analytics, vol. 1, no. 2, pp. 185–216, 2016.
- [5] D. G. Chandra, "Base analysis of NoSql database," Future Generation Computer Systems, vol. 52, pp. 13– 21, 2015.
- [6] V. Sharma and M. Dave, "Sql and NoSql databases," International Journal of Advanced Research in Computer Science and Software Engineering, vol. 2, no. 8, 2012.
- [7] T. S. Evans and B. Chen, "Linking the network centrality measures closeness and degree," Communications Physics, vol. 5, no. 1, p. 172, 2022.
- [8] L. C. Freeman, "A set of measures of centrality based on betweenness," Sociometry, vol. 40, no. 1, pp. 35– 41, 1977.

- [9] L. C. Freeman, D. Roeder, and R. R. Mulholland, "Centrality in social networks: II. Experimental results," Social Networks, vol. 2, no. 2, pp. 119–141, 1979.
- [10] J. Zhang and Y. Luo, "Degree centrality, betweenness centrality, and closeness centrality in social network," in Proceedings of the 2017 2nd International Conference on Modelling, Simulation and Applied Mathematics (MSAM2017), 2017, pp. 300–303.
- [11] M. A. Beauchamp, "An improved index of centrality," Behavioral Science, vol. 10, no. 2, pp. 161–163, 1965.
- [12] G. Sabidussi, "The centrality index of a graph," Psychometrika, vol. 31, no. 4, pp. 581–603, 1966.
- [13] V. D. Blondel, J.-L. Guillaume, R. Lambiotte, and E. Lefebvre, "Fast unfolding of communities in large networks," Journal of Statistical Mechanics: Theory and Experiment, vol. 2008, no. 10, p. P10008, 2008.
- [14] L. Becchetti, P. Boldi, C. Castillo, and A. Gionis, "Efficient semi-streaming algorithms for local triangle counting in massive graphs," in Proceedings of the 14th ACM SIGKDD International Conference on Knowledge Discovery and Data Mining, 2008, pp. 16–24.
- [15] B. Ozhan, "Analysis of Turkish cuisine flavor network with graph database," Master's thesis, Ankara University, 2022.



Motion Prediction Classification for Wall-Following Robot Navigation

Nazlıcan Cavli^{*1}, Nisa Koban¹, Emrah Benli¹, Ayten Atasoy¹

¹Karadeniz Technical University, Department of Electrical and Electronics Engineering, Trabzon, Turkey

Abstract

Robot navigation is an important feature for mobile robots to roam freely in the environment. The aim of robot navigation is to drive from a origin to a target point, but in accordance with the desired constraints. In this study, motion classification estimation and visualization were performed using the data set of the wall-following robot navigation. The class labels are forward movement, a slight turn to the right, a sharp turn to the right and a slight turn to the left. The model achieved 86.07 percent accuracy with an RMSLE score of 13.97.

Keywords: Classification, Mobile robot, Navigation

1 INTRODUCTION

Mobile robots are used in many areas such as transport, guidance, exploration and inspection. It is important that they move freely while fulfilling these tasks. Robot navigation is a necessity in providing these free movements. Thanks to robot navigation, mobile robots can reach the target from the starting point in a certain environment. With the sensors and classification methods used, obstacle avoidance function can be added to these robots. Classification methods facilitate the classification of various data sets as well as robot navigation.

Tripathy et al. designed a mobile robot navigation scheme in their study in 2021. The team used radio frequencybased identification to locate, a hybrid approach to plan the route and a predefined decision table to navigate. The algorithms underwent testing in four different situations involving two steps: creating a virtual environment and generating the shortest path. The efficacy of the proposed method was successfully demonstrated through the testing process. [1].

Pandey and his colleagues proposed using an Adaptive Neuro-Fuzzy Inference System (ANFIS) controller, which adjusts to navigate robots and avoid obstacles in unfamiliar environments. Distance information obtained from different sensors provides steering angle information with the help of the controller. The study, which was tested on a real mobile robot, showed its effectiveness and efficiency [2].

Er and Atasoy used Random Forest Algorithm, K Nearest Neighbourhood and Support Vector Machines algorithms to classify wine type and quality. As a result of the study, red and white wine were classified with an accuracy of approximately 99.5%. In addition, Random Forest Algorithm was found to be the most effective algorithm in the study where wine qualities were classified [3].

Gul, Rahiman and Alhady compared the techniques used for robot navigation and examined various methods such as neural networks, fuzzy logic, particle swarm optimisation. As a result of the study in which 133 papers were analysed in total, the methods used were compared according to certain metrics and their strengths and weaknesses were given [4].

In another study proposing a mobile robot navigation with lifelong learning capability, a robot navigation is designed that improves its behaviour in different environments and does not forget the environments it has learned before. The study was tested on a mobile robot. Experiments in three different environments showed that the proposed method gave better results [5].

Crespo et al. conducted a review on techniques for the use of semantic information with navigation systems. Human-assisted and autonomous semantic knowledge acquisition techniques were analysed [6].

Wang and colleagues suggested self-governing navigation of mobile robots in rough and unstructured indoor surroundings. The system combines sensing and navigation capabilities and provides a 2D map of the environment

as input to the navigation function. The effectiveness of the system tested in simulation environment and in reality has been demonstrated [7].

In their research, Madi and Baba-Ali compared different ways of categorising methods for guiding robots along walls. They improved the K nearest neighbour algorithm, a type of method, to reduce the long time it takes to complete. As a result, it was observed that the improved version of the algorithm ran for a shorter time [8].

In their study on the application of Deep Reinforcement Learning to robot navigation, Zhu and Zhang analysed the proposed system for four different application scenarios. The article outlines the development of robot navigation using Deep Reinforcement Learning and discusses potential problems and their solutions [9].

Alenzi et al. used semantic information based on LIDAR data to create a representation of the environment. The system they proposed is low cost and requires low memory. They obtained a classification accuracy of 97.21% [10].

Faisal et al. compared four different navigation systems for a mobile robot. The controller parameters of the four fuzzy logic controller based navigation systems were defined in four different ways. These are respectively; inexperienced human, Genetic Algorithm, Particle Swarm Optimisation and expert human. As a result of the study, it was observed that the system tuned by the expert gave better results [11].

Rani and Jyothi examined different comparison techniques for different datasets in their study. As a result of the study, values such as the accuracy of the comparison methods for each dataset and their running times are presented in tables [12].

Wang and colleagues devised methods for improving the accuracy of detecting infrared maritime targets. These included Local Peak Singularity Measurement Based Image Enhancement and Grayscale Scatter Curve Shift Binarisation Based Target Segmentation. To validate their study, they conducted experiments comparing their algorithm with five others and found it performed robustly under different conditions [13].

Freire and colleagues conducted a study in 2009 that examined how the short-term storage mechanism affects the performance of neural classifiers for robotic navigation. Four different neural classifiers were tested in four action categories. As a result of the study, the multilayer perceptron method was found to be more effective [14].

In this study, we utilise the wall-following robot navigation dataset to categorise the robot movements with neural classifiers. Section 2 covers robot navigation and Section 3 describes the wall-following robot navigation dataset. The outcomes of the experiments are presented in Section 4, and the conclusions of the study are provided in the final section.

2 ROBOT NAVIGATION

Robot navigation produces a set of motion directives to transport a robot from an initial position s to a final position g in environment E. If this movement command is identified as $A^* = \{a_0, a_1, a_2, ...\}$;

$$A^* = argminJ(E, s, g), A \in \mathcal{A}$$

(1)

Here, \mathcal{A} represents the set of all conceivable motion instructions, while J(.) denotes the aim function to be minimized by the navigation system. In the case of differential motion robots, linear and angular speed could be variables, while steering angle is pivotal for Ackermann steering cars and quad-rotor vehicle motions are based on propeller thrust. Navigation in two- and three-dimensional environments is facilitated by utilizing data from sensors or pre-existing environmental maps. The cost function J is determined in accordance with the system requirements such as the shortest path or time, obstacle avoidance, and movement constraints [15]. Robot navigation involves two basic tasks. These are point-to-point movement and obstacle avoidance. For point-to-point movement, methods such as GPS or perspective view can be used. For obstacle avoidance, methods with sensors such as laser range finding and ultrasonic detection are used. With the information received from these sensors, obstacles are identified and new movement commands are generated for obstacle avoidance [9]. A hierarchical path is followed to reach the target. A representative path is created from the start to the goal and this path is shaped with sensor information. Tasks and obstacles at certain points are identified and movement commands are shaped accordingly [15].

3 DATASET

The data used in this study are readily available data collected by Freire et al. The dataset containing the wall following robot navigation data was obtained with the SCITOS G5 robot using 24 ultrasonic sensors. The robot navigated clockwise in a room following a wall. A multilayer perceptron network was used for obstacle avoidance. There are 24 numerical features from 24 ultrasonic sensors. Simplified distances were calculated for front, back, right and left with the help of sensor groups that together cover an angle of 60 degrees. The distances taken are the shortest distances. The collected data are sensor reading, (x,y) coordinates and angular position, instantaneous translation and rotation speed of the robot, distance information and the tag number of the motion. A database was created from a collection of 5456 samples, gathered at a rate of 9 samples per second [14].

4 SIMULATION RESULTS

4.1 Root Mean Square Logarithmic Error (RMSLE)

Root Mean Square Logarithmic Error (RMSLE) is obtained by taking the logarithm of the actual and predicted values and finding the difference between them. This technique is not biased towards small or large errors, and it is not affected by outliers. The model incurs greater penalty when the predicted value greatly deviates from the true value. Conversely, less penalty is applied when the predicted value is much larger than the true value. Logarithms do not penalise high errors, which makes this method more accurate. The model consequently incurs a greater penalty for under-predicting than for over-predicting. The Equation (2) provides the calculation of this penalty. This characteristic can prove useful in situations where overestimation can be disregarded, while underestimation is unacceptable.

RMSLE =
$$\sqrt{\frac{1}{N} \sum_{i=0}^{N} (\log(y_i + 1) - \log(\hat{y}_i + 1))^2}$$
 (2)

Where N represents the total number of samples, y_i denotes the actual value, and \hat{y}_i signifies the predicted value. The RMSLE value will solely focus on the relative error between the predicted and actual value, disregarding the data scale. However, if the error scale increases, the RMSLE value will increase in magnitude. The closer the RMSLE is to 0, the more accurate the model is [16].

Robot Navigation Importance Estimation: The wall-following robot navigation dataset used to estimate and visualise the importance of robot navigation was simulated via Google Colab. Four classes of information were used in the simulation, each representing different information. Here, class one represents forward movement, class two represents a slight right turn, class three represents a sharp right turn, and class four represents a slight left turn.

According to the simulation result of the predicted and actual training classes as given in Fig. 1, it is seen that the training actual class value is between three and four in the training prediction class for the fourth class, the prediction for the second actual class information is between one and three and a half, the prediction for the first actual class value is between one and three, and the prediction for the third actual class value is between one and three. The RMSLE value of the model was 0.1393 with an accuracy of 86.07%.





Fig. 2 shows the numerical graph of training and test prediction values. According to the graph, the training prediction value for the first class variable is one thousand five hundred while the test prediction value is three hundred ninety, the training prediction value for the second class variable is one thousand three hundred while the test value is four hundred ten, the training prediction value for the third class variable is one hundred while the test prediction value is eighty, the training prediction value for the fourth class variable is four hundred ten while the test prediction value is less than one hundred.

5 CONCLUSION

Data pertaining to the navigation of a wall-following robot was collected utilizing ultrasound sensors and the SCITOS G5 robot, as it navigated the room clockwise on four instances. The sensors, arranged in a circular pattern around the "waist" of the robot, employs 24 ultrasound sensors [17]. The file herein includes the raw data in relation to all 24 ultrasound sensors' measurements coupled with the corresponding class label. The measurements are taken at a rate of 9 samples per second. The study conducted motion classification prediction and visualisation on the wall-following robot navigation dataset. The dataset contains four groupings: moving in a straight line, turning slightly to the right, turning sharply to the right, and turning slightly to the left. The model achieved 86.07% accuracy with an RMSLE score of 13.97.

References

- [1] H. K. Tripathy et al., "CARE: A collision-aware mobile robot navigation in grid environment using improved breadth first search," Computers & Electrical Engineering, vol. 94, art. no. 107327, 2021.
- [2] A. Pandey et al., "Mobile robot navigation in unknown static environments using ANFIS controller," Perspectives in Science, vol. 8, pp. 421–423, 2016.
- [3] Y. Er and A. Atasoy, "The classification of white wine and red wine according to their physicochemical qualities," International Journal of Intelligent Systems and Applications in Engineering, vol. 4 (Special Issue), 23–26, 2016.
- [4] F. Gul, W. Rahiman, and S. S. N. Alhady, "A comprehensive study for robot navigation techniques," Cogent Engineering, vol. 6, no. 1, art. no. 1632046, 2019.
- [5] B. Liu, X. Xiao, and P. Stone, "A lifelong Learning Approach to Mobile Robot Navigation," IEEE Robotics and Automation Letters, vol. 6, no. 2, pp. 1090–1096, 2021.
- [6] J. Crespo et al., "Semantic Information for robot navigation: A survey," Applied Sciences, vol. 10, art. no. 497, 2020.
- [7] C. Wang et al., "Autonomous mobile robot navigation in uneven and unstructured indoor environments," 2017 IEEE/RSJ International Conference on Intelligent Robots and Systems (IROS), Vancouver, BC, Canada, pp. 109–116, 2017.
- [8] S. Madi and R. Baba-Ali, "Comparison of classification techniques for wall following robot navigation and improvements to the KNN algorithm," Computer Science & Information Technology (CS & IT), vol. 9, no. 18, pp. 73–87, 2019.
- [9] K. Zhu and T. Zhang, "Deep reinforcement learning based mobile robot navigation: A review," Tsinghua Science and Technology, vol. 26, no. 5, pp. 674–691, 2021.
- [10] Z. Alenzi et al., "A Semantic Classification Approach for Indoor Robot Navigation," Electronics, vol. 11, art. no. 2063, 2022.

- [11] M. Faisal, M. Algabri, B. M. Abdelkader, H. Dhahri, and M. M. Al Rahhal, "Human expertise in mobile robot navigation," IEEE Access, vol 6, pp. 1694–1705, 2018.
- [12] A. S. Rani and S. Jyothi, "Performance analysis of classification algorithms under different datasets," 2016 3rd International Conference on Computing for Sustainable Global Development (INDIACom), New Delhi, India, pp. 1584–1589, 2016.
- [13] B. Wang, E. Benli, Y. Motai, L. Dong, and W. Xu, "Robust detection of infrared maritime targets for autonomous navigation," IEEE Transactions on Intelligent Vehicles, vol. 5, no. 4, pp. 635–648, Dec. 2020.
- [14] A. L. Freire, G. A. Barreto, M. Veloso, and A. T. Varela, "Short-term memory mechanisms in neural network learning of robot navigation tasks: A case study," 2009 6th Latin American Robotics Symposium (LARS 2009), Valparaiso, Chile, pp. 1–6, 2009.
- [15] X. Xiao, B. Liu, G. Warnell et al., "Motion planning and control for mobile robot navigation using machine learning: A survey," Autonomous Robots, vol. 46, pp. 569–597, 2022.
- [16] A. A. Mir et al., "An Improved Imputation Method for Accurate Prediction of Imputed Dataset Based Radon Time Series," in IEEE Access, vol. 10, pp. 20590–20601, 2022, doi: 10.1109/ACCESS.2022.3151892.
- [17] A. L. Freire, M. Veloso, and G. A. Barreto, Wall-Following Robot Navigation Data, UCI Machine Learning Repository, 2010.


December 1-3, 2023

Fixed Point Results of Generalized (ϕ,ψ)–Contractive Mappings in Ordered Non-Newtonian Metric Spaces

Demet Binbasioglu^{*1}

¹Tokat Gaziosmanpasa University, Department of Mathematics, Tokat, Turkey

Abstract

Grossman and Katz (1972) began studying non-Newtonian calculi. The fixed point theory has been introduced by Binbaşioglu, Demiriz, and Turkoglu (2016) in non-Newtonian metric space. In this work, some fixed point, coincidence and common fixed point results are given for generalized (ϕ,ψ)-contraction mappings in complete partially ordered non-Newtonian metric spaces.

Keywords: Non-Newtonian calculi, Fixed point theorems, Contraction mapping

1 INTRODUCTION

In many spaces, fixed point theory has been the subject of far too many researches [1-8]. Lately, fixed point theorems have been used to demonstrate the existence and uniqueness of differential equation solutions. There are numerous applications of the theory and mappings that satisfy particular contraction requirements and have been an important topic of numerous research works.

An alternative to the traditional calculi is the non-Newtonian calculi [9]. Cakmak and Başar first described the non-Newtonian metric notion in 2002 [10]. Then, in 2016, Binbaşıoğlu, Demiriz, Türkoğlu provided non-Newtonian metric spaces and some of their qualities compared to topological ones [11]. Also, they introduced the fixed point theory in non-Newtonian metric spaces.

Bhaskar and Lakshmikantham [12] first established the idea of linked fixed points for specific mappings in ordered spaces and used their findings to investigate the existence and uniqueness of solutions for boundary value problems. Whereas Lakshmikantham and Ciric [13] were the first to introduce the notion of linked coincidence and coupled common fixed point theorems for nonlinear contractive mappings possessing monotone quality in partially ordered complete metric spaces. Since then, various writers have found results for generalized contraction mappings in partially ordered metric spaces and partially ordered b-metric spaces using fixed point, common fixed point, coupled coincidence point, and coupled fixed point methods. Some other researchers have given some results regarding fixed points, coincidences, coupled coincidences and coupled common fixed points for mappings obeying generalized (ϕ, ψ) -contractions and other generalized contractions in full partially ordered b-metric spaces and partial metric spaces [14-18]. The conclusions of several other analogous findings in the literature are expanded and generalized by these results.

In this work, some fixed point, coincidence and common fixed point results are given for generalized (ϕ, ψ) contraction mappings in complete partially ordered non-Newtonian metric spaces.

2 PRELIMINARIES

We mention some fundamental information on the structure of non-Newtonian calculi. Let known the non-Newtonian real area together with its attributes.

Definition 2.1. An injective function is given to a generator from \mathbb{R} and to the subset of \mathbb{R} [10].

Remark 2.2. Every generator produces an arithmetic. A generator produces each arithmetic [10].

Definition 2.3. Let we get the function $\beta: \mathbb{R} \to \mathbb{R}^+$, $\varsigma \to \beta(\varsigma) = e^{\varsigma} = \eta$. If $\beta = \exp$, following that, the function produces the geometric arithmetic. Also, the set $\mathbb{R}(N) = \{\beta(\varsigma): \varsigma \in \mathbb{R}\}$, is defined as the non-Newtonian real numbers set [10].

Remark 2.4. Consider the function β to be a generator, that is if $\beta = I$, then β generates the standard arithmetic, with *I* being an identity mapping.

The other notions of β - arithmetic are analogous to the traditional ones [10].

Definition 2.5. The following is how the β -integers are produced:

 β -zero, β -one and therefore, all β -integers are displayed as ..., $\beta(-1)$, $\beta(0)$, $\beta(1)$, Get a generator β with a range A. Then the operations β -addition, β -substraction, β -multiplication, β -division and β -order as described in the following,

$$\begin{split} \varsigma_{+}\eta &= \beta \{ \beta^{-1}(\varsigma) + \beta^{-1}(\eta) \}, \\ \varsigma_{-}\eta &= \beta \{ \beta^{-1}(\varsigma) - \beta^{-1}(\eta) \}, \\ \varsigma_{\times}\eta &= \beta \{ \beta^{-1}(\varsigma) \times \beta^{-1}(\eta) \}, \\ \varsigma_{/}\eta &= \beta \{ \beta^{-1}(\varsigma) \div \beta^{-1}(\eta) \}, \\ \varsigma_{<}\eta &= \beta(\varsigma) < \beta(\eta) \end{split}$$

for $\varsigma, \eta \in \mathbb{R}(N)$.

The β –absolute value of a number $\varsigma \in A \subset \mathbb{R}(N)$ specified by $\beta(|\beta^{-1}(\varsigma)|)$ is represented as $|\varsigma|_N$.

Also,

$$\sqrt{\varsigma^{2N}}^N = |\varsigma|_N = \beta(|\beta^{-1}(\varsigma)|).$$

So,

$$|\varsigma|_{N} = \beta(|\beta^{-1}(\varsigma)|) = \begin{cases} \varsigma, & \beta(0) \leq \varsigma, \\ \beta(0), & \beta(0) = \varsigma, \\ \beta(0) \leq \varsigma, & \beta(0) \leq \varsigma. \end{cases}$$

For $\varsigma_1, \varsigma_2 \in A \subset \mathbb{R}(N)$, the non-Newtonian distance $|.|_N$ is described with

$$|\varsigma_1 \pm \varsigma_2|_N = \beta \{ |\beta^{-1}(\varsigma_1) - \beta^{-1}(\varsigma_2)| \}.$$

Where the distance has the commutative property that is $|\varsigma_1 \perp \varsigma_2|_N = |\varsigma_2 \perp \varsigma_1|_N$ [10].

Let we get any $\mu \in \mathbb{R}(N)$. μ is named as an *unsigned non-Newtonian real number*, if $\mu = \beta(0)$. μ is named as a *non-Newtonian negative real number*, if $\mu \ge \beta(0)$ and μ is named as a *positive non-Newtonian real number*, if $\mu \ge \beta(0)$. The sets of above numbers are showed by $\mathbb{R}^-(N)$ and $\mathbb{R}^+(N)$, respectively [9].

Definition 2.6. Let we take $X \neq \emptyset$ and $d_N: X \times X \rightarrow \mathbb{R}^+(N)$ meets the conditions listed below;

 $(NM1) d_N(\varsigma, \eta) = \beta(0) \text{ iff } \varsigma = \eta, \\ (NM2) d_N(\varsigma, \eta) = d_N(\eta, \varsigma), \\ (NM3) d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \rightleftharpoons d_N(\varsigma, \mu) \doteqdot d_N(\mu, \eta).$

for all $\varsigma, \eta, \mu \in X$.

The pair (X, d_N) is then referred to as a non-Newtonian metric space and is called a non-Newtonian metric on X [10].

Definition 2.7. A sequence (ς_n) in a non-Newtonian metric space $X = (X, d_N)$ is claimed to be non-Newtonian convergent if for every given $\varepsilon \ge \beta(0)$ there exists an $n_0 = n_0(\varepsilon) \in \mathbb{N}$ and $\varsigma \in X$ such that $d_N(\varsigma_n, \varsigma) \ge \varepsilon$ for all $n > n_0$ and it is indicated by

$$\lim_{n\to\infty}\varsigma_n = \varsigma \quad \text{or } \varsigma_n \xrightarrow{N} \varsigma, \text{ as } n \to \infty \text{ [11]}.$$

Definition 2.8. A sequence (ς_n) in a non-Newtonian metric space $X = (X, d_N)$ is claimed to be non-Newtonian Cauchy if for every given $\varepsilon > \beta(0)$ there exists an $n_0 = n_0(\varepsilon) \in \mathbb{N}$ such that $d_N(\varsigma_n, \varsigma_m) < \varepsilon$ for all $m, n > n_0$.

If for every non-Newtonian open ball $B_{\varepsilon}^{N}(\varsigma)$, there exists a natural number n_{0} such that $n > n_{0}, \varsigma_{n} \in B_{\varepsilon}^{N}(\varsigma)$, then the sequence (ς_n) is claimed to be non-Newtonian convergent to ς .

The space X is said to be non-Newtonian complete if every non-Newtonian Cauchy sequence in X converges [11].

3. MAIN RESULTS

Definition 3.1. (X, d_N, \leq) is referred to be a partially ordered non-Newtonian metric if (X, d_N) is a non-Newtonian metric space and (X, \leq) is still a partially ordered set.

Definition 3.2. If the non-Newtonian metric d_N is non-Newtonian complete then (X, d_N, \leq) is defined complete partially ordered non-Newtonian metric.

Definition 3.3. Let (X, d_N, \leq) be a partially ordered non-Newtonian metric space, $T, K: X \to X$ are two mappings.

Then

- *K* is called a monotone nondecreasing, if $K(\varsigma) \leq K(\eta)$ for $\varsigma, \eta \in X$ with $\varsigma \leq \eta$. i)
- ii) An element $\varsigma \in X$ is called a coincidence point of *T* and *K*, if $T(\varsigma) = K(\varsigma)$.
- An element $\varsigma \in X$ is called a common fixed point of T and K, if $T(\varsigma) = K(\varsigma) = \varsigma$. iii)
- T and K are called commuting, if $KT(\varsigma) = TK(\varsigma)$ for all $\varsigma \in X$. iv)
- T and K are called compatible, if any sequence $\{\varsigma_n\}$ with $\lim_{n\to\infty} T(\varsigma_n) = \lim_{n\to\infty} K(\varsigma_n) = \mu$, for $\mu \in X$ v) then $\lim_{N \to \infty} d_N(KT(\varsigma_n), TK(\varsigma_n)) = 0.$
- T and K are called weakly compatible, if $KT(\varsigma) = TK(\varsigma)$, when $K(\varsigma) = T(\varsigma)$ for some $\varsigma \in X$. vi)
- *K* is called monotone *T*-nondecreasing, if $T(\varsigma) \leq T(\eta) \Rightarrow K(\varsigma) \leq K(\eta)$, for any $\varsigma, \eta \in X$. vii)
- $X \neq \emptyset$ is called well ordered set, if every two elements of it are comparable i.e. $\zeta \leq \eta$ or $\eta \leq \zeta$, for viii) $\varsigma, \eta \in X.$

Definition 3.4. Let (X, d_N, \leq) be a partially ordered non-Newtonian metric space, $K: XxX \to X$ and $T: X \to X$ be two mappings. Then, for $\varsigma, \eta, \varsigma_1, \varsigma_2, \eta_1, \eta_2 \in X$

K has the mixed T-monotone property, if K is non-decreasing T-monotone in its first argument and i) is non increasing *T*-monotone in its second argument, that is for any $\zeta, \eta \in X$ $T(\varsigma_1) \leq T(\varsigma_2) \Rightarrow K(\varsigma_1, \eta) \leq K(\varsigma_2, \eta)$

and

$T(\eta_1) \leq T(\eta_2) \Rightarrow K(\varsigma, \eta_1) \geq K(\varsigma, \eta_2).$

Note that, if take T is an identity mapping then K has the mixed monotone property.

If $K(\varsigma, \eta) = T(\varsigma)$ and $K(\eta, \varsigma) = T(\eta)$ then the pair $(\varsigma, \eta) \in X \times X$ is called as a coupled ii) coincidence point of K and T.

Note that, if take T is an identity mapping then (ς, η) is a coupled fixed point of K.

- If $K(\varsigma, \varsigma) = T(\varsigma) = \varsigma$, then $\varsigma \in X$ is called as a common fixed point of K and T. iii)
- iv) If $K(T(\varsigma), T(\eta)) = T(K(\varsigma, \eta))$, then K and T are commutative.
- T and K are called compatible, if v)

$$\lim_{n \to \infty} d_N(T(K(\varsigma_n, \eta_n)), K(T(\varsigma_n), T(\eta_n))) = 0$$

and

$$\lim d_N(T(K(\eta_n, \varsigma_n)), K(T(\eta_n), T(\varsigma_n))) = 0$$

 $\lim_{n \to \infty} d_N(T(K(\eta_n, \varsigma_n)), K(T(\eta_n), T(\varsigma_n))) = 0,$ whenever two sequences $\{\varsigma_n\}$ and $\{\eta_n\}$ in X such that $\lim_{n \to \infty} K(\varsigma_n, \eta_n) = \lim_{n \to \infty} T(\varsigma_n) = \varsigma \text{ and } \lim_{n \to \infty} K(\eta_n, \varsigma_n) = \lim_{n \to \infty} T(\eta_n) = \eta.$

Definition 3.5. A mapping $\phi: \mathbb{R}^+(N) \cup \{\beta(0)\} \to \mathbb{R}^+(N) \cup \{\beta(0)\}$ is an altering distance function, if ϕ is continuous, non decreasing and $\phi(t) = \beta(0) \Leftrightarrow t = \beta(0)$. Also, we will denote by Φ the set of ϕ functions satisfying above conditions.

Furthermore, we will denote by Ψ the set of all functions $\psi: \mathbb{R}^+(N) \cup \{\beta(0)\} \to \mathbb{R}^+(N) \cup \{\beta(0)\}$ satisfying two conditions: ψ is lower semi-continuous, $\psi(t) = \beta(0) \Leftrightarrow t = \beta(0)$.

TIEM 2023

Let (X, d_N, \leq) be a partially ordered non-Newtonian metric space, $k \in \mathbb{R}^+(N)$, $k \ge \beta(1)$ and $K: X \to X$ be a mapping. Then we will get

$$N(\varsigma,\eta) = max\{\frac{d_N(\eta, K\eta) \downarrow [\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, K\varsigma)]}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, K\varsigma) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(K\varsigma, K\eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, K\varsigma) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(K\varsigma, K\eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, K\gamma) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, K\eta) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, K\eta) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\eta, K\varsigma)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}{\beta(1$$

And

$$M(\varsigma,\eta) = max \left\{ \frac{d_N(\eta, K\eta) \cdot [\beta(1) + d_N(\varsigma, K\varsigma)]}{\beta(1) + d_N(\varsigma, \eta)}, d_N(\varsigma, \eta) \right\} \dots (2)$$

Definition 3.6. Let (X, d_N, \leq) be a partially ordered non-Newtonian metric space, $k \in \mathbb{R}^+(N)$, $k \ge \beta(1)$ and $\phi \in \Phi, \psi \in \Psi$. This mapping $K: X \to X$ is called as a generalized (ϕ, ψ) –contractive mapping if it satisfies

$$\phi(\mathbf{k}_{\times}d_{N}(K\varsigma,K\eta)) \leq \phi(N(\varsigma,\eta)) \perp \psi(M(\varsigma,\eta)) \dots (3)$$

for any $\varsigma, \eta \in X$ with $\varsigma \leq \eta$.

Theorem 3.7. Let (X, d_N, \leq) be a complete partially ordered non-Newtonian metric space, $k \in \mathbb{R}^+(N)$, $k \leq \beta(1)$ and $K: X \to X$ be an almost generalized (ϕ, ψ) –contractive mapping, continuous, nondecreasing mapping. If there exists $\varsigma_0 \in X$, $\varsigma_0 \leq K \varsigma_0$, then K has a fixed point in X.

Proof. Let we take $\varsigma_0 \in X$, $K\varsigma_0 = \varsigma_0$, then K has a fixed point in X. Now, we suppose that $\varsigma_0 \prec K\varsigma_0$, then establish a sequence $\{\varsigma_n\} \subset X$ by $\varsigma_{n+1} = K\varsigma_n$, for $n \ge 0$. Because K is non-decreasing, we get

$$\varsigma_0 \prec K\varsigma_0 = \varsigma_1 \preccurlyeq \ldots \preccurlyeq \varsigma_n \preccurlyeq K\varsigma_n = \varsigma_{n+1} \preccurlyeq \ldots (4)$$

If for some $n_0 \in \mathbb{N}$, such that $\zeta_{n_0} = \zeta_{n_0+1}$ then from above inequality, ζ_{n_0} is a fixed point of K. Assume that, $\zeta_{n+1} \neq \zeta_n$, for all $n \ge 1$. Since $\zeta_n > \zeta_{n-1}$ and from the condition (3), then

$$\begin{aligned} \phi(d_N(\varsigma_n,\varsigma_{n+1})) &\doteq \phi(d_N(K\varsigma_{n-1},K\varsigma_n)) \\ &\leq \phi(k_{\times}d_N(K\varsigma_{n-1},K\varsigma_n)) \\ &\leq \phi(N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n)) \doteq \psi(M(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n)) \dots (5) \end{aligned}$$

So, we obtain

$$d_N(\varsigma_n,\varsigma_{n+1}) \stackrel{\cdot}{=} d_N(K\varsigma_{n-1},K\varsigma_n)) \stackrel{\cdot}{\leq} \frac{\beta(1)}{k} \stackrel{\cdot}{\times} N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n) \dots (6) ,$$

Where

If

$$N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n) = max\{\frac{d_N(\varsigma_n,K\varsigma_n) \div [\beta(1) \div d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},K\varsigma_{n-1})]}{\beta(1) \div d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},K\varsigma_{n-1}) \div d_N(\varsigma_n,K\varsigma_n)}{\beta(1) \div d_N(K\varsigma_{n-1},K\varsigma_n)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},K\varsigma_{n-1}) \div d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},K\varsigma_n)}{\beta(1) \div d_N(S_{n-1},K\varsigma_n) \div d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},K\varsigma_n)}, d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n)\}$$

$$= max\{\frac{d_N(\varsigma_n,\varsigma_{n+1}) \div [\beta(1) \div d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n)]}{\beta(1) \div d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n) \div d_N(\varsigma_n,\varsigma_{n+1})}{\beta(1) \div d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n) \div d_N(\varsigma_n,\varsigma_{n+1})}{\beta(1) \div d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n)}, \frac{d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n) \div d_N(\varsigma_n,\varsigma_{n+1})}{\beta(1) \div d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n)}, d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n)\}$$

$$= max\{d_N(\varsigma_n,\varsigma_{n+1}), d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n)\} \dots (7).$$

$$max\{d_N(\varsigma_n,\varsigma_{n+1}), d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n)\} = d_N(\varsigma_n,\varsigma_{n+1}) \quad \text{for some } n \ge 1, \text{ then from } (6) \text{ follows}$$

$$d_N(\varsigma_n,\varsigma_{n+1}) \div \frac{\beta(1)}{k} \div d_N(\varsigma_n,\varsigma_{n+1}) \dots (8)$$

which is a contradiction. That is, $max\{d_N(\varsigma_n, \varsigma_{n+1}), d_N(\varsigma_{n-1}, \varsigma_n)\} = d_N(\varsigma_{n-1}, \varsigma_n)$ for $n \ge 1$.

We get from (6),

$$d_N(\varsigma_n,\varsigma_{n+1}) \leq \frac{\beta(1)}{k} \times d_N(\varsigma_{n-1},\varsigma_n) \dots (9)$$

As $\beta(0) < \frac{\beta(1)}{k} < \beta(1)$, the sequence $\{\varsigma_n\}$ is a Cauchy sequence and from X is complete, then there exists some $\mu \in X$ such that $\varsigma_n \xrightarrow{N} \mu$. Since K is continuous,

$$K\mu = K(\underset{n \to +\infty}{\lim} \varsigma_n) = \underset{n \to +\infty}{\lim} K\varsigma_n = \underset{n \to +\infty}{\lim} \varsigma_{n+1} = \mu \dots (10).$$

Therefore, μ is a fixed point of *K*.

Theorem 3.8. Let (X, d_N, \leq) be a complete partially ordered non-Newtonian metric space, $k \leq \beta(1)$. Assume that *X* satisfies, if a nondecreasing sequence $\varsigma_n \xrightarrow{N} \mu$ in *X*, then $\varsigma_n \leq \mu$ for all $n \in \mathbb{N}$, and $\mu = sup\varsigma_n$. Let $K: X \to X$ be a nondecreasing mapping such that the contraction condition (3) is satisfied. If there exists $\varsigma_0 \in X$, $\varsigma_0 \leq K\varsigma_0$, then *K* has a fixed point in *X*.

Proof. From the proof of above theorem, we take a nondecreasing Cauchy sequence $\{\varsigma_n\}$, which converges to μ in *X*. Therefore we have $\varsigma_n \leq \mu$ for any $n \in \mathbb{N}$, implies that $\mu = sup\varsigma_n$.

We assume that $K\mu \neq \mu$. Let

$$N(\varsigma_{n},\mu) = max\{\frac{d_{N}(\mu,K\mu) \times [\beta(1) + d_{N}(\varsigma_{n},K\varsigma_{n})]}{\beta(1) + d_{N}(\varsigma_{n},\mu)}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma_{n},K\varsigma_{n}) \times d_{N}(\mu,K\mu)}{\beta(1) + d_{N}(K\varsigma_{n},K\mu)}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma_{n},K\varsigma_{n}) \times d_{N}(\rho_{n},K\mu)}{\beta(1) + d_{N}(\varsigma_{n},K\mu) + d_{N}(\mu,K\varsigma_{n})}, d_{N}(\varsigma_{n},\mu)\} \dots (11)$$

and

$$M(\varsigma_n,\mu) = max \left\{ \frac{d_N(\mu,K\mu) \downarrow [\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma_n,K\varsigma_n)]}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_N(\varsigma_n,\mu)}, d_N(\varsigma_n,\mu) \right\} \dots (12)$$

Letting $n \to +\infty$ and from $\lim_{n \to +\infty} \varsigma_n = \mu$,

$$\lim_{n \to +\infty} N(\varsigma_n, \mu) = \max\{d_N(\mu, K\mu), \beta(0), \beta(0), \beta(0)\} = d_N(\mu, K\mu) \dots (13)$$

and

$$\lim_{n \to +\infty} M(\varsigma_n, \mu) = \max\{d_N(\mu, K\mu), \beta(0)\} = d_N(\mu, K\mu) \dots (14)$$

As $\varsigma_n \leq \mu$ for all $n \in \mathbb{N}$, we obtain that

$$\phi(d_N(\varsigma_{n+1}, K\mu)) = \phi(d_N(K\varsigma_n, K\mu))$$

$$\leq \phi(k \times d_N(K\varsigma_n, K\mu))$$

$$\leq \phi(N(\varsigma_n, \mu)) \perp \psi(M(\varsigma_n, \mu)) \dots (15)$$

Therefore,

$$\phi(d_N(\mu, K\mu)) \leq \phi(d_N(\mu, K\mu)) \perp \psi(d_N(\mu, K\mu)) \geq \phi(d_N(\mu, K\mu)) \dots (16)$$

This is a contradiction. In this case $\mu = K\mu$, i.e. *K* has a fixed point.

Theorem 3.9. Let (X, d_N, \leq) be a complete partially ordered non-Newtonian metric space, $k \leq \beta(1)$ and $K: X \to X$ be an almost generalized (ϕ, ψ) –contractive mapping, continuous, nondecreasing mapping and every pair of elements has a lower bound or an upper bound. If there exists $\varsigma_0 \in X$, $\varsigma_0 \leq K \varsigma_0$, then K has a unique fixed point in X.

TIEM 2023

Proof. From the proof of above two theorems, we conclude that *K* has a nonempty set of fixed points. Assume that ς^* and η^* be two fixed points of *K* then, we claim that $\varsigma^* = \eta^*$. Suppose that $\varsigma^* \neq \eta^*$, then from the hypothesis we have

$$\phi(d_N(K\varsigma^*, K\eta^*)) \leq \phi(k \geq d_N(K\varsigma^*, K\eta^*)) \leq \phi(N(\varsigma^*, \eta^*)) \perp \psi(M(\varsigma^*, \eta^*)) \dots (17)$$

Consequently, we get

$$d_N(\varsigma^*,\eta^*) = d_N(K\varsigma^*,K\eta^*) \leq \frac{\beta(1)}{k} \geq N(\varsigma^*,\eta^*) \dots (18)$$

where

$$N(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) = max\{\frac{d_{N}(\eta^{*},K\eta^{*}) \downarrow [\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},K\varsigma^{*})]}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},K\varsigma^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\eta^{*},K\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(K\varsigma^{*},K\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},K\varsigma^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\eta^{*},K\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},K\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\eta^{*},K\varsigma^{*})}, d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})\}$$

$$= max\{\frac{d_{N}(\eta^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow [\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\varsigma^{*})]}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\varsigma^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\eta^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\varsigma^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\eta^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\varsigma^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\eta^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\eta^{*},\varsigma^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}, \frac{d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*}) \downarrow d_{N}(\varsigma^{*},\eta^{*})}{\beta(1) \downarrow$$

From (19), we get

$$d_N(\varsigma^*,\eta^*) \stackrel{\scriptstyle{\scriptstyle{\leq}}}{=} \frac{\beta(1)}{k} \stackrel{\scriptstyle{\scriptstyle{\times}}}{\times} d_N(\varsigma^*,\eta^*) \stackrel{\scriptstyle{\scriptstyle{\leftarrow}}}{=} d_N(\varsigma^*,\eta^*) \dots (20)$$

which is a contradiction. Hence $\varsigma^* = \eta^*$. This completes the proof.

Let (X, d_N, \leq) be a complete partially ordered non-Newtonian metric space, $k \geq \beta(1)$ and the $K, T: X \rightarrow X$ be two mappings. Set

$$N_{T}(\varsigma,\eta) = max\{\frac{d_{N}(T\eta,K\eta) \times [\beta(1) + d_{N}(T\varsigma,K\varsigma)]}{\beta(1) + d_{N}(T\varsigma,T\eta)}, \frac{d_{N}(T\varsigma,K\varsigma) \times d_{N}(T\eta,K\eta)}{\beta(1) + d_{N}(K\varsigma,K\eta)}, \frac{d_{N}(T\varsigma,K\varsigma) \times d_{N}(T\varsigma,K\eta)}{\beta(1) + d_{N}(T\varsigma,K\eta) + d_{N}(T\eta,K\varsigma)}, d_{N}(T\varsigma,T\eta)\} \dots (21)$$

and

$$M_T(\varsigma,\eta) = max \left\{ \frac{d_N(T\eta,K\eta) \cdot [\beta(1) + d_N(T\varsigma,K\varsigma)]}{\beta(1) + d_N(T\eta,T\varsigma)}, d_N(T\varsigma,T\eta) \right\} \dots (22).$$

Definition 3.10. Let (X, d_N, \leq) be a partially ordered non-Newtonian metric space with $k \geq \beta(1)$. The mapping $K: X \to X$ is called a generalized (ϕ, ψ) –contraction mapping with respect to $T: X \to X$ for some $\phi \in \Phi$ and $\psi \in \Psi$, if

$$\phi(k_{\times} d_N(K\varsigma, K\eta)) \leq \phi(N_T(\varsigma, \eta)) \perp \psi(M_T(\varsigma, \eta)) \dots (23)$$

for any $\zeta, \eta \in X$ with $T\zeta \leq T\eta$, where $N_T(\zeta, \eta)$ and $M_T(\zeta, \eta)$ are given by (21) and (22), respectively.

Theorem 3.11. Let (X, d_N, \leq) be a complete partially ordered non-Newtonian metric space with $k \leq \beta(1)$ and the $K: X \to X$ be an almost generalized (ϕ, ψ) – contractive mapping with respect to $T: X \to X$, K and T are continuous such that K is a monotone T non decreasing mapping, compatible with T and $KX \subseteq TX$. If for some $\varsigma_0 \in X$ such that $T\varsigma_0 \leq K\varsigma_0$, then K and T have a coincidence point in X.

Proof. We construct two sequences $\{\varsigma_n\}$ and $\{\eta_n\}$ in X such that

TIEM 2023

$$\eta_n = K\varsigma_n = T\varsigma_{n+1} \dots (24)$$

for all $n \in \mathbb{N}$, for which

$$T\varsigma_0 \leq T\varsigma_1 \leq T\varsigma_2 \leq \ldots \leq T\varsigma_n \leq T\varsigma_{n+1} \leq \ldots \quad \ldots (25)$$

We have to show that

$$d_N(\eta_n, \eta_{n+1}) \leq \gamma \times d_N(\eta_{n-1}, \eta_n), \dots (26)$$

for all $n \ge 1, \gamma \in \mathbb{R}^+(N)$ and $\beta(0) \le \gamma < \frac{\beta(1)}{k}$. Therefore, we have

$$\phi\left(k_{\dot{\times}}d_N(\eta_n,\eta_{n+1})\right) = \phi\left(k_{\dot{\times}}d_N(K\varsigma_n,K\varsigma_{n+1})\right)$$

$$\leq \phi(N_T(\varsigma_n, \varsigma_{n+1})) \perp \psi(M_T(\varsigma_n, \varsigma_{n+1})) \dots (27)$$

where $\lim_{n \to +\infty} K \varsigma_n = \lim_{n \to +\infty} T \varsigma_{n+1} = \eta$.

$$N_{T}(\varsigma_{n},\varsigma_{n+1}) = max\{\frac{d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n+1},K\varsigma_{n+1})[\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},K\varsigma_{n})]}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},T\varsigma_{n+1})}, \frac{d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},K\varsigma_{n}) \downarrow d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},K\varsigma_{n+1})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(K\varsigma_{n},K\varsigma_{n+1})}, \frac{d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},K\varsigma_{n}) \downarrow d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},K\varsigma_{n+1})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},K\varsigma_{n+1}) \downarrow d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n+1},K\varsigma_{n})}, d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},T\varsigma_{n+1})\}$$

$$= max\{\frac{d_{N}(\eta_{n},\eta_{n+1}) \downarrow [\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\eta_{n-1},\eta_{n})]}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\eta_{n-1},\eta_{n})}, \frac{d_{N}(\eta_{n-1},\eta_{n}) \downarrow d_{N}(\eta_{n-1},\eta_{n})}{\beta(1) \downarrow d_{N}(\eta_{n-1},\eta_{n+1})}, d_{N}(\eta_{n-1},\eta_{n})\}$$

$$\leq max\{d_N(\eta_{n-1},\eta_n), d_N(\eta_n,\eta_{n+1})\}$$

and

$$M_{T}(\varsigma_{n},\varsigma_{n+1}) = max\{\frac{d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n+1},K\varsigma_{n+1}) \times [\beta(1) + d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},K\varsigma_{n})]}{\beta(1) + d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},T\varsigma_{n+1})}, d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},T\varsigma_{n+1})\}$$

= max $\{\frac{d_{N}(\eta_{n},\eta_{n+1}) \times [\beta(1) + d_{N}(\eta_{n-1},\eta_{n})]}{\beta(1) + d_{N}(T\eta_{n-1},T\eta_{n})}, d_{N}(\eta_{n-1},\eta_{n} = max\{d_{N}(\eta_{n-1},\eta_{n}), d_{N}(\eta_{n},\eta_{n+1})\}\}$

Therefore we get

$$\phi(k : d_N(\eta_n, \eta_{n+1})) : \phi(\max\{d_N(\eta_{n-1}, \eta_n), d_N(\eta_n, \eta_{n+1})\})$$

$$: \psi(\max\{d_N(\eta_{n-1}, \eta_n), d_N(\eta_n, \eta_{n+1})\}) \dots (28)$$

If $\beta(0) \leq d_N(\eta_{n-1}, \eta_n) \leq d_N(\eta_n, \eta_{n+1})$ for some $n \in \mathbb{N}$, then we obtain

$$\phi\left(k \cdot d_N(\eta_n, \eta_{n+1})\right) \leq \phi\left(d_N(\eta_n, \eta_{n+1})\right) \perp \psi(d_N(\eta_n, \eta_{n+1}) \geq \phi\left(d_N(\eta_n, \eta_{n+1})\right) \dots (29)$$

and thus

$$k \stackrel{\cdot}{\times} d_N(\eta_n, \eta_{n+1}) \stackrel{\cdot}{\leq} d_N(\eta_n, \eta_{n+1}) \dots (30).$$

This is a contradiction so that

$$k \stackrel{\cdot}{\times} d_N(\eta_n, \eta_{n+1}) \stackrel{\cdot}{\leq} d_N(\eta_{n-1}, \eta_n) \dots (31)$$

is found. Consequently, $\{\eta_n\} = \{K\varsigma_n\} = \{T\varsigma_{n+1}\}$ is a non-Newtonian Cauchy sequence and so non-Newtonian converges to a η in X as X is complete such that

$$\lim_{n \to +\infty} K \varsigma_n = \lim_{n \to +\infty} T \varsigma_{n+1} = \eta.$$

TIEM 2023

Thus by the compatibility of *K* and *T*, we obtain that

$$\lim_{n \to +\infty} d_N(TK\varsigma_n, KT\varsigma_n) = \beta(0)...(32)$$

and from the continuity of K and T, we have

$$\lim_{n \to +\infty} TK\varsigma_n = T\eta, \quad \lim_{n \to +\infty} KT\varsigma_n = K\eta. \dots (33)$$

From the triangle inequality,

$$\frac{\beta(1)}{k} \div d_N(K\eta, T\eta) \doteq d_N(K\eta, KT\varsigma_n) \ddagger k \div d_N(KT\varsigma_n, TK\varsigma_n) \ddagger k \div d_N(TK\varsigma_n, T\eta) \dots (34)$$

Thus, $d_N(K\varsigma, T\varsigma) = \beta(0), n \to \infty$ and ς is a non-Newtonian coincidence point of K and T.

Theorem 3.12. Let (X, d_N, \leq) be a complete partially ordered non-Newtonian metric space with $k \leq \beta(1)$ and the $K: X \to X$ be an almost generalized (ϕ, ψ) -contractive mapping with respect to $T: X \to X$, X satisfies for any nondecreasing sequence $\{T\varsigma_n\} \subset X$ with $\lim_{n \to +\infty} T\varsigma_n = T\varsigma$ in TX, where TX is a closed subset of X implies that $T\varsigma_n \leq T\varsigma$, $T\varsigma \leq T(T\varsigma)$ for $n \in \mathbb{N}$. If there exists $\varsigma_0 \in X$, $T\varsigma_0 \leq K\varsigma_0$, then the weakly compatible mappings T and K have a coincidence point in X. Moreover, T and K have a common fixed point, if T and K commute at their coincidence points.

Proof. The sequence, $\{\eta_n\} = \{K\varsigma_n\} = \{T\varsigma_{n+1}\}$ is a non-Newtonian Cauchy sequence from the proof of Theorem 3.11. Because *TX* is closed, then there is some $\eta \in X$ such that

$$\lim_{n \to +\infty} K \varsigma_n = \lim_{n \to +\infty} T \varsigma_{n+1} = T \eta.$$

From hypotheses, $T\varsigma_n \leq T\eta$ for all $n \in \mathbb{N}$.

Now, we have to prove that η is a coincidence point of T and K. From equation (23), we have

$$\phi(k_{\times}d_N(K\varsigma_n,K\varsigma)) \leq \phi(N_T(\varsigma_n,\varsigma)) \perp \psi(M_T(\varsigma_n,\varsigma)), \dots (35)$$

where

$$N_{T}(\varsigma_{n},\eta) = max\{\frac{d_{N}(T\eta, K\eta) \div [\beta(1) \div d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n}, K\varsigma_{n})]}{\beta(1) \div d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n}, T\eta)}, \frac{d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n}, K\varsigma_{n})d_{N}(T\eta, K\eta)}{\beta(1) \div d_{N}(K\varsigma_{n}, K\eta)}, \frac{d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n}, K\varsigma_{n})d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n}, K\eta)}{\beta(1) \div d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n}, K\eta) \div d_{N}(T\eta, K\varsigma_{n})}, d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n}, T\eta)\}$$

$$\xrightarrow{N} max\{d_{N}(T\eta, K\eta), \beta(0), \beta(0), \beta(0)\}$$

$$= d_{N}(T\eta, K\eta) \text{ as } n \to \infty,$$

and

$$M_{T}(\varsigma_{n},\eta) = max\{\frac{d_{N}(T\eta,K\eta) \times [\beta(1) + d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},K\varsigma_{n})]}{\beta(1) + d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},T\eta)}, d_{N}(T\varsigma_{n},T\eta)\}$$

$$\stackrel{N}{\rightarrow} max\{d_{N}(T\eta,K\eta),\beta(0)\} = d_{N}(T\eta,K\eta)$$

as $n \to \infty$.

Therefore (35) we obtain

$$\phi(k_{\times n \to +\infty}^{lim} d_N(K\varsigma_n, K\varsigma)) \leq \phi(d_N(T\eta, K\eta)) - \psi(d_N(T\eta, K\eta)) \leq \phi(d_N(T\eta, K\eta)) \dots (36)$$

Consequently, we get

$$\lim_{n \to +\infty} d_N(K\varsigma_n, K\varsigma) \stackrel{>}{\leq} \frac{\beta(1)}{k} \stackrel{>}{\times} d_N(T\eta, K\eta)....(37)$$

Further by triangular inequality, we have

$$\frac{\beta(1)}{k} \stackrel{\cdot}{\times} d_N(T\eta, K\eta) \stackrel{\cdot}{\leq} d_N(T\eta, K\varsigma_n) \stackrel{\cdot}{+} d_N(K\varsigma_n, K\eta) \dots (38)$$

then (37) and (38) lead to contradiction, if $T\eta \neq K\eta$. Hence, $T\eta = K\eta$.

Let $T\eta = K\eta = \omega$, that is T and K commute at ω , then $K\omega = K(T\eta) = T(K\eta) = T\omega$. Since $T\eta = T(T\eta) = T\omega$, then by equation (35) with $T\eta = K\eta$ and $T\omega = K\omega$, we get

$$\phi(k : d_N(K\eta, K\omega)) \leq \phi(N_T(\eta, \omega))) : \psi(M_T(\eta, \omega)) \geq \phi((K\eta, K\omega))...(39)$$

or equivalently,

$$k \stackrel{\cdot}{\times} d_N(K\eta, K\omega) \stackrel{\cdot}{\leq} d_N(K\eta, K\omega),$$

which is a contradiction, if $T\eta \neq K\omega$. Thus, $K\eta = K\omega = \omega$. Hence, $K\eta = T\omega = \omega$, that is, ω is a common fixed point of K and T.

3 CONCLUSION

In this work, some fixed point, coincidence point theorems for mappings satisfying generalized (ϕ , ψ)-contraction conditions in complete partially ordered non-Newtonian metric spaces are demonstrated. These theorems generalize some known results from the literature to non-Newtonian metric spaces.

Acknowledgments

The author is thankful to the referees and editor for making valuable suggestions leading to the better presentations of the paper.

References

- [1] A. E. Bashirov, E. M. Kurpınar, and A. Özyapıcı, "Multiplicative calculus and its applications," J. Math. Anal. Appl., vol. 337, pp. 36–48, 2008.
- [2] M. Özavşar and A. C. Çevikel, "Fixed points of multiplicative contraction mappings on multiplicative metric spaces," Preprint, arXiv:1205.5131v1[matn.GN], 2012.
- [3] I. A. Bakhtin, "The contraction principle in quasimetric spaces," Func. An. Ulianowsk, Gos Fed Ins., vol. 30, pp. 26–37, 1989.
- [4] S. Czerwik, "Contraction mappings in b-metric spaces," Acta. Math. Univ. Ostrav., vol. 1, pp. 5–11, 1993.
- [5] S. Aleksić, H. Huang, Z. D. Mitrović, and S. Radenović, "Remarks on some fixed point results in b-metric spaces," J. Fixed Point Theory Appl., vol. 20, art. no. 147, 2018, https://doi.org/10.1007/s11784-018-2.
- [6] S. Aleksić, Z. D. Mitrović, and S. Radenović, "On some recent fixed point results forsingle and multivalued mappings in b-metric spaces," J. Fasciculi Mathematici, 2018, https://doi.org/10.1515/fascmath.2018-0013.
- [7] A. Amini-Harandi, "Fixed point theory for quasi-contraction maps in b-metric spaces," Fixed Point Theory, vol. 15, no. 2, pp. 351–358, 2014.
- [8] I. Altun, F. Şola Erduran, and H. Şimşek, "Generalized contractions on partial metric spaces," Topology and its Applications, vol. 157, no. 18, pp. 2778–2785, 2010.
- [9] M. Grossman and R. Katz, Non-Newtonian Calculus, Lowell Technological Institute, 1972.
- [10] A. F. Cakmak and F. Basar, "Some new results on sequence spaces with respect to on-Newtonian calculus," J. Inequal. Appl., 2012, doi:10.1186/1029-242X-2012-228.
- [11] D. Binbasioglu, S. Demiriz, and D. Turkoglu, "Fixed points of non-Newtonian contraction mappings on non-Newtonian mappings on non-Newtonian metric spaces," J. Fixed Point Theory Appl., vol. 18, no. 2016, pp. 213–224, 2016, doi:10.1007/s11784-015-0271-y.
- [12] T. G. Bhaskar and V. Lakshmikantham, "Fixed point theorems in partially ordered metric spaces and applications." Nonlinear Anal., vol. 65, pp. 1379–1393, 2006.
- [13] V. Lakshmikantham and L. J. Ćirić, "Coupled fxed point theorems for nonlinear contractions in partially ordered metric spaces," Nonlinear Anal., vol. 70, pp. 4341–4349, 2009.
- [14] A. Aghajani, M. Abbas, and J. R. Roshan, "Common fixed point of generalized weak contractive mappings

in partially ordered b-metric spaces," Math. Slovaca, vol. 64, no. 4, pp. 941-960, 2014.

- A. Aghajani and R. Arab, "Fixed points of (ψ, ϕ, θ) -contractive mappings in partially ordered b-metric [15] spaces and applications to quadratic integral equations," Fixed Point Theory Appl., art. no. 245, 2013.
- H. Huang, S. Radenović, and J. Vujakovic "On some recent coincidence and immediate consequences in [16] partially ordered b-metric spaces," Fixed Point Theory Appl., vol. 2015, art. no. 63, 2015, doi:10.1186/s13663-015-0308-3.
- J. R. Roshan, V. Parvaneh, and I. Altun, "Some coincidence point results in ordered b-metric spaces and [17] applications in a system of integral equations," Appl. Math. Comput., vol. 226, pp. 725–737, 2014. B. Mitiku, K. Karusala, and S. R. Namana, "Some fixed point results of generalized (φ , ψ)-contractive
- [18] mappings in ordered b-metric spaces," BMC Res. Notes, vol. 13, art. no. 537, 2020.



December 1-3, 2023

Activated Carbon-Based Adsorbent for Hydrogen Purification

Seda Tiras^{*1}, Bilge Coskuner Filiz², Aysel Kanturk Figen³

¹Yıldız Technical University, Chemical Engineering, Istanbul, Turkey ²Yıldız Technical University, Metallurgy and Materials Engineering, Istanbul, Turkey ³Yıldız Technical University, Clean Energy Technology Institute, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Fossil fuels have dominated today's energy landscape, providing over 65% of global electricity generation. However, their finite nature, depletion risks, and their harmful effects on the environment call for a shift to sustainable energy sources. Hydrogen is one of the prominent alternative energy sources, with a focus on materials for hydrogen storage. Among these, ammonia stands out for its high hydrogen capacity, low storage pressure, and stability during long-term storage. To use hydrogen effectively, it must be purified by separating the ammonia generated during hydrogen production such as NH₃ cracking or NH₃BH₃ thermolysis. Activated carbon, renowned for its porous structures, which can be manufactured from a variety of carbonaceous raw materials, is utilized for this purpose because of its exceptional adsorption capabilities in capturing, storing molecules and ions from solutions.

In this study, the activated carbon (AC) based adsorbents investigated for the hydrogen purification applications. In this aim, experimental setups based on several activated carbons in the different types (granular and powdered) have been tested for the adsorption ability over ammonia gas. Granular and powdered are supplied from marked.

The results showed that the adsorption performance of the materials was affected from the morphological structure. Based on the shape of the carbon based material the capability versus water and ammonia were drastically effected and granular activated carbon found best for purification application not only with its practical usage but also with its high capacity up to 5 wt.% and 14 wt.% for ammonia and humidity capacity, respectively.

Keywords: Ammonia, Hydrogen, Activated carbon, Adsorption



December 1-3, 2023

Finding the Density of a Closed or Open System at Time *t* with Eigenvalues and Eigenvectors

Ramazan Simsek^{*1}

¹Bayburt University, Technical Sciences Vocational School, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

Eigenvalues and eigenvectors have an important function in both the control of a system and damage detection in engineering disciplines, as in mathematics. Therefore, in this study, the system density at any moment $t \ge 0$ of a mechanism with a closed or open system is found with the help of eigenvalues and eigenvectors, and the cases of eigenvalues being real, real and multiple and finally complex are discussed. Then, the mathematical relationships between these situations are given. Finally, examples are given to demonstrate the practical applications of relevant theoretical situations in the engineering discipline.

Keywords: Eigenvalues, Eigenvectors, Mathematic, Engineering

1 INTRODUCTION

In this section, the definitions of eigenvalues and eigenvectors of matrices that we will use in the future are given [1-6]. Again, the eigenvalue and eigenvector of the solution of a system of equations were defined separately [7, 8].

Definition 1.1: For a square matrix A of type nxn,

$$|A - \lambda I| = 0 \tag{1}$$

The nonzero number λ that satisfies the equation is called the eigenvalue of matrix A. Corresponding to a non-zero number λ

$$Av = \lambda v (A - \lambda I)v = 0$$
⁽²⁾

the non-zero vector v is called the eigenvector [2-4]. Located in Definition 1.1,

$$|A - \lambda I| = \begin{vmatrix} a_{11} - \lambda & a_{12} & \cdots & a_{1n} \\ a_{21} & a_{22} - \lambda & \cdots & a_{2n} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \vdots \\ a_{n1} & a_{n1} & \cdots & a_{nn} - \lambda \end{vmatrix} = 0$$
(3)

equation (3) is called the characteristic equation of matrix A. The roots of this equation are called the eigenvalues of the matrix. We can easily see with the help of the type of matrix,

$$b_n \lambda^n + b_{n-1} \lambda^{n-1} + \dots + b_1 \lambda + b_0 = 0$$
⁽⁴⁾

n. returns the degree polynomial. According to the fundamental theory of algebra, this polynomial has at most n roots that differ from each other. This shows us that it can have n eigenvalues. These roots can be real numbers, multiple real numbers and complex numbers [1, 7].

Let us give a definition of how to find the solution of a homogeneous, linear and constant-coefficient system of equations of order 1 using eigenvalues.

TIEM 2023

Definition 1.2: For
$$\frac{dx}{dt} = x'$$

 $x'_{1} = a_{11}x_{1} + a_{12}x_{2} + \dots + a_{1n}x_{n}$
 $x'_{2} = a_{21}x_{1} + a_{22}x_{2} + \dots + a_{2n}x_{n}$
 \vdots
 $x'_{n} = a_{n1}x_{1} + a_{n2}x_{2} + \dots + a_{nn}x_{n}$
(5)

The solution of the equation system is found by using the elimination method of n linearly independent x_1, x_2, \dots, x_n solutions and the general solution of this equation is written as

$$x(t) = c_1 x_1 + c_2 x_2 + \dots + c_n x_n \tag{6}$$

the linear combination of $x_i = \lambda_i e^{\lambda t}$ solutions for $c_i \in \mathbb{R}$ [9].

Let's find this solution with the help of matrices.

Definition 1.3: If we take $x_i = v_i e^{\lambda t}$, $x'_i = \lambda v_i e^{\lambda t}$ where $\lambda, v_1, v_2, \dots, v_n$ are constant numbers, we can write equation (5) as

$$X' = Ax \tag{7}$$

with the help of matrices. Equation (7) is called the matrix representation of the system of equations.

If we replace the $x_i = v_i e^{\lambda t}$ and $x'_i = \lambda v_i e^{\lambda t}$ values in equation (7), it will be $\lambda v e^{\lambda t} = Av e^{\lambda t}$ and if the $e^{\lambda t}$ value is simplified and arranged,

$$Av = \lambda v$$

$$|A - \lambda I| = 0$$
(8)

the equation is obtained. Here, where v is a non-zero vector and λ is a constant number, we can write the solution of equation (8) in $(A - \lambda I)v = 0$ form and find it with the help of the polynomial we defined in equation (4). The name of this method we will use comes from the definition of eigenvalue and eigenvector [7]. Moreover, for the system of equations (7) to have a non-trivial solution, a necessary and sufficient condition is that the determinant of the matrix of coefficients A is not zero.

Theorem 1.1: If the eigenvalue of the coefficient matrix A of the first-order linear $\frac{dx}{dt} = Ax$ system is λ and v is an eigenvector corresponding to the eigenvalue of λ , then the $x(t) = ve^{\lambda t}$ system has a nontrivial solution [1, 7-9].

So, in the second part, let's consider the situations we may encounter in solving equation (4).

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

Eigenvalue method: In this section, we will discuss the situations of the eigenvalues of λ_i in equation (6), which is the solution of the equation system given by equation (7).

2.1 Case of Different Real Eigenvalues

With the help of the solution of equation (4), if each of the λ_i eigenvalues is different and real, we can find the v_i eigenvectors that satisfy equation (2) for each λ_i value. Thus, we find the general solution we expressed in (6) [1]. Let's examine this situation with an example.

Example 2.1: Find the general solution of the system of equations given below.

$$\begin{aligned} x'_1 &= 4x_1 - 2x_2 \\ x'_2 &= x_1 + x_2 \end{aligned}$$
 (9)

Solution: The matrix form of the system given by equation (9)

$$X'_{i} = \begin{bmatrix} 4 & -2\\ 1 & 1 \end{bmatrix} x \tag{10}$$

and the characteristic equation of the coefficients matrix of this system is

$$\begin{vmatrix} 4 - \lambda & -2 \\ 1 & 1 - \lambda \end{vmatrix} = (4 - \lambda)(1 - \lambda) + 2$$
$$= \lambda^2 - 5\lambda + 6 = (\lambda - 2)(\lambda - 3) = 0$$

Find the different eigenvalues of $\lambda_1 = 2$ and $\lambda_2 = 3$. Now, let's find the $v_i = \begin{bmatrix} a_i & b_i \end{bmatrix}^T$ eigenvectors for each λ_i value with the help of $(A - \lambda I)v = 0$ eigenvector equations for the *A* matrix given in equation (10).

$$(A - \lambda_i I) v_i = \begin{bmatrix} 4 - \lambda_i & -2 \\ 1 & 1 - \lambda_i \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} a_i \\ b_i \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
 (11)

If we solve equation (11) for $\lambda_1 = 2$

$$\begin{bmatrix} 2 & -2 \\ 1 & -1 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} a_1 \\ b_1 \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

from the equation

$$2a_{1} - 2b_{1} = 0$$

$$a_{1} - b_{1} = 0$$
(12)

an identical system of equations is obtained. If $b_1 = 1$ is taken in this system of equations, $a_1 = 1$ is obtained. In this case, $v_1 = \begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix}$ is the eigenvector corresponding to the eigenvalue of $\lambda_1 = 2$. Thus we find solution $x_1 = \begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix} e^{2t}$.

Likewise, if we solve equation (11) for the eigenvalue of $\lambda_2 = 3$,

$$\begin{bmatrix} 1 & -2 \\ 1 & -2 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} a_2 \\ b_2 \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

from the equation

$$a_2 - 2b_2 = 0$$
$$a_2 - 2b_2 = 0$$

an identical system of equations is obtained. If $b_2 = 1$ is taken in this system of equations, $a_2 = 2$ is obtained. In this case, $v_2 = \begin{bmatrix} 2 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix}$ is the eigenvector corresponding to the eigenvalue of $\lambda_2 = 3$. Thus we find solution

 $x_2 = \begin{bmatrix} 2 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix} e^{3t}$. The v_1 and v_2 eigenvectors corresponding to these two eigenvalues are linearly independent and the general solution of the system of equations (9) is

$$x(t) = c_1 x_1 + c_2 x_2 = c_1 \begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix} e^{2t} + c_2 \begin{bmatrix} 2 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix} e^{3t}$$

obtained. If we write the general solution separately, component by component,

 $x_1 = c_1 e^{2t} + 2c_2 e^{3t}$ $x_2 = c_1 e^{2t} + c_2 e^{3t}$

The solution curves of this solution system we have obtained are seen as two hyperbola families with the same asymptote pair, as in Figure 1. Moreover, it is clearly seen that from the general solution, line $x_2 = -2x_1$ is obtained for $c_1 = 0$ and line $x_2 = x_1$ is obtained for $c_2 = 0$.



Figure 1. Solution curves

2.2 The Case of Real and Multiple Eigenvalues

In this case, eigenvectors with multiple eigenvalues are found, and if possible, eigenvectors are chosen to be linearly independent from each other. Here, it is sufficient to choose as many linearly independent eigenvectors as the eigenvalue has. Situations where this selection cannot be made are outside our study [8, 9].

2.3 The Case of Complex Eigenvalue

We expressed a system of equations given by equation (5) as a matrix with the help of (8). The eigenvalue roots of the characteristic equation of this system of equations, which we express in (4), may be in complex numbers. Even in this case, the system of equations has n number of linearly independent solutions that differ from each other [1, 7]. In this study, non-existence situations were not addressed.

There are eigenvectors corresponding to each of these eigenvalue solutions. However, the only thing that is different here is that the conjugate of the eigenvalue found as a complex number is also an eigenvalue, and the eigenvectors corresponding to the eigenvalues that are complex numbers are complex numbers. That is, if $\lambda_1 = a + bi$ in equation (8) is an eigenvalue, $\lambda_2 = \overline{\lambda_1} = a - bi$ is also an eigenvalue. Again, if $v_1 = v + ui$, is an eigenvector for $\lambda_1 = a + bi$ eigenvalue, $v_2 = \overline{v_1} = v - ui$, eigenvector is an eigenvector corresponding to $\lambda_2 = a - bi$ eigenvalue. These equations can be easily seen with the help of equation (8). We can write the general solution consisting of these eigenvectors as follows, with the help of Euler's formula. The eigenvalues are $\lambda_1 = a + bi$, $\lambda_2 = a - bi$ and the eigenvectors are $v_1 = v + ui$, $v_2 = v - ui$

$$x(t) = v_{1}e^{\lambda_{1}t} = (v+ui)e^{(a+bi)t} = (v+ui)e^{at}e^{i(bt)}$$

= $(v+ui)e^{at}(\cos(bt) + i\sin(bt))$
= $e^{at}(v\cos(bt) - u\sin(bt)) + ie^{at}(u\cos(bt) + v\sin(bt))$ (13)

the solution is obtained. Since there is a solution in the real and imaginary parts of complex solutions, the local general solution is found as equation (14) [7, 9].

$$x_{1}(t) = \operatorname{Rel}(x(t)) = e^{at} \left(v \cos(bt) - u \sin(bt) \right)$$

$$x_{2}(t) = \operatorname{Im}(x(t)) = e^{at} \left(u \cos(bt) + v \sin(bt) \right)$$
(14)

3 RESULTS

In this section, first of all, the definition of an open or closed system will be given and we will establish the system of equations that gives the density of this system at any moment $t \ge 0$. We will find the general solution of this system of equations with the help of eigenvalues and eigenvectors.

Figure 2 shows two tanks containing V_1 and V_2 gallons of brine, respectively. Pure water flowing into the 1 nd tank mixes with the salt water in the tank and flows into the 2 nd tank, and then out of the 2 nd tank. Since the system is open. Let $x_i(t)$, define the amount of salt (in pounds) in tanks i = 1, 2 at time t. It is defined by the system of equation (15) where each flow rate is equal per minute and the salt rate is calculated as r gallon [7].



Figure 2. A two-stage open system

Tank 2

Volume: V2 Salt: x2(t)

f

As a result, the density of a product (salt) in the tanks of an open system as shown in Figure 2 decreases rapidly and reaches zero thanks to the pure water flowing into Tank 1. If another tank is added to the other tank or to the system, the salt concentration in the tanks first increases to a certain point and then decreases rapidly to zero.



Figure 3. A 3-stage closed system

Figure 3 shows a closed system consisting of 3 tanks containing gallons of brine, respectively. The difference of this system from the open system in Figure 3.1 is that there is water flow from the 3 nd tank to the 1 nd tank. Similar to the equation system (15) for $k_i = \frac{r}{V_i}$, i = 1, 2, 3, the equation system giving the amount of salt in the tanks is found as follows [7].

$$\begin{aligned} x'_{1} &= -k_{1}x_{1} + k_{3}x_{3} \\ x'_{2} &= k_{1}x_{1} - k_{2}x_{2} \\ x'_{3} &= k_{2}x_{2} - k_{3}x_{3} \end{aligned}$$
(16)

It is easily seen from here that the systems of equations (15) and (16), which give the densities of an open or closed system at time $t \ge 0$, are exactly the same as the systems of equation (9) that we discussed in Chapter 2 In other words, the eigenvalues and eigenvectors that give the solutions of these systems of equations, including the volume of the tanks (V_i) and the flow rate per minute (r), can be real numbers, multiple real numbers and complex numbers. In the last part of our study, let us give examples of the systems we obtained with equations (15). In the last part of our study, let us give examples of the systems we obtained with equations (15). For more problems, you can look at [7].

Example 3.1: Let $V_1 = 40$, $V_2 = 80$, $V_3 = 100$ and r = 20 (gal/min.) be a system with 3 tanks as in Figure 3. Also, find the initial amount of salt in the salt water tanks in pounds, the amount of salt in the tank at time $t \ge 0$ for $x_1(t) = 30$, $x_2(t) = 0$ and $x_3(t) = 50$.

Solution: If the given values are substituted in equation (15),

$$x'_{1} = -0.5x_{1}$$

$$x'_{2} = 0.5x_{1} - 0.25x_{2}$$

$$x'_{3} = 0.25x_{2} - 0.2x_{3}$$

and if we write this system of equations in matrix format

$$x'_{i} = \begin{bmatrix} -0.5 & 0 & 0\\ 0.5 & -0.25 & 0\\ 0 & 0.25 & -0.2 \end{bmatrix} x, \ x(0) = \begin{bmatrix} 20\\ 10\\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

the initial value problem is obtained. From here, with the help of equation (8)

$$A - \lambda I = \begin{bmatrix} -0.5 - \lambda & 0 & 0\\ 0.5 & 0.25 - \lambda & 0\\ 0 & 0.25 & -0.2 - \lambda \end{bmatrix}$$

matrix is obtained. It is easily found that the matrix A has eigenvalues $\lambda_1 = -0.5$, $\lambda_2 = -0.25$ and $\lambda_3 = -0.2$ from the solution of the characteristic equation $|A - \lambda I| = (0.5 + \lambda)(0.25 + \lambda)(0.2 + \lambda)$.

Let's find the eigenvector $v_1 = \begin{bmatrix} a_1 \\ b_1 \\ c_1 \end{bmatrix}$ for the eigenvalue $\lambda_1 = -0.5$ with the help of (2).

$$(A - \lambda_1 I)v_1 = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0.5 & 0.25 & 0 \\ 0 & 0.25 & 0.3 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} a_1 \\ b_1 \\ c_1 \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ 0 \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

from the system of equations

$$2a_1 + b_1 = 0$$

$$5b_1 + 6c_1 = 0$$

equations are obtained. $a_1 = 3$ is obtained for $b_1 = -6$ and $c_1 = 5$ that satisfy the second equation. Thus, the eigenvector $v_1 = \begin{bmatrix} 3 \\ -6 \\ 5 \end{bmatrix}$ is found. With a similar calculation, the eigenvector $v_2 = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ 1 \\ -5 \end{bmatrix}$ is found corresponding to the eigenvalue of $\lambda_2 = -0.25$, and the eigenvector $v_3 = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ 0 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix}$ is found corresponding to the eigenvalue of $\lambda_3 = -0.2$

. Thus, with the help of equation (6), we can write the general solution of the system as follows.

$$x(t) = c_1 x_1 + c_2 x_2 + c_3 x_3 = c_1 v_1 e^{\lambda_1 t} + c_2 v_2 e^{\lambda_2 t} + c_3 v_3 e^{\lambda_3}$$
$$= c_1 \begin{bmatrix} 3\\-6\\5 \end{bmatrix} e^{-0.5t} + c_2 \begin{bmatrix} 0\\1\\-5 \end{bmatrix} e^{-0.25t} + c_3 \begin{bmatrix} 0\\0\\1 \end{bmatrix} e^{-0.2t}$$

As a result, separate scalar equations are

$$x_1(t) = 3c_1 e^{-0.5t}$$

$$x_2(t) = -6c_1 e^{-0.5t} + c_2 e^{-0.25t}$$

$$x_3(t) = 5c_1 e^{-0.5t} - 5c_2 e^{-0.25t} + c_3 e^{-0.25t}$$

obtained. If the initial conditions $x_1(t) = 30$, $x_2(t) = 0$ and $x_3(t) = 50$ are written into the equations, $c_1 = 10, c_2 = 60$ and $c_3 = 300$ values are found. As a result, the amount of salt in the three brine tanks at time t is

$$x_1(t) = 30e^{-0.5t}$$

$$x_2(t) = -60e^{-0.5t} + 60e^{-0.25t}$$

$$x_3(t) = 50e^{-0.5t} - 300e^{-0.25t} + 300e^{-0.2t}$$

found by equations. As can be seen from these solution equations, in this system, while the amount of salt in the Ind tank decreases rapidly, the amount of salt in the 2nd and 3nd tanks first increases and then decreases rapidly, reaching zero.

4 CONCLUSION

Whether the result is an open or closed system, we find the density of the system as in equation (6). These solutions can be examined for $t \to \infty$ to find their equilibrium states, or how they change can be visually examined with the help of graphs. Studies can also be done on systems with different speeds.

References

- [1] G. K. Nalbant, "Solutions of Systems of Linear Differential Equations with Matrix," Yıldız Technical University, Institute of Science and Science, MSc. Thesis, Istanbul, 2012.
- [2] F. Basar, Lineer Cebir, Sürat Üniversite Yayınları, 3rd Edition, Istanbul, 2012.
- H. Keles, Lineer Cebire Giris -I- Cözümlü, Bilal Ofset, ISBN 978-9944-5808-3-0, 2nd Edition, 2015. [3]
- [4] B. Kolman and D. R. Hill, Uygulamalı Lineer Cebir, Translation Editor: O. Akin, Palme Yayıncılık, ISBN:978-605-5829-87-2, Ankara, 2011
- [5] A. Sabuncuoğlu, Lineer Cebir, Nobel Yayınları, ISBN: 978-975-591-171-7, 3rd Edition, Ankara, 2008.
- R. Kaya, Lineer Cebir, Anadolu Üniversitesi Eğitim, Sağlık ve Bilimsel Araştırma Çalışmaları Vakfı [6] Yayınları No: 40, 1993.

- H. C. Edwards and E. D. Penney, Diferansiyel Denklemler ve Sınır Değer Problemleri, Translation Editor:
 O. Akin, Palme Yayıncılık, ISBN: 975-8982-71-0, Ankara, 2006.
- [8] R. Bronson, Diferansiyel Denklemler Teori ve Problemleri, Translation Editor: H. H. Hacısalihoglu, Nobel Yayın Dağıtım, ISBN: 975-591-189-8, Ankara, 1993.
- [9] S. E. Turker and M. Basarir, Çözümlü Problemlerle Diferansiyel Denklemler, Değişim Yayınları, 2005.



December 1-3, 2023

The Use of Eye-tracking Technology in Education

Mehmet Donmez^{*1}

¹Middle East Technical University, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The accessibility and affordability of eye-tracking technology have increased significantly in recent years. This technology, measuring various eye movement parameters such as fixation duration, count, saccades, and pupil size, has an essential role in educational research. It enables the analysis of both teacher and student behaviors, offering insights into cognitive processes during lessons or applications. Visualizations, such as heatmaps and gaze plots, help in understanding attention patterns, contributing to the enhancement of teaching methods and learning environments. This study presents the findings from a literature review focused on the intersection of education and eye-tracking technology. By employing a systematic literature review, this study identifies relevant articles published between 2019 and 2023. The distribution of publications over the years highlights sustained interest in the field. Furthermore, this study explores global participation in eye-tracking research, with the United States, China, and Germany leading in contributions. The distribution of research topics emphasizes the diverse applications, with self-regulated learning, language education, and science education being predominant areas of focus. In conclusion, this study underscores the dual role of eye-tracking technology in education – as a tool for precise data collection and an interactive device to enhance learning environments. It emphasizes the importance of collaborative efforts among teachers, researchers, and technology experts to optimize the use of eye-tracking technology in education, ultimately benefiting students across various schools and learning settings.

Keywords: Eye-tracking technology, Educational research, Human-computer interaction

1 INTRODUCTION

Eye tracking technology, when it first emerged, was limited to use due to its high costs. However, over time, technological advancements and increased demand have made it more affordable and widely available in educational research [1]. This technology operates by emitting near-infrared light towards the eyes, which is then reflected back, capturing crucial data on gaze movements [2]. The eye-tracking device with cameras processes these reflections, creating a detailed representation of eye position and fixation points. Filtering and calculations are then applied to point to the coordinates of visual focus.

In the realm of eye-tracking technology, two main types of devices have emerged: screen-based and glasses-type eye trackers. Screen-based trackers are placed below a computer screen, capturing eye movements as individuals interact with on-screen content. Integrated into eyeglass frames, Glass-type trackers offer a more mobile alternative, suitable for studying natural behaviors in real-world environments.

Eye-tracking data provides valuable parameters such as fixation duration, fixation count, fixation positions, visit count, saccades, time to first fixation, and pupil size [3]. These metrics offer insights into visual attention and cognitive processing. In educational contexts, this technology proves invaluable for analyzing students' visual attention, generating heatmaps and gaze plots to understand attention patterns in the classroom. For instance, visualizations can help teachers identify elements that capture attention, potential distractions, or overlooked stimuli.

This study explores the utility of eye tracking in educational research, emphasizing its impact on understanding how students learn. By highlighting various applications in educational studies, this study aims to underscore its importance in uncovering details about cognitive processes, attention, and learning behaviors. The goal is to raise awareness among teachers, researchers, and policymakers about the value of integrating eye-tracking technology into educational research. This technology, measuring eye movements such as fixation duration and pupil size, offers valuable insights for improving teaching methods and creating better learning environments.

2 METHODOLOGY

This study employed a systematic literature review by focusing on studies conducted over the past five years, from 2019 to 2023, and sourced from the Web of Science database. The chosen keywords for this review include "education", "learning", "eye-tracking", "eye movements", "gaze tracking", and "gaze movements". The objective is to identify and analyze recent academic publications that explore the intersection of education, learning, and eye-tracking technology. By systematically reviewing research within this timeframe, this study aims to distill current trends, emerging themes, and notable findings in utilizing eye-tracking technology to understand and improve educational practices. This review contributes to the ongoing discourse on integrating eye-tracking technology in education and seeks to inform future research directions and applications within the field. The inclusion and exclusion criteria for this systematic literature review were defined based on the PRISMA guideline [4]. The specified criteria included the articles published in academic journals, written in English, and available in full text, specifically focusing on educational research conducted between 2019 and 2023, as seen in Table 1.

Table 1. Inclusion and exclusion criteria		
Inclusion Criteria	Exclusion Criteria	
Published in an academic journal	Review or meta-analysis	
Written in English	Not written in English	
Available in full-text	Not available in full text	
Educational research	Medical or engineering research	

Following the PRISMA guideline, the inquiry and selection process involved the identification, screening, eligibility assessment, and inclusion of articles [5, 6]. In the identification phase, a comprehensive search on the Web of Science (WoS) yielded a total of 2,285 articles. Subsequently, during the screening stage, titles, abstracts, and keywords were meticulously examined, leading to the exclusion of 1,918 articles that did not align with the predetermined criteria. Following this, in the eligibility assessment phase, 367 articles underwent further examination, resulting in the exclusion of an additional 131 articles. Ultimately, 236 articles met the inclusion and exclusion criteria and were deemed suitable for the review. This systematic process ensures a rigorous and transparent approach to selecting relevant literature, contributing to the robustness and reliability of the forthcoming review on the intersection of eye-tracking technology and education.

3 RESULTS

The distribution of publications obtained from the literature review, as shown in Figure 1, highlights the yearly output of research in the field. In 2019, there were thirty-eight publications, followed by fifty-nine in 2020, forty-two in 2021, and fifty-five in 2022. The trend continued with forty-two publications in 2023. The consistent output over these years, derived exclusively from the Web of Science source, signifies a sustained interest and relevance in the utilization of eye-tracking technology within the realm of educational research. This trend underscores the enduring significance of eye-tracking technology in contributing to a deeper understanding of learning processes and educational dynamics.



Figure 1. Number of articles by years

A comprehensive examination of the journals featuring the published articles reveals that Frontiers in Education leads with the highest number of publications, boasting seventeen articles, as seen in Table 2. Following closely are Computers & Education and Journal of Computer Assisted Learning, each contributing thirteen publications. The distribution across these prominent journals underscores the diverse and expansive scope of studies on the utilization of eye-tracking technology in education. This pattern suggests that research in this domain spans a wide array of disciplines, as evidenced by the inclusion of studies in various journals indexed in the Web of Science.

The broad dissemination of these findings across different journals underscores the interdisciplinary nature and widespread interest in applying eye-tracking technology in educational research.

Table 2. Host journals		
Journal Name	Number of Publications	
Frontiers in Education	17	
Computers & Education	13	
Journal of Computer Assisted Learning	13	
Sensors	10	
Instructional Science	9	
Journal of Educational Psychology	8	
British Journal of Educational Technology	7	
Education and Information Technologies	7	
Physical Review Physics Education Research	6	
Others (85 Different Journals)	152	

The distribution of publications by country reveals that the United States (USA) has the highest contribution, with 51 publications, followed by the People's Republic of China with 48 publications and Germany with 35 publications (see Figure 2). Notably, there are also six publications from Turkey. This data underscores the global participation in research on applying eye-tracking technology in education, with numerous countries making valuable contributions to the field.



Figure 2. Countries of articles (>5)

As seen in Figure 3, the distribution of research topics indicates that self-regulated learning holds the highest share with 25% of the publications, followed by language education at 22%. Science education and teacher education contribute 8% and 7%, respectively. Special education constitutes 5% of the publications, while numerical cognition and augmented reality each represent 4%. The remaining 25% encompasses various other research topics within the field of eye-tracking technology in education. This diverse array of research topics reflects the multifaceted applications and interests within the broader scope of educational research utilizing eye-tracking technology.



Figure 3. Topics of articles

4 CONCLUSION

Eye-tracking technology serves two main purposes in education. Firstly, it helps collect precise eye movement data from students and teachers, offering insights into how people engage with educational content. Secondly, it acts as an interactive tool to improve learning environments. Besides, eye-tracking technology is valuable, helping educators understand their teaching methods better and providing personalized feedback for improvement in teacher training and professional development. Moreover, using eye-tracking technology in Special Education is crucial. It helps us understand how students with special needs see and process information. By paying extra attention to this field, customized teaching methods can be created to support these students effectively. In simple terms, it is about making education work better for everyone, no matter their learning needs. Finally, teamwork among teachers, researchers, and technology experts is essential. When we work together, we can improve and utilize eye-tracking technology in the best way for education. This collaboration helps create new tools and methods that can benefit students in different schools and learning environments.

References

- A. R. Strohmaier, K. J. MacKay, A. Obersteiner, and K. M. Reiss, "Eye-tracking methodology in mathematics education research: A systematic literature review," Educ. Stud. Math., vol. 104, no. 2, pp. 147–200, Jun. 2020.
- [2] A. T. Duchowski, "Eye Tracking Techniques," in Eye Tracking Methodology: Theory and Practice, 2nd ed., Springer, 2007, pp. 51–59.
- [3] T. van Gog and H. Jarodzka, "Eye tracking as a tool to study and enhance cognitive and metacognitive processes in computer-based learning environments," in International handbook of metacognition and learning technologies, R. Azevedo, and V. Aleven, Eds. New York, NY: Springer, 2013, pp. 143–156.
- [4] M. J. Page et al., "The PRISMA 2020 statement: An updated guideline for reporting systematic reviews," Int. J. Surg., vol. 88, pp. 1–11, 2021.
- [5] D. Moher et al., "Preferred reporting items for systematic review and meta-analysis protocols (PRISMA-P) 2015 statement," Rev. Esp. Nutr. Humana y Diet., vol. 20, no. 2, 2016.
- [6] L. Shamseer et al., "Preferred reporting items for systematic review and meta-analysis protocols (prismap) 2015: Elaboration and explanation," BMJ, vol. 349, no. January, pp. 1–25, 2015.



December 1-3, 2023

Linguistic Summarization for Higher Education Institutions in the Context of Sustainable Development Goals: Analysis of THE Impact Ranking Results

Fatma Sener Fidan^{*1}, Sena Aydogan²

¹Abdullah Gul University, Department of Sustainability Office, Kayseri, Turkey ²Gazi University, Department of Industrial Engineering, Ankara, Turkey

Abstract

The United Nations published 17 Sustainable Development Goals in 2015 to eradicate poverty in all its forms and ensure the common welfare of humanity by 2030. Higher Education Institutions play a crucial role in attaining these objectives through their education, research, and social contributions. These essential functions have contributed to the popularity of ranking systems that disclose universities' efforts to achieve Sustainable Development Goals. The Times Higher Education Impact Ranking is one of the most significant global method for measuring universities' performance concerning the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals. 1591 universities participated in the 2022 evaluation of this Ranking, which included 768 universities worldwide in 2020. The objective of this study was to assess universities, countries, and continents using the linguistic summarization technique, with a focus on the universities listed in the 2022 Times Higher Education Impact Rankings based on the Sustainable Development Goals. Linguistic summarization is a data mining technique that generates natural language summaries to assist decision-makers who lack specialist expertise. This study has made a notable contribution to the advancement of universities and countries by identifying specific sustainable development goals that can be enhanced to attain the overall Sustainable Development Goals.

Keywords: Linguistic summarization, Data mining, Sustainable development goals, University ranking, Sustainability

1 INTRODUCTION

Universities play a crucial role in attaining Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and serve a fundamental role in providing the necessary skills, information, and comprehension for upcoming generations to effectively tackle the challenges and possibilities related to sustainability [1]. As part of this role, it is necessary to integrate sustainability principles into the academic curriculum and foster a sustainable mindset among both students and staff [2]. Moreover, universities facilitate sustainable development collaborations, offering training and programs to local stakeholders such as government entities, institutions, industry participants, and Non-governmental Organizations, fostering partnerships for sustainable development [3]. By incorporating sustainability principles into academic courses and research programs, universities guarantee the active involvement of faculty and students in their efforts to achieve SDGs [2]. The principle of higher education for sustainable development underscores the incorporation of sustainability within education, research, university endeavors, and community service initiatives. This comprehensive strategy guarantees that sustainability is essential to the university's values and actions. Universities play a crucial role in advancing the global agenda for sustainable development by fostering a culture of sustainability, imparting students with essential information and skills, and facilitating collaborations for sustainable development. Multiple rating methods are available within this framework to assess universities' contributions towards achieving SDGs. The Times Higher Education (THE) Impact Ranking is one of the significant rankings that assess universities' environmental, societal, and economic influence following the SDGs set by the United Nations (UN) [4]. The Impact's methodology facilitates the assessment and comparison of universities' contributions towards the attainment of the Sustainable Development Goals. Consequently, it emphasizes higher education institutions' societal significance and influence [5, 6]. The rankings catalyze higher education reforms, guiding the assessment of international excellence and motivating universities to vie for global competitiveness [7].

THE Impact Rankings represent significant value for universities as they profoundly influence diverse stakeholders within higher education. These rankings are utilized by students who are looking for university admissions, academics who are searching for job prospects, university administrators who aim to maintain a competitive edge in student recruitment, and governments who want to ensure that public funds invested in

Linguistic summarization for higher education institutions in the context of sustainable development goals: Analysis of THE impact ranking results

universities contribute to a top-notch higher education system [8]. Rankings significantly influence national policymaking, institutional behavior, and the restructuring of higher education systems. They also impact the worldwide competitiveness of universities and the geopolitical standing of nations and universities [7, 9]. Therefore, it is crucial to assess universities based on their effect ranking. This study employed the linguistic summarization method to evaluate the universities and nations featured in the 2022 THE Impact Rankings regarding their alignment with the SDGs. Following sections are organized as follows. Section 2 explains the linguistic summarization method, and its implementation to THE Impact Rankings. Section 3 analyzes the results in detail. Section 4 concludes the paper.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

2.1 Preliminaries of Linguistic Summarization

Data mining is a procedure used to extract knowledge from large databases. Descriptive approaches are needed to summarise, assess, and identify patterns and relationships in the data [10]. Statistical summarizing is a simple descriptive task for data mining. Natural language summaries are often chosen over statistical summaries, even though the former may be less accurate due to their better comprehension. References [11, 12] first introduced fuzzy quantifiers, widely used in linguistic summarization to manage the ambiguous meanings of linguistic labels like "most". Reference [13] proposed linguistic summarization research as a descriptive technique for extracting concise and easily comprehensible information from databases. The main objective of linguistic summarizing is to produce brief and intelligible data summaries.

Basically, linguistic summarization studies use two types of quantified sentence structures based on the type of quantifier (e.g., absolute or relative), developed by Reference [14]. Relative quantifiers are defined as possibility distributions over non-negative integers. The quantified sentence structures are defined as follows: i) Type-I quantified sentence: "Q Y A" [TD], and ii) Type-II quantified sentence: "Q B Y A" [TD]. In quantified sentence structures, Q is a linguistic quantifier, Y is the object, A is a linguistic summarizer for any attributes about objects of Y, B is a linguistic presummarizer for any attributes about objects of Y, B is a linguistic summary. For example, "Most SDG1 High University had overall point high" [0.96] is a linguistic summary about THE Impact Rankings of High Education Institutes. Here, "most" is a relative quantifier, "university" is the object, "SDG1 high" is a linguistic pre-summarizer about SDG1 attribute of the universities, "overall point high" is a linguistic summary. Type-I quantified sentence structure is a particular case of type-II sentence structure in which the pre-summarizer covers all the objects.

Evaluating the generated sentences is the most crucial phase in the linguistic summarization process. The relevant truth degrees are computed to evaluate quantified sentences. The resulting summaries will not accurately represent the dataset if the truth degree is not consistently reached. Reference [12] scalar cardinality-based truth degree is given in Eq. (1) for type-II quantified sentence structure.

$$TD = \mu_Q \left(\frac{\sum_{m=1}^{M} (\mu_A(v_{k_1}^m) \otimes \mu_B(v_{k_2}^m))}{\sum_{m=1}^{M} \mu_B(v_{k_2}^m)} \right)$$
(1)

Since there is a summarizer and a pre-summarizer (A and B) in type-II sentence structures, there are two related attributes as k_1 and k_2 . $v_{k_1}^m$ is the value for k_1^{th} attribute of m^{th} object and $v_{k_2}^m$ is the value for k_2^{th} attribute of m^{th} object, and μ_Q is the membership function of linguistic quantifier Q. \otimes is a t-norm operator that is used for the intersection of two fuzzy sets.

Evaluation techniques can be broadly classified into fuzzy and scalar-cardinality-based techniques [15]. While scalar cardinality-based techniques, like Zadeh's method, are widely used, easy to use, and quick to obtain truth degrees, they contain flaws that might lead to inconsistent results in some situations. Because they rely on counting the occurrences of elements, they cannot discriminate between large numbers of low membership degrees and small amounts of high membership degrees. Fuzzy cardinality-based techniques like the GD method and ZS method are suggested to solve this inconsistency [16]. Additional fuzzy cardinality-based techniques are also suggested for linguistic evaluation, including the restriction level-based approach [17], the gradual number-based method [18], and the semi-fuzzy quantifier-based method [19].

Linguistic summarization for higher education institutions in the context of sustainable development goals: Analysis of THE impact ranking results

Reference [20] has contributed to the fusion of linguistics and logic by proposing semi-fuzzy quantifiers, which are the generalised version of fuzzy linguistic quantifiers. A semi-fuzzy quantifier combines the characteristics of both classical and fuzzy quantifiers, accepting crisp arguments like a classical quantifier and generating a *TD* in unit interval like a fuzzy quantifier [19]. Semi-fuzzy quantifiers are easier to define than fuzzy quantifiers, but they are more difficult to evaluate. For example, "Around 80% of universities provided data for SDG3", can be evaluated using semi-fuzzy quantifiers; however, "Around 80% of universities have SDG3 high scores" cannot be evaluated using semi-fuzzy quantifiers unless a Quantifier Fuzzification Mechanism (QFM) is used. "Providing data for SDG3" is a clear fact in the first sentence, whereas "high score of SDG3" in second sentence is a fuzzy phenomenon.

A probabilistic QFM, F^{I} , for discrete α -cuts on X_{1}, \dots, X_{s} , is proposed as in Eq. (2) by Reference [21].

$$F^{I}(Q)(X_{1},...,X_{s}) = \sum_{i_{1}=0}^{m_{1}} ... \sum_{i_{s}=0}^{m_{s}} Q\left((X_{1})_{\geq \alpha_{1,i_{1}}},...,(X_{s})_{\geq \alpha_{s,i_{s}}}\right) \mathfrak{m}(\alpha_{1,i_{1}})...\mathfrak{m}(\alpha_{s,i_{s}})$$
(2)

where X_s is a fuzzy property for s = 1, ..., S, $(X_s)_{\geq \alpha_s}$ is α -cut of X_s , and Q is a semi-fuzzy quantifier of arity S, $0 = \alpha_{s,m_s+1} < \alpha_{s,m_s} < \cdots < \alpha_{s,1}, \alpha_{s,0} = 1, 1 \le s \le S$, and $\mathfrak{m}(\alpha_{s,j}) = \alpha_{s,j} - \alpha_{s,j+1}, j = 0, 1, \ldots, m_s$.

2.2 Implementation

This study employs the semi-fuzzy quantifier based linguistic summarization method (See Eq.(2)) to thoroughly examine the data from THE Impact Ranking published in 2022 [22]. All UN SDGs that are included in this study are given in Figure 1.



Figure 1. The UN SDGs

The THE Impact Ranking webpage provides information and data regarding the universities involved in the evaluation according to the SDGs. The ranking technique involves the voluntary participation of universities and includes a separate examination of universities' rankings for each SDG as well as an overall point assessment. The overall point analysis encompasses the assessment of the top three SDGs that have achieved the highest scores in the total score, together with SDG17. Although colleges are obligated to complete SDG17, they can offer data from remaning SDGs. This study considered the university's score for each SDG and total scores from the most recent results, which were announced in 2022, and covered the review of data from 2021. This list encompassed 1591 universities, representing 112 distinct nations and 9 diverse continents. The study encompasses the countries and continents listed in Table 1.

Table 1. Countries and continents

Countries C	Continents
Australia, United Kingdom, Canada, Malaysia, United States, Denmark, New Zealand, South Korea, Thailand, Indonesia, Japan, Italy, Taiwan, Portugal, Mexico, Ireland, South Africa, A Sweden, India, Turkey, Hong Kong, China, Bahrain, Jordan, United Arab Emirates, Chile, Eu Egypt, Spain, Netherlands, Germany, Israel, France, Saudi Arabia, Ghana, Finland, Latvia, A Belgium, Brazil, Nigeria, Lebanon, Palestine, Philippines, Romania, Czech Republic, A Pakistan, Northern Cyprus, Cyprus, Iran, Russian Federation, Argentina, Colombia, Qatar, A Tunisia, Bangladesh, Hungary, Ecuador, Iceland, Greece, Switzerland, Sri Lanka, Croatia, So Ukraine, Costa Rica, Vietnam, Kuwait, Iraq, Poland, Morocco, Serbia, Peru, Puerto Rico, Fiji, A Uzbekistan, Slovakia, Austria, Kazakhstan, Azerbaijan, Uganda, Bulgaria, Uruguay, Macao, Eu Jamaica, Zimbabwe, Lithuania, Slovenia, Algeria, Georgia, Norway, Kosovo, Venezuela, O Armenia, Afghanistan, Belarus, Turks and Caicos Islands, Tanzania, Panama, Mongolia, Curaçao, Turkmenistan, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Brunei Darussalam, Kenya, Kyrgyzstan, Sudan, Mauritius, Zambia, Paraguay, Oman, Cambodia, Haiti, Moldova, Dominican	Australia, Curope, North America, Asia, Africa, Asia/Europe, South America, Curope/Asia, Oceania.
керионе.	

3 RESULTS

The linguistic summarizers for every feasible combination of quantifiers, pre-summarizers and summarizers were constructed using MATLAB. The algorithmic applications were used to generate all possible combinations of quantifiers and summarizers. The evaluation of summaries is the pivotal stage in linguistic summarization [15]. The Truth Degree (TD) was utilized as a standard to selectively enhance the summaries obtained during the modelling phase. Typically, summaries are evaluated by assessing their correctness. Only summaries that had a specified TD value equal to or greater than this number were assessed.

The first evaluation was conducted to analyze which SDG-related data universities provided. Although 214 summaries were obtained as a result of the analysis, the number of summaries with an TD above 0.50 was 5. The summaries obtained are given in Table 2. According to the results, it is seen that universities provided the most data for SDG4 (Quality Education) and the least data for SDG14 (Life Below Water). It was deemed necessary for universities to do more work to achieve SDG14. Additionally, SDG15 (Life on Land) turned out to be an underrated target. SDG3 and SDG5, to which universities made the most significant contribution, were the second and third SDGs, respectively.

Summaries	TD
Most universities provided data for SDG4	1.00
Most universities provided data for SDG3	0.96
Most universities did not provide data for SDG14	0.74
Most universities provided data for SDG5	0.67
Most universities did not provide data for SDG15	0.54

. 1 1* • ,• C CDC

Total 1917 summaries were produced in the analysis to see the status of the continents in the SDGs. 42 of these summaries have a TD above 0.9. The summaries obtained are given in Table 3, Table 4 and Table 5. Australia was the country that provided data for the most SDGs, with 6 different SDGs. While SDG4 stood out in the European and Asian continents, SDG3, SDG4, and SDG5 stood out in Africa. While North America point to SDG3 and SDG5, South America point to SDG3 and SDG4. To achieve the SDGs, countries need to do more work on the ones not included in Table 3.

Linguistic summarization for higher education institutions in the context of sustainable development goals: Analysis of THE impact ranking results

Summaries	TD
Most universities in Australia provided data for SDG3	1.00
Most universities in Australia provided data for SDG5	1.00
Most universities in Australia provided data for SDG8	1.00
Most universities in Australia provided data for SDG10	1.00
Most universities in Australia provided data for SDG16	1.00
Most universities in Australia provided data for SDG17	1.00
Most universities in Europe provided data for SDG4	0.99
Most universities in North America provided data for SDG3	1.00
Most universities in North America provided data for SDG5	0.91
Most universities in Asia provided data for SDG4	1.00
Most universities in Africa provided data for SDG3	1.00
Most universities in Africa provided data for SDG4	1.00
Most universities in Africa provided data for SDG5	1.00
Most universities in Asia-Europe provided data for SDG3	1.00
Most universities in Asia-Europe provided data for SDG4	1.00
Most universities in South America provided data for SDG3	1.00
Most universities in South America provided data for SDG4	1.00
Most universities in Europe-Asia provided data for SDG4	1.00
Most universities in Oceania provided data for SDG4	1.00
Most universities in Oceania provided data for SDG8	1.00
Most universities in Oceania provided data for SDG13	1.00

 Table 3 Continents providing data for SDGs

Another analysis for continents includes SDGs for which continents did not provide data. The results obtained are given in Table 4. While SDG16 and SDG17 stood out for the Europa-Asia continent, it were observed that the Oceania continent did not provide data for eight SDGs.

Summaries	TD
Most universities in Europe-Asia did not provide data for SDG16	1.00
Most universities in Europe-Asia did not provide data for SDG17	1.00
Most universities in Oceania did not provide data for SDG1	1.00
Most universities in Oceania did not provide data for SDG2	1.00
Most universities in Oceania did not provide data for SDG5	1.00
Most universities in Oceania did not provide data for SDG6	1.00
Most universities in Oceania did not provide data for SDG9	1.00
Most universities in Oceania did not provide data for SDG10	1.00
Most universities in Oceania did not provide data for SDG11	1.00
Most universities in Oceania did not provide data for SDG12	1.00

Table 4.	Continents	not providing	g data	for SDGs
			2	

In the final analysis, summaries of the continents' overall ranking points were obtained and given in Table 5.

Linguistic summarization for higher education institutions in the context of sustainable development goals: Analysis of THE impact ranking results

Summaries	TD
Most universities in Australia ranked high in overall ranking	1.00
Most universities in Australia ranked in the first 600	1.00
Most universities in Australia ranked in the first 1000	1.00
Most universities in Australia ranked in the first 400	1.00
Most universities in Europe ranked in the first 1000	1.00
Most universities in North America ranked in the first 1000	1.00
Most universities in Oceania ranked in the first 1000	1.00

Table 5. Linguistic summaries on continent ranking points

A total of 85 summaries were obtained to compare the overall point with each SDG. These summaries are given in Table 6. Universities with high scores in SDG13 and SDG14 also had high overall points. However, it can be seen that the high scores of SDG3 and SDG4 contribute to the high scores of the overall points less than the others.

Table 6. Linguistic summaries on SDGs over overall point high universities

Summaries	TD
Most SDG1 high universities had an overall point high	0.96
Most SDG2 high universities had an overall point high	0.99
Most SDG5 high universities had an overall point high	0.97
Most SDG6 high universities had an overall point high	0.99
Most SDG7 high universities had an overall point high	0.97
Most SDG8 high universities had an overall point high	0.94
Most SDG9 high universities had an overall point high	0.94
Most SDG10 high universities had an overall point high	0.98
Most SDG11 high universities had an overall point high	0.99
Most SDG12 high universities had an overall point high	0.99
Most SDG13 high universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most SDG14 high universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most SDG15 high universities had an overall point high	0.99
Most SDG16 high universities had an overall point high	0.95
Most SDG17 high universities had an overall point high	0.95

A total of 170 summaries were prepared regarding the evaluation of universities in the Top 100 for each SDG. The TD of 18 of them was higher than 0.9. The summaries obtained are given in Table 7. It was observed that the universities in the top 100 had high scores in SDG11, SDG12, SDG16, and SDG17.

Linguistic summarization for higher education institutions in the context of sustainable development goals: Analysis of THE impact ranking results

Summaries	TD
Most universities in the first 100 provided data for SDG3	1.00
Most universities in the first 100 provided data for SDG5	1.00
Most universities in the first 100 provided data for SDG6	0.92
Most universities in the first 100 provided data for SDG8	1.00
Most universities in the first 100 provided data for SDG9	1.00
Most universities in the first 100 provided data for SDG10	1.00
Most universities in the first 100 provided data for SDG11	1.00
Most universities in the first 100 provided data for SDG12	1.00
Most universities in the first 100 provided data for SDG13	1.00
Most universities in the first 100 provided data for SDG15	1.00
Most universities in the first 100 provided data for SDG16	1.00
Most universities in the first 100 provided data for SDG17	1.00
Most universities in the first 100 had a high point for SDG11	0.99
Most universities in the first 100 had a high point for SDG12	0.99
Most universities in the first 100 had a high point for SDG16	0.95
Most universities in the first 100 had a high point for SDG17	0.95
Most universities with overall point high provided data for SDG3	1.00
Most universities with overall point high provided data for SDG4	0.97

 Table 7. Linguistic summaries for the first 100 and overall point high universities

In the analysis of the countries' overall points (high, medium, low, and empty) in THE impact ranking, 448 summaries were obtained. The resulting summaries are given in Table 8. A total of 23 summaries with an TD value of 0.9 and above were obtained. All summaries were obtained for high-score classification. It was observed that 23 of 133 countries had high overall points.

Summarian	TD
Summaries	ID
Most Australian universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most United Kingdom universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most Canadian universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most Denmark universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most New Zealand universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most South Korean universities had an overall point high	0.94
Most Italy universities had an overall point high	0.90
Most Ireland universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most South African universities had an overall point high	0.90
Most Sweden universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most Hong Kong universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most Bahrain universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most United Arab Emirates universities had an overall point high	0.98
Most Spain universities had an overall point high	0.91
Most Netherlands universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most German universities had an overall point high	0.90
Most Israel universities had an overall point high	0.90
Most Finland universities had an overall point high	0.93
Most Belgium universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most Argentina universities had an overall point high	0.90
Most Qatar universities had an overall point high	1.00
Most Serbia universities had an overall point high	0.90
Most Puerto Rico universities had an overall point high	0.90

 Table 8. Generated Linguistic Summaries for Countries

By evaluating the countries specifically for each SDG, 9520 summaries were obtained. 1167 of these summaries had a TD above 0.9. Of these, only the SDGs for which countries have high scores are given in Table 9. It were revealed that countries need to work for other SDGs to achieve the SDGs.

Table 9. Ocherated Eniguistic Summaries for Countries and S.	DOS
Summaries	TD
Most Australian universities had high points for SDG3	1.00
Most United Kingdom universities had high points for SDG10	0.92
Most Canadian universities had high points for SDG11	0.98
Most Denmark universities had high points for SDG3	0.95
Most Denmark universities had high points for SDG9	1.00
Most Denmark universities had high points for SDG10	1.00
Most Denmark universities had high points for SDG12	0.99
Most Denmark universities had high points for SDG16	1.00
Most Denmark universities had high points for SDG17	1.00
Most New Zealand universities had high points for SDG11	1.00
Most New Zealand universities had high points for SDG15	1.00
Most South Korean universities had high points for SDG9	0.95
Most Hong Kong universities had high points for SDG4	1.00
Most Chinese universities had high points for SDG9	0.97
Most Bahrain universities had high points for SDG4	1.00
Most Israel universities had high points for SDG16	1.00
Most Israel universities had high points for SDG17	1.00
Most Belgium universities had high points for SDG9	1.00
Most Argentina universities had high points for SDG4	0.90
Most Qatar universities had high points for SDG4	1.00
Most Qatar universities had high points for SDG8	1.00
Most Qatar universities had high points for SDG9	1.00
Most Qatar universities had high points for SDG10	1.00
Most Qatar universities had high points for SDG11	0.98
Most Qatar universities had high points for SDG12	0.99
Most Qatar universities had high points for SDG14	1.00
Most Qatar universities had high points for SDG15	1.00
Most Qatar universities had high points for SDG16	1.00
Most Qatar universities had high points for SDG17	1.00
Most Serbia universities had high points for SDG3	0.95
Most Zimbabwe universities had high points for SDG9	1.00
Most Slovenia universities had high points for SDG9	1.00
Most Georgia universities had high points for SDG3	0.95

Table 9. Generated Linguistic Summaries for Countries and SDGs

4 CONCLUSION

In this study, THE Impact ranking results, based on the studies carried out by universities to achieve the SDGs, were analyzed with the linguistic summarization method, a descriptive data mining method. Both the scores for each SDG and the overall points announced by THE Impact Ranking were included in the analysis. In addition, the countries and continents where the universities participating in the ranking were located were included in the study.

The results revealed which SDGs need more work, which countries and continents are good at which SDGs, and which SDGs need more work. Future studies may include analyzing the results with different data mining methods and monitoring change by having results for more than one year.

Linguistic summarization for higher education institutions in the context of sustainable development goals: Analysis of THE impact ranking results

References

- [1] R. Mori Junior, J. Fien, and R. Horne, "Implementing the UN SDGs in universities: challenges, opportunities, and lessons learned," Sustain. J. Rec., vol. 12, no. 2, pp. 129–133, 2019.
- [2] C. B. Aktas, R. Whelan, H. Stoffer, E. Todd, and C. L. Kern, "Developing a university-wide course on sustainability: A critical evaluation of planning and implementation," J. Clean. Prod., vol. 106, pp. 216– 221, 2015.
- [3] S. Pavlova, "Exploration of Organizational Culture And Job Satisfaction as Sustainability Factors in The Higher Education Institutions," Econ. Dev. Razvoj, vol. 24, no. 4, 2022.
- [4] M. L. Cardozo, "Characterization of Ibero-American universities by SDG in times higher education impact rankings 2020," Turk. J. Comput. Math. Educ. TURCOMAT, vol. 12, no. 5, pp. 689–700, 2021.
- [5] M. Gusheh, V. Firth, C. Netherton, and C. Pettigrew, "The creation of the UTS Social Impact Framework: A collaborative approach for transformational change," Gatew. Int. J. Community Res. Engagem., vol. 12, no. 2, pp. 1–22, 2019.
- [6] T. Nogueiro, M. Saraiva, and F. Jorge, "The Sustainable Development Goal 4 and the Impact Ranking: Quality Education in Portuguese Higher Education Institutions," 2022.
- [7] Y. Istileulova, "Accreditation and rankings of Universities: theory of global accreditation in the world of (Dis) Order," Proc. Socrat. Lec-Tures, vol. 8, pp. 168–176, 2023.
- [8] J. Johnes, "University rankings: What do they really show?," Scientometrics, vol. 115, no. 1, pp. 585–606, 2018.
- [9] A. Yung Chi Hou, Book review: Review of "research handbook on university rankings: theory, methodology, influence and impact." SAGE Publications Sage UK: London, England, 2021.
- [10] Tan, "M., Steinbach, and V. Kumar. Introduction to Data Mining." Pearson Education/Addison Wesley, Boston, 2006.
- [11] L. A. Zadeh, "The concept of a linguistic variable and its application to approximate reasoning—I," Inf. Sci., vol. 8, no. 3, pp. 199–249, 1975.
- [12] L. A. Zadeh, "PRUF—a meaning representation language for natural languages," Int. J. Man-Mach. Stud., vol. 10, no. 4, pp. 395–460, 1978.
- [13] R. R. Yager, "A new approach to the summarization of data," Inf. Sci., vol. 28, no. 1, pp. 69–86, 1982.
- [14] L. A. Zadeh, "A computational approach to fuzzy quantifiers in natural languages," in Computational linguistics, Elsevier, 1983, pp. 149–184.
- [15] F. E. Boran, D. Akay, and R. R. Yager, "An overview of methods for linguistic summarization with fuzzy sets," Expert Syst. Appl., vol. 61, pp. 356–377, 2016.
- [16] M. Delgado, D. Sánchez, and M. A. Vila, "Fuzzy cardinality based evaluation of quantified sentences," Int. J. Approx. Reason., vol. 23, no. 1, pp. 23–66, 2000.
- [17] D. Sánchez, M. Delgado, and M.-A. Vila, "Fuzzy quantification using restriction levels," in Fuzzy Logic and Applications: 8th International Workshop, WILF 2009 Palermo, Italy, June 9-12, 2009 Proceedings 8, Springer, 2009, pp. 28–35.
- [18] L. Liétard and D. Rocacher, "Evaluation of quantified statements using gradual numbers," in Handbook of research on fuzzy information processing in databases, IGI Global, 2008, pp. 246–269.
- [19] F. Díaz-Hermida, A. Bugarín, and S. Barro, "Definition and classification of semi-fuzzy quantifiers for the evaluation of fuzzy quantified sentences," Int. J. Approx. Reason., vol. 34, no. 1, pp. 49–88, 2003.
- [20] I. Glöckner, "Advances in DFS theory," TR2000-01 Tech. Fak. Univ. Bielef. PO-Box, vol. 100131, p. 33501, 2000.
- [21] F. Díaz-Hermida, D. E. Losada, A. Bugarín, and S. Barro, "A probabilistic quantifier fuzzification mechanism: The model and its evaluation for information retrieval," IEEE Trans. Fuzzy Syst., vol. 13, no. 5, pp. 688–700, 2005.
- [22] Times Higher Education, "THE Impact Ranking," 2023. Accessed: Sep. 10, 2023. [Online]. Available: https://www.timeshighereducation.com/impactrankings.



December 1-3, 2023

Play to Earn Web 3.0: The Future of Gaming and Marketing

Fatih Sahin^{*1}

¹Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Gonen Vocational School, Balikesir, Turkey

Abstract

The revolutionary "Play to Earn" (P2E) model, created by blockchain technology and the gaming industry, has transformed the gaming economy. This research explores the complex Web 3.0 game ecology, where users actively create and regulate virtual worlds, moving from passive consumers to active producers. In this dynamic ecology, marketing tactics must adapt to new paradigms. The paper evaluates literature and suggests future game marketing strategies, notably for P2E applications. Several key studies illuminate P2E ventures' economic and governance frameworks, highlight blockchain technology's benefits, and analyse risks including deflationary reward currencies and unequal reward systems. Integrating Web 3.0 technology and marketing methods emphasizes transparency, fair play, and consumer protection. Additionally, digital marketing, game design patterns, and social media marketing are examined in advertising virtual items and computer games. Case studies in the paper feature P2E games "Big-Time" and "Meta Theft Auto", showing how gamers can make money from their interest and how reliable blockchain technology is. Games with diverse gameplay attract a wider audience, making them good marketing assets. As blockchain technology improves trust and security, P2E gaming allows gamers to monetize their interest. The possibilities for industrial expansion and diverse games attract more players. Marketing should emphasize responsible gaming and financial issues to attract varied players. P2E systems, blockchain, and different in-game vocations make "Big-Time" and "Meta Theft Auto" interesting games. These games' marketing should stress potential earnings, safety, gameplay variety, industry development, and responsible gaming, asking players to be cautious and study before playing.

Keywords: Play-to-earn, Web 3.0 gaming, Marketing strategies, Consumer behaviour

1 INTRODUCTION

The convergence of blockchain technology and the gaming industry has given rise to the "Play to Earn" model, which is radically redefining the gaming economy. The primary objective of this study is to investigate the various intricate features of the developing Web 3.0 gaming ecosystem. In this ecosystem, players are not merely consumers, but rather they actively engage in the creation and control of virtual worlds. This event serves as a platform for the convergence of industry professionals, game developers, pioneers in blockchain technology, and enthusiasts to engage in comprehensive discussions regarding the potential, obstacles, and prospects of this revolutionary synthesis of technology and entertainment. In this context, maintaining the marketing status quo is of utmost significance. This study seeks to examine the above topics in literature, while also offering insights into the future marketing strategies and practices within the gaming industry while exploring current play-to-earn (P2E) applications.

Yu et al. [1] examines the economic and governance frameworks used by P2E initiatives. The author emphasizes the potential advantages offered by blockchain technology in terms of system resilience, transparency, composability, and decentralized governance. In the study conducted by Delfabbro et al. [2], an analysis is undertaken on the mechanics and business model of P2E games. The focus of the study is placed on the potential hazards that arise from deflationary reward currencies and the presence of asymmetric reward structures, which tend to provide advantages to early investors. The objective of Pimentel and Melo [3] is to examine and elucidate the misunderstandings and potential problems that are often connected with NFT-based P2E games. The study seeks to enhance understanding and awareness among both game creators and players about these issues. In Torralba [4]'s study, an examination is conducted on the many aspects that contribute to the incentive for economic gain among gamers in P2E games. These characteristics include problematic gaming behaviour, gender, the quantity of games played, and individual learning styles. In brief, these studies together provide insights into the mechanics, advantages, transparency in commercial frameworks, and safeguarding measures for susceptible participants.

The studies collectively discuss the integration of Web 3.0 technologies and marketing strategies, specifically in the context of P2E and web-based marketing. Delfabbro et al. [2] underscores the need for consumers to possess a comprehensive understanding of the operational mechanisms and potential hazards inherent in play-to-earn gaming. The author places particular emphasis on the significance of transparency, fair game results, and safeguarding measures for those who may be susceptible to harm. Singh and Pillai [5] examines the influence of digital marketing methods on the gaming business, acknowledging the substantial financial prospects and professional pathways available within the gaming sector. According to Hamari and Lehdonvirta [6], the use of game design patterns and mechanics may be seen as marketing strategies aimed at promoting the sale of virtual products. This serves to establish a connection between game creators and marketers, therefore bridging the gap between the two entities. In the study [7], an examination is undertaken to investigate the use of social media marketing strategies in the promotion of computer games, using The Witcher game as a specific case study. In brief, the papers together underscore the need of consumer awareness, the influence of digital marketing tactics, the amalgamation of game design and marketing, and the use of social media marketing in P2E gaming. Additionally, Akkaya et al. [8] presents a case study on a mobile game that combines a decentralized ecosystem with a web component to provide players with a seamless P2E experience. Gatomatis et al. [9] explores the impact of Web 3.0 on marketing, highlighting the potential for personalized and behavioural marketing in a semantic web environment. Weidong [10] focuses on the application of Web 3.0 in hotel marketing, emphasizing the importance of intelligence and individualization in meeting tourists' demands. Almeida et al. [11] discusses the transformative potential of Web 3.0 and semantic technologies in creating new business models, including those related to ecommerce. Overall, these papers suggest that the integration of Web 3.0 technologies in marketing, particularly in the P2E context, can enhance user experiences, enable personalized and behavioural marketing approaches, improve efficiency in hotel marketing, and create new business opportunities.

2 METHODOLOGY

Based on data published by Statista [12], it is projected that the games industry would undergo substantial expansion, resulting in a revenue of \$406.20 billion by 2023 and an anticipated market volume of \$584.60 billion by 2027. China is expected to generate the highest revenue, with an estimated \$1122,000.00m in 2023. The market is expected to reach 4.3 billion users by 2027, with user penetration expected to increase from 48.9% in 2023 to 54.5% by 2027. The average revenue per user is expected to be \$312.80. The United States remains the dominant player in the global games market due to high consumer spending and the presence of major game development companies. The Play to Earn gaming industry is anticipated to experience substantial growth in the forthcoming years, as projections suggest a notable 21.3% surge from 2022 to 2028. The growth is primarily propelled by the expansion of player bases, the introduction of innovative games, and the incorporation of blockchain technology.

This research examines the video material produced by Mindblow [13] on the YouTube platform. The transcriptions of these videos are used to investigate two specific P2E gaming situations, with the aim of comprehending the underlying mechanics and identifying possible marketing prospects. The first case study pertains to the game titled "Big-Time", while the subsequent case study focuses on "Meta Theft Auto".

2.1 Big-Time Case

The game "Big Time" not only captivated my attention, but also demonstrated remarkable profitability. Based on a social media post authored by a user identified as Bang Boy, it has come to light that on October 15, 2023, proficient participants in the game known as Big Time were able to amass a noteworthy amount of \$148 over a duration of 6 hours of active engagement, punctuated by intermittent periods of respite. This corresponds to an estimated rate of \$25 per hour of gameplay.

The subsequent section will analyse the mechanics that underlie this phenomenon. To participate in the Big-Time experience, players are required to acquire an invitation code. Nevertheless, it is important to acknowledge that this game exhibits certain similarities to massively multiplayer online games (MMOGs), providing players with captivating raid-like encounters. The native token of the game, known as Big Time, is an ERC-20 token that operates on the Ethereum network. It is readily accessible on multiple centralized exchanges. The game's economic structure is currently undergoing development, characterized by an increase in the circulation of Big-Time tokens. However, this expansion is accompanied by a growing number of players seeking to accumulate these tokens for various purposes. To participate in the Big-Time game and commence the process of generating income, it is necessary to possess an invitation code. These codes can be obtained from sources such as the official Discord server of the game or through Twitch streamers. After obtaining a code, one may commence their expedition. To optimize one's financial gains, it is advisable to acquire a scarce celestial body and enlist the services of an individual with temporal guardianship, commonly referred to as a Time Warden. These objects serve as tools for

the construction of hourglasses, which play a crucial role in acquiring Big Time tokens during gameplay. Although Big Time's prices may initially increase, they could subsequently undergo inevitable declines due to an influx of new participants, resulting in an increased supply of tokens. To generate a daily income exceeding \$100, it is imperative to enhance the efficiency of one's in-game avatar through the acquisition of additional hourglasses, prolonging the duration of gameplay sessions, and engaging in the production of items that contribute to the economic dynamics within the game. It is anticipated that a robust economy driven by non-fungible tokens (NFTs) will develop, thereby establishing a sustainable and enduring gaming environment.



Figure 1. Big-time webpage [14]

The realm of "Play to Earn" within the context of Web 3.0, as demonstrated by Big Time, presents enticing prospects for gamers to generate tangible monetary rewards while engaging in immersive gameplay experiences. Although it is premature to make definitive projections regarding the future trajectory of the game's economy, there is clear evidence of the potential for significant profits and a prosperous in-game economic system.

2.2 Meta Theft Auto Case

Within the context of a rapidly evolving digital landscape, the convergence of traditional gaming and the transformative capabilities of Web 3.0 has given rise to a novel paradigm. Consider envisioning a game that surpasses the realm of mere amusement, presenting a virtual universe wherein one can acquire knowledge and rewards in tandem. The transformation of the popular video game Grand Theft Auto (GTA) into Meta Theft Auto (MTA) is anticipated to have a significant impact on the realm of P2E gaming.

Meta Theft Auto is an innovative online video game that effectively encapsulates the core elements of the popular Grand Theft Auto (GTA) franchise, while simultaneously introducing novel gameplay mechanics that revolve around the concept of P2E. This implies that individuals can pursue a wide range of virtual professions, encompassing occupations such as truck driver, mechanic, pilot, farmer, or even taxi driver. The game provides players with the option to assume the role of a law-abiding citizen by enlisting in the police force, or alternatively, to engage in the exhilarating experience of embodying a criminal. One notable aspect? All these activities provide tangible benefits in the real world.

In contrast to conventional games, MTA does not depend on the established game economy. The system functions on a blockchain infrastructure, utilizing a proprietary cryptocurrency known as MTA, or Meta Theft Auto tokens. The utilization of blockchain technology guarantees both transparency and security, thereby generating novel prospects for gamers to accrue tangible earnings. Participants can engage in a multitude of activities and challenges within the game, thereby accruing MTA tokens. The MTA is a dynamic interactive gaming experience that requires the utilization of Grand Theft Auto to commence this virtual expedition. After completing the steps, users can proceed to the official Rockstar website to acquire the Rockstar Games launcher. Subsequently, they can initiate the download process and subsequently install the San Andreas game. Following this, users have the option to download the MTA software and subsequently initiate it to commence their virtual journey. Within the context of the Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA), there exists a diverse range of available choices or alternatives. Individuals have the option to pursue conventional occupations such as taxi driving, trucking, or engaging in agricultural activities. In this virtual environment, users have the option to either join existing factions or establish their own groups, participating in a range of missions. Alternatively, users may choose to align themselves with
the law enforcement task force, working towards apprehending and prosecuting individuals involved in criminal activities.



Figure 2. MTA income illustration [15]

The Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA) provides a diverse range of community events that present an opportunity to earn significant MTA token rewards. The weekly events encompass a variety of gaming activities, including team deathmatches, hide and seek, Mario Kart races, cops and robbers, and the glass floor game. These events offer players a wide range of gaming experiences. Additionally, there exists a lottery system that caters to individuals who possess a sense of optimism and fortune, affording them an opportunity to potentially acquire substantial winnings. The fundamental objective of MTA is to provide gamers with the opportunity to generate income from their in-game pursuits. This technology has the potential to significantly transform the gaming industry. The ability to exchange or sell virtual items and assets obtained within the game for actual currency provides players with an opportunity to generate supplementary financial resources.

The Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA) provides a range of income opportunities, including both passive and active sources of revenue. Passive income can be derived through the acquisition and exchange of virtual assets, which possess the potential to increase in value over a period. Conversely, individuals could engage in income-generating endeavours within the game, such as high-risk races and heists, which yield substantial financial rewards. Virtual trading and speculation offer opportunities for optimizing financial gains.

The game Meta Theft Auto serves as a prime example of the limitless possibilities inherent in the Play to Earn gaming model. With tangible incentives and a multifaceted gaming encounter, this innovation has the potential to revolutionize our perception of internet-based gaming. However, it is crucial to emphasize the importance of conducting comprehensive research and exercising due diligence prior to engaging in any activity.

3 RESULTS

3.1 Game Dynamics

The P2E concept is gaining popularity in the realm of online gaming. Games like "Big Time" and "Meta Theft Auto" both use the P2E concept to get people to join their communities. This is a significant shift from previous gaming, in which the value of in-game progress and successes was almost never, if ever, monetary. Participating in these games may earn players money in the real world, which constitutes a significant divergence from traditional gaming. Integration of blockchain technology and cryptocurrencies big time and meta theft auto both use blockchain technology and have their own in-game currencies, which are referred to as "Big Time" and "MTA" respectively. This link ensures transparency and security and provides participants with the opportunity to gain digital assets that may be sold for value in the physical world. There is a diverse selection of work that may be done online. Players in both games have access to a diverse range of virtual occupations and activities, providing them with the freedom to choose their own positions inside the game and tailor the rewards they get accordingly. Players have access to a broad variety of in-game vocations, such as truck driving, farming, working in law enforcement, and even partaking in illegal activities. In any of the two possible outcomes, players have the chance to convert their in-game achievements and assets into tangible, real-world benefits that may be used to improve their financial situation. Both passive income, which can be gained via the appreciation of assets, and active

income, which can be earned by involvement in in-game events such as tournaments and heists, are possibilities inside these games. Passive income can be acquired through the appreciation of assets.

3.2 Play to Earn Market

Both games leverage on the growing demand for different ways to make money while playing them, which means that they both have the potential for monetary benefit from a business perspective. They illustrate that it is feasible for gamers to develop their hobby into a source of revenue, which may be an effective marketing point that brings in a wider audience. Additionally, they demonstrate that it is possible for players to turn their pastime into a source of cash. The reliability of distributed ledger technology These games get an extra measure of legitimacy and confidence because of the use of blockchain technology and cryptocurrency betting options. It is conceivable to market this platform to gamers as a marketplace that is not only trustworthy but also risk-free for the purchase and sale of digital goods. Diversified game plays these games may be pushed to cater to the preferences of a broad range of players by giving a choice of virtual occupations and hobbies for players to pick from. This allows the games to appeal to a greater number of people. This idea not only broadens the attractiveness of the games to a bigger number of individuals overall, but it also has the potential to be applied as a marketing strategy to attract a broader range of gaming audiences. The possibility of growth in scope or scale of the potential for growth in the P2E segment of the gaming industry, as is mentioned in both cases, may be a strong selling element for the firm. It is feasible that players and investors will be interested in these games because of the apparent success of the industry that they are a part of. Both "big time" and "meta theft auto" are examples of innovative approaches to gaming since they mix aspects like P2E mechanisms, blockchain technology, and a broad number of professions that are accessible inside the game itself. Both games are available on a variety of platforms. It's possible that the marketing approach for these games will place an emphasis on the potential profits, the safety of blockchain technology, the many types of gameplays, the growth of the industry, and responsible gaming, while simultaneously drawing attention to the demand that players exercise care and perform research.

4 CONCLUSION

The gaming business is undergoing a fast transformation, with a notable shift towards immersive virtual worlds that are attracting a growing number of users. In addition to the existing capability of preceding gaming applications to facilitate the purchase and sale of in-game products, the emergence of Web3.0 has significantly increased the prevalence of such transactions among users, hence contributing to the fast growth of the gaming economy. These advancements hold significant interest for a wide range of scientific disciplines, including computer science, engineering, marketing, consumer behaviour, psychology, and the domains of tourism and recreation.

The importance of future studies pertaining to the efficient marketing of real-world businesses in virtual worlds, or vice versa, is growing. Future research might investigate the behavioural patterns shown by gamers as consumers inside the gaming environment and beyond, including both the gameplay experience and the subsequent post-game period. Lastly, future research to examine the possible use of certain in-game and off-game items in marketing applications is also crucial. Additionally, it is crucial to explore the behaviour of individual gamers when they participate as members of in-game groups in various scenarios.

References

- [1] J. Yu, M. Zhang, X. Chen, and Z. Fang, "SoK: Play-to-earn projects," ArXiv, vol. abs/2211.01000, 2022.
- [2] P. H. Delfabbro, A. Delic, and D. L. King, "Understanding the mechanics and consumer risks associated with play-to-earn (P2E) gaming," J. Behav. Addict., vol. 11, pp. 716–726, 2022.
- [3] C. A. Pimentel and P. d. F. Melo, "Play-to-earn: Desmistificando ganhos e riscos de jogos NFT," Anais Estendidos do XXI Simpósio Brasileiro de Jogos e Entretenimento Digital (SBGames Estendido 2022), 2022.
- [4] E. M. Torralba, "Playing games to earn money: The conceptual framework of interaction between gender, learning styles, problematic gaming behavior and success-economic gain motivation of playing games," SSRN Electronic Journal, 2023.
- [5] D. Singh and S. Pillai, "Implementation of digital marketing strategy in the gaming industry," 2022 International Conference on Decision Aid Sciences and Applications (DASA), pp. 387–394, 2022.
- [6] J. Hamari and V. Lehdonvirta, "Game design as marketing: How game mechanics create demand for virtual goods," eBusiness & eCommerce eJournal, 2010.
- [7] B. Wawrowski and I. Otola, "Social media marketing in creative industries: How to use social media marketing to promote computer games?," Inf., vol. 11, p. 242, 2020.

- [8] R. Akkaya, M. Unal, and R. Abri, "Integrating technologies for a seamless play-to-earn experience: A case study on a hyper-casual mobile game with a decentralized ecosystem," International Conference on Pioneer and Innovative Studies, 2023.
- [9] P. Gatomatis, D. Nikolaos Bogonikolos, and I. Chatzichristos, "Towards the era of web 3.0 and the marketing 3.0," International Journal of Business & amp; Management Studies, 2022.
- [10] W. Weidong, "Study on hotel marketing strategy under web 3.0," 2010 International Conference on E-Business and E-Government, pp. 138–140, 2010.
- [11] F. L. Almeida, J. D. Santos, and J. A. Monteiro, "E-commerce business models in the context of web3.0 paradigm," ArXiv, vol. abs/1401.6102, 2013.
- [12] Statista. "Games Worldwide", https://www.statista.com/outlook/amo/media/games/worldwide.
- [13] I. Mindblow, ed, 2023. https://www.youtube.com/@InspectorMindblow.
- [14] Bigtime. "Bigtime mainpage", https://bigtime.gg/.
- [15] ClassyGames. "Play To Earn In GTA!? | Meta Theft Auto Review", https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=J eg8Uop3cBk



Artificial Intelligence in Marketing: Content Analysis of Web of Science Indexed Papers

Mahmut Selami Akin*1

¹Istanbul Medipol University, Vocational School of Social Sciences, Marketing and Advertising Department, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Artificial intelligence (AI) plays a substantial and myriad role in technology across various disciplines and industries by allowing for automation, data analysis based on data-driven decision-making, machine learning, speech recognition, autonomous systems, healthcare diagnosis, cybersecurity, and virtual reality. AI represents a revolution in marketing by automating tasks, providing data-driven insights, and delivering highly personalised customer experiences. Marketers are increasingly leveraging AI to stay competitive and meet the evolving demands of the digital age. It provides companies with personalisation, customer services with chatbots or virtual assistants, effective content creation, dynamic pricing and customer relationship management. On the other hand, researchers attempt to guide industry by investigating how AI can be adopted by firms, accepted by consumers and managed by practitioners. Many scientific studies on the subject of AI exist in the literature. However, a structural review is needed to distinguish studies in terms of what conceptual frameworks or methodologies were used and what the shortcomings and requirements are. The study endeavours to respond to this call by conducting a theoretical and methodological content analysis on papers about AI in marketing published in scientific journals. Web of Science index was embraced since it is a highly reputable and qualified database. Papers published from 2020 to 2023 were included in the analysis since the COVID-19 pandemic is an influential milestone in transforming macro environment factors. After the content analysis process, the implications and suggestions were made to guide theoreticians and practitioners.

Keywords: Marketing, Consumer behaviour, Artificial intelligence, Content analysis

1 INTRODUCTION

Artificial intelligence (AI) has gained popularity in marketing due to its ability to provide automation, data analysis based on data-driven decision-making, machine learning, speech recognition, autonomous systems, healthcare diagnosis, cybersecurity, and virtual reality [1]. Companies are able to acquire a competitive advantage in markets by benefitting from AI technologies. Marketing studies have started to focus on how AI can be implemented in marketing strategies and how consumers can adopt products or services using AI technology. Therefore, the quantity of AI research has been rising in marketing literature [2].

Marketing studies have subjected AI to several aspects. They examined AI in terms of what it means theoretically and how conceptual frameworks can be built in the context of AI. On the other hand, others attempt to investigate AI quantitatively to reveal how AI technologies influence, shape and forecast consumer behaviour. However, quantitative studies embraced different theoretical backgrounds and methodological approaches. It may cause diverse findings regarding equivalent purposes, provoking contradictions in understanding consumer behaviour with AI. Therefore, analyzing past studies on AI should help picture existing situations in the literature and provide a deep knowledge of conceptual and methodological approaches.

The study aims to examine the studies subjected to AI regarding which theoretical framework and methodological process is embraced. It also suggests which subjects or methods are needed in future AI studies that theoreticians, researchers and practitioners can conduct.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The study embraced a qualitative approach to reveal associations among phenomenons. Content analysis is sufficient to shed light on grounded themes in relevant studies [3]. According to the research aims, several criteria were determined as below.

- Database: Web of Science.
- Index: Social Science Citation Index (SSCI).
- Keywords: "marketing" + "artificial intelligence", "consumer behaviour" + "artificial intelligence"
- Categories: Management, business or management, business.
- Document type: Article.
- Years: 2020-2023.
- Language: English.

There are 45 papers were detected to include the analysis, however, some exclusions exist in the research. Specifically, six papers irrelevant to AI and marketing were excluded. Additionally, two papers were excluded because one could not be accessed, and one was an editorial. After reviewing the literature regarding the criteria, 37 papers were included in the content analysis process.

First, 37 papers were entirely read and reviewed by the author. Then, a theme list was created parallel with the research aims. The theme list guides the author on coding papers during the content analysis. The components included in the list are below.

- 1. Authors
- 2. Year
- 3. Research type
- 4. Context
- 5. Framework
- 6. Variables
- 7. Sample size
- 8. Data collection tools
- 9. Analysis

Papers were examined by theme list and coded manually since the relevancy of the themes and codes is essential. Content analysis was accomplished when the last paper was coded and added. Table 1, representing the findings of the content analysis, is below.

	I able 1. Findings of Content Analysis							
Source	Year	Research Type	Context	Framework	Variables	Sample	Data Collection	Analysis
[4]	2020	Conceptual	artificial intelligence and the future of marketing					
[5]	2020	Research (quantitative)	Clustering consumers' mobile shopping journeys	Customer journeys		14 participants, aged 18–34 years old	two fashion retailers' websites on smartphones	SMI BeGaze 3.7 software used data obtained from eye-tracking technology
[6]	2020	Research (qualitative)	motivations and human values about consumer restraint	Anti- consumption, Consumer resistance		5,603 English tweets containing the term "Buy Nothing Day"	Twitter data set in 2016, 2017, 2018	computerized and manuel content analysis
[7]	2020	Conceptual	Consumer Adoption to Autonomous Shopping Systems					
[8]	2020	Research (qualitative)	The role of AI and voice bots in service marketing	consumer decision- making process		41 academic and 57 managerial focal articles	searching specific articles in EBSCO Host, Science Direct and Google Scholar databases	manual content analysis

[9]	2021	Research (quantitative)	consumers' evaluations of product consumption values, purchase intentions and willingness to pay for fashion products designed using generative adversarial network (GAN), an artificial intelligence technology	theory of consumption value	Consumption values (functional, social, emotional and epistemic), Use of GAN technology	163 members of Generation Y	experimental conditions	Regression analysis, ANOVA
[10]	2021	Research (quantitative)	the influence of consumer trust, interaction, perceived risk, and novelty value on brand loyalty for AI supported devices	Psychographic characteristics of adopters	trust, interaction, perceived risk, novelty value, brand loyalty	675 Apple iPhone-using respondents	survey via MTurk platform	PLS-based SEM
[11]	2021	Conceptual	online customer engagement behavior via artificial intelligence	Stimulus- Organism- Response theory				
[12]	2021	Research (quantitative)	Consumers' reasons and perceived value co- creation of using artificial intelligence- enabled travel service agents	behavioral reasoning theory, Service- Dominant logic	Value, Perceived personalization , Superior functionality, Ubiquitous, Tradition barrier, Privacy concerns, Technology anxiety, Need for personal interaction, Perceived value co-creation, Behavioral intentions	99 graduate and undergraduate students		SEM, fuzzyset qualitative comparative analysis (fsQCA)
[13]	2021	Research (quantitative)	automated digital assistance for online consumers based on an AI	anthropomorph ism, reactance theory, digital service assistance	asistant type, asistant initiation, reactance, choice difficulty, choice confidence, perceived performance, choice satisfaction	400 participants	a between- subjects experimental design	sequential moderated mediation model
[14]	2021	Research (quantitative)	relationship among voice assistant personality, consumers' attitudes and behaviors	flow theory	Functional Intelligence, Sincerity, Creativity, Consumers' Perceived Control, Flow Experience, Consumers'	275 consumers,	questionnaire	exploratory factor analysis, multiple-group comparison test, PLS- SEM, Multi- Group Analysis

					Exploratory Behavior, Satisfaction, Willingness to Continue Using			
[15]	2021	Research (quantitative)	AI powered voice assistants and consumer brand engagement	social presence theory, technology acceptance theories	AI voice asisstant attributes (social presence, perceived intelligence, social attraction), technology attributes (perceived ease of use, perceived ease of use, perceived usefulness), situation attributes (utilitarian benefits, hedonic benefits, distrust), consumer brand engagement (cognitive processing, affection, activation), purchase intention, brand usage intention	21 and 724 respondents	in-depth interviews, survey	thematic codes, Exploratory Factor Analysis, SEM
[16]	2021	Research (quantitative)	human nature's role in consumers' shopping channel choices in the AI era	theory of planned behaviour, accessibility- diagnosticity theory, Xunzi's humanity hypothesis	Unrestrained pursuit of personal interests, Desires of the ears and eyes, Hedonic and Utilitarian orientation, Subjective norms, Online and offline purchase intention, Perceived AI usefulness	206 and 192 students, 46 employee	questionnaire, interviews, focus groups and expert judgements	EFA, SEM, Hierarchical regression analysis
[17]	2021	Research (quantitative)	AI-enabled checkouts and consumer judgements	Self-efficacy	Checkout Type (Self-service vs. AI- enabled), consumers' callousness, self-efficiacy, perceived shopping convenience, consumer patronage intent	222, 509 and 368 participants	focal retailers having self- checkout systems or AI- enabled checkout type, Amazon Mturk	correlational, regression, moderating, moderated mediation analysis
[18]	2021	Research (quantitative)	consumer– voice assistant (VA) interaction in	(not mentioned)	high vs. low involvement, Higher (vs. lower)	296, 226 and 241 VA users	Amazon Mechanical Turk	t-test, ANOVA

			food and beverage purchase		perceived power, willingness to purchase			
[19]	2021	Research (quantitative)	Machine Learning Algorithm for the Prediction of Online Purchase Conversion	conversion funnel model	consumer engagement behavior, conversion (duration time, page view, search depth,)	374,749 online consumer behavior data	Google Merchandise Store	Machine learning technology, eXtreme Gradient Boosting model
[20]	2021	Research (quantitative)	examining the adoption of robo-advisors vs human financial advisors with different expertise levels	Self service technology adoption	trust, performance expectancy, intention to hire human financial advisors or AI- based robo- advisor	USA, 188, 189, and 185 respondent	Amazon Mechanical Turk and Prolific	MANCOVA
[21]	2021	Research (quantitative)	consumers' acceptance of automated technologies in service encounters	Service Robot Acceptance Model	p. ease of use, p. Usefulness, subjective social norms, p. Humanness, p. Social interactivity, p. Social presence, trust, rapport, acceptance of digital voice assistants	238 young digital voice assistant users		PLS-SEM
[22]	2021	Conceptual	Digital servitization value co- creation framework for AI services	Service- dominant logic				
[23]	2021	Research (quantitative)	a chatbot's initial message and foster consumer– brand connections	Stereotype Content Model	chatbot message (warm vs. competent), brand-self distance, brand engagement, brand affiliation	80, 126 and 184 Mturk participants, 82 university students,	Amazon Mechanical Turk	automated text analysis, independent- samples t-test, ANOVA, mediation analysis, moderation-of- process approach
[24]	2021	Research (quantitative)	Use of AI Influencers As Brand Endorsers	celebrity endorsement	AI influencer similarity, Celebrity endorser similarity, New AI transgression likelihood, New celebrity transgression likelihood, Attitudes toward the brand, Purchase intentions, Attitudes toward the endorser, Transgression appropriatenes s, Perceptions of responsibility	53, 184, 157	between- subjects design experiment, Amazon Mturk	ANOVA, mediation analysis, paired-samples t-test

[25]	2021	Research (quantitative)	robots' perceived human- likeness and consumers' behavioral intentions	social categorization	human- likeness, competence, warmth, need for social interaction, functional value, social value, monetary value, emotional value, loyalty	526 customers	a market research agency.	PLS-SEM
[26]	2021	Research (quantitative)	Impact of auditory sense on trust and brand affect	social cognition theory	p. Auditory sense, p. Auditory social interaction, p. Auditory control, trust invoice asistant, brand affect, surprise	127 young consumers, 116 adults,	Lab experiment in a university in USA, questionnaire	ANOVA, exploratory factor analysis, PLS-SEM
[27]	2022	Conceptual	consumption process shaped by attachment to anthropomorph ized AI	anthropomorph ism				
[28]	2022	Research (quantitative)	the influence of consumer goals on artificial intelligence (AI) driven interactive recommendatio n agents	goal frame	gain goals, hedonic goals, normative goals, attitude, IRA (interactive recommendatio n agents) value, IRAs usage duration, intention to use.	321 AI-driven IRAs users, Twenty-eight college students	survey from AI-driven IRAs users of Stitch Fix, focus group interviews	PLS-SEM
[29]	2022	Research (quantitative)	predicting the purchase intention of e- commerce website users via machine learning	Big Data Analytics	consumers' purchase intention	online shoppers' 12,330 sessions	dataset obtained from public domain	Machine Learning models
[30]	2022	Research (quantitative)	investigating the matching efect of brand personality and customer service provision type on brand attitudes and purchase intentions	brand personality and authenticity theory	brand personality, customer service provision, consumer involvement, perceived brand authenticity, brand attitudes, purchase intentions	246, 250, and 240 participants	scenario-based online surveys	ANOVA, Independent t- test, mediation analyses
[31]	2022	Research (quantitative)	the role of (AI) agents in nonprofit charity marketers	Anthropomorp hism and construal level theories	smile existence, AI agent type (humanlike, machinelike), psychological closeness, donation intention	240 adults, 127 under-graduate business students	Amazon Mechanical Turk platform	moderated mediation analysis

[32]	2022	Research (quantitative)	determining consumer purchase decisions using artificial intelligence in the fashion industry in social commerce platforms	Engel-Kollat- Blackwell (EKB) theory	Instagrammars' purchase decision, perceived eWOM, perceived emotional value, perceived quality, perceived risk and perceived price	202 instagram users	Semi- structured in- depth interviews, questionnaire	SEM, importance performance matrix analysis
[33]	2022	Conceptual	proposing an updated view of consumer choice based on voice platforms with AI	AI-influenced decision- making (AIDM) processes		53 academic and 65 managerial focal articles	Science Direct, EBSCO Host, and Google Scholar	literature review
[34]	2022	Research (qualitative)	firms' different SM engagements with respect to artificial intelligence (AI)	relationship marketing theory		15 participants	semi-structured in-depth interviews	NVivo qualitative data analysis software
[35]	2022	Research (quantitative)	unravelling the dynamic reciprocal relationship between review helpfulness and unhelpfulness	social learning theory	review helpfulness, review unhelpfulness	35,246 product reviews	dataset obtained from amazon.com	LCS modeling technique
[36]	2022	Research (quantitative)	The relationship among AI quality, customer experience and brand relationship	flow theorysocial identity theory	AI information quality (accuracy, currency), AI system quality (reliability, flexibility, flexibility, timeliness), employee responsiveness , flow, brand identification, customer advocacy	350 guests	paper-based survey from four hotels that used AI	SEM, mediation analysis, moderation analysis
[37]	2022	Research (quantitative)	examining users' affective relationships with smart voice assistants	relational cohesion theory	interaction frequency, pleasure-based satisfaction, interest, relational cohesion, user purchases, user knowledge, user reference	717 smart voice asisstant users	panel data obtained from an international market research company	SEM
[38]	2023	Research (quantitative)	Optimization of consumer engagement with artificial intelligence elements	Stimulus- Organism- Response theory	chatbot, image search, recommendatio n system, automated after sales services, psychological engagement, attention to social comparison- consumption, behavioral engagement	464 responses	online questionnaire	PLS-SEM, Mediation and moderation analysis

[39]	2023	Research (quantitative)	the impact of voice AI service failure on customer complaint behavior	service failure- customer reaction relationship	Call Length, Customer Complaint, AI service result, age, gender, Location, Open time, Customer emotion	252,938 voice AI service records	dataset obtained via a call center of a telecommunica tions company in China	Logit regression analysis, Rosenbaum bounds sensitivity analysis (Rosenbaum, 2004), Regression of linear probability model
[40]	2023	Research (quantitative)	integrating the AI technology within a corporate brand management strategy	computer- mediated communication (CMC) theory	problem- solving ability, accuracy, and customization of AI, Anthropomorp hism, Interaction, customer equity (value equity, brand equity, brand relationship equity), brand image, brand familiarity.	210 responses	survey	SEM
[41]	2023	Research (quantitative)	the effects of AI-powered digital assistance toward customers' luxury brand online shopping experience	SOR model, TRAM (Technology Readiness and Acceptance Model)	AI-powered digital assistance, digital multisensory cues, customer engagement, luxury brand online shopping experience.	25 interviewers, 273 respondent	semistructured interviews, survey	PLS-SEM, fuzzy-set qualitative comparative analysis (fsQCA)

3 RESULTS

Papers were examined regarding the theme list created in line with research aims. Table 2 represents which research types were embraced in papers on AI in marketing. According to Table 2, the majority of the investigations are quantitative. Conceptual and qualitative studies are limited in the literature, signalling theoretical and exploratory research are needed to understand AI and consumer behaviour associations.

Table 2. Research types					
Research Type	Frequency				
Conceptual	5				
Research (qualitative)	3				
Research (quantitative)	29				
Total	37				

Papers on AI in marketing and consumer behaviour were built on various theoretical frameworks, producing diverse variables, as seen in Table 1. Conceptual backgrounds included psychological theories (i.e. anthropomorphism, flow theory, self-efficacy), social theories (i.e. social cognition theory, social categorization, social learning theory) and others (i.e. computer-mediated communication (CMC) theory, authenticity theory, accessibility-diagnosticity theory, Service-dominant logic). Researchers embrace different frameworks despite investigating similar phenomena. It may diversify the variables used by researchers; however, it should cause future conceptual contradictions, so a theoretical consensus is needed in studying AI in marketing to comprehend consumer behaviour.

According to the findings, qualitative studies used a more miniature sample size, as small samples are expected to be sufficient exploratory research like interviews or focus groups. Likewise, qualitative investigations on AI in marketing were conducted with 15 to 57 interviewers, as demonstrated in Table 1. The findings show that the

sample size of quantitative examinations included 99 to 749 respondents, as seen in Table 1. It differs due to the studies' audiences and the number of used variables. To achieve congruity in the sample size determination, researchers should embrace parallel sampling procedures to avoid potential measurement errors and improve the representation of samples.

The research revealed that various data collection sources were used in previous attempts. The sources were databases (i.e. ScienceDirect, Google Scholar), tweets, a fashion retailer's website, datasets, interviews, and online offline surveys. The questionnaire technique was predominantly used in past studies since it is a time-saving method to collect large samples quickly and relieve and accelerate the data collection process.

Analysis techniques were examined in the research to reveal which statistical or subjective methods were performed by previous studies. Table 3 briefly displays the frequency of the techniques. According to that, Structural Equation Modeling (SEM) was mainly employed in quantitative studies on AI in marketing. Then, mediation analysis and dissimilarity tests (ANOVA, t-test) were frequently utilised by researchers. However, novel techniques such as machine learning and neuromarketing (e.g. eye-tracking) were restricted in past investigations, which can be shown in Table 3. Using new methods should provide new insights and critical evidence to comprehend the role of AI in consumer behaviour.

Technique	Frequency
Structural Equation Modeling	10
Others	7
Mediation	6
ANOVA	5
t-test	4
Content analysis	3
Exploratory factor analysis	3
Regression	3
Machine learning	2
Moderated mediation	2
Moderation	2
Literature review	1
Neuromarketing	1

Table 3. Analysis techniques

4 CONCLUSION

The study aims to reveal theoretical and methodological patterns in papers subjected to AI in marketing and consumer behaviour published in the Web of Science database in 2020-2023. Few criteria were determined in the literature review, and 37 papers were detected regarding the criteria. Then, a theme list was created to conduct content analysis aligned with research objectives. Finally, the relevant studies were examined and distinguished according to their research type, context, framework, variables, sample, data collection method and analysis technique. The findings of the research provide particular insights for future endeavours.

First, additional introspection is needed to reveal the role of AI in marketing and consumer behaviour since only 37 papers have been published in the Web of Science Core Collection (SSCI) in the last three years. More attempts should provide a deeper understanding of the function of AI in creating and managing marketing strategies. Second, a theoretical and methodological consensus should be needed to avoid potential contradictions in understanding the AI concept and examining AI empirically in marketing research. Which framework should be better for building research on AI can be discussed by researchers in scientific journals or activities. Additionally, the sampling process may be standardized by the scientific community to achieve similar measurement procedures and minimize errors.

Third, as a multivariate analysis technique, researchers predominantly operated on SEM to empirically investigate AI and consumer behaviour associations. However, novel methods provide unexpected relationships among variables, which can help comprehend AI's function in marketing. Setting sail for new techniques may also offer extraordinary discoveries.

There are a few limitations in the research. The content analysis included only the Web of Science (SSCI) database since it is a world-leading and qualified scientific portal. However, other indexes may provide additional knowledge to reveal the role of AI in marketing and consumer behaviour research. The research embraced a qualitative approach to explore the associations among the phenomenon, yet future attempts may utilise quantitative methods such as bibliographic analysis, big data analytics, or meta-mining.

References

- [1] A. Jenkins, "Artificial intelligence and the real world," Futures, vol. 35, no. 7, pp. 779–786, Sep. 2003, doi: 10.1016/s0016-3287(03)00029-6.
- [2] R. Grandinetti, "How artificial intelligence can change the core of marketing theory," Innovative Marketing, vol. 16, no. 2, pp. 91–103, Jun. 2020, doi: 10.21511/im.16(2).2020.08.
- [3] M. Schäfer and C. Vögele, "Content analysis as a research method: A content analysis of content analyses in sport communication," International Journal of Sport Communication, vol. 14, no. 2, pp. 195–211, Jun. 2021, doi: 10.1123/ijsc.2020-0295.
- [4] T. Davenport, A. Guha, D. Grewal, and T. Bressgott, "How artificial intelligence will change the future of marketing," Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science, vol. 48, no. 1, pp. 24–42, 2020, doi: 10.1007/s11747-019-00696-0.
- [5] Z. Tupikovskaja-Omovie and D. Tyler, "Clustering consumers' shopping journeys: Eye tracking fashion m-retail," Journal of Fashion Marketing and Management: An International Journal, vol. 24, no. 3, pp. 381– 398, May 2020, doi: 10.1108/jfmm-09-2019-0195.
- [6] J. Paschen, M. Wilson, and K. Robson, "#BuyNothingDay: Investigating consumer restraint using hybrid content analysis of Twitter data," European Journal of Marketing, vol. 54, no. 2, pp. 327–350, Jan. 2020, doi: 10.1108/ejm-01-2019-0063.
- [7] E. de Bellis and G. Venkataramani Johar, "Autonomous shopping systems: Identifying and overcoming barriers to consumer adoption," Journal of Retailing, vol. 96, no. 1, pp. 74–87, Mar. 2020, doi: 10.1016/j.jretai.2019.12.004.
- [8] P. Klaus and J. Zaichkowsky, "AI voice bots: a services marketing research agenda," Journal of Services Marketing, vol. 34, no. 3, pp. 389–398, Apr. 2020, doi: 10.1108/jsm-01-2019-0043.
- [9] K. Sohn, C. E. Sung, G. Koo, and O. Kwon, "Artificial intelligence in the fashion industry: consumer responses to generative adversarial network (GAN) technology," International Journal of Retail & Distribution Management, vol. 49, no. 1, pp. 61–80, Sep. 2020, doi: 10.1108/ijrdm-03-2020-0091.
- [10] R. Hasan, R. Shams, and M. Rahman, "Consumer trust and perceived risk for voice-controlled artificial intelligence: The case of Siri," Journal of Business Research, vol. 131, pp. 591–597, Jul. 2021, doi: 10.1016/j.jbusres.2020.12.012.
- [11] R. Perez-Vega, V. Kaartemo, C. R. Lages, N. Borghei Razavi, and J. Männistö, "Reshaping the contexts of online customer engagement behavior via artificial intelligence: A conceptual framework," Journal of Business Research, vol. 129, pp. 902–910, May 2021, doi: 10.1016/j.jbusres.2020.11.002.
- [12] L. Lalicic and C. Weismayer, "Consumers' reasons and perceived value co-creation of using artificial intelligence-enabled travel service agents," Journal of Business Research, vol. 129, pp. 891–901, May 2021, doi: 10.1016/j.jbusres.2020.11.005.
- [13] G. Pizzi, D. Scarpi, and E. Pantano, "Artificial intelligence and the new forms of interaction: Who has the control when interacting with a chatbot?," Journal of Business Research, vol. 129, pp. 878–890, May 2021, doi: 10.1016/j.jbusres.2020.11.006.
- [14] A. Poushneh, "Humanizing voice assistant: The impact of voice assistant personality on consumers' attitudes and behaviors," Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services, vol. 58, p. 102283, Jan. 2021, doi: 10.1016/j.jretconser.2020.102283.
- [15] G. McLean, K. Osei-Frimpong, and J. Barhorst, "Alexa, do voice assistants influence consumer brand engagement? – Examining the role of AI powered voice assistants in influencing consumer brand engagement," Journal of Business Research, vol. 124, pp. 312–328, Jan. 2021, doi: 10.1016/j.jbusres.2020.11.045.
- [16] G. Deng, J. Zhang, N. Ye, and R. Chi, "Consumers' human nature and their shopping channel choices in the emerging artificial intelligence era: based on Xunzi's humanity hypothesis," International Marketing Review, vol. 38, no. 4, pp. 736–755, Aug. 2020, doi: 10.1108/imr-01-2019-0026.
- [17] P. van Esch, Y. (Gina) Cui, and S. P. Jain, "Self-efficacy and callousness in consumer judgments of AIenabled checkouts," Psychology & Marketing, vol. 38, no. 7, pp. 1081–1100, Apr. 2021, doi: 10.1002/mar.21494.
- [18] V. Tassiello, J. S. Tillotson, and A. S. Rome, "Alexa, order me a pizza!': The mediating role of psychological power in the consumer-voice assistant interaction," Psychology & Marketing, vol. 38, no. 7, pp. 1069–1080, Mar. 2021, doi: 10.1002/mar.21488.

- [19] J. Lee, O. Jung, Y. Lee, O. Kim, and C. Park, "A Comparison and interpretation of machine learning algorithm for the prediction of online purchase conversion," Journal of Theoretical and Applied Electronic Commerce Research, vol. 16, no. 5, pp. 1472–1491, May 2021, doi: 10.3390/jtaer16050083.
- [20] L. Zhang, I. Pentina, and Y. Fan, "Who do you choose? Comparing perceptions of human vs robo-advisor in the context of financial services," Journal of Services Marketing, vol. 35, no. 5, pp. 634–646, Feb. 2021, doi: 10.1108/jsm-05-2020-0162.
- [21] T. Fernandes and E. Oliveira, "Understanding consumers' acceptance of automated technologies in service encounters: Drivers of digital voice assistants adoption," Journal of Business Research, vol. 122, pp. 180– 191, Jan. 2021, doi: 10.1016/j.jbusres.2020.08.058.
- [22] E. H. Manser Payne, A. J. Dahl, and J. Peltier, "Digital servitization value co-creation framework for AI services: a research agenda for digital transformation in financial service ecosystems," Journal of Research in Interactive Marketing, vol. 15, no. 2, pp. 200–222, Feb. 2021, doi: 10.1108/jrim-12-2020-0252.
- [23] A. J. Kull, M. Romero, and L. Monahan, "How may I help you? Driving brand engagement through the warmth of an initial chatbot message," Journal of Business Research, vol. 135, pp. 840–850, Oct. 2021, doi: 10.1016/j.jbusres.2021.03.005.
- [24] V. L. Thomas and K. Fowler, "Close encounters of the AI kind: Use of AI influencers as brand endorsers," Journal of Advertising, vol. 50, no. 1, pp. 11–25, Sep. 2020, doi: 10.1080/00913367.2020.1810595.
- [25] D. Belanche, L. V. Casaló, J. Schepers, and C. Flavián, "Examining the effects of robots' physical appearance, warmth, and competence in frontline services: The Humanness-Value-Loyalty model," Psychology & Marketing, vol. 38, no. 12, pp. 2357–2376, Jun. 2021, doi: 10.1002/mar.21532.
- [26] A. Poushneh, "Impact of auditory sense on trust and brand affect through auditory social interaction and control," Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services, vol. 58, p. 102281, Jan. 2021, doi: 10.1016/j.jretconser.2020.102281.
- [27] E. Hermann, "Anthropomorphized artificial intelligence, attachment, and consumer behavior," Marketing Letters, vol. 33, no. 1, pp. 157–162, Jul. 2021, doi: 10.1007/s11002-021-09587-3.
- [28] J. Kim, S. Kang, and J. Bae, "The effects of customer consumption goals on artificial intelligence driven recommendation agents: evidence from Stitch Fix," International Journal of Advertising, vol. 41, no. 6, pp. 997–1016, Aug. 2021, doi: 10.1080/02650487.2021.1963098.
- [29] S. K. Trivedi, P. Patra, P. R. Srivastava, J. Z. Zhang, and L. J. Zheng, "What prompts consumers to purchase online? A machine learning approach," Electronic Commerce Research, Nov. 2022, Published, doi: 10.1007/s10660-022-09624-x.
- [30] C. Yang and J. Hu, "When do consumers prefer AI-enabled customer service? The interaction effect of brand personality and service provision type on brand attitudes and purchase intentions," Journal of Brand Management, vol. 29, no. 2, pp. 167–189, Nov. 2021, doi: 10.1057/s41262-021-00261-7.
- [31] T. H. Baek, M. Bakpayev, S. Yoon, and S. Kim, "Smiling AI agents: How anthropomorphism and broad smiles increase charitable giving," International Journal of Advertising, vol. 41, no. 5, pp. 850–867, Dec. 2021, doi: 10.1080/02650487.2021.2011654.
- [32] S. F. Yeo, C. L. Tan, A. Kumar, K. H. Tan, and J. K. Wong, "Investigating the impact of AI-powered technologies on Instagrammers' purchase decisions in digitalization era–A study of the fashion and apparel industry," Technological Forecasting and Social Change, vol. 177, p. 121551, Apr. 2022, doi: 10.1016/j.techfore.2022.121551.
- [33] P. Klaus and J. L. Zaichkowsky, "The convenience of shopping via voice AI: Introducing AIDM," Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services, vol. 65, p. 102490, Mar. 2022, doi: 10.1016/j.jretconser.2021.102490.
- [34] A. M. Ghouri, V. Mani, M. A. ul Haq, and S. S. Kamble, "The micro foundations of social media use: Artificial intelligence integrated routine model," Journal of Business Research, vol. 144, pp. 80–92, May 2022, doi: 10.1016/j.jbusres.2022.01.084.
- [35] S. Zhou and L. Tu, "The effect of social dynamics in online review voting behavior," Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services, vol. 69, p. 103120, Nov. 2022, doi: 10.1016/j.jretconser.2022.103120.
- [36] T. Nguyen, S. Quach, and P. Thaichon, "The effect of AI quality on customer experience and brand relationship," Journal of Consumer Behaviour, vol. 21, no. 3, pp. 481–493, Jul. 2021, doi: 10.1002/cb.1974.
- [37] B. Hernández-Ortega, J. Aldas-Manzano, and I. Ferreira, "Relational cohesion between users and smart voice assistants," Journal of Services Marketing, vol. 36, no. 5, pp. 725–740, Sep. 2021, doi: 10.1108/jsm-07-2020-0286.
- [38] Asante, I. O., Jiang, Y., Hossin, A. M., and Luo, X. "Optimization of consumer engagement with artificial intelligence elements on electronic commerce platforms.," Journal of Electronic Commerce Research, vol. 24, no. 1, pp. 7–28.
- [39] B. Li, L. Liu, W. Mao, Y. Qu, and Y. Chen, "Voice artificial intelligence service failure and customer complaint behavior: The mediation effect of customer emotion," Electronic Commerce Research and Applications, vol. 59, p. 101261, May 2023, doi: 10.1016/j.elerap.2023.101261.
- [40] C. Yuan, S. Wang, and Y. Liu, "AI service impacts on brand image and customer equity: empirical evidence

from China," Journal of Brand Management, vol. 30, no. 1, pp. 61–76, Oct. 2022, doi: 10.1057/s41262-022-00292-8.

[41] M. S. Rahman, S. Bag, M. A. Hossain, F. A. M. Abdel Fattah, M. O. Gani, and N. P. Rana, "The new wave of AI-powered luxury brands online shopping experience: The role of digital multisensory cues and customers' engagement," Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services, vol. 72, p. 103273, May 2023, doi: 10.1016/j.jretconser.2023.103273.



Entrepreneurship and Management Roles in Wealth Creation

Chief Irukwu Onwuka^{*1}, Chinenyenwa Marycynthia Obieze¹, Veena Chiamaka Ezenagu¹, Tracy Christopher¹, Marvelous Oluchi Onwuka¹, Great Irukwu Onwuka¹

¹Citiedge University, Entrepreneurship Studies and Financial Risk Control Management, Abuja, Nigeria

Abstract

In simplifying entrepreneurship and management role for wealth creation, we will expand the role of entrepreneurship on wealth creation which is stated as employment generation, training and human resource development, innovation, maintenance of population density, wealth creation, education and mentorship. In addition to this, we will also expand qualities to cultivate for intending Entrepreneurs which is stated as risk taking, passion, knowledge, leadership, building and managing an effective team.

Keywords: Entrepreneurship, Management and wealth



Analysis of Occupational Accidents in the Electricity Generation, Transmission, and Distribution Sector in Turkey

Mustafa Ozdemir^{*1}

¹Bayburt University, Faculty of Applied Sciences, Department of Emergency and Disaster Management, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

In Turkey, the energy sector plays a vital role in economic growth and sustainable development. Among the key components of this sector, occupational health and safety are of significant importance for those involved in the processes of electricity generation, transmission, and distribution. After providing a general overview of the electricity generation, transmission, and distribution sectors in Turkey, this study aims to analyze data on work-related accidents resulting in temporary disability or fatalities that occurred during the five-year period from 2018 to 2022. The data were extracted from the Social Security Institution (abbreviation for Turkish: SGK) Statistical Yearbooks. The findings reveal that a total of 20,702 work-related accidents occurred in the electricity generation, transmission, and distribution sector in Turkey during the 2018-2022 period. These accidents resulted in the loss of 117 lives, and 18 workers contracted occupational diseases. Additionally, there were 143,486 days of temporary disability with workers spending 8,350 days in hospitalization, leading to a total of 151,836 days of temporary work incapacity. The study indicates a consistent increase in the frequency rate of work accidents over the years. It is observed that this sector falls into the category of high-risk occupations, and the majority of accidents are attributed to factors such as human error, equipment malfunction, and violations of safety procedures. In light of these findings, it is concluded that providing more effective training for workers in this sector and continuously updating safety protocols can reduce work-related accidents and elevate safety standards.

Keywords: Occupational health, Occupational safety, Occupational accident, Electric energy

1 INTRODUCTION

In today's world, electrical energy is considered an indispensable element of economic and social life, playing a vital role in various areas such as heating, lighting, communication, transportation, industry, and agriculture. Therefore, electrical energy holds a critically important position in terms of a country's economy and energy policies. The production of electrical energy typically involves the use of fossil fuels (coal, natural gas, oil) or renewable energy sources (hydropower, solar, wind). Electricity, being advantageous in providing ease of transmission and control, has reduced costs and increased efficiency in the transportation sector. Due to the ease of installation and relatively low costs of transmission lines, the necessity of establishing facilities near energy sources has been eliminated, allowing businesses to settle in more efficient locations. Electricity has supported the development of mass transportation vehicles such as trains and trams, positively influencing urbanization [1].

In Turkey, the management of electricity production, transmission, and distribution was initially centralized under the Turkish Electricity Authority (abbreviation for Turkish: TEK) until changes were made in 1994. The structure of TEK was reorganized into two separate state economic enterprises: Turkey Electricity Generation Transmission Corporation (abbreviation for Turkish: TEAS) and Turkey Electricity Distribution Corporation (abbreviation for Turkish: TEDAS). Subsequently, in 2001, TEAŞ was further restructured into three separate joint-stock companies under the names of Electricity Generation Inc. (abbreviation for Turkish: EUAS), Turkey Electricity Transmission Inc. (abbreviation for Turkish: TEIAS), and Turkey Electricity Trade and Contract Inc. (abbreviation for Turkish: TETAS) [2].

The production of electrical energy takes place in various types of plants depending on the energy source and fuel type, including hydropower, thermal, nuclear, gas turbine, geothermal, wind, tidal, and solar power plants. In Turkey, a significant portion of electricity generation comes from hydropower and thermal power plants. The choice of power plant type is dependent on investment, operation, and maintenance costs. For example, the installation costs of thermal power plants are lower than those of hydropower plants, but operational expenses are higher. Hydropower plants have lower operating costs [3].

Analysis of occupational accidents in the electricity generation, transmission, and distribution sector in Turkey

EUAS, responsible for operating public plants and electricity production, plays a significant role in meeting a substantial portion of Turkey's total electricity production. EUAS conducts rehabilitation projects to increase the efficiency of thermal and hydropower plants. Transmission and distribution networks, including high-voltage lines, transformer centers, and other units, are used to transport electricity from the places of generation to consumption regions. The energy transmission lines in Turkey are operated by TEIAS and have a total length of 73,947 km. The distribution of electrical energy is carried out by TEDAS and private companies. High-voltage electricity reaches distribution centers, where it is reduced to medium voltage values before being conveyed to industrial and residential areas. Before reaching the end consumer, the voltage is further reduced to 220 V using small transformers mounted on poles. Electrical energy is utilized by consumers for various purposes such as heating, lighting, and mechanical energy production [4-6].

According to the Hazard Classes List Notification related to Occupational Health and Safety published by the Ministry of Labor and Social Security, workplaces are classified into three categories: low-risk, risky, and highly risky. According to this classification, workplaces engaged in Electric Energy Production with NACE Code 35.11.19, Electricity Transmission (operating transmission systems that transfer electricity from the production source to the distribution system) with NACE Code 35.12.13, and Electricity Distribution (operating the distribution system that transmits electricity from the production source or transmission system to the end user) with NACE Code 35.13.01 are categorized as 'highly risky workplaces.' The main objective of this study is to analyze the occupational health and safety situation in the "Electric Energy Production, Transmission, and Distribution" sector for the 5-year period between 2018 and 2022. This involves examining statistics on workplace accidents, occupational diseases, related fatalities, and workday losses, with a focus on emphasizing the importance of sector-specific occupational health and safety measures and contributing to the literature [7].

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The data for this study were obtained from the Social Security Institution Statistical Yearbooks, aiming to assess the current situation regarding occupational health and safety in the Electricity Energy Production, Transmission, and Distribution sector in our country. The study further aims to present the accident and mortality statistics for the last five years (2018-2022), propose solutions related to the subject, and contribute to future research. The accident and mortality statistics for the specified period were extracted from SGK records, focusing on registered insured employees. It should be noted that this study only covers statistics for insured employees registered with SGK in our country. The inability to determine the number of workplace accidents and the associated loss of workdays and deaths due to undeclared employment in the country is a limitation of this study.

3 RESULTS

The development of the Electricity Energy Production, Transmission, and Distribution sector in Turkey significantly contributes to the country's economic growth. However, like any other industry, this sector also experiences workplace accidents leading to injuries, occupational diseases, workday losses, and, in some cases, fatalities. Table 1 presents statistics for insured employees in the Electricity Energy Production, Transmission, and Distribution sector in Turkey from 2018 to 2022 [8-12].

Years	Workplace Count	Insured Employee Count
2022	9,843	123,476
2021	10,024	116,618
2020	10,096	109,439
2019	12,893	111,754
2018	13,417	103,221

Table 1. Workplace and insured employee numbers in the production, transmission, and distribution of electricity, gas, steam, and air conditioning systems by years

According to Table 1, the number of workplaces in the Electricity Energy Production, Transmission, and Distribution sector decreased by 26.6% compared to 2018, while the number of insured employees increased by 19.6% over the same period.

Table 2 shows the number of workplace accidents that occurred in the Electricity Energy Production, Transmission, and Distribution sector from 2018 to 2022, and Table 3 provides statistics on fatal workplace accidents during the same period [8-12].

5.5				
Years	Electricity Energy Production	Electricity Energy Transmission	Electricity Energy Distribution	Electricity Energy Trade
2022	2,900	198	2,440	47
2021	2,290	207	1,959	71
2020	1,485	302	1,681	98
2019	1,298	361	1,937	64
2018	1,095	321	1,861	87

Table 2. Number of workplace accidents in the electricity energy production, transmission, and distribution sector by years

According to the data shown in Table 2, workplace accidents in the Electricity Energy Production, Transmission, and Distribution sector increased over the years from 2018 to 2022. While the highest number of workplace accidents occurred in the Electricity Energy Distribution sector in 2018, 2019, and 2020, in 2021 and 2022, the Electricity Energy Production sector experienced the highest number of workplace accidents [8-12].

Table 3. Number of fatal workplace accidents in the electricity energy production, transmission, and distribution sector by years

Years	Electricity Energy Production	Electricity Energy Transmission	Electricity Energy Distribution	Electricity Energy Trade
2022	8	1	14	0
2021	15	1	13	0
2020	10	1	14	0
2019	2	2	16	0
2018	8	1	10	1

Examining fatal workplace accidents in Table 3, the total number of fatal workplace accidents was 20 in 2018 and 2019, increased by 25% to reach 25 in 2020, continued to rise to 29 in 2021, and then decreased by 20.6% to 23 in 2022. In 2018, 2019, and 2020, the Electricity Energy Distribution sector experienced the highest number of fatal workplace accidents, while in 2021, the Electricity Energy Production sector had the highest number, followed by a return to the highest number of fatal workplace accidents in the Electricity Energy Distribution sector in 2022 [8-12].

Table 4 provides statistics on occupational diseases that occurred in the sector from 2018 to 2022.

,00	tor by years				
	Years	Electricity Energy Production	Electricity Energy Transmission	Electricity Energy Distribution	Electricity Energy Trade
	2022	5	0	0	0
	2021	4	0	1	1
	2020	1	0	0	0
	2019	5	0	1	0
	2018	0	0	0	0

Table 4. Number of occupational diseases in the electricity energy production, transmission, and distribution sector by years

According to the data shown in Table 4, the total number of occupational diseases in the Electricity Energy Production, Transmission, and Distribution sector from 2018 to 2022 is 18. While the highest number of occupational diseases occurred in the Electricity Energy Production sector, no occupational diseases were reported in the Electricity Energy Transmission sector during the five-year period. Moreover, no deaths were reported due to these occupational diseases during the same period [8-12].

Table 5 presents the number of days of disability due to hospitalization or outpatient treatment in the Electricity Energy Production, Transmission, and Distribution sector for the 5-year period from 2018 to 2022 [8-12].

Years	Electricity Energy Production		Electricity Energy Transmission		Electricity Energy Distribution			Electricity Energy Trade				
	Inpatient	Outpatient	Total	Inpatient	Outpatient	Total	Inpatient	Outpatient	Total	Inpatient	Outpatient	Total
2022	618	22.959	23.577	212	2.135	2.347	936	12.463	13.399	0	61	61
2021	594	20.158	20.752	156	1.499	1.655	562	10.891	11.453	4	152	156
2020	634	13.628	14.262	170	2.300	2.470	1.009	12.051	13.060	85	1041	1126
2019	451	11.935	12.386	270	2.923	3.193	1.117	11.314	12.431	9	641	650
2018	366	5.995	6.361	100	1.014	1.114	975	9.680	10.655	82	646	728

Table 5. Number of disability days in the electricity energy production, transmission, and distribution sector

According to the data presented in Table 5, the number of workdays lost due to both inpatient and outpatient treatment consistently increased over the years in the Electricity Energy Production sector. However, in the Electricity Energy Transmission, Distribution, and Trade sectors, there has been a decreasing trend in workday losses in recent years. Nevertheless, the total workday loss for the entire sector during the 5-year period from 2018 to 2022 reached 151,836 days, with 8,350 days spent in hospitalization and 143,486 days through outpatient treatment [8-12]

4 CONCLUSION

The electricity energy sector plays a significant role in national economies; however, when evaluating the occupational health and safety performance in this study, several crucial findings emerge. Firstly, the observed decline in the number of workplaces may indicate the sector's adaptation to technological advancements and increased efficiency. However, it could also signify that businesses in the sector have become larger and more complex, leading to an increased workload per employee. In this case, occupational safety measures should be meticulously reviewed. The increasing trend in workplace accidents suggests ongoing challenges in managing risks within the sector. The variation in workplace accidents across different subcategories over time emphasizes the need for continuous revision and improvement of safety measures within the sector. The increase in accidents in the Electricity Energy Distribution sector indicates the urgent need for specific measures in this subsector. Fluctuations in fatal workplace accidents are crucial for assessing the effectiveness of measures taken in the sector. A decrease in fatal accidents indicates an improvement in safety awareness, while rising numbers underscore the need to identify and develop targeted solutions for priority risks. Particularly, the high numbers of fatal accidents in the Electricity Energy Production and Distribution sectors signal the necessity for a more detailed analysis of risks in these subsectors. Since occupational diseases encompass long-term risks for employees, more effective preventive measures and regular health screenings are mandatory to combat occupational diseases in the sector. Lastly, the increase in workday losses indicates that the effects of accidents in the sector are not limited to physical health alone but also have a significant impact on workforce productivity. Therefore, occupational health and safety measures should not only focus on accident prevention but also on the continuity and productivity of employees. Despite the decrease observed in fatal workplace accidents, occupational health and safety measures in the Electricity Energy sector still pose serious challenges in terms of accidents and workday losses. The variations among different subcategories within the sector highlight the necessity for tailoring specific safety measures to different areas of the sector. In conclusion, more efforts and a focus on reducing risks are needed in the Occupational Health and Safety aspects of the Electricity Energy Production, Transmission, and Distribution sector. This will be a crucial step in enhancing the safety of employees in the sector and establishing a sustainable work environment.

References

- [1] P. Aksar, "Elektrik Enerjisi Sektöründe Özelleştirme ve Regülasyon," Marmara University, Turkey, 2006.
- [2] G. Sec, "Türkiye'de enerji sektöründe faaliyet gösteren özel elektrik dağıtım kuruluşlarının kurumsal iletişim faaliyetlerinin incelenmesi," Istanbul Medipol University, Social Sciences Institute, 2021.
- [3] E. Akpinar, "Nehir tipi santrallerin Türkiye'nin hidroelektrik üretimindeki yeri," Erzincan University, Journal of the Faculty of Education, vol. 7, no. 2, pp. 1–25, 2005.
- [4] H. Ceylan, "Türkiye'deki elektrik iletim tesislerinde meydana gelen iş kazalarının analizi," Ejovoc (Electronic Journal of Vocational Colleges), vol. 2, no. 1, pp. 98–109, 2012.
- [5] M. Yavuzdemir, "Türkiye'nin kısa dönem yıllık brüt elektrik enerjisi talep tahmini," Ankara University, Social Sciences Institute, 2014.
- [6] TEİAŞ. "Türkiye'de Elektrik İletimi Sayılarla İletim İstatistikleri," Türkiye Elektrik İletim A.Ş.,

- [7] İş Sağlığı ve Güvenliğine İlişkin Tehlike Sınıfları Listesi Tebliği, 2009.
- [8] SGK. "2018 Yılı Sigortalı ve İşyeri İstatistikleri," Sosyal Güvenlik Kurumu, https://www.sgk.gov.tr/ Istatistik/Yillik/fcd5e59b-6af9-4d90-a451-ee7500eb1cb4/ (Accessed: November 25, 2023).
- [9] SGK. "2019 Yılı Sigortalı ve İşyeri İstatistikleri," Sosyal Güvenlik Kurumu, https://www.sgk.gov.tr/ Istatistik/Yillik/fcd5e59b-6af9-4d90-a451-ee7500eb1cb4/ (Accessed: November 25, 2023).
- [10] SGK. "2020 Yılı Sigortalı ve İşyeri İstatistikleri," Sosyal Güvenlik Kurumu, https://www.sgk.gov.tr /Istatistik/Yillik/fcd5e59b-6af9-4d90-a451-ee7500eb1cb4/ (Accessed: November 25, 2023).
- [11] SGK. "2021 Yılı Sigortalı ve İşyeri İstatistikleri," Sosyal Güvenlik Kurumu, https://www.sgk.gov.tr/ Istatistik/Yillik/fcd5e59b-6af9-4d90-a451-ee7500eb1cb4/ (Accessed: November 25, 2023).
- [12] SGK. "2022 Yılı Sigortalı ve İşyeri İstatistikleri," Sosyal Güvenlik Kurumu, https://www.sgk.gov.tr/ Istatistik/Yillik/fcd5e59b-6af9-4d90-a451-ee7500eb1cb4/ (Accessed: November 25, 2023).



The Mediating Role of Trust in Social Media in the Effect of Influencers on Consumers' Purchasing Actions

Bora Goktas^{*1}

¹Bayburt University, Faculty of Applied Sciences, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

Social media is one of the most effective tools to achieve goals. It is online and consists of resources that individuals use to share content, such as videos, photos, images, texts, ideas, gossip, news, blogs, and vlogs. The branch of science that examines all the actions of consumers before, during, and after purchase and investigates their reasons is called consumer behavior. With the rapid development of the internet in the digital market it has made shopping easier by creating new consumer categories through online shopping. An influencer is someone who has the right to influence people's decisions through their authority, knowledge, status, or relationships. Influencers are individuals who have active followers and motivate followers. Influencers represent third-party advocates who shape the attitude of audiences. Establishing a relationship of trust with the target audience is very important for brands, and the fastest way to lose trust is to offer things that are not personally used or are not suitable for the target audience and do not express value. As it is known, issues such as data protection and feelings of insecurity are effective in shopping via social media. The aim of this study is to see whether the trust in social media, where participants make purchases from social media by being influenced by influencers has a mediating role. As a result of the testing conducted with the SPSS26 package program, it was concluded that trust in social media has a mediating role in the influence of influencers on consumers' purchasing actions.

Keywords: Social media, Influencers, Brand trust

1 INTRODUCTION

With social media, an online environment, brands can communicate with their customers effectively and efficiently. Thanks to this communication, various content created by brands can be shared [1]. With consumer behavior, how individuals will act and the reasons behind these actions are investigated [2]. Consumers used to engage in purchasing behavior in traditional markets, but now, with the developing electronic environments, they have started to engage in online purchasing behavior, and thus, shopping has become easier [3]. Thanks to this developing new media, the application of influencers has emerged. Influencers are individuals who affect consumers' purchasing behavior and push them to shop [4]. Therefore, influencers are an important source of motivation for their followers to shop [5]. It is very important that communication with customers is built on the concept of "trust". For this, brands must deliver products that meet the expectations, needs, and wishes of consumers [6].

Brand trust; It can be defined as the strong belief of consumers that their expectations about the brand will be met and that the brand will not disappoint by fulfilling its promises. It is, therefore based on customers' expectation that the trusted party will take some significant action [7]. Therefore, brand trust is becoming the most important factor in the buyer and seller relationship, especially on social media. It is also considered one of the reasons for not buying online [8].

The aim of this study is to see whether the trust in social media, where participants make purchases from social media by being influenced by influencers has a mediating role. In addition to the studies examining the direct effect of influencers on the purchasing behavior of their followers, this research tries to contribute to the literature in a different way by examining whether the reliability of the social media platform has a mediating effect.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

The aim of this study is to see whether trust in social media, where participants make purchases from social media by being influenced by influencers, plays a mediating role. The study has been conducted using the "convenience

The mediating role of trust in social media in the effect of influencers on consumers' purchasing actions

sampling method" with 244 participants so far. A 6-point Likert scale was used in the study (1: Strongly Disagree; 2: Disagree; 3: Partially Disagree; 4: Partially Agree; 5: Agree, 6: Strongly Agree). Tests were carried out with SPSS26.

2.1 Research Hypotheses

The hypotheses of the research are as follows;

H₁: Influencers have a positive effect on consumers' purchasing actions.

H₂: Influencers have a positive effect on trust in social media.

 H_3 : Trust in social media has a mediating role in the positive effect of influencers on consumers' purchasing actions.

2.2 Research Reliability and Validity

In terms of the reliability of the research, Cronbach's Alpha coefficient for the 39 items tested is 0.915, which is quite reliable. The test result is presented in Table 1.

Table 1. Research reliability					
Cronbach's Alpha	Items				
0.915	39				

KMO and Bartlett test were checked for the validity of the study. The KMO value of the test is 0.901, Bartlett's Test of Sphericity is 5709.280, and p = 0.000. Test results are shown in Table 2.

Table 2. Research validity						
KMO a	and Bartlett Test					
КМО 0.901						
	Approx. Chi-Square	5709.280				
Bartlett's Test of Sphericity	df	741				
	Sig.	0.000				

3 RESULTS

3.1 Demographic Findings

Information about the participants is as follows, and Table 3 explains this situation;

- 43.9% are women; 56.1% are male.
- 32.4% are married; 67.6% are single.
- 6.1% primary school; 20.5% secondary school; 23.8% high school; 41.4% have associate degree and bachelor's degree; 8.2% have postgraduate education.
- 25.4% are 18-24; 40.6% are 25-34; 28.7% are between the ages of 35-44 and 45-54%. No one selected the +55 age option, which is another option.
- 12.8% are unemployed; 13.1% are students; 19.8% are private; 21.1% are in the public sector.
- 20.7% is below 11402[±]; 30.7% is 11402[±]; 25.4% 11403-17500[±]; 11.1% is 17501-25000[±]; 5.7% have an income of 25001-35000[±] and 6.4% have an income above 35001[±].

The mediating role of trust in social media in the effect of influencers on consumers' purchasing actions

Table 3. Demographic characteristics of participants							
Variables	Groups	Ν	%				
Condor	Female	107	43.9				
Genuer	Male	137	56.1				
Marital	Marital Married		32.4				
Status	Single	165	67.6				
	18-24	62	25.4				
Ago	25-34	99	40.6				
Age	35-44	70	28.7				
	45-54	13	5.3				
	Primary School	15	6.1				
Education	Secondary School	50	20.5				
Loucation	High School	58	23.8				
Level	Vocational/ Bachelor's Degree	101	41.4				
	Graduate	20	8.2				
	Unemployed	80	12.8				
	Student	32	13.1				
	Housewife	26	10.7				
Occuration	Private Sector Employee	24	19.8				
Occupation	Public Officer	27	21.1				
	Merchant	20	8.2				
	Retired	16	6.6				
	Other	11	7.8				
	Less than 11402	50	20.7				
Hanaahald	11402 (minimum wage)	75	30.7				
Tousenoid	11403-17500	62	25.4				
Income	17501-25000	27	11.1				
(D)	25001-35000	14	5.7				
	35001 and above	16	6.4				

3.2 Mean of Dimensions

In order to interpret the mean of the scale dimensions of the research, the following widely used formula was taken into account;

Score Range = (Highest Value-Lowest Value)/Total Value = (6-1)/6= 5/6 = 0.83

Based on this, the 6-point Likert scale ranges are formed as follows, and as seen in Table 4, the mean of all dimensions is within the "Partially Agree: 3.51-4.33" option coded with 4:

Strongly Disagree: 1.00-1.83
 Disagree: 1.84- 2.66
 Partially Disagree: 2.67-3.50
 Partially Agree: 3.51-4.33
 I agree: 4.34-5.17
 Strongly Agree: 5.18-6.00

Table 4. Mean of dimensions							
	Minimum	Maximum	Mean	Std. Deviation			
Influencers	1.00	6.00	3.7582	1.59827			
Trust in Social Media	1.00	6.00	3.6762	1.56534			
Consumers' Purchasing Actions	1.00	6.00	3.6148	1.62515			

3.3 Hayes' Process Analysis Results

Hayes' Process Analysis Results regarding whether trust in social media has a mediating role in the positive effect of influencers on consumers' purchasing actions are given in Table 5.

Table 5. Regression analysis results in Hayes process								
Independent Variable	Dependent Variable	R	P (R)	β	Ρ (β)	Hypothesis	Decision	
T G	Consumers' Purchasing Actions	0.648	0.000	0.659	0.000	H_1	✓	
Influencers	Trust in Social Media	0.753	0.000	0.738	0.000	H_2	✓	

Table 5. Regression analysis results in Hayes' process

*Decision; √: Accepted - X: Rejected

As stated in Table 5, the H_1 and H_2 hypotheses of the research are accepted. Table 6 presents the test results of the H_3 hypothesis, and this hypothesis is accepted. Trust in social media partially mediates the positive impact of influencers on consumers' purchasing actions.

Table 6. Mediation results in Hayes' process							
Variables	R	P (R)	β	Ρ (β)	Hypothesis	Decision	
Influencers	0.664	0.000	0.494	0.000	П	\checkmark	
Trust in Social Media	0.004	0.000	0.224	0.004	Π3		
Tota	l Effect o	f Influenc	ers on Pu	rchase A	ctions		
β	SE	t	р	LLCI	ULCI	\mathbb{R}^2	
0.659	0.050	13.250	0.000	0.561	0.757	0.648	
Direc	t Effect o	of Influenc	ers on Pu	irchase A	ctions		
β	SE	t	р	LLCI	ULCI	\mathbb{R}^2	
0.494	0.074	6.636	0.000	0.341	0.641	0.486	
Indirect Effect of Influencers on Purchase Actions							
β	Bo	otSE	Boot	LLCI	BootUl	LCI	
0.165	0.165 0.056 0.060		0.281				

*Decision; \checkmark : Accepted, X: Rejected

4 CONCLUSION

Social media is a very useful tool for brands to achieve their marketing communication goals in accordance with the requirements of the digital age. Influencer; They are people who have active followers and direct their followers, and can influence them thanks to their competence, knowledge transfer, position, recognition (such as fame), and connections. It is very important for brands to provide communication with customers built on trust. Because lost trust can lead to the formation of a cynical consumer group. What needs to be done to prevent this from happening is; It is to supply goods and services that fulfill the promises made to customers, thus meeting or even exceeding customer expectations. Thus, that brand and its products can become an element that can "express value" in the eyes of the customer.

As a result of the testing conducted in the research, it was concluded that trust in social media has a mediating role in the influence of influencers on consumers' purchasing actions. Since the hypotheses of the study are accepted, what brands must fulfill is; It is the process of using influencers who have the ability to influence marketing communications and choosing reliable social media tools and platforms as communication channels. With this aspect of the study, it is thought that it can provide guidance to the sector, brands, influencers and be a source for new research.

References

- [1] Y. Bilgin, "The effect of social media marketing activities on brand awareness, brand image, and brand loyalty," BMIJ, vol. 6, no. 1, pp. 128–148, 2018.
- [2] Y. Odabasi and G. Baris, Tüketici Davranışı, 11th ed., Istanbul; Mediacat Yayınları, pp. 16, 2011.
- [3] B. Tiryaki, "e-tüketici ve mesafeli sözleşmelerde tüketicinin korunması," [XIII.Türkiye'de İnternet Konferansı Bildirileri, p. 106-107, 2008].
- [4] S. Misra and R. Ashfaq, "Influencer impact: Examining the effect of influencers on consumer behavior and purchase," Traditional Journal of Multidisciplinary Sciences (TJMS), vol. 1, no.1, pp. 55–72, 2023.
- [5] S. Cakmak and A. Nas, "Etkileyici pazarlama uygulamalarının post-hakikat kavramı bağlamında incelenmesi," Düşünce ve Toplum Sosyal Bilimler Dergisi, vol. 6, pp. 48–80, 2022.

The mediating role of trust in social media in the effect of influencers on consumers' purchasing actions

- [6] Y. Gedik, "Bağlı kuruluş pazarlaması: kavramsal bir çerçeve," Yorum-Yönetim-Yöntem Uluslararası Yönetim-Ekonomi ve Felsefe Dergisi, vol. 8, no. 2, pp. 95–110, 2020.
- [7] S. T. K. Luk and L. Yip, "The moderator effect of monetary sales promotion of the relationship between brand trust and purchase behaviour," Brand Management, vol.15, no.6, pp. 452–464, 2008.
- [8] H. S. Yoon and L.G. Occena, "Influencing factors of trust in consumer-to-consumer electronic commerce with gender and age," Management, vol. 35, no. 3, pp. 352–363, 2015.



The Effect of Advergame (Game Advertising) Applications on Social Networks on Hedonic Consumption

Meysure Evren Celik Suticer*1

¹Istanbul Esenyurt University, Faculty of Business and Management Sciences, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Today, communication channels have shifted to social networks, which can appeal to larger audiences at the same time and are a more social medium. Since social media allows instant sharing very quickly, it has created the opportunity for people to share all their positive and negative experiences with everyone. While this sharing increases people's freedom of communication and information, it has also become remarkable for businesses. This situation has created a great chance for businesses' brands, products and services to be found remarkable by people, that is, social media visitors, and to become their customers. At this point, the most important point remaining is to design marketing strategies accordingly. For this reason, it is important to find an answer to the question of what the target audience wants among the visitor audience. At this point, offering customers what attracts attention by taking advantage of all the opportunities provided by technology is an important step to differentiate.

While the target audience of young people comes to mind when it comes to games, it has been determined that visitors of all ages are interested, especially in recent years. Because the visitor, who has a pleasant time by finding entertainment along with the game, develops a positive feeling towards the brand's product and service. In our research, what we pursue in terms of marketing; The aim is to determine how this positive emotion directs the consumer to hedonic consumption behaviors through advergame applications that combine games and advertising.

In this context, a semi-experimental study is planned to measure the hedonic consumption effect of the advergame application played on social networks on the players. According to the statistical results obtained from this study, it is predicted that those who play game advertisements will increase hedonic consumption due to the effect of these advertisements.

Keywords: Advergame, Game advertising, Digital games, Social media, Hedonic consumption



The Relationship Between Personal Branding and Leadership Metaphor in Digital Innovation

Yusuf Esmer^{*1}, Adnan Kara²

¹Bayburt University, Department of Management Information Systems, Bayburt, Turkey ²Bayburt University, Department of International Trade and Business Administration, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

Digital innovation is to bring innovative solutions in the application of business models and organizational processes of businesses to the digital platform. Information technology-based innovations such as big data, artificial intelligence, electronic information systems and mobile applications are the reasons that drive businesses towards digitalization. Organizations have to produce their own solutions to keep up with the digital age. Therefore, there is a significant need for employees specialized in digital innovation. Since leadership is the activity of the person who carries the organization goals. Digital leaders are the ones who ensure the alignment of organizational processes with information technologies and the interaction of business models and customer requirements. University education programs seem to be an attractive option for both students and employees who want to develop themselves in this field. This study uses the metaphor of leadership to understand digital innovation. Metaphor is the use of other concepts to understand a concept and to try to explain it with similar characteristics. In this study, the metaphors related to leadership metaphor are discussed. In addition, the literature on personal branding is discussed and its connection with leadership theory is examined. The aim of personal branding is to create a positive image and stand out in a competitive environment. Branding is one of the important career stages for those who will lead the digital innovation processes of organizations.

Keywords: Digital innovation, Leadership metaphor, Personal branding

1 INTRODUCTION

Today, managing the digitalization phenomenon brought by technology has become a special expertise for organizations. For this reason, organizations carry out digital innovations in order not to lag behind the age and to be in an effort to exist in the competitive market by bringing digital leaders to work [1]. Digital innovation is defined as significant changes in the products, processes or business models of businesses using information technologies and perceived as new [2]. Digital innovation in organizations brings about productivity gains, cost reductions and sustainable innovation. This innovative perception is important in terms of increasing customer satisfaction, renewal in the business processes of the organization and production of high value-added products [3]. In order for organizations to survive in the competitive market, they need to integrate digital innovation into their own structure, and achieving this depends on the presence of digital leaders who have the capacity and equipment to manage this transformation. It is possible to say that personal branding has an important role in this process. Personal branding is a strategy that enables a leader to promote his/her thoughts, vision and mission, in short, to promote himself/herself and gain a positive image [4]. In this context, the study aims to examine the link between leadership metaphor and personal branding in the digital innovation process.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

Conceptual analysis technique is used in this study. Accordingly, the study first explains the leadership metaphor with examples and then discusses the role of personal branding in digital innovation leadership.

3 LEADERSHIP METAPHOR

Metaphor is explained with words such as figure of speech, symbol and simile. Metaphor facilitates expression in daily speech, improves the aesthetic aspect in literary works and provides versatility in teaching concepts [5]. In this context, the use of metaphor in explaining leadership is quite common in the literature. Because leadership is

a concept that needs to be understood with its multifaceted dimensions in accordance with the purpose of using metaphor. In practice, behaviours, interactions, outcomes and social phenomena are associated with leadership. However, different sources approach leadership in different ways. These theories include those that explain leadership in terms of personal characteristics (charismatic, perfect person), those that explain leadership in terms of situational conditions (selecting specific people for specific situations), those that explain leadership in terms of behaviour (actions can be measured and evaluated accordingly), those that explain leadership in terms of probabilities (dealing with the probability between personal characteristics and situational conditions), and those that explain leadership in terms of position and experience (dealing with role attribution by followers) [6]. Leadership can be evaluated in many ways, such as its vision, qualities and ability to bring people together. Associating leadership with metaphors can be used to understand the ways in which each metaphorical concept differs from the others. For example, it is easier to understand how a traffic policeman differs from a clock, a mountain climber or a bridge [7]. When the literature is examined, it is seen that there are explanations and examples related to leadership metaphor by many researchers. These are summarized in Table 1.

interature)			1
Source	Concept	Explanation	Metaphor Example
Fennel (1996)	Power router	The leader is not the one who holds the power	River, steering wheel,
[8]		but the one who directs it in the right direction.	shepherd, conductor,
		The leader transfers power to where it should be directed	erupting volcano
Fannal (1006)	Spiritual	The leader supports those around him/her	Taachar parant
[8]	caregiver	She/He provides an environment for teamwork	reacher, parent
[0]	caregiver	and helps everyone to fulfill their duties	
Mayer-	Mobilizer	A leader is a high performer. She/He turns	Warrior. actor.
Schoenberger	1,100111201	ideas into reality through discipline, strategies	conductor, religious
and Oberlechner		and experience.	leader, machine
(2002) [6]			operator
Bolman and	Visionary	Leaders design appropriate responses to	Architect, lawyer
Deal (2003) [9]		changes in the environment, culture or market.	
		They accurately anticipate and respond to	
		developments in the environment.	
Mullen et al.	Able to	It enables people in different roles to inform	Two climbers climbing
(2005) [10]	manage	each other. It dominates the nature of the work	at the same time, ocean
	different roles	and ensures cohesion.	wave, architect and
			engineer on a
Earest (2007)	Inspiring	A competent leader is someone who has the	Storyteller writer
[11]	mspiring	ability to tell a story convincingly	orator speaker
Alvesson and	With a distinct	Leaders stand out with their personality traits.	Saint, gardener, cyborg.
Spicer (2010)	personality	They have charismatic and transformative	friend, commander,
[12]	1 5	characteristics. It is the nature of their	bully
		personalities to see and develop this potential.	
		They gain charisma by pushing the limits.	
Avidov-Ungar	Guide and	They ensure that the organization completes its	The captain of the ship,
vd. (2022) [13]	guide	journey safely. The digital leader finds creative	the prophet Moses
		solutions despite challenges. She/He makes	
A' 1 T.L.	<u>C</u>	friends easily even in unfamiliar places.	D'
Avidov-Ungar $ud (2022)$ [12]	Creative,	I he digital leader is able to do things that others	Discoverer of new
vd. (2022) [15]	explorer and	flexibility allows it to relate to everyone at the	maker space explorer
	Secker	right level	team member octopus
Avidov-Ungar	Showing the	A digital leader is someone who sees the	Drone. lighthouse.
vd. (2022) [13]	way and	organization in a broad perspective. She/He	motor, first moving
×)L-J	moving	prevents the organization from staying on the	wheel of a gear, road
	forward	road by bringing continuous innovations to the	signs, dance instructor
		organization. She/He teaches innovations to the	
		organization and applies them together with	
		others.	

Table 1. Leadership metaphors and examples (Source: This table was created by the authors based on the relevant literature)

When Table 1 is examined, it is seen that leadership is characterized by many concepts such as inspiring, directing power, visionary, mobilizing, guiding and directing, and there are many examples of metaphors related to leadership. Some of them are shepherd, teacher, conductor, architect, ship captain, commander, octopus, lighthouse, gardener, volcano, parent, artist, dance instructor and actor.

4 THE ROLE OF PERSONAL BRANDING IN DIGITAL INNOVATION LEADERSHIP

The share of the internet economy, which covers electronic commercial transactions, has an important place in the general economy. It is important for organizations to adapt to new technologies in the development of the Internet economy. Managers have a great role in the adaptation of new technologies to their managerial processes. Managers can overcome the resistance of employees to new technologies in the organization with their leadership qualities. New technologies are not only simple systems such as e-mail systems or messages. They are also complex systems such as knowledge management systems, management information systems, customer relationship management prompts and supply chain management systems [14]. Digital leadership helps organizations transform their traditional processes by providing digital solutions and leads with its capabilities. The most important feature of digital leadership that distinguishes it from traditional leadership is to ensure that the organization understands new technologies and is more collaborative [15]. Another role of digital leadership is the need to deal with the new challenges that come with digitalization. Information security and protection of personal data is one of the challenges that leaders need to overcome [16]. At the same time, teamwork in an online environment without going to work and without geographical boundaries also makes the virtual leadership role relevant. In virtual leadership, there are differences such as the ability to bring experts to teamwork without any boundaries, the reduction of hierarchical authority between employees and managers, and the closer cooperation of employees with leaders [17].

A trademark is a name, term, design or symbol used to distinguish goods or services from others. In this context, personal branding is a practice that enables individuals to distinguish themselves from others. Personal branding is the design and creation of one's image, influence and impressions of oneself to one's followers [18]. Personal branding enables leaders to gain global prestige and power, to stand out within the organization, to have a psychological impact on the business world or the community within their sphere of influence, and to increase their recognition [19]. In addition, leaders with a digital leadership brand image influence employees' digital innovation performance. Therefore, there is a significant and positive relationship between leadership style and innovative work in organizations using digital technology [20]. In this context, it is possible to ensure digital innovation in organizations with leadership behaviours in this direction [21]. Based on the related literature, a model in Figure 1 can be drawn showing the relationships between digital leadership, personal branding and digital innovation



Figure 1. Digital leadership, personal branding and digital innovation model (Source: Created by the authors based on the relevant literature)

According to the model in Figure 1, it is predicted that digital leaders can increase digital innovation performance in organizations through personal branding. Because digital innovation requires an effective leadership behaviour [22]. For an effective leadership behaviour, it can be said that an effective strategy such as personal branding is needed. However, leadership metaphor can be utilized in the process of implementing personal branding strategy.

5 CONCLUSION

Leadership is the activity of the person who leads the organization in the process of achieving organizational goals. Digital leadership is leading the organization to achieve digital transformation goals. In order for organizations to adapt to the digital age, digital innovation should be given importance and encouraged in organizations. For this, effective digital leaders are needed. In this study, the relationship between leadership metaphor and personal branding in the digital innovation process was examined conceptually. As a result of the analysis, a model was developed based on the relevant literature. The model shows that digital leaders can increase digital innovation performance in organizations through personal branding. By making leadership more effective through personal branding, digital innovation in the organization can be brought to higher levels. In this context, it is possible to say that personal branding is a mediating variable in the relationship between digital leadership and digital innovation. As a result, it can be said that this theoretically developed model should be supported by an empirical study. For this reason, it is important to conduct a research in line with this model in future studies.

References

- [1] J. Dijkstra, "Digital leadership and firm performance: Ameta-analysis," Groningen, 2020.
- [2] Y. Yoo, O. Henfridsson and K. Lyytinen, "The New Organizing logic of digital innovation: An agenda for information systems research," Information Systems Research, vol. 21, no. 4, pp. 724–735, 2010.
- [3] M. Sow and S. Aborbie, "Impact of leadership on digital transformation," Business and Economic Research, vol. 8, no. 3, pp. 139–148, 2018.
- [4] M. Kaytaz Yiğit, "A literature review on personal branding," International Journal of Society Researches, vol. 18, no. 39, pp. 895–928, 2021.
- [5] C. Demir and Ö. Karakas Yildirim, "Metaphors and metaphorical expressions in Turkish," Afyon Kocatepe University Journal of Social Sciences, vol. 21, no. 4, pp. 1085–1095, 2019.
- [6] V. Mayer-Schoenberger and T. Oberlechner, "Through their own words: Towards a new understanding of leadership through metaphors," John F. Kennedy School of Government Faculty Research Working Paper Series, Vols. RWP02-043, pp. 1–30, 2002.
- [7] K. Singh, "Metaphor as a tool in educational leadership classrooms," Management in Education, vol. 24, no. 3, pp. 127–131, 2010.
- [8] H.-A. Fennel, "An exploration of principals' metaphors for leadership and power," Thunder Bay, 1996.
- [9] L. G. Bolman and T. E. Deal, Reframing organizations: Artistry, choice, and leadership, 3rd ed., San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 2003.
- [10] C. A. Mullen, B. J. Greenlee and D. Y. Bruner, "Exploring the theory-practice relationship in educational leadership curriculum through metaphor," International Journal of Teaching and Learning in Higher Education, vol. 17, no. 1, pp. 1–14, 2005.
- [11] H. Forest, "The power of words: Leadership, metaphor and story," in Proceedings of 8th Annual International Leadership Association (ILA) Conference., Leadership at the Crossroads, Chicago, 2006.
- [12] M. Alvesson ve A. Spicer, Metaphors we lead by: Understanding leadership in the real world, Abingdon: Routledge, 2010.
- [13] O. Avidov-Ungar, T. Shamir-Inbal and I. Blau, "Typology of digital leadership roles tasked with integrating new technologies into teaching: Insights from metaphor analysis," Journal of Research on Technology in Education, vol. 54, no. 1, pp. 92–107, 2022.
- [14] B. J. Avolio, S. Kahai and G. E. Dodge, "E-leadership: Implications for theory, research, and practice," The Leadership Quarterly, vol. 11, no. 4, pp. 615–668, 200.
- [15] L. M. De Araujo, S. Priadana, V. Paramarta and D. Sunarsi, "Digital leadership in business organizations: An overview," International Journal of Educational Administration, Management, and Leadership, vol. 2, no. 1, pp. 45–56, 2021.
- [16] M. F. Klus and J. Muller, "The digital leader: What one needs to master today's organisational challenges," Journal of Business Economics, vol. 91, pp. 1189–1223, 2021.
- [17] C. Lay and M. Spångberg, "Digital leadership in Swedish trade companies-A qualitative study about Covid-19's impact on leadership in Swedish trade companies," Kalmar, 2021.
- [18] American Marketing Association, "Branding," 2023. [Online]. Available: https://www.ama.org/topics/branding/. [Accessed 6 November 2023].
- [19] M. Svetislav, B. Borivoje and M. Nina, "Personal branding through leadership," International Review, Vols. 3-4, pp. 75–81, 2015.
- [20] W. S. B. Wan Yaacob, "The role of professional development as a mediator in the relationship between teacher leadership and teacher performance among generation Y teachers in MRSM," 2019.
- [21] L. Cortellazzo, E. Bruni and R. Zampieri, "The role of leadership in a digitized world: A review," Frontiers in Psychology, vol. 10, pp. 1–21, 2019.

The relationship between personal branding and leadership metaphor in digital innovation

[22] A. A. Al-Ali, S. K. Singh, M. Al-Nahyan and A. S. Sohal, "Change management through leadership: The mediating role of organizational culture," International Journalof Organizational Analysis, vol. 25, no. 4, pp. 723–739, 2017.



Transition to the Circular Economy in the European Union: Is It Really Ready?

Fatma Unlu^{*1}

¹Erciyes University, Department of Economics, Kayseri, Turkey

Abstract

In recent years, the transition to a circular economy has shaped the EU policies and has also become a focal point of them. The EU offers a variety of funding programs to achieve the goals related to the circular economy. Therefore, the purpose of the study is to determine the relative circular economy performances of the EU countries. Hence, this will detect whether they are ready to the transition to a circular economy and show similarities with each other in terms of circular economy performance. The analysis was conducted for the EU-27 countries and included a total of 19 variables existing in the Eurostat database. In the study, the Ward's method, which is one of the hierarchical clustering analyses, was employed to determine the circular economy performance of the EU countries are not clustered in line with their level of economic development. In Cluster 1, Finland and Sweden, which are among the advanced economies of the EU, are located together with countries whose development level is relatively below the EU average. However, we cannot draw the same conclusions for Cluster 2 and Cluster 3. The reason for this is that the countries in these two clusters have exhibited a clustering tendency parallel to their economic development levels. In sum, the results of the statistical analysis show that the EU countries have three different levels of development in terms of the circular economy.

Keywords: Circular economy, European union, Cluster analysis, Ward's method



Notes Concerning 2x2 Type Quaternion Matrices

Ramazan Simsek^{*1}

¹Bayburt University, Technical Sciences Vocational School, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

Quaternions, which consist of quadruple components, attract attention with their unique equations and the fact that they do not provide many algebraic properties existing in mathematics. Again, in engineering science, it is more useful to work with matrices whose components are quaternions, especially in high-dimensional matrices. In this context, in the first part of this study, the quaternion field consisting of q = a + bi + cj + dk; $a, b, c, d \in \mathbb{R}$ and $i^2 = j^2 = k^2 = -1$, ijk = -1 shaped quadruple components were defined and information about its important properties was given. In the second part, matrices whose elements consist of quaternions are defined and their general properties are given. In the last part, which is the purpose of the study, unitary and orthogonal quaternion matrix forms of 2x2 type matrices obtained from quaternions were investigated.

Keywords: Quaternions, Quaternionic matrices, Mathematic, Engineering



Digital Entrepreneurship Training: E-Learning Platforms and Training Programs for University Students

Adnan Kara¹, Yusuf Esmer^{*2}

¹Bayburt University, Department of International Trade and Business Administration, Bayburt, Turkey ²Bayburt University, Department of Management Information Systems, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

Today, the digital economy has become an important part of business life. Especially in the 2000s, developments accelerated the development of the digital economy. Social media has adapted digital-based communication to social life at a dazzling speed. People develop their relationships by sharing their pictures, photographs and writings in cyberspace. On the other hand, multilateral electronic commerce platforms have enabled new business models to become operational in retailing. New ones such as O2O, Clicks and Morter, OmniChannel have been added to the known B2B, B2C, C2C business models. In addition, the market for digital products that can only be held in the virtual environment in the form of software, code and data has become a serious industry. The industrialization triggered by the sale of music tracks through the Apple Store is now evolving into giant companies such as Netflix, Spotify and Microsoft that sell only digital products. Young people are the biggest entrepreneurs of the digital economy, especially since they need to be able to use technology well. Other incentives are that the digital economy offers young entrepreneurs the opportunity to grow very fast, high profitability and the ability to do more with less infrastructure. Although the digital economy offers opportunities for young entrepreneurs, the number of successful ventures can be increased with the right training. For this reason, the number of training programs for university students is relatively high compared to other segments of society, both to encourage young entrepreneurs and to increase their success rates. This study examines training programs, courses, learning platforms, consultancies and government support programs on digital entrepreneurship. Content analyses of these programs are conducted and evaluations are made by comparing the support services they offer to young entrepreneurs.

Keywords: Digital entrepreneurship, E-learning, E-training, University students

1 INTRODUCTION

Entrepreneurship is one of the most important building blocks of a country's economy and young entrepreneurs need to be encouraged and supported in terms of economic growth, development, employment and development. For this reason, it is of great importance that young people are subjected to entrepreneurship training in order to bring them into the business world as entrepreneurs [1]. Entrepreneurship training is a unique concept for the development of entrepreneurial attitudes and skills along with personal development and training to support new ventures rather than directly creating new ventures. Entrepreneurship training includes explaining the factual essence of entrepreneurship to those who receive entrepreneurship-related training and providing personal development and professional orientation. Entrepreneurship teaching, on the other hand, involves transferring knowledge about the types and dimensions of entrepreneurship. However, entrepreneurship programs should include both training and training concepts [2]. The aim of entrepreneurship training is to change students' thinking about innovative and risky business activities [3]. Digital entrepreneurship training is a new approach to entrepreneurship training that aims to prepare students for technological changes in the digital transformation process [4].

The purpose of this study is to examine training programs, courses, learning platforms, consultancies and government-sponsored programs related to digital entrepreneurship.

Digital Entrepreneurship Training: E-Learning Platforms and Training Programs for University TIEM 2023 Students

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

In line with the purpose of the study, content analysis technique was used in the research. In this context, the study first provides information about digital entrepreneurship training, then the digital entrepreneurship trainings/courses of the institutions are presented in the form of tables and explanations are made.

3 DIGITAL ENTREPRENEURSHIP TRAINING

Digital entrepreneurship training is a training model that intensively includes case studies of successful entrepreneurs due to its experience-based learning approach [3]. The focus of the training is to increase awareness and consciousness about digital entrepreneurship as a career choice. With these entrepreneurship trainings in the programs of universities, it is aimed that graduates not only learn a job but also contribute to employment by establishing new businesses [4]. On the other hand, entrepreneurship courses are also organized to teach basic skills. In a normal entrepreneurship course, skills such as decision-making, leadership, motivation, interpresonal relationship management are offered. In digital entrepreneurship training, digital skills such as social media marketing and content marketing gain importance [5]. In addition, entrepreneurial intuition and social media usage increase digital entrepreneurship in these trainings [6]. Jardim [7] lists the skills that digital entrepreneurs should have in the era of globalization and digital transformation as *"creativity and innovation, initiative, self-efficacy and resilience, strategic planning and evaluation, problem solving, transformational leadership, clear and visual communication, teamwork, networking and digital communication."*

In addition to the development of attitudes and skills, environmental factors should also be taken into account in the preparation of digital entrepreneurship program content. In this context, environmental challenges related to entrepreneurship training include cultural differences, adaptation to digital technologies, teaching new skills according to different work trends, new lifestyles intertwined with technology and the use of critical thinking skills [3]. The performance of entrepreneurship training is influenced by the digital economy (economic development index), entrepreneurship course (training content), entrepreneurial trainer (quality of trainer), entrepreneurial competition (professionalism of projects), entrepreneurial practice (practice environment), entrepreneurial policy (incentives and supports) [8]. Lubis [9] lists the issues to be considered for university students to be successful in digital entrepreneurship as follows:

- Digital infrastructure (internet, technological devices, etc.) is affordable, reliable and highly fast,
- Effective university-industry cooperation,
- Increasing local and regional cooperation,
- Providing R&D grants and support for student projects,
- Creating crowdfunding for student initiatives,
- Providing incentives such as tax breaks for student initiatives,
- Raising awareness among students about new technologies and business models.

4 DIGITAL ENTREPRENEURSHIP TRAINING PLATFORMS

The number of digital entrepreneurship training platforms has increased, especially during the COVID-19 pandemic. Massive online courses (MOOCs) are among the most popular online systems for open access learning and teaching in the digital environment. Some MOOCs are free while others are paid. MOOCs are distance learning and open training resource platforms mostly developed by universities. Leading universities such as Stanford and MIT, but also companies such as Microsoft and Accenture have online platforms. Popular MOOC platforms include edX, Coursera and Udacity. Even online master programs are organized on these platforms [10]. Table 1 shows the digital entrepreneurship courses in the world.

When Table 1 is examined, it is seen that a large number of entrepreneurship courses of minimum 4 weeks and maximum 8 months are organized by many institutions in the world. It is understood that most of these courses are offered by universities.
	Table 1. Digital entrepreneurship courses in the world [11]				
Name of Institution	Name of Course	Duration			
Babson	The Entrepreneurial Mindset	6 weeks			
Babson	Entrepreneurial Operations: Launching a Startup	4 weeks			
Babson	Business Principles and Entrepreneurial Thought	7 months			
Berkeley	Entrepreneurship for All (Part I): The UC Berkeley Startup Guide for students by Silicon Valley Insiders	6 weeks			
Berkeley	Entrepreneurship for All (Part II): The UC Berkeley Startup Guide for students by Silicon Valley Insiders				
Berkeley	The Silicon Valley Insiders' Guide to Entrepreneurship: Launch, Fund, Scale Your Startup.	4 months			
Berklee	Creativity & Entrepreneurship	4 weeks			
Curtin	Disciplined Approach to Social Entrepreneurship	7 weeks			
Davidson	Building A Lean Startup	4 weeks			
Delft	Entrepreneurship for Engineers	8 weeks			
Delft	Entrepreneurship for Global Challenges in Emerging Markets	6 weeks			
Harvard	Entrepreneurship in Emerging Economies	6 weeks			
Harvard	Technology Entrepreneurship: Lab to Market	5 weeks			
Harvard	Food Systems Live!: Entrepreneurship in Emerging Economies	9 weeks			
IIMB	Develop, Organize and Manage Your Own Business	8 ay			
IIMB	Do Your Venture: Entrepreneurship for Everyone	6 weeks			
IsraelX	Introduction to Innovation and Entrepreneurship	13 weeks			
KAUST	Entrepreneurship Adventure	10 weeks			
Maryland	Financing Innovative Ventures	4 weeks			
Maryland	Innovation and Entrepreneurship	4 ay			
MIT	Becoming an Entrepreneur	6 weeks			
MIT	Entrepreneurship 101: Quién Es Tu Cliente?	8 weeks			
MIT	Entrepreneurship 102: Qué Puedes Hacer Por Tu Cliente?	6 weeks			
MIT	Cultivating Entrepreneurship and Antifragility to Thrive in A Fast- Paced World	4 weeks			
Seakademie	Social Entrepreneurship-Von Der Idee Zur Umsetzung	12 weeks			
TecdeMonterrey	Fundamentals of Entrepreneurship in the Family Business	5 weeks			
TecdeMonterrey	Corporate Entrepreneurship	4 weeks			
TecdeMonterrey	Innovation and Entrepreneurship	7 months			
TecdeMonterrey	Family Businesses: Entrepreneurship and Leadership to Transcend	3 months			
TecdeMonterrey	Entrepreneurial Mindset	4 weeks			
The Hong Kong Polytechnic	Product Design for Entrepreneurship	8 weeks			
UPValencia	Boosting Innovation and Entrepreneurship in the Food Sector	4 weeks			

Table 1 Digital entreprene shin course in the world [11]

Table 2 shows the entrepreneurship training platforms and trainings of the institutions that can be accessed online in Turkey.

Table 2. Entrepreneurship training programs in Turkey (Source: Created by the authors)				
Name of Institution-Training	Name of Training Program	Duration		
Platform				
Anadolu University- Akadema	Starting Entrepreneurship	5 courses		
Ataturk University- Atademix	-	-		
Istanbul University Graduate	Digital Entrepreneurship Training	5 courses		
School of Business - Iienstitu				
KOSGEB-e-Academy	New Entrepreneur Program	3 months		
	-Traditional Entrepreneurship Training			
	-Advanced Entrepreneurship Training			
Middle East Technical University	Entrepreneurial Women with Information	10 modules		

Indefinite

3 courses

Table ? Entropropourshi	n training programs	in Turkow	(Sauraa)	Created by	the outhors)
rapie 2. Enucpreneursm	p training programs	III I UIKEY	(Source.	Cleated by	y the authors)

When Table 2 is examined, it is seen that entrepreneurship training programs are organized by a small number of institutions in Türkiye, but most of them are carried out by universities. On the other hand, it is understood that some institutions such as Atatürk University do not organize entrepreneurship training programs although they have e-learning platforms.

Entrepreneurship and Leadership Training

Entrepreneurship Video Trainings

EVALUATION AND CONCLUSION 5

Association

Türkiye-Finance and Banking

Universty,

of

Istanbul

Bogazici

Digital entrepreneurship is the realization of entrepreneurial activities in virtual environments such as the internet. Digital entrepreneurship, also called internet entrepreneurship or e-entrepreneurship, ensures customer satisfaction by offering advantages such as flexibility, speed, price and quality. Therefore, digital entrepreneurship, which is a new type of entrepreneurship, is a tool for producers to earn money by offering their products to customers easily and is one of the most preferred types of entrepreneurship today [12]. For this reason, it is important to educate young people about digital entrepreneurship, and it is of great importance to organize training programs on digital entrepreneurship during the university training process, which has an important role in the training lives of young people. Because there is a need for training centers that will provide consultancy and training services to students who want to become entrepreneurs in the digital transformation process [13]. In this study, digital entrepreneurship training programs of institutions for university students were examined. It was determined that entrepreneurship training programs are organized by many institutions such as TecdeMonterrey, Babson, Berkeley, Harvard and MIT in the world. In Turkey, few institutions have entrepreneurship training programs, some of them (Anadolu University, Boğaziçi University, KOSGEB, The Banks Association of Türkiye, etc.) focus on general entrepreneurship training, while others (Middle East Technical University and Istanbul University) focus on digital entrepreneurship training. On the other hand, some institutions (Atatürk University) do not have entrepreneurship training programs despite having e-learning platforms. As a result, it can be said that e-learning platforms are needed in teaching digital entrepreneurship to university students, the number of platforms should be increased and it is important for universities to be pioneers in this regard.

References

Bilgeiş

Banks

Technical University

University-Universiteplus

Training Portal Yeditepe

The

- Y. Esmer, "A research for determining entrepreneurship profiles of vocational school students," The [1] Journal of International Social Research, vol. 12, no. 65, pp. 1041–1051, 2019.
- [2] A. Fayolle and B. Gailly, "From craft to science: Teaching models and learning processes in entrepreneurship education," Journal of European Industrial Training, vol. 32, no. 7, pp. 569-593, 2008.
- [3] V. Ratten and P. Usmanij, "Entrepreneurship education: Time for a change in research direction?" The International Journal of Management Education, vol. 19, no. 1, pp. 1-8, 2021.
- A. Permatasari and G. Anggadwit, "Digital entrepreneurship education in emerging countries: [4] Opportunities and challenges," in Opening up education for inclusivity across Digital economies and societies, IGI Global, 2019, pp. 156-169.
- G. Papageorgiou, S. Mihai-Yiannaki, M. Ioannou, D. Varnava-Marouchou, and S. Marneros, [5] "Entrepreneurship education in an era of digital communications," in Universities and entrepreneurship: Meeting the educational and cocial challenges (Contemporary issues in entrepreneurship research), vol. 11, Bingley, Emerald Publishing Limited, 2021, pp. 65-77.

Digital Entrepreneurship Training: E-Learning Platforms and Training Programs for University TIEM 2023 Students

- [6] A. Wibowo, B. S. Narmaditya, K. D. A. Sebayang, S. Mukhtar, and M. H. M. Shafiai, "How does digital entrepreneurship education promote entrepreneurial intention? The role of social media and entrepreneurial intuition," Social Sciences & Humanities Open, vol. 8, no. 1, pp. 1–11, 2023.
- [7] J. Jardim, "Entrepreneurial skills to be successful in the global and digital world: Proposal for a frame of reference for entrepreneurial education," Education Sciences, vol. 11, no. 7, pp. 1–13, 2021.
- [8] Z. Long, G. Zhao, J. Wang, M. Zhang, S. Zhou, L. Zhang, and Z. Huang, "Research on the drivers of entrepreneurship education performance of medical students in the digital age", Frontiers in Psychology, pp. 1–17, 2021.
- [9] R. L. Lubis, "Digital entrepreneurship in academic environment: Are we there yet?" Journal of Teaching and Education, vol. 9, no. 1, pp. 167–194, 2019.
- [10] W. Chai and I. Wigmore, "Massive open online course (MOOC)," 2021. [Online]. Available: https://www.techtarget.com/whatis/definition/massively-open-online-course-MOOC#. [Accessed: Oct. 18, 2023].
- [11] EdX, "Entrepreneurship training" courses," 2023. [Online]. Available: https://www.edx.org/search?q= entrepreneurship+training. [Accessed: Oct. 18, 2023].
- [12] A. Ozbek, Y. Esmer, and O. Şaylan, "An e-entrepreneurship model proposal for Turkish ready-made garment enterprises and Turkish fashion designers," The Journal of Business, Economic and Management Research, vol. 3, no. 2, pp. 182–195, 2020.
- [13] N. Kisi, "A new entrepreneurship approach in the digital era: Digital entrepreneurship," Journal of Economics and Administrative Sciences, pp. 389–399, 2018.



The Effect of the Freudian Subconscious on Purchasing Behavior towards Materialistic Values

Bora Goktas^{*1}, Seyran Cinar¹

¹Bayburt University, Faculty of Applied Sciences, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

The concept of the subconscious developed with the pioneering of Sigmund Freud and became a widely used theme in behavioral sciences such as psychology and psychoanalysis. The subconscious consists of a number of psychological effects that have been dragged out of the field of consciousness and have the possibility of constantly reappearing. The subconscious literally describes the inaccessible parts of the psychological universe of all people. This study was conducted on the effect of the Freudian subconscious on materialist values and it was conducted to reveal the degree to which consumers are affected by Freudian Subconscious attitudes during their behavior towards the effect of materialist values at the point of purchase. The study was conducted on Bayburt University students using the online survey method. The data obtained from the research were analyzed with the SPSS 26 package program. According to the research results; of the 12 hypotheses established, 9 were accepted and 3 were rejected. Among the independent variables among the hypotheses accepted in the study, the dimension of "Unplanned Purchasing" had the highest effect on the dimension of "Centrality", one of the dependent variables; It was found that the "Purchasing Wisdom" dimension had the least effect on the "Happiness" dimension.

Keywords: Freudian subconscious, Materialist values, Consumer behavior

1 INTRODUCTION

Rational purchasing motivations are based on rational criteria or evaluation of a situation. It is compared to emotional purchasing motivations that are based on emotions. Nowadays, as the consumption culture changes, the shopping behavior of consumers also changes [1]. Nowadays, people consume to satisfy their emotions as well as their material needs [2]. In other words, consumers make purchases, which are referred to as unplanned purchases, for reasons such as bad mood, pleasure, and identity formation [3]. Psychological factors such as perception, attitude, motivation and personality that affect consumers' purchasing behavior need to be investigated. Impulsive buying, one of these psychological factors, is a purchasing process that consumers do not need but cannot resist [4]. At this point, individuals cannot act wisely in their purchasing decisions. Purchasing wisdom is a cognitive issue and is about thoughts and questions about the purchases made. It is also when a person realizes during or after the purchasing process that the consumer does not need the product or may not have chosen the appropriate one [5].

Today, many theories discuss the materialist tendency, which is considered a common concept in psychology and sociology. When the common points of these theories are considered, three elements that form the basis of the materialist tendency stand out: Centrality, happiness and success [6]. An individual's tendency towards money and purchasing material goods is known as materialism. Materialists measure themselves and others by what they have and believe that they can find happiness and joy by consuming expensive goods [7].

With the current study, it was tried to understand the Purchasing Behavior of Bayburt University students regarding both the Freudian Subconscious and Materialist Values, and the Effect of the Freudian Subconscious on the Purchasing Behavior towards Materialist Values. In this respect, the research will be able to contribute to the literature as a source for new research to the scientific community examining the relationship between unconscious attitudes and materialistic behavior.

2 MATERIAL AND METHOD

2.1 Purpose of the Research

The aim of the study is to see the effect of the Freudian subconscious on purchasing behavior towards materialist values consisting of success, happiness and centrality dimensions. The study is carried out on Bayburt University students. Accordingly, a survey form was prepared in the study and applied to 221 people via www.surveey.com.

2.2 Research Hypotheses

The hypotheses of the study were determined as follows;

H₁: Rational Purchasing dimension has an effect on the Achievement dimension.

- H₂: Impulsive Buying dimension has an effect on the Achievement dimension.
- H₃: Purchasing Wisdom dimension has an effect on the Success dimension.
- H₄: The dimension of Inability to Resist Purchasing has an effect on the Success dimension.
- H₅: Rational Purchasing dimension has an effect on the Centrality dimension.
- H₆: Unplanned Purchasing dimension has an effect on the Centrality dimension.
- H₇: Purchasing Wisdom dimension has an effect on the Centrality dimension.
- H₈: The dimension of Inability to Resist Acquisition has an effect on the Centrality dimension.

H₉: Rational Purchasing dimension has an effect on the Happiness dimension.

H₁₀: Impulsive Buying dimension has an effect on the Happiness dimension.

 H_{11} : Purchasing Wisdom dimension has an effect on the Happiness dimension.

H₁₂: The dimension of Inability to Resist Purchasing has an effect on the Happiness dimension.

2.3 Research Reliability

The reliability analysis of the scales in the study was tested and the Cronbach Alpha coefficient was examined. As a result of the reliability analysis regarding the Freudian Subconscious, the Cronbach's Alpha Coefficient of the scale was calculated as = 0.611 and Cronbach's Alpha Coefficient of the Materialist Values scale was found to be = 0.615. The test result is presented in Table 1.

Table 1. Research reliability						
Scale Cronbach's Alpha Ite						
Freudian Subconscious	0.611	20				
Materialist Values	0.615	18				

2.4 Research Validity

The KMO value for the "Freudian Subconscious" scale was 0.822; for the "Materialist Values" scale, the KMO value was 0.700. In this test, p: 0.000 and it is significant for both scales.

Table 2. Research validity						
Scale	KMO	р				
Freudian Subconscious	0.822	0.000				
Materialist Values	0.700	0.000				

As a result of the evaluation of 20 scale items regarding the Freudian Subconscious scale, 4 factors were formed. These 4 factors explain 53.555% of the total variance. Three factors were formed regarding the Materialist Values scale. These 3 factors constitute 58.433% of the total variance.

Factors related to the Freudian Subconscious scale are;

- Rational Purchasing
- Unplanned Purchasing
- Purchasing Wisdom
- Inability to Resist Purchasing

Factors related to the Materialist Values scale are;

- Success
- Centrality
- Happiness

3 RESULTS

3.1 Demographic Characteristics of the Sample

Findings on the demographic characteristics of the participants are given in Table 3. As seen in Table 3, the findings regarding the sample are as follows;

- Considering the age distribution of the participants in the research, 11.2% is the ages of +24, 76.1% is between the ages of 21-24, and 12.7% is between the ages of 17-20.
- Considering the gender distribution; 48.4% are men and 51.6% are women.
- Considering marital status; 6.3% are married, 93.7% are single.
- Considering the educational status; It was determined that 33% had a vocational school, 62.4% had a bachelor's degree, and 4.6% had a graduate degree.

Table 3. Demographic characteristics					
Variables	Groups	Ν	%		
	17-20	28	12.7		
Age	21-24	168	76.1		
	+24	25	11.2		
Contra	Female	114	51.6		
Gender	Male	107	48.4		
Marital Status	Married	14	6.3		
Marital Status	Single	207	93.7		
	Vocational School	73	33		
Education	Bachelor's Degree	138	62.4		
	Graduate Degree	10	4.6		

3.2 Simple Linear Regression Analysis

Simple linear regression analysis was used to test the hypotheses established for the research. The 12 hypotheses presented here as the hypotheses of the research will be tested with regression testing. There are 4 independent variables and 3 dependent variables in the research, and 12 basic models were created based on this. The test results are presented in Table 4.

Table 4. Regression analysis results								
Model	Independent Variable	Dependent Variable	R	F	P (R)	ß	Т	P (ß)
1	Rational Purchasing		0,315	22,280	0,000	0,304	4,720	0,000
2	Unplanned Purchasing	Sussaa	0,152	5,158	0,002	0,227	2,271	0,004
3	Purchasing Wisdom	Success	0,063	0,862	0,213	0,087	0,928	0,354
4	Inability to Resist Purchasing		0,211	10,209	0,000	0,261	3,195	0,000
5	Rational Purchasing		0,264	15,867	0,000	0,260	3,983	0,002
6	Unplanned Purchasing	Controlitor	0,252	14,835	0,000	0,426	3,852	0,000
7	Purchasing Wisdom	Centrality	0,052	0,585	0,324	0,052	0,765	0,445
8	Inability to Resist Purchasing		0,247	14,182	0,000	0,344	3,766	0,000
9	Rational Purchasing		0,364	33,376	0,000	0,372	8,935	0,000
10	Unplanned Purchasing	TT	0,069	1,740	0,188	0,089	1,319	0,123
11	Purchasing Wisdom	Happiness	0,164	6,064	0,000	0,169	2,463	0,015
12	Inability to Resist Purchasing		0,128	8,371	0,014	0,171	1,836	0,014

When Table 3 is examined; it is seen that the independent variables do not have any effect on the dependent variables for model 3, model 7 and model 10. However, it is found that there is an effect in the other 9 models. The results regarding whether the research hypotheses are supported or not are presented in Table 5. As seen in Table 5, 9 of the 12 hypotheses are accepted and 3 are rejected.

Hypothesis	Result
H_1	•
H_2	•
H ₃	•
H_4	•
H ₅	•
H ₆	•
H_7	•
H_8	•
H9	•
H_{10}	•
H_{11}	•
H12	•

Table 5. Results related to the hypotheses of the research

4 CONCLUSION

The subject of this article is the Effect of the Freudian Subconscious on Consumer Behavior towards Materialist Values. The survey on Freudian approach and Materialist Values was conducted for Bayburt University students. Customers face many purchasing emotions and compare alternatives when or before purchasing a product. This situation is more related to the subconscious. Another purchasing emotion is when an individual buys something in order to show that person to have a certain position or status. This situation is explained by materialist values. The Freudian approach is the reflection of the teachings of Sigmund Freud, the neurologist and founder of psychoanalysis, in marketing science. In marketing studies implemented in line with the Freudian approach, a number of messages are sent that will activate the subconscious (unconscious), the repressed part of the human mind, and the consumer's purchasing behavior is tried to be controlled. With the current study, it was tried to understand the Purchasing Behavior of Bayburt University students regarding both the Freudian Subconscious and Materialist Values. In the study, findings for 221 participants were presented and the survey is still ongoing. It is thought that the results of the research can make important contributions to the literature.

References

- [1] O. Yilmaz, "Tüketicilerin rasyonel ve hedonik marka algılarının müşteri bağlılığı üzerindeki etkisi," MANAS Journal of Social Studies, vol. 7, no. 3, pp. 361–380, 2018.
- [2] Y.K. Kim and P. Sullivan, "Emotional branding speaks to consumers' heart: the case of fashion brands," Fashion and Textiles, vol. 6, no. 2, pp. 1–16, 2019.
- [3] G. Atilla and D. Isler, "Duygusal zekâ ve dürtüsel satın alma davranışı ilişkisi," Selçuk Üniversitesi İİBF Sosyal ve Ekonomik Araştırmalar Dergisi, vol. 13, no. 26, pp. 180–206, 2013.
- [4] S. Uslu Divanoglu and T. Uslu, "Kişilik özelliklerinin içgüdüsel satın alma davranışlarına yansıması," Bingöl Üniversitesi Sosyal Bilimler Enstitüsü Dergisi, vol. 9, no. 17, pp. 215–234, 2019.
- [5] J. C. Sweeney, D. Hausknecht, and G. N. Soutar, "Cognitive dissonance after purchase: A multidimensional scale," Psychology & Marketing, vol. 17, no. 5, pp. 369–385, 2000.
- [6] A. Sezer, "Investigation of the relationship between materialistic tendency and life satisfaction in the context of generations: A research in the covid 19 process," IJTEBS, vol. 5, no. 2, pp. 168–186, 2021.
- [7] V. Ozciftci and U. Ayhan, "Materyalizmin satın alma tarzlarına etkisi: Aksaray ilinde bir çalışma," Atatürk Üniversitesi Sosyal Bilimler Enstitüsü Dergisi, vol. 24, no. 4, pp.1617–1632, 2020.



Postmodern Language and Discourse: The Example of Ekşi Sözlük

Nihal Kocaaga¹, Ensar Lokmanoglu^{*1}

¹Sakarya University of Applied Sciences, Public Relations and Promotion, Sakarya, Turkey

Abstract

People use language to communicate with those around them and to express themselves. Communication becomes more efficient with the correct and effective use of language. While the concept of living together is strengthened thanks to language, cultural exchange is also carried out. While language is expressed through a number of indicators, it also becomes effective when used in a context, and thus an evaluation is made by the recipients regarding the situation in which it is expressed. The use of language is carried out through the discourse dimension. In its simplest form, discourse shows how the language is conveyed and with what style of expression. The concept of language and discourse has transformed from past to present. In this context, when evaluating the understanding of language and discourse in the period of modernism and postmodernism, it is seen that the perspective has changed because these two processes are different. While the modern period mainly creates a limited and formal structure, there are evaluations that there are no borders and a freer form of discourse has developed in the postmodern period. Although it is criticized in various ways, there are studies showing that postmodern discourse also contains a different perspective within itself.

Keywords: Postmodern language, Postmodern discourse, Ekşi Sözlük

1 INTRODUCTION

Language in the Turkish Language Association Dictionary; "Language is the agreement people make with words or signs to communicate what they think and hear." It is defined as [1]. As can be understood from here, language is how people communicate and express themselves with certain signs and words. Apart from creating cultural and social unity, it is not possible to communicate between people without using language. Language is a tool through which culture, knowledge and sharing are carried. Because, according to Vardar [2], the main function of language is to communicate between people and socialize the individual.

When individuals use language, they develop a way of saying things in a context, that is, in relation to the subject they express. With this concept called discourse, individuals convey to their environment through their own cultural structures, perspectives and the form of expression they create. When viewed in this context, people organize and shape all their actions within a discourse. Therefore, discourse expresses a phenomenon that permeates every aspect of life [3].

Since language is a structure consisting of signs and discourse is the way expressions are uttered, it can be said that it is highly affected by the social structure or, when viewed from the opposite perspective, changes society. From this point of view, it can be accepted as a natural situation that with the development and transformation of society and the development of technology, the language and discourse characteristics of individuals also change. "Every discourse has an ideology, and every ideology has a discourse. (Discourse) is the struggle to determine social meanings" [3]. Accordingly, for example, it can be said that the language and discourse used in the 19th and 20th centuries were influenced by modernism and the structural characteristics of that day, and that, starting from the last quarter of the 20th century, it entered a process of evolution according to the characteristics of the period called the postmodern period.

1.1 Language and Discourse Features of the Postmodernist Era

Language and Discourse Characteristics of the Postmodernist Period Modernism "refers to a process of breaking away from tradition and embodying a form of thought and behavior that involves the subordination of the old to the new, and prioritizing rationality, functionality and reason (rationality) while affirming and accepting the new in every field" [4]. However, the negativities experienced in the social sphere have led to the basic principles of

modernism being opened to discussion. Thus, the belief in rationalism was shaken and the philosophy of modernism began to be discussed.

Postmodernism emerged as a reaction to the criticism of modernism. This criticism and reaction has developed as a radical opposition in almost every field, from cultural to science. In this context, according to [5] evaluation, postmodernism "first started to be used among artists and critics in New York in the 1960s, and then moved to Europe in the 1970s and was developed by European theorists". Thus, postmodernism has shown its influence in all social areas, from architecture to music, from music to literature, from science to philosophy, as well as in the field of language.

At this point, it is possible to determine some points regarding the change in language and discourse features between modernism and postmodernism as follows [4].

While form is important in modernism, formlessness, distinctiveness and openness come to the fore in postmodernism. In modernism there is hierarchy and order, in postmodernism there is anarchy and chaos. While semantics comes to the fore in modernism, rhetoric (beautiful speech, art of words) comes to the fore in postmodernism. In modernism, general (main) language features are at the forefront, while in postmodernism, individual language (a language structure specific to the individual) is at the forefront. In modernism, images and objects are meaningful, while in postmodernism, the meanings attributed to images and objects are taken into consideration. While narrative narrative is valid in modernism, it is assumed that grand narratives have come to an end in postmodernism. While in modernism there is certainty in all areas, including language and discourse, in postmodernism uncertainty prevails.

In the light of these evaluations, it is possible to say that postmodern language and discourse have changed and transformed according to the modernism period. Because the postmodern period also points to the development of technology and the formation of a society described as a network society. Castells' (2013) characterization of postmodern society as a "network society" indicates that with the development of technology, especially information technologies, the internet environment is rapidly changing the direction of humanity [6]. In Castells' seminal work, the postmodern period as the information age; It has been discussed in detail as the rise of the network society in the context of economy, society and culture.

The rapidly rising network society with the development of computer technology in the postmodern period has also been a factor in the transformation of language. In this context, Ekşi Sözlük, which publishes in the digital environment, can be given as an example reflecting postmodern language and discourse.

1.2 Ekşi Sözlük as a Postmodern Communication Tool

Ekşi Sözlük, a platform that is especially popular among university students, was created by Sedat Kapanoğlu in 1999. The slogan of the site is "sacred source of information". In 2017, Ekşi Mobile application started to be used on phones. As of 2020, dictionary authors can add up to 10 images to the entries they enter [7].

When we look at the Turkish language used in Ekşi Sözlük, it is seen that the writers can use letters inspired by English and even letters that are not used in the Turkish writing language on the English keyboard. In this context, it can be said that this platform, which the young generation is interested in, displays features such as uncertainty, comfort, the end of grand narratives, and intertextuality in postmodern language and discourse.

When the concept of "discourse" is searched in Ekşi Sözlük, the expressions seen on the page are as follows:

"which does not consist of words, style, or manner of speaking; Perhaps it is the sum of all the words spoken in a certain style, their connotations and meanings, what they said and did not say, the genealogy of each word and all its relatives, the dowry chest and the photo albums.

And your clothes, your notebooks... your words.

"serendipity"

"eng. discourse

purplehaze

"Not every word that comes out of your mouth is equal. (see: saying a discourse)

"serendipity"

"It is a system of producing information that is controlled within certain restrictions.

hemingway

"saying, pronunciation

"keri"

It refers to all the ways and possibilities that operate through processes related to the production of the text*, its circulation, and its reception by people*, necessary for the language to convey the meaning (especially the ideology) at the conscious or subconscious level.

"poturgilinpotur"

"The concept that Foucault uses frequently and very complexly to understand the power-knowledge relationship. Discourse, Foucault's primary unit of analysis, can most appropriately be understood as a system of possibilities for knowledge.

astrocracy"

"A set of linguistic equivalents of realities that, when parodied, can create a veiled fascistic tone with the concern of going beyond the codes of "distributed-acquired social roles" that it may cause in the individual.

drunk"

As can be seen from the quotes above, it is seen that individuals express themselves with fewer words and abbreviations, which is one of the main features of today's social media platforms, thus causing the language-thought relationship to fall into very weak points. In addition, it is noteworthy that since the use of English keyboards is common among young people, the letter "ü", which does not exist in English on such platforms, is given with the letter "u" in some quotations. It should be underlined that the authors also created a unique pseudonym and were able to write with this freedom. It is also possible to see an example of intertextuality in the second quote (see: saying discourse).

2 **RESULTS**

The concept of postmodernism, which was put forward as a reaction to modernism, is based on the assumption that there was a "libertarian" period in which irregularities, uncertainties and ambiguity were prioritized. The phenomenon of postmodernism affects culture and language and discourse, which are the basic elements that make up culture, as well as in every area of society. In this sense, the basis of the significant transformation lies in the developments in communication technology.

With the rise of the network society, the introduction of new communication tools plays an important role in this change and transformation. However, it should be considered natural that postmodernism, which was put forward with criticisms about the rational perspective of modernism and the orderly use of everything, was also subjected to negative criticism in the context of language and discourse, as in many areas. As examined in this study, it is seen that digital platforms such as Ekşi Sözlük not only display a free perspective to writers and readers, but also cause significant misuse of language, which is the cornerstone of culture.

3 CONCLUSION

It seems inevitable that Ekşi Sözlük type platforms, where it is assumed that free discourses take place, should be rethought in terms of the use of Turkish, sourceless information flow, and environments where almost everyone can enter data as they wish, and therefore postmodern language and discourse should be discussed in detail.

References

- [1] Turkish Language Association, Accessed: Sept. 2023, https://sozluk.gov.tr/.
- [2] B. Vardar, Basic Concepts and Principles of Linguistics, Istanbul: Multilingual Publishing, 2011.
- [3] B. Gungor, "A concept study and critical discourse analysis on discourse approach," Journal of Critical Communication Studies, vol. 2, pp. 1–12, 2020.
- [4] S. Bitrim Okmeydan, "Transformation of surveillance society in postmodern culture: From panopticon to synopticon and omnipopticon," AJIT-e: Online Academic Journal of Information Technology, vol. 8, no. 30, pp. 46–69, 2017.
- [5] M. Sarup, Poststructuralism and Postmodernism, Trans.: A. Guclu, 2nd Edition, Ankara, Science and Art Publications, 2004.
- [6] M. Castells, The Rise of the Network Society, Volume 1, Trans.: E. Kilic, Istanbul, Istanbul Bilgi University Publications, 2013.
- [7] Wikipedia, Accessed: Sept. 2023, https://tr.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ek%C5%9Fi_S%C3%B6zl%C3%BCk. Retrieved from https://tr.wikipedia.org/wiki/Ek%C5%9Fi_S%C3%B6zl%C3%BCk.



Measuring the Industry 4.0 Awareness Level of Students in the Field of Engineering and Information Systems

Sumeyye Selvi¹, Cagatay Teke^{*1}

¹Bayburt University, Department of Industrial Engineering, Bayburt, Turkey

Abstract

Within the scope of this study, an Industry 4.0 awareness survey was applied to students in the field of engineering and information systems at a university in Turkey, and the Industry 4.0 awareness levels of these students were tried to be determined by examining the survey results. The number of students participating in the survey is 271. SPSS program was used to interpret the survey results. As a result of the analysis, it was seen that the data showed a normal distribution. It was observed that the Industry 4.0 awareness levels of the students who participated in the research were below the medium level. T-test and ANOVA analysis were performed on demographic questions. Kaiser-Meyer-Olkin (KMO) test, Bartlett's Test and Cronbach's Alpha test were applied to the awareness scale.

Keywords: Industry 4.0, SPSS, ANOVA

1 INTRODUCTION

Industry 4.0 is a constantly developed technology tool to provide production and marketing services to businesses focused on efficiency, effectiveness, speed, flexibility, cost and satisfaction. It is aimed to obtain the best and quality products by establishing a connection between Industry 4.0 and production processes, obtaining information from the previous stage, establishing communication and ensuring continuity. The term Industry 4.0 was used for the first time at the Hannover Fair [1]. Industry 4.0 plays a very important role in the globalizing world. In addition to providing instant communication all over the world, countries should use Industry 4.0 at the highest level for security, software, production, transportation, fast and flexible response to customer requests, and ensuring competition. Countries that use Industry 4.0 effectively have the authority to reverse the situation in the world. The usage areas of Industry 4.0 are quite wide. Some concepts within the framework of Industry 4.0 are autonomous vehicles, cyber security, simulation technologies, horizontal and vertical system integration, internet of things, cloud computing, 3D printers and augmented reality. Industry 4.0 is used in many areas such as medicine, military and civil space and aviation technologies, textile applications, construction and architectural technologies, and education.

2 INDUSTRY 4.0

2.1 Industrial Revolutions

The first industrial revolution started with the invention of the steam engine in 1712. Weaving looms were also built in the same century. After these great revolutions, mechanical production was started with the construction of railways and the help of steam machines. As small workshops were replaced by factories, easier and faster production began. In the second industrial revolution, mass production was started by integrating electricity into production at the end of the 19th century. The second industrial revolution began with the use of electrical systems in the Ford Motor factory. Thanks to mass production, Ford Motor increased production volume and reduced costs and prices. The second industrial revolution is also called Fordism-Ford Age. The third industrial revolution began to emerge in 1968 with programmable machines developed in the light of scientific knowledge. With the use of computers in the production stage, the need for labour force has decreased. Industry 4.0, expressed as the Fourth Industrial Revolution, ensures that production is carried out in the most effective, flexible, high-quality and fast way, thanks to the smart factories approach [2].

2.2 Fundamentals of Industry 4.0

The main features of Industry 4.0 can be listed as follows [1]:

- Interoperability: Smart factories work interconnectedly by communicating with people.
- Virtualization: Copying the data of the smart factory and meeting customer needs by using simulation models with sensor data.
- Decentralization: Switching to production with 3D printing technologies, with cyber-physical systems being able to make their own decisions.
- Real-Time Capability: It means instantly eliminating errors that may occur by collecting data and performing analysis instantly.
- Platform-Oriented Services: It is the coexistence of people and cyber-physical systems of smart factories in service provider platforms. Production should be customer-focused and service provider platforms should be connected to respond flexibly to customer requests immediately.
- Modularity: It aims to instantly adapt to changing customer demands.

Some concepts related to Industry 4.0 are listed below [1]:

- Internet of Things: All objects on our planet are connected to the internet and communicate.
- Cyber Physical systems: It is the production of machines that organize production independently of people.
- Artificial Intelligence: It is the process of developing computer systems that will understand human thought structure and reveal similar ones.
- Simulation Technologies: It is creating virtual models of the next stages by creating a virtual environment using real data.
- Augmented Reality: It is the combination of the real environment with the virtual environment.

3 LITERATURE REVIEW

When the literature is examined, it is seen that various studies have been carried out on Industry 4.0. In the study conducted by Kaygisiz and Sipahi, the concept of generation, generation classes and the impact of Industry 4.0 on generations were examined. The purpose of the study is to measure the knowledge levels of generation Y about individual innovation and Industry 4.0 and to examine the relationship between individual innovation and Industry 4.0. A survey was administered to 321 students studying at Giresun University Business Administration department to measure their individual innovation and Industry 4.0 knowledge levels. The survey results were evaluated with the help of SPSS program. As a result of the statistical evaluations, it was concluded that the relationship between gender, individual innovativeness, education levels and awareness of the Industry 4.0 concept is independent [3].

In the study conducted by Kamber and Sonmezturk Bolatan, the current technological situation of the Turkish production industry and its perspective on Industry 4.0 were examined. The purpose of the study is to measure the Industry 4.0 awareness level of employees in the production sector. An Industry 4.0 awareness survey was administered to 202 participants working in the manufacturing industry. Sectoral Industry 4.0 knowledge levels of 202 participants were measured. It has been observed that the sector-based Industry 4.0 perspective is different. It has been observed that the awareness of Industry 4.0 varies depending on whether the participants' company carries out studies on Industry 4.0 or not [4].

In the study conducted by Yildiz and Firat, it was aimed to measure the young generation's perspective and knowledge level on the fourth industrial revolution. For this purpose, a survey was prepared and applied to university students in Turkey. Factors affecting Industry 4.0 knowledge levels were determined by applying factor analysis and structural equation modeling methods. As a result of the study, it was revealed that university students mostly use technology to perform banking transactions [5].

In the study conducted by Torun and Cengiz, the perspectives of Faculty of Economics and Administrative Sciences students on Industry 4.0 were examined. A survey consisting of demographic questions, 15 statements and technological acceptance model questions was applied to students in the Business Administration, Management Information Systems, Economics, Finance, Political Science and Public Administration departments. T-test and ANOVA Analysis methods were used to measure differences in survey responses. As a result of the t-test, it was concluded that gender difference did not make a difference. As a result of the ANOVA analysis, it was concluded that there was a difference due to the differences in the departments. As a result of the research, it was

concluded that the Industry 4.0 awareness level of Management Information Systems students is very high compared to other departments. It has been concluded that this is due to the curriculum [6].

In the study conducted by Yelkikalan, Ozcan, and Temel, students studying at the Faculty of Economics and Administrative Sciences and School of Social Sciences, their perspectives on Industry 4.0 were examined. A survey consisting of demographic questions, 15 statements and technological acceptance model questions were applied to students. Demographic questions in the survey were interpreted with descriptive statistics and factor analyzes were performed according to the scale. T-test and ANOVA analysis methods were used to measure differences in survey responses. Students' perceived benefit levels of Industry 4.0 technologies, perceived ease of use, and intentions to use these technologies differ according to their gender. It was determined that usage behaviors did not differ according to gender. It has been determined that students' perceived benefit levels of Industry 4.0 technologies and their intentions to use these technologies differ significantly depending on the departments they study in; It was determined that perceived ease of use and usage behaviors did not show a significant difference [7].

In the study conducted by Demiral, the effect of Industry 4.0 and the application of the prominent technological concepts of Industry 4.0 on human resources management were examined. A survey was administered to white-collar employees of a food business that operates as a corporate entity and has technology applications. 44 survey data obtained as a result of the survey were analyzed with SPSS 23 program. As a result of the regression analysis conducted on the participants in the research, it was concluded that new technologies will affect human resources. Another result is that there is no positive thought towards Industry 4.0 and its technologies [8].

The study conducted by Ozcelik, Erkollar, and Cebeci was conducted to measure the level of digitalization of the business while responding to customer requests. Nine criteria were considered to measure the digitalization index. Questions were prepared based on the criteria considered. The prepared questions were applied to a machinery manufacturing company in Sakarya province. Considering that the effects of the criteria may be different, the weights of the criteria were found by using the Analytic Hierarchy Process. As a result of the survey conducted on experts in the business, it was concluded that the digitalization index of the company was 3 [9].

In the study conducted by Sertel, Buruk Sahin, and Islier, the perspective of Industrial Engineering students on Industry 4.0 was examined. A survey was administered to 118 students studying at Eskischir Osmangazi University Industrial Engineering Department. SPSS program was used to evaluate the survey results. The results of the survey applied to the students were collected under 3 headings. These are the thoughts that software education should be increased, unemployment will increase and the curriculum is insufficient [10].

In the study conducted by Metin and Turkoglu, it was investigated whether the enterprises producing in Elazig had sufficient knowledge and equipment to implement the production method introduced by the Industry 4.0 revolution. A total of 49 people from 10 companies in different sectors were surveyed. It was determined that 28.60% of the company owners and 42.90% of the managers participating in the research were knowledgeable about this technology [11].

In the study conducted by Bulut and Akcaci, it was aimed to explain Industry 4.0 and its basic concepts. Industry 4.0 studies in Turkey were examined and what needed to be done to catch up with other countries was investigated. According to the study, a commission should be established for the Turkish economy as we move towards Industry 4.0. This commission should determine the measures to be taken for Industry 4.0, R&D expenditures and the direction of innovation [12].

In the study conducted by Sener and Elevli, the qualifications required to move to Industry 4.0 were examined and an academy was proposed. As a result of the study, it was reported that the education system should be renewed and it should be adapted faster instead of waiting for the adaptation process [13].

In the study conducted by Ozbek, Yildiz, and Alan, the Industry 4.0 adaptation of textile companies operating in Turkey was examined. The aim of the study is to examine the perspectives, usage potentials and expectations of textile companies in Turkey on Industry 4.0 technologies. A survey was applied to 67 textile enterprises that managed to enter the Istanbul Chamber of Industry's (ISO) 500 largest enterprises list in 2018. As a result of the survey, it was seen that the Industry 4.0 technology that businesses use most is Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP), and 54% of the businesses participating in the survey do not use Industry 4.0 technologies due to the high investment cost. Businesses using Industry 4.0 technologies stated the reasons for their use as increasing efficiency and quality and reducing the number of workforce and costs [14].

Measuring the industry 4.0 awareness level of students in the field of engineering and information systems

The study conducted by Batibay aimed to measure the Industry 4.0 awareness levels of Electrical and Electronics engineers working in different enterprises in Diyarbakır. In order to measure Industry 4.0 awareness levels in the study, A survey was administered to 64 Electrical and Electronics Engineers. As a result of the survey, it was determined that Industry 4.0 was very well known by 69.21%, well known by 16.25%, slightly known by 11.01%, and not known at all by 3.51% [15].

The study conducted by Tas and Alagoz aimed to measure the Industry 4.0 awareness levels of companies operating in the logistics sector in Konya. The survey results were evaluated with the help of SPSS program. The analysis results show that the relevant companies have Industry 4.0 awareness. On the other hand, they are not at a sufficient level in the implementation of Industry 4.0 in businesses. [16].

In the study conducted by Karakadilar, it was aimed to develop a unique scale by considering Industry 4.0 and economic factors together. For this purpose, a survey was prepared and it was applied to 36 participants. As a result, Industry 4.0 and economic factors are grouped under three subheadings. These topics are "sustainable logistics", "smart production operations", and "obstacles to transformation" [17].

The aim of the study conducted by Selim, Dogan and Dogan was to determine the Industry 4.0 susceptibility levels of medium and large-scale companies operating in Manisa and Izmir Organized Industrial Zones and to determine the factors affecting their susceptibility levels. It was determined that large-scale companies were more likely to participate. However, it has been revealed that the factor affecting susceptibility levels is intention [18].

In the study conducted by Dogan and Asan, Industry 4.0 awareness levels of Health Institutions Management department students were measured. It has been observed that female students' Industry 4.0 awareness levels are higher than male students, and second-year students' Industry 4.0 awareness levels are higher than first-year students [19].

4 APPLICATION

Variable	Category	Frequency	Ratio
C 1	Female	75	0.277
Gender —	Male	196	0.723
	18-21	61	0.225
	22-26	182	0.672
Age	27-35	21	0.077
	36-49	5	0.018
	50 and above	2	0.007
Place of	Village	34	0.125
residence	City	237	0.875
	İstanbul	41	0.151
	Ankara	9	0.033
City of	İzmir	6	0.022
	Bursa	7	0.026
	Other	208	0.768
	1	10	0.037
	2	70	0.258
Number of	3	74	0.273
	4	38	0.14
	5 and above	79	0.292

Measuring the industry 4.0 awareness level of students in the field of engineering and information systems

Within the scope of the study, it was aimed to examine the Industry 4.0 awareness of undergraduate students of a university in Turkey. Therefore, A survey consisting of Industry 4.0 conceptual awareness scale and demographic questions was prepared. The prepared survey was applied to Industrial Engineering, Mechanical Engineering, Civil Engineering, Food Engineering and Management Information Systems students. A 5-point Likert scale was used in the survey. The survey was converted to electronic form using "Google Forms" and shared via e-mail. There were 271 survey returns. Survey results were interpreted using the SPSS program. The answers to demographic questions such as gender, department and age in the first part of the survey are given below.

5 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

KMO test whether the sample size is suitable for analysis. KMO value is between 0 and 1. The closer it is to 1, the more reliable it is. The Bartlett test decides whether the data forms the identity matrix and whether the correlation between the variables is sufficient. KMO and Bartlett test results are given in Table 2.

Table 2. KMO and Bartlett's test results						
Kaiser-Meyer-Olkin Measure 0.962						
Bartlett's Test of Sphericity	Approx. Chi-Square	7126.673				
	Df	528				
	Sig.	0				

As seen in Table 2, the KMO value is 0.962. The number of samples is suitable for factor analysis. Since p < 0.05 as a result of the Bartlett test, the data set is suitable for factor analysis. The results of the factor analysis conducted to determine how many factors the Industry 4.0 awareness scale consists of are given in Table 3.

Table 3. Factor analysis results						
Eastan	Eigen	Variance Explanation	Cumulative Variance			
Factor	Value	Ratio (%)	Explanation Ratio (%)			
1	17.495	53.014	53.014			

As seen in Table 3, it was revealed that the 33 item Industry 4.0 conceptual awareness scale had a unidimensional scale structure since its variance level was 53.014. Reliability analysis measures the consistency between responses to questions in the survey. In order to perform a reliability analysis, Cronbach's Alpha (α) value must be found. The α value can be found for each question. If the α value obtained for all questions is greater than 0.7, it is reliable and consistent.

 Table 4. Cronbach's alpha reliability test results

 Cronbach's Alpha N of Items

 0.972
 33

Cronbach's Alpha (α) value was found to be 0.972. This shows that the answers given by survey participants are consistent. The results regarding whether the participants showed a significant difference according to gender in the survey were examined with a t-test. Analysis results are seen in Table 5.

Table 5. T-test results by gender								
Scale	Gender	N	Х	Homogeneity Situation	F	SİG.	t	SİG. (2-Tailed)
Industry 4.0	Female	male 75 2.50465 Variances are homogeneous 1.12	1 1 20 0 465	0.465	2.764	0.544		
Awareness	Male	196	2.56107	Variances are not homogeneous	1.139	0.403	-3.511	0.538

According to Table 5, Sig. values greater than 0.05 indicate that the variances are homogeneous. In this case Sig. (2-tailed) considering the values, it was determined that the Industry 4.0 awareness of the students did not show a significant difference in terms of gender. Findings regarding whether there was a significant difference in terms

of the department in which the survey participants studied were tested with ANOVA. Analysis results are seen in Table 6.

Table 6. ANOVA results in terms of department studied						
Scale	Department	N	Х	F	SİG.	
Industry 4.0 Awareness	Industrial Engineering	39	2.818	1.84	0.324	
	Civil Engineering	157	2.474			
	Food Engineering	2	2.348			
	Mechanical Engineering	30	2.391			
	Management Information Systems	43	2.674			

When the data in Table 6 was examined, it was seen that the Industry 4.0 awareness level of the students showed a significant difference based on the department. In this case, when the averages are examined, it is seen that the Industrial Engineering students who participated in the survey have more Industry 4.0 awareness than other students.

6 CONCLUSION

Today, the concept of Industry 4.0 appears in many areas of life. One of the areas it affects is undoubtedly the field of education. Especially students in the field of engineering and information systems may encounter the concept of Industry 4.0 both in their courses and in their research. The main purpose of the study is to measure the Industry 4.0 awareness levels of these students. In this context, a survey was designed to be presented to related students. The designed survey was applied to the students and the results were analysed through the SPSS program. Analysis results showed that students' Industry 4.0 awareness levels are concentrated below the middle level and this awareness level varies according to departments.

References

- [1] A. Soylu, "Industry 4.0 and new approaches to entrepreneurship," Pamukkale University Journal of Social Sciences Institute, vol. 32, pp. 43–57, 2018.
- [2] M. Özkan, A. Al, and S. Yavuz, "The effects of fourth industrial revolution with respect to international political economy and Turkey," Marmara University Journal of Political Science, vol. 6, no. 2, pp. 126– 156, 2018.
- [3] E. Kaygisiz and H. Sipahi, "The investigation of the relationship between individual innovation and industry 4.0 knowledge levels of y generation university students," Gaziantep University Journal of Social Sciences, vol. 18, no. 2, pp. 922–936, 2019.
- [4] E. Kamber and G. I. Sonmezturk Bolatan, "Industry 4.0 awareness in Turkey," Mehmet Akif Ersoy University Journal of Social Sciences Institute, vol. 11 (30), pp. 836–847, 2019.
- [5] S. C. Yıldız and S. Ü. Fırat, "Investigation of industry 4.0 knowledge level of university students in Turkey", Journal of Industrial Engineering, vol. 31, pp. 1–16, 2020.
- [6] N. K. Torun and E. Cengiz, "The perspective of university students' through the technology acceptance model (TAM) to industry 4.0," International Journal of Economics and Administrative Studies, vol. 22, pp. 235–250, 2019.
- [7] N. Yelkikalan, S. Ozcan and K. Temel, "Determination of the industrial awareness: the case of çanakkale onsekiz mart university," Journal of Entrepreneurship and Development, vol. 14, no. 1, pp. 31–44, 2019.
- [8] G. Demiral, "Effects of industry 4.0 on human resources management: a research on awareness of technological change," Ekev Academic Journal, vol. 80, pp. 191–208, 2019.
- [9] T. O. Ozcelik, A. Erkollar, and H. Cebeci, "Industry 4.0 (digital) maturity level determination application for a manufacturing company," 5th International Management Information Systems Conference, pp. 1–11, 24-26 October 2018, Ankara, Turkey.
- [10] E. Sertel, Y. Buruk Sahin, and A. A. Islier, "Analysis of industrial engineering education and industry 4.0 relationship with ESOGU industrial engineering students' perspective," International Journal of Engineering Research and Development, vol. 12, no. 1, pp. 236–250, 2020.
- [11] S. Metin and I. Turkoglu, "Industry 4.0 perception of firms in Elazığ organized industrial zone," BAIBÜ Social Sciences Institute Journal, vol. 2, pp. 477–496, 2019.
- [12] E. Bulut and T. Akcaci, "Industry 4.0 and within the scope of innovation indicators analysis of Turkey,"

Assam International Refereed Journal, vol. 7, pp. 50–72, 2017.

- [13] S. Sener and B. Elevli, "Endüstri 4.0'da yeni iş kolları ve yüksek öğrenim," Journal of Engineer Brains, vol. 1, no. 2, pp. 25–37, 2017.
- [14] A. Ozbek, A. Yildiz, and M. A. Alan, "An investigation of the adaptation of Turkish textile enterprises to industry 4.0," Acta Infologica, vol. 5(2), pp. 255–265, 2021.
- [15] B. Batibay, "Electrical and electronic engineers industry 4.0 determining awareness levels," Rahva Journal of Technical and Social Studies, vol. 2, no. 1, pp. 129–136, 2022.
- [16] A. Tas and S. B. Alagoz, "A research on industry 4.0 awareness levels specifically for the logistics sector," KMU Journal of Social and Economic Research, vol. 23, no. 41, pp. 404–417, 2021.
- [17] I. S. Karakadilar, "A scale development study for Turkish exporting industries oriented to the industry 4.0 and circular economy implementations," Journal of Economics Business and Political Researches, vol. 8, no. 21, pp. 403–420, 2023.
- [18] S. Selim, R. S. Dogan and M. Dogan, "Analysis of the factors affecting firms' Industry 4.0 readiness levels," Pamukkale University Journal of Engineering Sciences, vol. 28, no. 4, pp. 613–624, 2022.
- [19] O. Dogan and H. Asan, "Awareness of industry 4.0 technologies in the healthcare field: A study on university students," The Business Journal, vol. 4, no. 2, pp. 321–337, 2023.



Cyprus Issue and Its Effect on Turkey–European Relations

Ergin Kosunalp*1

¹MEV Ogretmen Serkan Akyaz Primarily School, Bingol, Turkey

Abstract

The strategic importance of the "Cyprus Problem", which is put forward by the Union as a prerequisite for Turkey's European Union membership process, for Turkey, Greece, the European Union and other countries, is discussed in this study and examined whether this problem plays a role as an obstacle for Turkey. The segregating policies of the European Union between Greeks and Turks living together in Cyprus have completely separated the two peoples, and this situation prevents the problem from becoming inextricable with each passing day and preventing the problem from being resolved in the short term. In addition, the different perspectives of the governments in Turkey to the Cyprus problem, and even the perspectives of some of them in the understanding of give and get rid of Cyprus, what they lost to Turkey are discussed and their reflections on Turkey are explained.

Keywords: Cyprus, Management, European union, Membership



Temperature Analysis with MATLAB PDE Toolbox

Abderrezak Cherana*1

¹University of Science and Technology – Houari Boumediene, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Algiers, Algeria

Abstract

With the development of the computer and the development of software programs that make it easier for people to create and understand a system, the effective use of computers has increased, especially in the field of engineering. In this study, the temperature analysis of a rectangular geometry positioned on the x and y axis and with an extension on the z axis was carried out with MATLAB's Partial Differential Equation (PDE) Toolbox. According to the problem geometry, the lower, right, left and upper surfaces of the rectangular geometry are insulated as desired or heated to the desired level. Necessary adjustments and adjustments were made in PDE Toolbox for heat transfer. After the PDE Specification and mesh mode, heat transfer was interpreted by taking the two-dimensional distribution and directional change of temperature. Additionally, the deformations occurring in the model due to the effect of temperature were also examined.

Keywords: MATLAB PDE Toolbox, Heat transfer



Researching the Appropriate Connection Type in the Tower Crane System with Finite Element Analysis

Abderrezak Cherana*1

¹University of Science and Technology – Houari Boumediene, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Algiers, Algeria

Abstract

In this study, structural analysis of the tower crane system used in both lifting and transportation operations was made. ANSYS finite element program was used for structural analysis and the analysis was carried out using the finite element method under certain boundary conditions. Stresses and deformations were examined under the best mesh values and as a result, the connections were evaluated comparatively for the most suitable connection in the system.

Keywords: Finite element method, ANSYS, Connection type



World Energy Efficiency: Current Status and Strategic Approaches for the Future

Jamel Titouhi¹, Saber Bouhdjeur^{*1}

¹Carthage University, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Tunis, Tunisia

Abstract

The increase in energy demand and sustainability concerns around the world have made emphasizing energy efficiency a necessity. This study aims to evaluate the current situation in energy efficiency worldwide and consider strategic approaches for a more sustainable energy use in the future. Therefore, the study focused on energy efficiency indices and evaluation methodologies, energy efficiency in the industrial sector, urban planning and transportation, investment in energy efficient technology development, energy efficiency education and awareness. This study aims to reveal strategic approaches to sustainable energy use by discussing the current situation and future steps in energy efficiency worldwide. Increasing energy efficiency will not only reduce energy consumption, but will also bring economic and social benefits by supporting environmental sustainability.

Keywords: Energy efficiency, World, Approaches for the future



Wind Energy, Research on Wind Potential in the World and Tunisia

Saber Bouhdjeur^{*1}, Mohamed Nadir¹, Abderrahim Amrane¹

¹Carthage University, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Tunis, Tunisia

Abstract

Due to the damage caused by fossil-based fuels to the environment and the limited resources, research studies on new energy sources have been initiated. It has caused mankind to start working on using wind energy, which they have used since the earliest ages, first in moving vehicles on water, and then in windmills, in the production of electrical energy, which is the most widely used type of energy in our era. Wind energy applications, which provide economical solutions to meet the energy needs especially in remote regions where installing electricity grid lines is expensive, also promise a future in supplying energy to the grid in regions where the wind regime is suitable throughout the year. In this study, the potential of wind energy, the World and Algeria, is emphasized and attention is tried to draw attention to its potential in Algeria.

Keywords: Wind power, Wind potential, World, Algeria



Energy Solutions for a Sustainable Future: Geothermal Energy

Mohamed Nadir^{*1}, Saber Bouhdjeur¹, Abderrahim Amrane¹

¹Carthage University, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Tunis, Tunisia

Abstract

Geothermal energy is a technology that offers important solutions for a clean and sustainable energy future. Geothermal is the general name given to the heat accumulated at various depths of the earth's crust. Geothermal fluid is hot water, steam and gases containing many different elements and other substances. Geothermal energy is the name of the energy created by the enthalpy and heat of these fluids. In this study, numerical information will be given about geothermal energy resources in the world and information will be given about the potential of geothermal energy. In addition, in geothermal energy, which is an important step in terms of both environmental sustainability and energy security; Issues such as investment and financing, management of environmental impacts, education and awareness will also be addressed.

Keywords: Geothermal energy, Geothermal energy in the world



Renewable Energy Sources: Global Situation and Future Potentials

Abderrahim Amrane^{*1}, Mohamed Nadir¹, Saber Bouhdjeur¹

¹Carthage University, Department of Mechanical Engineering, Tunis, Tunisia

Abstract

Developments in technology and industrialization, the continuous increase in energy demand worldwide and climate change concerns emphasize the importance of renewable energy sources. This study aims to assess the current status of global renewable energy resources and address their future potential. Therefore, in this study, the current applications and potential of solar energy, wind energy, hydroelectric energy, biomass energy, sea wave and tidal energy, and geothermal energy in the world were investigated and the data were graphed. Afterwards, suggestions were made about potential future applications. Renewable energy sources play a critical role in energy security, environmental sustainability and combating climate change. Implementing these recommendations would represent important steps towards a more sustainable energy future on a global level.

Keywords: Renewable energy sources, World potential, Suggestions



Development of Management Strategy in Universities

Chief Irukwu Onwuka*1

¹Citiedge University, Entrepreneurship Studies and Financial Risk Control Management, Abuja, Nigeria

Abstract

In this study, the strategic management practices of Universities operating in Nigeria and Citiedge University were discussed and the effects of these practices on the corporate performance of universities were examined. In this regard, models that will affect the performance of Citiedge University have been determined through environmental analysis and data that will make a positive contribution to the development process of the University have been extracted. In addition, strategies have been developed for the University's flexibility to easily adapt to new situations in the face of positive or negative developments in the external environment.

Keywords: Strategic management, Suggestion, Plan



Urban, Rural, and Regional Economy: Recommendations for Integration and Sustainable Development

Nazean Ghazali^{*1}

¹University of Monastir, Department of Economic Science, Monastir, Tunisia

Abstract

The balance between urban, rural and regional economies is of critical importance for sustainable development and social well-being.

- In urban economy; innovation and technology centres, sustainable transport infrastructure and education and skills development,
- In rural economy; agriculture and sustainability, strengthening local markets and promoting tourism,
- In the regional economy; infrastructure investments, cooperation and clustering and public-private cooperation

about the proposals were presented in order to support a fair and effective integration between these three economic areas. A healthy balance between urban, rural and regional economies is the key to sustainable development. These recommendations aim to achieve fair integration and increase social welfare in these areas.

Keywords: Economy, Integration, Sustainable development



Managing the Conflicts in International Joint Ventures: Prevent or Resolve Them

Tchetin Kazak^{*1}

¹University of Telecommunications and Post, Basic Training, Sofia, Bulgaria

Abstract

While the question of the determinants (why) of conflicts in international joint ventures has been widely discussed in the literature dedicated to strategic management, few studies have studied their occurrence, evolution and resolution (how). The purpose of this paper is to study the mechanisms of managing conflicts in international joint ventures by distinguishing between two approaches: a proactive approach that prevents the emergence of conflicts and a reactive approach that resolves them. The analysis of some cases of international joint ventures reveals the coexistence and complementarity of the two approaches, based on distinct mechanisms, with, on the one hand, preventive tools (contract, communication, cultural adaptation) and on the other hand curative mechanisms (renegotiation, mediation, arbitration). Together, these mechanisms make it possible to avoid escalation of conflict situations that could paralyze the operation of the joint venture or lead to its failure.

Keywords: International joint ventures, Conflicts, Management, Prevention, Resolution

1 INTRODUCTION

Recent studies reveal a growing interest in the study of conflict management mechanisms in International Strategic Alliances (ISA) [1, 2]. Two currents dealing with conflict management have thus developed. The first trend, the most striking in the literature, concerns mechanisms for preventing conflicts a priori such as contracts [3]; communication [2] and shared vision [4]. The second current, the least studied empirically [5], rather concerns the mechanisms for dealing with conflicts after their occurrence such as meetings between managers, negotiations, external mediations and legal arbitration procedures.

Observation of conflict management practices in the context of ISA shows that these two mechanisms coexist and are often mobilized in a differentiated manner by one of the partners or by the managers of the alliance. A priori preventive actions are completed ad hoc when a conflict situation arises. However, to our knowledge, few works have combined the two streams to present to ASI partners complete mechanisms (based on both proactive and reactive approaches) that can help them prevent and manage conflicts. In this perspective, the work of [5] and [6] proposed a theoretical approach to conflict prevention and management tools in the context of international joint ventures (IJV).

2 DETERMINANTS AND DYNAMICS OF CONFLICTS IN INTERNATIONAL JOINT VENTURES

Inter-organizational conflicts are a major issue in examining the outcomes of International strategic alliances, potentially leading to their failure and disappearance as an inter-organizational entity of cooperation between partners, especially those of different national cultures. They can develop throughout the life cycle of an international joint venture, from the pre-formation stage to the termination stage of the relationship.

The conflicts are linked to endogenous factors such as:

- Lack of confidence;
- The ambiguity of contracts and
- The heterogeneity of objectives;
- The adoption of opportunistic behaviors;
- The relational context or

Exogenous factors such as:

- Cultural differences;
- The complexity and uncertainty of the environment.

2.1 Conflicts

Conflict is understood as a dynamic process, between two or more parties, made up of 5 phases, namely:

- Latent conflict (the conditions likely to trigger a conflict between partners),
- Perceived conflict (partners become aware of the existence of a conflict),
- Felt conflict (partners develop feelings of stress and tension),
- Manifest conflict (partners express their disagreement by adopting conflictual behavior expressed through action or speech), and finally
- The repercussions of the conflict (the conflict may or may not be overcome by the partners). The majority of research studying conflict in IJV focuses on the manifest conflict phase.

2.2 Determinants and Dynamics

Some authors distinguish conflicts emerging during the formation phase of a JVI from conflicts that develop during the operational phase.

During the formation phase of a joint venture, conflicts are potentially linked to endogenous factors such as:

- The lack of trust between the parties,
- The homogeneity of the partners' resources,
- The ambiguity of contracts and
- The heterogeneity of partners' objectives.

To this we could add the partner's need for rare resources possessed by the other party.

During the operational phase of a JVI, researchers argue that:

- The adoption of opportunistic behaviors by one or both partners,
- Differences in operational policies,
- Changes in objectives and strategic plans

Can lead to conflicts preventing the creation of the expected synergies. Also,

• The increased formalization and monitoring of relationships

Can give rise to disagreements between parties struggling to maintain their autonomy in the face of increasing interdependence.

From the same perspective, several authors emphasize the role of control and the desire for autonomy in the emergence of conflicts between partners. When the meaning of contribution and control is changed in an unconcerted, unilateral (or even hidden) way, conflicts between partners are more likely to occur. In addition, the increase in the number of transactions over time is likely to reduce their complementarity and thus increase territorial conflicts, competition and the risks of alliance failure.

Cultural differences between partners constitute another potential determinant of the emergence of conflicts. In fact, the diversity of the organizational and strategic contexts of the two partners generates disagreements and creates contradictory points of view likely to favor conflict situations. Likewise, some researchers have shown that conflicts between IJV partners are caused by the managerial complexity of the partnership relations, most often associated with high agency and coordination costs.

On the other hand, the characteristics of the external environment have a real impact on the development of conflicts within IJVs. Thus, the authors emphasize that conflicts between partners are most likely linked to interorganizational relationships exposed to strong environmental uncertainty. Likewise, some researchers have highlighted that characteristics of the external environment, such as:

• Unanticipated political and economic changes,

- Changes in industry structure and competition patterns, or
- Reorientations of parent companies' strategies,

Influence the political behavior adopted by the partners and have an impact on the disappearance of the joint venture.

For their part, others have stressed that:

- The volatility of the environment,
- The structural instability,
- The unverifiable nature of information and
- The inapplicability of the laws characterizing these countries

Are likely to increase the opportunism of partners and therefore encourage conflict situations.

Overall, the researchers emphasize that the effect of the uncertainty of the partners' motivations on the failure of the JVI (internal factors) is more important than that of the uncertainty of the external environment.

3 CONFLICT MANAGEMENT IN INTERNATIONAL JOINT VENTURES

In the theoretical works devoted to conflict management in IJVs, we distinguish prevention mechanisms from conflict resolution mechanisms encountered by partners. The first are "designed" by the partners during the formation of the alliance, with adjustments throughout its life cycle, while the latter most often intervene in an "emergency" to resolve already exacerbated conflicting situations.

3.1 Prevention

According to some authors, most previous studies have focused on the mechanisms for avoiding conflicts rather than on the processes of their resolution.

In this sense, we can consider the governance mechanisms of joint ventures:

- Building trust,
- Contractual clarifications,
- Adjustment of clauses, etc.

Identified in the literature as conflict prevention tools. As such, the contract makes it possible to clarify the division of labor, establish clear power relations, formalize the procedures for interaction between partners, provide structural assurance if one of the parties does not meet the criteria performance, prevent opportunistic behavior and specify, in advance, the conditions and procedures relating to the resolution of conflicts and the termination of the relationship.

When starting the alliance, all the strategic partners draw up a contract which will set the normative framework of the relationship in terms of contributions, extent of cooperation, methods of knowledge transfer, but also protection against behavior opportunistic, legal constraints to be respected by the different parties, conflict resolution and terms of exit and termination of the agreement.

According to the results, two types of contract can be distinguished, namely: the succinct contract, called "startup contract" or "progressive contract", and the very detailed contract called "complete contract". These two types of contract serve as a basis for preventing the emergence of opportunistic behavior likely to trigger conflicts, but cannot, on their own, prevent their development and proliferation. Indeed, the first category of contract (start-up contract) does not make it possible to foresee all the developments in the collaboration, nor the changes in the objectives and behavior of the partners, thus leading to confusion and misinterpretations. For its part, the complete contract details all the processes, objectives, resources of the partners and above all anticipates the scenario in the event of conflicts, but does not allow it to be up to date with the evolution and requirements of the cooperation or to take into account all possible changes and developments in the relationship.

In the same perspective, social mechanisms such as:

• Shared vision,

- Trust and
- Communication

Play an important role in minimizing the opportunism of partners, developing strong relationships and closer ties between the parties with a view to preventing conflict situations.

Concerning IJV in particular, cultural adaptation approaches (multicultural practices, development of corporate culture, etc.) between partners is another tool that plays an important role in conflict prevention.

All the IJVs studied bring together partners whose cultures and origins are different, business processes and managerial practices sometimes distant. Partners of distinct nationalities, even from the same continent, have heterogeneous values, dissimilar language and "jargon", histories, understandings and expectations. This is an underlying element of the alliance, a factor in possible tensions and conflict situations. This is how the partners equip themselves with a set of mechanisms complementary to the contract, such as cultural adaptation tools, in order to better prevent conflicts. However, the cultural adaptation process implemented differs from one case to another depending on the nature of the cultural differences encountered or the phase of the collaboration concerned as well as the cooperative or international experience of the partners. Thus, during the start-up phase of the alliance, the analysis of the results reveals the establishment of a common working language to better protect against national cultural differences. Indeed, linguistic differences are likely to trigger misunderstanding difficulties between the actors involved in the alliance. Harmonization of communication language is therefore essential to facilitate the implementation of partners' strategy and the conduct of joint activities.

By fostering similar values and a common cultural environment among all parties and allowing congruence of objectives, cultural adaptation encourages partners to refrain from opportunistic behavior. The success of IJVs depends on the cultural adaptation of partners based on:

- Intercultural awareness;
- Training programs and
- The encouragement of informal contacts.

From this perspective, cultural adaptation is considered as a preventive mechanism for conflict because it consists of ensuring the understanding, assimilation and integration of respective differences in order to develop common approaches and make heterogeneous organizational cultures coexist.

3.2 Resolution

If, despite these efforts at cultural adaptation and communication, prevention fails, the priority task of IJV managers consists of resolving the conflict through appropriate and specific mechanisms. Indeed, conflicts are likely to grow and become more serious due to the divergence in the partners' managerial practices. The diversity of organizational cultures increases the risks of ambiguity, complexity and confusion and consequently makes it difficult to converge directions and actions. These differences give rise to numerous conflicts between the two partners as indicated previously, but are also a source of conflicts on the choice of mechanisms to put in place to resolve the problems of differences of opinion and objectives... In other words, not only can these cultural differences lead to conflicting situations, but they can also hinder the identification of consensual resolution tools a posteriori.

As partners adopt a preventative approach, some conflicts will be reduced while others may emerge. To deal with them, partners can resort to several strategies recognized in the literature, namely resolving problems through:

- Compromise,
- Negotiating,
- Forcing the position or
- Adopting a legalistic strategy.

However, the cultural distance between the partners influences the choice between the four strategies cited above. For example, the "programming" at the start of an alliance of a conflict resolution process by one of the partners may offend the other party, who will perceive it as a lack of trust, likely to reduce the chances of resolution of the conflict and create new ones.

In this curative perspective, certain authors highlight the importance of mobilizing conflict resolution techniques, in an increasing manner depending on their intensity, starting with meetings between managers at the highest level of each parent internally until recourse to external mediations and legal arbitration procedures. While the mediator has no power to impose an agreement between the partners and must therefore demonstrate neutrality throughout the process by supporting them and advising them in a relevant manner, the arbitrator will take position and will propose a decision that will apply to all parties. Thus, arbitration should result in more restrictive mechanisms than mediation.

For their part, others propose a model of process composed of a set of actions to be implemented by partners in order to resolve conflicts, namely:

- The identification and evaluation of the problem;
- Strategy formation;
- The definition of the initial stages of the conflict resolution procedure;
- The formation of a mixed conflict negotiation team;
- Brainstorming sessions on possible strategies to resolve conflicts;
- The repetitions;
- Conflict transformation;
- The effective negotiation of conflicts between partners;
- Assessing and rebuilding trust, etc.

4 CONCLUSION

Conflict is dynamic and evolving. The tools to respond to them must combine prevention and reaction, without exclusivity. Then, the partner's vision and perception of the conflict (intensity, frequency and effects on the relationship) is often different from ours (because of differences in experience, national and organizational cultures). This involves the development of understanding and communication tools from the first phases of cooperation in order to detect early warning signs of the emergence of a potential conflict.

In short, IJV partners must choose between well-adapted and complementary mechanisms with a view to preventing a priori or resolving a posteriori the conflict situations encountered. They are in fact part of this dual proactive and reactive approach to conflict management.

References

- [1] J. Larimo, H. Nguyen, and T. Ali, "Performance measurement choices in international joint ventures: Whatfactors drive them?," Journal of Business Research, vol. 69, no. 2, pp. 877–887, 2016.
- [2] M. Owens, E. Ramsey, and S. Loane, "Resolving post-formation challenges in shared IJVs: The impact of shared IJV structure on inter-partner relationships," International Business Review, vol. 27, no. 3, pp. 584– 593, 2018.
- [3] Y. Luo, "Contract, cooperation, and performance in international joint ventures," Strategic Management Journal, vol. 23, no. 10, pp. 903-919, 2002.
- [4] R. Krishnan, I. Geyskens, and J. Steenkamp, "The effectiveness of contractual and trust-based governance in strategic alliances under behavioral and environmental uncertainty," Strategic Management Journal, vol. 37, no. 12, pp. 2521–2542, 2015.
- [5] H. Nguyen, "Partnership strategies: Pro-active and pre-active approach in conflict managementin international joint ventures," International Journal of Business and Management, vol. 6, no. 9, pp. 38–45, 2011.
- [6] H. Nguyen and J. Larimo, "Determinants of conflict management strategies in international joint ventures: An integrative theoretical framework," Journal of Transnational Management, vol. 16, no. 2, pp. 116–132, 2011.

ORGANIZED BY	Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University, Turkey Bayburt University, Turkey University of Telecommunications and Post, Bulgaria Universiti Putra Malaysia, Malaysia
TITLE	Proceedings Book of 8th International Scientific Conference "Telecommunications, Informatics, Energy and Management" – TIEM 2023
ISSUED IN	Bandirma/Balıkesir, Turkey
ISSUED BY	Bandirma Onyedi Eylul University
EDITION	First, Pages XXXI + 468
ISBN	978-625-94286-0-4